
 

 
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

 

-u 

 

 
 

 

 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 

 

 

 CITY COUNCIL 

AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 

TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS  
 

WATCH THE MEETING   
 

Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at: 
 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 
 

Note:  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the record.  
 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT IN PERSON 
 
Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk.   
 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT VIA EMAIL 
 
Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda.  Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council, read into the 
record, limited to three minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting.  

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING COVID-19 
 
NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE: Pursuant to Adopted Resolution No. 8098 by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
effective January 12, 2022, the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies may participate via teleconference and/or video 
in Accordance with Government Code Section 54953 as permitted under the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 

 
 

 
 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 1 of 487

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – October 17, 2022 
Page 2 of 7

 

 

CALL-IN TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT LIVE AT THE MEETING 
 

Members of the public may call-in between 6:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m.  Comments will be heard in 
the order received, and limited to three minutes.  If necessary, the call-in period may be extended 
by the Mayor.  Note: This is audio only and no video. 
 

 Call-in Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833 
 Meeting ID:  833 6022 0211 
 Passcode:  924965 
 

When connecting to the Zoom meeting to speak, you will be placed in a virtual “waiting area,” 
with your audio disabled, until it is your turn to speak and limited to three minutes. 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  
 
 

PRESENTATIONS  
 
A. PRESENTATION OF EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION FOR OCTOBER 

STUDENTS OF THE MONTH 
Sunday Kelly (San Fernando Institute for Applied Media (SFIAM)) 

 Itzel Bueno (Academy of Scientific Exploration) 
 Education Commissioner Vice Chair David Govea 

 
B. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION TO LOCAL PARTNERS AND 

ORGANIZATIONS FOR HOSTING COVID-19 VACCINATION AND/OR TESTING CLINICS  
 

 

DECORUM AND ORDER 
 
The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment.  Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the 
same rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the 
room if the Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from 
further audience before the City Council. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 2 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – October 17, 2022 
Page 3 of 7

 

 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  

Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the 
Public Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk. 
 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to ensure distribution to the City Council and read into the record.  
 

Members of the public may provide a live public comment by calling in between 6:00 p.m. and 
6:15 p.m.  CALL-IN INFORMATION:  Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833; Meeting ID: 833 6022 
0211; Passcode: 924965  
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 

 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES: 

 

a.   October 19, 2020 – Regular Meeting     
b.   January 4, 2021 – Regular Meeting    
c.   April 5, 2021 – Regular Meeting    
d.   September 19, 2022 – Regular Meeting 
e.   October 3, 2022 – Special Meeting 

    

  

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 

Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 22-102 approving the Warrant 
Register. 
 

3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH SPECTRUMVOIP TO PROVIDE 
THE CITY’S VOICE OVER INTERNET PROTOCOL (VOIP) TELEPHONE SYSTEM SERVICES 

 

Recommend that the City Council: 
 

a. Approve a Service Agreement (Contract No. 2118) with SpectrumVoIP to provide the 
City’s Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) Telephone System Services; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager and the City Attorney to make non-substantial edits and 
execute all related documents. 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 3 of 487

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – October 17, 2022 
Page 4 of 7

 

 

4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN EQUIPMENT LEASE AND SERVICE MAINTENANCE 
AGREEMENT WITH CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA, INC. FOR THE CITYWIDE MULTIFUNCTION 
DEVICE MANAGED PRINT SERVICES REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 

a. Approve a 60-month (five-year) lease agreement with Canon Solutions America. Inc. 
(Contract No. 2117) through OMNIA Partners a Cooperative Purchasing Program, Master 
Agreement Contract No. FI-R-0251-18 for the purchase of nine multifunctional copier 
device managed print services equipment and maintenance services agreement in an 
amount not-to-exceed $55,000 per year; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Lease Agreement and all related documents. 
 

5) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT RESOLUTIONS TO ACCEPT GRANT FUNDS FROM THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL, ALCOHOL POLICING 
PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 
 

Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, Alcohol Policing 

Partnership Program 22-APP24 in the amount of $69,820; 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8186 authorizing the Police Chief to execute Standard Agreement 
No. 22-APP24 with ABC; and 

  
c. Adopt Resolution No. 8187 amending the budget of Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to appropriate 

the grant revenues and expenses. 
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES HIGH 
FREQUENCY COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT GRANT 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services High Frequency Communications 

Equipment Grant FH21 01 1410, in the amount of $59,968, to reimburse equipment and 
overtime associated with the grant; 

 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 8185 amending the budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to appropriate 

the grant revenues and expenses; and 
 
c. Authorize the City Manager to execute all related document; and 
 
d. Authorize the Police Chief to expend the funds as detailed in the CalOES High Frequency 

Communications Grant. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 4 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – October 17, 2022 
Page 5 of 7

 

 

7) CONSIDERATION TO AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE PEDESTRIAN FENCING 
GLENOAKS BOULEVARD BRIDGE PROJECT, PROJECT NO. 7618, PLAN NO. P-740 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 

a. Accept the lowest responsible bid in the amount of $134,120 from CT&T Concrete Paving, 
Inc., for construction of these improvements; 
 

b. Approve a construction contract with CT&T Concrete Paving, Inc. (Contract No. 2120) for 
an amount not-to-exceed $134,120; and 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute change orders for an amount not-to-exceed 10% 
of the contract amount, or $13,412, to cover costs of unforeseen conditions and execute 
all related documents. 

 
8) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE AN EXCHANGE AGREEMENT AND ASSIGNMENT OF FEDERAL 

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM-LOCAL (STP-L) AND HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE 
PROGRAM (HIP) FUNDS FOR USE ON THE CITY’S SIDEWALK REPAIR PROGRAM 
 
Recommend that the City Council:  
 

a. Approve an Exchange Agreement with Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority (Contract No. 2119) for an exchange of $256,008 in eligible STP-L and HIP funds 
previously allocated to the City for like total amount of LACMTA Local Transportation 
Funds;  
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8188 amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 adopted budget 
appropriating the revenues and expenditures for Street Maintenance – Capital Projects; 
and 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement and all related documents and 
make non-substantive changes, if necessary.  

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 

9) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF SAN FERNANDO AND THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES TO SUPPORT BROADBAND 
CONNECTIVITY AND ADDRESS THE DIGITAL DIVIDE 
 

Recommend that the City Council: 
 

a. Approve a Memorandum of Understanding (Contract No. 2115) between the City and the 
County of Los Angeles to support broadband connectivity and address the digital divide; 
and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related 
documents. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 5 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – October 17, 2022 
Page 6 of 7

 

 

10) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH RINCON 
CONSULTANTS, INC. TO PREPARE PHASE I OF THE CLIMATE ACTION AND RESILIENCE PLAN 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Contract No. 2116) with Rincon Consultants, 

Inc. in an amount not-to-exceed $50,000 for preparation of Phase 1 of the Climate Action 
and Resilience Plan; and 

 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 8184 amending Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Adopted Budget to 

appropriate expenditures for Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan; and  
 
c. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the 

Agreement and all related documents. 

 
11) DISCUSSION AND INFORMATIONAL UPDATE ON MAINTENANCE EFFORTS ON THE MISSION 

CITY BIKE TRAIL 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Receive and file this informational report on maintenance efforts on the Mission City Bike 

Trail;  
 
b. Discuss the options of adding new solar lights and security cameras on the bike trail; and 
 
c. Provide direction to staff, as appropriate. 

 
12) DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING CITY MEMBERSHIP TO JOIN CALIFORNIA 

CONTRACT CITIES ASSOCIATION 
 
This item was agendized by Councilmember Celeste Rodriguez. 

 
13) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION TO ADDRESS CERTAIN COMMENTS MADE BY CITY OF 

LOS ANGELES COUNCILMEMBERS GIL CEDILLO AND KEVIN DE LEÓN 
 
This item was agendized by Mayor Mary Mendoza. 

 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 6 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – October 17, 2022 
Page 7 of 7

 

 

GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted: October 13, 2022 (5:00 p.m.)  

 

The Regular Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando also serves  as concurrent Regular Meeting s of the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City composed exclusive of the Members of the City Council.    
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s `Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 7 of 487

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 8 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 9 of 487



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 10 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 11 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 12 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 13 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 14 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
OCTOBER 19, 2020 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo, Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco (joined at 6:13 p.m.), 
Councilmembers Sylvia Ballin, Robert C. Gonzales (joined at 6:13 p.m.), and 
Mary Mendoza 

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Tim Hou, Director of Finance Diego Ibanez, Director of Public 
Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
Julian Venegas and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: None  

 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by Mayor Fajardo 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza to approve the agenda. The 
motion carried with Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Gonzales absent. 
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
It was noted that Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Gonzales joined the meeting at  
6:13 p.m. 
 
A) EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION - STUDENTS OF THE MONTH 

• Leah Cortes (O’Melveny Elementary)  
• Andres Bernal (Academy of Scientific Exploration)  
• Jason Portillo (Social Justice Humanitas Academy) 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 15 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – October 19, 2020 
Page 2 
 
B) RECEIVE AN INFORMATIONAL PRESENTATION REGARDING THE NOVEMBER 3, 2020, 

GENERAL ELECTION ACTIVITY UPDATES 
 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
 
City Clerk Fritz read Public Statements into the record submitted by: 
 
Liana Stepanyan, San Fernando Library Manager provided information regarding the Library's 
service schedule.   
 
Maria Panduro mentioned concerns on activities associated with the upcoming Halloween 
events during the COVID-19 pandemic.   
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza to approve:  
 
1) REQUEST TO APPROVE MEETING MINUTES OF:   
 

a. APRIL 20, 2020 – REGULAR MEETING  
b. MAY 4, 2020 – REGULAR MEETING 
c.    OCTOBER 5, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 
 
3) CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY 

SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM (STEP) GRANT PT21053 AND ADOPT A 
RESOLUTION AMENDING FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 BUDGET  

 
The motion carried, unanimously. 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
4) RECEIVE A PRESENTATION FROM METRO REGARDING THE EAST SAN FERNANDO VALLEY 

TRANSIT CORRIDOR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
REPORT AND PROVIDE RELATED DIRECTION  

 
It was noted that Mayor Fajardo left the meeting at 8:17 p.m. 
 

Metro representatives presented an update regarding the East San Fernando Valley Light 
Rail Transit project and responded to Councilmember questions and concerns.   

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 16 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – October 19, 2020 
Page 3 
 

Staff was directed to prepare a letter to include the City’s position on the final 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) to be submitted to the Board of Directors prior to the 
deadline.  

 
It was noted that Mayor Fajardo joined the meeting at 8:57 p.m. 
 
5) UPDATE ON THE GLENOAKS BOULEVARD STREET RESURFACING AND HIGHWAY SAFETY 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
 

Director of Public Works Baumgardner presented an update on the Glenoaks Boulevard 
street resurfacing and the Highway safety improvement project and responded to 
Councilmember questions.  City Council received and filed the report.  

 
City Manager Kimball requested Item Nos. 9 and 10 be considered together due to the subject 
matter. 
 
9) DISCUSSION REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS AND APPROVAL OF PROPOSED 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Hou presented information 
regarding the City's COVID-19 response efforts, statistics, and related recommendations.   

 
10) DISCUSSION REGARDING HALLOWEEN ACTIVITIES AND APPROVAL OF PROPOSED 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 It was the consensus of the City Council to direct staff to follow the Los Angeles County 
Public Health guidelines to inform the community about Halloween activities, planned 
street closures, including applicable signage. 

 
Mayor Fajardo stated that Items No. 11, 8, and 7 be considered next. 
 

11) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE FIRST TUESDAY IN 
NOVEMBER OF EVEN NUMBERED YEARS AS ELECTION DAY IN SAN FERNANDO 

 
Motion by Vice Mayor Pacheco, seconded by Mayor Fajardo to adopt Resolution  
No. 8034, declaring the first Tuesday in November of even numbered years, as Election 
Day in San Fernando.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
8) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT WITH THE SAN FERNANDO 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION AND SAN FERNANDO MANAGEMENT GROUP TO 
RESOLVE IMPACTS OF THE RETIREMENT INCENTIVE BENEFIT AND ADOPT RELATED 
RESOLUTIONS 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 17 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – October 19, 2020 
Page 4 
 

City Manager Kimball presented the report and discussed supplemental information 
distributed to Council subsequent to the distribution of the agenda packet. 

 
 Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin to:  

 
a. Approve the proposed Side Letter of Agreement (Contract No. 1969) between the City 

of San Fernando and the San Fernando Public Employees Association (SFPEA) 
implementing changes to existing job classifications, adopting new job classifications, 
and adjusting the salary plan related to position duties and responsibilities directly 
impacted by the Retirement Incentive Program; 
 

b. Approve the proposed Side Letter of Agreement (Contract No. 1970) between the City 
of San Fernando and the San Fernando Management Group (SFMG) implementing 
changes to existing job classifications, adopting new job classifications, and adjusting 
the salary plan related to position duties and responsibilities directly impacted by the 
Retirement Incentive Program; 
 

c.    Adopt Resolution No. 8035 approving new classification specifications for positions 
represented by SFPEA and SFMG; 
 

d. Adopt Resolution No. 8036 amending the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-2021 Salary Plan to 
include the appropriate salary range for each new classification specification 
represented by SFPEA and SFMG; 
 

e. Adopt Resolution No. 8037 amending the Table of Organization for FY 2020-2021 to 
reflect the changes identified in the Side Letter of Agreements; and 
 

f.    Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive corrections and execute the Side 
Letter of Agreements and all related documents and include supplemental 
information submitted to the City Clerk, as Attachment A, including a minor addition 
to the Side Letter of Agreement, City Mechanic job specifications and eliminating 
references to Public Works Technician. 

 
 The motion carried unanimously. 
 
7) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO SUBMIT A GRANT APPLICATION FOR PROP. 

68 PER CAPITA FUNDING AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT SUCH FUNDS 
SHOULD GRANT BE AWARDED 

 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas presented the staff report and 
responded to Councilmember questions.   

  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 18 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – October 19, 2020 
Page 5 
 

Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Gonzales to adopt Resolution  
No. 8033 authorizing the submittal of a grant application to the California Department of 
Parks and Recreation Per Capita Grant to fund the Pioneer Park Playground Renovation 
and Outdoor Exercise Project; authorize the City Manager to accept the grant funds, upon 
award of grant; authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute all grant-related 
documents required for receiving such grant funds pursuant to the terms and conditions 
of the grant; and upon full execution of all grant-related documents; and authorize the 
City Manager to amend the revenue and expenditure budgets to appropriate the grant 
funds.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
6) PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 PRELIMINARY YEAR-END BUDGET ESTIMATES 

AND FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 BUDGET REVIEW 
 
Director of Finance Ibanez presented the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 preliminary year-end 
budget estimates and Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget review and responded to 
Councilmember questions.  City Council received and filed the report.  
 

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas mentioned upcoming virtual 
community events.  
 
City Manager Kimball announced upcoming dates for the Strategic Planning meetings. 
 
 
GENERAL COUNCIL COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Gonzales thanked staff for all their work. 
 
Councilmember Mendoza attended the California League of Cities meeting; and thanked the 
San Fernando Mall Association for adding lights in the mall. 
 
Councilmember Ballin discussed the completion of the mural project and the mural installation 
planned for mid-November.  Councilmember Ballin reminded residents to be aware of hit 
pieces on Candidates often issued by non-resident special interest groups associated with the 
upcoming election.   
 
Vice Mayor Pacheco thanked staff for their work, congratulated the Los Angeles Dodgers for 
winning the World Series and Councilmember Mendoza on her first anniversary as a City 
Councilmember.  
 
Mayor Fajardo commented positively regarding serving with Councilmember Mendoza and 
echoed comments made by Councilmember Ballin regarding special interest groups.   

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 19 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – October 19, 2020 
Page 6 
 
ADJOURNMENT (10:37 P.M.) 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin to adjourn the meeting.  By 
consensus, the motion carried.  
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of October 19, 2020, 
meeting as approved by the San Fernando City 
Council. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 20 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 21 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 22 of 487



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
JANUARY 4, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Sylvia Ballin called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza, and Councilmembers Cindy 
Montañez and Celeste Rodriguez 

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Police 

Chief Anthony Vairo, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Timothy Hou, Director of Finance J. Diego Ibanez, Director of 
Public Works Matthew Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and 
Community Services Julian Venegas, and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: Councilmember Hector A. Pacheco 
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve the 
agenda. The motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco absent. 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 

 
A) PRESENTATION HONORING MR. TINO AND SARAH GALINDO IN RECOGNITION OF THEIR 

73RD WEDDING ANNIVERSARY 
Mayor Sylvia Ballin  
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 23 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – JANUARY 4, 2021 
Page 2 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS – ORAL/WRITTEN 
 
Marsella Rodriguez commented via telephone seeking financial assistance from the City and 
and assistance to resolve her current financial struggles. 
 
Christina Bernal commented via telephone on concerns with Agenda Item No. 9, Tesla 
Supercharger Agreement and recommended to delay the project to allow more community 
outreach. 
 
The following public statements were submitted via email in support of Agenda Item No. 9, 
Tesla Supercharger Agreement: 
 
Marvin Rolando Perez 
Theresa Mendez 
Jason Hayes 
Raymin Herrera 
Patty Lopez 
Gustavo Franco 
 
The following submitted comments in opposition of Agenda Item No. 9: 
 
David Bernal 
Cindy Lopez  
Nicholas Cardenas 
Adriana Gomez 
Kathy Casillas 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Councilmember Montañez requested to pull Consent Calendar Item Nos. 1 and 2 for discussion. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve 
Consent Calendar Nos. 3 and 4:  

 
3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A CONTRACT EXTENSION WITH MICHAEL BAKER 

INTERNATIONAL FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADMINISTRATION 
SERVICES 

 
4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH UTILITY 

SYSTEMS SCIENCE AND SOFTWARE, INC., FOR WASTEWATER FLOW MONITORING AN 
SAMPLE SERVICES  
 

The motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco absent. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 24 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – JANUARY 4, 2021 
Page 3 
 
Items Pulled for Discussion 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve Consent 
Calendar Item Nos. 1 and 2: 
 
1) REQUEST TO APPROVE MEETING MINUTES OF: 
 

a. MAY 18, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING 
b. JUNE 1, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING 
c. JUNE 15, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING  
d. JULY 6, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING  
e. JULY 20, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING  

 
2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NOS. 20-122 AND 21-011 APPROVING THE 

WARRANT REGISTERS OF DECEMBER 21, 2020 AND JANUARY 4, 2021, RESPECTIVELY 
 

The motion carried with the following vote: 
 
  ROLL CALL 
  AYES:  Rodriguez, Mendoza, Ballin - 3 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT: Pacheco 
  ABSTAIN: Montañez – 1 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
5) PRESENTATION AND UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 

 
Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Hou presented the staff 
report. Councilmembers provided feedback and recommendations to partner and submit 
grants regarding PPE and food distribution to receive additional Covid-19 resources. 
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH TOOLE 
DESIGN LLC TO DEVELOP A SAFE AND ACTIVE STREETS IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve 
a Professional Services Agreement (Contract No. 1975) with Toole Design LLC in an 
amount not-to-exceed $79,290 for transportation planning and design services to develop 
a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the City of San Fernando; and authorize 
the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the Agreement and all 
related documents. 
 
The motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco absent. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 25 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – JANUARY 4, 2021 
Page 4 
 
7) CONSIDERATION TO AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO MOORE 

IACOFANO GOLTSMAN, INC., FOR THE DESIGN OF THE LAYNE PARK REVITALIZATION 
PROJECT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to direct 
staff to obtain additional information from the proposed design firm related to specific 
design elements, include additional targeted community outreach for community 
members adjacent to Layne Park and return to the next City Council meeting to consider 
approving a revised contract. 
 
The motion did not pass by the following vote:  
 
  ROLL CALL 
  AYES:  Rodriguez, Montañez - 2 
  NAYS:  Mendoza, Ballin - 2 
  ABSENT: Pacheco - 1 
  ABSTAIN: None 
 

8) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS AND AD HOC 
COMMITTEES, AND REQUEST FOR DIRECTION REGARDING APPOINTMENTS TO CITY 
COMMISSIONS 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Mayor Ballin to approve the City Council 
Liaison Assignments as amended: League of California Cities - Vice Mayor Mendoza, 
Delegate, and Councilmember Rodriguez, Alternate.  San Fernando Valley Council of 
Governments - Vice Mayor Mendoza, Primary, and Councilmember Rodriguez, Alternate. 
The motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco absent. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to create a 
Visioning and Resilience Ad Hoc to create a process to address visioning for the entire City 
and resilient climate change issues with Vice Mayor Mendoza and Councilmember 
Montañez to serve on the committee. The motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco 
absent. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve 
the Ad Hoc Committee list to include a Safe and Active Streets Ad Hoc with 
Councilmember Montañez and Rodriguez to serve on the committee. The motion carried 
with Councilmember Pacheco absent. 
 
Motion by Mayor Ballin, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to appoint Vice Mayor 
Mendoza to the Disaster Council. The motion carried with Councilmember Pacheco 
absent. 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 26 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – JANUARY 4, 2021 
Page 5 
 
It was noted that Council recessed at 9:40 p.m. and reconvened at 9:45 p.m. with 
Councilmember Pacheco absent. 
 
9) DISCUSSION REGARDING THE TESLA SUPERCHARGER AGREEMENT  

 
Councilmember Montañez presented the staff report and expressed resident concerns 
regarding certain terms of the contract, failure to provide sufficient public notice to the 
nearby property owners and merchants associated with the use of Parking Lot 8 and 
project configuration changes.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez to delay the Tesla Chargers for 90-days to allow 
community participation.  The motion failed due to a lack of second.  
 

10) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PARTNERSHIP WITH THE EAST LOS ANGELES COLLEGE 
FOUNDATION AND CALIFORNIA STUDENT AID COMMISSION TO PROMOTE THE “SECOND 
ANNUAL CALSOAP LA COLLEGE AND CAREER EXPO” THROUGH THE CITY’S SOCIAL MEDIA, 
AND APPROVE USE OF THE CITY SEAL 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza presented the staff report. 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve a 
one-time partnership with the East Los Angeles College Foundation and California Student 
Aid Commission to promote the “Second Annual California Student Opportunity and 
Access Program (CALSOAP) LA College and Career Expo”; and Approve the use of the City 
Seal to allow CALSOAP LA to use the City name and City Seal on event promotional 
materials; and Approve providing promotional information related to the event through 
the City’s Website and Social Media outlets.  The motion carried, with Councilmember 
Pacheco absent. 
 
 

STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
Director of Finance announced budget updates would be provided at the next City Council 
meeting.  
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas announced the completion of the 
virtual Reindeer Dash, talked about the Mariachi 20 year video posted on the City’s website, 
and advertised community engagement meetings scheduled for January 14th, January 27th, and 
February 6th to provide feedback on amenities the community would like to see at the City’s 
parks. 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 27 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES – JANUARY 4, 2021 
Page 6 
 
City Clerk Fritz provided an update from the Education Commission, in lieu of the in-person 
Principals’ Brunch, the Commission suggested sending a letter to all school Principals reminding 
them of available City resources, and announced Deputy City Clerk Cynthia Alba tendered her 
resignation notice and her last day will be January 15, 2021. 
 
City Attorney Padilla announced a great abatement effort initiated at 1212 Knox St.  
 
City Manager Kimball announced, on Thursday Artist Lalo Garcia will begin City Council 
approved temporary mural installation at Parking Lot 6N, as part of the Mural pilot program.  
 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Montañez looks forward to working with City Council colleagues and staff, 
expressed gratitude to San Fernando Police Officers as the first responders during the 
pandemic. 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez extended thoughts and prayers to Councilmember Pacheco and 
those who have tested positive for Covid-19. 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza noted she attended the Virtual Tree Lighting event, acknowledged the 
Master Mariachi Apprentice Program and expressed thanks and gratitude to City Manager 
Kimball and all Department Heads on the hard work and dedication demonstrated to residents 
and businesses during the pandemic. 
 
Mayor Ballin thanked City Manager Kimball for all his hard work moving the City forward, 
thanked Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Hou and Assistant City 
Attorney Padilla for their dedication to the City, and thanked all Department Heads and staff for 
their efforts. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (11:00 p.m.)  
 
Mayor Ballin adjourned the meeting to the next regular City Council Meeting of  
January 19, 2021.    
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of January 4, 2021, 
meeting as approved by the San Fernando City 
Council. 
 
 
___________________________________________  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 28 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 29 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 30 of 487



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MINUTES 

 
APRIL 5, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor Executive Order N-29-20 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Sylvia Ballin called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 
Council: Mayor Sylvia Ballin, Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza, and Councilmembers 

Hector A. Pacheco (joined at 6:03 p.m.), Cindy Montañez and Celeste T. 
Rodriguez (joined at 6:01 p.m.) 

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Chief of 

Police Anthony Vairo, Deputy City Manager/Director of Community 
Development Tim Hou, Director of Finance Diego Ibañez, Director of Public 
Works Matt Baumgardner, Director of Recreation and Community Services 
Julian Venegas, and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve the 
agenda, as amended: 
 
Mayor Ballin requested to consider Agenda Item No. 10 following the approval of the Consent 
Calendar, and to postpone the Los Angeles Unified School District’s update presentation to  
7:50 p.m.  
 
The motion carried, unanimously.  
 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 31 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – April 5, 2021 
Page 2 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
A) PRESENTATION OF A CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION HONORING BENITA TRUJILLO, SAN 

FERNANDO VALLEY DISTRICT DIRECTOR, LOS ANGELES COUNTY DISTRICT 3  
 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
 
City Clerk Fritz read into the record the following public comments submitted via email:  
 
Rene I. Gaudet, Ed. D, Elizabeth Gutierrez, and Gina Franco commented on their opposition on 
the closure of St. Ferdinand Catholic School and requested City Council’s support.  
 
Gustavo Franco commented about two local businesses near his home playing loud music 
(restaurant) and loud yelling (exercise club) and asked City Council for assistance 
(correspondence submitted).  
 
Liana Stepanyan provided San Fernando Library updates including reopening for select services 
on April 19, 2021. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to approve:  
 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE MINUTES FOR THE FEBRUARY 16, 2021 REGULAR MEETING 

AND THE MARCH 15, 2021 SPECIAL MEETING 
  

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER  
 

3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT NO. 1933 WITH ALL 
AMERICAN ASPHALT, A SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT NO. 1942 WITH KOA 
CORPORATION, AND AUTHORIZE THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE GLENOAKS 
BOULEVARD STREET RESURFACING AND HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, JOB 
NO. 7595, PLAN NO. P-728  
 

4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL, LLC FOR WATER TESTING AND 
ANALYSIS SERVICES  
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 32 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – April 5, 2021 
Page 3 
 
5) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH ENVIROGEN TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR ADDITIONAL OPERATION AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES RELATED TO THE NITRATE TREATMENT SYSTEM FOR SAN 
FERNANDO WELL NO. 7  
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT THE COMMUNITY POWER RESILIENCY ALLOCATION TO CITIES 
PROGRAM GRANT AWARD AND APPROVE A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING THE FUNDS 
 

The motion carried, unanimously.  
 
Agenda Item No. 10 was moved up on the agenda. 
 
10) CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT A PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSIONER  

  
Mayor Ballin introduced Joel Fajardo (not in attendance) as her representative to be 
appointed to the Planning and Preservation Commission.   
 
Motion by Mayor Ballin, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza, to appoint Joel Fajardo to the 
Planning and Preservation Commission.  
 
The motion carried, unanimously.  

 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
7) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING FLOODPLAIN 

MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT AGENCY’S FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY  
 
Mayor Ballin opened the public hearing. 
 
Director of Public Works presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions. 
 
Mayor Ballin opened public comment, no public testimony submitted. Mayor Ballin closed 
the public hearing. Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember 
Rodriguez to close the public hearing. The motion carried, unanimously. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco, seconded by Vice Mayor Mendoza to introduce for 
first reading, in title only, and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 1701, titled, “An 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, amending Chapter 
26, Article V (Floodplain Management) to adopt Floodplain Management regulations and 
an updated Flood Insurance Study issued by the Federal Management Agency.” The 
motion carried, unanimously. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 33 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – April 5, 2021 
Page 4 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
8) PRESENTATION AND UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS 

 
City Manager Kimball presented the staff report and replied to various questions from 
Councilmembers.  No formal action was taken by City Council and the report was received 
and filed. 
 

City Clerk Fritz noted that Los Angeles Unified District Board Member Kelly Gonez has joined the 
meeting at 7:59 p.m. for presentation of the following item:  
 
B) PRESENTATION BY THE LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT ON UPDATES 

REGARDING THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
9) DISCUSSION AND PRESENTATION OF RECOMMENDED CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC GOALS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS 2021-2022 THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 2026-2027 
 
Councilmembers discussed strategic goals as recommended by the Ad hoc committee. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pacheco, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez, to continue 
the discussion to the following regular City Council meeting to allow additional time for 
feedback from all Councilmembers.  The motion carried, unanimously. 

 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner reported trees were recently planted along  
Glenoaks Blvd. between Harding Ave. and Hubbard St. and noted that discussions for the 
second phase of tree planting project would be brought to the Green City Ad Hoc Committee at 
its next meeting. 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas announced the Parks, Wellness and 
Recreation Commission meeting will be held on April 13, 2021, and mentioned that the Family 
Wellness Challenge activities will be offered as online and in-person workshops. 
 
Police Chief Vairo requested to adjourn the meeting in memory of Sandra Sageri. 
 
City Clerk Fritz announced the Education Commission approved a new scholarship program 
called Gerry’s Kids, noted the scholarship would be offered annually and funded by former 
Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Tim Hou in honor of his late mother 
Geraldine Hou. Also, the Education Commission selected two students of the month for April 
and awarded thirteen student scholarships ranging from $250 to $1000 as a result of the 
Annual Student Scholarship Essay contest.  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 34 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – April 5, 2021 
Page 5 
 
GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez and Councilmember Pacheco expressed thanks to staff for their 
work.  
 
Councilmember Montañez reported she attended the Safe and Active Streets Ad Hoc 
Committee meeting and thanked the Strategic Goal Ad Hoc Committee and the City Council for 
the discussion. 
 
Vice Mayor Mendoza thanked those that submitted public comments and attended the Cesar 
Chavez Commemorative Plaque event.  
 
Mayor Ballin thanked Tim Hou for the scholarship contribution and thanked staff for their 
contributions. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (9:33 p.m.) 
 
Mayor Ballin adjourned the meeting in memory of Sandra Sageri, to the next regular City 
Council Meeting of April 19, 2021.  
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of April 5, 2021 
meeting as approved by the San Fernando City 
Council. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 35 of 487



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 36 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 37 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 38 of 487



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

TO THE SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 MINUTES 

 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 – 6:00 P.M. 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340  
TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Mary Mendoza called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Present:   Council: Mayor Mary Mendoza, Councilmembers Sylvia Ballin, Cindy Montañez, and 

Celeste Rodriguez 
 

Staff: Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, Police Chief Fabian Valdez, Director 
of Finance Erica Melton, Director of Public Works Matthew Baumgardner, 
Director of Community Development Kanika Kith, Director of Recreation and 
Community Services Julian Venegas and City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent: Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve the agenda 
as presented.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS  
 
A. PRESENTATION OF EDUCATION COMMISSION CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION FOR 

SEPTEMBER STUDENTS OF THE MONTH 
Alberto Garcia (Social Justice Humanitas Academy) 
Bertha Hernandez Escareno (San Fernando Institute for Applied Media) 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 39 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting September 19, 2022 
Page 2 of 6

 
B. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATES OF APPRECIATION TO IRENE SANDLOW, NANCY NUNEZ, 

MARIA M. NUNEZ, MARCELA RODRIGUEZ FOR THEIR VOLUNTEER SERVICES DURING 
HOMELESS CONNECT DAY 
 

C. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING OCTOBER AS BREAST 
CANCER AWARENESS MONTH 

 
D. PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF PROCLAMATION DECLARING OCTOBER AS DOMESTIC 

VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez suggested that Chief Valdez bring a report back to the City 
Council on domestic violence statistics, use of potential resources from outside 
organizations and officer training.  

 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS    
 
Pat Gonzalez spoke about the urgency of repairs needed on N. Meyer Street due to hazardous 
road/street and sidewalk conditions. 
  
Edward Casillas urged the City to repair the hazardous road/street and sidewalk located at N. 
Meyer Street. 
 
Lilia Monterossa, Field Representative with the Office of Congressman Tony Cárdenas provided 
legislative informational updates, including but not limited to, The Inflation Reduction Act which will 
lower household costs across health coverage, prescription drugs, home energy, and electric 
vehicles. 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Councilmember Rodriguez requested to pull Item 4 for discussion; and Councilmember 
Montañez requested to pull Item 5 for discussion. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve Consent 
Calendar Item Nos 1, 2, 3 and 6: 

 
1) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES: 

 
a. May 21, 2020 – Special Meeting 
b. August 3, 2020 – Regular Meeting 
c. September 6, 2022 – Special Meeting 
d. September 6, 2022 – Regular Meeting 
 

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 40 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting September 19, 2022 
Page 3 of 6

 
3) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION UPDATING THE DESIGNATED POSITIONS TO THE 

CITY’S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

6) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL TRACT MAP NO. 83144 
LOCATED AT 1001 GLENOAKS BOULEVARD, ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO. 2515-016-017 

 
The motion carried, with Vice Mayor Pacheco absent. 

 
Items Pulled for Discussion 
 
4) CONSIDERATION TO AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO RJM DESIGN 

GROUP, INC., FOR THE DESIGN OF THE LAS PALMAS PARK REVITALIZATION PROJECT 
 
Councilmembers discussed concerns associated with community outreach efforts 
performed by the proposed vendor and requested that the item be brought back to the City 
Council at the next meeting with a revised contract that includes detailed information 
regarding community outreach efforts to include a Spanish only speaking meeting as well 
as door to door outreach activities, project timeline and sufficient signage.   

 
5) CONSIDERATION TO AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE SAN FERNANDO 

PACOIMA WASH BIKEWAY AND PEDESTRIAN PATH PROJECT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Montañez, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to: 
 
a. Approve plans and specifications for the San Fernando Pacoima Wash Bikeway and 

Pedestrian Path Project, Federal Project No. ATPL-5202(020), Job No. 7615,  
Plan No. P-737; 
 

b. Accept the lowest responsive bid in the amount of $4,835,283.60 from Toro Enterprises 
Inc., for construction of these improvements;  
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract with Toro Enterprises 
Inc. for an amount of $4,835,283.60 (Contract No. 2110);  
 

d. Establish a construction contingency of 10% of the contract amount, $483,528.36, to 
cover costs of unforeseen conditions and authorize City Manager to execute change 
orders as necessary up to $483,528.36. 

 
Motion carried with Vice Mayor Pacheco absent. 
 
 

  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 41 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting September 19, 2022 
Page 4 of 6

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
6) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE USE OF 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS TO 
IMPLEMENT THE PERSONAL FINANCIAL LITERACY PROGRAM 
 
Mayor Mendoza opened the public hearing. 
 
Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas presented the staff report and 
responded to Councilmember questions. 
 
Mayor Mendoza opened public comment, there being no public testimony, Mayor 
Mendoza closed the public hearing.  Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by 
Councilmember Rodriguez to close the Public Hearing.  Motion carried with Vice Mayor 
Pacheco absent.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to approve, 
as amended: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8181 approving the allocation of Community Development Block 

Grant funds to implement a Personal Financial Literacy Program; and  
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to submit documentation conveying the City Council’s 
Resolution to the Los Angeles County Community Development Commission for 
approval; and 
 

c. Upon approval from LA CDC authorize a Professional Services Agreement (Contract No. 
2109) with New Economics for Women to implement the Personal Financial Literacy 
Program for an amount not to exceed $15,000; 
 

d. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related 
documents; and requested staff to provide updates on the recipients that were 
awarded funds and how funds were spent in order to measure the effectiveness of the 
program. 
 

Motion carried, with Vice Mayor Pacheco absent.  
 
7) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTING A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING ANNUAL 

REPAYMENT TERMS FOR THE $200,000 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
REVOLVING GRANT FUND LOAN RECEIVED FROM THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FOR THE SMALL BUSINESS GRANT PROGRAM 
 
Mayor Mendoza opened the public hearing. 
 
Director of Finance Melton presented the staff report and responded to Councilmember 
questions. 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 42 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting September 19, 2022 
Page 5 of 6

 
Mayor Mendoza opened public comment, there being no public testimony, Mayor 
Mendoza closed the public hearing.  Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by 
Councilmember Rodriguez to close the public hearing.  Motion carried, with Vice Mayor 
Pacheco absent.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Rodriguez, seconded by Councilmember Montañez to: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 8179 approving annual repayment terms for the $200,000 

Community Development Block Grant Revolving Grant Fund Loan received from the Los 
Angeles County Development Authority for the Small Business Grant Program to assist 
San Fernando Businesses;  
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the County of Los Angeles CDBG Reimbursable 
Contract with Participating City Amendment Number 1 (Contract No. 2108(a)); and 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to submit documentation conveying the City Council’s 
Resolution to the Los Angeles County Development Authority for approval. 

 

 Motion carried, with Vice Mayor Pacheco absent.  
 
 
STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
City Clerk Fritz announced the initial implementation of a public facing search capability added 
to the City Clerk Department’s webpage and will allow the public to immediate viewing access of 
public records documents available (i.e. resolutions, minutes, and ordinances).  
 

Police Chief Valdez announced that registration for National Night Out event is still open, spoke 
about public safety efforts in the Mission City Bike Trail and associated challenges with individuals 
facing homelessness mitigation efforts.  
 

Director of Recreation and Community Services Venegas mentioned that the San Fernando Mile 
Run event registration is still open, announced the Education Commission will meet on Tuesday, 
September 27, 2022 to discuss event planning for a Principals Brunch.  
 

Assistant to the City Manager Hernandez announced that the San Fernando Mile Run followed 
by the Dia de Los Muertos Cultural Festival events will offer free bike valet services.  
 
Director of Community Development Kith spoke about the results of the 2022 Greater Los 
Angeles Homeless Count published by the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority.  
 

Director of Finance Melton mentioned the Annual Transaction Tax Measure A/SF Town Hall 
meeting will be held in the Council Chamber on Monday, September 26, 2022 and will stream 
live on Facebook.  
 

 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 43 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MINUTES – Regular Meeting September 19, 2022 
Page 6 of 6

 
Director of Public Works Baumgardner mentioned the lighting efforts on the path for the Mission 
City Bike Trail that is scheduled to be brought to the City Council in October, 2022, commented 
on receipt of bids for the Glenoaks Bridge project and spoke about Phase 2 of the Slurry Seal 
project.  

 
 

GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
  
Councilmember Rodriguez spoke about increased public safety upgrades along the path of the 
Mission City Bike Trail in light of the recent fires, and suggested additional outreach efforts 
beyond utilizing technology to publicize the Annual Transaction Tax Measure A/SF Town Hall 
meeting.  
 
Councilmember Montañez requested an update regarding the series of fires that occurred along 
the Mission City Bike Trail path and suggested increasing law enforcement presence in the area 
due to the recent uptick of dangerous activities.  
 
Lt. Rosenberg provided an update on the recent fires that occurred along the bike bath, 
reaffirming that the focus and priority is public safety in the community and also commented on 
additional enforcement activities that the police officers perform on a regular basis such as 
compliance checks on restraining orders involving gun violence.  
 

Councilmember Ballin asked about the services being offered at upcoming events regarding the 
bike valet service, commented on Phase 2 of the Slurry Seal project, and suggested that Mr. 
Baumgardner contact the individual who requested action regarding road and sidewalk repairs 
along N. Meyer Street.  
 
Mayor Mendoza spoke about upcoming City events, commented on increased public safety, 
mentioned she attended the 2022 League of California Cities (“League”) Annual Conference in 
Long Beach, mentioned during the general meeting, California Cities for Local Control requested 
the League place on the agenda for discussion bringing back local control on zoning and land use 
decisions; however the item did not make it on the agenda for discussion.  
 
 

ADJOURNMENT (8:34 p.m.) 
 

Mayor Mendoza adjourned the meeting to the next regular meeting of October 3, 2022, at 6:00 
p.m. 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of the September 19, 
2022, regular meeting as approved by the San 
Fernando City Council.  
 

 
 ___________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 44 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 45 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 46 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
OCTOBER 3, 2022 – 5:00 P.M.  

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340  
TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Mendoza called the special meeting to order at 5:21 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Mary Mendoza, Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco (telephonically at 5:24 
p.m.) and Councilmembers Sylvia Ballin and Celeste Rodriguez 

 
Staff:  City Manager Nick Kimball and Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 

 
Absent:  Councilmember Cindy Montañez 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ballin, seconded by Councilmember Rodriguez to approve the 
agenda.  Motion carried with Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmember Montañez absent.  
 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS - WRITTEN/ORAL 
 
None 
 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (5:22 P.M.)  
 
By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session. 
 
Vice Mayor Pacheco telephonically joined Closed Session for consideration of Item A of the 
special meeting agenda. 
 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 47 of 487



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 3, 2022 
Page 2 
 
A) CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION §54956.9(D)(1) 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION: 
 

Case Name:  P.S., et al v. City of San Fernando 
Case No:       2:21-cv-04918-PA-PVC 
 

B) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO G.C. §54957.6: 
  

Designated City Negotiators:  City Manager Nick Kimball 
Employees and Employee Bargaining Units: 

 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-Time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 

 
 
RECONVENE/REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of the Closed 
Session meeting held on October 3, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City Council adjourned the special meeting at 5:55 p.m. to the regular meeting at 6:00 p.m.  
 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of October 3, 2022, 
Special Meeting, as approved by the San Fernando 
City Council. 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 48 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 49 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 50 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

By: Erica D. Melton, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  October 17, 2022    
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 22-102 (Attachment “A”) approving 
the Warrant Register. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all other 
circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required to be 
issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff reviews 
requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register for 
Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not require 
budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have 
been signed by the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby 
stating that the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is 
appropriate.  The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that each warrant has been 
reviewed for completeness and that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant 
register. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 22-102, including: 
Exhibit A: Payment Demands/Voucher List 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 51 of 487



ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-102 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS 
PRESENTED ON DEMAND / WARRANT REGISTER NO. 22-102 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the Payment Demand/Voucher List (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly 
audited, for completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as 
shown to designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 17th day of October, 2022. 
 
  
                 

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of        
      San Fernando, California                                

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 52 of 487



RES. NO. 22-102 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 22-102 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
17th day of October, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ______ day of October, 2022.  

 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 53 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 54 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 55 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 56 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 57 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 58 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 59 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 60 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 61 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 62 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 63 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 64 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 65 of 487



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 66 of 487



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 67 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 68 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 69 of 487



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 70 of 487



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 71 of 487



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 72 of 487



SPECIAL CHECK

EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 73 of 487



SPECIAL CHECK
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 74 of 487



SPECIAL CHECK
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 22-102

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 75 of 487



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 76 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 77 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 78 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☐ City Manager 
 

        

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Erica D. Melton, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Service Agreement with SpectrumVoIP to Provide the 

City’s Voice Over Internet Protocol (VoIP) Telephone System Services 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Service Agreement (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2118) with SpectrumVoIP to 

provide the City’s Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) Telephone System Services; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager and the City Attorney to make non-substantial edits and execute 
all related documents. 

 
  
BACKGROUND: 

 
1. On September 15, 2014, the City Council approved entering into an agreement with 

Windstream to provide T-1 digital voice services.   
 
2. On September 7, 2021, the City Council appropriated $250,000 in American Rescue Plan Act 

(ARPA) funds for COVID-19 response expenditure, including funding earmarked for necessary 
technology and capital improvements such as VoIP. 
 

3. In May 2022, Windstream issued the City a six-month service discontinuance notice as the 
platform for T-1 digital voice services was past its useful life.  Windstream has communicated 
that all users on this legacy system would be required to transition to a next-generation 
networking solution. The City has been able to acquire an extension for service continuity 
while working through funding and alternative telecommunication systems research. 

 
4. During the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 Budget Hearings, City telecommunications upgrades 

were discussed and included as a Finance Department Work Plan priority.   
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 79 of 487



Consideration to Approve a Service Agreement with SpectrumVoIP to Provide the City’s Voice Over 
Internet Protocol (VoIP) Telephone System Services  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
5. Since July 2022, staff has been in coordination with Windstream and additionally received 

quotes from alternate carriers to transition to VoIP, which would modernize the City’s 
communication hardware, infrastructure and services. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
As Windstream T-1 digital voice services have reached end-of-life, an opportunity is presented to 
transition telephone services to a modernized, VoIP system that is scalable and will support the 
technological progression of the City.  The City has approximately 130 phones across City Hall, 
Public Works Department, Police Department, and Recreation and Community Services 
Department facilities on the existing system that will require hardware and upgraded cabling to 
support the new technology. Note that 911 dispatch services are covered under a separate 
carrier and would not be impacted by this transition.   
 
Per Section 2-777, utility service, connection and installation payments are exempt from 
competitive bidding procedures and a formal request for proposal was not required.  Staff 
requested informal quotes from vendors capable of replacing existing hardware, providing 
advanced and flexible phone automation utilizing up-to-date technology.  
 
The City received quotes from three vendors firms in response to requests for quotes as follows: 
 

 Fees/Vendor Spectrum VOIP Windstream New Horizon 
Non-Recurring $0 $(1,625.00) $90.00 
Monthly $2,415.74 $3,475.59 $2,471.45 
Units Quoted1 130 145 115 
Price Per Phone/Seat* $18.58 $23.97 $21.49 

 
All proposals were reviewed by Finance staff along with additional follow up responses regarding 
the equipment, services and fees. After the initial review of proposals for cost effectiveness, 
benefits to the City, and reference checks for ease of implementation and customer service 
responsiveness, staff is recommending City Council approve an agreement with SpectrumVoIP 
for the City’s telecommunication services. 
 
Staff has reviewed the agreement with SpectrumVoIP for this service and are satisfied with the 
terms and conditions as outlined. The vendor further stood behind its service by offering a  
14-day trial period in order to validate service prior to the longer term five-year commitment. 
While SpectrumVoIP is not affiliated with Spectrum Internet/Cable, additional due diligence 

                                                 
1 A range was provided to each vendor for 115 – 145 units as the City anticipates discontinuing some older connections 
while adding others for new employees.  In turn, each vendor used this range differently to respond.  A price per 
phone/VoIP seat row was added to normalize the costs for evaluation purposes. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 80 of 487



Consideration to Approve a Service Agreement with SpectrumVoIP to Provide the City’s Voice Over 
Internet Protocol (VoIP) Telephone System Services  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
based on reference checks, coordinating with the City’s Information Technology (IT) Consultant, 
Valeo, and review of their award with the cooperative purchasing program (Omnia Partners) 
demonstrated satisfactory service to other public service agencies.   
 
Spectrum VoIP 
Since 2004, SpectrumVoIP have serviced businesses and organizations nationwide by developing 
innovative communication solutions that fit each industry’s needs. Using cutting-edge 
technology, they have helped businesses of every size get and stay connected with their teams 
and customers. 
 
SpectrumVoIP provides the latest communication technology allowing its customers to operate 
without interruption typical to transitioning communication systems. The company is dedicated 
to integrating high-quality, scalable communication service without setup hassle and focuses on 
new system integration solutions with limited downtime. 
 
SpectrumVoIP is able to meet a variety of unique demands by adding and customizing features 
such as SMS messaging, dial-by-name directory, and auto attendant. Additional advanced 
features such as conference bridges, call recordings for later playback, time-based routing, and 
mobile service while out of the office is also incorporated into phone services with additional 
scalable features for future communication needs. 
 
SpectrumVoIP prides itself on integrating systems without compromising security. Their VoIP 
technology will help keep caller information safe and organized without the worry of outages. 
The company has triple redundant data centers, so that customers experience the highest 
industry standard of 99.999% uptime, ensuring stable and reliable connectivity to its customers. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The FY 2022-2023 Adopted Budget includes sufficient funding for technology improvements as 
appropriated from the City’s ARPA Funding (121-135-3689-4220). The initial implementation 
required for transitioning hardware and installing cabling would be covered under this funding 
source, which is projected to total approximately $35,000. The remaining term of the agreement 
will be included in future year budgets under operational telephone services accounts (001-XXX-
0000-4220). 
 
 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 81 of 487



Consideration to Approve a Service Agreement with SpectrumVoIP to Provide the City’s Voice Over 
Internet Protocol (VoIP) Telephone System Services  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a five-year service agreement with 
SpectrumVoIP to provide the City’s voice over internet protocol telecommunication services. 
Transitioning services would mitigate disruptions due to service decommissioning with 
Windstream and enable the City more modernized and robust technology. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Contract No. 2118, including: 

Exhibit A: SpectrumVoIP Proposal 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 82 of 487



RENTAL AGREEMENT 11885 Lackland Road, St Louis, MO 63146
Phone: 800-241-7408, Fax: 800-543-0274

CUSTOMER LEGAL NAME:
City of San Fernando, CA

Telephone No:
8188987307

Billing Address:
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340-2993

Equipment Location (if other than Billing Address):
117 N Macneil St, San Fernando, CA 91340

EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION: (indicate quantity, new or used and include make, model, serial # and all attachments – see below and/or attached Schedule A)
Unit Quantity Description of Equipment Make and Type Model Number Serial Number

1 Yealink Phone System w/ accs Phone System w/ accs
BASE TERM
IN MONTHS

63

TOTAL NUMBER OF RENTAL
PAYMENTS

3   @ $0.00 followed by
60  @ $2,403.25 (plus taxes)

(a) Advance Payment: $0.00; **

(b) Security Deposit: $0.00;

**If more than one rental payment is required as an
Advance Payment, the balance will be applied to rental
payments in inverse order, starting with the last rental
payment.
Your obligation to pay all amounts and perform all
other obligations is non-cancellable, absolute,
unconditional and not subject to abatement, set-off or
defense.

In this agreement (“Rental”), “we,” “our,” and “us” refers to Financial Servicing, LLC and
“you” and “your” refer to the Customer. You agree to rent the Equipment from us upon the
following terms and conditions:
1. RENTAL PAYMENTS AND TERM: The Rental is enforceable on you upon your
execution. The term of the Rental shall commence on the date the Equipment is delivered to
you (“Rental Commencement Date”). The first Rental Payment shall be due on the date we
specify in the month following the Rental Commencement Date, as set forth in our invoice,
and the remaining Rental Payments will be due on the same day of each subsequent month
(each, a “Payment Date”) until paid in full. The Base Term shall commence on the date one
month prior to the first Payment Date.
2. DELIVERY, ACCEPTANCE, USE AND REPAIR: You are responsible for Equipment
delivery and installation. You unconditionally accept the Equipment upon the earlier of (a)
your oral or written acceptance of the Equipment, or (b) 10 days after delivery of the
Equipment. You authorize us to fill in the Rental Commencement Date, serial numbers and
other information. You will not move the Equipment from the above location without our
written consent and are responsible for maintaining the Equipment in good repair. We
are not responsible for Equipment or vendor failures.
3. INDEMNIFICATION: You agree to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and
against any losses, damages, penalties, claims and suits, including attorneys’ fees and
expenses related to the ordering, manufacture, installation, ownership, condition, use, rental,
possession, delivery or return of Equipment.
4. RENTAL EXPIRATION, RENEWAL: Unless you notify us at least 90 days prior to
the expiration of the Rental of your election to return the Equipment, this Rental will
renew on a month-to-month basis at the same monthly Rental Payment until you
provide us with at least 90 days notice and return the Equipment. If you return the
Equipment, (i) it must be to the location we designate and you are responsible for all return
costs and we may charge a Restocking Fee equal to one Rental Payment, and (ii) you must
securely remove all data from any and all disk drives or magnetic media prior to returning the
Equipment (and you are solely responsible for selecting an appropriate removal standard that
meets your business needs and complies with applicable laws). You will pay us for any loss in
value resulting from failure to maintain the Equipment in accordance with this Rental or for
damages incurred in shipping and handling.
5. LATE FEES AND CHARGES: If any amount is not paid within three (3) days of when
due, you agree to pay us a late charge equal to the lesser of 10% of the amount past due or the
maximum legal amount. Amounts which are not paid within 30 days of when due shall accrue
interest at 1.5% per month (or if less, the maximum legal rate) until paid. You agree to pay
$25 for each pay by phone and $35 for each returned payment.
6. NO WARRANTY: We do not manufacture the Equipment and you have selected the
Equipment and the supplier. WE MAKE NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES,
INCLUDING THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PURPOSE
AND ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL
DAMAGES.
7. INSURANCE, RISK OF LOSS: You bear all risk of loss or damage to the Equipment
from its order until it is returned in the required condition (“Risk Period”). During the Risk
Period you will maintain property and liability insurance on the Equipment acceptable to us,
naming us loss payee and additional insured. If you do not provide us with proof of such
insurance, we may secure insurance on the Equipment to cover our interests (and only our
interests). If we obtain such insurance, you will pay us an additional amount for the cost of it
and an administrative fee, the cost of which may be more than the cost to obtain your own
insurance and on which we may make a profit.

8. OWNERSHIP AND TAXES: We own the Equipment (excluding licensed software). If
you are deemed to own it, you grant us a security interest in the Equipment. You authorize us
to file UCC financing statements to confirm our interest. You will pay, when due, all taxes,
fines and penalties relating to the purchase, use, renting and/or ownership of the Equipment.
If we pay any taxes (including property tax), fees or penalties on your behalf, you will pay us
the amount we paid plus an administrative fee. You agree to pay us the documentation fee
specified above or if not so specified, the greater of either $95 or 0.5% of the Equipment
cost. If we require an Equipment site inspection, or you request administrative services, you
agree to reimburse our costs.
9. DEFAULT: If you or any guarantor do not pay us any amount within ten (10) days of its
due date, or breach any terms of this Rental, any guaranty or any license relating to the
Equipment, you will be in default. If you default, we may require you to do any combination
of the following: (a) immediately pay all amounts then due, plus the present value of the
remaining Rental Payments, Interim Rent and residual value of the Equipment, as determined
by us, discounted at an annual rate of 3%; (b) return all of the Equipment; (c) allow us to
repossess or disable the Equipment; or (d) use any and all remedies available to us under
applicable law. If you default, you agree to pay the cost of repossession and our attorney’s
fees and costs. In addition to all other charges and as reimbursement for expenses incurred
and not as a penalty, we may require you to reimburse us for the phone calls, letters, and any
additional expense incurred in the collection or servicing of this Rental to you. If we take
possession of the Equipment, we may sell or otherwise dispose of it with or without notice, at
a public or private sale, and apply the net proceeds (after we have deducted all costs related
to the sale or disposition of the Equipment) to the amounts that you owe us. You agree that if
notice of sale is required by law, 10 days’ notice shall constitute reasonable notice. You
remain responsible for any amounts that are due after we have applied such net proceeds. We
may apply any security deposits to your obligations and if you do not default, the balance
will be refunded without interest.
10. ASSIGNMENT: You have no right to sell or assign the Equipment or Rental. We
may sell or assign our rights in the Rental and/or Equipment and the new owner will have all
our rights but will not be subject to any claim or defense you have against us.
11. ARTICLE 2A: You agree this Rental is a “finance lease” as defined in Article 2A of the
Uniform Commercial Code. You waive all rights and remedies conferred upon a lessee by
Article 2A (508-522) of the UCC. You have received a copy of the Supply Contract or been
informed of the identity of the Supplier and you may have rights under the Supply Contract
and may contact the Supplier for a description of those rights.
12. CREDIT INFORMATION: You authorize us or any of our affiliates to obtain credit
bureau reports, and make other credit inquiries that we deem necessary and provide your
credit application and information regarding your account to credit reporting agencies and
potential assignees.
13. CHOICE OF LAW: THIS RENTAL WILL BE GOVERNED BY PENNSYLVANIA
LAW. YOU CONSENT TO JURISDICTION IN THE STATE OR FEDERAL COURTS
IN PENNSYLVANIA AND WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY.
14. USA PATRIOT ACT NOTICE; MISCELLANEOUS: To help the government fight
the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, federal law requires all financial
institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that identifies each customer who opens
an account. When you enter into a transaction with us, we ask for your business name,
address and other information that will allow us to identify you. We may also ask to see other
documents that substantiate your business identity. This Rental is the parties’ entire
agreement and can be amended only in writing signed by both parties. This Rental may be
executed in counterparts (manually or by electronic means) and, when transmitted to us shall
be binding upon you for all purposes. This Rental is not binding on us until we sign it. You
agree not to raise as a defense to the enforcement of this Rental that it was executed or
transmitted to us by electronic means. You will use the Equipment only for business purposes
and not for personal, family or household use.

ACCEPTED BY CUSTOMER: City of San Fernando, CA Print Name:\n1\ Title:\t1\
X\s1\ E-Mail Address:\e1\ Date:\d1\

Customer Authorized Signature Tax ID Number:\tid1\
PERSONAL GUARANTY: Undersigned guarantees that Customer will make all payments and perform all other obligations under the Rental when due. Undersigned agrees that this is a
guaranty of payment and not of collection, and that we can proceed directly against undersigned without first proceeding against Customer or the Equipment. Undersigned also waives all
suretyship defenses and notification if the Customer is in default and consents to any extensions or modifications granted to Customer. Undersigned will pay us all expenses (including
attorneys’ fees) we incur in enforcing our rights against undersigned or Customer. If more than one person signs this guaranty, each agrees that his/her liability is joint and several. Undersigned
authorizes us and our affiliates to obtain credit bureau reports and make inquiries regarding undersigned’s personal credit. You consent to jurisdiction in the State or Federal courts in
Pennsylvania and expressly waive any right to a trial by jury.

SIGNED X . Print Name:. E-Mail Address:.

Accepted by:
FINANCIAL SERVICING, LLC  By: Title: Date:

RENTAL01 2-7-2019 App=754378

 VoIP Phone Equipment with Accessories 

ATTACHMENT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2118October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 83 of 487



DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE

Application No.: 754378

City of San Fernando, CA (“Customer”) hereby certifies that all of the equipment, software and other property (collectively,
“Equipment”) referred to in that certain Agreement related to the above referenced application number (the “Agreement”)
by and between Customer and Financial Servicing, LLC (“FS”) has been delivered to and been received by Customer at
the location(s) set forth in the Agreement, that all installation or other work necessary prior to the use thereof has been
completed, that the Equipment has been examined by the Customer and is in good operating order and condition and is in
all respects satisfactory to Customer, and that the Equipment is accepted by the Customer for all purposes under the
Agreement. Customer represents and warrants that the Date of Equipment Delivery set forth above and the Billing Address
and the Equipment Location set forth in the Agreement are correct. By its execution and delivery of this Acceptance
Certificate, Customer hereby reaffirms all of the representations, warranties and covenants contained in the Agreement as of
the date hereof, and further represents and warrants to FS that no Event of Default, and no event or condition which with
notice or the passage of time or both would constitute an Event of Default, has occurred and is continuing as of the date
hereof. Customer further certifies to FS that Customer has selected the Equipment (and to the extent applicable, the vendor
of the Equipment) and has received and approved the purchase order, purchase agreement or supply contract under which
the Equipment will be acquired for all purposes of the Agreement.

ACCORDINGLY, CUSTOMER AUTHORIZES FS TO PURCHASE THE EQUIPMENT FROM THE APPLICABLE
SUPPLIER(S).

DO NOT SIGN THIS DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE UNTIL YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL OF THE
EQUIPMENT.

Signed By: \s1\

Print Name: \n1\

Title: \t1\

E-Mail Address: \e1\

Date: \d1\

THE ABOVE SIGNATORY AFFIRMS THAT HE/SHE IS A DULY AUTHORIZED CORPORATE OFFICER OR OFFICIAL,
MEMBER, PARTNER OR PROPRIETOR OF THE ABOVE NAMED CUSTOMER.

Page 1 of 1
D&A01 2-1-2018 App=754378

CONTRACT NO. 2118
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 84 of 487



State and Local Government Addendum

Reference:  Application No. 754378

This State and Local Government Addendum (this “Addendum”) is made part of the Agreement related to
the above referenced application number (“Agreement”) between Financial Servicing, LLC (“we” “us” and “ours”)
and City of San Fernando, CA (“you” and “your”). Capitalized terms used but not defined will have the meaning
given to them in the Agreement. If there is any conflict between the terms of this Addendum and the terms of the
Agreement, the terms of this Addendum will control and prevail. The parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Funding Intent.  You reasonably believe that funds can be obtained sufficient to make all Payments set
forth in the Agreement and any other amounts owed during the term of the Agreement. You agree that your chief
executive or administrative officer (or your administrative office that has the responsibility of preparing the budget
submitted to your governing body, as applicable) will provide for funding for such payments in your annual budget
request submitted to your governing body. You covenant that you will do all things lawfully within your power to
obtain, maintain and properly request and pursue funds from which the Payments may be made, including making
provisions for such payments to the extent necessary in each budget submitted for the purpose of obtaining
funding, using your best efforts to have such portion of the budget approved and exhausting all available
administrative reviews and appeals in the event such portion of the budget is not approved. If your governing body
chooses not to appropriate funds for such payments, you agree that your governing body will evidence such
nonappropriation by omitting funds for such payments due during the applicable fiscal period from the budget that it
adopts. You and we agree that your obligation to make payments under the Agreement will be your current expense
and will not be interpreted to be a debt in violation of applicable law or constitutional limitations or
requirements. Nothing contained in the Agreement will be interpreted as a pledge of your general tax revenues,
funds or moneys.

2. Nonappropriation of Funds.  If (a) sufficient funds are not appropriated and budgeted by your
governing body in any fiscal period for Payments set forth in the Agreement or any other amounts owed to us and
(b) you have exhausted all funds legally available for such payments due under the Agreement (together, a “Non-
Appropriation Event”), then you will give us not less than ninety (90) days written notice (a “Termination Notice”) and
the Agreement will terminate as of the last day of your fiscal period for which funds for such payments are available
(“Termination Date”). Such termination is without any expense or penalty, except for the portions of such payments
and those expenses associated with your return of the Equipment in accordance with the Agreement for which
funds have been budgeted or appropriated or are otherwise legally available. You agree that, to the extent
permitted by law, you will not terminate the Agreement if any funds are appropriated by you or to you for the
acquisition or use of equipment or services performing functions similar to the Equipment during your fiscal period
in which such termination would occur. You shall (i) on or before the Termination Date, return the Equipment in
accordance with the return requirements set forth in the Agreement, (ii) provide in the Termination Notice a
certification of a responsible official that a Non-Appropriation Event has occurred, (iii) deliver to us, upon our
request, an opinion of your counsel (addressed to us) verifying that the Non-Appropriation Event as set forth in the
Termination Notice has occurred, and (iv) pay us all sums payable to us under the Agreement up to and including
the Termination Date. You acknowledge and agree that, in the event of the termination of the Agreement and the
return of the Equipment as provided for herein, you shall have no interest whatsoever in the Equipment or proceeds
thereof and we shall be entitled to retain for our own account the proceeds resulting from any disposition or re-
leasing of the Equipment along with any advance rentals, security deposits or other sums previously paid by you
pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

3. Authority and Authorization.  You represent and agree that: (a) you are a state or a political
subdivision or agency of a state; (b) the entering into and performance of the Agreement is authorized under your
state laws and Constitution and does not violate or contradict any judgment, law, order, or regulation, or cause any
default under any agreement to which you are party; (c) you have complied with all bidding requirements and,
where necessary, have properly presented the Agreement for approval and adoption as a valid obligation on your
part; and (d) you have sufficient appropriated funds or other moneys available to pay all amounts due under the
Agreement for your current fiscal period. Upon our request, you agree to provide us with an opinion of counsel as to
clauses (a) through (d) above, an incumbency certificate, and other documents that we request, with all such
documents being in a form satisfactory to us.

Page 1 of 2 S13 10-21-2016 App=754378

CONTRACT NO. 2118
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 85 of 487



4. Government Use.  You agree that (a) you will comply with all information reporting requirements
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including but not limited to the execution and delivery
to us of information statements requested by us, and (b) the use of the Equipment is essential for your
proper, efficient and economic operation, you will be the only entity to use the Equipment during the term
of the Agreement and you will use the Equipment only for your governmental purposes. Upon our request
you will provide us with an essential use letter in a form satisfactory to us as to clause (b) above.

5. Insurance.  You agree to provide and maintain at your own expense (a) property insurance against the
loss, theft, destruction of, or damage to, the Equipment for its full replacement value, naming us as loss payee, and
(b) public liability and third party property insurance, naming us as an additional insured. You will give us certificates
or other evidence of such insurance on the Equipment at such times as we request. All insurance obtained from a
third party insurer will be in a form, amount and with companies acceptable to us, and will provide that we will be
given 30 days' advance notice of any cancellation or material change of such insurance. If you do not provide us
with proof of such insurance, we may secure insurance on the Equipment to cover our interests (and only our
interests). If we obtain such insurance, you will pay us an additional amount for the cost of such insurance and an
administrative fee, the cost of which may be more than the cost to obtain your own insurance and on which we may
make a profit.

6. Indemnification.  With respect to any claims, actions, or suits that are made against us as a result of
your actions, omissions, negligence or willful misconduct (“Claims”), to the extent permitted by law, you agree to
reimburse us for, and if we request, defend us against, any such Claims.

7. Choice of Law.  Regardless of any conflicting provision in the Agreement, THE AGREEMENT WILL BE
GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE IN WHICH YOU ARE LOCATED.

8. This Addendum supplements and amends the Agreement only to the extent and in the manner set forth,
and in all other respects, the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto, by their authorized signatories, have executed this Addendum at the
date set forth below their respective signatures.

CUSTOMER: City of San Fernando, CA FINANCIAL SERVICING, LLC

By:\s1\

Print
Name:\n1\

Title:\t1\

Date:\d1\

By:
Print
Name:
Title:
Date:

Page 2 of 2 S13 10-21-2016 App=754378

CONTRACT NO. 2118
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 86 of 487



LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION (LOA) 
Local Service Number Porting & Responsible Organization (RespOrg) Toll Free Number Porting 

To transition your current telephone numbers to SpectrumVoIP, we must work with your current service 
provider to ensure that your service is uninterrupted, and that the numbers you designate below are properly 
transferred. This document authorizes SpectrumVoIP to request and receive from your existing provider 

1) data and billing information (including Customer Proprietary Network Information);

2) a copy of your Customer Service Records (CSR) for the telephone numbers listed below including,
but not limited to, any associated line features.

In signing below, you are selecting SpectrumVoIP as the preferred provider for the following service(s)   
for the telephone number(s) listed below 

  X  Local Exchange Service (Local Service Only) 
  X  Intra-LATA Service (Long Access Transport Area) (Long Distance Calls) 
  X  International Service (Calling Outside the United States) 
  X  Inter-LATA Service (Local Access Transport Area) (Calling outside your local long distance area) 

This letter authorizes transfer of your service and the telephone numbers listed below to SpectrumVoIP, 
and the RespOrg Bandwidth.com (JYT01). Please ensure the following information is completed 
accurately, as listed with your current service provider. This will help prevent possible delays. 

  Current Carrier / RespOrg: 
New RespOrg ID: Bandwidth.com/ JYT01 

Please complete the following information, per what is listed with your current carrier: 

Company Name:
Service Address (not a PO Box): 

Authorized User/Signer:
BTN (Billing Telephone Number: 

Account Number:
PIN Number (if required or for wireless TN): 

Telephone Number Telephone Number Telephone Number Telephone Number 

Printed Name (Please Print Clearly): 

Authorized User Signature:

Title:

Date:

Important:  Please do not place any new service orders with your current provider on these accounts, as this 
will delay porting your numbers.  A bill copy which is less than 30 days old is required to complete the transfer 
of number(s).  Please include a summary copy showing company name and the numbers owned. 

CONTRACT NO. 2118
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 87 of 487



EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2118

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 88 of 487



Monthly

Page 2 of 3

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2118

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 89 of 487



Page 3 of 3

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2118

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 90 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 91 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 92 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager  

By:  Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve an Equipment Lease and Service Maintenance 

Agreement with Canon Solutions America, Inc. for the Citywide Multifunction 
Device Managed Print Services Replacement Project 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a 60-month (five-year) lease agreement with Canon Solutions America. Inc. 

(“Canon”) (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2117) through OMNIA Partners a Cooperative 
Purchasing Program, Master Agreement Contract No. FI-R-0251-18 for the purchase of nine 
multifunctional copier device managed print services equipment (MFC) and maintenance 
services agreement in an amount not-to-exceed $55,000 per year; and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Lease Agreement and all related documents. 
 

  
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On January 22, 2013, the City Council approved Resolution No. 7516 (Attachment “B”) to 

enter into a five-year Lease Agreement with De Lage Landen Public Finance, LLC to finance 
the purchase of six Sharp multifunctional printer/copiers and approve a Maintenance 
Agreement with Image 2000 to provide maintenance services for the printers/copiers. These 
printers/copiers are located in City Hall, Public Works City Yard, Las Palmas Park, and 
Recreation Park buildings.    
 

2. In February 2018, at the end of the lease agreement and upon successful completion of all 
payments with De Lage Landen Public Finance, LLC, the City exercised the equipment 
purchase option and transitioned to a service maintenance agreement with Image 2000.   
 

3. On January 15, 2017, the City administratively entered into a separate five-year Lease 
Agreement and maintenance services agreement with Canon to lease seven multifunctional 
printers/copiers for the Police Department through a cooperative purchasing program with 
the State of Nevada, National Association of State Procurement Officials (WSCA-NASPO) 
(Attachment “C”).   

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 93 of 487



Consideration to Approve an Equipment Lease and Service Maintenance Agreement with Canon 
Solutions America, Inc. for the Citywide Multifunction Device Managed Print Services Replacement 
Project 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 
4. In January 2022, staff evaluated the six Sharp printers/copiers purchased in January 2013 and 

the seven Canon printers/copiers purchased in February 2017.  Staff determined that based 
on the service call logs for copier service and maintenance in the previous two years, the 
majority of the MFC machines were experiencing increased calls for service, primarily due to 
declining aged parts needing constant repairs or replacement and poor print quality and that 
the City should consider options for replacement of certain MFC printers/copiers.  

 
5. In February 2022, the City transitioned to a service maintenance agreement with Canon 

Solutions for the MFC copiers located at the Police Department. 
 

6. On April 28, 2022, the City released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Citywide Copier 
Upgrade Project (Attachment “D”).  Five firms submitted proposals by the due date on  
May 24, 2022. 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 

In January 2022, staff conducted an evaluation of the City’s current inventory of multifunctional 
copier machines in all City facilities.  The evaluation showed that over the past few years, the 
majority of the MFC copier machines acquired in 2013 were beginning to show severe wear and 
tear based on increasing calls for service due to declining aged parts requiring repairs or 
replacement and poor print quality. MFC copier machines have an estimated average 
recommended useful life expectancy of five to eight years and the majority of the MFC copier 
machines currently in use have been in service for almost ten years. 
 
The lease agreement for the machines acquired in 2013 was satisfied in 2018 and in  
February 2022, for the machines acquired in 2017 for the Police Department.  The City is currently 
paying for maintenance services through Image 2000 at a price per page charge for color and 
black/white prints for all multifunction printers/copiers.   
 
Thus, in April 2022, the City released an RFP for the Citywide Copier Upgrade Project (Attachment 
“D”) to explore cost for upgrading the printer/copier machines in all City’s facilities.   
 
Five proposals were received in response to the RFPs from vendors list below: 
 

1. Business Machines Consultants, Inc. (Epson Multi-Function Printer) 
2. Canon Solutions America (Canon) 
3. Sharp Business Solutions (Sharp) 
4. Xerox Business Solutions (Xerox) 
5. Pacific Office Automation (Ricoh/Minolta) 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 94 of 487



Consideration to Approve an Equipment Lease and Service Maintenance Agreement with Canon 
Solutions America, Inc. for the Citywide Multifunction Device Managed Print Services Replacement 
Project 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 
Proposals were reviewed by an Evaluation Panel (“Panel”) consisting of the City Clerk and Deputy 
City Clerk. Between August 2 – 4, 2022, staff conducted demonstrations with four of the 
proposing vendors to view each product and answer questions regarding the multifunction 
device equipment, services and fees.  Pacific Office Automation did not respond to the Panel’s 
demonstration request. Canon and Sharp were selected as finalists after initial review of all 
proposals for cost effectiveness, benefits to the City, completeness and comprehensiveness of 
responses, and experience providing similar services to comparable local municipalities, and the 
quality of the assigned project staff.  
 
Based on the responses included in the proposals, reference checks, and best and final offers 
(BAFO), the Panel is recommending that City Council approve a lease agreement and service 
maintenance agreement with Canon Solutions America, Inc. to provide City wide multifunction 
device managed print services. 
 
The proposed agreement will include delivery of nine Canon multifunctional copier machines 
(Attachment “E”) placed at the City’s facilities below:  
 

Location # of 
Copiers 

Proposed  
Model 

City Hall 
Administration/City Clerk 1 IRADV DX C5879I/70 *ppm (Color) 

City Hall - General 1 IRADV DX C5879I/70 *ppm (Color) 
Public Works  
Administration Office 1 IRADV DX 4845I/45 *ppm (Black & White only) 

Las Palmas Park Front 
Office 1 IRADV DX C5850I/50 *ppm (Color) 

Las Palmas Park Lower 
Level Office 1 IRADV DX 4845I/45 *ppm (Black & White only) 

Recreation Park 1 IRADV DX C6950I/50 *ppm (Color) 
Police Department  
Reproduction Room 1 IRADV DX C5879I/70 *ppm (Color) 

Police Department Main 
Dispatch  1 IRADV DX 4845I/45 *ppm (Black & White only) 

Police Department 
Detectives 1 IRADV DX C5850I/50 *ppm w/Internal Finisher 

space saving (Color) 
TOTALS: 9  

*ppm = Pages per Minute 
 
There are four printers in the Police Department that will not be replaced; however, each will be 
included on the service maintenance agreement. During staff’s evaluation, it was determined 
that the necessity of replacing the two printers located in the Records Unit, Watch Commander’s 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 95 of 487



Consideration to Approve an Equipment Lease and Service Maintenance Agreement with Canon 
Solutions America, Inc. for the Citywide Multifunction Device Managed Print Services Replacement 
Project 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 
Office, and the Report Writing Room would be more cost effective to re-direct the majority of 
printing to the Reproduction Room utilizing the benefits of the new Canon multifunctional 
printer/copier machine.  The new machine offers faster processing of 70 print pages per minute 
and includes confidential document printing feature through a user specific assigned 
identification number and password.   
 
The proposed Canon lease agreement and maintenance services agreement consolidates all of 
the City’s multifunctional printer/copiers onto one statement.  Upon completion of the five-year 
lease payments, there is an option to purchase the equipment at a fair market value. The monthly 
Maintenance Agreement cost is calculated based on a five-year fixed rate and includes all parts, 
labor, supplies (toner and staples) with the exception of paper and there are no minimum 
print/copies required. Monthly meter readings are automatically collected via ImageWare 
Remote.  
 
Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Canon Solutions America, Inc. (“Canon”) is a $30.4 billion company that pursues global 
diversification with regional operations in the United States, Japan, Europe, Asia, Oceania, Middle 
East, and Africa.  
 
Canon provides integrated systems technology that comprises one of the strongest solutions 
portfolios in the document management industry, innovative technology and services with the 
unique needs of each client. Canon offers the combination of a local team with years of 
professional experience, paired with the vast technological and service resources of one of the 
world’s most admired companies.  
 
The goal of Canon is to keep customers productive on what makes them successful – their core 
operations. Having an in-depth insight into the City’s environment, requirements, and end user 
behavior will allow Canon solutions to help the City enhance its operational environment, expand 
technology, and improve efficiency. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Adopted Budget includes sufficient funding for leasing and service 
maintenance of the City’s copier fleet within the Information Technology Management Services 
account (001-130-0000-4260). Transitioning all units to Canon would enable a single citywide 
lease agreement and maintenance services for the entirety of the City’s MFC copier fleet print 
services. 
 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 96 of 487



Consideration to Approve an Equipment Lease and Service Maintenance Agreement with Canon 
Solutions America, Inc. for the Citywide Multifunction Device Managed Print Services Replacement 
Project 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

Location # of 
Copiers 

Proposed  
Model 

Equipment 
Lease Annual 

Costs 
City Hall Administration/City 
Clerk 1 IRADV DX C5879I/70 *ppm 

(Color) $3,294.60 

City Hall - General 1 IRADV DX C5879I/70 *ppm 
(Color) $3,294.60 

Public Works  
Administration Office 1 IRADV DX 4845I/45 *ppm 

(Black & White only) $1,280.04 

Las Palmas Park Front Office 1 IRADV DX C5850I/50 *ppm 
(Color) $2,306.28 

Las Palmas Park Lower Level 
Office 1 IRADV DX 4845I/45 *ppm 

(Black & White only) $1,280.04 

Recreation Park 1 IRADV DX C6950I/50 *ppm 
(Color) $2,306.28 

Police Department  
Reproduction Room 1 IRADV DX C5879I/70 *ppm 

(Color) $3,294.60 

Police Department Main 
Dispatch  1 IRADV DX 4845I/45 *ppm 

(Black & White only) $1,280.04 

Police Department 
Detectives 1 

IRADV DX C5850I/50 *ppm 
w/Internal Finisher space 
saving (Color) 

$2,180.40 

 9 Total Annual Equipment:  $20,516.88 
Maintenance Service cost is 
based on per page print 

Black/White 
$0.0072 

**Estimated 900,000  
Annual Prints: $14,148.00 

Maintenance Service cost is 
based on per page print  

Color 
$0.0393 

**Estimated 360,000 
Annual Prints: $6,400.00 

  Total Actual Equipment & 
**Estimated Maintenance 

Annual Cost: 
$41,064.88 

  **Cost estimates based on current estimated annual print pages 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Multifunctional (MFC) device managed copier/print services are a critical component to creating 
an efficient and productive business environment. Staff evaluated the age of the City’s existing 
MFC machines, outdated functionality and increased calls for service resulting in productivity 
loss, staff went through a very comprehensive process to ensure the City receives the best service 
at a competitive price. Throughout the evaluation and vetting process, Canon Solutions America, 
Inc. demonstrated a high level of professionalism and the ability to provide a high level of service 
at a competitive price point.  Replacement of the MFC copiers will provide City staff with quality 
equipment with innovative features to help streamline daily operation processes. Staff 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 97 of 487



Consideration to Approve an Equipment Lease and Service Maintenance Agreement with Canon 
Solutions America, Inc. for the Citywide Multifunction Device Managed Print Services Replacement 
Project 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
recommends that the City Council approve the proposed five-year lease and maintenance 
agreement with Canon. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 2117 
B. Resolution No. 7516 
C. Canon Solutions America Managed Print Services Agreement 
D. Request for Proposals for Citywide Copier Replacement Project 
E. Canon Equipment Description 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 98 of 487



SLS-600 FACE May 2022 

Canon Solutions America, Inc. (“CSA”) 
One Canon Park, Melville, NY 11747  
(800) 613-2228

  Salesperson: __________________________  Order Date: _______________ 

Customer (“you”): 

Company: 

DBA: 

Address: 

City: County: 

State:    Zip:  Phone #: 

Contact:  Fax #: 

Email: 

Applicable Terms and Conditions Customer Organizational Information 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS ARE AVAILABLE AT: 

ESS.CSA.CANON.COM/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS 

The CSA customer terms and conditions located at the 
above website (“Terms”) form part of this Agreement. The 
Terms include general terms, and terms for product and 
service purchase, maintenance, support and leasing 
(pursuant to the terms of Rider G); managed print 
services; and quotes.  The Terms applicable to each of 
your transactions will be referenced in the Order Schedule. 

By your initials herein and signature below, you 
understand and acknowledge such Terms and agree to 
comply with those applicable to each Order Schedule. 

____________ 
Customer Initials 

Federal Tax ID Number: _____________________ 

Organization type:  

Address for Notices: 

Attn: 

Address:  

Address 2: 

City:                               State:            Zip:  

Email:  

BY YOUR SIGNATURE BELOW, YOU AGREE TO LEASE, PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF RIDER G, OR PURCHASE, AS 
SPECIFIED IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE ITEMS LISTED IN ANY SCHEDULE, RIDER OR ADDENDA (AS APPROVED BY CSA) TO 
THIS AGREEMENT. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND AGREE TO ABIDE BY ALL OF THE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS FACE PAGE, APPLICABLE SCHEDULE(S), RIDER(S) AND SUCH ADDENDA, THE QUOTE, 
AND THE APPLICABLE TERMS AND CONDITIONS IDENTIFIED ABOVE, ALL OF WHICH IS INCORPORATED HEREIN AND MADE 
PART OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

Customer’s Authorized Signature   _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name ____________________________________  Title _________________________________  Date ______________ 

 Customer Information Face Page 

 #___________________ MA31272

Nathan Long 10/10/2022

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT

SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES

CA 91340-2928 818.898.1204

Julia Fritz

jfritz@sfcity.org

State or Local Government

Julia Fritz

117 Macneil Street

SAN FERNANDO
jfritz@sfcity.org

CA 91340-2928

SLS-600 FACE May 2022

Change to:  117 Macneil Street 

Master Sales & Services Agreement 

ATTACHMENT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2117

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 99 of 487

L04266
Highlight
Customer Initials


L04266
Highlight
Customer’s Authorized Signature 

L04266
Highlight
Printed Name 

L04266
Highlight
Title 

L04266
Highlight
Date 



Lease Schedule ("Schedule") - Itemized (SER-700) Page of

Customer: CFS App #: Salesperson:
Agreement #: Transaction #: Order Date:

Billing Information Customer Account:

Company:

DBA:

Address: Lease Payment Invoiced by CFS

Address 2: Total Maintenance 

City: County: Base Charge Invoiced by 

State: Zip: Phone #:

Contact: Fax #: # of Payments in Advance  Total Due at Signing

Email:

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Primary Customer Contact:

Phone #: Email:

Meter Contact:

Phone #: Email:

IT Contact:

Phone #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Billing Contact:

Phone #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

Customer Authorized Signature: Printed Name: Title: Date:

Authorized Signature: Printed Name: Title: Date:

For Internal Purposes Only:
CFS Authorized Signature: Printed Name: Title: Date:

SER-700  Itemized Lease May 2022 **Requires Remote Reporting Agent

Equipment Maintenance Information

Months

Other Transaction Details

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

To: CSA and Lessor:  Customer certifies that (a) the Listed Items referred to in the above Schedule have been received, (b) installation has been completed, (c) the Listed Items have been examined by Customer and are in good operating order 
and condition and are, in all respects, satisfactory to the Customer, and (d) the Listed Items are irrevocably accepted by the Customer for all purposes under the Agreement. Accordingly, Customer hereby authorizes billing under this Schedule.

THIS SCHEDULE IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO, AND INCORPORATES THE TERMS OF, THE MASTER SALES AND SERVICES AGREEMENT REFERENCED AS THE AGREEMENT # ABOVE ("AGREEMENT"), INCLUDING THE MASTER LEASE TERMS SET FORTH AS 
RIDER G THERETO WHICH SHALL CONTROL (THE “LEASE TERMS”). TO THE EXTENT THE TERMS OF AN EXISTING CFS MASTER AGREEMENT ARE REFERENCED ON THIS SCHEDULE (THE “EXISTING MASTER CFS LEASE”) AND ARE APPLICABLE TO THIS 
SCHEDULE, THEY SHALL CONTROL OVER THE MASTER LEASE TERMS SET FORTH AS RIDER G TO THE AGREEMENT FOR SO LONG AS THE EXISTING MASTER CFS LEASE REMAINS IN EFFECT. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND APPLICABLE RIDERS 
INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE AVAILABLE AT ESS.CSA.CANON.COM/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS, AND SHALL APPLY TO THE EXTENT NOT MODIFIED BY THE AGREEMENT. THIS SCHEDULE CONSTITUTES A LEASE OF THE LISTED ITEMS, AND IS BINDING ON 
CUSTOMER UPON SIGNING BY CUSTOMER, AND IS BINDING ON CSA AND LESSOR AS PROVIDED IN THE LEASE TERMS. THIS SCHEDULE IS NON-CANCELABLE BY CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER REPRESENTS THATEXECUTION OF THIS SCHEDULE HAS BEEN DULY 
AUTHORIZED. BY YOUR SIGNATURE, CUSTOMER AGREES TO LEASE THE LISTED ITEMS AND, IF SELECTED, TO PURCHASE THE MAINTENANCE SERVICES DESCRIBED HEREIN. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS SCHEDULE.

Additional Requirements:

ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE

Item Code Listed Items Description Qty Unit Pmt Total

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Listed Items Lease Term

Payment Information

Payment Summary* (*Plus Applicable Taxes) 

# of Lease Payments

Due at Signing

Canon Solutions America, Inc. ("CSA")
One Canon Park, Melville, NY 11747 
(800)-613-2228

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

1 5

1880629 Nathan Long
S1318797MA31272 10/10/22

Maint Base charge invoiced Monthly by CSA
Maintenance included for all Equipment

2082344 60 60
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Excess Per Image Charge invoiced Monthly by CSA

New Fleet Plan Fixed Price Plan
117 Macneil Street $1,709.75

SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CSA
CA 91340-2928

Lease Payment shall be invoiced Monthly
Purchase Option: Fair Market Value

Julia Fritz

818.898.1204

jfritz@sfcity.org 0 $0.00
Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

A-1
$0.00 B&W: 0   Color: 0 B&W: $0.007200   Color: $0.039300

3824C002 Included

0607C002 PAPER DECK UNIT-F1 1 Included

IRADVDXC5870I 1 117 Macneil St. - Reproduction Room 108 10/14/22

City Hall/City Manager/City Clerk Area
LOS ANGELES 91340-2928

Julia Fritz

Included

Included

2/3 HOLE PUNCHER UNIT-A1 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO CA
4030C002

818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org
CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1 1 Included Included

5546C002 1 Included Included
5547C002 1
1972V064 1

1
1

BUFFER PASS UNIT-P2

1

ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D
STAPLE FINISHER-AB2

0126C001

Included Included
Included Included

2368V120 MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM Included Included Julia Fritz
3923V843 INSTALL PAK DX C5870I/C5860i/C5850i/C5840i 818.898.1204Included Included jfritz@sfcity.org
IntSupplies Pre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine Included Included

Auto-Toner Fulfillment**
No No 0 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive
Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

OC: COUNTY OF DUPAGE CONTRACT FI-R-0251-18 Config: A - 1 | 69725731

SER-700  Itemized Lease May 2022

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 100 of 487

L04266
Highlight
Customer Authorized Signature: 

L04266
Highlight
Printed Name: 

L04266
Highlight
Title: 

L04266
Highlight
Date:




Additional Equipment List to: ___________________ (SER-701) Page of

Customer: Agreement #: Order Date: Salesperson:

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Mtr Contact: Ph #: Email:

IT Contact: Ph #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Mtr Contact: Ph #: Email:

IT Contact: Ph #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

SER-701 Itemized Lease May 2022 **Requires Remote Reporting Agent

Item Code Listed Items Description Qty Unit Pmt Total

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Item Code Qty Unit Pmt TotalListed Items Description

S1318797 2 5

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO MA31272 10/10/22 Nathan Long
Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

A-2

See Page 1 See Page 1 See Page 1

3824C002

PAPER DECK UNIT-F1

117 Macneil St. - Reproduction Room 128 Admin 10/14/22Included1

Included

Included

10607C002 Included City Hall/ Personnel Area

0126C001 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER UNIT-A1 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CA 91340-2928

4030C002 CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1 1 IncludedIncluded Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

5546C002 BUFFER PASS UNIT-P2 Included Included1

Included5547C002 STAPLE FINISHER-AB2 1 Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org
1972V064 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D Included Included1

2368V120 MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM 1 Included Included

3923V843 INSTALL PAK DX C5870I/C5860i/C5850i/C5840i Included Included1

IntSupplies Included IncludedPre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine 1

No 0 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive Auto-Toner Fulfillment**

IRADVDXC5870I

Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

No

Config: A - 2 | 69725731

Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

B

See Page 1 See Page 1 See Page 1

3824C002

PAPER DECK UNIT-F1 1

910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT 10/14/22Included

0607C002 Included Reproduction Room

0126C001 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER UNIT-A1 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CA 91340-2928

4030C002 CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1

1

Included1

Included

Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

5546C002 BUFFER PASS UNIT-P2 1 Included Included

5547C002 STAPLE FINISHER-AB2 1 Included Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

1972V064 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D 1

Included

Included Included

2368V120 1 Included Included

INSTALL PAK DX C5870I/C5860i/C5850i/C5840i3923V843 1 Included Included

IntSupplies

MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM

Pre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine 1 Included Included

0No 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive Auto-Toner Fulfillment**

IRADVDXC5870I

No

Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

Config: B | 69725732

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 101 of 487



Additional Equipment List to: ___________________ (SER-701) Page of

Customer: Agreement #: Order Date: Salesperson:

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Mtr Contact: Ph #: Email:

IT Contact: Ph #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Mtr Contact: Ph #: Email:

IT Contact: Ph #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

SER-701 Itemized Lease May 2022 **Requires Remote Reporting Agent

Item Code Listed Items Description Qty Unit Pmt Total

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Item Code Qty Unit Pmt TotalListed Items Description

S1318797 3 5

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO MA31272 10/10/22 Nathan Long
Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

C

See Page 1 See Page 1 See Page 1

3826C002

CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1

910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT 10/14/22Included1

Included

Included

14030C002 Included Detectives

4000C002 INNER FINISHER-L1 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CA 91340-2928

4002C002 INNER 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER-D1 1 IncludedIncluded Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

1972V064 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D Included Included1

Included2368V120 MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM 1 Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org
3923V843 INSTALL PAK DX C5870I/C5860i/C5850i/C5840i Included Included1

IntSupplies Pre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine 1 Included Included

No 0 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive Auto-Toner Fulfillment**

IRADVDXC5850I

Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

No

Config: C | 69725733

Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

D-1

See Page 1 See Page 1 See Page 1

3826C002

CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1 1

505 S. Huntington St. 10/14/22Included

4030C002 Included Las Palmas Park - Admin Office

5546C002 BUFFER PASS UNIT-P2 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CA 91340-2928

5547C002 STAPLE FINISHER-AB2

1

Included1

Included

Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

1972V064 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D 1 Included Included

2368V120 MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM 1 Included Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

3923V843 INSTALL PAK DX C5870I/C5860i/C5850i/C5840i 1

Included

Included Included

IntSupplies 1 Included IncludedPre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine

0No 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive Auto-Toner Fulfillment**

IRADVDXC5850I

No

Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

Config: D - 1 | 69725734

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 102 of 487



Additional Equipment List to: ___________________ (SER-701) Page of

Customer: Agreement #: Order Date: Salesperson:

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Mtr Contact: Ph #: Email:

IT Contact: Ph #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Mtr Contact: Ph #: Email:

IT Contact: Ph #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

SER-701 Itemized Lease May 2022 **Requires Remote Reporting Agent

Item Code Listed Items Description Qty Unit Pmt Total

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Item Code Qty Unit Pmt TotalListed Items Description

S1318797 4 5

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO MA31272 10/10/22 Nathan Long
Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

D-2

See Page 1 See Page 1 See Page 1

3826C002

CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1

208 Park Ave. 10/14/22Included1

Included

Included

14030C002 Included Recreation Park

5546C002 BUFFER PASS UNIT-P2 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CA 91340-2928

5547C002 STAPLE FINISHER-AB2 1 IncludedIncluded Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

1972V064 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D Included Included1

Included2368V120 MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM 1 Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org
3923V843 INSTALL PAK DX C5870I/C5860i/C5850i/C5840i Included Included1

IntSupplies Pre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine 1 Included Included

No 0 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive Auto-Toner Fulfillment**

IRADVDXC5850I

Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

No

Config: D - 2 | 69725734

Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

E-1

See Page 1 See Page 1 See Page 1

5530C002

INNER 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER-D1 1

120 Macneil St. - Public Works City Yard 10/14/22Included

4002C002 Included Copy Room

4917C002 CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AW1 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CA 91340-2928

4000C002 INNER FINISHER-L1

1

Included1

Included

Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

1972V064 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D 1 Included Included

4144V252 IMAGERUNNER ADVANCE DX 4845I/ 4835I/ 4825I INSTALL PAK 1 Included Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

2368V120 MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM 1

Included

Included Included

IntSupplies 1 Included IncludedPre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine

0No 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive Auto-Toner Fulfillment**

IRADVDX4845I

No

Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

Config: E - 1 | 69725735

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 103 of 487



Additional Equipment List to: ___________________ (SER-701) Page of

Customer: Agreement #: Order Date: Salesperson:

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Mtr Contact: Ph #: Email:

IT Contact: Ph #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

Maint Base Charge Section

Shipping: Delivery Date:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Mtr Contact: Ph #: Email:

IT Contact: Ph #: Email:

Billing:

Address 2:

City: County: State: Zip:

Contact: Ph #: Email:

Elevator:       Loading Dock: # of Steps: Hrs of Operation:

For CSA USE ONLY: 

SER-701 Itemized Lease May 2022 **Requires Remote Reporting Agent

Item Code Listed Items Description Qty Unit Pmt Total

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Covered Images Included in Maint Base Charge

Ship To & Maintenance Billing Information

Excess Per Image Charge(s)

Item Code Qty Unit Pmt TotalListed Items Description

S1318797 5 5

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO MA31272 10/10/22 Nathan Long
Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

E-2

See Page 1 See Page 1 See Page 1

5530C002

INNER 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER-D1

505 S. Huntington St. 10/14/22Included1

Included

Included

14002C002 Included Las Palmas Park - Lower Level

4917C002 CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AW1 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CA 91340-2928

4000C002 INNER FINISHER-L1 1 IncludedIncluded Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

1972V064 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D Included Included1

Included4144V252 IMAGERUNNER ADVANCE DX 4845I/ 4835I/ 4825I INSTALL PAK 1 Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org
2368V120 MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM Included Included1

IntSupplies Pre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine 1 Included Included

No 0 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive Auto-Toner Fulfillment**

IRADVDX4845I

Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

No

Config: E - 2 | 69725735

Rider A applies (Office Equip/Cut Sheet
Production)

F

See Page 1 See Page 1 See Page 1

5530C002

INNER 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER-D1 1

910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT - Dispatch 10/14/22Included

4002C002 Included

4917C002 CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AW1 1 Included Included SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES CA 91340-2928

4000C002 INNER FINISHER-L1

1

Included1

Included

Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

1972V064 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP XG-PCS-15D 1 Included Included

4144V252 IMAGERUNNER ADVANCE DX 4845I/ 4835I/ 4825I INSTALL PAK 1 Included Included Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

2368V120 MID VOLUME CONNECTIVITY 30+PPM UP TO 79PPM 1

Included

Included Included

IntSupplies 1 Included IncludedPre-Installed Supplies Installed in Machine

0No 9-5

Consumables: Toner, Staples Inclusive Auto-Toner Fulfillment**

IRADVDX4845I

No

Meter Method: Remote Reporting Agent Corporate Advantage

Config: F | 69725736

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 104 of 487



Page

Customer: Salesperson:

Agreement #: Transaction #:

Customer ("You") Customer Account: Service Requested:

Company:

Address:

City: County:

State: Zip: Phone:

Contact name:

Email:

Alternate Contact:

Alternate Phone:

If "Buyout Reimbursement" is selected above, the following MUST be completed:

To be paid upon delivery / acceptance pursuant to Rider B, Section 1.

Payable to: Reason for check issuance:

If transaction includes a Lease Upgrade or Buyout the following MUST be completed:

Select

one:

Original Order Date

Will retained equipment remain under a CSA Maintenance Agreement?

Trade in Equipment Condition:

Equipment for Trade-In, Upgrade, or Return

If transaction includes a Lease return the following MUST be completed:

Pick Up /Return Information:

Hours of Operation: Number of Steps: Elevator: Loading Dock:

Special Instructions:

Customer’s Authorized Signature

Printed Name Title Date

SLS-900 March 2020

Equipment Location Email
Alt pick up

date

Return Schedule, Rider B of Agreement

ofTrade in, Upgrade, Return, Buyout Schedule ("Schedule") (SLS-900)

Return

code

Item

Code

Leasing company name Lease Number

$

Contact Name:

THIS RETURN SCHEDULE IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO, AND INCORPORATES ALL OF THE TERMS OF, THE MASTER SALES AND SERVICES

AGREEMENT REFERENCED AS THE AGREEMENT # ABOVE AND THE APPLICABLE RIDER(S) ("AGREEMENT"). BY YOUR SIGNATURE BELOW, YOU AGREE

TO TERMS AS SPECIFIED ABOVE, SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT. CUSTOMER REPRESENTS THAT EXECUTION OF THIS

SCHEDULE HAS BEEN DULY AUTHORIZED. YOU REPRESENT THAT YOU ARE AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THIS SCHEDULE ON CUSTOMER’S BEHALF.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE AVAILABLE AT ESS.CSA.CANON.COM/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS, AND SHALL APPLY TO

THE EXTENT NOT MODIFIED BY THE AGREEMENT. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS RETURN SCHEDULE.

Order date:

Lease Information (if applicable)

Canon Solutions America, Inc. ("CSA")

One Canon Park, Melville, NY 11747

(800)-613-2228

Description Serial #
Contact Name &

Phone

Phone: Email:

Not Applicable: No Equipment pick up required

You will return Equipment to leasing company according to the terms and conditions of your lease agreement

You will retain the equipment.

Yes: SELECT ONE: under an Existing Contract

No

Or New Contract

CSA will pick up the Equipment

Same Date as Delivery of Listed Items Specified on the Agreement

Other Specified Date:_____ / _____ / _____ (but no longer than 30 days after delivery of Listed Items under Agreement

Return Equipment to CFS

Return Equipment to CSA

1 4

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Nathan Long

MA31272 S1318797

10/10/22

2082344
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Trade In

117 Macneil Street

SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES

CA 91340-2928 818.898.1204

Julia Fritz
jfritz@sfcity.org

✔

✔

Good Working Condition

TRD 0226V481 MX-4111N 2509697X00 117 Macneil St. - Reproduction Room 128 Admin  SAN
FERNANDO, CA 91340-2928

TRD 0226V481 MX-M753N 2500782Y00 117 Macneil St. - Reproduction Room 108  SAN
FERNANDO, CA 91340-2928

TRD 0226V481 MX-M283N 2501225X00 120 Macneil St. - Copy Room  SAN FERNANDO,
CA 91340-2928

TRD 0226V481 MX-4111N 2509712X00 505 S. Huntington St. - Las Palmas Park  SAN
FERNANDO, CA 91340-2928

TRD 0226V481 MX-4111N 2509568X00 505 S. Huntington St. - Las Palmas Park  SAN
FERNANDO, CA 91340-2928

✔

Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

9-5 0 No No

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 105 of 487

L04266
Highlight
Customer’s Authorized Signature


L04266
Highlight
Printed Name 

L04266
Highlight
Title 

L04266
Highlight
Date




Page of

Customer: Salesperson:

Agreement #: Transaction #: Order Date:

Customer ("you"):

Company: Contact:

Address: Phone: Fax:

City: State: Zip: Email:

Equipment for Trade-In, Upgrade, or Return

SLS-901 March 2020

Canon Solutions America, Inc. ("CSA")

One Canon Park, Melville, NY 11747

(800)-613-2228

Additional Equipment for Trade in, Upgrade, Return, Buyout Schedule (Rider B) (SLS-901)

DescriptionItem Code Serial #
Return

code
Contact Name & Phone

Equipment Location,

if different than above
Alt pick

up date
Email

2 4
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Nathan Long

MA31272 S1318797 10/10/22

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Julia Fritz

117 Macneil Street 818.898.1204

SAN FERNANDO CA 91340-2928 jfritz@sfcity.org

TRD 0226V481 MX-4111N 2509693X00 208 Park Ave.- Recreation Park  SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340-2928

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 106 of 487



Page

Customer: Salesperson:

Agreement #: Transaction #:

Customer ("You") Customer Account: Service Requested:

Company:

Address:

City: County:

State: Zip: Phone:

Contact name:

Email:

Alternate Contact:

Alternate Phone:

If "Buyout Reimbursement" is selected above, the following MUST be completed:

To be paid upon delivery / acceptance pursuant to Rider B, Section 1.

Payable to: Reason for check issuance:

If transaction includes a Lease Upgrade or Buyout the following MUST be completed:

Select

one:

Original Order Date

Will retained equipment remain under a CSA Maintenance Agreement?

Trade in Equipment Condition:

Equipment for Trade-In, Upgrade, or Return

If transaction includes a Lease return the following MUST be completed:

Pick Up /Return Information:

Hours of Operation: Number of Steps: Elevator: Loading Dock:

Special Instructions:

Customer’s Authorized Signature

Printed Name Title Date

SLS-900 March 2020

Equipment Location Email
Alt pick up

date

Return Schedule, Rider B of Agreement

ofTrade in, Upgrade, Return, Buyout Schedule ("Schedule") (SLS-900)

Return

code

Item

Code

Leasing company name Lease Number

$

Contact Name:

THIS RETURN SCHEDULE IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO, AND INCORPORATES ALL OF THE TERMS OF, THE MASTER SALES AND SERVICES

AGREEMENT REFERENCED AS THE AGREEMENT # ABOVE AND THE APPLICABLE RIDER(S) ("AGREEMENT"). BY YOUR SIGNATURE BELOW, YOU AGREE

TO TERMS AS SPECIFIED ABOVE, SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT. CUSTOMER REPRESENTS THAT EXECUTION OF THIS

SCHEDULE HAS BEEN DULY AUTHORIZED. YOU REPRESENT THAT YOU ARE AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THIS SCHEDULE ON CUSTOMER’S BEHALF.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE AVAILABLE AT ESS.CSA.CANON.COM/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS, AND SHALL APPLY TO

THE EXTENT NOT MODIFIED BY THE AGREEMENT. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS RETURN SCHEDULE.

Order date:

Lease Information (if applicable)

Canon Solutions America, Inc. ("CSA")

One Canon Park, Melville, NY 11747

(800)-613-2228

Description Serial #
Contact Name &

Phone

Phone: Email:

Not Applicable: No Equipment pick up required

You will return Equipment to leasing company according to the terms and conditions of your lease agreement

You will retain the equipment.

Yes: SELECT ONE: under an Existing Contract

No

Or New Contract

CSA will pick up the Equipment

Same Date as Delivery of Listed Items Specified on the Agreement

Other Specified Date:_____ / _____ / _____ (but no longer than 30 days after delivery of Listed Items under Agreement

Return Equipment to CFS

Return Equipment to CSA

3 4

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Nathan Long

MA31272 S1318797

10/10/22

2082344
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Upgrade

117 Macneil Street

SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES

CA 91340-2928 818.898.1204

Julia Fritz
jfritz@sfcity.org

CFS 001-0745355-001

✔

✔

UGTR 1190C002 IRADVC7570I WFM01265 910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT SAN FERNANDO,
CA 91340

UGTR 8030B003 IRADV4245 RKM16055 910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT SAN FERNANDO,
CA 91340

UGTR 0605C003 IRADVC5535I WXF05334 910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT SAN FERNANDO,
CA 91340

✔

Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

9-5 0 No No

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 107 of 487

L04266
Highlight
Customer’s Authorized Signature


L04266
Highlight
Printed Name 

L04266
Highlight
Title 

L04266
Highlight
Date




Page

Customer: Salesperson:

Agreement #: Transaction #:

Customer ("You") Customer Account: Service Requested:

Company:

Address:

City: County:

State: Zip: Phone:

Contact name:

Email:

Alternate Contact:

Alternate Phone:

If "Buyout Reimbursement" is selected above, the following MUST be completed:

To be paid upon delivery / acceptance pursuant to Rider B, Section 1.

Payable to: Reason for check issuance:

If transaction includes a Lease Upgrade or Buyout the following MUST be completed:

Select

one:

Original Order Date

Will retained equipment remain under a CSA Maintenance Agreement?

Trade in Equipment Condition:

Equipment for Trade-In, Upgrade, or Return

If transaction includes a Lease return the following MUST be completed:

Pick Up /Return Information:

Hours of Operation: Number of Steps: Elevator: Loading Dock:

Special Instructions:

Customer’s Authorized Signature

Printed Name Title Date

SLS-900 March 2020

Equipment Location Email
Alt pick up

date

Return Schedule, Rider B of Agreement

ofTrade in, Upgrade, Return, Buyout Schedule ("Schedule") (SLS-900)

Return

code

Item

Code

Leasing company name Lease Number

$

Contact Name:

THIS RETURN SCHEDULE IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO, AND INCORPORATES ALL OF THE TERMS OF, THE MASTER SALES AND SERVICES

AGREEMENT REFERENCED AS THE AGREEMENT # ABOVE AND THE APPLICABLE RIDER(S) ("AGREEMENT"). BY YOUR SIGNATURE BELOW, YOU AGREE

TO TERMS AS SPECIFIED ABOVE, SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT. CUSTOMER REPRESENTS THAT EXECUTION OF THIS

SCHEDULE HAS BEEN DULY AUTHORIZED. YOU REPRESENT THAT YOU ARE AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE THIS SCHEDULE ON CUSTOMER’S BEHALF.

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE AVAILABLE AT ESS.CSA.CANON.COM/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS, AND SHALL APPLY TO

THE EXTENT NOT MODIFIED BY THE AGREEMENT. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS RETURN SCHEDULE.

Order date:

Lease Information (if applicable)

Canon Solutions America, Inc. ("CSA")

One Canon Park, Melville, NY 11747

(800)-613-2228

Description Serial #
Contact Name &

Phone

Phone: Email:

Not Applicable: No Equipment pick up required

You will return Equipment to leasing company according to the terms and conditions of your lease agreement

You will retain the equipment.

Yes: SELECT ONE: under an Existing Contract

No

Or New Contract

CSA will pick up the Equipment

Same Date as Delivery of Listed Items Specified on the Agreement

Other Specified Date:_____ / _____ / _____ (but no longer than 30 days after delivery of Listed Items under Agreement

Return Equipment to CFS

Return Equipment to CSA

4 4

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Nathan Long

MA31272 S1318797

10/10/22

2082344
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO Upgrade

117 Macneil Street

SAN FERNANDO LOS ANGELES

CA 91340-2928 818.898.1204

Julia Fritz
jfritz@sfcity.org

CFS 0745355-001

✔

✔ ✔

UGTK 8457B003 IRADVC250 QNR11020 910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT  SAN FERNANDO,
CA 91340-2928

UGTK 8457B003 IRADVC250 QNR13177 910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT  SAN FERNANDO,
CA 91340-2928

UGTK 6856B003 IRADV400IF QLA28362 910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT  SAN FERNANDO,
CA 91340-2928

UGTK 6856B003 IRADV400IF QLA28373 910 1ST ST POLICE DEPT  SAN FERNANDO,
CA 91340-2928

Julia Fritz 818.898.1204 jfritz@sfcity.org

9-5 0 No No

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 108 of 487

L04266
Highlight
Customer’s Authorized Signature


L04266
Highlight
Printed Name 

L04266
Highlight
Title 

L04266
Highlight
Date




Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
General Terms 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 1 of 7 

  

This MASTER SALES AND SERVICES AGREEMENT, INCLUDING THE CUSTOMER INFORMATION 

FACE PAGE, THESE GENERAL TERMS, AND ANY APPLICABLE RIDER(S), SCHEDULES AND 

ADDENDA (AS DEFINED BELOW) (collectively the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between Canon 

Solutions America, Inc. (“CSA”, “we”, “our”) and its customer, as named on the Customer Information Face 

Page (“you” or “Customer”). "Party" shall mean you or CSA, and “Parties” shall mean you and CSA. All 

notices to CSA shall be sent as set forth in Section 18. For purposes of clarity, a Rider shall only 

apply to a given transaction when referenced on a Schedule. 

GENERAL TERMS 

 

1. PURCHASE OR LEASE OF LISTED ITEMS. You and CSA agree that you will purchase or lease, as 

applicable pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the equipment (“Equipment”); 

Equipment maintenance including supplies under a supply inclusive maintenance plan (“Maintenance”) 

(Rider A); application software licenses (“Software”) (Rider C), which excludes software that is stored 

on a unit of Equipment in order to make it run properly and licensed as part of the Equipment (“Firmware”) 

(Rider A); Software subscriptions (“Software Subscriptions”), Software installation services (“Software 

Installation Services”), and Software support contracts (“Software Support Contracts”) (all in Rider C), 

subscription support services (“Subscription Support Services”) (Rider D), managed print services 

(“MPS”) (Rider E), Large Format Equipment (Rider F); Home Office Print-as-a-Service (“Home Office”) 

(Rider H), and/or other products and services incorporated by a schedule or addendum accepted by 

CSA (all collectively, the “Listed Items”), each as described in any rider hereto (“Rider”) or any Order 

Schedule, Return Schedule, MPS Schedule, Lease Schedule or other schedule or order document 

accepted by CSA (each a “Schedule”).  Each Schedule referring to this Agreement will constitute a 

separate agreement for the acquisition of the Listed Items described therein and shall incorporate the 

terms of this Agreement. “NOLI” for purposes of Rider F shall mean non-CSA Listed Items, which may 

include hardware, software (and specifically third party software), equipment, supplies, service, 

warranty, network equipment and other items not listed in CSA’s price list and as designated on the 

Master Sales and Services Agreement.  NOLI products are provided as a convenience to Customers 

and are not eligible for any warranty or maintenance under this Agreement and accordingly Customer 

waives any claim it might have against CSA for any loss, damages or expenses caused by NOLI 

products. “Products” shall mean Equipment, Software and Software Subscriptions, and any other 

products incorporated into this Agreement by a Schedule or addendum accepted by CSA (“Addendum” 

or “Addenda”). “Services” shall mean Maintenance, Software Installation Services, Subscription 

Support Services, MPS, Home Office, and any other services incorporated into this Agreement by a 

Schedule or Addendum. “Lease” shall mean the document pursuant to which you lease Listed Items 

from a “Leasing Company”, which shall solely govern as to matters contained therein, and unless 

otherwise set forth on the Customer Information Face Page or any Addendum, the Leasing Company 

is Canon Financial Services, Inc. (“CFS”) and the Lease is set forth as Rider G, which shall solely 

govern as to the matters contained therein. To the extent the terms of any Rider conflict with these 

General Terms, the terms of the Rider shall control. Unless specifically or otherwise defined in a Rider 

or Schedule, the terms shall have the meaning defined in these General Terms.  THE PARTIES MAY 

AMEND THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT BY USE OF A MUTUALLY AGREEABLE ADDENDUM, 

EXECUTED BY YOU AND AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF CSA, WHICH MAY ONLY BE 

CHANGED BY THE PARTIES IN WRITING.   

 

2. TERM.  The initial term during which Services shall be provided, and for the lease of Products, unless 

earlier terminated as provided in these General Terms or the applicable Rider, is as set forth on the 

applicable Schedule.  That initial term shall be subject to renewal as provided in the applicable Rider. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 109 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
General Terms 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 2 of 7 

3. DELIVERY/INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT. Unless otherwise set forth in a Schedule, delivery and 

installation of Equipment is at no additional charge, so long as no special rigging is required (in which 

event CSA’s rates therefor will apply). For purposes of this Agreement, “special rigging” shall include, 

but not be limited to, the use of cranes, forklifts, or other mechanical devices; and/or the engagement 

of additional personnel beyond those ordinarily required for CSA to deliver Equipment via delivery van 

and maneuver unimpeded into and through the loading dock, hallways, and, if necessary, stairs and/or 

elements of Customer’s facility manually through the use of a hand truck or dolly. 

 

4. PAYMENT TERMS, CHARGES AND CREDIT CARDS.  

4.1 The total price specified in any Schedule for the Listed Items, including taxes and 

delivery/installation charges (if any), is due and payable within 30 days of the invoice date unless 

otherwise stated on the invoice.  You expressly acknowledge your obligation to pay CSA’s invoices for 

Listed Items. Should you request a third party act as your agent for receiving or paying invoices, CSA 

may approve such request in its sole discretion, and CSA’s approval is conditioned on: (i) your payment 

of an administrative charge (including reimbursement of any costs or charges CSA incurs associated 

therewith), which shall be considered charges under this Agreement; (ii) no modifications (other than 

addresses) to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and (iii) you remain liable for all of your 

obligations under this Agreement.  CSA may charge, and you agree to pay, a surcharge to cover 

increases in transportation costs. CSA reserves the right to adjust pricing (i) in the event Listed Items are 

not delivered to you within thirty (30) days of an executed Schedule to reflect corresponding increases in 

the manufacturer’s suggested retail price (“MSRP”); or (ii) due to any mistake in pricing or configuration 

for any of the Listed Items discovered prior to shipment. In the event of such price adjustments, CSA shall 

notify you of the mistake in pricing or configuration, or the increase in MSRP, and such notification will 

constitute the non-acceptance of the applicable Schedule by CSA with respect to such Listed Items 

without liability. Should Maintenance or Software support not be purchased at the time of the initial delivery 

of the Product, or should it terminate or be suspended, additional fees to inspect the Product or otherwise 

to start or reinstate the Maintenance or Software support shall apply.  Applicable taxes shall be added to 

the charges.  Without limiting any of CSA’s rights and remedies under applicable law, if payments are 

late, CSA may charge you and you agree to pay a late charge equal to the higher of five percent (5%) 

of the amount due or $10.00 as reasonable collection fees, not to exceed the maximum amount 

permitted by law, and you shall pay the actual and reasonable costs and expenses of collection incurred 

by CSA, including the maximum attorney’s fees permitted by law.  CSA does not provide refunds or 

credits for any partial terms, except as expressly stated in the Rider or applicable Schedule. 

4.2 To purchase Listed Items, you will need to provide certain information, including payment and 

shipping details.  We accept all major credit cards: VISA, MasterCard, American Express and Discover. 

For your security, the billing name and address on your credit card must match your Schedule or your 

Listed Items may be delayed or cancelled. When you place an order for your Listed Items, we may pre-

authorize your credit or debit card in the amount of your order, which may have an effect on your 

available balance or credit line. We may cancel or place holds on your order or any Listed Item included 

therein, if we suspect the order may be fraudulent. All billing and registration information you provide 

must be accurate, complete and correct. By confirming your purchase on the Schedule, you agree to 

accept and pay for all charges incurred via the applicable payment method for Listed Items that you 

purchased at the price(s) in effect at that time, including any applicable taxes. Receiving an order 

acknowledgement (either by mail or via email) does not guarantee acceptance of an order for the Listed 

Items, or that the price or availability of a Listed Item has been confirmed. 

 

5. CREDIT.  CSA reserves the right to withhold shipment of the Listed Items until you (or the Leasing 

Company, if applicable) make full payment of the total price specified in all Schedules accepted by 

CSA, or to revoke any credit extended to you because of your failure to pay any amounts when due 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 110 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
General Terms 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 3 of 7 

pursuant to such Schedules or the applicable CFS Lease, or for any other reason affecting your 

creditworthiness.  

 

6. LIMITED WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMER.  Canon brand Equipment (except for models which have 

rated speeds of 110 pages per minute or greater, or are imagePRESS or varioPRINT models) is 

provided with an end user limited warranty from either Canon U.S.A., Inc. (“Canon”) or a Canon 

affiliated company.  CSA is authorized to provide warranty service pursuant to the Canon limited 

warranties.  Warranties, if any, for other Products and Services are provided according to their terms 

by the manufacturer or developer or as may also be provided in the applicable Rider or Schedule.  The 

use of Software is at all times subject to and governed by the applicable end user license agreement.  

In addition to the aforesaid manufacturer or developer warranties, CSA warrants (the “CSA Warranty”) 

that on completion of installation of Canon brand Equipment, it will be (1) in material conformance with 

the manufacturer's published specifications, (2) qualified for CSA's standard maintenance services and 

(3) free from material defects in workmanship and materials.  All parts replaced under a warranty shall 

become the property of CSA or Canon.  The CSA warranty set forth herein does not apply to used or 

refurbished Equipment and is conditioned upon Customer giving prompt written notice to CSA of any 

discovered defects within twenty (20) days of installation (“CSA Warranty Period”). CUSTOMER'S 

SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR BREACH OF THE FOREGOING CSA WARRANTY SHALL 

BE TO REJECT THE EQUIPMENT AND CANCEL THE AFFECTED EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE 

DURING THE CSA WARRANTY PERIOD.   IN NO EVENT SHALL A BREACH OF ANY WARRANTY 

GIVE RISE TO A CLAIM FOR DAMAGES AGAINST CSA. THE WARRANTIES CONTAINED OR 

REFERENCED IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED 

OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES REGARDING MERCHANTABILITY OR 

FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, RELATING TO THE USE OR PERFORMANCE OF THE 

LISTED ITEMS, AND ALL SUCH OTHER WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY RELATING TO THE USE 

OR PERFORMANCE OF THE LISTED ITEMS OR ANY METER READ COLLECTION METHOD 

PROVIDED BY CSA, ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED. YOU EXPRESSLY 

ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE FURNISHING OF MAINTENANCE OR SERVICES UNDER THIS 

AGREEMENT DOES NOT ASSURE UNINTERRUPTED OPERATION AND USE OF THE LISTED 

ITEMS. 

 

7. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.   

 

7.1 CSA SHALL NOT BE LIABLE (I) FOR BODILY INJURY (INCLUDING DEATH) OR TANGIBLE 

PROPERTY DAMAGE EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY CSA’S NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL 

MISCONDUCT, OR (II) FOR LOSS OF REVENUE OR PROFIT, LOSS OR CORRUPTION OF DATA, 

OR SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, ARISING 

OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE PERFORMANCE OR NON-PERFORMANCE OF ANY 

SERVICES OR THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE ANY PRODUCTS, REGARDLESS OF THE 

LEGAL THEORY ON WHICH A CLAIM MAY BE BASED AND EVEN IF CSA HAS BEEN ADVISED 

OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.  

      

7.2 CSA’S LIABILITY ON ANY CLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT AND 

ANY OTHER AGREEMENTS ENTERED INTO IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, REGARDLESS OF 

THE LEGAL THEORY ON WHICH THE CLAIM IS BASED, SHALL NOT EXCEED IN AN AGGREGATE 

AMOUNT THE SUM OF (A) IF CUSTOMER PURCHASED ANY PRODUCTS, THE TOTAL 

PURCHASE PRICE PAID BY CUSTOMER (OR THE LEASING COMPANY IF LEASING) TO CSA 

FOR THE PRODUCTS SUBJECT TO THE CLAIM, AND (B) AS TO ALL OTHER LIABILITY OF CSA, 

CHARGES PAID OR PAYABLE BY CUSTOMER FOR THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES SUBJECT 

TO THE CLAIM FOR SIX (6) MONTHS PRECEDING THE DATE ON WHICH THE CLAIM IS MADE. 

SHOULD CUSTOMER HAVE PREPAID ANY AMOUNT FOR SERVICES SUBJECT TO THE CLAIM, 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 111 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
General Terms 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 4 of 7 

SUCH AMOUNT SHALL BE AMORTIZED OVER THE APPLICABLE TERM OF SAID SERVICES AND 

CSA’S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO SIX (6) MONTHS OF SUCH AMORTIZED PAYMENTS.  

 

8. DATA.  You acknowledge that the hard drive(s) on the Equipment, may retain images, content or other 

data that you may store for purposes of normal operation of the Equipment (“HD Data”). You 

acknowledge that CSA is not storing HD Data on your behalf and that exposure or access to the HD 

Data by CSA, if any, is purely incidental to the services performed by CSA. You are solely responsible 

for the HD Data. The Equipment contains various security features that you can utilize.  Upon your 

request, CSA will work with you to provide information regarding your options and offer services to 

assist you. Such services may result in additional charges.  The terms of this Section shall solely govern 

as to HD Data, notwithstanding that any provisions of this Agreement or any separate confidentiality or 

data security or other agreement now or hereafter entered into between you and CSA that could be 

construed to apply to HD Data.   

 

9. SECURITY.  As security for the payment of all amounts due for the acquisition of the Listed Items, you 

hereby grant to CSA a security interest in the Listed Items. To the extent permitted by applicable law, 

you hereby authorize CSA to file with the appropriate governmental authorities any and all financing 

statements necessary to evidence or perfect CSA’s security interest in the Listed Items. 

 

10. WARRANTY OF BUSINESS PURPOSE. You represent and warrant that the Listed Items will not be 

used for personal, family or household purposes. 

 

11. CUSTOMER DEFAULT. You shall be in default of this Agreement if you fail to perform any of your 

obligations under this Agreement, any Rider or Schedule (including making prompt payments of 

amounts not subject to a good faith dispute) or the CFS Lease. CSA may suspend providing Listed 

Items under this Agreement in whole or in part until any delinquent payment is received by CSA (or 

CFS as applicable), and You agree that any such suspension shall not in and of itself be deemed a 

termination of this Agreement.  If an overdue payment under this Agreement or any Rider or Schedule 

is disputed in good faith within thirty (30) days after its due date, you shall pay all undisputed amounts 

and promptly make a good faith effort to resolve such dispute with CSA. In the event of your default, 

CSA may, without limiting its other rights and remedies available under applicable law and this 

Agreement, require you to pay all charges then due but unpaid, including any applicable late charges 

and liquidated damages.  

 

12. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. THIS AGREEMENT AND ALL CLAIMS, DISPUTES AND CAUSES 

OF ACTION RELATING THERETO, WHETHER SOUNDING IN CONTRACT, TORT OR STATUTE, 

SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE 

OF NEW YORK. YOU CONSENT TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF ANY STATE 

OR FEDERAL COURT LOCATED WITHIN THE COUNTY OF NEW YORK UPON SERVICE OF 

PROCESS MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE STATUTES AND RULES OF THE 

STATE OF NEW YORK OR THE UNITED STATES. ANY AND ALL SUITS YOU COMMENCE 

AGAINST CSA, WHETHER OR NOT ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, SHALL BE BROUGHT 

ONLY IN THE STATE OR FEDERAL COURTS LOCATED WITHIN THE COUNTY OF NEW YORK. 

YOU HEREBY WAIVE OBJECTIONS AS TO VENUE AND CONVENIENCE OF FORUM.  

 

13. LIMITATION OF ACTIONS, CLASS WAIVER AND JURY TRIAL WAIVER.  ANY SUIT, OTHER THAN 

ONE SEEKING PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS DUE HEREUNDER, SHALL BE COMMENCED, IF AT ALL, 

WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR OF THE DATE THAT THE CLAIM ACCRUES. CUSTOMER AGREES THAT 

ANY CLAIM IT ASSERTS AGAINST CSA SHALL BE ASSERTED ON AN INDIVIDUAL BASIS ONLY. 

CUSTOMER IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO ASSERT ANY CLAIM AGAINST CSA AS A 

REPRESENTATIVE OR MEMBER OF ANY CLASS OR GROUP.  THE PARTIES IRREVOCABLY 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 112 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
General Terms 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 5 of 7 

WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IN ANY SUIT BETWEEN THEM UNLESS CUSTOMER 

RESIDES IN A STATE IN WHICH A WAIVER OF A RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IS UNENFORCEABLE 

AS A MATTER OF THAT STATE’S PUBLIC POLICY. 

 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MASTER AGREEMENT OVERRIDING CONTRACT TERMS AND 

VOUCHERS.  This Agreement, together with all Riders, Schedules, and Addenda now and hereafter 

entered into and any related CSA credit application, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties 

with respect to the furnishing of the Listed Items and the performance of the Services, superseding all 

previous proposals and agreements, oral or written; and any default by Customer under any part of this 

Agreement shall constitute a default of the entire Agreement. If the Customer Information Face Page 

references a master agreement (which may be a separate master agreement entered into between 

Customer, or an affiliate of Customer, and CSA), or if a Schedule references an overriding contract (an 

“OC” meaning a group purchasing or cooperative or governmental agreement under which Customer 

is an eligible participant) or a master agreement between you (or one of your affiliates) and CSA, then 

the terms of such OC or master agreement shall apply to the extent applicable to the transactions 

contemplated by this Agreement, and the terms of this Agreement shall apply only to the extent not 

inconsistent with the terms of such OC or master agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision in 

this Agreement to the contrary, if the Listed Item you are purchasing is designated as a “Voucher” on 

your Order Schedule, the following terms shall govern: “You have been referred to an independent third 

party (the “Provider”) by CSA for certain products and services (collectively “Provider Services”). CSA 

is authorized and compensated to refer prospective customers to the Provider.  Provider Services are 

not eligible for any warranty or maintenance under this Agreement. You acknowledge and agree that: 

(i) The Provider will provide the Provider Services to you pursuant to an agreement(s) between you 

and the Provider (“Provider Agreement”); (ii) CSA shall have no obligation or liability for the Provider 

Services or under the Provider Agreement; (iii) You shall look solely to the Provider as to any claim or 

cause of action arising from the Provider Agreement or the Provider Services; (iv) you waive your rights 

to bring any such claim or cause of action against CSA; and (v) should you desire to enter into a Lease 

for the Voucher from Canon Financial Services, Inc. (“CFS”) the terms of Rider G between you and 

CFS shall solely govern as to the matters contained therein.   

 

15. CSA DEFAULT. Customer may terminate its use of Products or Services in the event that CSA 

materially fails to perform its obligations under this Agreement, provided that any such termination shall 

only apply to the Products or Services subject to the default, and shall only be effective upon not less than 

thirty (30) days’ prior written notice from Customer to CSA specifying the default, and provided that CSA 

has not materially cured such default or provided Customer reasonable assurance that such default shall 

be materially cured, prior to the effective date of termination.  For the avoidance of doubt, no such 

termination shall affect Customer’s obligations with respect to the Lease. 

 

16. REPRESENTATIONS AND AMENDMENTS.  

 

16.1 NO REPRESENTATION OR STATEMENT NOT CONTAINED IN THE DOCUMENTS POSTED ON 

CSA’S CUSTOMER PORTAL (ESS.CSA.CANON.COM/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS) AS OF THE DATE 

OF A SCHEDULE SHALL BE BINDING UPON CSA AS A WARRANTY OR OTHERWISE, NOR SHALL 

THIS AGREEMENT BE MODIFIED OR AMENDED, EXCEPT BY AN ADDENDUM SIGNED BY YOU 

AND AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF CSA.  

 

16.2 NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, A PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT MAY ALSO BE 

AMENDED BY A WRITTEN NOTIFICATION FROM CSA TO YOU AT YOUR EMAIL ADDRESS LISTED 

ON THE CUSTOMER INFORMATION FACE PAGE (OR AS YOU SUBSEQUENTLY MODIFY IN 

WRITING), SETTING FORTH THE AMENDED PROVISION(S), WHICH SHALL BE DEEMED 

ACCEPTED BY YOU EFFECTIVE THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER NOTIFICATION (OR SUCH LATER 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 113 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
General Terms 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 6 of 7 

DATE SPECIFIED IN THE NOTIFICATION) (THE “CHANGE DATE”), UNLESS YOU ELECT, WITHIN 

SUCH THIRTY (30) DAY PERIOD, TO PROVIDE WRITTEN NOTICE THAT YOU OBJECT TO SUCH 

AMENDMENT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN WHICH CASE THE PARTIES SHALL NEGOTIATE ANY 

SUCH AMENDED PROVISIONS IN GOOD FAITH.  THE AMENDED PROVISIONS SHALL ONLY 

APPLY TO SCHEDULES ISSUED AFTER THE CHANGE DATE AND SHALL NOT AFFECT ANY 

ADDENDA, WHICH SHALL CONTROL.   

 

17. MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement shall be binding on you upon our receipt of your signature on the 

Customer Information Face Page and, as to each Schedule, on the date we receive your signature 

thereon.  Each Schedule shall be binding on CSA upon delivery of the Listed Item or commencement of 

performance by CSA under such Schedule. Title to or licensing of (as applicable) any Listed Items shall 

pass or be granted to you or the Leasing Company only upon full required payment to CSA therefor.  All 

provisions of this Agreement which by their nature can be construed to survive the expiration or 

termination of the Agreement shall so survive. You acknowledge that neither CSA nor any of its agents 

or representatives has made any promise, representation, or warranty as to the Listed Items, or anything 

affecting or relating to this Agreement, except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, and you 

acknowledge that you have not executed or authorized the execution of this Agreement in reliance upon 

any such promise, representation, or warranty. You expressly disclaim having relied upon any 

representation or statement concerning the capability, condition, operation, performance or specifications 

of the Listed Items, except to the extent set forth in this Agreement.  No Lease between you and the 

Leasing Company with respect to any Listed Items shall be binding on CSA in any respect or affect your 

rights or CSA’s obligations hereunder. You agree to dispose of all opened consumables and supplies in 

accordance with applicable law and regulations, and product handling instructions. CSA is and shall at all 

times be an independent contractor and shall not be deemed your employee or agent. Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between the Parties.  ANY 

PURCHASE ORDER UTILIZED BY YOU (WHETHER OR NOT REQUIRED) SHALL BE FOR YOUR 

ADMINISTRATIVE CONVENIENCE ONLY, AND ANY TERMS THEREIN WHICH CONFLICT WITH, 

VARY FROM, OR SUPPLEMENT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE DEEMED 

NULL AND VOID. If a court finds any provision of this Agreement (or part thereof) to be unenforceable, 

the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. A failure of either Party to 

exercise any right provided for herein shall not be deemed a waiver of any right under this Agreement. 

This Agreement shall not be assignable by you without CSA’s prior written consent, and any attempted 

assignment without such consent shall be void; except that you may assign to your Leasing Company 

your right to acquire the Listed Items and your warranty rights with respect thereto, but your other rights 

hereunder are not assignable to the Leasing Company and such assignment shall not relieve you of any 

of your obligations hereunder (including your obligation to pay for Listed Items). You agree that CSA may 

accept an electronic image of this Agreement as an original, and that digital and/or electronic copies of 

your signature will be treated as an original for all purposes. 

 

18. NOTICES.  YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT CSA SHALL SEND NOTICES BY REGULAR MAIL TO THE 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS, AND/OR BY EMAIL TO THE EMAIL ADDRESS ON THE CUSTOMER 

INFORMATION FACE PAGE.  TO BE EFFECTIVE, ALL NOTICES TO CSA CONCERNING 

CANCELLATION, BREACH, DEFAULT, ASSIGNMENT, INDEMNITY, NON-RENEWAL, CHANGE OF 

YOUR ADDRESS OR EMAIL ADDRESS FOR NOTICES, OR ANY OTHER DEMAND OR CLAIM 

AGAINST CSA MUST BE IN WRITING DETAILING ALL SUCH ISSUES, AND SENT TO CSA VIA 

COURIER OR CERTIFIED MAIL, TO: 300 COMMERCE SQUARE BLVD., BURLINGTON, NEW 

JERSEY 08016 ATTN: CUSTOMER SERVICE, OR SENT BY EMAIL TO 

CUSTOMERCARE@CSA.CANON.COM; WITH A COPY OF ANY NOTICE OF DEFAULT, BREACH, 

REQUEST FOR INDEMNITY, OR ANY OTHER DEMAND OR CLAIM AGAINST CSA, SENT TO CSA 

VIA COURIER OR CERTIFIED MAIL, TO SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, LEGAL, CANON SOLUTIONS 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 114 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
General Terms 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 7 of 7 

AMERICA, INC., ONE CANON PARK, MELVILLE, NEW YORK, 11747, OR SENT BY EMAIL TO 

LEGAL@CSA.CANON.COM. 

 

19. PRIVACY. The CSA Privacy Statement describes the information we collect from you, either online 

through this website or any of the products, services, solutions, software, websites, subsites, interactive 

features, forms, mobile and social media pages offered, owned, or operated by CSA, or your interaction 

with CSA agents, contractors or employees or subsites, whether accessed online via computer, tablet, 

mobile device or any other technology or device now known or hereafter developed, or offline, and how 

that information will be used. The CSA Privacy Statement is provided at the link at the bottom of the 

Customer Contracting Portal, https://ess.csa.canon.com/customerdocuments; and shall govern as to 

the matters contained therein unless specifically modified by this Agreement. 

 

20. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither Party will be liable for any failure or delay in performing an obligation under 

this Agreement that is due to any of the following causes, to the extent beyond its reasonable control: 

acts of God, accident, riots, war, terrorist act, epidemic, pandemic (including the COVID-19 pandemic), 

quarantine, civil commotion, natural catastrophes, governmental acts or omissions, changes in laws or 

regulations, national strikes, fire, explosion, or a generalized lack of availability of Products and 

Services or parts and supplies therefore, raw materials or energy.  For the avoidance of doubt, Force 

Majeure shall not limit your obligation to make payment(s) for delivered Products or performed Services. 

Once causes for such Force Majeure are rectified and remedied, both Parties agree to resume 

performance of this Agreement. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 115 of 487

mailto:legal@csa.canon.com
https://ess.csa.canon.com/customerdocuments


Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider A 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 1 of 4 
 

RIDER A 

CANON OFFICE DEVICES AND CUT SHEET PRODUCTION MAINTENANCE TERMS 

THE GENERAL TERMS ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE.  THE TERMS OF THIS RIDER 

A SHALL CONTROL OVER THE GENERAL TERMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY STATED 
HEREIN. 

“Equipment” for purposes of this Rider A shall mean Canon branded office devices (and not Large Format 
equipment covered under Rider F nor printers covered under Rider E).  CSA may provide Maintenance and/or 

consumables for Non-Canon branded devices if so designated on the Order Schedule, and such devices shall 
be considered “Equipment” hereunder, otherwise they shall be provided by the manufacturer as set forth in 

their applicable documentation.   

1. MAINTENANCE / TERM / CHARGES.   

a. If Maintenance for Equipment is indicated on its Order Schedule, it shall mean that CSA will keep the 
Equipment in good working order subject to the terms of this Agreement. Maintenance shall include 

emergency break fix service, routine preventative maintenance, including inspection, adjustment, parts 
replacement, drums, and cleaning material required for proper Equipment operation. Maintenance shall start 

on the date (the “Start Date”) of installation for newly installed Equipment (inclusive of standard embedded 
Firmware) with consumables inclusive service. For newly installed Equipment under Equipment warranty and 
without consumables inclusive service, the Start Date shall be at the end of the relevant Equipment warranty 

or 90 days from installation, whichever comes first. The Start Date is stated on the Order Schedule for all 
previously placed Equipment. 

b. The initial term of Maintenance is set forth on the Order Schedule, and thereafter shall renew for successive 

12 month renewal terms unless either Party gives written notice of non-renewal at least 30 days prior to the 
expiration of the then-current term.  The renewal charges shall be reflected on the invoice for the first billing 
cycle of the renewal period.  If you do not agree to the change in renewal charges, you can reject the change 

by sending notice in accordance with Section 18 of the General Terms. Customer may, without penalty, cancel 
maintenance during any renewal period upon 30 days advance written notice to CSA. Once cancelled, CSA 

will cease all Maintenance at the end of the Term or renewal term, or the effective date of such cancellation, 
as applicable.  CSA does not provide refunds or credits for any partial terms, except as expressly stated on 

the Order Schedule. 

c. Unless otherwise set forth in an Order Schedule, Service Charges shall start billing and Customer shall 
start payment upon the completion of installation. Maintenance Base Charge(s) and Per Image Charge(s) as 
listed on the applicable Order Schedule (collectively "Service Charges") are billed for full calendar month 

periods, with Maintenance Base Charge(s) billed in advance and Per Image Charge(s) billed in arrears.  

d. The meter shall record a quantity of 1 image for each image printed on media sizes up to 13” x 19”, and 
two images for any larger media.  For Long Sheet images, defined as images printed on media longer than 
19”, there will be an additional Per Image Charge as set forth on the Order Schedule.  If you are making Long 
Sheet images and there is no such charge on the Order Schedule, CSA will invoice you for such charges at 
our standard rate and you agree to pay same.  For Equipment designated as Corporate Advantage, the meter 
shall record a quantity of 2 images for any image produced on media longer than 14”.  For devices containing 
more than 1 meter, you will be invoiced for the total number of images recorded on all meters at the interval 
(e.g. monthly, quarterly, etc.) and pricing indicated on the Order Schedule. 

e. If the Order Schedule is for a Fixed Price Plan charges shall not increase during the initial term, and if for a 
Standard Price Plan charges are subject to an annual increase up to 10% (as determined by CSA in its sole 
discretion) either (i) on each anniversary of the start date or (ii) once in each calendar year if you have selected 

the Aggregate Coverage Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing and for purposes of clarity, with respect to 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 116 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider A 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 2 of 4 
 

transactions where CFS invoices the Maintenance Base Charge, such annual increase shall be applied only 
to the Excess Per Image Charge and shall exclude the Maintenance Base Charge.   

f. Aggregate and Fleet Plans. If Aggregate plan is indicated in the Equipment Maintenance Information Section 

on an Order Schedule, the Maintenance Base Charge and the Covered Images listed on the first page of the 
Order Schedule apply to all of the Equipment on that Order Schedule, unless otherwise indicated. When Fleet 

Plan is indicated in the Equipment Maintenance Information Section on an Order Schedule, the Maintenance 
Base Charge and the Covered Images listed on the first page of the Order Schedule apply to all of the 

Equipment ordered on the current Schedule and other Order Schedules referencing Fleet plan for the 
Equipment. 

g. If the Listed Items on an Order Schedule are added to an existing Fleet Coverage Plan under a previous 
Order Schedule or contract between you and CSA, (i) the fleet shall include the equipment listed under the 

previous Order Schedule or contract, and all other Order Schedules or contracts for which the add to existing 
fleet option was selected, and (ii) the maintenance term for all Listed Items under this Agreement shall be the 

same as the maintenance term for all listed items under all such previous Order Schedules or contracts.  

h. If the Listed Items on an Order Schedule are added to an existing Aggregate Coverage Plan under a 
previous Order Schedule or contract between you and CSA, the Covered Images shall apply to all of the 

Equipment on the Order Schedule, unless otherwise indicated, plus the listed items under previous Order 
Schedule(s) or contract (s), and all other Order Schedules or contracts for which the add to existing Aggregate 
Coverage Plan was selected, on an aggregated basis, for so long as the maintenance term for all such listed 

items continues. 

i. If the Per Unit is indicated in the Equipment Maintenance Information Section on an Order Schedule, the 
Maintenance Base Charge and the Covered Images listed in each Section of the Order Schedule shall apply 

on a per unit basis for the Equipment listed in that Section. 

j. If image dependent service is selected, there shall be no Per Image Charges; however, the then-current 
term shall terminate at the end of the number of months specified on the Order Schedule or on the date when 

the images made exceed the maximum covered images specified on the Order Schedule, whichever event 
occurs sooner. 

k. Unless otherwise indicated in an Order Schedule, you authorize CSA to use networked features of the 

Equipment and remote reporting software (“Remote Reporting Agent”) to obtain meter readings, receive 
software updates, activate features/new licenses and transmit use and service data accumulated by the 
Equipment over your network by means of an HTTPS protocol and to store, analyze and use such data for 

purposes related to servicing the Equipment, providing reports and product improvement. You also authorize 
CSA to accept on your behalf, and you agree to comply with, any licenses, terms of use and services, and 

privacy statements, which, unless otherwise agreed in writing by CSA, shall solely control as to the matters 
contained therein, including those pertaining to any personal data you may have shared in connection with 
the use of the Remote Reporting Agent.   For example, CSA utilizes the Canon Universal Gateway 2 (“UGW2”) 

as a Remote Reporting Agent through the UGW2 website, and the above authorization shall apply to the 
UGW2 Terms of Use and Terms of Service, and the UGW2 Privacy Statement. 

2. CUSTOMER SATISFACTION POLICY. If you are not satisfied with the performance of your Equipment, 

upon your written request, CSA in its sole discretion will repair or replace the Equipment with a like unit with 
equivalent capabilities.  Prior to replacement, CSA shall have had the opportunity to return the Equipment 

to good working order in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  If a replacement unit of Equipment 
is provided, the replaced unit shall be removed from the Lease and the replacement unit shall be deemed 
a “Listed Item” under the Lease and for the Lease and all other purposes of this Agreement.  This policy 

shall pertain to Canon Brand Equipment only and shall apply for 3 years from the date of installation or for 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 117 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider A 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 3 of 4 
 

the initial term of any CFS Lease, if longer, provided you are not in default of this Agreement or the Lease 
and such Maintenance services have not been canceled or terminated. 

3. HOURS OF OPERATION AND ACCESS TO EQUIPMENT.  Maintenance shall be performed during 

CSA’s local regular business hours (8:30 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. Monday through Friday, excluding CSA 
holidays). Overtime charges, at CSA’s current rates, will be charged for all Maintenance service calls 

outside normal business hours.  You shall give CSA reasonable and safe access to the Equipment and 
CSA shall provide labor or routine, remedial and preventive Maintenance as well as remedial parts. CSA 

may terminate its Maintenance obligations for any Equipment you relocate to a site outside CSA’s service 
territory. 

4. ITEMS NOT COVERED UNDER MAINTENANCE. Any work beyond the scope of this Agreement shall 
be invoiced in accordance with CSA’s then current labor, parts and supply charges. The following items are 

NOT covered under Maintenance unless otherwise set forth in an Order Schedule: 

(a) all consumable supply items not provided as part of toner inclusive service, including, without 
limitation, paper, staples, other media, print heads and puncher dies; 

(b) repairs resulting from factors other than normal use including, without limitation, any willful 

act, negligence, abuse, accident, disaster (e.g., effects of water, wind, lightning, etc.) or 
misuse of the Equipment;  

(c) repairs due to the use of parts, supplies or software which are not supplied by CSA and which 

cause abnormally frequent service calls or service problems; 

(d) repairs to fix problems resulting from service performed by personnel other than CSA 
personnel;  

(e) repairs due to use of the Equipment with non-compatible hardware or software components; 

electrical power malfunction or heating, cooling or humidity ambient conditions;  

(f) de-installation, re-installation or relocation of Equipment;  

(g) repairs to or realignment of Equipment, and related training, necessitated by changes you 
made to your system configuration or network environment; 

(h) work which you request to be performed outside of CSA’s regular business hours; 

(i) repair of network/system connection device, except when listed on an Order Schedule; or 

(j) repairs due to the use of paper/media not in compliance with manufacturer’s published 
specifications. 

5. EXCESSIVE MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS. If, in CSA’s opinion, any Equipment cannot be 
maintained in good working order through Maintenance, CSA may, at its option, (i) substitute comparable 

Equipment or (ii) cancel any balance of the term of Maintenance as to such Equipment and refund the 
unearned portion of any prepaid charges hereunder. 

6. PARTS.  You disclaim any interest in parts or Equipment replaced or removed by CSA. Such parts and 

Equipment shall be replaced on an exchange basis and shall become the property of CSA. 

7. CONSUMABLE INCLUSIVE (INCLUDING TONER ABUSE).  Consumable Supplies: All consumables 
are the property of CSA until used. Consumables Inclusive Maintenance includes replenishment of toner 

only (unless other consumables are specified on the Order Schedule and applicable to the unit of 
Equipment). Toner is supplied for exclusive use with the unit of Equipment for which it is provided. CSA 
may terminate the Maintenance under this Agreement if you use the consumables in a different manner. If 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 118 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider A 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 4 of 4 
 

your use of consumables exceeds the typical use pattern (as determined solely by CSA) for these items by 
more than 10% of the published manufacturer specifications for conventional office image coverage, or 

should CSA, in its sole discretion, determine that consumables are being misused in any fashion, CSA may 
invoice you for such excess usage and you agree to pay for such improper or excess use. Consumable 

Inclusive Maintenance is predicated upon deployment of CSA’s Remote Reporting Agent (see Section 1.k 
above), which may include Auto-Toner Replenishment. CSA may charge you a Supply Freight Fee to cover 
the cost of shipping consumables to you. If expiration dates are indicated on your consumable containers, 

you shall use the oldest container(s) first. You shall bear all risk of loss, theft or damage to unused 
consumables, which shall remain CSA’s property and shall be returned promptly upon termination of 

Maintenance for the applicable unit of Equipment. 

8. BILLING / METER COLLECTION.   

a. You agree to provide timely meter readings to CSA and to comply with the billing procedures designated 
by CSA. If CSA does not receive timely meter readings from you, you agree to pay invoices that reflect 

CSA’s estimates of meter readings. CSA reserves the right to verify the accuracy of any meter readings 
from time to time, and to invoice you for any shortfall in the invoice for the next periodic billing cycle. In 

accordance CSA’s normal procedures and the meter read option selected.  

b. You agree that CSA shall be entitled to acquire meter readings using CSA’s Remote Reporting Agent, 
however if it does not communicate with CSA for any reason, you agree to timely provide manual meter 
readings. 

c. You may also use the myCSA website to provide meter readings, in which case you, your employees or 

agents shall complete CSA’s registration process governing access to and use of such website, and you 
agree to be bound by, and comply with its Terms of Use.  CSA may change your meter read options from 

time to time upon 60 days’ notice. 

9. FIRMWARE. For Equipment covered under Maintenance or an applicable warranty, CSA shall make 
available to you from time to time upgrades and bug fixes for the Firmware when provided by the manufacturer 

or developer.  Such upgrades and bug fixes shall be installed remotely as set forth in Section 1.k. however 
should the remote installation fail for any reason, or you require assistance from CSA, additional charges may 
apply.    

10. APPLICATION SOFTWARE AND SOFTWARE SUPPORT CONTRACTS. If you have acquired any 
application Software and/or Software Support Contracts, these Listed Items shall be governed by the terms 
and conditions of Rider C. 

11. DEFAULT.  In addition to the remedies set forth in the General Terms, should you default in your 

obligations under this Rider A or cancel Maintenance prior to the end of its initial term, you shall pay an 
early termination fee equal to three (3) times the average monthly billing to date and any excess toner 

charges for such Maintenance.  You agree that such charges are reasonable liquidated damages for loss 
of bargain and not a penalty. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 119 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider B 

Version 2.0, 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 1 of 2 
 

RIDER B 

TRADE-IN, RETURN, UPGRADE AND BUYOUT TERMS 

THE GENERAL TERMS ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE.  THE TERMS OF THIS RIDER 

B SHALL CONTROL OVER THE GENERAL TERMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY STATED 
HEREIN. 

For purposes of this Rider B: 

“Return Equipment” means equipment that CSA is picking up and returning to a leasing company. 

“Trade-In Equipment” means equipment owned by you, where you are conveying title to CSA upon CSA 

picking up the equipment. 

“Upgrade Equipment” means equipment on an active lease between you and CFS, where CSA is 
facilitating an early termination of such lease as a part of a new transaction on a related Order Schedule. 

each as designated on a Return Schedule.  

1.  BUY OUT REIMBURSEMENT: If “Buy-Out Reimbursement” is indicated on the applicable Return 

Schedule it will be paid directly to the designated party thereon (whether you or the finance or leasing 
company that owns the equipment listed on the Return Schedule (the “Lessor”)) by CSA upon installation 

and acceptance of the Listed Items set forth on the Order Schedule applicable thereto and payment to CSA 
(by you or by the Leasing Company) of the purchase price for said Listed Items. The Buy-Out 
Reimbursement will be paid for the sole purpose of reimbursement of early termination charges or fees and 

associated expenses payable for (a) early termination of the lease of the equipment (as identified on the 
applicable Return Schedule) or for other equipment being replaced by said Listed Items, (b) refinancing the 

lease of other equipment or (c) preparation of the site for installation of said Listed Items. You are 
responsible to obtain and/or confirm the Buy-Out Reimbursement amount with your Lessor, and any such 
amount shall include a delivery period of a minimum of thirty (30) days from the date of the installation and 

testing of said Listed Items and payment to CSA (by you or by the Leasing Company) of the purchase price 
for said Listed Items.  You acknowledge and agree that CSA’s financial obligation is limited to the Buy-Out 

Reimbursement amount on the applicable Return Schedule, and that you are responsible for any other 
obligations, including any charges which are not covered by the Buy-Out Reimbursement. The above is 
conditioned upon you making the Trade-In Equipment or Return Equipment available for pickup by CSA on 

the relevant date specified on the Return Schedule. 

2. RETURNING OF TRADE-IN EQUIPMENT, UPGRADE EQUIPMENT AND RETURN EQUIPMENT: If 
Trade-In Equipment, Upgrade Equipment or Return Equipment is indicated on a Return Schedule, you 

hereby authorize CSA in its sole and reasonable discretion, to either i.) pick up the Trade-in Equipment, 
Upgrade Equipment, or Return Equipment listed on the Return Schedule; or ii.) with respect to such 

equipment weighing fifty (50) pounds or less, provide you with appropriate packing materials and pre-paid 
postage so that you can ship the equipment back to CSA or the Leasing Company. Upon said pick-up or 
your shipping of the Trade-In Equipment , Upgrade Equipment, or Return Equipment to CSA or the Leasing 

Company as applicable, title to Trade-in Equipment  is conveyed to CSA, and you represent that CSA will 
receive good and marketable title to each unit of Trade-in Equipment, free and clear of any and all liens 

and leasehold interests. You further warrant that, (a) the Trade-In Equipment, Upgrade Equipment and 
Return Equipment  will be provided to CSA (unless specified on the Return Schedule that it is provided on 
an “As Is” basis) in good working condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted, and (b) you shall make it 

available for pickup by CSA on the relevant date specified on the Return Schedule. If you breach or fail to 
comply with any of the foregoing CSA may, and without limiting its other remedies under applicable law:  

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 120 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider B 

Version 2.0, 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 2 of 2 
 

a.) return the Trade-In Equipment, Upgrade Equipment, or Return Equipment to you (at your expense both 
for the return and the original pickup);  

b.) rescind, or require you to refund to CSA, promptly upon receipt of CSA’s invoice, the Buy-Out 

Reimbursement,   

c.) require you to refund to CSA the full amount of any trade-in or upgrade credit whether it’s reflected in 
the Return Schedule or not, and/or  

d.) require you to pay the fair market value of such Trade-In Equipment, Upgrade Equipment, or Return 

Equipment, as determined by CSA.  

Return Equipment and/or Upgrade Equipment, when indicated on a Return Schedule shall be shipped to 
the Lessor specified on the Return Schedule by CSA’s standard shipping method, and CSA’s sole obligation 

is to use commercially reasonable efforts to pick-up and remove the Return Equipment and/or Upgrade 
Equipment, and to arrange on your behalf and at CSA’s expense, for the shipment of the Return Equipment 

and/or Upgrade Equipment to the Lessor, or provide you with appropriate packing materials and pre-paid 
postage so that you can ship the Return Equipment and/or Upgrade Equipment back to CSA or the Lessor, 
as indicated on the Return Schedule. 

3. DELAY OR DAMAGE TO EQUIPMENT IN TRANSIT.  You acknowledge that neither CSA nor its shipper 
inspects functionality prior to transportation of Trade-in Equipment, Upgrade Equipment, or Return 
Equipment and therefore makes no representation regarding functionality upon delivery.  CSA shall only 

be responsible for obvious physical damage to the Trade-in Equipment, Upgrade Equipment, or Return 
Equipment while being relocated or returned to the Lessor to the extent such damage is caused by CSA or 

its shipper’s negligence or willful misconduct while in their possession. You agree to pay CSA’s removal 
charges if, on the date indicated on the Return Schedule, Trade-in Equipment, Upgrade Equipment, or 
Return Equipment is unavailable for pickup and removal through no fault of CSA. In the event undisclosed 

conditions (e.g. incorrect mileage, special rigging requirements, inaccessible location for pick up or delivery, 
etc.) are encountered, you agree that CSA may invoice you for additional reasonable fees as required to 

complete the relocation. 

4.  DATA. You acknowledge that the hard drive(s) on the Trade-in Equipment, Upgrade Equipment, or 
Return Equipment, including attached devices, may retain images, content or other data that you may store 

for purposes of normal operation of the Trade-in Equipment or Return Equipment (“TIR Data”). You 
acknowledge that CSA is not storing TIR Data on behalf of you and that exposure or access to the TIR 
Data by CSA, if any, is purely incidental to the services performed by CSA. Neither CSA nor any of their 

affiliates or contractors have an obligation to return, erase or overwrite TIR Data upon pick up and return 
of the Trade-in Equipment, Upgrade Equipment, or Return Equipment to CSA or any Lessor.  You are solely 

responsible for: (i) your compliance with applicable law and legal requirements pertaining to data privacy, 
storage, security, retention and protection; and (ii) all decisions related to erasing or overwriting TIR Data.  
The terms of this section shall solely govern as to TIR Data, notwithstanding that any provisions of this 

Agreement or any separate confidentiality or data security or other agreement now or hereafter entered 
into between you and CSA could be construed to apply to TIR Data. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 121 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider C 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 1 of 2 

RIDER C 

SOFTWARE AND SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION LICENSING AND SUPPORT 

THE GENERAL TERMS ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE.  THE TERMS OF THIS RIDER 

C SHALL CONTROL OVER THE GENERAL TERMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY STATED 
HEREIN.  

1.  DEFINITIONS AND INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. 

(a) “Software” for purposes of this Rider C shall mean application software licensed to you and any revisions 

for updates related thereto, and shall exclude Firmware which is subject to Rider A, and software provided 
with Large Format equipment which is subject to Rider F.  

(b) “Software Subscription” shall mean Software which is licensed to you on a subscription basis for a term 
and may include provision of basic support and updated versions, as set forth in the TOS, EULA or SMA.  

(c) “EULA” shall mean an end user license agreement, “TOS” shall mean the terms of service, and “SMA” 
shall mean a software maintenance or support agreement, each as applicable to the Software or Software 
Subscription. 

(d) The terms of the EULA, TOS and SMA can be found at http://ess.csa.canon.com/SMA-EULA.html, and 

any such terms shall solely govern as to matters contained therein except as otherwise specifically set forth 
in this Rider C, and you agree to comply with such terms. The period of time such EULA, SMA or TOS shall 

apply (“Term”) is set forth in the applicable Order Schedule. 

2.  LICENSING. (a) Title to the Software and Software Subscription shall remain with the licensor or 
developer; and (b) Software shall be licensed to you subject to its EULA, and a Software Subscription shall 

be licensed to you subject to its EULA or TOS.  With regard to any “shrink-wrap” or “click-wrap” or “click 
through” acceptance required for Software or a Software Subscription, you hereby authorize CSA to accept 
same on your behalf (e.g., by opening the package or clicking the “I ACCEPT” button), and you agree to 

comply with the terms of same.  

3. SOFTWARE AND SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION 
SERVICES.  Installation and configuration services for Software and Software Subscriptions shall be provided 

pursuant to a statement of work or project work order between you and CSA or you and the Software 
developer or licensor. 

4. SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION. You agree to accept and pay either the purchase price or the 

number of periodic payments for the Software Subscription indicated on the Order Schedule or in any 
addendum(s) hereto for the corresponding term. The purchase price for the Software Subscription may be 
incorporated into your Lease payment. You acknowledge that CSA may assign the periodic payments to a 

third party, or its assigns, and agree to pay such assignees.   

5. SOFTWARE SUPPORT AND SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION / BUG FIXES / UPDATES.  When 
indicated on an Order Schedule, support for Software and Software Subscriptions is provided directly by the 

respective developers or licensors thereof and is as set forth in each developer’s or licensor’s applicable 
SMA or TOS for the term set forth in the Order Schedule.   

6. RENEWAL OF SMAS AND SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTIONS.  SMAs and Software Subscriptions 

shall automatically renew for additional one (1) year terms (each a “Renewal Term”) unless you provide 
written notice to CSA cancelling the Software Support Contract or SMA within 90 days but no less than 30 
days of the end of the Term or the Renewal Term.  SUCH WRITTEN NOTICE MUST BE SENT TO CSA 

VIA COURIER OR CERTIFIED MAIL, TO: ONE CANON PARK, MELVILLE, NY 11747 ATTN: MARKETING 
OPERATIONS, SOFTWARE LICENSE DESK, OR SENT BY EMAIL TO 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 122 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider C 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 2 of 2 

SOFTWARE_LICENSE_DESK@CSA.CANON.COM. CSA may increase pricing during each Renewal Term 
and may cancel Software Subscriptions and SMAs during any Renewal Term upon written notice to you, in 

which case you will be refunded any unearned charges for the balance of the Renewal Term.  Otherwise, 
CSA does not provide refunds or credits for any partial terms, except as expressly stated on the applicable 

Order Schedule. 

6. DEFAULT.  In the event of your default under this Rider C or if you cancel a Software 
Subscription(s) or SMA(s) prior to the end of their respective Term or Renewal Term, CSA may, without 

limiting its other rights and remedies available under applicable law, require you to pay all amounts then 
due but unpaid, including any applicable late charges, plus an early termination fee equal to the balance of 
the purchase price or periodic payments. You agree that such charges are reasonable liquidated damages 

for loss of bargain and not a penalty.  The purchase price for the Software or Software Subscription may 
be incorporated into your Lease payment. You acknowledge that CSA may assign periodic payments to a 

third party, or its assigns, and agree to pay such assignees.  

7. ADDITIONAL LIMITATION OF WARRANTY FOR SOFTWARE AND SOFTWARE 
SUBSCRIPTION. CSA MAKES NO WARRANTIES OF DATA ACCURACY, SYSTEM INTEGRATION OR 

FITNESS FOR USE AND TAKES ABSOLUTELY NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FUNCTION OR 
DEFECTIVE NATURE OF SOFTWARE OR SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND 
AGREE THAT YOU SHALL LOOK SOLELY TO THE ENTITY LICENSING OR SUPPORTING THE 

SOFTWARE OR SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION AS TO ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION ARISING 
FROM THE SOFTWARE, SOFTWARE SUPPORT CONTRACT, OR THE SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION, 

AND THAT CSA, UNLESS IT IS SUCH ENTITY, SHALL HAVE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY 
THEREFORE, AND YOU WAIVE YOUR RIGHTS TO BRING ANY SUCH CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION 
AGAINST CSA.  YOUR PAYMENTS AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL IN 

NO WAY BE DIMINISHED ON ACCOUNT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THE SOFTWARE 
SUPPORT CONTRACT OR SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION, OR FAILURE IN ANY WAY OF THE 

SOFTWARE OR SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION.  

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 123 of 487

mailto:SOFTWARE_LICENSE_DESK@CSA.CANON.COM


Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider D 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)  Page 1 of 2 
 

RIDER D 
SUBSCRIPTION SUPPORT SERVICES 

 
THE GENERAL TERMS ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE.  THE TERMS OF THIS 

RIDER D SHALL CONTROL OVER THE GENERAL TERMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY 
STATED HEREIN. 

 

1. Services. When indicated on an Order Schedule referencing this Rider D, CSA will provide to you 
Subscription Support Services (“Subscription Support Services”) listed in Section 3 below consisting of a) 

remote support and b) on-site support for CANON and select third party software and hardware solutions. 
Subscription Support Services will be provided by CSA at the applicable Resource Level (as detailed in 

Section 3 below) based upon your resource selection or description of the scope of work to be performed. 
Subscription Support Services will be provided during CSA’s local regular business hours (8:30 A.M - 5:00 
P.M. Monday through Friday, excluding CSA holidays). Any work approved by CSA to be scheduled beyond 

these hours will be billed at a premium rate. 
 

2. Term. The term of Subscription Support Services (the “Subscription Term”) shall continue until the 
earlier of (a) the units of Subscription Support Services specified on an Order Schedule (“Units”) are 
consumed or (b) for either the number of months indicated on an Order Schedule beginning on the Order 

Date, or the end of the term of the applicable CFS Lease.  
 

3. Effective Rates. Subscription Support Service Units are available to you based upon the Resource 

Level utilized to perform the Subscription Support Services:       

 

Resource Level Units Per Hour Min Hours per Engagement 

National Consulting and Support (“NCS”) Engineers 5 10 

Production Analyst 4 8 

Project Management Specialist 4 4 

Software Development Specialist 4 4 

Local Systems Analyst 3 1 

Local Systems Engineer 3 1 

Solutions Support Center Agent 3 1 

Product Trainer 2 1* 

* Subject to Course minimum requirements if applicable 

4. Utilization Procedure. Subscription Support Services will be provided during the Subscription 
Term when requested by you through the CSA service dispatch center. CSA will determine the appropriate 

Resource Level(s) to be assigned based on your resource selection or description of the requested 
Subscription Support Services. CSA reserves the right to reject any request by you if CSA determines that 

such request is for work beyond the scope of the Subscription Support Services covered by this Agreement 
or the Resource Levels acquired and available from an Order Schedule. Units unused upon the expiration 
of the Subscription Term on an Order Schedule are non-refundable. If Subscription Support Service 

requested by you, or completion of ongoing Subscription Support Services, will require Units in excess of 
the unused quantity available from the applicable Order Schedule, CSA shall notify you in advance of 

completing the work and you shall instruct CSA to end work or you shall agree to pay for those additional 
Units at CSA’s then prevailing rates. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 124 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider D 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)  Page 2 of 2 
 

5. Performance of Subscription Support Services. Subscription Support Services may be 
performed by remote access, or by CSA, or its designee at your business locations if located within CSA’s 

servicing area. If by remote access, you grant CSA permission to access your systems as required to 
perform the Subscription Support Services. If on-site at your premises, (a) such personnel shall comply 

with your reasonable security and other such policies of which CSA has been informed by you in writing; 
and (b) you will provide such personnel with appropriate workspace at no charge. In either event (a) you 
will provide assistance as may be reasonably required for the performance of the Subscription Support 

Services; and (b) you acknowledge that the performance by CSA of Subscription Support Services with 
respect to any non-CANON hardware or software may be dependent on assistance or cooperation from 

the third–party manufacturer or developer, including your requirement(s) to purchase any necessary 
software upgrades or licenses to operate the software. 

6. Payment. 

(a) Unless the “Bill with my Lease Payment” option is selected on the Subscription Support 

Services Order Schedule, the total purchase price specified on the Order Schedule is payable in full and in 
advance within no later than 30 days after the date of CSA’s invoice therefore, and CSA shall have no 

obligation to provide any Subscription Services until such payment has been made.  

(b) If the “Finance through my Lease” option is selected on the Subscription Support Services 
Order Schedule, the total purchase price specified on the Subscription Support Services Order Schedule 
shall be financed by the Leasing Company through the applicable Lease, as provided herein, over the initial 

term of the applicable lease. 

7. Non-Solicitation. Throughout the Term and for one (1) year following the expiration or termination 
thereof, you agree that you will not, directly or through any third party, solicit, offer employment to, hire, 

interfere with or endeavor to entice away from CSA any individual who is an employee of CSA and who, at 
any time during the Term, was involved in providing Subscription Support Services to you hereunder. You 

further agree, with respect to any former employee of CSA who was involved in providing Subscription 
Support Services to you hereunder, that you will not, directly or through any third party, solicit, offer 
employment to or hire such former CSA employee at any time during the one (1) year period after he or 

she ceases to be an employee of CSA.  

8. ADDITIONAL LIMITATION OF WARRANTY AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CSA WARRANTS 
THAT IT WILL PERFORM SUBSCRIPTION SUPPORT SERVICES HEREUNDER IN A PROFESSIONAL 

AND COMPETENT MANNER CONSISTENT WITH THE RESOURCE LEVEL UTILIZED. OTHERWISE, 
CSA MAKES NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY 

WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT 
TO THE SUBSCRIPTION SUPPORT SERVICES. IN NO EVENT SHALL CSA’S LIABILITY TO YOU 
HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SUBSCRIPTION SUPPORT SERVICES EXCEED THE 

AGGREGATE AMOUNT PAID BY YOU TO CSA PURSUANT TO THIS RIDER. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 125 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider E 

Version 2.0, Dated 3-1-22 (Replaces all prior versions)  Page 1 of 6 

 
RIDER E 

MANAGED PRINT SERVICES 
THE GENERAL TERMS ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE.  THE TERMS OF THIS RIDER 
E (“Rider E”) SHALL CONTROL OVER THE GENERAL TERMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY 
STATED HEREIN. 
 
1. DEFINITIONS.  For purposes of this Rider E:  

“MPS” shall mean the managed print services provided by CSA for Covered Printers pursuant to this 
Rider E, the General Terms applicable to this Rider E, the Customer Expectation Document and the 
Assessment and Licensing Agreement for MPS Services (“Assessment Agreement”), and all MPS 
Schedules and Fleet Exhibits issued hereunder. 

“Printer” shall mean a desktop office machine designed to print text or pictures onto paper. 

“Covered Printer” shall mean a Printer for which CSA agrees to provide MPS, which shall be listed on 
an applicable Fleet Exhibit and shall be deemed to be “Equipment” under the General Terms. 

“MPS Schedule” shall mean the order form for MPS issued by CSA and executed by you.  

“Fleet Exhibit” shall mean collectively Exhibit A (for Covered Printers receiving Premier Service), Exhibit 
A-MICR (for Covered Printers using MICR toner and receiving Premier Service), or Exhibit B (for 
Covered Printers receiving Standard Service).    

“Fleet Adjustment Form” shall mean the form issued by CSA and executed by you to add or remove 
Covered Printers to or from the appliable Fleet Exhibit. 

“Standard Service” shall mean MPS provided under the Standard Plan which solely includes provision 
of Toner Cartridges and monitoring services for those Covered Printers. 

“Premier Services” shall mean MPS provided under the Premier Plan as described in Section 8 hereof. 

“Maintenance Consumables” shall mean items provided by CSA to you to maintain a Covered Printer 
including maintenance kits, fuser kits, transfer belts, and drums, but excludes toner cartridges. 

“Toner Cartridges” shall mean the toner provided by CSA specifically for a Covered Printer. 

“Consumables” shall mean Maintenance Consumables and Toner Cartridges. 

“DCA” shall mean the data collection agent as described in Section 5.d. hereof.   

“Effective Date” shall mean the date the initial MPS Schedule is executed by you.  

“Start Date” shall mean the date a Covered Printer is added to a Fleet Exhibit. 

“Initial Term” shall mean the term of MPS set forth in the applicable MPS Schedule. 

“Term” shall mean the Initial Term plus any extension or renewal thereof.   

 
2. COMMENCEMENT/RENEWAL. You shall execute an MPS Schedule(s) issued by CSA which shall 

include an estimate of your Printer models and quantity of same, and the pricing based thereon.   Upon 
your execution of an MPS Schedule, the Parties shall work in good faith to determine which Printers 
shall become Covered Printers in accordance with the terms of MPS.  If the quantity and make up of 
models of Covered Printers changes during the Term from the original quantity and models listed on 
the MPS Schedule, CSA reserves the right to adjust the pricing accordingly.  Covered Printers shall be 
listed on Exhibit A (for Covered Printers receiving Premier Service), Exhibit A-MICR (for Covered 
Printers using MICR toner and receiving Premier Service), or Exhibit B (for Covered Printers receiving 
Standard Service). Covered Printers shall be added and removed from the Fleet Exhibits pursuant to 
a Fleet Adjustment Form. A configuration page shall accompany all Covered Printers at the time they 
are added to the applicable Fleet Exhibit.  Charges for a Covered Printer shall commence on the Start 
Date.  MPS shall continue for the Initial Term.  Upon mutual execution of an addendum to the applicable 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 126 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider E 

Version 2.0, Dated 3-1-22 (Replaces all prior versions)  Page 2 of 6 

MPS Schedule prior to expiration of the Initial Term, MPS shall be extended for an additional term as 
noted on the applicable addendum. 

 
3. CHARGES. Base charges shall be billed in advance and per image charges shall be billed in arrears 

on a quarterly basis. Invoices shall be due and payable within thirty days of the invoice date. Applicable 
taxes and non-standard shipping fees shall be added to the charges. CSA reserves the right to increase 
the prices listed on any MPS Schedule and the Fleet Exhibit(s) thereto at any time during the Term to 
reflect increased costs upon thirty (30) days written notice to you. Upon expiration of the Initial Term, 
charges shall be subject to an increase. If the Fleet Coverage Plan is selected on an MPS Schedule, 
the Base Charge, Covered Images and Per Image Charges noted on that MPS Schedule or 
corresponding Fleet Exhibit thereto shall apply to all of the Covered Printers on the MPS Schedule.  If 
the Per Unit Coverage Plan is selected on an MPS Schedule, the Base Charge, Covered Images and 
the Per Image Charges for each Covered Printer thereon shall be reflected on the MPS Schedule or 
Fleet Exhibit thereto.   

 
4.  ASSESSMENT.  

a. Assessment Agreement. Subject to a separate Assessment Agreement (“Assessment Agreement”) 
which shall be provided to you when you download the DCA, CSA either shall perform, or has 
performed, a network and system discovery analysis of your IT environment for which MPS are to 
be rendered. Pursuant to the Assessment Agreement, CSA has used the DCA to identify the 
components and conditions of your IT environment.  CSA may perform an initial walkthrough of your 
location(s) covered under MPS, in which case you shall identify each networked and non-networked 
Printer to be covered under an MPS Schedule. 

b. Missing Printers. You are solely responsible for discovering and identifying the required information 
for all Printers to be covered under an MPS Schedule.  Although the DCA may help discover Printers 
based on detection of activity, idle Printers and Printers with no network connection may not be 
detected during this discovery process.  In the event you identify additional Printers which were 
excluded from the Fleet Exhibits, additional Printers can be added pursuant to the requirements of 
MPS using a Fleet Adjustment Form or submitting such request on-line within the myCSA website, 
along with a printed configuration page for each Printer added. The ending meter reading on the 
configuration page for each Covered Printer will be the start reading for MPS for such Covered 
Printer.  If a previously unused Printer is added to a Fleet Exhibit, the start reading will zero.  If you 
call for MPS or Consumables for Printers that are not Covered Printers, you will be informed such 
Printer is not covered since it does not appear in the CSA system. 
 

5. COVERED PRINTERS. Covered Printers shall be added to the appliable Fleet Exhibit as follows:   

a. Fit for Service. Each Printer must meet the following Fit for Service (“Fit for Service”) requirements 
to become a Covered Printer:  

Prior to the start of a Printer being added to a Fleet Exhibit the following must be confirmed: 
i. Each Printer must have a minimum of 25% toner remaining in the cartridge. 
ii. Each Printer must have a minimum of 25% life remaining for other consumable maintenance 

items (fuser kit, maintenance kit, drums, transfer kit, etc.). 
iii. Any Printer displaying a service or supplies alert (error codes, low consumables, etc.) or 

demonstrating a technical or performance issue (regardless of alert status) must have the 
condition corrected. 

iv. Any Printer with an image quality issue must have the condition corrected. 

Any Covered Printer inadvertently placed on a Fleet Exhibit that does not meet the Fit for Service 
requirements must have the issues promptly remediated or the Covered Printer shall be removed 
from the Fleet Exhibit and MPS will no longer be provided for that Printer. You may contact CSA 
Customer Service to purchase the required Consumables and/or request a service call to 
remediate technical issues, so the Printer can qualify as a Covered Printer and added to the 
appropriate Fleet Exhibit.  

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 127 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider E 

Version 2.0, Dated 3-1-22 (Replaces all prior versions)  Page 3 of 6 

 
b. Standard Plan and Premier Plans. CSA intends to provide MPS for your entire fleet of Printers, 

however certain models of Printers may not be eligible for Premier Services due to age, geographic 
location or other reasons determined by CSA. At CSA’s discretion, Printers ineligible for Premier 
Services may be eligible for Standard Services and shall only receive toner cartridges and 
monitoring services. Each Covered Printer receiving Standard Services will be identified on Exhibit 
B.  Premier Services are set forth in Section 8, which apply to the Covered Printers identified on 
Exhibit A or Exhibit A -MICR. The Parties may agree to add or remove Covered Printers from time 
to time during the Term through the use of the Fleet Adjustment Form.    

c. Configuration and Meter Reads. You shall provide CSA with a standard device configuration sheet 
showing the start meter reading for the Printer(s) when added to a Fleet Exhibit.   Otherwise, CSA 
may compute a start reading for the Printer(s) utilizing the current meter reading and subtracting 
an estimated monthly volume per printer, as determined by CSA. CSA shall automatically collect 
periodic meter readings from the Covered Printers using the DCA. If CSA does not receive timely 
meter readings from the DCA or alternatively from you through other means of communication, 
CSA will estimate the usage on Covered Printers utilizing predetermined average monthly volume 
information, which are based on CSA standard usage rates by model. 

d. Installation of DCA Software. CSA will work with your IT staff to perform the initial installation of the 
DCA for networked Printers. CSA will provide all technical support, updates and maintenance for the 
DCA. The DCA is initially installed on your network for connectivity to networked Printers.  A local 
DCA program must be installed on individual networked computers in order to communicate with 
non-networked Printers.  In CSA’s sole discretion, CSA may assist your IT staff to push the local 
client version of the DCA software for use with any non-networked Printers.  It is your responsibility 
to keep the DCA installed during the Term, including any reinstallation that may be required as a 
result of a change in your infrastructure or environment, such as when upgrading, replacing or 
repairing related computers or networks. 

e. Asset Tagging. Each Covered Printer may be tagged with a CSA service tag by a CSA 
representative.  The tag shall include information identifying a Covered Printer, such as the serial 
# of the printer, the phone # for service and supplies and other relevant information.  The tag should 
not be removed from the Covered Printer during the Term.   CSA may mail tags to you for placement 
on the Covered Printers for additions or remote locations. 

f. Changes. Additions or deletions to Covered Printers on a Fleet Exhibit are made by executing a 
Fleet Adjustment Form indicating the pertinent information on the specific Printers added or 
Covered Printers removed from the applicable Fleet Exhibit, or submitting such request on-line 
within the myCSA website.  You must provide a printed configuration page from each added Printer 
or removed Covered Printer.   Changes to the types and quantities of Covered Printers used to 
calculate pricing on the MPS Schedule may impact the Base Charge, Covered Images and Per 
Image Charges reflected on an MPS Schedule or the related Fleet Exhibits on a prospective basis. 

g. Unused Consumables. “Unused Consumables” are defined as the original items shipped to you, 
which: 

i. were provided to the you by CSA 
ii. are in the original box, which is unopened and undamaged 
iii. the contents are sealed and undamaged 
iv. are deemed resalable, in CSA’s sole discretion  

h. Return of Unused Consumables and Restocking Fee. At the expiration or cancellation of the Term, 
or a significant reduction or change in the number and types of Covered Printers, you shall return 
all Unused Consumables as instructed by CSA at your expense to CSA within thirty (30) days.  
CSA may invoice you for any missing Unused Consumables at is standard retail price, and you 
agree to timely pay for same. A restocking fee of fifteen percent (15%) of CSA’s standard retail 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 128 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider E 

Version 2.0, Dated 3-1-22 (Replaces all prior versions)  Page 4 of 6 

price shall be charged for all Unused Consumables returned to CSA, unless the returned Unused 
Consumable is deemed defective or a restocking fee is prohibited by law.  

i. Shipping Fees. All Consumables will be shipped via UPS Ground or similar service from other 
carriers (standard shipping method).  Charges for each shipment shall be your responsibility and 
will be billed accordingly. “Shipment” is defined as each delivery (regardless of carrier) with a unique 
transaction ID.  You may also request shipments to be delivered via non-standard shipping methods 
including, but not limited to: rush, messenger service, overnight, etc.  Non-standard shipping will be 
billed at a premium rate and shall be your responsibility.   

j. Consumables Availability. CSA shall use commercially reasonable efforts to procure Consumables 
for the Covered Printers.  Covered Printers are provided replenishment of Original Equipment 
Manufacturer (“OEM”) or 3rd party manufactured Toner Cartridges, as indicated on the applicable 
MPS Schedule, for exclusive use with the Printers specified on the related Fleet Exhibit.  In the event 
OEM Toner Cartridges are no longer readily available (for any reason including discontinued by the 
manufacturer, restricted distribution, exhausted inventory, etc.) CSA shall, at its option, either (i) 
substitute OEM cartridges with compatible (3rd party) toner cartridges; (ii) substitute comparable 
printer(s) at your expense; or (iii) cancel the balance of any remaining term of the MPS contract for the 
affected Covered Printer(s) and refund the unearned portion of any prepaid charges associated with 
the affected Covered Printers.  Maintenance Consumables may be OEM or manufactured by third 
parties, and if no longer available for any reason as set forth above, CSA shall have the option of (ii) 
or (iii) herein at its sole option.  You shall bear all risk of loss for Consumables. 
 

6. YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES. As a condition precedent to CSA’s duties, You agree to comply with the 
terms of MPS herein, including but not limited to: 

a.  The Printers shall meet the “Fit for Service” requirements outlined in Section 5.a. above and shall 
be in good working condition on the Start Date (as determined solely by CSA in its reasonable 
discretion.) 

b. You shall provide CSA with an accurate location and printed configuration page for each Covered 
Printer placed on a Fleet Exhibit. You shall notify CSA if you relocate any Printers from the address 
indicated on the Fleet Exhibits.  

c. You shall use only CSA approved parts and supplies for the Covered Printers. 

d. You shall have proper electrical and network connections and install and use CSA approved surge 
protector(s). 

e.  You shall provide a key operator responsible for designated duties in the operator’s manual and 
ensure that the proper Consumables are being installed and/or used correctly with the Covered 
Printers (“Key Operator”). 

f. You are solely responsible for security of your electronic and other data. 

g.  You must install and keep the DCA installed on your network for networked Covered Printers and 
locally for non-networked Covered Printers throughout the Term.  If the DCA does not communicate 
with CSA for any reason, you agree to timely provide manual meter readings. 

h. You agree that CSA may use estimated meter readings if it does not receive timely meter reading(s) 
for any Covered Printer(s) for invoicing purposes, which you agree to pay.  

i. You shall utilize the Fleet Adjustment Form for adding Printers to, or deleting Covered Printers from 
the Fleet Exhibits. 

j.  You acknowledge that CSA will only provide MPS for Covered Printers, and you will only use 
Consumables in and for the Covered Printer for which they were ordered.  

k.  You acknowledge that CSA’s ability to deliver the services is dependent upon your full and timely 
cooperation with CSA, as well as the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by you 
to CSA. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 129 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider E 

Version 2.0, Dated 3-1-22 (Replaces all prior versions)  Page 5 of 6 

l.   If you relocates any Covered Printers, you must promptly notify CSA to ensure location information 
is accurate.  You are responsible for de-installing and reinstalling all relocated Covered Printers 
including installation of the DCA in order to keep the Covered Printers communicating with CSA.  
Covered Printers relocated outside of CSA’s servicing territory may not be eligible to continue to be 
a Covered Printer. 

j. The Customer Expectations Document and Assessment Agreement found at 
https://ess.csa.canon.com/customerdocuments. 

7. TONER CARTRIDGES AND RECONCILIATION 

a.  MPS pricing and included Toner Cartridges is based upon 5% toner coverage for black & white and 
20% for color letter size pages. You agree that CSA may invoice you for excess usage in the event 
your actual toner usage exceeds these assumptions by more than 10%. Excess toner charges shall 
be computed using the Expected Print Volume (“EPV”) minus the actual print volume reported. The 
EPV = actual number of cartridges shipped x the toner yield per cartridge x 90%. 

b.  You shall bear all risk of loss, theft or damage to Toner Cartridges, which shall remain CSA’s property 
and any Unused Toner Cartridges shall be returned promptly as set forth in Section 5.h. above.  

c.   If, during the first three (3) months of the initial term of any MPS Schedule, the assumptions used to 
develop the pricing and any related statement of work are found to be incorrect or misstated, the 
Parties agree to meet and in good faith negotiate equitable changes in the scope of work and 
associated charges.   

8. PREMIER SERVICES. YOU SHALL RECEIVE THE SERVICES DESCRIBED IN THIS PARAGRAPH 8 
ONLY FOR THE COVERED PRINTERS LISTED ON EXHIBIT A OR EXHIBIT A MICR. SUCH SERVICES 
ARE SUBJECT TO THE EXCLUSIONS HERINAFTER DESCRIBED.   
 
8.1  COVERED SERVICES.  
 

a. CSA shall provide all routine preventive maintenance, maintenance kits and emergency service 
necessary to keep the Covered Printers in good working order in accordance with MPS  and CSA’s 
normal practice. Such service shall be performed during CSA’s local regular business hours (8:30 A.M. 
to 5:00 P.M. Monday through Friday, except holidays). 

b. You shall afford CSA full, free and safe access to the Covered Printers to perform on-site service. CSA 
may terminate its maintenance obligations as to any Covered Printers if you relocate it to a site outside 
CSA’s authorized service territory. If, in CSA’s opinion, any Covered Printers cannot be maintained in 
good working order through CSA’s routine maintenance services, CSA shall, at its option, either (i) 
substitute comparable Printers at your expense or (ii) cancel the balance of any remaining term of the 
applicable MPS Schedule as to such Covered Printers and refund the unearned portion of any prepaid 
charges hereunder. Parts replaced or removed by CSA in connection with MPS shall become the 
property of CSA and you disclaim any interest therein. 

 
8.2  NON-COVERED SERVICE.  You acknowledge that CSA shall not have obligations for the Covered 
Printers related to: i) overhauls and/or reconditioning; ii) user errors; (iii) the alteration, modification or 
customization of any software controlling, used by, installed on or embedded in the Covered Printers; (iv) the 
service or repair of devices, accessories, power, data or communication lines or other instruments which are 
external to or otherwise not a component part of the Covered Printers; (v) data erasure or hard drive removal 
or (vi) supplying external communications or data transfer lines, paper or other throughput, staples, cassettes, 
exit trays or other like items or supplies (other than CSA providing Consumables) used or consumed in the 
normal operations of the Covered Printers (“Excluded Items”). The following services, and any other work 
beyond the scope of MPS, shall be invoiced in accordance with CSA’s then current labor, parts and supply 
charges: (a) replacement of any Maintenance Consumables, (b) repairs necessitated by factors other than 
normal use including, without limitation, any willful act, negligence, abuse or misuse of the Covered Printers; 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 130 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider E 

Version 2.0, Dated 3-1-22 (Replaces all prior versions)  Page 6 of 6 

the use of parts, supplies or software which are not supplied by CSA and which cause abnormally frequent 
service calls or service problems; service performed by personnel other than CSA personnel; transportation 
of the Covered Printers; accident; use of the Covered Printers with non-compatible hardware or software 
components; electrical power malfunction or heating, cooling or humidity ambient conditions; (c) re-installation 
or relocation of Covered Printers; (d) repairs to or realignment of Covered Printers, and related training, 
necessitated by changes you made to your system configuration or network environment; (e) repairs or 
service required as a result of inadequate operation of the Covered Printers (e.g., CSA technician is 
dispatched to rectify a problem described in the operator manual); (f) work which you request to be performed 
outside of CSA’s regular business hours. 
 
9. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSION OF WARRANTIES. CSA EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE RELATING TO THE USE OR PERFORMANCE OF THE COVERED 
PRINTERS AND SOFTWARE (INCLUDING THE DCA OR ANY METER READ COLLECTION METHOD 
PROVIDED BY CSA). YOU EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE FURNISHING OF MPS DOES NOT 
ASSURE UNINTERRUPTED OPERATION AND USE OF THE COVERED PRINTERS, SOFTWARE, 
INCLUDING THE DCA OR OTHER METER COLLECTION METHODS.  
 
10. TERMINATION. Should you terminate any MPS Schedule in whole or in part prior to the expiration of the 
Term other than for a material, uncured breach by CSA, and any terminated Covered Printer is not replaced 
with a device provided by CSA, you shall immediately pay to CSA all charges then due but unpaid, including 
any applicable late charges, plus an early termination fee equal to three (3) times the average monthly billing 
to date and any excess toner charges as set forth in Section 7 hereof. You agree that such charges are 
reasonable liquidated damages for loss of bargain and not a penalty.  Early termination charges are due in 
full immediately with the written termination notice, and are intended as a reasonable estimate of the 
anticipated damages to CSA arising from set-up, personnel training, parts, labor, and similar costs. Your 
termination will not be effective until the early termination fee and any excess toner charges are paid in full. 
Any rights or remedies of either Party existing prior to or as of the date of termination, such as for 
compensation, shall survive any termination or expiration of any MPS Schedule. You shall promptly return 
any Covered Printers, software or Consumables owned, controlled or licensed by CSA.  
 
11. MISCELLANEOUS. MPS shall be binding upon you when you execute the initial MPS Schedule, and 
shall be binding upon CSA upon commencement of MPS. MPS contains the complete agreement between 
the Parties with regard to MPS and shall, as of the Effective Date thereof, supersede all other agreements, if 
any, between the Parties relating to the MPS.  The Parties stipulate that neither of them has made any 
representation with respect to the subject matter of MPS or the execution and delivery hereof except such 
representation as are specifically set forth herein. MPS shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 
successors and permitted assigns of the respective Parties. Headings are for convenience only and shall not 
be considered in the interpretation of MPS.  
 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 131 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 1 of 15 

RIDER F 

LARGE FORMAT TERMS  

THE GENERAL TERMS ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE.  THE TERMS OF THIS 

RIDER F SHALL CONTROL OVER THE GENERAL TERMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY 
STATED HEREIN. 

“Consumables” for purposes of this Rider F shall mean toner, developer, and/or inks. 

“Equipment” for purposes of this Rider F shall mean, and only apply to Large Format models as identified 

in the definition of Large Format below.   

“Software” for purposes of this Rider F shall mean, and only apply to software provided for use with or by 
Large Format models as identified in the definition of Large Format below.   

“Large Format” for the purposes of this Rider F shall mean PlotWave, ColorWave, imagePROGRAF, 

Arizona, and Colorado Series hardware, software and accessories. 

1.0 LARGE FORMAT MAINTENANCE / TERM / CHARGES. 
 

a) Maintenance, identified as “Standard Svc Contract” in the “Service Type” section of an Order 
Schedule when applicable, shall commence upon installation of the Equipment or, if Maintenance 
is not requested at the time of initial installation, upon certification by CSA, or, at the conclusion of 

the warranty period, if any, as noted on an Order Schedule.  Maintenance will be provided as is 
specifically set forth in the applicable Order Schedule.  

 
b) The Order Schedule shall identify the initial Maintenance term when elected and customer may not 

terminate Maintenance during the initial term.  Maintenance shall be automatically renewed for 

successive one (1) year terms at CSA’s then-current charges and under the terms and conditions 
herein unless either party gives the other written notice of its intent not to renew at least thirty (30) 

days prior to the expiration of any initial or renewal term.  If the Order Schedule indicates that 
Maintenance is provided with a Fixed Price Plan, charges for Maintenance shall not increase during 
the initial term; and if an Order Schedule indicates that Maintenance is provided with a Standard 

Price Plan, charges for Maintenance, or any component thereof, including supplies and other 
materials, are subject to an annual increase of up to ten percent (10%) per year as determined by 

CSA in its sole discretion.  Upon renewal and upon 90 days written notice, charges are subject to 
an annual increase on each anniversary of the start date.   

 
c) (i) For the period from the Effective Date to the date that monthly (or quarterly) billing commences 

for the initial Base Charge Per Unit as set forth on the applicable Order Schedule ("Interim Period"), 

Customer shall pay CSA an amount equal to the Base Charge Per Unit  divided by thirty (30), or if 
Maintenance Payment frequency is quarterly divided by ninety (90) and multiplied by the number 

of days in the Interim Period plus Excess Usage Charges (“Excess Usage Charges”). CSA shall 
invoice the Base Charge Per Unit in advance and shall invoice the Excess Usage Charges and 
other usage fees (collectively "Maintenance Service Charges”) periodically as indicated in the 

Order Schedule.  If applicable, Customer shall provide meter readings by the last calendar day of 
each month showing the monthly usage by a CSA approved method. Should such meter readings 

not be provided in a timely fashion, Excess Usage Charges may be estimated by CSA.  Upon 
receipt of the actual meter reading, CSA shall adjust Customer’s account as applicable.  IN THE 
EVENT CSA DETERMINES AT ITS SOLE DISCRETION THAT CUSTOMER HAS ORDERED 

CONSUMABLES BEYOND A REASONABLE REQUIREMENT BASED ON INDUSTRY 
ACCEPTED CLICK VOLUME MEASUREMENTS, CSA MAY, IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION, UPON 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 132 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 2 of 15 

REASONABLE DEMONSTRATION OF SUCH EXCESS USE BY CUSTOMER, BILL CUSTOMER 
THE LIST PRICE OF THE EXCESS CONSUMABLES.  In addition to Maintenance Service 

Charges, CSA may assess a fuel surcharge (“Fuel Surcharge”) to offset increases in fuel expenses. 
The Equipment may contain software that allows CSA to access the Equipment remotely (“Remote 

Software”). In such cases, Customer authorizes CSA to use the Remote Software to (a) receive 
software updates and transmit use and service data accumulated by the Equipment over 
Customer’s network by means of an HTTPS protocol and (b) store and analyze such data solely 

for CSA’s own purposes related to servicing the Equipment and for product improvement. Customer 
hereby requests that CSA enable the Remote Software on the Equipment listed in the Order 

Schedule. Upon written request, CSA can provide Customer a copy of a security white paper 
describing the Remote Software in more detail.  

(ii) Unless otherwise set forth in an Order Schedule, Maintenance charges shall start billing and 

Customer shall start payment upon the completion of installation. Maintenance charges as listed 
on the applicable Order Schedule are billed at the frequency noted on the Order Schedule. with 
Base Charge Per Unit (s) billed in advance and Excess Usage Charges billed in arrears. If 

Equipment is installed on other than the first of the month, then the period from the install date to 
the end of the month shall be the "Interim Period". Customer shall pay CSA an amount equal to the 

applicable Base Charge Per Unit divided by thirty (30) days and multiplied by the number of days 
in this Interim Period. Excess Usage Charges shall also be invoiced according to the meter reading 
for this Interim Period. If there are other invoicing requirements, this may result in a longer initial 

term. After the Interim Period, CSA shall invoice you at the frequency noted on the Order Schedule 
or, if specified, on a rolling 30-day basis for the number of months indicated on the Order Schedule. 

For purposes of clarity and by way of example only, if Equipment is installed on December 15th, 
billing for full calendar months with Interim Period shall be as follows: 12/15 -12/31, 1/1-1/31, 2/1-

2/28, 3/1-3/31 and so on. Using the same installation date, rolling 30 day invoicing shall be as 
follows: 12/15-1/14, 1/15-2/14, 2/15 – 3/14, and so on.    

1.1 COVERED SERVICE. 

a) CSA shall provide Customer: (i) CSA's standard preventive Maintenance services (“PM’s”) in 

accordance with CSA’s standard policies, which includes labor, testing, adjusting, cleaning and 
replacement of components scheduled in accordance with the Equipment service specifications 
(the length and frequency of periods of time required for preventive Maintenance will solely be 

determined by CSA); and (ii) firmware updates, including safety related updates to Software 
embedded in the Equipment as its operating system and engineering changes, as deemed 

necessary by CSA; all to be provided during CSA’s standard business hours of Monday through 
Friday 8:30AM to 5:00PM, unless otherwise set forth in the Order Schedule. PMs without supplies 
shall be identified as “Service Only” in the Contract Type section when applicable.  Service on CSA 

holidays is available with advance notice to CSA and CSA shall bill Customer at its then current 
hourly rates for holiday service.  PM’s performed on weekends, holidays or between 5PM and 8:00 

AM (at Customer’s request) will be billed at CSA’s holiday rates in effect at the time of such service. 
 
b) Customer shall: (i) if required by CSA, allow CSA to store reasonable quantities of Maintenance 

equipment and/or parts on Customer's premises; (ii) provide a suitable environment for the 
Equipment in accordance with manufacturer’s requirements; (iii) report to CSA by the last calendar 

day of each month, the monthly usage according to the meter reading in footage or images as 
applicable; and (v) promptly inform CSA of any Equipment malfunctions or operating problems.  

CSA shall retain title to such Maintenance equipment and/or parts.  Customer shall NOT interfere 
with the proper operation of the meter. The Equipment may not perform or produce output at 
expected quality levels if the environmental requirements are not maintained at all times, and, 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 133 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 3 of 15 

pursuant to Section 1.2, CSA is not responsible for repairs required due to Customer’s failure to 
maintain such environment. 

 
c) If Customer refuses to permit installation of a safety change or removes one already installed, CSA 

may discontinue Maintenance for all Equipment until the hazard has been corrected.  All defective 
parts replaced during Maintenance shall become the property of CSA.  Parts used for repair may 
be used or remanufactured.   

 

1.2 NON-COVERED SERVICE.   

a) Customer acknowledges that CSA shall not have any obligation related to:  

(i) provision and installation of optional retrofits;  
(ii) enhancement of any feature of the Equipment;  
(iii) services connected with Equipment relocation;  

(iv) installation/removal of accessories, attachments, or other devices;  
(v) exterior painting or refinishing of Equipment;  

(vi) maintenance, installation, or removal of Equipment or devices not provided by CSA;  
(vii) performance of normal operator functions as described in applicable CSA operator 

manual(s), including, but not limited to, loading of toner, inks and/or paper;  

(viii) performance of services necessitated by accident, disaster including effects of water, wind, 
lightning, terrorism, or negligence;  

(ix) performance of services necessitated by the introduction of a computer virus or other bug 
into the Equipment or Software;  

(x) the use of paper or forms not in compliance with CSA’s or the manufacturers specifications;  

(xi) performance of service necessitated by any modification, alteration or any other change 
whatsoever of Customer's computer system into which the Equipment is integrated or 

otherwise connected;  
(xii) services connected to neglect, misuse, or use of the Equipment for purposes other than 

for which it was designed, or failure to operate the Equipment in accordance with CSA's or 
manufacturer’s operating instructions or within manufacturer’s specifications; 

(xiii)  repairs and services required due to Customer’s failure to continuously provide a suitable 

ambient environment in accordance with CSA's requirements; 
(xiv) attachment(s) to the Equipment, including connection of devices not supplied by CSA, 

which cause the Equipment to malfunction, unless previously authorized in writing by CSA;  
(xv) use of inappropriate (or failure to appropriately use) Consumables or parts; or the use of 

expired Consumables;  

(xvi) Maintenance or repair services performed by Customer or a third party without written 
authorization from CSA;   

(xvii) pre or post processing Equipment disconnected from the printing system to which it was 
originally installed unless previously authorized in writing by CSA, or; 

(xviii) data security, hard drive removal.  

 
b) If, in CSA’s sole opinion, Equipment has been rendered unrepairable, then CSA may refuse to 

render Maintenance under the Agreement and may terminate the Agreement as to such units of 
Equipment.  If repairs or replacements as set forth above are needed due to reasons listed above, 

CSA’s prices to provide any repair or replacement shall be invoiced in in accordance with CSA’s 
then current labor, parts, and supply charges.  All repairs will be governed by the terms of the 
Agreement; however, CSA reserves the right to decline to perform such services. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 134 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 4 of 15 

c) CSA may withdraw any item of Equipment or Software from Maintenance coverage (i) if such 
Equipment or Software has been removed from CSA’s servicing area or (ii) if CSA declares end of 

life for such Equipment or Software, and then only with at least ninety (90) days prior written notice.  
Customer may terminate Maintenance in any renewal term upon ninety (90) days prior written 

notice. Customer shall pay monthly service charges up to the date of termination. 

1.3 ORDERING OF SUPPLIES AND OTHER MATERIALS.  

Customer orders for Consumables, staples, field replaceable units, expendables or any other supplies or 
materials normally purchased by Customers (a) must include a valid Customer purchase order number; (b) 

are shipped to Customer FOB destination; and (c) are subject to a twenty percent (20%) restocking fee if 
accepted for return by CSA pursuant to its Material Return Authorization (MRA) procedure.  If Customer 
requires a carrier other than CSA’s preferred carrier(s), Customer shall provide CSA with the carrier’s name 

and Customer’s account number so that delivery charges will be incurred directly by Customer.   If Customer 
requests an emergency shipment of supplies, CSA will ship the supplies at its earliest feasible opportunity.  

Claims for defective items, item shortages and invoice discrepancies as well as notification of both lost 
shipments and in transit damage to items (not otherwise accepted by Customer) must be provided to CSA 

within ten (10) days of the earlier of (i) receipt of the item or (ii) the invoice date (whichever is applicable).   

CSA recommends that Customer place a Consumable replenishment order for one (1) month of production 
quantity when on-site stock of such Consumable falls below four (4) weeks of inventory. Consumables are 
not returnable. Inks and toners have shelf lives that vary by product. Expiration dates, if any, are printed on 

the container. CSA’s fulfillment of Consumable orders will be based on maximum Customer inventory 
levels. CSA may delay shipment of Consumables ordered by Customer in cases where the on-site 

Consumables inventory exceeds the maximum level of eight (8) weeks of production quantity. To effectively 
manage Consumables’ shelf lives and avoid obsolescence, Customer shall manage Consumables by 
applicable expiration dates, using oldest Consumables first. 

1.4 SOFTWARE SUPPORT; MODIFICATIONS.  

CSA will use reasonable efforts to correct reproducible errors in any current, unaltered release of Software 
caused by a defect or malfunction which prevents Customer from operating the Software in a manner 
consistent with CSA’s then current published specifications.  CSA, in its sole discretion, shall choose the 

method to correct or replace the Software.  These methods may include, but are not limited to, telephone, 
remote and on-site support.   

1.5 SOFTWARE REVISIONS.  

CSA will make Software revisions available at no charge for Software deemed by CSA as “current” release 

versions to Customers covered under an active CSA software Maintenance contract.  Software revisions 
shall be defined as enhancements, modifications, updates, and improvements to the Software that CSA 

classifies as dot releases, meaning the Software revision code changes only in the fractional portion of the 
program level (i.e. v1.20 >v1.25> v1.41, etc.) (“Dot Release”). New functionality may be available with Dot 
Releases and will be offered to Customers at an additional cost.  Installation of Dot Releases may, at CSA’s 

sole discretion, be chargeable at CSA's then current hourly Professional Services rates with minimum 
charges for service time, including travel and on-site wait time.  In addition, the cost of any server hardware 

modifications/upgrades required to run the Dot Releases are the Customer’s sole responsibility.   

1.6 NEW SOFTWARE RELEASES.   

CSA will make “new” Software releases available to Customers covered under an active CSA software 
Maintenance contract at an additional cost.  New Software releases are defined as those enhancements, 

modifications, updates, new functionality and improvements that CSA classifies as a “version release”, 
meaning the whole number portion of the Software version changes (i.e. v1. xx >v2.xx>v3.xx etc.) (“Version 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 135 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 5 of 15 

Release”). Installation of Version Releases may, at CSA’s sole discretion, be chargeable at CSA's then 
current hourly Professional Services rates with minimum charges for service time, including travel and on-

site wait time. In addition, the cost of any server hardware modifications/upgrades required to run the 
Version Release are the Customer’s sole responsibility.  CSA will provide support services for (a) the latest 

Software Version Release (e.g.v5) following the date it is made generally available and (b) for the 
immediately prior Version Release (e.g. v4) during the twelve (12) month period following the date the latest 
Software Version Release (v5) is generally available.  Software support shall terminate if CSA declares end 

of life for such Software, and then only with at least ninety (90) days prior written notice. 

1.7 ITEMS NOT COVERED UNDER SOFTWARE SUPPORT.  Support does not include:  

a. administration of servers or database products;  
b. support of Software installed on equipment using “beta” or operating systems not supported by CSA;  
c. resolution of network errors not directly related to Software;   
d. installation, setup or support of third-party products not supported by CSA or software not acquired 

from CSA: or 
e. updates, upgrades and new releases or versions of third-party products sold with or used in conjunction 

with CSA Software.   
  
1.8 CUSTOMER SOFTWARE RESPONSIBILITIES.  

It is the responsibility of Customer to make and maintain adequate backups of data and configuration of 
Software.  CSA shall not be liable for any losses (of data or productivity or of any other kind) resulting from 

rebuilding or reconfiguring Software to the original, factory configuration.  Reloading, rebuilding and 
reconfiguring of server software may, at CSA’s sole discretion, be chargeable at CSA's then published 
hourly Professional Services rates with minimum charges for service time, including travel and on-site wait 

time.  Purchase and administration of anti-virus software is Customer’s responsibility.  Assistance for 
installing and maintaining anti-virus software is outside the scope of standard support but is available from 

CSA as a billable service upon request. 

1.9 SOFTWARE HELP DESK SUPPORT (not applicable to CSA products under 7x24 service coverage) 

If Customer purchases “Remote Help Desk Support”, then the following terms are applicable: 
a. CSA provides Remote Help Desk Support via telephone, to access CSA Support Specialists for 

operator questions, installation support, explanation of maintained software features and functionality, 
network connectivity questions, and other support issues (“Remote Support”).  Remote Support is 

available Monday – Friday 8:30AM to 8:00PM ET, excluding CSA holidays.  By purchasing Remote 
Support, Customer has unlimited access to the help desk.    

b. CSA will provide Remote Support to those Customer employees who have been issued an ID code 
providing email/telephone access to the CSA Software Support Center.  Customer shall be responsible 
for controlling ID code access and for any unauthorized use of ID codes.  ID codes are non-transferable. 

1.10 SOFTWARE LICENSE  

a. CSA grants Customer a personal, non-exclusive, non-transferable, limited license to use the Software 
(in compiled object code form) in the United States solely for its internal use and to use the 

documentation in support of Customer’s authorized use of the Software for the time period set forth in 
the Order Schedule or, if no time period is set forth in the Order Schedule, until the Agreement is 

terminated in accordance with its terms or until Customer ceases using Software with the Equipment.  
In addition to the Software, the Equipment identified in the Order Schedule may contain other software 
that is used in connection with the maintenance of the Equipment (the “Maintenance Software”). 

Customer hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Maintenance Software has been installed for the 
sole purpose of use by a field engineer or technician authorized in writing by CSA to maintain the 

Equipment. Customer is not granted, whether by license or otherwise, any right to access or use the 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 136 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 6 of 15 

Maintenance Software for any purpose whatsoever, all rights to which are hereby expressly reserved 
by CSA. Any access or use of the Maintenance Software or any part thereof by Customer or any other 

person, including any person who purchases the Equipment from the Customer, is strictly prohibited. 
The Software license granted hereunder may not be assigned by Customer without the written consent 

of CSA and the payment of an additional license fee by the assignee (or subsequent licensee).  No 
such additional license fee shall be due for Software embedded in the Equipment in the form of 
firmware. 

 

b. Software, including all results, information, ideas, data and products of any services provided by CSA 

(excluding Customer’s data throughput) shall be the sole property of CSA or its suppliers and shall be 
regarded by Customer as Confidential Information of CSA.  Customer shall not sell, transfer or 

otherwise make available the Software or documentation to any third party and shall secure and protect 
them from disclosure and shall take such action as is necessary with its employees (including 
contractors and temporary help) and other persons permitted access to them to satisfy Customer’s 

obligations hereunder.  Customer may disclose the Software and documentation to its employees 
(including contractors and temporary help) only to the extent (a) such disclosure is necessary to enable 

Customer to use the Software within the scope of the license granted herein and (b) any such parties 
agree that the Software is CSA’s confidential information and agree to protect the Software pursuant 
to the terms set forth herein.  Customer may make one copy of the Software in machine readable form 

for backup and archival purposes as may be necessary to support Customer’s internal use of the 
Software with the Equipment on which use is licensed.  Customer shall not modify, use other than for 

purposes of the Agreement, reverse engineer, disassemble or decompile any Software in whole or in 
part.  All Software is a “commercial component,” as this term is defined in 48 C.F.R. §2.101, consisting 
of “commercial computer software” and “computer software documentation,” as such terms are defined 

in 48 C.F.R. §252.227-7014(a)(1) and 48 C.F.R. §252.227-7014(a)(5), respectively, and used in 48 
C.F.R. §12.212 and 48 C.F.R. §227.7202, as applicable and all as amended from time to time.  

Consistent with 48 C.F.R. §12.212 and 48 C.F.R. §227.7202, and other relevant sections of the Code 
of Federal Regulations, as applicable, and all as amended from time to time, all U.S. Government 

entities acquire Software only with those rights set forth in the Agreement. 

 

2.0 EDUCATIONAL SERVICES SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER SCHEDULE 

REFERENCES EDUCATIONAL SERVICES, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL 
APPLY TO SAME AND CONTROL OVER THE OTHER TERMS OF THIS RIDER F. 

 

a) Educational Services are offered to Customer by CSA in the form of training sessions and are provided 
during CSA’s standard business hours (Monday through Friday excluding CSA holidays - 8:30 AM to 

5:00 PM local time) unless Customer purchases after hour on-site training at additional cost. Training 
may take place at a CSA central training facility or at Customer’s site as determined by CSA and 

Customer. Each training session is a one-time event or a one-time visit. Customers are charged 
separately for each training session. The composition and duration of each training session is 
determined solely at CSA’s discretion. 

 
b) Standard CSA rates apply. CSA rates are subject to change without notice. Customer is responsible 

for Customer’s travel and lodging expenses. CSA will bill Customer, and Customer agrees to pay, 
CSA’s reasonable travel, hotel and other reasonable expenses in connection with Customer on-site 

training sessions. 

 

c) Training materials for each training session are provided to Customer and/or Customer’s registrants as 

set forth under CSA’s then current policy. Such training materials are CSA Confidential Information. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 137 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 7 of 15 

 

d) Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Educational Services must be completed within sixty (60) days after 

the date of installation. In the event Educational Services are not completed within this time period and 
provided the delay is not due to CSA, Customer’s Educational Services shall automatically terminate 

with no further obligation on the part of CSA, in which case Customer shall not be entitled to a refund.  
Monies paid towards a training session in connection with a specific model of Equipment or Software 
is not transferrable to any other model of Equipment or software and may not be used by Customer to 

pay for any other Equipment, Maintenance, Professional Services or training offering. 

 

e) Cancellation/Rescheduling.  (i) CSA may cancel an on-site training session by providing notice to 
Customer no less than five (5) business days prior to the scheduled date of training. If a training session 

is cancelled by CSA and CSA and Customer do not agree to reschedule such session, upon request 
of Customer, CSA will refund the purchase price for the cancelled training session. CSA is not 
responsible for any expenses incurred by Customer or Customer’s registrant in connection with such 

cancellation.  (ii) CSA may reschedule a training session by providing notice to Customer no less than 
five (5) business days prior to the scheduled date of training. CSA is not responsible for any expenses 

incurred by Customer or Customer’s registrant in connection with such rescheduling.  (iii) Upon written 
notice to CSA received no less than five business days prior to the date of a scheduled training session, 
Customer may cancel such training session and receive a full refund of Customer’s purchase price for 

such training session; or, Customer may reschedule such training session at a mutually agreeable time 
and place. If CSA and Customer do not agree on dates and location for a rescheduled session, upon 

request of Customer, CSA will refund the purchase price for the cancelled training session. In the event 
that CSA has incurred any non-refundable costs or expenses, such as travel, lodging and related 
expenses, in anticipation of such training session, Customer shall reimburse CSA for such costs and 

expenses. (iv) Monies received for a training session, and the cancellation notice of which is received 
by CSA within five business days of the scheduled date for such training session, are not refundable. 

However, CSA may, within its sole discretion, apply such monies to a rescheduled training session. In 
any event, to the extent CSA has incurred any non-refundable costs or expenses, such as travel, 

lodging and related expenses, in anticipation of such training session, Customer shall reimburse CSA 
for such costs and expenses. (v) CSA is not obligated to refund any monies paid for registrants not 
attending any scheduled training session.   

 

3.0 EASYPAC II PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER SCHEDULE 

REFERENCES EASYPAC II, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL APPLY TO SAME AND 
CONTROL OVER THE OTHER TERMS OF THIS RIDER F.  

 

a) DEFINITIONS. 

 “Excess Charges” means charges in excess of the SmartClick Allowance.  

 “Program” means the EasyPac II TDS Black Toner/ PlotWave Black Toner/ ColorWave Toner 
Pearls Carton Program, identified as “EasyPacII” in the “Contract Type” section on an Order 

Schedule when applicable. 

 “Scheduled Supplies” means:  in connection with PlotWave® Equipment, the fixed amount of black 
toner to which Customer is entitled as set forth in the Agreement(s) and/or an Order Schedule 

 “Supplies” means: (i) for PlotWave Equipment, Black Toner; (ii) for ColorWave Equipment, 
TonerPearls® cartons. 

 “Supplies Entitlement” means: in connection with the ColorWave Equipment, the amount of 
TonerPearls cartons to which Customer is entitled as set forth in the Agreement(s) and/or an Order 
Schedule 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 138 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 8 of 15 

 “SmartClick™” means a CSA proprietary measurement derived from (1) the amount of toner used; 
plus (2) the area of media used, for each application printed on the Equipment.  
 

b) SUPPLIES PROGRAM. So long as Customer is not in default, the Program entitles Customer to the 
fixed amount of genuine Supplies set forth in the applicable Order Schedule, on a scheduled or 

entitlement basis. When applicable, the Supplies Entitlement included shall be identified in the “Ink or 
Toner Entitlement” Section of an Order Schedule. Scheduled Supplies for PlotWave models will be 
shipped directly to the Ship to address set forth in the Order Schedule during the term of such Order 

Schedule. Supplies for the ColorWave models will be shipped pursuant to Customer’s order and subject 
to the Supplies Entitlement during the term of the applicable Order Schedule. Supplies may be used 

solely with the Equipment set forth on the Order Schedule(s). Any additional Supplies that are required 
beyond the Scheduled Supplies or Supplies Entitlement can be ordered directly from CSA at an 

additional cost to Customer. 
 

c) SUPPLIES SHIPMENT. For PlotWave Equipment and provided Customer is not in default: Supplies 

shipments will be automatically shipped and will continue for the full term of the applicable Order 
Schedule, without Customer’s request or without requiring any documentation or order confirmation 

from Customer. For PlotWave Equipment, one unit of Supplies is equal to one carton of Black Toner. 
Changes to this shipment schedule are valid only upon execution of a new amendment to the applicable 
Order Schedule. CSA will ship only on the periodic shipment schedule dates. CSA will not accelerate 

or expedite shipments unless otherwise approved by CSA. For ColorWave Equipment and provided 
Customer is not in default: Supplies will only be shipped once an order has been placed by Customer. 

For ColorWave Equipment, one unit of Supplies is equal to one TonerPearls cartons. 

 

d) PRICING. For PlotWave Equipment: CSA will ship the Scheduled Supplies for the term of the applicable 
Order Schedule. Additional amounts of Supplies may be required by Customer for excess print volumes 
or applications based on Customer’s actual usage. Customer is responsible for ordering and paying for 

Supplies in excess of the Scheduled Supplies. Should Customer require additional Supplies beyond 
the Scheduled Supplies, CSA will ship such additional quantities to Customer upon acceptance of 

Customer’s purchase order for such additional Supplies. Customer will be invoiced separately for such 
additional orders over Scheduled Supplies and agrees to pay for such additional quantities. CSA 
reserves the right to refuse shipment of additional Supplies. This Program does not include media 

(paper/film/vellum). Prices do not include applicable tax. Shipping charges to the continental USA are 
included.  

 
e) For Colorwave Equipment – SmartClick Plan: This is a fixed supplies quantity contract. Customer is 

responsible for ordering Supplies as needed during the term of the applicable Order Schedule. If 

additional Supplies are required by Customer for excess print volumes or applications based on 
Customer’s actual usage, Customer is responsible for ordering such additional Supplies. The cost to 

Customer for such additional Supplies is included in the excess SmartClick Charge. If additional 
Supplies are ordered by Customer, CSA shall provide such additional Supplies as is reasonably 

required by Customer, as determined by CSA, based upon Customer’s consumption and subject to 
CSA’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. CSA reserves the right to refuse shipment 
of additional Supplies. This program does not include media (paper/film/vellum). Prices do not include 

applicable tax. Shipping charges to the continental USA are included. The Minimum Periodic Payment 
and Excess SmartClick Charges may both include a charge for toner.  

 
f) TERM. The term of the Program shall be conterminous with that of the applicable Order Schedule.  

 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 139 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 9 of 15 

g) MISCELLANEOUS. CSA may refuse shipment of Supplies if Customer is not current on payments or 
is in default for any other reason. Customer may order Supplies under the Program solely for its own 

internal use and not for resale.  CSA may refuse shipment in the event that it reasonably believes 
Supplies are not being used for Customer’s internal use. Returns of Supplies are only permitted for 

Supplies defects. A CSA Return Materials Authorization (RMA) is required prior to any return.  

 

4.0 OPTIMIZE.IT PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER SCHEDULE 

REFERENCES OPTIMIZE.IT, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL APPLY TO SAME 
AND CONTROL OVER THE OTHER TERMS OF THIS RIDER F.  

 
a) DEFINITIONS. 

“Optimize.IT Program” means the Optimize.IT PlotWave Black Toner/ ColorWave Toner Pearls Carton 
Program. 
  
“Scheduled Supplies” means:  in connection with PlotWave® Equipment, the fixed amount of CSA 
Black Toner to which Customer is entitled as set forth in the Agreement(s) and/or an applicable Order 
Schedule. 
 
“Supplies” means: (i) for PlotWave® Equipment, Black Toner and developer; (ii) for ColorWave 
Equipment, TonerPearls® cartons.  
 
“Supplies Entitlement” means: in connection with ColorWave Equipment, the amount of TonerPearls 
Cartons to which Customer is entitled as set forth in the applicable Order Schedule. 
 
“Allowance” means:  in connection with the PlotWave® / ColorWave Equipment, the square footage 
included in each Excess Per Image Charge billing period on the applicable Order Schedule. 

 

b) OPTIMIZE.IT PROGRAM. So long as Customer is not in default, this Supplies program entitles 

Customer to the fixed amount of genuine Canon Supplies as set forth in an applicable Order Schedule, 
on a scheduled or entitlement basis, during the term of the Agreement.  When applicable, the Supplies 

Entitlement included shall be identified in the “Ink or Toner Entitlement” Section of an Order Schedule. 
Scheduled Supplies for PlotWave Equipment will be shipped to the ship to address set forth in the 
Agreement on a scheduled basis during the term of the Agreement. Supplies for ColorWave Equipment 

will be shipped pursuant to Customer’s order and subject to the Supplies Entitlement during the term 
of the Agreement. Changes to this Supplies program are valid only upon execution of a new 

OPTIMIZE.IT Program amendment. 
 

c) SUPPLIES SHIPMENT.   

 
(i) For PlotWave Equipment, and provided Customer is not in default: Supplies shipments will be 

automatically shipped and will continue for the full term of the Agreement, without Customer’s 
request or without requiring any documentation or order confirmation from Customer. For 
PlotWave Equipment, one unit of supplies is equal to one carton of Black Toner. CSA will ship 

only on the periodic shipment schedule dates. CSA will not accelerate or expedite shipments 
unless otherwise approved by CSA. If additional Supplies are required by Customer for excess 

print volumes or applications based on Customer’s actual usage, Customer is responsible for 
ordering such additional Supplies. The cost to Customer for such additional Supplies is 

included in the Excess Meter Charge. The Minimum Periodic Payment and Excess Usage 
Charges may both include a charge for toner. If additional Supplies are ordered by Customer, 
CSA shall provide such additional Supplies as is reasonably required by Customer, as 

determined by CSA, based upon Customer’s consumption and subject to CSA’s approval, 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 140 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 10 of 15 

which shall not be unreasonably withheld. CSA reserves the right to refuse shipment of 
additional Supplies. This Supplies program does not include media (paper/film/vellum). Prices 

do not include applicable tax. Shipping charges to the continental USA are included.     
 

(ii) For ColorWave Equipment – SmartClick Plan:  Customer is responsible for ordering Supplies 
as needed during the term of the Agreement.  If additional Supplies over the fixed contract 
quantity are required by Customer for excess print volumes or applications based on 

Customer’s actual usage, Customer is responsible for ordering such additional Supplies. The 
cost to Customer for such additional Supplies is included in the Excess SmartClick Charge. 

The minimum periodic payment and excess SmartClick charges may both include a charge 
for toner. If additional Supplies are ordered by Customer, CSA shall provide such additional 

Supplies as is reasonably required by Customer, as determined by CSA, based upon 
Customer’s consumption and subject to CSA’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. CSA reserves the right to refuse shipment of additional Supplies. This Supplies 

program does not include media (paper/film/vellum). Prices do not include applicable tax. 
Shipping charges to the continental USA are included.     

 
(iii) For ColorWave Equipment – Square Foot Plan:  Customer is responsible for ordering Supplies 

as needed during the term of the Agreement. If additional Supplies are required by Customer 

for excess print volumes or applications based on Customer’s actual usage, Customer is 
responsible for ordering such additional Supplies. Customer will be invoiced separately for 

such additional orders over the fixed contract quantity and agrees to pay for such additional 
quantities. If additional Supplies are ordered by Customer, CSA shall provide such additional 
Supplies as is reasonably required by Customer, as determined by CSA, based upon 

Customer’s consumption and subject to CSA’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. CSA reserves the right to refuse shipment of additional Supplies. This Supplies 

program does not include media (paper/film/vellum). Prices do not include applicable tax. 
Shipping charges to the continental USA are included.  

    
d) EXCESS CHARGES. CSA shall periodically invoice Excess Usage Charges and other usage fees 

("Service Charges”).  In the event that the periodic Allowance is not achieved (the actual net usage for 

the period is less than the Allowance for the period), fifty percent (50%) of the unutilized Allowance will 
be carried forward to the next periodic Allowance. 

 
e) TERM. The term of the Optimize.IT Program shall be coterminous with the term of the applicable Lease. 

 

f) MISCELLANEOUS. Customers will be charged for all shipping and handling charges associated with 
expedited shipments, emergency shipments, and special delivery of any order(s) for Supplies. 

Damaged or short toner or TonerPearls cartons must be noted on the carrier copy of the delivery 
receipt and reported to Imaging Supplies Customer Service within three (3) business days of delivery 
in order to obtain credit. Customer is responsible for freight charges associated with returned toner or 

TonerPearls cartons due to Customer error. Customer must obtain a return Authorization number from 
Imaging Supplies Customer Service before returning any Supplies.  Supplies shipped under the 

Agreement are for Customer’s use only on equipment and may not be resold, traded or otherwise 
transferred to any third party without the prior written consent of CSA. CSA reserves the right not to 

ship product for any reason. 

 

5.0 ARIZONA MODELS SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER SCHEDULE 

REFERENCES ARIZONA SERIES EQUIPMENT, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL 
APPLY TO SAME AND CONTROL OVER THE OTHER TERMS OF THIS RIDER F.   

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 141 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 11 of 15 

  

a) If Customer has purchased Maintenance and such Maintenance is marked on the Order Schedule, 
Customer may terminate Maintenance upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to CSA.  If Customer 
provides such notice of its intent to terminate, Customer shall be responsible for Maintenance charges, 
if any, for the period defined on the Order Schedule until the effective date of termination.   
 

b) The following consumable items for the Arizona Series are excluded from Maintenance and the 
warranty:   

 
(i) Printheads (unless otherwise set forth on the Order Schedule)  
(ii) Table Vacuum Overlays     
(iii) UV Lamps & Lamp Filters (except for the Arizona 1300 Series which includes UV Lamps)  
(iv) Ink Filters 

 
6.0 ARIZONA PREMIA CLASS RECONDITIONED EQUIPMENT SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF 
CUSTOMER’S ORDER SCHEDULE REFERENCES ARIZONA PREMIA CLASS RECONDITIONED 
EQUIPMENT, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL APPLY TO SAME AND CONTROL 
OVER THE OTHER TERMS OF THIS RIDER F.  

 
a) Products shipped hereunder, unless otherwise specifically set forth in the Order Schedule may, in 

CSA’s sole discretion, be New/Newly Manufactured, Factory Produced New Model, Like New, 
Remanufactured, Refurbished, Used or Reconditioned.  “Reconditioned” means Equipment previously 
used by a CSA customer which has been tested to ensure full functionality, print quality and reliability 
to specifications by CSA service technicians.    This process involves the installation of new parts and 
may also include the installation of used parts at CSA’s discretion.  Reconditioned Equipment may have 
minor cosmetic blemishes or other imperfections.   
 

b) With respect to Reconditioned Equipment, the warranty period for printheads shall be for a period of 
six (6) months from the date of equipment installation.  The warranty set forth herein applies only to 
New/Newly Manufactured, Factory Produced New Models, Remanufactured, Refurbished Equipment 
or Reconditioned and is conditioned upon Customer giving prompt notice to CSA of any discovered 
defects; with respect to Reconditioned Equipment, determination of defective printhead is at the sole 
discretion of CSA Service Technician. 

 

7.0 COLORADO MODELS SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER SCHEDULE REFERENCES 
COLORADO SERIES EQUIPMENT, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL APPLY TO SAME AND 
CONTROL OVER THE OTHER TERMS IN THIS RIDER F. 
 
a) The following consumable items for the Colorado are excluded from the warranty and/or maintenance set forth 

in the Agreement:   
    

(i) Colorado 16xx Knife 
(ii) Take Up Spindle 
(iii) Unwind Spindle 

  
  
b) PRINTHEAD INCLUDED CONTRACTS. If the Customer chooses the Printhead Included contract, the 

replacing of the printheads will be consistent with the current procedures for the replacement of the other parts 
within the Colorado.  A call must be placed by the Customer to CSA’s Customer Service Center and the 
technician will reach out to the Customer to discuss the issues and determine if there is a critical failure with 
the suspected head(s).  If CSA determined that there is a hard code failure and the machine can no longer 
calibrate at 430 square feet per hour on CSA’s calibration material due to misdirected of blocked nozzles, the 
technician will order the print head in advance and will schedule it to arrive the following business day. If the 
technician has the part in stock, they will schedule a visit based on priority of calls. If CSA determines during 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 142 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 12 of 15 

the troubleshooting of the printer that the root cause of the printhead failure is a result of Customer actions, it 
will be the Customer’s responsibility to purchase a printhead.  Once the printhead is on site, the Customer can 
place a service call and the Service Technician will respond and install the replacement printhead. Some but 
not all examples of customer related failures are head strikes (which include damage caused by media), 
running expired inks, improper printhead maintenance, and incorrectly calibrating media. For the avoidance of 
doubt, CSA provides no protection or other coverage of a printhead after its warranty period unless Customer 
chooses the Printhead Included contract. 

 
8.0 COLORADO EZ PRINT PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER 
SCHEDULE REFERENCES THE COLORADO EZ PRINT PROGRAM, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL 
TERMS SHALL APPLY TO SAME AND CONTROL OVER THE OTHER TERMS IN THIS RIDER F.  

 
a) Technology Upgrade.  For any lease program that is 48 months or longer, Customer will have the option to 

upgrade to an updated version of Equipment, on any regularly-scheduled Lease Payment date commencing 
with twelve (12) or less months remaining in the lease contract, subject to sixty (60) days prior written notice to 
CSA. Customer shall return any and all Equipment to CSA as required to facilitate the Technology Upgrade 

and will do so in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 
 

b) Service and Supplies. Equipment Service, ink, and print heads are included in the program at no additional 
charge.  Unused Printheads and Inks are the property of CSA and will be returned at the end of the Agreement. 
Supplies do not include Air Filters, Integrated Knife Assembly, Maintenance Trays, Feed Media Shaft and 
Take-Up Media Shaft.    
 

c) Supplies shall be ordered by Customer when needed, and CSA shall provide such additional Supplies as is 
reasonably required by Customer, as determined by CSA, based upon the Equipment’s consumption as 
indicated through the ORS Software and subject to CSA’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  
Supplies can only be used for the Equipment listed on the Order Schedule, and CSA may refuse shipment in 
the event that CSA reasonably believes Supplies are not being used solely in the Colorado Equipment set 
forth on the Order Schedule.  This Supplies program does not include media (paper/film/vellum).  
Reconciliation for overuse of Consumables/Supplies shall be invoiced to and paid by Customer at the rates in 
effect at the time of such reconciliation and will be calculated based on coverage/use.  
 

d) In the event that the periodic Allowance is not achieved (the actual net usage for the period is less than the 
Allowance for the period), one hundred percent (100%) of the unutilized Allowance will be carried forward to 
the next periodic Allowance.  
 

e) Replacement of Print Heads during the term of this program shall solely be determined by CSA and, or a CSA 
authorized service technician.   
 

f) ORS Software Requirement. The Equipment contains ORS software that allows CSA to access the Equipment 
remotely (“Remote Software”).  Customer authorizes CSA to use the Remote Software to (i) receive software 
updates and transmit use and service data accumulated by the Equipment over Customer’s network by means 
of an HTTPS (or other) protocol and (ii) store and analyze such data solely for CSA’s own purposes related to 
servicing the Equipment and for product improvement.    

  
9.0 COLORWAVE TONER BUNDLE PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER 
SCHEDULE REFERENCES THE COLORWAVE TONER BUNDLE PROGRAM, THE FOLLOWING 
ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL APPLY TO SAME AND CONTROL OVER THE OTHER  TERMS IN THIS 
RIDER F.  
 
a) Definitions 

 “ColorWave Program” means the ColorWave® Equipment Toner Pearls Cartridge Supplies 
Program, which shall be identified as “Toner Bundle” in the Contract Type section of an Order 
Schedule when applicable. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 143 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 13 of 15 

 “Supplies” means TonerPearls® cartridges. 
 “Supplies Entitlement” means the number of units of TonerPearls cartridges to which Customer is 

entitled as set forth in the Order Schedule. 
 
b) ColorWave Program. So long as Customer is not in default, the ColorWave Program entitles Customer 

to the fixed amount of genuine Supplies set forth in the Order Schedule on an entitlement basis. When 
applicable, the Supplies Entitlement included shall be identified in the “Ink or Toner Entitlement” Section 
of an Order Schedule. Supplies may be used solely with the ColorWave Equipment set forth on the 
Order Schedule Supplies will be shipped pursuant to Customer’s order and subject to the Supplies 
Entitlement during the term of the Agreement. Any additional Supplies that are required beyond the 
Supplies Entitlement can be ordered directly from CSA at additional cost to Customer.  

 
c) Pricing. This is a fixed supplies quantity contract.  Customer is responsible for ordering Supplies as 

needed during the term of the Agreement. If additional Supplies are required by Customer for excess 
print volumes or applications based on Customer’s actual usage, Customer is responsible for ordering 
such additional Supplies.  Should Customer require additional supplies beyond the contracted 
quantities, CSA will ship such additional quantities to Customer upon acceptance of Customer’s 
purchase order for such additional Supplies. Customer will be invoiced separately for such additional 
orders over the fixed contract quantity and agrees to pay for such additional quantities.  CSA reserves 
the right to refuse shipment of additional Supplies. This program does not include media 
(paper/film/vellum). Prices do not include applicable tax. Shipping charges to the continental USA are 
included.  

 

d) Term. The ColorWave Program shall be automatically renewed for successive one (1) year terms at 
CSA’s then current charges, for a pro rata amount of the Supplies Entitlement based on the Supplies 
Entitlement for the initial term and under the terms and conditions of the Agreement unless either party 
gives the other written notice of its intent not to renew at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of 
any initial or renewal term.  CSA may also notify Customer ninety (90) days in advance that the Supplies 
covered under the Agreement will no longer be available for any subsequent renewal terms.  Customer 
may terminate this Program in any renewal term upon ninety (90) days prior written notice.  For prepaid 
agreements, CSA will refund or credit the pro rata price of the remaining term. 

 

e) Miscellaneous. CSA may refuse shipment of Supplies if Customer is not current on payments or is in 
default for any other reason. Customer may order Supplies under the Agreement via Order Schedule 
and/or amendment solely for its own internal use and not for resale. CSA may refuse shipment in the 
event that CSA reasonably believes Supplies are not being used for the internal use of the Customer 
or Customer’s end user or if CSA reasonably believes Supplies are not being used solely with the 
ColorWave Equipment set forth on the Order Schedule.   

 
f) Returns. Returns of Supplies are only permitted for Supplies defects. A CSA Return Materials 

Authorization (“RMA”) is required prior to any return. 
 
10.0 PROCUT EQUIPMENT SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER SCHEDULE 
REFERENCES PROCUT EQUIPMENT, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL APPLY TO 
SAME AND CONTROL OVER THE OTHER TERMS IN THIS RIDER F. 

a. Definitions: 

 “Base Machine” means each model of the following: ProCut Table, Conveyor System, Roll-off Unit, 
Vacuum Generator, Automatic Router Bit Changer (ARC), ICC Camera, Integrated Tool Initialization 
Tool (ITI) and PC stand. 

 “Consumable Parts” means cutting blades, knives, router bits, cutting underlays, scoring wheels and 
conveyor belts.  

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 144 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 14 of 15 

 “ProCut Equipment” means the following:  Base Machine, the modules and tool inserts set forth herein 
and Consumable Parts. 

 “Preventative Maintenance” means testing, adjusting, cleaning and replacement of components 
scheduled in accordance with the ProCut Equipment service specifications. 

 "Service" means the repair and/or replacement of parts that are determined by CSA to contain 
manufacturing defects in order to keep the ProCut Equipment in good working order per 
manufacturer’s written specifications provided that repairs can be performed in the field.  

 
b) WARRANTY.  CSA shall provide the limited warranty set forth in the General Terms for the term of the 

warranty as set forth below.     
 

c) TERM and EXCLUSIONS. The terms set forth in this Section 10.0 (c) shall apply solely to the ProCut 
Equipment. The warranty period for the Base Machine shall be twenty-four (24) months from the date 
of installation, and the warranty period for modules and tool inserts (as identified below) set forth in any 
Order Schedule shall be six (6) months from the date of installation. During the applicable warranty 
period for the ProCut Equipment, CSA shall provide Service for the ProCut Equipment. CSA shall 
provide such Service during its normal business hours, at no charge, as determined to be necessary 
upon inspection by an authorized CSA Service Representative. CSA is not obligated by this warranty 
to perform repairs or parts replacement for defects or damage resulting in whole or part from (i) 
alteration, relocation, repairs, or use of parts, software or services not provided by CSA or its authorized 
representative, (ii) accident, (iii) abuse, willful misconduct, or negligence; (iv) the acts or omissions of 
Customer.  Preventative Maintenance and the replacement of Consumable Parts are not covered by 
this warranty. Ground freight charges for parts covered by warranty are included.  Expedited shipping 
charges of such warranty parts are excluded and will be invoiced to Customer separately. Service may 
be provided by CSA or a third party subcontracted by CSA. 

 
The six (6) month warranty period noted above only applies to modules & tool inserts with the following 
descriptions/purposes: 
 

Routing Modules 
Universal Module 
Driven Rotary Tool 
Oscillating Cutting Tools 
Milling Spindles 
Creasing Tools 
Kiss-Cutting Tool 
V-Cut Tool 
Universal Drawing Tool with pen 
Universal Cutting Tool 

 
 

d) POST-WARRANTY PROCUT EQUIPMENT SERVICE.  Upon expiration of the warranty period set 
forth herein, Customer may purchase Maintenance from CSA for the Base Machine by signing CSA’s 
then-current Maintenance Agreement. Post-warranty Service is not available from CSA for the 
modules and tool inserts set forth above. 

 
11.0 TC4 SCANNER MODEL TERMS SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS.  IF CUSTOMER’S ORDER SCHEDULE 
REFERENCES TC4 SCANNER EQUIPMENT, THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL APPLY 
TO SAME AND CONTROL OVER THE OTHER TERMS IN THIS RIDER F. 
 
The following consumable items for the TC4 Scanner are excluded from Maintenance and the warranty set 
forth in the Agreement:   

 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 145 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Services Agreement 
Rider F 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions) Page 15 of 15 

Consumable Item    Item Number 
Lamp      1060023824 
Glass Plate       2954987 
Reference Plate      1060010241 
Ref Plate Thick Original     1060050272 
44” Basic Calibration Sheet   1060021389  

  

12. CONTEX IQ QUATTRO SCANNER MODELS SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS. THE CUSTOMER’S 
ORDER SCHEDULE REFERENCES CONTEX IQ QUATTRO SCANNER EQUIPMENT, THE 

FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL TERMS SHALL APPLY TO SAME AND CONTROL OVER THE OTHER 
TERMS IN THIS RIDER F. 

 
The following consumable items for the Contex iQ Quattro 4400 Series Scanners are excluded from 

Maintenance and the warranty set forth in the Agreement:   
 

Consumable Item    Item Number 

Calibration Sheet    7100021247 
Glass Platen     7100021248 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 146 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Managed Print Services Customer Expectations Document 
 

Version 2.0, 2.1.22          Page 1 of 5 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Managed Print Services 
 

Customer Expectations Document 

 

 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 147 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Managed Print Services Customer Expectations Document 
 

Version 2.0, 2.1.22          Page 2 of 5 

  

1. Introduction 

This Customer Expectations Document is designed to provide details related to the Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
(“CSA”) managed print services (‘MPS”) Program and to answer commonly asked questions.  You have either 
executed an “MPS Agreement”, which is a standalone agreement used when CSA is providing MPS only; or have 
registered as a CSA customer to purchase other products and services, including MPS, and executed the applicable 
documents, including a Master Sales and Services Agreement with an assigned a common number for products 
and services you purchase from CSA along with CSA’s form of order, an “MPS Order Schedule”.  Both the MPS 
Agreement and the MPS Order Schedule incorporate the General Terms and MPS Terms (Rider E) found at 
ESS.CSA.CANON.COM/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS. 
 

For the purposes of this Customer Expectation Document, “MPS” shall mean the managed print services provided 
by CSA under either the MPS Agreement or the MPS Order Schedule.  Unless specifically defined herein, 
capitalized terms shall have the same meaning as in the General Terms and Rider E. 

 

2. Program Objectives 

MPS is designed to help organizations achieve business efficiencies and cost savings through better management 
and administration of print environments.  CSA’s unique consulting process contemplates collaboration with our 
customers to identify areas for print optimization, increased productivity, and cost savings.  Critical to this process 
is the availability of print volume data from all sources within the print enterprise. The success of MPS is dependent 
on uninterrupted communication with the printers or alternative sources of data capture in order for CSA to perform 
the services and provide accurate and timely billing. 

 

3. Initial Contract Set-up 

Please see Rider E as to the Effective Date of MPS, when a “Printer” becomes a “Covered Printer” under MPS and 
the Fit for Service requirements therefore, the Term, use of a Date Collection Agent for information on your fleet of 
Printers, and supplies and services therefore, types of MPS (Premier vs. Standard”), as well and other contractual 
provisions.  

 

4. Ordering Procedures. If you have not received an auto shipment of Toner Cartridges or require Covered Services 
under the Premier Plan, or require Toner Cartridges under the Standard Plan, or are in need of additional products 
or services: 

 

a. Toner Cartridges  

Toner Cartridges may be ordered from CSA by either calling our Customer Service order desk at 1-800-
355-1385 or by placing an on-line order at the myCSA site.  Customers who wish to use the myCSA site 
must first register at www.csa.canon.com and select the myCSA icon on the home page.  Customers will 
be asked to provide the related serial # or asset tag # located on the asset tag placed on the Covered 
Printer, or on its serial number plate.  The maximum Toner Cartridge order is limited to one (1) cartridge 
per Covered Printer serial #.  CSA Reserves the right to limit Toner Cartridge shipments based upon print 
volume/utilization. CSA may charge you a supply delivery fee to cover the cost of shipping Consumables 
to you. 

  

MPS does not contemplate the provision of “shelf stock” at Customer locations.  Customers that require 
extra Toner Cartridges stored onsite, may purchase shelf stock by contacting CSA Customer Service (see 
Section 5 below).  

 

b. Service Calls 

Requests for services may be placed by either calling CSA’s Dispatch Center at 1-800-466-1750 or by 
placing a service request on-line within the myCSA site. Service response time for all Covered Printers is 
next business day (“NBD”). Service requests received prior to 3:00 p.m. local time qualify as NBD; those 
received after will be moved to the following business day. 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 148 of 487

https://ess.csa.canon.com/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS


Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Managed Print Services Customer Expectations Document 
 

Version 2.0, 2.1.22          Page 3 of 5 

  

 

5. Customer Service 

For any questions or contract changes, please reference the following contact information: 

Email:  MDSUPPORT@csa.canon.com 

Phone: 1-800-355-1385 

 

6. Toner Cartridge Usage Reconciliation 

The following is an explanation of Toner Cartridge usage reconciliation policy found in Section 7(a) of Rider E. MPS 
includes replenishment of Toner Cartridges based upon toner average page coverage of 5% for black toner and 
20% for color toner.  Customers who print images with more toner average coverage should expect to pay additional 
charges.  Toner Cartridge yield associated with “Unused Toner Cartridges” purchased from CSA for purposes of 
“shelf stock” may be considered during Toner Cartridge reconciliation when the Actual Print Volume exceeds the 
CSA Expected Print Volume.  Toner Cartridge usage reconciliation is done separately for black toner, color toner, 
and MICR toner.  Please see the reconciliation example below: 

 

Toner Manufacturer Yield per Cartridge    3,000 

# of Cartridges shipped to Customer *      x 10 

Manufacturer Expected Print Volume  30,000 

Extra 10% provided by CSA   - 3,000 

CSA Expected Print Volume   27,000 

Actual Print Volume                - 25,500 

Volume Reconciliation      1,500 

Price per Page             x $ .0200 

Toner Usage Reconciliation Charge  $30.00 

 

* Certain cartridges for the same models may contain different manufacturer yields. 

 

7. Quarterly Review Process 

Customers are entitled to a quarterly review discussion to review expectations, charges, print volume data and 
recommendations for further optimization of the print environment. Reviews shall be scheduled upon Customer’s 
request at times acceptable to the parties. 

 

8. End of Term Process 

The Customer must return unused Toner Cartridges within 30 days of the end of term and CSA shall adjust the 
number of Toner Cartridges shipped for the purpose of computing the final Toner Cartridge reconciliation described 
above accordingly.  Customer shall also return all unopened Maintenance Consumables. 

 

Customers must contact the CSA Customer Service center at 1-800-355-1385 to obtain return instructions and 
return authorization # prior to mailing the returned Consumables back to CSA.  In the event CSA is unable to obtain 
a final meter reading from the DCA or other reasonable means, CSA will estimate the final meter reading using 
Customer volume history or utilizing the CSA standard usage rates by model. 

 

9. DCA Software & Technical Requirements 

CSA must utilize data collection software to provide services under this agreement.  CSA is responsible to maintain 
the software, provide updates when necessary, and assist with the initial installation as necessary.  The detailed 
technical information with respect to the Data Collection Agent (DCA) is as follows: 

 

The DCA collects usage data on Printers from predefined Management Information Bases (“MIBs”), using Simple 
Network Management Protocol (“SNMP”).  For greater security, the DCA initiates communication solely with the 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 149 of 487

mailto:MDSUPPORT@solutions.canon.com


Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Managed Print Services Customer Expectations Document 
 

Version 2.0, 2.1.22          Page 4 of 5 

  

CSA Data Repository.  Communication sessions are conducted via HTTPS (port 443), the universal standard in 
secure transactions.  The DCA sends and receives data in a single hourly session.  

 

CSA does not provide root access or local edit access to the DCA and CSA does not permit scripts to be run against 
the DCA.  
 
Customers must provide the following technical information in conjunction with the implementation of the CSA 
Managed Print Services program.  This information is required specifically for the expressed purposes of 
configuration and implementation the DCA. 

 

INFORMATION 

DCA Server (must be able to access all subnets with devices under contract) 

• Hostname 

• IP Address 

• Default Gateway 

• Fully Qualified Domain Name 

• DNS Server (primary and secondary) 

• Subnet Mask 

Network 

• Subnet Range(s) 

Proxy (if applicable) 

• Proxy Name 

• Port Number 

• Username / Password (if required) 

SNMP 

• Public (READ) 

• Any non-public SNMP community strings 

 

CONFIGURATION 

In addition to the information above to function properly, the DCA requires the following network 
configuration 

• Port 80 TCP (outbound access) 

• Port 443 TCP (outbound access) 

• SNMP (access to all subnets with devices on contract) Port 161 UDP (access to all subnets with 
devices on contract)  
 

ADDITIONAL PORTS REQUIRED FOR MDS CLOUD CC AGENT 

 Port 427 UDP (outbound access) 

 Port 47545 UDP (outbound access) (Canon Devices) 

 Port 47546 TCP (outbound access) (Canon Devices) 

 Port 9007 TCP (outbound access) (Canon Devices) 

 Port 50700 UDP (inbound access) (Canon Device event notifications) 

 Port 11427 UDP (inbound access) (Canon Device power status notifications) 

 Port 44301 TCP (inbound access) (Open CC Agent dashboard on network) 

 

HARDWARE 

• Hardware:  Non-dedicated server powered on 24 hours a day, 7 days a week 

• Network Card:  100mbit or higher 

• RAM 512 MB or higher 

• Internet connected browser  

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 150 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Managed Print Services Customer Expectations Document 
 

Version 2.0, 2.1.22          Page 5 of 5 

  

 

ADDITIONAL HARDWARE REQUIRED FOR MDS CLOUD CC AGENT 

 Dual Core CPU 2.0GHz or faster 

 RAM 4GB or more Recommended 8GB or more 

 Available Storage 8GB or more Recommended 35GB or more 

 

SOFTWARE 

Computers where the DCA will be installed must meet the following software requirements: 

• Windows 7, 8, 10, Server 2008 R2, Server 2012, Server 2016 or higher and .NET Framework 3.5 
SP1 Including .NET 3.0 and 2.0 Feature enabled 

Virtualization software support:  The following virtualization software will support the installation: 

• Microsoft Virtual Server 2005 

• VMware GSX 

 

ADDITIONAL SOFTWARE REQUIRED FOR MDS CLOUD CC AGENT 

 Virtual Environments: 

- VMware vSphere v6.0/v6.5 
- Microsoft Hyper-V: Windows Server 2008 R2/Server 2012/Server 2012 R2 

 .NET Framework 4.5.2 or higher: https://www.microsoft.com/en-
US/download/details.aspx?id=42643  

 IIS 10.0 Express: https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/details.aspx?id=48264  

 SQL Server Express 2014 SP2 or higher: https://www.microsoft.com/en-
US/download/details.aspx?id=53167  

 

COLLECTION INTERVALS FOR MDS CLOUD CC AGENT 

 Errors and alerts – Every 5 minutes while not in sleep mode 

 Consumable Supplies (Toner & Paper levels) – Every 60 minutes while not in sleep mode 

 Counters – Every 8 hours 

 

DATA TRANSMISSION 

The DCA transmits small amounts of data to the central server.  This data includes only statistical and 
alert condition information.  NO IMAGE DATA IS TRANSMITTED.  The following data estimates are 
provided to assist in the assessment of network impact. 

• DCA scan, blank IP:  5.2KB 

• DCA scan, 1 printer:  7.2KB 

• DCA scan, 1 printer, 254 local IP addresses:  96KB 

• DCA scan, network of 15 printers, 254 local IP addresses: 125KB 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 151 of 487

https://www.microsoft.com/en-US/download/details.aspx?id=42643
https://www.microsoft.com/en-US/download/details.aspx?id=42643
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/details.aspx?id=48264
https://www.microsoft.com/en-US/download/details.aspx?id=53167
https://www.microsoft.com/en-US/download/details.aspx?id=53167


Version 2.0 Effective 2.1.22 Replaces all Prior Versions  Page 1 of 2 

ASSESSMENT AND LICENSING AGREEMENT FOR MANAGED PRINT SERVICES 

 

By clicking "I Agree" you are manifesting your assent to these terms and conditions.  In any 

event, use of the Analysis Services or Analysis Software shall imply acceptance of this 

Agreement. 
 

This Assessment Agreement (“Agreement”) for Managed Print Services (“MPS”) sets forth the conditions upon 

which Canon Solutions America, Inc. (“CSA”) will provide you with the Analysis Services set forth hereinafter. 

To conduct the Analysis Services, CSA will deploy certain Analysis Software on your network which are 

discovery tools to analyze your printing activities as set forth hereinafter. 

 

CSA’s provision of the Analysis Services and Analysis Software is conditioned upon your acceptance of, and 

compliance with this Agreement.  By entering into this Agreement you represent and warrant that you are over 

the age of eighteen (18) and possess the legal capacity to bind yourself to its terms and conditions.  If you are 

entering into this Agreement on behalf of a business organization or entity ("Company"), you represent and 

warrant that you are duly authorized to bind the Company to this Agreement.  If you do not have the legal 

authority to bind the Company or you do not agree with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, do not 

accept this Agreement, and do not use the Analysis Services or Analysis Software. 

 

Should you have already executed with CSA either an “MPS Agreement” which is a standalone agreement used 

when CSA is providing MPS only; or have registered as a CSA customer to purchase other products and 

services, including MPS, and executed the applicable documents, including a Master Sales and Services 

Agreement with an assigned a common number for products and services you purchase from CSA along with 

CSA’s form of order, a “MPS Order Schedule”, and either such document pertains to Printers (as defined below) 

the terms of the MPS Agreement or MPS Order Schedule are incorporated therein.  Should you have not yet 

executed such an agreement, the General Terms and terms of Rider E found at 

ESS.CSA.CANON.COM/CUSTOMERDOCUMENTS (“Customer Portal”) are incorporated herein.   To the 

extent the terms of this Agreement conflict with the terms of the MPS Agreement, the MPS Order Schedule or 

the Customer Portal, the terms of this Agreement shall control. 

 

By accepting the terms of this Agreement, you expressly agree to the collection, use, and disclosure of data as 

set forth in this Agreement and the CSA Privacy and Cookies Policies which you can find on the Customer 

Portal.    

 

You may wish to save a copy of this Assessment Agreement for your records.  In any event CSA may, in its 

sole discretion, modify or update this Agreement from time to time, so you should periodically review this page 

which you can find in the Customer Portal. 

 

 The parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. SERVICES: CSA will perform an analysis of your print environment to include your devices 

(“Printers”), print volumes and related costs (the “Analysis Services”).  To conduct the Analysis Services, CSA 

will deploy certain discovery tools to analyze your printing activity.  You acknowledge that (i) the Analysis 

Services are provided through the use of Analysis Software (as hereinafter defined) which captures printing 

activity covered by such services, (ii) these Analysis Services provide no intervention or corrective services, 

(iii) the Analysis Software may not be able to detect, analyze or report on all components and conditions that 

may exist in your IT environment, and (iv) the Analysis Services are advisory in nature and no results are 

assured or guaranteed. The Analysis Services will be performed during CSA’s local business hours, which are 

from 9:00 A.M - 5:00 P.M. (excluding national holidays), except for any automated monitoring, Monday 

through Friday, which CSA may, as needed, continue outside normal service hours. 

 

2. ANALYSIS SOFTWARE: To provide the Analysis Services, CSA uses certain software tools (the 

“Analysis Software”).  The Analysis Software is subject to the terms of its End User License Agreement, which 

shall control as to the matters contained therein, and should be provided to you as part of your MPS registration 

process or if requested. CSA intends to use Analysis Software to provide MPS to you pursuant to a separate 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 152 of 487



Version 2.0 Effective 2.1.22 Replaces all Prior Versions  Page 2 of 2 

agreement between the parties (the “MPS Agreement”).  YOU AGREE TO INSTALL OR PERMIT CSA TO 

INSTALL THE ANALYSIS SOFTWARE ON YOUR IT NETWORK, AND YOU AGREE TO PROVIDE 

ALL ASSISTANCE AND COOPERATION NECESSARY FOR PURPOSES THEREOF.  Use of the Analysis 

Software is solely for the purpose of CSA providing the Analysis Services and MPS.  Except upon CSA’s prior 

written consent, you may not assign, sublicense, market, distribute, or transfer the Analysis Software to any 

third party, you may not decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble or otherwise reduce the code of the Analysis 

Software to human readable form, and YOU MAY NOT MODIFY, ADAPT, TRANSLATE, RENT, LEASE 

OR LOAN THE ANALYSIS SOFTWARE OR CREATE DERIVATIVE WORKS BASED ON THE 

ANALYSIS SOFTWARE.  You acknowledge that the Analysis Software is the confidential property of the 

licensor and may be subject to license limitations in addition to those set forth herein.  You may not modify, 

remove or delete any copyright notice of CSA or an affiliate thereof or its licensors contained in the Analysis 

Software, including any copy thereof. CSA and its affiliates and their licensors, as applicable, retain in all 

respects the title, ownership and intellectual property rights in and to the Analysis Software, and except as 

expressly provided herein, no license or right, express or implied, is hereby conveyed or granted to you for any 

intellectual property of CSA, its affiliates and their licensors. 

 

3. TERMINATION OF SERVICES: Either party may terminate the Analysis Services at any time for 

any reason, and as the Analysis Services will be provided to you without any fees or charges, nothing herein 

shall be construed as obligating CSA to deliver to you any deliverables as a result thereof. Upon termination or 

completion of the Analysis Services, you will cooperate with CSA to remove and/or deactivate as directed by 

CSA any Analysis Software. Your obligations under this Agreement shall survive any MPS Agreement  which 

may hereafter be entered into between you and CSA. 

 

4. CONFIDENTIALITY: You recognize that in the course of CSA performing the Analysis Services, you 

may have access to confidential and proprietary information, trade secrets concerning the Analysis Software, other 

discovery methods, and CSA’s operations, including, without limitation, its technology and monitoring 

methodology, (collectively referred to as “CSA Confidential Information”).  You agree to maintain CSA 

Confidential Information as “confidential” and “proprietary” and not to disclose same to any third party without 

CSA’s prior written consent.   

 

5. ACKNOWLEDGMENT: YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE READ THIS 

AGREEMENT, UNDERSTAND IT, AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  

YOU ALSO AGREE THAT THIS AGREEMENT IS THE COMPLETE AND EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT 

OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU AND CSA CONCERNING THE ANALYSIS SERVICES AND 

ANALYSIS SOFTWARE AND UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH HEREIN, 

SUPERSEDE ALL PROPOSALS OR PRIOR AGREEMENTS, VERBAL OR WRITTEN, ANY PREVIOUS 

OR SUBSEQUENT CLICKTHROUGH AGREEMENTS REGARDING THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF, 

AND ANY OTHER COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN YOU AND CSA RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

MATTER HEREOF.  NO AMENDMENT TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UNLESS 

SIGNED BY DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES OF BOTH PARTIES.  

 
 

  
 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 153 of 487



Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)       Page 1 of 5 
 

 

RIDER G 

MASTER LEASE TERMS 

CFS -1133 (05/22) 

 

CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. 

14904 Collections Center Dr. 

Chicago, Illinois 60693 

(800) 220-0200 

THESE MASTER LEASE TERMS (the “Lease Terms”) apply to  any schedule incorporating these Lease Terms by reference whether 
designated as a “Lease Schedule- Itemized,” a “Lease Schedule - Blended” or otherwise (in any case, a “Lease Schedule”) entered into 
by and between Canon Financial Services, Inc. (“CFS”) and the customer identified in such Lease Schedule (“Customer) from time to 
time for the lease or rental, as applicable, to Customer of the Equipment (as defined below) supplied by Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
(“CSA”) and described in such Lease Schedule.  Each Lease Schedule referring to these Lease Terms will constitute a separate 

agreement for the lease of the equipment described therein and shall incorporate these Lease Terms. 

1.  AGREEMENT:  CFS leases to Customer and Customer leases from CFS all the equipment described in any Lease Schedule signed 
by Customer and accepted by CFS, together with all replacement parts and substitutions for and additions to such equipment (the 
“Equipment”), and licenses of software, if applicable, (“Listed Software”) with such Equipment and Listed Software collectively referred to 

as (the “Listed Items”), upon the Lease Terms.   

2.  TERM OF SCHEDULE:  Each Lease Schedule shall be effective on the date the Equipment is delivered to Customer, provided 
Customer executes CFS’ form of acceptance (“Acceptance Certificate”) or otherwise accepts the Equipment as specified herein. Any 
such acceptance is irrevocable. If Customer has not, within ten (10) days after delivery of such Equipment, delivered to CFS written notice 
of any non-acceptance, specifying the reasons therefor and specifically referencing the relevant Lease Schedule, Customer shall be 
deemed to have irrevocably accepted such Equipment. The term of each Lease Schedule begins on the date accepted by CFS or any 
later date that CFS designates, and shall consist of the payment period specified on such Lease Schedule and any renewal periods.  
After acceptance of the Equipment covered by any Lease Schedule, Customer shall have no right to revoke such acceptance or cancel 
such Lease Schedule during the term indicated thereon.  The term of any Lease Schedule shall end, unless sooner terminated by CFS, 
when all amounts required to be paid by Customer under such Lease Schedule have been paid as provided and either (a) Customer has 
purchased the Equipment in accordance with the terms hereof, or (b) the Equipment has been returned at the end of the scheduled term 
or renewal term in accordance with the terms thereof.  Customer has no right to return the Equipment to CFS prior to the end of the 

scheduled term of any Lease Schedule for any reason whatsoever, including, without limitation, payment of all amounts due hereunder 
prior to the end of the scheduled term. As between CFS and Customer only, these Lease Terms shall supersede any Customer purchase 

order in its entirety, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any such purchase order.     

3.  PAYMENTS:  Customer agrees to pay to CFS, as invoiced, during the term of each Lease Schedule, (a) the lease or rental payments 

specified on the respective Lease Schedule, and (b) such other amounts permitted thereunder or in these Lease Terms as invoiced by 
CFS (“Payments”).  The amount of each Payment and the End of Term Purchase Option specified on each Lease Schedule (“Purchase 
Option”) are based on CSA’s best estimate of the cost of the Equipment and any related services and supplies, including any sales and 
use tax.  Customer authorizes CFS to adjust such Payments and Purchase Option prices by up to fifteen percent (15%) if the actual total 
cost of the Equipment and any related services and supplies, including any sales or use tax, is more or less than originally estimated.   
CSA has the right to increase service charges subject to the following: (1) If a Lease Schedule indicates a “Fixed” Price Plan, all base 
copy charges (if any) and all Per Image Charges shall be Fixed for the initial term and shall be subject to increase after the initial term on 
each anniversary of the Commencement Date thereafter; (2) If a Lease Schedule indicates a “Standard” Price Plan, a) the Base Charges 
related to copy charges (if any) shall be subject to increase after the initial term on each anniversary of the Commencement Date; and b) 
the Per Image Charge shall be subject to increase annually on each anniversary of the Commencement Date;  and (3) The 
aforementioned increases in service charges shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of such charges which were in effect immediately 
prior to such price increase.  Customer agrees to advise CSA of the meter readings for the Equipment upon request.  Customer 
shall remit all Payments hereunder directly to CFS at 14904 Collections Center Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60693, unless otherwise directed 
by CFS.  Customer’s obligation to pay all amounts due under a Lease Schedule or these Lease Terms and all other obligations thereunder 
and hereunder is absolute and unconditional and is not subject to any abatement, set-off, defense, or counterclaim for any reason 

whatsoever.  If Customer fails to pay any sum to be paid by Customer to CFS under any Lease Schedule on or before the due date, 
Customer shall pay CFS, upon demand, an amount equal to the greater of ten percent (10%) of each such delayed Payment or twenty-
five dollars ($25) for each billing period or portion of a billing period such Payment is delayed, in each case to the extent permitted by 
applicable law.  The amounts specified above shall be paid as liquidated damages and as compensation for CFS’ internal operating 
expenses incurred in connection with such late payment.  In addition, Customer shall reimburse CFS for all of its out-of-pocket costs and 
expenses incurred in exercising any of its rights or remedies under any Lease Schedule or in enforcing any of the Lease Terms or any 
Lease Schedule, including without limitation reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys and collection agencies, whether or not suit is 
brought.  Customer agrees that CFS may in its sole discretion apply, but shall not be obligated to apply, any amount paid in advance to 
any amount due or to become due hereunder. In no event shall any amount paid in advance earn interest except where required by 

applicable law.   

 4.  NO CFS WARRANTIES:  CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT CFS IS NOT A MANUFACTURER, DEALER, OR SUPPLIER OF 
THE EQUIPMENT.  CUSTOMER AGREES THAT THE EQUIPMENT IS LEASED OR RENTED “AS IS” AND IS OF A SIZE, DESIGN, 

CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA, INC. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 154 of 487



Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)       Page 2 of 5 
 

AND CAPACITY SELECTED BY CUSTOMER.  CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT CFS HAS MADE NO REPRESENTATION OR 
WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE SUITABILITY OR DURABILITY OF THE EQUIPMENT, THE ABSENCE OF ANY CLAIM OF 
INFRINGEMENT OR THE LIKE, OR ANY OTHER REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT 
TO THE EQUIPMENT INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  So long as Customer is not in breach or default of any Lease Schedule, CFS assigns to Customer 
any warranties (including those agreed to between Customer and the manufacturer, dealer, or supplier) which CFS may have with respect 
to any item of Equipment; provided that the scope and limitations of any such warranty shall be solely as set out in any agreement 
between Customer and such manufacturer, dealer, or supplier or as otherwise specified in warranty materials from such manufacturer, 

dealer, or supplier and shall not include any implied warranties arising solely from CFS’ acquisition of the Equipment.  CUSTOMER 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT NEITHER THE SUPPLIER NOR ANY DEALER IS AUTHORIZED TO WAIVE OR ALTER ANY 
LEASE TERM OR ANY LEASE SCHEDULE, OR MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE LEASE 

TERMS, ANY LEASE SCHEDULE, OR THE EQUIPMENT, ON BEHALF OF CFS. 

5.  USE; LOCATION; LIENS; PERSONAL PROPERTY; FINANCING STATEMENTS:  Customer shall comply with all laws and 
regulations relating to the use and maintenance of the Equipment.  Customer shall put the Equipment only to the use contemplated by 
the manufacturer.  The Equipment shall remain personal property regardless of whether it becomes affixed to real property or permanently 
rests upon any real property or any improvement to real property.  Customer shall not move the Equipment from the location specified on 
the applicable Lease Schedule except with the prior written consent of CFS.  Customer shall keep the Equipment free and clear of all 
claims and liens other than those in favor of CFS. Customer authorizes CFS (and any third party filing service designated by CFS) to 
execute and file (a) financing statements evidencing the interest of CFS in the Equipment (including forms containing a broader description 
of the Equipment than the description set forth in the respective Lease Schedule), (b) continuation statements in respect thereof, and (c) 
amendments thereto, and Customer irrevocably waives any right to notice thereof. Customer’s legal name (as set forth in its constituent 
documents filed with the appropriate governmental office or agency) is as set forth herein.  Customer shall provide CFS with written notice 

at least thirty (30) days prior to any change of its legal name, chief executive office address or jurisdiction of organization). 

6.  INDEMNITY:  Customer shall indemnify and defend CFS, its subsidiaries, directors, officers, employees and agents from and against 
any and all costs, expenses, liabilities, injuries, claims, damages, losses, judgments or fees (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) caused 
by the Equipment, including, without limitation, arising from or related to the storage, transmission or destruction of Data. This Section 

shall survive termination of any and all Lease Schedules. 

7.  MAINTENANCE:  Customer shall keep and maintain the Equipment in good working order and shall, at Customer’s expense, supply 
and install all replacement parts and accessories when required to maintain the Equipment in good working condition.  Customer shall 
not, without the prior written consent of CFS, make any changes or substitutions for and to the Equipment.  Any and all replacement 
parts, accessories, authorized changes to and/or substitutions for the Equipment shall become part of the Equipment and subject to the 
Lease Terms. If a Lease Schedule includes payments for service and supplies, CSA is responsible for providing the service and supplies 
described in the Lease Schedule in accordance with CSA’s terms and conditions, of which Customer acknowledges receipt.  Unless 
otherwise indicated on a Lease Schedule, Customer authorizes CSA to use networked features of the Equipment and remote reporting 
software (“Remote Reporting Agent”) to obtain meter readings, receive software updates, activate features/new licenses and transmit 
use and service data accumulated by the Equipment over your network by means of an HTTPS protocol and to store, analyze and use 

such data for purposes related to servicing the Equipment, providing reports and product improvement. Customer also authorizes CSA 
to accept on Customer’s behalf, and Customer agrees to comply with, any licenses, terms of use and services, and privacy statements, 
which, unless otherwise agreed in writing by CSA, shall solely control as to the matters contained therein, including those pertaining to 
any personal data Customer may have shared in connection with the use of the Remote Reporting Agent.   For example, CSA utilizes 
the Canon Universal Gateway 2 (“UGW2”) as a Remote Reporting Agent through the UGW2 website, and the above authorization shall 
apply to the UGW2 Terms of Use and Terms of Service, and the UGW2 Privacy Statement. Customer acknowledges that the charges 
set forth on the Lease Schedule are contingent on the continued use of Remote Reporting Agent during the term.  If CSA does not receive 
timely meter readings from Customer, Customer shall pay invoices that reflect CSA’s estimates of meter readings.  CSA or CFS may 
verify the accuracy of any meter readings from time to time and invoice Customer for any shortfall in the next invoice. Customer shall use 
reasonable care in handling and operation of the Equipment.  CSA shall have the right to substitute equivalent Equipment at any time 
during the term of a Lease Schedule in connection with any replacement of the Equipment by CSA.  Customer acknowledges that CFS 
will not be responsible for any service, repairs, or maintenance of the Equipment, whether provided for in the Lease Terms, the applicable 
Lease Schedule, or in any other agreement between CSA and Customer, and that if Customer has a dispute regarding the Equipment or 
the maintenance thereof, Customer shall continue to pay all charges due under the applicable Lease Schedule without deducting or 

withholding any amounts.  

8.  TAXES; OTHER FEES AND CHARGES:  CUSTOMER SHALL PAY AND DISCHARGE WHEN DUE ALL LICENSE AND 
REGISTRATION FEES, ASSESSMENTS, SALES, USE, PROPERTY AND OTHER TAXES, AND OTHER EXPENSES AND CHARGES, 
together with any applicable penalties, interest, and administrative fees now or at any time imposed upon any Equipment, the Payments, 
or Customer’s performance or non-performance of its obligations hereunder, whether payable by or assessed to CFS or Customer.  If 

Customer fails to pay any such fees, assessments, taxes, expenses, or charges, as required hereunder, CFS shall have the right but not 
the obligation to pay those fees, assessments, taxes, expenses, and charges, and Customer shall promptly reimburse CFS, upon 
demand, for all such payments made plus administrative fees and costs, if any. Customer acknowledges that where required by law, CFS 
will file any notices and pay personal property taxes levied on the Equipment.  Customer shall reimburse CFS for the expense of such 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 155 of 487



Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)       Page 3 of 5 
 

personal property taxes as invoiced by CFS and pay CFS a processing fee not to exceed $50 per year per item of Equipment that is 
subject to such tax. Customer agrees that CFS has not, and will not, render tax advice to Customer and that the payment of such taxes 
is an administrative act.  For each Lease Schedule commenced incorporating these Lease Terms, Customer shall pay to CFS a 

documentation fee in the amount of $85.  

9.  LOSS; DAMAGE; INSURANCE:  Customer shall bear the entire risk of loss, theft or damage to the Equipment from any cause 
whatsoever, effective upon delivery to Customer.  No such loss, theft, or damage shall relieve Customer of any obligation under the Lease 
Terms or any Lease Schedule.  In the event of damage to any item of Equipment, Customer shall immediately repair such damage at 
Customer’s expense.  If any Equipment is lost, stolen, or damaged beyond repair, Customer, at the option of CFS, will (a) replace the 
same with like equipment in a condition acceptable to CFS and convey clear title to such equipment to CFS (and such equipment will 
become “Equipment” and be subject to the Lease Terms), or (b) pay CFS the Remaining Lease Balance. Customer, at its sole cost and 
expense, shall, during the term hereof obtain and maintain property and liability insurance in form, amount, and with companies 
satisfactory to CFS.  Each policy of insurance shall name CFS as additional insured and loss payee and provide CFS thirty (30) days 

written notice before the policy in question shall be materially altered or canceled.  The proceeds of such insurance, at the option of CFS, 
shall be applied to (a) replace or repair the Equipment, or (b) pay CFS the Remaining Lease Balance on the applicable Lease Schedule. 
The “Remaining Lease Balance” shall be the sum of: (i) all Payments then owed and outstanding; (ii) the present value of all remaining 
Payments; (iii) the Purchase Option price of the Listed Items indicated on the Lease Schedule plus (iv) any applicable taxes, expenses, 
charges, and fees.   For purposes of determining present value under any Lease Schedule, Payments shall be discounted at three percent 
(3%) per year.  Customer hereby appoints CFS as Customer’s attorney-in-fact solely to make claim for, receive payment of, and execute 
and endorse all documents, checks, or drafts for any loss or damage under any such insurance policy.  If Customer fails to provide proof 
of insurance, CFS may, but is not required to obtain insurance covering CFS’ interests, and charge the Customer for the costs of such 

insurance, and an administrative fee. CFS and any of its affiliates may make a profit on the foregoing.   

10.  DEFAULT:  Any of the following events or conditions shall constitute an Event of Default under all Lease Schedules: (a) Customer 
defaults in the payment when due of any indebtedness of Customer to CFS, whether or not arising under any Lease Schedule, without 
notice or demand by CFS; (b) Customer or any guarantor of Customer’s obligations hereunder (“Guarantor”) ceases doing business as 
a going concern; (c) Customer or any Guarantor becomes insolvent or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) a petition or 
proceeding is filed by or against Customer or any Guarantor under any bankruptcy or insolvency law; (e) a receiver, trustee, conservator, 
or liquidator is appointed for Customer, any Guarantor, or any of their property; (f) any statement, representation or warranty made by 

Customer or any Guarantor to CFS is incorrect in any material respect; or (g) if Customer or any Guarantor who is a natural person dies. 

11.  REMEDIES:  Upon the happening of any one or more Events of Default, CFS shall have the right to exercise any one or all of the 
following remedies (which shall be cumulative), simultaneously, or serially, and in any order: (a) require Customer to immediately pay all 
unpaid Payments under any Lease Schedule (whether or not then due) and other amounts due under any and all Lease Schedules, with 
CFS retaining title to the Equipment; (b) to terminate any and all Lease Schedules with Customer; (c) with or without notice, demand or 
legal process, to enter upon the premises wherever the Equipment may be found, to retake possession of any or all of the Equipment, 
and (i) retain such Equipment and all Payments and other sums paid under all Lease Schedules, or (ii) sell the Equipment and recover 
from Customer the amount by which the Remaining Lease Balance exceeds the net amount received by CFS from such sale; or (d) to 
pursue any other remedy permitted at law or in equity.  CFS (A) may dispose of the Equipment in its then present condition or following 

such preparation and processing as CFS deems commercially reasonable; (B) shall have no duty to prepare or process the Equipment 
prior to sale; (C) may disclaim warranties of title, possession, quiet enjoyment and the like; and (D) may comply with any applicable state 
or federal law requirements in connection with a disposition of the Equipment and none of the foregoing actions shall be deemed to 
adversely affect the commercial reasonableness of the disposition of the Equipment.  If the Equipment is not available for sale, Customer 
shall be liable for the Remaining Lease Balance and any other amounts due under the applicable Lease Schedule.  No waiver of any of 
Customer’s obligations, conditions or covenants shall be effective unless contained in a writing signed by CFS.  Failure to exercise any 

remedy that CFS may have shall not constitute a waiver of any obligation with respect to which Customer is in default. 

12.  ASSIGNMENT:  CUSTOMER SHALL NOT ASSIGN OR PLEDGE ANY LEASE SCHEDULE IN WHOLE OR IN PART, NOR SHALL 
CUSTOMER SUBLET OR LEND ANY EQUIPMENT WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF CFS.  CFS may pledge or transfer any 
Lease Schedule.  Customer agrees that if CFS transfers any Lease Schedule, the assignee will have the same rights and benefits that 
CFS has now and will not have to perform any of CFS’ obligations which CFS will continue to perform.  Customer agrees that the rights 
of the assignee will not be subject to any claims, defenses, or set-offs that Customer may have against CFS.  If Customer is given notice 
of any such transfer, Customer agrees if so directed therein, to pay directly to the assignee all or any part of the amounts payable 

hereunder.   

13.  RENEWAL; RETURN:  Except in the case of a Lease Schedule containing a $1.00 Purchase Option, each Lease Schedule 
automatically renews under the same terms and conditions on a month-to-month basis if Customer fails to give CFS 60 days’ prior written 
notice of its intent to purchase or return the Equipment before the end of any term. Unless a Lease Schedule automatically renews or 
Customer purchases the Equipment, Customer shall return the Equipment on the day the Lease Schedule terminates in good operating 
condition, ordinary wear and tear resulting from proper use excepted, at Customer's sole cost and expense to a location specified by 
CFS, and shall reimburse CFS for any costs incurred to place the Equipment in good operating condition. CFS may charge Customer a 

return fee equal to the greater of one Payment or $250 for the processing of returned Equipment.   

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 156 of 487



Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)       Page 4 of 5 
 

14.  PURCHASE OPTION:  A) END OF TERM PURCHASE OPTION. At the end of any term, Customer shall give CFS 60 days’ 
irrevocable prior written notice (unless the Purchase Option is $1.00) that it will purchase all the Equipment at the Purchase Option plus 
any costs. (B) PRIOR TO MATURITY PURCHASE. Customer may, at any time, upon 60 days’ irrevocable prior written notice, purchase 
all the Equipment at a price equal to the sum of all remaining Payments plus the Fair Market Value plus costs. “Fair Market Value” shall 
be CFS' retail price when Customer purchases the Equipment. Equipment purchases shall be “AS-IS WHERE-IS” without warranty, 

except for title. 

15.  DATA:  Customer acknowledges that the hard drive(s) on the Equipment, including attached devices, may retain images, content or 
other data that Customer may store for purposes of normal operation of the Equipment (“Data”).  Customer acknowledges that CFS is 
not storing Data on behalf of Customer.  Neither CFS nor any of its affiliates has an obligation to erase or overwrite Data upon Customer’s 
return of the Equipment to CFS.  Customer is solely responsible for: (A) its compliance with applicable law and legal requirements 
pertaining to data privacy, storage, security, retention and protection; and (B) all decisions related to erasing or overwriting Data.  The 
Equipment contains various security features that Customer may utilize in this regard.  Customer should contact CSA for further 

information.  CSA will work with you to provide information regarding your options and offer services to assist you.  Please note that such 
services may result in additional charges.  The terms of this section shall solely govern as to Data, notwithstanding that any provisions of 
the Lease Terms or any separate confidentiality or data security or other agreement now or hereafter entered into between Customer, 

CSA and CFS applies, or could be construed to apply to Data. 

16.  MAXIMUM INTEREST; RECHARACTERIZED AGREEMENT:  No Payment is intended to exceed the maximum amount of interest 

permitted to be charged or collected by applicable laws, and any such excess Payment will be applied to payments due under the 
applicable Lease Schedule, in inverse order of maturity, and any excess shall be refunded.  If any Lease Schedule is recharacterized as 
a conditional sale or loan, Customer hereby grants to CFS, its successors and assigns a security interest in the Equipment to secure 

payment and performance of Customer’s obligations under the Lease Terms and such Lease Schedule.  

17.  UCC - ARTICLE 2A:  CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT EACH LEASE SCHEDULE IS INTENDED AS A 

“FINANCE LEASE” AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED IN ARTICLE 2A OF THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE (“UCC 2A”), AND THAT 
CFS IS ENTITLED TO ALL BENEFITS, PRIVILEGES, AND PROTECTIONS OF A LESSOR UNDER A FINANCE LEASE.  CUSTOMER 

WAIVES ITS RIGHTS AS A LESSEE UNDER UCC 2A SECTIONS 508-522. 

18.  WAIVER OF OFFSET:  The lease created by each Lease Schedule is a net lease.  If the Equipment is not properly installed, does 
not operate as represented or warranted, or is unsatisfactory for any reason, Customer shall make such claim solely against the dealer, 

supplier, or manufacturer.  Customer waives any and all existing and future claims and offsets against any Payments or other charges 
due under each Lease Schedule and these Lease Terms and unconditionally agrees to pay such Payments and other charges, regardless 

of any offset or claim which may be asserted by Customer or on its behalf. 

19. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL:  EACH LEASE SCHEDULE SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES BE DEEMED 

A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO IN THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY.  THE RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES UNDER EACH LEASE SCHEDULE 
SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY WITHOUT REFERENCE TO CONFLICT OF LAW 
PRINCIPLES.  ANY ACTION BETWEEN CUSTOMER AND CFS SHALL BE BROUGHT IN ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT 
LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN OR BURLINGTON, NEW JERSEY, OR AT CFS’ SOLE OPTION, IN THE STATE WHERE 
THE CUSTOMER OR THE EQUIPMENT IS LOCATED.  CUSTOMER, BY ITS EXECUTION AND DELIVERY HEREOF, IRREVOCABLY 
WAIVES OBJECTIONS TO THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS AND OBJECTIONS TO VENUE AND CONVENIENCE OF 
FORUM.  CUSTOMER, BY ITS EXECUTION OF ANY LEASE SCHEDULE, AND CFS, BY ITS ACCEPTANCE THEREOF, HEREBY 
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IN ANY SUCH PROCEEDINGS UNLESS CUSTOMER RESIDES IN A STATE 

IN WHICH A WAIVER OF A RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IS UNENFORCEABLE AS A MATTER OF THAT STATE’S PUBLIC POLICY. 

20.  MISCELLANEOUS:  All notices required or permitted under the Lease Terms or any Lease Schedule shall be sufficient if delivered 
personally, sent via electronic transmission, or mailed to such party at the address set forth in an applicable Lease Schedule, or at such 
other address as such party may designate in writing from time to time.  Any notice deposited in the mail shall be effective after it has 
been received.   Customer’s representations, warranties, and covenants under each Lease Schedule shall survive the delivery and return 
of the respective Equipment.  Any provision of the Lease Terms which may be determined by competent authority to be prohibited or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without 
invalidating the remaining provisions of the Lease Terms.  No such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall invalidate or 
render unenforceable such provision in any other jurisdiction.  Customer agrees that CFS may insert missing information on a Lease 
Schedule including the Equipment’s description, serial number, and location, and corrections to Customer’s legal name; otherwise, each 
Lease Schedule (incorporating the Lease Terms by reference) contains the entire arrangement between Customer and CFS with respect 

to such Lease Schedule and no modifications thereof shall be effective unless in writing and signed by the parties.  Customer agrees that 
CFS may accept an electronic transmission of any Lease Schedule or any Acceptance Certificate as an original, and that  electronically 
transmitted copies of Customer’s signature will be treated as an original for all purposes. If the Lease Schedule references an existing 
master agreement between Customer and CFS (the “Existing Master CFS Lease”) and to the extent applicable to the transactions 
contemplated by the Lease Schedule, then the terms of the Existing Master CFS Lease shall control over the Lease Terms for so long 

as the Existing Master CFS Lease remains in effect. 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 157 of 487



Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)       Page 5 of 5 
 

21. APPROVED AFFILIATES AND APPROVED SUBSIDIARIES:  From time to time, affiliates and subsidiaries of Customer that meet 
CFS’ credit underwriting standards then in effect (each, an “Approved Affiliate” or “Approved Subsidiary”) may enter into Lease Schedules 
hereunder on the same terms and conditions as if each such Approved Affiliate or Approved Subsidiary was the Customer hereunder.  
Each of Customer and each Approved Affiliate or Approved Subsidiary shall be jointly and severally liable for the obligations under the 

Schedule(s) entered into by it pursuant to this Agreement. 

22. FISCAL FUNDING (if applicable): This Section 22 shall only apply if “Fiscal Funding” is designated on the Lease Schedule. 
Customer warrants that it has funds available to pay Payments payable pursuant to the Lease Schedule until the end of its current 
appropriation period and warrants that it presently intends to make Payments in each appropriation period from now until the end of the 
term of Lease Schedule. The officer of Customer responsible for preparation of Customer's annual budget shall request from its legislative 
body or funding authority funds to be paid to CFS under the Lease Terms and any Lease Schedule. If notwithstanding the making in good 
faith of such request in accordance with appropriate procedures and with the exercise of reasonable care and diligence, such legislative 
body or funding authority does not appropriate funds to be paid to CFS for the Equipment, Customer may, upon prior written notice to 

CFS, effective upon the exhaustion of the funding authorized for the then current appropriation period, return the Equipment to CFS, at 
Customer's expense and in accordance with each Lease Schedule, and thereupon, Customer shall be released of its obligation to make 
Payments to CFS due thereafter, provided: (1) the Equipment is returned to CFS as provided for in the Lease Schedule; (2) the above 
described notice states the failure of the legislative body or funding authority to appropriate the necessary funds as the reason for 
cancellation; and (3) such notice is accompanied by payment of all amounts then due to CFS under the Lease Schedule.  In the event 
Customer returns the Equipment pursuant to the terms of the Lease Schedule, CFS shall retain all sums paid by Customer. Customer's 
Payment obligations under each Lease Schedule in any fiscal year shall constitute a current expense of Customer for such fiscal year, 
and shall not constitute indebtedness or a multiple fiscal year obligation of Customer under Customer's state constitution, state law or 
home rule charter. Nothing in the Lease Terms shall constitute a pledge by Customer of any taxes or other monies, other than as 

appropriated for a specific fiscal year for each Lease Schedule and the Equipment.  

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 158 of 487



Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Printer Services Agreement 
Rider H 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)      Page 1 of 3 

RIDER H 
HOME OFFICE PRINT-AS-A-SERVICE PROGRAM 

 
THE GENERAL TERMS ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE.  THE TERMS OF THIS 

RIDER H SHALL CONTROL OVER THE GENERAL TERMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY 
STATED HEREIN. 

 

1. SUBSCRIPTION PRINTER SERVICES.   

(a) This Rider H modifies the terms of the Agreement whereby CSA will provide a printer(s) set forth on the 
related Order Schedule (“Printer”), Printer Support and the Supply Inclusive Program, both as defined below 

for each such Printer (all collectively “Printer Services” for purposes of this Rider) for the Initial Term set 
forth in the Order Schedule (“Initial Term”). Printers will be either “Color Printers” or “B/W Printers as 

designated on the Order Schedule.  You agree that CSA will provide the Printer Services at the Ship to 
Location(s) on the Order Schedule (“Location”), and you shall not relocate any Printer from its Ship to 
Location without CSA’s consent.  You further agree to accept and pay the number of periodic payments 

(“Charges”) for the Printer Services for the Term as set forth in the Order Schedule.  The Printer Services 
shall be provided pursuant to the Agreement as modified by this Rider H, and the terms of service and/or 

end user license agreement for the Printer Services. Printer Services shall be considered “Listed Items” 
under the Agreement. Title to the Printers shall remain with CSA or its assignee, and you shall be 
responsible for risk of loss or damage to any Printer upon delivery and until it is returned to CSA or its 

assignee.  You acknowledge and agree that CSA may transfer title to the Printers and assign its rights to 
invoice and collect the Charges and any associated fees to its affiliate, Canon Financial Services, Inc. 

(“CFS”) or its assignee, and you agree to timely make such payments to CFS.   Except as aforesaid, CFS 
does not and shall not assume any obligations under this Agreement. 

(b) Printer(s) shall be shipped to the Location(s) of your employees or agents (“Users”).  You acknowledge 

that you have the requisite authority to permit shipment to the Ship To Address.  The Printer shall be 
unpacked and set up by the User.  The shipping carton and packing materials should be retained by the 
User for return of the Printer to CSA or its assignee. Users may access information concerning the Printer 

Services and their responsibilities at https://csa.canon.com/printasaservice. 

2. RENEWAL.  

(a) Notice Not to Renew. You shall be sent ninety (90) days advance written notice that the Printer Services 
shall automatically renew for additional one (1) year terms (each a “Renewal Term”). You must provide 

written notice to CFS not to renew the Printer Services in part or in total within 30 days prior to the end of 
the Initial Term or each Renewal Term.  Notice of non-renewal must be sent by email to 

customer@cfs.canon.com, or by certified mail or overnight courier to P.O. Box 5008, Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054 
Attn: Customer Service. 

(b) All Other Notices.  Other than notices not to renew set forth on 2(a) above, all other notices hereunder 

must be in writing detailing all issues, and must be sent to CSA by email to customercare@csa.canon.com, 
or by certified mail or overnight currier to 300 Commerce Square Blvd., Burlington, New Jersey 08016 Attn: 
Customer Service, with a copy of any notice of default, breach, request for indemnity, or any other demand 

or claim against CSA or CFS, by email to legal@csa.canon.com or by certified mail or overnight courier to 
Senior Vice President, Legal Department, Canon Solutions America, Inc., One Canon Park, Melville, New 

York, 11747.   

(c) The Initial Term and Renewal Term collectively the “Term”. During each Renewal Term you shall receive 
the Printer Support and Printer Supplies as set forth below.    

  

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 159 of 487

https://csa.canon.com/printasaservice
mailto:customer@cfs.canon.com
mailto:customercare@csa.canon.com
mailto:legal@csa.canon.com


Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Printer Services Agreement 
Rider H 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)      Page 2 of 3 

(d) Upon expiration of the Term, you agree to return the Printer as instructed by CSA. CSA may increase 
pricing during each Renewal Term and may cancel Printer Services during any Renewal Term upon written 

notice to you, in which case CSA will refund any unearned charges for the balance of the Renewal Term to 
you.      

3. DEFAULT. You shall be in default if you fail to make prompt payment of the Charges within 30 days of 

the invoice date. CSA may withhold Printer Services in whole or in part until any delinquent payment is 
received by CSA. CSA may terminate Printer Services in whole or in part upon your default with thirty (30) 

days’ notice to you, unless such default is cured by you within the thirty (30) day period.  In the event of 
your default, you shall promptly return the Printer as instructed by CSA; and CSA may, in its sole discretion 
and without limiting its other rights and remedies available under applicable law, require you to pay all 

payments then due but unpaid, including any applicable late charges, plus an early termination fee equal 
to the balance of the periodic payments of the Charges owed for the Term or Renewal Term. Should you 

fail or refuse to promptly return the Printer as required by Sections 2(d) or 3, you agree to pay a Charge 
equal to the fair market value of the Printer, as determined by CSA. You agree that such Charges are 
reasonable liquidated damages for loss of bargain and not a penalty.    

4. WARRANTY OF BUSINESS PURPOSE. You represent and warrant that that the Printer Services will 
not be used for personal, family or household purposes. 

5. PRINTER SUPPORT. You or the User may obtain Printer Support by calling 1-800-OK-CANON (652-
2666) using the Printer serial number.  Unless otherwise set forth on the Order Schedule,  

Color Printer(s) include a three year warranty from Canon, USA, Inc. (“CUSA”) which can be found at 

https://www.usa.canon.com/internet/portal/us/home/support/details/printers/megatank-inkjet-printers/all-
megatank-inkjet-printers/maxify-gx6020/maxify-gx6020-wireless-megatank-small-office-all-in-one-

printer?tab=warranty; and  

B/W Printer(s) include a two year warranty from CUSA which can be found at 
https://downloads.canon.com/warranty/Warranty-imageCLASS-Exchange-Carryin-2years.pdf (each a 

“Warranty”).  

For the 3rd year of the Initial Term for B/W Printers and each annual Renewal Term for both Color Printers 
and B/W Printers, Services for the Printers are provided in accordance with eCarePAK Extended Service 

Plan (the "eCarePAK") provided by CUSA which can be found at 
https://shop.usa.canon.com/shop/en/catalog/ecarepak-terms.  

CSA will automatically register you for both the Warranty and the eCarePAK. The terms of the Warranty 
and eCarePak are incorporated into this Rider and shall solely govern as to the matters contained therein.  

No other Maintenance terms shall apply to the Printers.   

6. SUPPLY INCLUSIVE PROGRAM.  

(a) The Printer Services includes replenishment of toner or ink cartridges and drum(s) or maintenance 
cartridges (collectively “Printer Supplies”) for each Printer are as follows (the “Printer Plans”): 

If “Standard Plan” is indicated on the Order Schedule for the Printer, two (2) toner cartridges and one (1) 

drum shall be delivered with the Printer. Thereafter you may order up to four (4) toner cartridges during the 
Initial Term which are included with the Standard Plan. You will also receive two (2) toner cartridge for each 

year of the Renewal Term.   

If “Plus Plan” is indicated on the Order Schedule for the Printer, two (2) toner cartridges and one (1) drum 
shall be delivered with the Printer. Thereafter you may order up to nine (9) toner cartridges and one (1) 

drum during the Initial Term which are included with the Plus Plan.  You may also order up to four (4) toner 
cartridge and one drum for each year of the Renewal Term.  

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 160 of 487

https://www.usa.canon.com/internet/portal/us/home/support/details/printers/megatank-inkjet-printers/all-megatank-inkjet-printers/maxify-gx6020/maxify-gx6020-wireless-megatank-small-office-all-in-one-printer?tab=warranty
https://www.usa.canon.com/internet/portal/us/home/support/details/printers/megatank-inkjet-printers/all-megatank-inkjet-printers/maxify-gx6020/maxify-gx6020-wireless-megatank-small-office-all-in-one-printer?tab=warranty
https://www.usa.canon.com/internet/portal/us/home/support/details/printers/megatank-inkjet-printers/all-megatank-inkjet-printers/maxify-gx6020/maxify-gx6020-wireless-megatank-small-office-all-in-one-printer?tab=warranty
https://downloads.canon.com/warranty/Warranty-imageCLASS-Exchange-Carryin-2years.pdf
https://shop.usa.canon.com/shop/en/catalog/ecarepak-terms


Canon Solutions America, Inc. 
Master Sales and Printer Services Agreement 
Rider H 

Version 2.0, Dated 5-16-22 (Replaces all prior versions)      Page 3 of 3 

If “Color Ink Standard Plan” is indicated on an Order Schedule for a Color Printer, three (3) black ink 
cartridges, plus one (1) ink cartridge each of cyan, magenta, and yellow, and one (1) maintenance cartridge 

shall be delivered with the Printer. Thereafter you may order up to five (5) ink cartridges of any type and 
two (2) maintenance cartridges during the Initial Term, which are included with the Maxify Standard Plan. 

You may order up to five (5) ink cartridges of any color and 1 maintenance cartridge for each year of any 
Renewal Term.   

If “Color Ink Plus Plan” is indicated on an Order Schedule for a Color Printer, three (3) black ink cartridges, 

plus one (1) ink cartridge each of cyan, magenta, and yellow, and one (1) maintenance cartridge shall be 
delivered with the Printer. Thereafter you may order up to ten (10) ink cartridges of any type and three (3) 
maintenance cartridges during the Initial Term, which are included with the Maxify Standard Plan. You will 

also receive may order up to 8 (eight) ink cartridges of any color and two (2) maintenance cartridges for 
each year of any Renewal Term.   

(b) Printer Supplies are to be used solely with the applicable Printer for which it is ordered and provided.   

Yields for Printer Supplies are based on the manufacturer’s specifications.  All Printer Supplies will be 
shipped directly to the Ship to Address set forth on the Order Schedule during the Term. You agree to pay 

all applicable taxes and shipping charges for Printer Supplies. Included Printer Supplies must be ordered 
and used during the Initial Term or Renewal Term for which they are provided. 

You may order included or additional Printer Supplies by contacting CSA customer service at 800-355-
1390 using the Printer serial number. 

(c) Additional toner and ink cartridges, maintenance cartridges and drums beyond those included with the 

Printer Plan as set forth above may be purchased at CSA’s standard rates.  Orders for additional Printer 
Supplies (and any other supplies such as staples, paper, etc.) (a) must include a valid Customer purchase 

order number; (b) will be shipped to Customer FOB destination; and (c) are subject to a twenty percent 
(20%) restocking fee if accepted for return by CSA pursuant to its Material Return Authorization (MRA) 

procedure.  If Customer requires a carrier other than CSA’s preferred carrier(s), Customer shall provide 
CSA with the carrier’s name and Customer’s account number so that delivery charges will be incurred 
directly by Customer.  “Expedite/Emergency Orders” are any orders, regardless of the shipping method, 

that per Customer’s request, must be shipped on the same day as ordered and such Expedite/Emergency 
Orders are subject to the actual delivery charges.  Customer is solely responsible for any damage to Printer 

Supplies after delivery. Claims for defective items, item shortages and invoice discrepancies as well as 
notification of both lost shipments and in transit damage to items (not otherwise accepted by Customer) 
must be provided to CSA within ten (10) days of the earlier of (i) receipt of the item or (ii) the invoice date 

(whichever is applicable). 

CONTRACT NO. 2117October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 161 of 487



RESOLUTION NO. 7516 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO APPROVING A COPIER LEASE AND 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR COPIERS AT CITY HALL, 
PUBLIC WORKS, AND RECREATION AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DEPARTMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando is authorized by California Government Code to 
pmticipate in cooperative purchasing agreements; 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando would like receive national volume pricing from 
the National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) contract #100-312SEC for copiers at City Hall, 
Public Works, and Recreation and Community Services Departments; 

WHEREAS, Image 2000 is a member of the National Joint Powers Alliance and 
authorized dealer to provide NJP A pricing; 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando would like to enter into a 60-month Lease 
Agreement with De Lage Landen Public Finance LLC, facilitated by Image 2000; and 

WHEREAS, the City of San Fernando would like to enter into a 60-month Maintenance 
Agreement with Image 2000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby approves the two agreements for the lease and 
maintenance of new copiers and copier maintenance support for City Hall, Public Works, and 
Recreation and Community Services Departments and authorizes the Interim City Administrator 
to execute said agreement, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibits "A" and 
"B" . 

PASSED,APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of January, 2013. 

ATTEST: 

ATTACHMENT "B"

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 162 of 487



STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) ss 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO ) 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was approved and adopted at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the 22nd day of January, 2013, by the following vote 
to wit: 

A YES: Ballin, Gonzales, Fajardo, Avila - 4 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: Lopez - 1 

ABSTAIN: None 

v-(jpna_J~~ 
Elena G. Chavez, City Cle% 

2 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 163 of 487



EXHIBIT "A" 

DOCUMENTATION INSTRUCTIONS 
The instructions listed below should be followed when completing the enclosed documentation. Documentation completed improperly will delay funding. 
If you have any questions regarding the instructions or the documentation, please call us. 

I. STATE AND GOVERNMENT LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
1. Bank Qualification Section 

• Read and check box if appropriate 
2. Lessee Signature 

• Complete and Sign 

II. ATTACHMENT 1 - LEASE PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
• Sign and date 
• Print name 

Ill. ATTACHMENT 2 - EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION - (WHEN PROVIDED) 
• Sign and date 
• Print name 
• Type in Complete Equipment Description to include serial numbers and location addresses (if applicable). 

IV. STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA - (WHEN PROVIDED) 
Required for: AZ, AR, CO, FL, GA, KS, LA, Ml, MN, Ne, NJ, NY, OH, TX and OK 
• Sign and/or Attest when required 

V. ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 
• Date the date of equipment acceptance and Sign 

VI. 8038 OR GC - IRS FORM 
• In Box 2, Enter your Federal ID Number 
• Sign. date and write in Name and Title 
• 8038GC - Line 6 & 7 Enter Contact Name and Telephone Number 
• 8038G - Line 9 & 10 Enter Contact Name and Telephone Number 
• The enclosed 8038G or GC Form is a SAMPLE only. The actual 8038G or GC will be completed and sent to you for your signature after closing, with 

instructions to return the original to us at your earliest convenience. This is being done in this manner to comply with Internal Revenue Service regulation. 

VII. CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
• Attach both Property and Llablllty Certificates of Insurance showing De Lage Landen Public Finance and/or Us Assigns 

as "loss payee" and "additional insured", respectively.) 
• THE CERTIFICATE MUST ALSO SHOW THE PHYSICAL ADDRESS WHERE THE EQUIPMENT WILL BE LOCATED. 

VIII. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION THAT MUST BE SENT PRIOR TO FUNDING: 
• Original vendor invoice (if applicable) 
• Advance payment check made payable to De Lage Landen Public Finance (if applicable) 
• Copy of title/MSO listing De Lage Landen Public Finance &/or Its Assigns as 1st lien holder (if applicable) 

ALL DOCUMENTATION SHOULD BE RETURNED TO: 
De Lage Landen Public Finance LLC 
Lease Processing Center 
1111 Old Eagle School Road 
Wayne, PA 19087 
800-736-0220 
Attention: Barbara Wozniak 

©1011 All R~hls ReselVe<l Ptonled on th, US A 0BPF00C073v3 1/11 

l ,-.. 
c:, 
(.') 

0 
C u. 
Cl. 
co 
c:, 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 164 of 487



De Lage Landen Public Finance LLC 
11 11 Old Eagle School Road 
Wayne, PA 19087 

Full Legal Name 
City of San Fernando 

OBA Name (ii any) 

Billi'ljAddress 
117 McNeil Street 

Ci~ 
San Fernando 

State and Local Government Lease-Purchase Agreement 
PHONE: (800) 736-0220 

FACSIMILE: (800) 700-4643 

Slale 
CA 

Zip 
91340 

Phone Number 
818 898-1200 

Purchase Order Requisition Number 

Send Invoice lo Atlentioo ol: 

EQUlpmenl Make Model No. Serial Nurooer Oescriplion (Allath Separale Sclledule II Necessa ) 

Please See Attached Equipment Description As "Attachment 2" 

Equipmenl Localion (ii nol same as above) 

Number ol Lease Payments 

60 
Full Lease Term (in Monlhs) 

60 

Lease Payments: 

See Lease Payfll"11 Sclledule A113ched as Anachmanl 1 
Payment Frequency 
ef Monlhly 
D Ouarterly 
D Semiannu~ly 
D Annually 
□ Other ________ _ 

End ol Le3Se Opt~n: S1 

Stele Zip 

By checking lhe box belc,11, YOU hereby designate th is Lease as a ·qualified lax-exempt obligallon· as delined In 
Section 265(b)(3)(B) ol lhe Internal Revenue Code and represenl ~at lhe aggregate lace amount of all la<·exempt 
oblig,llons (excluding prl'lale acllvlly bonds olher lhan qualified 501 lc)(3) bonds) issued or 10 be Issued by YOU 
and YOUR subordina!e-enti1ies duling lhe calendar year in which WE rund this Lease is not reasooabt1 expected 
lo exceed SlO,OD0,000. 

D Bank Qualmcalion Elecled 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Please read YOUR copy of this State and Local Government Lease-Purchase Agreement ("Lease") careful ly and feel free to ask US any questions YOU may have about it. Words "YOU" and "YOUR" refer to 

!he ' Lessee" and the words "WE," US" and "OUR" refer to De Lage Landen Public Finance LLC, its successors and assigns, as the "Lessor" of the Equipment. 
1. LEASE. WE agree to lease to YOU and YOU agree to lease from US, the equipmenl listed above (and 011 any attached schedule) Including all replacement parts, repairs, additions and accessories 

("Equipment'') on the terms and conditions of this Lease and on any attached schedule. 
2. TEAM. This Lease is effective on the date when the term of this Lease and YOUR obligation to pay rent commence, which date shall be the date that funds are advanced by US to YOU, the vendor of the 

Equipment or an escrow agent for the purpose of paying or reimbursing all or a portion of the cost of the Equipment (the "Commencement Date") and continues thereafter for an original term ("Original Term") 
ending at the end of YOUR budget year in effect on the Commencement Date and may be continued by YOU for additional one-year renewal terms ("Renewal Terms") coinciding with YOUR budget year up to the 
total number of months indicated above as the Full Lease Term; provided, however, that at the end of the Original Term and at the end of each Renewal Term until the Full Lease Term has been completed, YOU shall 
be deemed to have continued this Lease for the next Renewal Term unless YOU shall have terminated this Lease pursuant to Section 5 or Section 17. Lease Payments will be due as set forth on Attachment 1 until 
the balance of the Lease Payments and any additional Lease Payments or expenses chargeable to YOU under this Lease are paid In full. As set forth In the Lease Payment Schedule, a portion of each Lease Payment 
is paid as, and represents payment of, interest. YOUR obligation to pay the Lease Payments and YOUR other Lease obligations are absolute and unconditional and are not subject to cancellation, reduction, setoff 
or counterclaim except as provided in Section 5. THIS LEASE IS NON-CANCEL.ABLE EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 5. 

3. LATE CHARGES. II a Lease Payment Is not made on the date when due, YOU will pay US a late charge at the rate of 18% per annum or the maximum amount permitted by law, whicheuer Is Jess, 
from such date. 

4. CONTINUATION OF LEASE TEAM. YOU currently inlend, subject to Section 5, to continue this Lease through the Full Lease Term and to pay the Lease Payments hereunder. YOU reasonably believe that 
legally available funds in an amount sufficient to make all Lease Payments during the Full Lease Term can be obtained. YOUR responsible financial officer shall do all things lawfully within his or her power to obtain 
and maintain funds from which the Lease Payments may be made, including making provision for the Lease Payments to the extent necessary In each proposed annual budget submitted for approval in accor
dance with YOUR applicable procedures and to exhaust all available reviews and appeals if that portion of the budget is not approved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the decision whether to budget or appropriate 
funds and to extend this Lease for any Renewal Term is solely within the discretion of YOUR governing body. 

5. NDNAPPROPRIATION. YOU are obligated only to pay such Lease Payments under this Lease as may lawfully be made from funds budgeted and appropriated for that purpose during YOUR then current 
budget year. If YOU fail to appropriate or otherwise make available funds to pay the Lease Payments required to be paid In the next occurring Renewal Term, this Lease shall be deemed terminated at the end of the 
then current Original Term or Renewal Term. YOU agree to deliver written notice to US of such termination at least 90 days prior to the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term, but failurn to give 
such notice shall not extend the term of this Lease beyond the then current Original Term or Renewal Term. If this Lease is terminated in accordance with this Section, YOU agree, at YOUR cost and expense, to 
peaceably deliver the Equipment to US at the location or locations specified by US. 

6. WARRANTIES. WE are leasing the Equipment to YOU "AS-IS" and WE MAKE NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INGLU□ll;G WARRAtmES OF MERCHANTABILITY, OR FITNESS FOR A PAR
TICULAR PURPOSE. WE transfer to YOU, without recourse, for the term of this Lease all warranties, ff any, made by the manufacturer. YOU ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT NO ONE IS AUTHORIZED TO WAIVE OR 
CHANGE ANY TERM, PROVISION OR CONDITION OF THIS LEASE AND, EXCEPT FOR THE MANUFACTURER WARRANTIES, MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY ABOUT THIS LEASE OR THE EQUIP
MENT. WE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, RESULTING OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR LOSS OF PROFIT OCCASIONED BY ANY BREACH OF WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION OR RESULTING FROM 
THE USE OR PERFORMANCE OF THE EQUIPMENT. YOUR OBLIGATION TO PAY IN FULL ANY AMOUNT DUE UNDER THE LEASE WILL NOT BE AFFECTED BY ANY DISPUTE, CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, DEFENSE 
OR OTHER RIGHT WHICH YOU MAY HAVE OR ASSERT AGAINST THE SUPPLIER OR THE EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURER. 

7. DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE. YOU ARE RESPONSIBLE, AT YOUR OWN COST, TO ARRANGE FOR THE DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION OF THE EQUIPMENT (UNLESS THOSE COSTS ARE INCLUDED IN THE 
COSTS OF THE EQUIPMENT TO US). IF REQUESTED, YOU WILL SIGN A SEPARATE EQUIPMENT DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE. WE AT OUR DISCRETION CONFI M BY 'TELEPHONE THAT OU HAVE 
ACCEPTED THE EQUIPMENT AND THAT TELEPHONE VERIFICATION OF YOUR ACCEPTANCE OF THE EQUIPMENT SHALL HAVE THE SAME E AS A SIG ED DELIVERY AN 'A E ANGE CERTIFIC 

(Terms and Conditions continued on the reversiJide of thi! L 

.,..L4;._,_--,1~~M~.!£~~~L'.:;'J.(/.~C=:.::::::::__~ 
YOU agree lo all ol the Terms and Condilions contained In bolh sides of !his Lease, and in any al~cllmenls lo same (all 
olwhich are included by relerence) and become part of !his Lease. YOU acknowledge 10 have real and agreed lo all lhe 
Te,ms and Cond11io11s. 

lhis is a non-cancelable lease. The Equipmenl is: ,¢ NEW o USED 

Dale 

PrinlNam'l-.. p 
l) 0 I\ ~ Y\ l'Y\ 0-"'-

Le,Jal Harne of Corporalion 
C ity of San Fernando 

(LEASE MUST BE SIGNED BY AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL OF LESSEE) 

Page 1 012 

DE LAGE LANDEN PUBLIC FINANCE LLC 

Vendor I.O. IJumtJer 
K8143 

, 2013 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 165 of 487



8. TTTtE, PERSONAL PROPERTY, lOCAllDN, INSPECTION, ND MODIRCATIONS OR ALTER· 
ATIDNS. YOU have 1,ue to the Equipment, provided that title to the Equipment will 1mmeoately and 
without any aclioo by YOU vest ,n US, and YOU shall 1mme<ltat!ly surrender possession of lhe 
Equipment to US, (a) upon any termtnatron ol this Laase other than tummat1on pursuant to Section 
17 or (b) tf YOU are rn default ot thrs Lease ti is the intent of the part,es hereto that any transfer ot 
11118 to US pursuant to this Sectmn shall oc,:ur automabcally without lhe necessity ol any bill of sale, 
r.art1frca1e of title or other rnslrument of conveyance YOU Shall, nevertheless, execute and deliver 
any such mslruments as WE may request lo evidence such trarisfer As secunty for YOUR obt,oa• 
~ons hereunder, WE retarn a secunly interest rn the Equipment and all proceeds thereof YOU have 
the right to use the Equipment during the term of this leal;e, exr.apt al; othelWlse expressly set forth 
rn tills Leal;& Although the Equipment may become attached to real estate, 11 remarns personal 
property YOU agree not to alter or modify the Equipment or permit a hen to be placld upon the 
Equipment or to remove lhe Equipment wrlhout OUR prior written consent II WE feel 11 is ner.as· 
sary, YOU agree to provrde US w,th waiver. of rnterest or hens from anyone clalm,ng any interest 
rn the r?al mate on which any ,tems of Equipment ,s located WE also have the nght, at reason
able 11mes, to rnspect the Equipment 

9, MAINTENANCE YOU are required, at YOUR own cost and expense, to ~eep the Equipment 
rn good repair, condition a,id wor1<rng order, exr.apt for ordrnary wear and tear, and YOU w,11 supply 
all par1S and seMCUlg required All replacement parts used or installed and reparrs made to the 
Equipment will become OUR propell\' 

YOU ACKNOWLEOGE THAT WE ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING ANY REQUIRED 
MAINTENANCE AND/OR SERVICE FOR TtiE EQUIPMENT YOU Will MAKE All CLAIMS FOR SERV
ICE ANO/OR IAAINTENANCE SOLELY TO THE SUPPLIER ANO/OR MANUFACTURER AND Stx:H 
ClAIMS Will NOT AFFECT YOUR OBLIGATION TO MAKE All REQUIRED LEASE PAYMENTS 

10 A$SIGNMOO, YOU AGREE NOT TO TRANSFER, SELL, SUBLEASE, ASSIGN, Pl.EOGE OR 
ENCUMBER EllllER lllE EQUIPMENT OR ANY RIGHTS UNDER THIS LEASE WITHOUT OUR PRIOR 
WRlmN CONSENT YOU agree that WE may sell, assrgn or transfer lhlS Laase and, d WE do, the 
new owner will have the same nghts and bene1Tts that WE now have and will nol have to perform any 
of OUR obhgat,ons and the nght'i of the new owner will not be subJeCt to any claims, coun1Brcla1ms, 
defenses or set-offs that YOU m3')' have against US YOU hereby appoint Mun,c,pal Reg,strarSerw:es 
llhe "RiQISlrar") as YOUR agent for the purpose of marntaining a wntten record of each assignment 
In form necessary to comply with Sectron 149(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
No such assl!lnment shall be br'ld1ng on YOU unt~ the Registrar has recel'l8d wnllen no11r.a from the 
assignor ol the name and address ol lhe assignee 

11, LOSS OR OAMAGE YOU are responsible lor the nsk ol loss ordeslrucbon ol, or damage lo 
the Equipment No such loss or damaoe reheves YOU from any obl,gabOn under thrs Lease II any of 
the Eq11pmenl ,s damaged by lire or other casually or title to, or the 1£mporary """ ol, any ol the 
Equipment Is taken un~r Ille exercise DI the pawer of eminent domain, the net proceeds ("Net 
Proceeds") of any insurance claim or condemnat,on awan:t will be applied to the prompt replacement, 
repair, restoralion, mod1lica110n or ,mprovoment of that Equipment, unless YOU hava exertlSed YOUR 
Ol)l1on to purthase lhe EQ11pment pursuant to SectMln 17 Any balance of the Net Proceeds 11main
rng afler such wor1< has been completed shal be Pilld to YOU 

12 INDEMNITY WE are not responsible for any losses or InIunes caused by the manufacture, 
acqu,sI11on, delivery, 1nslallat1on, ownershlp, use. l&ase, possession, marnlenance, operahOn or rljec• 
tmn of the Equipment or defects in the Equipment To the extent permitted by law, YOU agree lo reim
burse US for and to defend US againsl any daim for losses or rn1ur.es relaung lo the Equipment This 
indemnity wil conbnue even atter the term1nahoo of lh,s lease 

13 TAXES YOU agree to pay al applicable license and reg,stra!Jon fees, sale and use taxes, per· 
SOrtal propell\' taxes and all other taxes and charges, relabng to the ownership, leasing, rental, sale, 
purchase, possess,on or use of the Equipment (excep\ those based on OUR net rncome) YOU agree 
th31 11 WE pay any taxes or charges, YOU will reimburse US tor all such paymen1s and wiU pay US 
interest and a late cha rye (as caleuiated In Secnon 3) on such payments with the next Lease Payment. 
plus a fee for OUR collechng and adm1mstenng any taxes, assessments or fees and remIttIng them 
to the appropnate authont,es 

14 INSURANCE Dunno the term ol 1h15 Lease, YOU w,u keep the Equipment insured against all 
nsks of loss or damage rn an amount not less than the reptacemenl cost of the Equipment, wrthout 
deduCbble and without co-rnsurance YOU win also obtain and ma,nta,n for the term of lh!s Lease, 
comprehensive publrc hab1hty rnsurance covenng both personal rn1ury and propell\' damage of at 
least $100,000 per person and $300,000 per occurrence or tx>d1ly rnIury arnd $50,000 for propell\' 
damage WE will be the sole named loss payea on the property insurance and named as an add,non
al Insur?d on the public hab1ily rnsurance YOU w,11 pay al premiums for such msuranr.a and must 
deflver proof of insurance coverage sansfactory to US If YOU do not provtde such rnsurance, YOU 
agree that WE have the nght but not the obl,gabon, to obtain such rnsuranr.a and add an insurance 
lee to the amooot due from you, on which we make a profrt 

15 DEFAULT SubJect to Secuon 5, YOU are 111 default of th,s l ease ,r any of the followrng 
oa:urn (a) YOU fall to pay any Lease Payment or other sum when due, (b) YOU breach any warran
ty or other obhoat,on Ullder llvs Lease. or any olher agreement with US, (c) YOU become rnsolvent 
or unable to pay YOUR debts wf1efl due, YOU make an ass,gnmen\ for the benefit of creditors or YOU 
unde'1JO a substantial delenoralion rn YOUR financial condIh0n, or id) YOU t,fe or have filed agarnst 
YOU a pet1110n tor I,quIdal10n, reorganaatJOn, an1ustment of debt or s1m1lar relief under the Federal 
Bankruptcy Code or 2f'I'/ other present or Mure federal or state bankrup\CV or rnsolvancy law, or a 
trustee, receiver or t,qindator ,s apl)Olnted tor YOU or a substantial part of YOUR assets 

16. REMEDIES WE have the follow,ng remedies JI YOU are rn defal.il Of thlS leal;I WE may 
declare the ennre balance of the unpaid Lease Payments for the then current Ong1nal Term or Renewal 
Term immediately doo and payable, sue tor and rece,ve all lease Payments and 3f>/ other payments 
then accrllCd or acce~rated under lhls Lease, charge YOU interest on al monies due US at the rate 
of eighteen pertent (181',} per year from the date of default unlll pa,d, but 111 no event more than the 
maxlllliJTI rate permitted by law, tharye YOU a return-check or noo-suffrcient turds charye (' NSF 
Charge") ol $25 00 for a chetk that is l'l!tumed lor any reason, and require thal YOU return the 
Equlj)lllent to US and, d YOU filll to return the Equ,pmenL enter upon the premises pear.aably wrth or 
witl'iOut lellal process where the Equipment is located and repossess the Equrpment Such return or 
repossess,on of the Equrpment wrll not constitute a termrnal1on of this Lease unless WE expressly 
~ly YOU In wntJng If the Equipment IS returned or repossessed by US and unless WE have term~ 
nated Uus Lease, We will sell or re-rent the Equipment to any persons wrth 31?{ IBrms WE determine, 
at one or more pubic or pnvate sales, w,th or without notice lo YOU, and apply the net proceeds after 
deducbng the costs and expenses of such sale or rMnt, to YOUR obf,gabons wilh YOU remarnmg 
hable tor any deficiency and with any excess ov,:r the amounts dcscnbed ,n this Sectmn plus the then 
appfrcable Purchase Pnce to be paid to YOU 

YOU are arao requrred to pay (I} all expenses incurred by US rn connection with the enforcement 
of any remedies. rnclud,ng all expenses of repossessmg, stonng, shIpp1ng, repamng and selling the 
EQul!)lllent and lu) reasonable anomeys' tees 

17 PURCHASE OPTION Provided YOU are not rn default, YOU shai have the opt on lo purthase 
all but not less than all of the Equipment (a) on the dare the fast Lease Payment Is due (assuming this 
Lease is renewed at the end of the Ong1nal Tarm and each Renewal Term), d th,s Lease rs st,I rn effect 
on that day. upon payment rn full of lease Payments and all other amounts lhAn due and the paymenl 
of One Ooflar to US, (b) on the last day at the Ong,nal Term or any Renewal Term then rn ettec1, upon 

at least 60 days' pnor wntten nollCe to US and payment ,n full to US of the Lease Payments and all 
other amoun\s then due plus the then applicable Purchase Poet set forth on the Lease Payment 
Schedule, or (c) 11 substantral damage to or destrucboo or condemnabon ot substanll3ly all ot \he 
Equipment has occurred, on the day specrfied 111 YOUR wnlll!n notrce to US of YOUR exercise ot the 
purchase op\I0<1 upon al least 60 days' pnor nobce to US arnd payment ,n lull lo US ot the Lease 
Payments and all other amounts then due plus the then applicable Purchase Pnce set forth on the 
Lease Payment Schedule 

18 REPRESEffTATIDNS AND WARRANTIES YOU warrant and represent as tallows (a) YOU 
are a public body corporate and poht,c duly oryamze<I and exIst111g under the consutullon and laws of 
YOUR S1318 w,th full power and authorrty to enler into th,s Lease and the trallsaCbons contemplated 
hereby and to pertorm all of YOUR obhgat1ons hereunder, (bl YOU have duly authonled the exew
bon and delivery of this Lease by proper action by YOUR govern,ng body at a meeting dlWY called, 
rBQularly convened and attended lhroUQhout by the reqi,srta maIorrly ol lhe members thereof or by 
other appropna\8 ott,cral approval, and all requirements have been met and procedur?S have occurred 
m order to ensure the val1d1ly and enfon:aab1hty o1 this Lease, (c) YOU have complied with such pub
lic bidding req1.1rements as may be apphcable to ttvs Lease and Iha atQUISlllDn by YOU of the 
Equipment (d) all authonzabons, consents and approvals of governmental bodies or agencies 
l'l!qu1red m connecllon with the executJon and deuvery by YOU of this Lease or n connecbOn with lhe 
carryrng out by YOU of YOUR obligat,ons h,reunder have been oblalned. (e) this Lease const,Mes 
the legal, valid and brnd1ng obbgahon of YOU enforceable In accordance with ,ts terms, except to the 
extent hmrted by appicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reoryanrzahOn or other Jaws attecllng credJtors· 
rights generafl-/, (Q YOU have, rn accomance with the requ11ements of law, fully budoeled and appI0• 
pnaled sutf1C1ent funds tor the current budget year lo make the Lease Payments seheduled ID come 
due dunng the current budget year and to meet YOUR other obl1gabons under this Lease for the cur
rent budget year, and those funds have not been expended for other purposes, (O) the Equ,pment ,s 
essant,af to YOUR funcuons or 10 the ser,,ces YOU prOVlde to YOUR Clllzens. YOU have an rmmed1· 
ate need for the Equipment and expect lo make immediate use ot the Equipment, YOUR need for the 
Equipment ,snot temporary and YOU do not expect the need tor any item of the Equipment to d1mI~ 
1sh m the foreseeable future, including the Full Lease Term, and the Equipment wtll be used by YOU 
only for the purpose ot perfonmng one or more o1 YOUR governmental or propnetary runcllons con
s,stent with the perm1S$1ble scope o1 YOUR authonly and will not be used in the trade or buSJness o1 
any other entity or par.on, and (h} YOU have never Jailed to appropnate or olherw,se make avarlable 
funds sutt,c,ent lo pay rental or other payments coming due lllder any tease purchase, Instaflmen1 
sale or other srm,lar agreement 

19 UCC FILINGS AND ANANCW. STATEMENTS YOU authOnze US lo lite a fInanc1ng state
ment wrlh respect 10 the Equipment If WE feet it Is necessary, YOU agree to submit hnanc1al state
ments (audited rt ava1labl6) on a quar1erty basis 

20 UCC ·ARTICL£2A PROVISIONS YOU agree that lhri lease isa Ananr.a lease as that tenn 
is defined In Ar1icle 2A of the Unrform Commerc,at Code ('t!CC") YOU acknowledge that Wl: have 
g,ven YOU the name of the Supplier ot the Eqmpment WE hereby notify YOU that YOU may have 
nghts under the contract W1lh the Svppher and YOU may contact the Supplrerfor a deScnpbon of any 
rights or warranties that YOU may have under this supply contract YOU also waive any and all r,ghls 
and remed,es granted YOU under Sect1oris 2A·508 through 2A-522 of Ille UCC 

21 TAX EXEMPTION YOU WIii compl), With all applicable provis,ons of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, 1nclud1ng without lrmrtalion Seclrons 103 and 148 lhereof. and the app~
cable re<Julallons thereunder to marntam lhO exclus,on o1 lhe mterest por!ron ol lhe Lease Payments 
from groS'l mcome tor purposes of federal income taxation 

22 BANK DUAllFICATION. fl YOU checked the "Bank Oual1frcat1on Elected" box on the front 
page of lhrs lease YOU and all YOUR subord1nat! enblies will not issue m excess of St0,000,000 of 
qualified tax-exempt obl1galM>ns (1nclud1ng this lease bul excluding pnvate acllvrly bonds other than 
qual,hed 501 (c)l3) bonds) dunng the calendar year rn wt.ch We fund th,s leasa without t,rst obtain
mg an opm1on of natmnally recognrzed counsel m the area 01 tax•exempt ml!lllClpal obligations 
ai:ceptablo to US that the desrgnahon of lhrs Lease as a ·quahfled tax-exempt obl,gahOn" W'JI not be 
adversely atfected 

23 CHOICE OF LAW, JURY TRIAL WAIVER Ths lease shall be oovemed and construed rn 
accordance with the laws of the state where YOU are localed To the ex1ent penn,tted by law, YOU 
agree to waive YOUR nghls 10 a !rial by Jury 

24 ENTIRE AGREEMENT, SEVERABILITY, WAIVERS This LeaSII contains the entire agreement 
and understanding No aoreements or understandings are bmd1ng on the parties unless set forth In 
wnt1ng and s,gned by the parlles Arrt provision of th,s lease winch tor any reason may be held unen
torteab!e ,n any 1unsdlciIon Shall, as to such 1u11sd1tbon, be Inettec11Ve wllhOtrl rnvahd1ng lhe remaI~ 
rng provrs,ons ot this lease llllS LEASE IS NOT INTENDED FOR TRANSACTIONS WITH AN EQUIP
MENT COST OF LESS THAN S 1,000 

25 FACSIMILE DOCUMENTATION YOU agree that a facs,rnie copy of this lease wrth facs,m,-
1& s.l)llatures may be treated as an ong,nal and will be admissible as evidence of ttvs Lease 

PaQ,2011 C20!1 /JI R~Restrvol Pr~l!d ~ Ille USA t1PFOOC207 9/11 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 166 of 487



ATTACHMENT 1 STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
Lease Payment Schedule 

LESSOR DE LAGE LANDEN PUBLIC ANANCE LLC 

LESSEE City of San Fernando 

LEASE NUMBER ...:P....;;Uc::8c.:c1.;.:16c;.9.:;..6 _ _ __________ _ 

LEASE DATE January 18 ,2L ... :!.:L 
Lease Paymenls are due on each per1od1c anniversary ol lhe Comlllerlcement Dale !hat occurs durrng the Full Lease Tenn until all of lhe paymenls set forth below have been 
received by US The penod fOf each per1od1c anniversary ~~ monthly , as spec1f1ed rn the Payment Frequency box a/ !his Lease If the Commencement 
Dale occurs on lhe 29\h, 30\11 or 31st day ol ar.y monlh, \he pe1100\c anm~ersary w1\I be deemed 10 ocrur on \he 1st day of \he mon\h, commt>.ncmg on \he 1st day of the 

second succeeding month afler the month of sUCll Convnencement Date 

Pa)llleiitN001be.' Rental Paymerl Interest Postlon PrlllCipal Portion Balance Purchase Price 
Loan 0 00 0 00 000 64,366 27 000 

1 1, 19e ~o 238 66 95984 63,408 43 85,308 82 
2 1,198 50 235 10 96340 82,443 03 84,31 8 32 
3 1,198 50 231 53 98697 81,478 otl 83,320 34 
4 1,198 50 227 94 97066 eo,sos so 112,32067 
5 1,19650 224 34 974 16 59,531 34 81 ,317 28 
8 1,19850 220 73 snn 68,553 57 80,310 18 
7 1,198 50 21710 981 40 57,57217 59,299 34 
8 1,19B 50 21347 985 03 56,56714 58,284 75 
9 1,198 50 209 81 98889 55,598 45 67,28640 

10 1,19850 20815 992 35 54,60810 56,2 44 26 
11 1,19850 20247 988 03 53,810 07 65,218 37 
12 1,19850 198 78 999 72 52,810 35 54,18886 
13 1,198 50 195 07 1,003 43 51,806132 53 ,155 13 
14 1,198 50 191 35 1,00715 50,59977 52,11778 
15 1,198 50 18761 1,010 89 49,588 88 51,078 55 
16 1,198 50 183 87 1,014a3 48,57425 50,031 48 
17 1,19850 180 10 1,018 40 47,65585 48,982 53 
18 1,198 50 176 33 1,02217 ◄8,533 ea 47,928 89 
19 1,198 50 17254 1,025 98 45,507 72 46,872 95 
20 1,198 50 188 73 1,029 77 44,47795 45,812 29 
21 1,198 50 164 82 1,033 58 43,4 44 37 44,747 70 
22 1,198 50 161 OB 1,037 42 42,40895 43,879 18 
23 1,19850 15724 1,041 28 4 1,385 89 42,808 68 
24 1, 19B 60 153 38 1,04512 40,320 67 41,53019 
25 1,19860 14950 1,049 00 39,271 57 40,449 72 
28 1,19850 145 81 1,052 89 38,218 88 39,365 24 
27 1,1138 50 141 71 1,058 7 9 37,161 89 38,278 76 
28 1,198 50 13779 1,060 71 36,101 18 37,18422 
29 1,198 50 133 88 1,064 84 35,038 54 36,087 64 
30 1,19850 12991 1,068 58 33,967 95 34,986 99 

SaleslaXOI S5 314 65 1s included In lh8 f1naoced amount shov.n above 

co 
C, 

'---- - 11-....... + - - ------=:-::::,-- - ----,--- - --- ------ - - --------------'~ 
LesseeS1gnalure .__ ____ ______ _ _ ___ _______ Date I/ ;i_ 'l / / 3 ~ 

PnntName I :'\"½~r, I\'\ G\\i,, AJ m·, I\'. -,"\r· ... ~ ~,... T1Ue Do"' P .u , Mo'\ ~ 
f>,o, _ 1_or_2_ C2012 All RlQIU ""11\lll. PlliOd 1111/io USA 12l'fOOC2!18 9/11 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 167 of 487



ATTACHMENT 1 STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
Lease Payment Schedule 

LESSOR· DE LAGE l.AIIDEN PUBLIC FINANCE LLC 

LESSEE City of San Fernando 

L.EASENUMBER· ~P-=U=B'--'1 ... 18=8=8 _____ _______ _ 

LEASE DATE January 18 '20____ll_ 

Lease Paymenls a1a doo on each pe11odic anmversa1y ol lhe Commencement Dale Iha\ occurs dunno \he Full Lease Term until all ol lhe paymenls sel lor\h below have been 
received by US The penod for eacll perrodrc anniversary rs monthlv_---,-____ , as specrfred rn the Payment Frequency box of lhrs l ease If \he Commencement 
Date occurs on the 29th, 30th 0< 31st day ol any month, the periodic anniversary will be deemed to occur on the 1st day of the month, commencing on the 1st day of the 
JJlCond succeedrna month after the mooth of such Commencement Dale 

Payment Numbei P.enlal Paym81ll lnleresl Portroo P11ncipal Por\1011 Balaoca Pllehase Pote 

31 1,198 SO 125 95 1,072 55 32,895 40 33,882 26 
32 1,198 50 121 97 1,076 53 31,818 87 32,773.44 
33 1,198 50 117 98 1,080 52 30,738.35 31,880 50 
34 1,19850 11397 1,084 53 29,653 82 30,5◄3,43 
35 1,19850 10995 1,088 55 28,565 27 29,422 23 
36 1,19850 105 91 1,082 59 27,472 68 28,296 86 
37 1,188.50 10186 1,098.64 26,376 04 27,167 32 
38 1,18650 8780 1.~0070 25,275 34 26,03l.60 
39 1,19850 8372 1,104 78 24,170 56 24,895 68 
40 1,19850 8962 1,108.88 23,061.68 23,753 53 
41 1,188 50 85.51 1,112 99 21,948 69 22,607 15 
42 1,198 50 81 38 1,11712 20,831 57 21,456 52 
43 1,198.50 7724 1,121 26 19,710 31 20,301 62 
44 1,198 50 7308 1,12542 18,584 69 19,142 44 
45 1,198 50 68 91 1,12959 17,455 30 17,978.96 
46 1,\116 50 64 72 1,133 7& 16,321 52 16,81117 
◄7 1,19850 6052 1,137 98 15,18354 15,639 05 
48 1,19850 5630 1,142 20 14,041 34 14,462 58 
49 1,19850 5206 1,146 44 12,894 90 13,281 75 
50 1,198 50 47 81 1,15069 11,744 21 12,096 54 
51 1,198 50 4355 1,15◄ 95 10,589 26 10,906 94 
52 1,19850 3926 1,159 24 9,430 02 8,712 92 
53 1,198 50 34 96 1,18354 S,266 48 8,51 ◄ ◄7 
54 1,198 50 3065 1,16785 7,098 63 7,311 59 
55 1,198 50 2632 1,172 18 5,926 45 6,104 24 
56 1,19650 21 97 1,176 53 4,749 92 ◄,892 42 
57 1.198 50 17 81 1,18089 3,569 03 3,676 10 
58 1,198 50 13 23 1,16527 2,383 76 2,455 27 
59 1,198 50 8.84 1,18966 1,19◄ 10 1,229.92 
60 1,198 50 4 40 1,194 10 000 000 

71,910 00 7,543.73 64,36627 

Pi1)0 ___l.__ d ___l.__ Cl012Alll\ighls- l'!no<llnlheUSA. t2Pf00Cl()l l/12 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 168 of 487



ATTACHMENT 2 

LESSOR: De Lage Landen Public Finance LLC 

LESSEE: City of Sen Fernando 

STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION 

LEASE NUMB£R: ~P~U=B~1-'-'18=-=9-=-6 ____________ _ 

LFASE DATE: Janua[Y.'-'1"'"8 __________ , 20___'.!_;L_ 

QuanWy 

2 

Description/Serial No./Model No. 

Sharp MX-41 11 N Digital Copier With Attachments 

Sharp MX-753N Olgilal Copier With Attachments 

Sharp MX-4111 N Otgltal Copier With Attachments 

Sharp MX-4111 N Olgilal Copiers With Attachments 

s1N: 'J 5al:iS1 .. /e:::x 

SIN: 2.4:)Q?l+I 9,--X. 

Localion 

117 McNeil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

208 Park Avenue 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

505 S. Huntington Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Sharp MX-M283 Digital Copier with Attachments 117 N McNeil St 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

S/N: 2.Sa\0.2'.SX ~ 
L_ ____ .,,,~--- - - - - - --- ---------- --------------- - fg 

LESSEE&IJ('J'.ure/(i.J J)~ -Pr-~ __ Dale: _....:t...JJ.=:....l.:..."':...1 J-.f 1,_,,,3 _ ___________ - ~ 
\,_./" u.. 

________ Tille: ~ 
,-Prinl NNM 

r,ge _ 1_ c1_1_ e201lAIIRIO"(S"-"'<tl'tllllodloU>oU.SA. IOl'f00C16M 10/11 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 169 of 487



BILLING INFORMATION 

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS FORM AND RETURN WITH DOCUMENTS 

In order for De Logo Landen Public F111ance LLC 
complote this torm and raturn 1t with the signed documents. 

to properly bill and credit your accoonl, it Is necessary that you 

OU0ng llama· __ C=--=-·• f_,_Y,c__.,,,0_:£,.__-'5',._,_,,,:;..,:_f\~_,f_:e:...:<-!(\...:.O-::::..:....Y\:..!:d!...:o=-------

Dllllng Address _ __el_ll-'---'m....:_:.:cO.:...:'--:::.:l'\...:.(..:::....:..·• ..l..\ ....::S::..4:..;(;_l..:..:C!;:::..;-\-_;__ ______ _ 

50:.,.._ ~e<00-<'-lo J GA, °I I ~t.fO 

Alt(Jnllon _ _.$'""-'t:>-<e..:..<\o,ej:...'<";:.,;o,...~c-=-:;-R;::;:-;' c;:\JC.:0-:,.,.::=5~=~=~-- -----
IN11nt ol lntlMlu.l who wll ()loctst ()aYl!lMIS) 

rafephona Number ______ i"_l'-~~----'"6'-9-'-'-'?_·_7....,.,'.>c..'-l..;....=:5 _________ _ 

Email Address. --',;'-r;_:~('-'O-_f'\~C..-'"O-~-'---S_~_l._1_~..:.'Y....:.... O::....f .,..'.)~-------

FEDERAL IOI. ___ q_5_-_~_0_0_C_'"\_7_°1 _______ _ _ _ _ 

Primary Contact Name ~ O: ,._j < <>- I<.. · ,'\I o- 5 

Primary Contact Number ~ I ~ · ~ 9 ~ -7 :1> 4 5 

INSURANCE INFORMATION 

Insurance A1161ll· _A~(_"1h_\)~( __ ~ __ O"'_"-_l_\...:o-_~...,_h_~_<_t-__;_(_O_:ri=.."'.:.::S::::\l...:.<.::,:O-N-:.:.:....t_6~<ob,. d ( CA J ~"' c. • 

Poley Number I.C.R. N\A- P<op .. ct► G'.Q So 1 

Tel1phone Number _1--j~I_S_· _S"_'--f_(,_-_9-'-":J'-0-()-=------------
hx Number __ Lf.,__l_!;_-__:.c;....:3:::..."-_· _1-/.!..0__.!:.3..:(..:__ _______ _ 

CONTACT INFORMATION FOR 8038 FILINGS 

Contact Nama. S: 0-01 ~ c,.. R ·' -.f er S 

Title. S°<.~,or At.<"-!~ C\H\5, 
ConlaclAddress \\'l l"f-o-c,.(\e,·,\ S:-\<e,i.j' ,S'a-Afe.,:00-rJo GA, C, f3lfO 

• l 

Contact Ttlaphone Number ~ F~ • )'7 <r '16 Li S" 
ErnallAddreSS' ~(<o-1\(.0e S~cc\✓ or ::i 

01ouun~Rt1UY1d PM~dlll hUSA. fflO0CCll.it2 7/IZ 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 170 of 487



Form 8Q38•GC -
(Rev. January 2012) 

Department of the Treasury 

Information Return for Small Tax-Exempt 
Governmental Bond Issues, Leases, and Installment Sales 

► Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e) 
0MB No. 1545-0720 

Internal Revenue Service Caution: If the Issue price of the issue is $100,000 or more, use Form 8038-G. 

Reporting Authority Check box if □ 
1 Issuer's name 

City of San Fernando 

3 Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) 

117 McNeil Street 
4 City, town, or post office, slate, and ZIP code 

San Fernando CA 91340 
6 Name and title of officer or other employee of issuer or designated contact person whom the IRS may call for more Information 

Description of Obligations heck one: a single issue 
Sa Issue price of obligation(s) (see instructions) 

b Issue date (single issue) or calendar date (consolidated). Enter dat in mm/dd/ 
example, 01/01/2009) (see instructions) ► 

9 Amount of the reported obligation(s) on line Sa that is: 

a 
b 
C 

d 
e 
f 
g 

For leases for vehicles 

For leases for office equipment . 

For leases for real property . 

For leases for other (see instructions) . 

For bank loans for vehicles . 

For bank loans for office equipment . 

For bank loans for real property. 

h For bank loans for other (see instructions) 

j 
k 

10 
11 
12 
13 

Used to refund prior issue(s) 

Representing a loan from the proceeds o 

Other . 

If the issuer has designated a · 

If the issuer has elected to 

Vendor's or bank's name: 

Under penalties 

Signature :~aM:~~~~;t 
and 
Consent 

Form 8038- -
exempt go e 
the IRS wit 
section 14 
requirements •- ~~.., 150. 

Page 1 of3 

t governmental 
sue prices of less than 

e Form 8038-GC. 

Issue of a tax-exempt governmental 
obligation with an issue price of $100,000 or 

ore must file Form 8038-G, Information 
turn for Tax-Exempt Governmental 

bligations. 

Filing a separate return for a single Issue. 
Issuers have the option to file a separate 
Form 8038-GC for any tax-exempt 
governmental obligation with an issue price 
of less than $100,000. 

An Issuer of a tax-exempt bond used to 
finance construction expenditures must file a 
separate Form 8038-GC for each issue to give 
notice to the IRS that an election was made to 

Cat. No. 641088 

Date 

32 

9h 
9i 
9j 
9k 

► □ 
!ructions) . ► D 

-----------------·······------·········-·-----------
nts, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are 

ation, as necessary to process this return, lo the person(s) 

► Type or print name and title 

Check O if PTIN 
self-employed 

Firm's EIN ► 

Phone no. 

pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate (see 
the line 11 Instructions). 

Filing a consolidated return for multiple 
Issues. For all tax-exempt governmental 
obligations with Issue prices of less than 
$100,000 that are not reported on a separate 
Form 8038-GC, an issuer must file a 
consolidated information return including all 
such issues Issued within the calendar year. 

Thus, an issuer may file a separate Form 
8038-GC for each of a number of small issues 
and report the remainder of small Issues 
issued during the calendar year on one 
consolidated Form 8038-GC. However, if the 
issue is a construction issue, a separate Form 
8038-GC must be filed to give the IRS notice 
of the election to pay a penalty in lieu of 
arbitrage rebate. 

Form 8038-GC (Rev. 1-2012) 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 171 of 487



Form 8038-GC (Rev. 1-2012) 

When To File 

To file a separate return for a single issue, file 
Form 8038-GC on or before the 15th day of 
the second calendar month after the close of 
the calendar quarter in which the issue is 
issued. 

To file a consolidated return for multiple 
issues, file Form 8038-GC on or before 
February 15th of the calendar year following 
the year In which the issue Is issued. 

Late filing. An issuer may be granted an 
extension of time to file Form 8038-GC under 
section 3 of Rev. Proc. 2002-48, 2002-37 
I.R.B. 531, if it is determined that the failure to 
file on time is not due to willful neglect. Type 
or print at the top of the form, "Request for 
Relief under section 3 of Rev. Proc. 2002-48." 
Attach to the Form 8038-GC a letter briefly 
stating why the form was not submitted to the 
IRS on time. Also indicate whether the 
obligation in question is under examination by 
the IRS. Do not submit copies of any bond 
documents, leases, or installment sale 
documents. See Where To FIie next. 

Where To File 

File Form 8038-GC, and any attachments, 
with the Department of the Treasury, Internal 
Revenue Service Center, Ogden, UT 84201. 

Private delivery services. You can use 
certain private delivery services designated by 
the IRS to meet the "timely mailing as timely 
filing/paying" rule for tax returns and 
payments. These private delivery services 
include only the following: 

• OHL Express (OHL): OHL Same Day Se ice. 

• Federal Express (FedEx): FedE 
Overnight, FedEx Standard Ov 
2Day, FedEx International Prio 
International First. 

• United Parcel Service (UPS): 
Air, UPS Next Day Ai 
Air, UPS 2nd Day . 
Express Plus, an 

The private 
how to get w 

Rounding to Whole Dollars 

o n 
as w so 
amount les nc 
amount fro e er 
dollar. 

Definitions 
Obligations, This refers to a single tax
exempt governmental obligation if Form 
8038-GC is used for separate reporting or to 

multiple tax-exempt governmental obligations 
if the form is used for consolidated reporting. 

Tax-exempt obligation, This is any obligation 
including a bond, installment purchase 
agreement, or financial lease, on which the 
interest is excluded from income under 
section 103. 

Tax-exempt governmental obligation. A 
tax-exempt obligation that is not a private 
activity bond (see below) is a tax-exempt 
governmental obligation. This includes a bond 
issued by a qualified volunteer fire department 
under section 150(e). 

Private activity bond. This includes an 
obligation issued as part of an issue whi 

• More than 10% of the procee 
used for any private activity bu 

• More than 10% of the pay 
or interest of the issue · 
an interest in prope 
business use (or 
or (b) to be deri 
property (or oney) used for 
private bus 

it also I d 
w~ch( a 
ioa d ct 
1 

n 
rthe 

pdated 
nces). 

draw
ments of the 

ns issued during 
be treated as 

of the amounts to 
raw-down loan are 

o be advanced within 3 
issue of the first 

e, obligations (other than 
onds) issued under a single 

t is in the form of a lease or 
ale may be treated as part of the 

issue if all of the property covered by 
greement is reasonably expected to be 
red within 3 years of the date of issue of 

first obligation. 

Arbitrage rebate. Generally, interest on a 
state or local bond is not tax-exempt unless 
the issuer of the bond rebates to the United 
States arbitrage profits earned from investing 
proceeds of the bond in higher yielding 
nonpurpose investments. See section 148(1). 

Construction issue. This is an issue of tax
exempt bonds that meets both of the 
following conditions: 

Page 2 ol 3 

Page 2 

1. At least 75% of the available construction 
proceeds of the issue are to be used for 
construction enditures with respect to 
property t e o d by a governmental unit 
or a 501 (3) organi lion, and 

2. are part of the issue 
ds that are 

activity 
owned 

ations as of 
s that are 

ay be 
formation readily 

e close of the 
he form relates, 

emente ates made in good 

Amended return. An issuer may file an 
ended return to change or add to the 

in rmation reported on a previously flied 
urn for the same date of issue. if you are 

filing to correct errors or change a previously 
filed return, check the "Amended Return" box 
in the heading of the form. 

The amended return must provide all the 
information reported on the original return, in 
addition to the new corrected information. 
Attach an explanation of the reason for the 
amended return and write across the top 
"Amended Return Explanation." 

Line 1. The issuer's name Is the name of the 
entity issuing the obligations, not the name of 
the entity receiving the benefit of the 
financing. In the case of a lease or installment 
sale, the issuer is the lessee or purchaser. 

Line 2, An issuer that does not have an 
employer identification number (EIN) should 
apply for one on Form SS-4, Application for 
Employer Identification Number. You can get 
this form on the IRS website at IRS.gov or by 
calling 1-800-T AX-FORM (1-800-829-3676). 
You may receive an EIN by telephone by 
following the instructions for Form SS-4. 

Lines 3 and 4. Enter the issuer's address or 
the address of the designated contact person 
listed on line 6. if the issuer wishes to use its 
own address and the issuer receives its mail 
in care of a third party authorized 
representative (such as an accountant or 
attorney), enter on the street address line 
"C/0" followed by the third party's name and 
street address or P.O. box. include the suite, 
room, or other unit number after the street 
address. If the post office does not deliver 
mail to the street address and the issuer has a 
P.O. box, show the box number instead of the 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 172 of 487



Form 8038-GC (Rev. 1-2012) 

street address. If a change in address occurs 
after the return is filed, use Form 8822, 
Change of Address, to notify the IRS of the 
new address. 

Note. The address entered on lines 3 and 4 Is 
the address the I RS will use for all written 
communications regarding the processing of 
this return, including any notices. By 
authorizing a person other than an authorized 
officer or other employee of the issuer to 
communicate with the IRS and whom the IRS 
may contact about this return, the Issuer 
authorizes the IRS to communicate directly 
with the individual listed on line 6, whose 
address is entered on lines 3 and 4 and 
consents to disclose the issuer's return 
information to that individual, as necessary, to 
process this return. 

Line 5. This line is for IRS use only. Do not 
make any entries in this box. 

Part II-Description of Obligations 
Check the appropriate box designating this as 
a return on a single Issue basis or a 
consolidated return basis. 

Line Sa. The issue price of obligations is 
generally determined under Regulations 
section 1.148-1(b). Thus, when issued for 
cash, the issue price is the price at which a 
substantial amount of the obligations are sold 
to the public. To determine the issue price of 
an obligation issued for property, see sec ti 
1273 and 1274 and the related regulatlo . 

Line Sb. For a single issue, enter 
issue (for example, 03/15/201 O 
issue issued on March 15, 201 
the date on which the issuer ph 
exchanges the bonds that are 
issue for the underwrit 
purchaser's) funds; f 
sale, enter the date 
For issues repo 
enter the first 
which the obli 
example, for 
01/01/2010). 

Lines 9a thro 
pro_pe~y oth 

th 
purchase. F 
that is lease r 
the amount 
represents a r the 
type of bank lo . 

Lines 91 and 9j. For line 9i, enter the amount 
of the proceeds that will be used to pay 
principal, interest, or call premium on any 
other Issue of bonds, Including proceeds that 
will be used to fund an escrow account for 
this purpose. Several lines may apply to a 
particular obligation. For example, report on 
lines 91 and 9j obligations used to refund prior 
issues which represent loans from the 
proceeds of another tax-exempt obligation. 

Line 9k. Enter on line 9k the amount on e 
Ba that does not represent an obligatl 
described on lines 9a through 9j. 

Line 1 O. Check this box if the lss has 
designated any issue as a "small lss r 
exception" under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i) 

Line 11. Check this 
construction lssu 
to pay a penal! 
been made o he date the b 
were issue t th 
Form 803 - aft 
the date i m 
any I e 
For , 
1 s re ar m t 

1tle of 
e 

uer signing 
to consent 

r's return 
process this 

has been 

horizes in line 6 the IRS 
h a person other than an 

ployee of the issuer, (such 
all include contact both in 

less of the address entered in 
and 4, and by telephone) by signing 

orm, the issuer's authorized 
sentative consents to the disclosure of 

ssuer's return information, as necessary 
recess this return, to such person. 

Pa9&3 ot3 

Page 3 

I alive of the issuer 
r's space 

repares 

ould 

ovided for the 

We ask for the information on this form to 
carry out the Internal Revenue laws of the 
United States. You are required to give us the 
information. We need it to ensure that you are 

mplying with these laws. 

ou are not required to provide the 
formation requested on a form that is 

subject to the Paperwork Reduction Act 
unless the form displays a valid 0MB control 
number. Books or records relating to a form 
or its instructions must be retained as long as 
their contents may become material in the 
administration of any Internal Revenue law. 
Generally, tax returns and return Information 
are confidential, as required by section 6103. 

The time needed to complete and file this 
form will vary depending on individual 
circumstances. The estimated average time is: 

Leaming about the 
law or the form 

Preparing the form 

Copying, assembling, and 

4 hr., 46 min. 

2 hr., 22 min. 

sending the form to the IRS 2 hr., 34 min. 

If you have comments concerning the 
accuracy of these time estimates or 
suggestions for making this form simpler, we 
would be happy to hear from you. You can 
write to the Internal Revenue Service, Tax 
Products Coordinating Committee, 
SE:W:CAR:MP:T:M:S, 1111 Constitution Ave. 
NW, IR-6526, Washington, DC 20224. Do not 
send the form to this address. Instead, see 
Where To File. 

()2012 All Rights Rese-Ned. Printed Wt \he U.S.A. 06PFOOC03JvJ 9/1 2 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 173 of 487



De Lage Landen Public Finance LLC 
1111 Old Eagle School Road 
Wayne, PA 19087 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 

Re: State and Local Government Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of _Ja_n_u_ary~1_8 ___ ___ _______ , 20~. between 

De Lage Landen Public Finance LLC, as Lessor, and City of San Fernando , as Lessee. 

In accordance with the State and Local Government Lease Purchase Agreement (the "Agreement"), the undersigned Lessee hereby certifies and represents to, 
and agrees with Lessor as follows: 

1. All of the Equipment (as such term is defined in the Agreement) has been delivered, installed and accepted on the date hereof. 

2. Lessee has conducted such inspection and/or testing of the Equipment as it deems necessary and appropriate and hereby acknowledges that it accepts 
the Equipment for all purposes. 

3. Lessee is currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by Section 14 of the Agreement. 

4. No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute, an Event of Default (as defined in the Agreement) exists at 
the date hereof. 

l essee 
City of San Fernando ... Signature ...... 

!:ii 
~!:!! Print Name 

"' 
Title 

(SEAL) 

Date 

©2009 All R~hls Rese<Yed Printed in lhe US A 07PFD0C055v1 3/09 

~ 
U') 
Cl u 
Q 
Q 
u. 
Cl. 
:;; 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 174 of 487



~ L'::~~L~~s.~=9.2£ 
7510 Hazeltine Ave. 

Van Nuys, CA 91405 

Phone: (818) 781-2200 

Fax: (818) 781-8314 

www. image-2000.com 

Company Name: 

Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Contact: 

Phone: 

Fax/E-mail: 

Equipment Location 

Please see Addendum A 

Maintenance Agreement 
Date: 

Representative: Joe Blatchford 

Start Date: 2/1/2013 
End Date: 1/31/2018 

Billing Information 

Company Name: City of San Fernando 

Address: 117 Macneil Street 

City, State, Zip: San Fernando, CA 91340 

Contact: Ismae l Aguila 

Phone : 818.898.1200 

Fax/E-mail: 1Aguila@ci.san-fernando.ca.us 

Installation and Service Agreement Options: Appropriate categories must be initialed by the Client in the box to the left of the option. 

Full Maintenance Monthly Standard Maintenance Monthly 

Estimated Charge: $1,719.30 Base Charge: 

Estimated B/W Copy Allowance: 46,200 Copy Allowance: 

B/W Impression Rate: $0.0115 Impression Rate: 

Estimated Color Copy Allowance: 19,800 Wide Format Impression Rate: 

Color Impression Rate: $0.0600 Ite ms not covered: toner, developer, fuser rollers, photoreceptors, 

Ite ms not covere d: s taples, paper, and freight. cleaning blades, drum, fuser oil, waste tone r bottles, PM kits, ink, 
m asters, staples, the rmal prints screens, drum screens, paper, and 

** Based on estimate copies made in 2012. Refer to "Maintenance & Lease freight. 

Disclosures" section. 

Transaction Terms 

Maintenance Agreement (Choose One) : 

CJ Full Maintenance D Standard Maintenance D None (declinded) 1 1 

Make/Model Serial Number 

Sharp MX-4111N 208 Park Ave. 

Sharp MX-4111N Las Palmas 

Sharp MX-4111N After School Program 

Sharp MX-4111N City Hall 

Sharp MX-M753N City Hall 

Sharp MX-M283N Public Works City Yard 

Billing Period: 

Overages: 

[J Monthly 

[J Monthly 

ID Number 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

D Quartery 

D Quarterly 

B/W Start Meter 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

□Annually 
□ Annually 

Color Start Meter 

0 

0 

0 

0 

N/A 

0 

By executing this agreement. I acknowledge that I have read and understand this agreement and I certify that I am authorized to execute this agreement on behalf of customer. Authorized 
signature acknowledges terms/conditions a nd expiration dates or meter readings. The terms and conditions on the face and reverse side of this agreeme nt correctly set four th the entire 
agreement between parties. 

CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE 

X 

Customer Signature 

D o :o P ~ nX'b c:::r, 
Name/Title 

Date 

Joe Blatchford/CEO 
Name/Title 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 175 of 487



Maintenance and Lease Disclosure 

All maintenance contracts will be billed by Image 2000 at $0.0115 per copy for black and white images and $0.06 per copy for full color images 
with no increases for 60 months. All parts and labor are included plus supplies, minus paper and staples. There will be no minimum copies 
required. The City of San Fernando will only pay, per month, for the copies you use. Each month Image 2000 w ill gather meters from all copier 
sys tems and issue a combined statement (with each site listed separately and then combined). 

Image 2000 Terms and Conditions 

SCOPE & COVERAGE This Agreement is between lmage 2000 and you, (our Client), and covers the labor and materials for adjustments, repairs 
and replacement of parts and supplies (where stipulated), as is required by normal use of the Equipment. It is subject to the exceptions herein, 
and in accordance with these terms and conditions. It does not cover costs for installation or de-installation of the Equipment if it is moved by 
anyone other than our personnel. Damage to the Equipment (or its parts) arising out of a non-Image 2000 installation, or that is caused by 
misuse; abuse; negligence; attachment of unauthorized components; accessories or parts; usage of sub-standard paper or supplies; or other 
causes beyond our direct control a re not covered by this Agreement, and may subject you to a surcharge or to cancellation of this Agreement. 
Moreover, we may elect to terminate this Agreement if the Equipment is modified, damaged, altered, or serviced by personnel other than our 
Authorized Manufacturer-Trained/Certified Technicians. (Or if parts, accessories, etc. are used that do not meet our Manufacturers' product 
specifications.) ln addition, the Agreement does not cover costs related to any repairs due to your (or other non-Image 2000 party's) 
modifications to software or hardware. You will also be responsible to pay for any &/all items not covered under this Agreement. If meter 
readings are not automated, you will be required to monitor and provide us with accurate meter readings to facilitate billing. 
SERVICE CALLS Will be made during normal business hours to the installation address on the reverse side. Travel and labor time for service 
calls (after normal business hours, on weekends or on holidays), if and when available, will be charged at the published overtime rates in effect a t 
the time the service call is made. Our personnel will not handle, disconnect or repair unauthorized attachments, components or software 
applications. (You are so lely responsible for disconnecting or reconnecting unauthorized attachments/components. You also hereby indemnify 
and hold Image 2000 and its Representatives harmless for cla ims to damages to any unauthorized parts, components or accessories resu lting 
from service performed on the Equipment.) Labor performed during a service call includes lubrication and cleaning of the Equipment, and the 
adjustment, repair or replacement of parts described below. In the event that the Equipment is non-operational for 3 business days after a 
service call, we will provide a Loaner at No Charge. Expenses incurred (for supplies or copies used in the course of our providing service), are 
non-recoverable. We are not r esponsible for service delays resulting from a manufacturer's non-availability of the parts or s upplies necessary to 
complete the service cal l. 
REPAIR & REPLACEMENT OF PARTS All parts and supplies necessary to the operation of the Equipment, (during normal and reasonable usage, 
with the exception of those listed be low), are subject to the general scope of coverage, and will be furnished at no additional cost. 
(Photoconductors are a primary exception; i.e. copy drums -- unless the copier, MFP or fax is covered by a Full Maintenance Agreement). Unless 
ulherwise stated, a Full Maintenance Agreement covers all parts, labor, repairs, toner, and ancillary s upplies except paper, staples and tone r 

waste tanks. 
RECONDITIONING THIS IS NOT APPLICABLE TO EQUIPMENT COVERED BY OUR CONTINUOUS MAINTENANCE GUARANTEE. In all other cases, 
rebuilding or major overhauls of Equipment is not covered. When, or in our sole discretion we determine that Reconditioning is required, (as a 
result of expected wear and tear of materials, and age factors caused by normal office-environme nt usage), in order to keep the Equipment 
operational, we will provide you with a written estimate as to repairs and costs. (These will be in addition to those due under this Agreement.) If 
you do not authorize Reconditioning, we may discontinue service under this Agreement and refund the unused portion), or we may elect not to 
renew the Agreement when it expires. Thereafter, our service and technicians may only be made available on a "Per Call" basis, based on 
published rates in effect at the time of service. 
USE OF IMAGE 2000 SUPPLIES If you use supplies in the Equipment other than those we p rovide, and if such supplies are defective or deemed 
unacceptable and cause abnormally frequent service calls or problems relative to the Equipment, we may elect to charge you for contaminated 
parts, assess a surcharge or te rminate this Agreement. In the event of Ter mination, you may be offered service on a "Per Call" basis, again based 
on published rates at the time of service. (However, it is not a condition of this Agreement; that you use only our manufacturers' authorized 
supplies.) 
SUPPLY-INCLUSIVE CONTRACTS If supplies are included in the service provided under this Agreement, we will supply you with toner, ink and 
developer, (based on normal yields), unless otherwise stated. If your usage of the supplies exceeds 15% of the Equipment manufacturer's 
published yield, we will subsequently invoice you for the excess. You hereby agree to pay for this excess at our current retail prices then in 
effect, less 20% discount. Additionally, we reserve the right to charge fo r shipping and handling. 
SPECIFICATIONS In order to insure optimal performance, it is imperative that some Equipment be plugged into a Dedicated Line that complies 
with the manufacturer's electrical specifications . These power standards are required by UL and/or local safety r egulations. You must also 
provide proper space requirements -- as specified by the manufacturer - allowing ample room for us to move the Equipment to perform service. 
CHARGES The initial non-refundable cost for maintenance under this Agreement is stipulated on the reverse side. This fee shall be increased to 
include applicable sales tax. The annual maintenance costs relative to any renewal term of the Agreement will be the charge in effect plus up to 
10% when renewed. You agree to pay a ll fees within 10 days of invoicing, as well as, the administration fee for the processing of invoices. If the 
Equipment is moved to a new Image 2000 service territory, we have the option to charge, and you agree to pay the difference in published 
maintenance charges between the current territory and the new te rritory (on a pro-rata basis). 
TERM This Agreement becomes effective upon our receipt of the initial non-refundable maintenance charge (provided on the reverse side of this 
Agreement), or if you are billed in arrears, it becomes effective on the date indicated in the "Start Date", and will continue for the specified period. 
In the event your usage reaches or exceeds the allowance specified, (prior to the expiration of the 1-year term), a New Contract can be negotiated 
-- or you will be charged for all excess meter clicks (overages), at the rate on the reve rse side until the end of the initial contract term. Your 
service contract will automatically renew each year, unless 30-days written notice is given stating your desire not to renew. At the time 
of renewal, your contract will be evaluated, a nd is subject to a rate increase and/or revision. (The same 30-day written notice also applies to us 
with respect to notifying you of our intent to withdraw as you Service Provider.) If you elect to trade in your equipment, or upgrade through us, 
the unused portion of your service contract will be applied as a credit toward your new service contract. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 176 of 487



EVENT OF DEFAULT AND TERMINATION If you fa il to pay any portion of the invoiced charges relative to maintenance or parts, within the 
t ime parameters in which they a re d ue, or if you fa il to duly perform any covenant, condition or limitatio n of this Agreement, it constitutes an 
Event of Default. Upon an Event of Default we may elect to: (I) Refuse to service the Equipment; (II ) Provide service on a C.O.D "Per Call' basis; 
and/ or (III) Terminate the Agreement. Within sixty (60) days of the expiration or termination of this Agreement, we will provide an itemized 
invoice fo r any fees due, including "Per Call" fees. Except where otherwise noted, once these invoiced amounts are paid, your liability /obligation 
to us will cease. If we are forced to terminate due to your breach of this Agreement, we shall be entitled to payment for all work in progress in 
addition to reimbursements for any out-of-pocket expenses. 
FULL AGREEMENT This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement/understanding between both parties, (Image 2000 and our Client), 
pursuant to the subject matter hereof and su persedes all prior agreements, understandings, negotiations and discussions, whether ora l or 
written, of the parties, and may not be added to, modi fied, supplemented or waived in any way except in writing and signed by both parties. 
(Excluding pricing changes previously noted herein.) 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS This Agreement is b inding on the parties hereto, their heirs, successors and assigns, and may not be unilate ra lly 
assigned by either party w ithout the written consent of the original parties. 
SEPARABILITY OF PROVISIONS Each provis ion of this Agreement shall be conside red separable. If for any reason any provision, (that is not 
essential to the effectuation of the basic purposes) is determined invalid or contrary to existing or future laws, such invalidity shall not impair the 
operation of, nor affect the valid p rovisions of this Agreement. 
COUNTERPARTS AND FACSIMILE SIGNATURES This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be 
an original and al l of which together s hall constitute one Agreement bind ing on all parties hereto, notwithstanding tha t all the parties have not 
s igned the same counterpart. (A faxed signature of this Agreement bearing authorized signatures may be treated as an original.) 
HOLD HARMLESS In no event shall Image 2000 be liable fo r any incidental, consequentia l, or indirect damages for personal injury, loss of 
business profi ts, business interruption, loss of bus iness information aris ing out of or the inability to use the product: i.e. the Equipment, Software 
or other Hardware. You acknowledge that the service coverage is such that MFP Equipment may continue to provide copies but not function as a 
printer. Yo u are solely liable for these types of r epairs unless covered by a Network Connectivity Maintenance Agreement. (This Agreement is 
applicable to print volume o nly services and excludes help desk support, network support, software application support and any other 
connectivity support services.)** Image 2000 will repair the machine , as well as, deliver a loaner if a machine has not been working for 3 
business days. The only cost will be for the copies made on the loaner at the time of the customer's machine being repaired in shop. In 
the case of software malfunction with a machine (i.e. printing to a machine, ne twork issues, and etc.) this will be a separate cost from 
the s ervice agreement. 
FORCE MA[EURE Image 2000 shall not be liable to you fo r any fail ure or d elay caused by events beyond our control, including, without 
limitation, your failu re to furn ish necessary information; sabotage; fa ilures or delays in transpor tation or communication; boycotts; embargoes; 
fa ilures or substitutions of equipment; labor disputes; accide nts; s ho rtages of labor; fuel; raw materials; machinery; or equipment; technical 
fa ilures; fire; storm; flood; earthquake; explosion; acts of the public enemy; war; insurrection; r iot; public disorder; epidemic; quarantine 
restr ictions; acts of God; acts of a ny government or any quas i-governmental authority; instr umentali ty or agency. DATA CLEANSING OR HARD 
DRIVE REMOVAL Upon te rmination of this Agreement, you may request our Data Cleansing o r Ha rd Drive Removal services. (To overwrite, 
reformat or remove the l-lDD(s) res iding on your Equipment.) We offer TWO options as lis ted on our Data Clea nsing or HOD Removal hand-out. 
It is understood that you are solely responsible for protecting and/or removing any confidential data/images stored on your Equipment. Under 
no circumstances, are we liable for any damages including special, exemplary, punitive, incidental. or consequential damages, regardless of the 
claim, that result from any information/data left on your Equipment's HOD. (We DO NOT automatically delete, cleanse, overwrite, or 
otherwise modify HDDs upon termination of any Service Agree me nt.) 
NO WARRANTY Image 2000 disclaims all warranties (express or implied), including any implied warranties of merchan tability, technical 
co mpatibility, fitness for use, or fitness for a particula r purpose. As such, you agree that we are not respons ible for di rect, incidental or 
consequential damages including, but not limited to, the loss of equipment usage, unless caused in whole o r in par t by us. ** The 
s ervice/warranty contract will be covere d by Image 2000 for the machines under this contract. We cover all parts and supplies, as well 
as, w e have support from the manufacturer. 
INSURANCE You are responsible for all costs re la ted to obtaining and maintaining insurance as pertains to any injury cla ims and/or property 
damage, (including commercial a nd general liability insurance), w ith respect to use of the provided equipment, goods and/or machinery. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 177 of 487



Addendum A 

Location: City Hall 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

1. Sharp MX-4111N Digital System 
Dual Scan Feeder 
Large Stapling Finisher 
(2) 500 Sheet Cassettes 
Print/Scan Board 
Attachment Kit 

2. Sharp MX-753N Digital System 
Large Stapling Finisher 
2,000 Sheet Large Capacity Cassette 

Location: Parks & Recreation 
208 Park Ave. 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

3. Sharp MX-4111N Digital System 
Dual Scan Feeder 
Large Stapling Finisher 
(2) 500 Sheet Cassettes 
Print/Scan Board 
Attachment Kit 

Location: Parks & Recreation (Las Palmas) 
SOS S. Huntington Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

4. Sharp MX-4111N Digital System 
Dual Scan Feeder 
Large Stapling Finisher 
(2) 500 Sheet Cassettes 
Print/Scan Board 
Attachment Kit 

Location: Parks & Recreation (After School Program) 
SOS S. Huntington Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

5. Sharp MX-4111N Digital System 
Dual Scan Feeder 
Large Stapling Finisher 
(2) 500 Sheet Cassettes 
Print/Scan Board 
Attachment Kit 

16,700 B/W Copies@ 0.0115 = $192.05 
7,500 Color Copies@ 0.06 = $450.00 
Total = $642.05 per month 

9,350 B/W Copies@ 0.0115 = $107.53 
4,650 Color Copies @ 0.06 = $279.00 
Total = $386.53 per month 

9,350 B/W Copies@ 0.0115 = $107.52 
4,650 Color Copies @ 0.06 = $279.00 
Total = $386.53 per month 

8,000 B/W Copies@ 0.0115 = $92.00 
3,000 Color Copies@ 0.06 = $180.00 
Total= $272.00 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 178 of 487



Location: Public Works City Yard 
120 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

6. Sharp MX-4111N Digital System 
Dual Scan Feeder 
Large Stapling Finisher 
(2) 500 Sheet Cassettes 
Print/Scan Board 
Attachment Kit 

2,800 8/W Copies@ 0.0115 = $32.20 
600 Color Copies @ 0.06 = $36.00 
Total = $68.20 

Grand Total: $1,755.30 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 179 of 487



Canon 
CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA 

Canon Solutions America, Inc. ("CSA") 
One Canon Park, Melville, NY 11747 
(800) 613-2228 MPS Consultant Glen R. Hitchens 

Customer Name ("You") City of San Fernando Police Dept 
Billing Address: 910 First Street 

City: San Fernando County: 

State: CA Zip: 91340 Phone #:818-898-1255 

Contact: Lt. Christian Colelli Fax#: 

Email: ccolelli@sfcity.org 

MANAGED PRINT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Salesperson Paul Cohen Order Date: _QJ_ / 0 5 / J.2_ 

Initial Term: 12 months -----
Requested Start Date: Ql_t 15 117 (no sooner than 10 days after 
contract order date and completion of Schedule A, Schedule A-MICR or B an 
submission of a printed configuration page for each printer) 

Do you require a P.O. for payment? Yes _ _ NoL 

Is there a statement of Work ("SOW') covering additional services? 
Yes __ No.x_ 

Note: Charges for additional services are billed separately. 

The Printers covered under th s A 

Covera e Plan 

reem ent are listed on Schedule A, Schedule A-MICR, and/or Schedule B. 

Consumables 

0 Per Unit ~ Fleet ~ Inclusive O Exclusive 

The initial price for Equipment listed on Schedule A and/or Schedule B is as follows 

Estimated Quarterly Print Volume Quarterly Base Per Image Charge (Fleet) 
B&W Color Charge B&W Color TonerTvoe 

I $ $ 0. 023 I $ 0_095 IKJ OEM 03'' Party 

The initial price for Equipment listed on Schedule A-MICR is as follows 

Estimated Quarterly Print Volume Quarterly Base Per Image Charge (Fleet) 
B&W Color Charge B&W Color TonerTvoe 

I $ $ 0. I $ o. 00EM IZb'' Party 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
1. TERM. The Managed Print Services (MPS ) shall begin on the Start Date and ccntinue for the initial term specified above. The initial term shall renew for successive 12 month renewal terms unless either party 
gives written notice of non-renewal al least 30 days prior to Iha e.xplralion of the then current lerm. 
2. CHARGES. Base charges shal be billed in advance aod per image charges shall be tilled [n arrears on a quarterly basis, !nv<ices st,all be due and payable within thirty days of the invoice date, Appf'1Cc1ble 
taxes shall be added lo the charges. If paymenis are tale, CSA may charge you and you agree to pay, a late charge equal 10 the higher of five pertent (5%) ol lhe alT\OOl1l due or ten doUars (S10) for each bi!lng 
period or portiQ11 of a bll!lng period such payment is delayed as reasonable collection fees, not lo exceed the maximllll amount perrnttted by law. CSA reserves l!\e right to increase the prices above at any time 
during lhe Term to reRect increased costs upon thirty (30) days written notice lo you. The charges are sulJtect to an annual Increase on each anniversary or the start date. If you have selected lhe Fleet Coverage 
Plan. lhe Base Charge, Covered Images and Per Image Cjlarges noted above shall apply to all of the Equipment on lhe Schedule. If you have selected the Per UnU Co.rerage Plan, the Base Charge, Covered 
Images and the Per Image Charges for eacn unit s~aJI be reflected on the Schedule. 
3. PRIOR ASSESSMENT. Under a prior agreemenL CSA has performed a network and system dlSCO'lery analysis of your IT environment In which setVices are lo be rerdered under Ills Agreemen Under lhe 
prior agll!emen~ CSA has used certain discovery tools to identify !he components and condilklns of your IT environment. 
4. COVEREO PRINTERS. Tris agreemenl 1s intended to provide services for your entire fleet of prinlElfS however certain models of printers may not be eligible for serw:es under lhis contract due lo age, 
geographic local[on orolher reasons determined by CSA, Al CSA s discretion, the Ineligible printers may be placed under a Standaro Plan and idenlified on t~e associated schedule ( Schedule B) and shall only 
receive loner cartridges and monitoring services The Premier scope ol selllices as defined in Paragrapli 7 covers Q!!i the printeis Identified on the associated schedule ( Schedule A or Schedule A-MICR ). 
The parties may agree lo add or remove prlnlers from time to time during lhe Term by mutUal execution of a CSA MOS Change Order Customer shal provide CSA a standard device cO!lfiguratioo sheel shov.ing 
the slart meler reading of lhe added printer{s) as of lhe start date of this contract. Otherwise, CSA may compute a stan reading for the pnnter(s) utilizing lhe current meter reading and subtracting an esamated 
montrly vdume per printer, as deterrrined by CSA. In the event Customer acquires additional devices subsequent to the slart date of this Agreerrent, the start meter shall be zero. If the quantity of printeis 
changes du11ng lhe Tern, from lhe original quantity listed on Schedule A, Schedule A-MICR c,- Schedule B, CSA reserves the right to adjust the pricing accordingly. 
5. YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES. As a condition precedent to CSA s duties: 

(a) The Printers shall be in good worl<ing condition on the Start Dale (as determined solely by CSA in its reasonable discretion). 
(b) You shall provide CSA with an accurate location and printed conliguratJon page for each printer placed under this Agreement. You shaU notify CSA ff you relocate any printers from lhe address indicaled 

on Schedule A, A-MICR, B or any related Change Order 
(c) You shall use only CSA-approved pans and suppies for the Prinlers. 
(d) You shall have proper electfi<;a' and nelYlork connections and install and use CSA approved surge prolector(s) where appropriate. 
(e) You shall provide a Key Operator responsfl.:le lordesignaled du~es in lhe operalor s manual and insure that the proper supplies are being installed and/or used correctly with the Printers. 
(ij You are solely responsible for security of your electronic and other data. 
(g) You must install and keep the DCA installed on your network for networked devices and locally for non-nel'M'.Jrked devices throughout the Tern, of this Agreement If the DCA does not communicate with 

CSA, you agree lo provide manual meler readings upcn requesl 
(h) You agree llial CSA may use es~ma!ed meter readings If H does not receive umely meter reading on any Printers ccvered by this Agreement. 
(i) You shall uliize the CSA ordering procedures for adding or deleting printeis and ordering Toner Cartridges. You acknov.!edge lhat CSA v.ill not deliver services or toner for printers not listed on 

Schedule A, Schedule A-MICR, Schedule B or any related Change Order until you complete the proper ordering procedure to add the printer lo the Agreement 
U) You shall provide timely meter readings for any printer not connected to the DCA for any reason . 

SEE PAGE 2 FOR ADDITIONAL TERMS ANO CONDITIONS 

Subject to the terms and ccnditions of this Agreement and any listed Statement of Work above, CSA agrees to provide (i) Managed Print Services for lhe Printers listed in Schedule A, Schedule A-MICR 
and if applicable, (ii) toner cartridges for the Printers listed in Schedule B of this Agreement or in any future Change Order related to this Agreement (the Printers ) al the charges stated herein or therein 

BY YOUR SIGNATURE BELOW, YOU AGRE TO PURCHASE THE MANAGED PRINT SERVICES SPECIFIED ABOVE. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT THE ADDITIONAL 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON PAG H EOF AND IN ANY SCHEO ND ) HERETO, ARE INCORPORATED AND MADE A PART OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

SER-024 January 2016 CSA continued on Page 2 

ATTACHMENT "C"
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 180 of 487



ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
These are the additional terms and conditions referred to on page 1 to which they are attached (such 
page 1, and any addendum(s) hereto, col lecovely 'M lh these terms and conditions, the Agreement ). 
6. CSA RESPONSIBUTIES 
(a) CSA v,ill tag each Prtnter inUally listed on Schedule A, Schedule A•MICR or Schedule B 'Mlh a 
CSA SeMce tag Indicating serial# and CSA contact Information. (b)ll"you haw:? seteclsd Consumables 
lnduslve, Pnnters listed on Schedule A, A-MICR and Bare prcyk!ed replenishment ol Original 
Equipment Manufacl!Jrer ( OEM ) or 3rd Party manufactured toner cartridges, as Indicated on Page 1, 
for exclusive use vAfh the Printers specified on Schedule A, A·MICR and 8 The pricing In this 
agreement is based upon 5% toner coverage for tiack & while and 20% for color letter size pages. You 
agree that CSA 111ay invoice you for excess usage in !he event yoor a:tual toner usage exceeds these 
as~mpflons by more lhan 10%. Excess toner charges shall be computed using the expected print 
volume ( EPV) minus lhe actual print volume reported. The EPV = actual number of cartridges shipped 
x the toner yield per cartridge~ 90%. You shall bear all risk of loss, theft or damage to unused \(Jner 
cartridges pmYided to you under this Agreement. Wtilch shall remain CSA s property and shall be 
returned pro,npUy upon terminatiOn of this Agreement (c) CSA v.<11 perform an initial walkth,ough of 
Customer locations covered under this Agreement. customer shall iden~fy each networfled and non
neh•10rked dE!l'loe to be covered under this agreement. CSA wi l de§ver, inst.ii, configure and test its 
network Data Collection Agent ( DCA ) wi th your IT staff assistance. CSA 'MIi perform a one-time 
installation of its local DCA to non-networt<ed devices with the assistance of your IT staff however it will 
be your responsibility to re-install any local DCA W necessary. CSA v, I pro•lide .ii technical support, 
updates and maintenance for the OCA. (d) You ackno11!edge that CSA s abUily to defr,ral Ille seMCes Is 
dependent upon your fuD and fimely cooperation v.ith CSA, as well as the accuracy and completeness 
of the infom,atlon provided by you IO CSA. If, during lhe lniUa three (3) months of the Term, the 
assumptions used to develop the pricing aod any related Statement of Work is found to be incorrect or 
misstated, the parties agree 10 meet and in good faith negotrate equftable changes in the scope of WOik 
and associated charges. You agree 10 iotlow the detailed operational p1oceduras l'Alich are explained 
in lhe MOS Customer ExpectaUon Document wlich you ~ereby ack1101"1edge receipt of al the tlme of 
executing this agreement. 
7. SERVICES. YOU SHALL RECEIVE THE SERVICES DESCRIBED IN THIS PARAGRAPH 7 ONLY 
FOR THE EQUIPMENT LISTED ON A SCHEDULE A, SCHEDULE A-MICR, CHANGE ORDER 
FORM A, OR CHANGE ORDER FORM A-MICR. Such services are subject to the exclusions 
hereinafter described. 
7.1 COVERED SERVICES. 
(a) CSA shall pro,;de all routine preventlve maintenance. malntena~ l<lts and eme/gency service 
necessary to keep the Pnnters In good worlling Older In accoroance wiih this Agreement and CSA s 
normal practice. Such ser.k:e shan be performed during CSA s local regular business hours (8:30 A.M, 
to 5:00 P,M. MO!lday through Fnday, except holidays). 
{b) You shall afford CSA fufl, free and sale socess to the Printers to perform on-siteser;lce. CSA may 
terminate lts ma!ntenarce obligations as to any Printers If you reloeate It to a slle outside CSA s 
authoJfzed service territory , ii. in CSAs op[oon. any Printers cannot be maintained In gCiOd v.orltlng 
order through CSAs routine maintenance services, CSA shall, al ils opfon, either (i) subsUlute 
comparable Printers at your expense or (ii) cancel the balance of any remaining term of this Agreement. 
as :o S\ICh Printers and refund the unearned port1on of any prepaid charges hereunder. Parts repla;;ed 
or removed by CSA n connection with maintenance services hereunder shall become the property of 
CSA and you disclaim any interest therein. 
7.2 NON-COVERED SERVICE, You ackno>Medge that CSA shall not have obligations related to i) 
ovemauts and/or recondldoning of printers; R) printer user error.;; (ffi) lhe alterafion, modification or 
customization ex any software conlrolllng, used by, Installed on or embedded in the PrintelS, fiv) the 
service or repair of devices, accessories. power, data or communlcaUoo rines or other lnslrumehts 
whleh are external toor othell'lfse not a component part of the Printer.;; (v) data erasure or haid drive 
removal or (vi) supplylng external commun!ca~ons or data transfer i nes, paper or other throUghput, 
staples, cassettes, exit llays or other Uke Items or supplies (other than !OllercaMdges as de&ned In 
section 3) used or consumed in the normal operations cl the Prin te.rs ( Excluded Hems). ThefollovAng 
servlces, and any other wort< beyond lhe scope of this' Agreement, shall be invoiced ln accordance 11ith 
CSA s !hen current.labor, pai1S and supply charges: (a) repfacemenl of any consumable suppy Item 
of her than looer, (b) repairs necess lated by factor. other than normal use including, 1-iilhou1 i mitation. 
any 1\illlul act, negligence, abuse or misuse of the Printers; the use of parts, supplles orsoltv,11re whk:h 
are not supplied by CSA and which cause abnormally frequent ser,ice calls or service prolllems; 
service perlooned by personnel other than CSA personnel; transportation of the PrinteJS; accident; use 
of the PrinteJS vJth non-compatitxe haidware or software components; electrical power malfunction or 
healing, cooling or humidity ambient conditions: (c) re-inslallaoon or re:ocalion of Printers: (d) repairs to 
or realignment of Printers, and rela!ed training, necessitat.ed by changes you made to your system 
configuration or netwolll environment (e} repairs or service required as a resull oflnadequale operacon 
of the Printers (e.g., CSA lechnician is dlspatched lo rectify a problem descnbed In the operator 
manual); (f) work which you request lo be performed outside of CSAs ,wutar business hoUJS. 
8. LIMITED WARRANTY. CSA s services shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner 
consistent 'Mlh generally prevailing industry practices, and all parts and materials provided by CSA shall 
be free from defects in materials or workmanship, for a period of thirty days after the date of installation. 
This limited warranty ~ dudes normal wear and tear on parts orCOll'iX)l'lents therecl and Printer 
problems arising rrom or related to &duded Hems, misuse, abuse, neglect. acddent or ]mprqier 
maintenance (other than services performed by CSA) and shai be null and void If you or any third party 
alters or modifies lhe PrinteJS in any manner after CSA repaiJS or services the Printers, 
9. DATA. You acknowledge thal the hard drive(s) on lhe Eqoiprnen~ lndudlng attached devi::es, may 
retain images, content or other data that you mays.tore lorpurposes of normal operation oflhe 
Equipment ( Data ). You ackno·.,Aedge ihat CSA Is rot storing Data on behafof you and lhal exposure 
or access to the OaJa by CSA, if any. Is purely incidental lo the services performed by CSA. Neither 
CSA nor any of their affiliates has an obugalion to erase or overwrite Data upon your return ci the 
Equipment to CSA 01 any leasing company. You are solely responsible for Q) your comp'lance with 
applicable law and legal requirements pertaining to data privacy, storage, security, retention and 
protection; and 01) all decisions related to erasing or overwriting Data Without Umiting the foregoing, you 
shoufd. (a) enable the Han! Disk Drive (HOD) data erase functionality that Is a slandard fealu1e on 
certlin Equipment and/or (b) prtor to 1etum or olherdispos !Ion of the Equipment, utiize the HOD (or 
comparable) formartlng function (which may be referred to as Initialized All Data/Settings fur,ction) d 

SER-024 January 2016 CSA Page 2 

found on the Equipmen t lo perform a one pass ovell'lrite of Dal.! or,~ you have higher security 
requirements. you may purchase from CSA at culTl!nl rates an available opfion for the Ecp.ripmenl 
which may Include (xi an HOD Data Encryption Kit option which disguises lnforrnalion before it Is wntte11 
lo the hard drive using encr;ptlon algorithms, (y) a HOO Data Erase Kit that can perform up fo a 3-pass 
overwrite of Data (for Equipment not containing data erase functionanty as a standard feature), or (z) a 
replacement nard Clrive (in which case you should properly destroy the replaced hard drive), The terms 
of lhis Section 9 shall solely govern as to Data, not;, lhstanding lhat any prov,slons of this Agreement or 
any separate C011fidentlality or data security or other agreement now or hereafter entered into between 
you and CSA could be construed to apply to Data. 
10. EXCLUSION OF WARRANTIES AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CSA EXPRESSLY 
DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE RELATING TO THE USE OR 
PERFORMANCE OF THE PRINTERS AND SOFTWARE (OR ANY METER READ COLLECTION 
METHOD PROVIDED BY CSA). YOU EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE FURNISHING OF 
MAINTENANCE SERVICE UNOER"THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT ASSURE UNINTERRUPTED 
OPERATION AND USE OF THE PRJNTERS, SOFTWARE (OR METER COLLECTION METHODS). 
CSA SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR INJURY OR DAMAGE EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY 
CSA S NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT. CSA SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR 
EXPENDITURES FOR SUBSTITUTE EQUIPMENT OR SERVICES, LOSS OF REVENUE OR 
PROFIT, LOSS, CORRUPTION OR RELEASE OF DATA, FAILURE TO REALIZE SAVINGS OR 
OTHER BENEFITS, STORAGE CHARGES OR INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT 
REGARDLESS OF THE LEGAL THEORY ON WHICH THE CLAIM IS BASED AND EVEN IF CSA 
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 
11. DEFAULT. You shall be in default of this Agreement if you fail to perform any of yourobligaoons 
under Ills AgreemenL indudlng making prompt undlsputed payments when due. CSA may terminate 
this Agreement upon your delauil v.ith lllrty (30) days notice lo you. If an overdue payment ,s dispuied 
in good faith \Ii thin llirty (30) days after the due date thereof, you shall pay all undisputed arrounts and 
promptly make a good faith effOlt to resof~e such dispute 11ilh CSA, In the event of your default. CSA 
may. 'lilhout nmi5ng Ils other rights and remedies available under appflcab!e law and !his Agreement, 
require you to pay all charges then due bur unpaid. ududing any applicable fate cha,ges, plus lhe 
remaining base charges for the balance of O,e term (not lo exceedapenod ol 6 months). You agree 
that such charges are reasonalie Uquidated damages for IOss of bargan and not a penalty. 
12. TERMINATION. Either party may terminate this Agreement, l'Alh orYl!tllout cause, b'/ providing 
lhirjy (30) days wri tten ro6ce to the other party CSA may also terminate thls Agreement upon five (5) 
days written notice in the event of your falure lo pay compensation due hereunder. Shot.Cd you 
terminate this Agreement prior to the exp1ralion of lhe Term other than for a mateilal, uncured breach t:lf 
CSA, you shaM tmmelfiately pay to CSA an earty terrrina6on lee equal lo the average monthly bllling to 
date and any exce!lS toner charges per Secion 6(b). Earty termination charges are due ,n lul 
Immediately with the Written termination notice, and are intended as a reasonable estima1e otlhe 
anticipated damages lo CSA arising from sel-\Jp, per.;onnel training and simlarcosts. Your termination 
win not be effective unlil the early terminalicn fee and any excess toner charges are paid In full Any 
rights or remedies of either party exisong pnor lo eras of the date of tenninafon, such as for 
cornpensaUon, shall survive any termlnaUon or expiration of thisAgreemenl Yolr shaD p,omply return. 
or pe,mij CSA to remove, any Printers, parts, softlVare or supplies owned, cont/OIied or licensed by 
CSA. 
13. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND 
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK THE 
PARTIES CONSENT TO THE EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF ANY STATE OR 
FEDERAL COURT LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW YORK UPON SERVICE OF PROCESS 
MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE STATUTES AND RULES OF THE STATE OF 
NEW YORK OR THE UNITED STATES ANY AND ALL SUITS COMMENCED BY CLIENT 
AGAINST CSA, WHETHER OR NOT ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND REGARDLESS 
OF THE LEGAL THEORY UPON W!'ilCH SUCH SUITS ARE BASED, SHALL BE BROUGHT 
ONLY IN THE STATE OR FEDERAL COURTS LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW YORK. 
ANY SUIT BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO, OTHER THAN ONE SEEKING PAYMENT OF 
AMOUNTS DUE HEREUNDER, SHALL BE COMMENCED, IF AT ALL, WITHIN ONE (1 ) YEAR OF 
THE DATE THAT THE CLAIM ACCRUES. THE PARTIES IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO 
A JURY TRIAL IN ANY SUIT BETWEEN THEM 
14. MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement shall be binding upon you when you sign this Agreement, 
and shall be binding upon CSA upon commencement of the covered services. CSA is and shall at all 
times be an independent contractor and shall not be deemed an employee or agent of you. Nothing in 
this Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between the parties This 
Agreement and lhe attached exhibits contain the complete agreement between the parties and shall , as 
of the Effective Date hereof, supersede all other agreements , if any, between the parties relating to the 
services provided hereunder. The parties stipulate Iha! neither of them has made any representation 
with respect lo lhe subject mailer of this Agreement or the execution and delivery hereof except such 
representation as are specifically set forth herein No modification, amendment, supplement to or waiver 
of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless made in wriang and duly signed by 
both parties. All provisions of this Agreement including Section 9, which by their nature can be 
construed to survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement shall so survive, Any pwchase order 
utilized by you shall be for your adminislrative convenience only, and any terms therein which conflict 
with, vary from or supplement the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed null and void. A fa il ure 
of either party to exercise any right provided for herein shall not be deemed a waiver of any right under 
this Agreemenl This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and 
permitted assigns of the respective parties This Agreement shall not be assignable by you 'Mlhout 
CSA s prior written consent, and any attempted assignment llithoul such consent shall be void If a court 
finds any provision of this Agreement (or part thereon to be lllenlo · ·ons of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Headings r conve111ence only and silal t be 
considered in the interpretation of this Agreement. e accepi an electronic 
image of this Agreement as an orlgfnal, at el ronlc copies of your sign re-wlll be treated 
as an original for all purposes. 

Customer Initials V ,,. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 181 of 487



) 

WSCA-NASPO ~1aster Agreement Terms and Conditions 

A Contract for the WS A-NASPO C perative Purcha.'illlg Program (WSCA· A. PO) 
Acting by arui tlu·ough the I le of a.da. (Lead State} 

Department of dmi1ustr-Jtioth Purchasing Division 
SlS E l\olu:,ser Street, Room 300 

Car on City NY 89701 
Contact Shannon B rry, As.sistaot Chief Procurffllent Officer 

Plmne! (775) 684-0171 • a.: (775) 684-0188 

aod 
Canon USA 

t Canon Park 
MeMne- 1''Y 11747 

.Contact: ~lik Hutley, Supen·i!lor, Contract Admin 

Phone: (631) :Jl0-J6U • Jfa:r.: (631) 330-5459 
Em 0: mhurle @cu e-caMn. om 

l. Master Agreement Order of Precedence 

a. Any rder pin cd ui'.1<.ll!r this M.a:;ter Agrecm nt shaU consist of the following do uru.ents: 

(1) A Pru1lcipatiog Entity's Participating Addendum ("'PN'); 

(2) these WSCA-N PO Moster Agreement Terms.&: Conditions~ 

(3) A Purchase Ordt.--r issued o inst th f~ster Agreement; 

(4) The Statement of Work specific tn Participating F.ntity· 

(5) The Solicitation, Rf P 3091 Cop-ier3, Printers and Related Devices (Attachment AA); 

(6) 1'egoti ted Hen1!! (Attachment BB}:. and 

(7) Contractor's response to the Soticilnlion, as revised (if penniltcd) and accepted by the 

Leu<l State (Attacbm~nt C ). 

• Awarded: Groups A, 8, C, D, and f 

WSCA·NASPO Master Agreement Ts arid Cs Page 1 of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 182 of 487



) . , 

) 

h. These documents shall be read lo he c(msistl.-nt a.'ld compk:mentary, 1\ny conflict amor,g 
these documents shall be resolved by wving priority to these doL·tunents in the order 
list:ed above, Cootmctor tt.11ns and conditions that apply to thi.~ Master Agreement are 
only those that are expressly acL-epted by rhe Leod State and must be i.1 writing and 

attached to dtis Masrer Agrcem~nt as an Exhib11 or Attachment. 

14 Definitions 

Ace ptattce m~ns a written uotice Ii-om a Purcha.s;ing Etttity to Contractor advrsing Conlractor 
that the Product has passed its Acceptance Testing. An:cpui.nce of a Product ft.>r which acceptnnce 
LcSling is- m1l reqt1ire-d shall occur following the completion of d,divcry, irutallatioo, if required, 
and a teasunable time for inspccti(m of the Produci, unless the Purchasing Entity providt.--s a 
written nJ.Jtice of rejection to ContrACtor. 

Acetprauc~ Testin.g metins the process for ascertaining that the Product meet:, th~ staminrda set 
forth. in lh st"1:tion titleu Stiintfard of Perfom:tani:e nnd Acceptance, prior to A~ept nee by the 
Purchasing Entity. 

Contraetor ntell!'\$ the p ·on or entity d.divering Pruducts or perfonnin; services ur.der the terms 

and conrlitions set forth in this if aster greement 

Embed c.tl Sortware means one or tnl)fc softv.rru-e application...:; which µemu:mently reside on a 
computing devke. 

lntellect.usl Pro~rt,y rneiH!S any and all pa1cnts, ;;; P> ·ghts, set11i c marks. trademark,s, trsJ.c 
s 1..-;, tr<'l_de l'lalnes, potenrable inventions, or other similar proprietury tights, io tangible or 
tntangib!e form, and all rlght:s, title, and im sL. therein . 

l.ead State means the Stale centrally a<lminfatering nny resulting Muster A:;;reement{s). 

i\'Ltsfi:!r Agreement meims the underlying agreen1enr executed by and bet\Veen the tead Suite, 
acting on behalf of WS A-'.1-iASPO. and the Contracwts, n:i now or he ,1{\er amended, 

Order or Purcha~ Oi"dcr means any purchase order, sa!~ mdo::r, C<)fltrai.-t or Oiiler ,focurnem 
used by a Purdu1..1i11g Entity to o:t<le-r the Products. 

Participating Addendum means a bilateral agre;~ment ex~ul~d by a 11tract<1r .md a 
Participating Entity ini.."1)rpot-aling this Master Agre merit and any other additional P rticipating 
Entity p~lfic fo:11~1 g <1r otbtr require~uents, e.g. ordering procctlutes · pceific to the 
P r1id~1ting Entity, otht'T t rms and tonditions. 

P~rt.idpa ·ng Endt:y me.ms a stat<:. or <Jtfa:r legal entity, property auih )cd fO t."ti~ iuto 11 

Ptrrli ipa!ing AdJ .. ndum, 

Participating State ttiean;; a slate, the District of Columbia, ur Otte of flw territories oflh United 

Sr.ateg that is listitrl in the R quest for Prop().rol a,5 intending to participate, A Partkipa1ing Seate is. 
no1 reqiiired to parHcipate lhrougn execution or a Participating. Addcuclwn. Upon execution of 
the Participating Addettdum. a Partkrpsting State h..x:01nes a Partic:ipating Entity. 

Page 2 of 2lJ 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 183 of 487



) 

3. 

4. 

Product mc<1ns any cqi1ipnn'!ot. soltware linduding emb dded sol1warc), rlocurnentat'ion, service 
or other deliverable sup-plied or created by the Contractor pursuant to this tvtasrer Agreement 
The tern:; Products, supplies and services, and product!> and services arc U.'!ed interch ne.eably in 
these tenns and contlitiom;, 

P-urchasing Entity meatis a state, city, wunty, district, other Political subdivision of a State, and 
a nonprofit organizatioa under the lows of some states if authorized by a Panidpating Addendwn, 
who issues a Purchase Order againsr the Master Agrecmenr and becomes finnrtciaUy commitred 
w the purchase. 

WSCA-N PO is the WSCA-NASPO Cooperaiive Purchasing Pr-0gram, facilit~1ed by the 
WSCA~NASPO Coopt'f"ative Purehasing Or a11i1.a!ion LLC, a 50 I (c)(3) limited li~bility company 
that is a $UWicliary mgani7.atfou the 3tional Asrnciarion of State Piot."1.1rcmcmt Officials 

IASf> J, die $Ole rncmber of WSCA•NASPO. The WSCA•NASPO Cootierative Purch.asirt~ 
Orgatti-zalio!l fa1.:iljtates administration of the cooperJtivt group contracting consortium of state 
chief procurcmi!!lt officials for the lx.>t1efit of st.ate departnmnts, ii:i.;,titµtions, agencies, nd 
pt1litkaf subdivisions and oth~t eligible entities (i.e .• C'Olkge;, 11ehoo! districts, co nlics, cities. 

nt.: n up: fit crganizutions. etc.) f.,r all tates and Ute District of Columbia, The WSCA-
NASPO perarivc Developmem Team is identified in the ~f.asK-r Ag~'(l)ent as the recipient of 
rcp(Jrts and may be perfonnlng c-ontn:u.:t :idl'll1nist:rotion !unctions as assigned by the Lead Stil l\ 

Term of the Master Agreement 

The ittUiat t:e.rm of this Master Agreement ts tot five (5) yetirs; effective upon execution through 
December 31, 2019. Placement-s mad· usitJg tbt: authority provided by this Contract will survive 
'the Cor.tmct i1. elf, per 1em1s stated iu cctioo 3.3. 10 Survivability of !he. RFP 113091. 

Amendment! 

The lerms of this Mi.lster greeme:nt sh.all .not be waived, al tered, modifiet!, su9plemt:nted 1.1J: 

amend~d in any mann~r whatil-Oever without prior wrinen approwl of the Lead State. 

s. Assignmcnt/Subcontructs 

a. Contractor shalt 001 assign, sclJ, t'til.osfo.,, subcontmct or sublet rights., ,,r delegnte. 
rusponsibilities under this Muster Agreement, in whole or in part, wiinour the prior 
written approval of the Lead Stal<:, 

h, The Lead State resav • the right to assign any rights or duties, includins written 
assignment of contract administration duties to the: WSCA~NASPO Cooperative 
i>urchasing Org niza!ion LLC. 

6. Pric~ and Rate Guarantee Period 

AU prices ~tld rates mu!lt be guarameed for the tllilial tcm1 of the M, ter AgteemenL Following 
the initial te Agreement period, a11y request tor price l'lr rate ad,lustment must be for ao equal 
guarantee period, irnd 1m1st he mndc at least nintty (90) days prior to the effective date. Requcstl> 
for price or rate adju.'>tmem must include sufficient d6cumentalion supporting the Nqu gt, Alff 

Page 3 of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 184 of 487



adjustment or amemlnieni to the 1\..fa_irter Agreen'lf;lll shall not be effective unlt-ss approved by the 
Lead State. No retroactive adjustfu nts to prices or rate3 will be allowed. 

7. Cancellation 

Urtles..<, alherwis.e st:ue<l, this Mnsler Agreement n1ay be canceled by either party upoo 60 days 
written notice µriot to the: effective date of the cam.:ellarion. Further, any Partii:::ipalirtg Entity may 
cancel its panicipaticm upoo 30 days written notice, unless oth,,.'TWise limited or stated in the 
Participating Adt.fcndtun. Canceliation may be in whole or in part. Any cancellation under this 
provision shall not affect the rights and obligations attending orders outstanding at the time of 
cancellation, including any r1~t of and Purchasing Entity to ind~nnification by the Contractor, 

rights of paymertt for Product,; delivered and accepted, and rights attending. any warranty or 

default in pcrfoODnnce in ass ciatioo wlth nny Oeder. Cru1cellarion tJf the Master Agreement due 
to Comractor default may be imroediaie. 

8. Confidentiality, Non-Di~Josure., and lnjunetive ReJicf 

Confidentialily. ontractor acknowledges Uiat it and it.,; employcci. or agents may, in the 

course of providing a, Product under this Masttr Agreement, ht~ eXp()lle<l to or acquire 
wfom,ation that is cotifidentfal to Purchasing Entity's or Pu basing Entity'$ clients. 
Any and all information of a11y form that is maiked as confideoti,d or would by its nature 
be deemed confidential obtained by Contr.tctor or its employees or agents in the 

l)erformat:1 -e ofthis M ter Agreement, including., hut n.ot n sarily limited to (I} any 
Purchasing Entity's reeorJs. (2} personnel records, and (3) tn onnation concerning 
indi . 'duals, ls confidt.•mial infonn:ilion of Purchasing Entity ("'Confidential 
Information ··}. Aoy reports or ot:bor document., or items (including suftwnre} that result 
from tbe use of the onf tdential Information by Conl(nctor shall be treated m th(! same 
ttlann(tr as tt1e Confidential lnfor:matii;;n. Co11fidc'nti.d Information do not include 
information that (1) is or becomes (other d1an by disd sure by Contruc:tor ttublicly 
lcno : (2) is funtishcd by Purchasing Entity to others without rerstricttons similar t1) 

those imposed by thjs laster A@"C'-'ltlertt; (3) is rightfully in Comr,1ctor's po ion 
without the obligation of noridisdmure prior to Ile time of it1> diiclosure under this 
MastL-r Agreement; ( 4) is obtained from a souree other than PlJICha.sing Entity withrnit the 
obligation of confidL-ntiality, (5} i.~ disclosed witb the written consent of f>urcha.iing 
Entity or: (6) is indepetidemly developed by employees, 3-gents or subcontracto11 1,f 
Conrrnctor who can be shown to have had no access to the Confidential Infc:mnation, 

b. Noo~Disc!osure. Contracrnr shall hold Confidt-ntiaJ lnformatfon in confidence. using at 
li.':il.St tht indu}ltry standard of con(ldcnHality, imd baf!. oot copy, reproduce, setl, assign, 
license, market, tran.'lfor or otherwise disp S<! of, give, or d1sdosc Confidenti'31 
tnformation to third partil..'S or use Confidential lnfunn tion for any purposes whatsoevt-'t 
other than wbut is necessary to die perfonuan.;e of Ordel'6 placed under this M.ut.er 
Agrct"lnent. Cmmac!ot shaU advise each orits employees and agents of their obligations 
co keep Confidenti11I b,formattou confulentfoL Conrractor shall use copuncrcialty 
reasonable efforts to assist Purdmsing Entity in identifying and preventing any 

unauthm'iz.cd use or diildosure of any Conl'.iclentiaf lnfom1ation. \\iithout limiting the 
generality of the foregofo.g, Contrn.ctor ihrul advise Purchasing Entity, nppli~ble 

WSCA--NASl>O f\,1am:r Agreement Ts and Cs Page 4 at 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 185 of 487



) 

Partidpating Encity, and the Lead State immediately if Contractor le~trni; or has reason to 
believe that any per:lon who has bud ru.:cess to Confidential fnfonnation ha:; violated or 
inte.Pds to violate th~ renns of this Masrer Agreement, and Contractor shall at its expense 
cooperate with Purch,.ising Entity in Cl!ktng injunctive or other equitable relief in the 
natne c,f Purchasing Entity or Contractor against any such person. Ex.cept as directed by 
Purclrnsing Entity, Contractor will not at any tillte during or afu:r the term of tttis Master 
Agreement disclose. directly or indirectly, any Confidential Il1fonnalioo to i:ln person, 
except in accordance with this Master Agreemlfill, and tha.l upon U!nninntion of this 
Master grcem~m or at Purchasing Entity's request, Contra tor shall turn o,·er tc> 
Purch1tSins Entily at! documents. pup~. und other matt.:.-r in Contrucior' posses ion that 
embody Cenfid4lt1tia! lufon:ru1tion, Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may keep 
ooe c-0py of $uch Confi~emial lnfonnatioo necessary for quality i urance, audits and 
evidenc of the perfi rmance orthis Master Agreement. 

c. Injunctive Retfof. Contractor ackn~>wledgcs that breach of this :,ectio~ i.ocludirig 
disclowrc of any Confitlendal lbfonnatio11, wm ~aw; ir.rcpa.rab•e injury to Purchasing 
Entity that is inad,::qmttely compatSable in damages. Accordingly. Purcl\i ing Entit:>
m~y seek and ohtain injunctive relief ag11--fr!s! the b!"l!r!ch or threa!e.l'!ed hr!!Bch of the 
foregoing 1.mdertaldugs, in addition lo any o'lber legal re:medi that may b¢. available. 
Col1tril.!!fUr a1tknowl dgC$ and agree..'i tbat the covenants cmltnined h<rein are nei.:essary 
tor tlw p-rotedkm of the legitimate bu.1.it1es..~ intetests of Purcb~ing Entity and at~ 

rcasonabh: i.n scope and content. 

Purchasing Eritity f.a:w. These provisions shall be ar,plkablc only to extent they arc not 
in conflict with the applh:ah{e public disclosure l ws of any Purduising Enrity. 

9, Right tu Publish 

'{broughout the duration of this Master Agreement, Contractor must secure fron1 the L~ad State 
prior approval for tl1e release of any informalio thal pertains to th(' potential work or activities 
c1m:red by the MosteJ· Agret.-ment. Th.:: Corttrsctor stii11l Mt make My n:presehrnti ns of WSCA
NASPO's opinion· or position a~ lo cm: quality ol" ~ffecti'ven of tlle ·l!l'Vi es that are the ubject of 
this Master A~ent without pri r written consent. Failure to adhere to this requiremettt may 
result in termination ofth1: Master Agrcemen1 k.r-cause. 

I 0. Defaults and Remedies 

a. The occ1.1-rr~cc of any of the foUo, ·ng events shall be an event of default \.U;luer th1s 
1 ter Agreement: 

( t J Nonperfom1ar.cc of !.'.onttaciual h."'Qui ::mcrl'ts; ,)r 

{21 A material breach of any tcrm or condition of this Master Agreement; or 

(3) Any Ct:.'ftifkation., reptcsentation or warranty by Comrattor in response tQ th~ 
soficit tkm or in this M ~tcr Agreemeot that proves to be ootrue or mat1:tially 
misleading; or 

(4) lnstirutiim of proceedings under aoy ba.nkruptcy, insolven y, r~organi:t.::nion o,r 
similar law, by or against Contrac1or, or the ~ppotntmertl of a receiver or similar 

WSCA-N;,.5PO MMter Agreement Ts and Cs 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 186 of 487



) 

officer for Conmi:ctor Qr any of its pr perty, which is fit.it va ar,ed or fully stayed 
within thirty (3U) calendar days aftt.-r the institmion or occurrence theret;f; ot 

(5) Any default specified in another ectioo of this Master Agreement. 

b_ Upon the occurrence of an event of dethuitj l~ead State shall issue a \vritten notice of 
default, idei1tify1ng the nature of the defauit, and providing a period of t 5 calendar days 
in which ContrJctor shall have an o portuitity t◊ cure the default. 'TI1e Le-ad State shall 
not be required to provide ndvanc-e wdtlcn notice or a cu.re period and nmy i:mmcdiatrdy 
remwtate this Master Agreem61lt i11 whoie or in part if the Lead S4Jtc, in its sole 
diS<:retion, tletem1ines that it is n.'a:SOnably necessary to preserve public safety or prevent 
inut1edi.ate public J.-risis, Time altow¢d for cure shall not diminish (H' eliminatl! 
Contritctor's liability for damages, including liquidated damages tu the e1'let1t provided 
for under thl5 Master Agreement 

c. ff Contractor is afforded an opportunity to cute anti fails to cure the default within the 
peri d specified in the written not.ice of default, Contractor shall be in breach of its 
obligations under this Maslt<r Agreemem and Lend State shall have the right to exercise 
a.11y or al1 of rhe fotlowi~g remedies: 

(I) Exercise any remedy p.rovid<.-d by taw~ a~ 

(2) · em ina1 , this Ma:.ter Agreem nt and any related Contracts or portions thereof; and 

(3} fmpose liquidated damages as pro 'ded in this Master Agreement; and 

(4) Su~nd Coniractor from being able to respond to fmur bid solicitation.1; !ttid 

(5) Suspend Contra i!Jr·s p o.nnance; and 

(6) Withhold payment until the def.aul1 is rem.td1ed ... 

d. Unless Qlher specified in the Particip Mg <41.cadutn. in the event of a defuuh under a 
hrticipntirtg ddendum, a Participating Entity shall pttwide a written noti e of default Ii$ 
described in tflis sectim1 and have all of the rights and remedies und"-r this paragraph 
rt.'gllrdi.ng its participation in the Ma1trcr A~cri1e11t, m arldititm (Q th~e set forth in its 
Participating Addendum. Un.less other. i.se pedfi~d in a Purchase Order a Purchasing 
Entity t:haH provide writte,:i notice of default as d ibcd in !hls section and bav al1 of 
the rights and remedie.'\; under this pa1-agraph and any appHcabl~ Participating AddencJum 
with respect to an Order placed by the Purchasi.og Entity. , othfog in th,t)Se Master 
Agreem llt 'terms and Ctmditions shalt be ron.')trued lo limit the rights and remedies 
availahl~ to a Pure.ha.sing E:ntiry under the applicabic comme-rch1i code. 

11, Shipping t1nd Deli ery 

t. The prices are the delivered price to any Plltchasing: EHtiiy. All ddivcrit.>s sbalt be f,()_B. 
destination, freigh1 pre-paid, with all transport.ilion a11d handling dJ.arge paid by the 
Contractor. Responsibility and liabiHty fot lms or dum.age shall remain the {'lmtract 's 
until final inspection and accep!nm::e when responsibility shall pass to the Buyer except as 
to latent ddects, fmud and Cont:-actc;ir's warranty obligations. The minimum shipment 
amount, if any, wilt-~ found in the sptclal I m1!!. and conditions. Arry or~er fot less that1 
the specified amount is to ~ sbippe<I with the fi . ight prepaid and .added as a separate 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 187 of 487



) 

item oo 1he invoice Any portion of an order ro be :shipped without trnnspt'.trtution charges 
that is back ordered shaU be shipped without cbarge. 

b. All deliveries will b<! "Inside Dcli<.-'e-ries'' as designated by a representative of the 
Purchasing E.1tity placing the Omer. Inside Deli very refers to a delivery to other than a 
k1nding dock, front lobby, ar reception area. Specific delivery instructions will be noted 
ort the rder form or Purclmse Order. Any damage to the buHdin.g. interior, cratched 

, a!k damage to the freight elevator, er.; ., will be the responsibility of the Offeror. ff 

dam ge does. occur, it is the responsibility of the fferor to immediately notify the 
Purchasrng Entity placing the Ordi!r. 

c. All products must he delivered in the manufacturer' i> s1aodard package. o ts shall 
iuclud~ all packing andior cruting charge ·, Cases shall be of durable construcii<m, good 
condrtion, p pcrly labeled and suitable in every re ped for stort1ge and hillldling or 
contents-. l1ach shipping carton shall be marked wiUi the comroodi!)•, b nd, quantity. i!errt 
code number nnd the Orderi~g Entity's Purcliase Order number; 

12. Changes in Contrudor .Representation 

13. 

The Contractor must notify the Lead Sl.ate of changes in the Conrracwr'.ii kc administrative 
personnel, in writing within 10 calendar da)·s of the crumge. The Lead State reserves the right to 
approve ch:inges in kt!y personnel, as itfonti 1ed in t~ Contrnclar 's pmposaL The Contractor agrees 
to propose rnplacertumt key personnel having subst.mtially equni or bct1er education, trallti.ng, n.n<l 
experience as was po es_qed O)' the key pt.'Tson proposed and evalu tecl in the Con tor's proposal. 

F otc.e M~Jettn 

Neir.h.."t' party to this 1ast~>t Agr, menf shall be held tesponsible for defay or default caused by 
fitc, not; acts 6f God andl-Or war whi~h is beyond tllat pm1y's reason b!e conlrol. The Lead State 
rt1,1y tenttir..itc: this Masier AgreemL-UI afier dctarmh1ing such <lehty or default will rcas nably 
prevent successful pc:rfi nnance of !Tlt- 'fas r Agreement 

14. 'I ndenudflcatlon 

a. Thr: Contractor shall deiend. indemnify and hold ban:ulcss WSCA-NASPO, the Lead 
State, l?nrticipaling Enliti-e , and P\ll'chasini Entitit."3, along with their officers, ag_ents. and 
employees as well as aoy p;,-rsoo or entity for which they may be ltilble, from and against 
dairr1s, damage or causes of action induding re • na:ble attOfllcys· fet!S and related costs 
for any d tl1, injury, (lf damage to prop~y arising from act( ), mo s), or omissiou(s) of 
the Contractor, its employees or subconira,.rtors or "lfoluntcers, at any tiet relating, tu the 
pcrformance under the Master Agrcem nt 

b, lndcmnifieation - lntellectual Property, The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold 
hMnnle::is WSCA-N PO, the LCl)d State. Panicipating Entitits, Purchasi11g Entities, 
a{ong with their offici:fS, ageot:s, and c-inployccs as well as any p. on or entity for which 
they may be liable- ("ludemuifietl Party"), from anrl against claims, daru, ges trr causes of 
action induding reasonable attorneys' fees and related costs arising out of the daitn that 
the Product or its use. infring-es Intellectual Property rights (''Intellectual Properiy 
Cfai..-n''). 

W5tA•NASPO Master Agreem~nt rs and Cs 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 188 of 487



) 

( l) The Contractor·s obligations under this section shall not extend to any combination 
of the Product wirh any oihcr product, systero or method, unless the Product, system 
or m.ethod is: 

(a) Provided by fbc (:ontrat.1or or the Contructor·s ~ubsidia:nes or affil.ia1c-s; 

(b) SpecUi~-<l by 1he Contractor to work witli the Product; or 

{c} Reasonably required. il'l order io use t~ Pn>du.ct in its inkmde.d manner, and the 
infringement could not ha: e been avoided hy sub:-.1itutfog .mothet reasonably 
available product, ~~-stem or med10d capable Qf !}erfonning the sru:ne function: or 

fd) ft Would be rel!, nabty expected to use the Produ : in combination wirh such 
product, system or metbnd. 

(2) l'he Indemnified Party shall notify the Conrta.;16r within a reasonable time aft r 
receiving notice Qf an l.ntetlectual Property Claim. Even if the fndemntfied ?atty 
!aifa to provide ce:nsonable notice, the Conrr.ic1 r 3hall not be reli ved m its 
1Jhfi.1?alfons unless the Contractor can dtmoniltrntc tblll it was pc ·udieed in defending 

fhe tntelleccua! Property Claim r~ulting it't i.ncrea<¢d expenses nr loss to the 
Co:ntrador. lf tbe C◊nirnctor promptly and rcas nabJy iuv:es~ig;;l~s and defends aoy 
lntell~tunt Property Claim, it shall have control over tire def cnse and settlement of it. 
Howe r the: lhd mni fied Party must cotisent in writing for any money damages or 
obligati01lll for wltich it may be re.qponsible. The [ndemnifietl Parly shall furnish. al 
the Contrne1or's reasonable request and expen~.e, inform tion and assisranc.e 
necessary for such defense. ff I.he Contractor fails to vigorously pursue the d~fCtlse or 
settlement of the intellc<rtual Prop,..1rty Claim, Uu: l:ad~-imtHied Party may ll.$SUme (he 
defense or settlement of il and the Contractor shaU be liable for all costs aou 
expenses, i,1cluding reasonable attottu.~y~' fl uud related • ·ts, i.ncurre-d by the 
Indemnified Party in the pursuit of the wteUectual Property Claim. U.nle i; otherwise 
agreed in writing, this section is not subJcct to any limiiatioris of lfabilicy in this 

IV.laster Agrecmenl or in ttny oth~"t' doct11ncrtt executed 01 conjunctiot1 with this Master 
AgreemeoL 

15. Independent Contractor 

The Comractor :.hall be ,in imlependern contractor. Contract()r stuill have no authori:,,autm, 
~pr $ or implied, tt'l bind the L(:ad State; Participating Stntes, otl1er Participating Entilies, or 

Putcbasing Enliiies to any agreements. settlements, liability or uuderslal)diog whauoever, tutd 
ngre • not to hold itself out a:: agent except as expressly set forth herein or as expressly l\greed in 
any Participating Addendum. 

16. Individual Customers 

Except to the extent modified by ~ l1artlcipattng Addendum. each P'urchasing Entity shall folio\ 
the tom-is and condiffous of the Maiiter Agreement and applicable Participa1fog Ad<lendmn and 
wW have lhe same rights and respon$.ihilities for their purchases as the tend Stnte ha~ in the 
M ter Agreement, including b~t not limited to, any indcmtiily or righl to recover any costs as 
such right is defined 1n tfae Master Agreement and 4t)plicable Participating Addendum for their 

WSCA-1':4.il.SPO MasJer Agreement Ts and Cs Page 8 of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 189 of 487



purcha~. Each Purcha.'iing Entity will be responsible for irs own charges, fees, and liabilities. 
The Contracior wirl apply the charges and invoice each Purchasing Entity individually. 

17. (nsurance 

a. Unless otherwfae agreed in a Participating Addendum, Contractor shall, during the te.nn 
of this Master Agreen1t'Ut. maintain in fun force and effect, cbe insurance described in 
ihis seeticm. C01itra.::tor slut!! acquire such insurance from an itisu1~nce carrier or carriers 
licensed to conduct business in each Participating Entity's state and having a rating of A-, 
Class Vll or better, in tht: mos{ recently published edition of Oes,'s Reports. Failure to 
buy and maintain the required immrattee may r- i:iH in this l\tiaswr Agreem Cs 
termination or, at a Participating Entity's option: result in termioatioo of its Participatini 

ddendum. 

b. Coverages.hall be ~ritti:n on an occurrence basis.. 'the minimum accepiabk limits 5ha!l 
be as indicated below, wi(h nn deductible for em::h of the following categ ries: 

c. 

fl) O:,nunercial General Liability covering premise$ operations, ind pendent contrar..'tOrs, 
produe!s u.nrl i;-0n1p!eted opertUions, bhln..l-.et c fl.trt1i:me] !!ability, per..~na! iJ>Jury 
( includiqg death), adverci ~tng liability, Md property damage, with a limit of not I . 
tbau i l miUfon per occ11rrenc S2 miH ion general aggregn1c~ 

(2J Contn;1ctor must comply with any applu;a~le State Workers Compensution or 

Employ r::s Liability lnsuruuce requirements. 

C n1ractor shaH pay premiums on af! iusuram:e policfos. Such polides ~hall also 
reference this Master Agreement and shaH h ve a condition that lbey noi be revoked by 
the inst1r-cr until thirty 00) calendar ys after riotice of intended revocati110 thetenf shalt 
nave been given to Purchmring Entity and Participating F.ntity by the Contr&ctor. 

d. Prior to commencement of performance. Contractor shall pro itl to the l..ead State a 
written endorsement lo the Contractor's general liability insurance policy or other 
documentary eYid nc-e !k:cei;tabk Lo the Lead State that (I) names the r>articiparing States 
identified in lht:. quest for Propos.'11 as additit1nt1l in,'lm-e.d's, {2) p.tovideS that no 
material alteration. can Uatio~ 0011-l'.enewal, or e.xpinttion of dw cover;ige contu•ined in 
sudt policy shall h ve effect unles the Mroed Participating Stat~ h~s bc .. a given at least 
thirty (30) days prior writt n notice, and (3) pwvides that the Contractor's liability 
in ·umnce policy shall ~ primary, with any liability insurance of any Participating State 
as s«ondaty and nonconttibutory. l1nless othenvise agreed in any P idpaiing 
Addendum, the Parti ip,iting Entity':; right$ imd Conn-actor's obligatinus ate lhe srunc as 
tru?se specified in the first senten~e of th!;; ~ubscction. Before pcrfonnance uf any 
Purth<1se Order issued nfter execution of a t>articipating Addendum authmizing it, the 
Contmctor shall provide to a Purd1~sing Enti1y or Participating E.mity who reque~ts it the 
same infi multion described in lhis sub tion. 

e. Contmct(,t shaH fum1sh to the Lead SmLc, Participating fa1tity. and, on request, the 
Purcb.asi.ng Entity copies of certificates of ali required insurnnce within thfrty (30) 
calendar days of the excwticm of thfa taster Agrcemem. the execution of a r•arti1:.,-ipatiilg 

WSCA-NASPO Master Agreert1ent Ts and c.~ P ge9of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 190 of 487



Addendum, or the- Purchase Order·s effoc6ve date and prior Ill pertotming any work. 
The insurance cerritkatc shall provide the following infonnation: the name and address 
of the insl.l:rc:d: name, address. telephone numbt.>r and sigrmturc of rhe authorized agei\l; 
name of the insuran<.:t:, compaay {authoriz.ed to operate in all stares)~ a d~ criptioo of 
coverage in detailed suitldartl t<.>ttninol gy { including policy period, policy nutober. hn1iiS 
of tiabiHty, exclusions and endorsements): and an nt:k:nowledgmem of lhc rtquircment fot 
tmdce of canedlaHon. opies of renewal certitkates of nli n..--quircd insurance :.hall be 
futnislied within thirty (30! rut)'S after any reni:wal date. These certfficatc.1 of insurnnce 
must e.>:-pressly irulicate compliance with each and every insurance requirement _.pecified 
in Lhhi $OCtfoo. Failnr to provide evidt.'tlce of coverage inay, at ~le option t)f the Lead 
State, or any Parttdpatiug Entity, result in this Master Agreement's termination or the 
terminati n of any Participating AddL>ndutn-

t: Coverage and limit& shall not. limit Contrac,11:if'j liability aud obligations under- this 
Master Agreement, any Ptirti<:i-poting Addendum, or an;' fiW'chacSe Order, 

18. Law1. and ltegutations 

Ally and all Products offered and furnished shall CQWply fully with aU apµ1ieul:tle Federal and 
Stare laws artd regulill'ions. 

l 9. License of Pre-Existing Intellectual Property 

Coo1r4etor granrs to• the Purchasing Entity a nooe"'<clusive, perperoo.l, royahy-frec, irrevot:abtc, 
unlimited l~cense to pubHsh, tmnslate, reprodu,-e, p,odify, deliver, perform., display, find disp s~ 
of lhe fut~Uectual Property. and its derivatives, used or delivered under thl3 Master Agreement, 
but nor created under it (·•rre-ex..isting lntcUectuaI Property") .. The license shalJ be subject to any 
third party rights m the Pre-existing intellectual Property. Cuntructor shall obtain, at its own 
expense. on behalf of the Pur hasing Entity, written consent of the woer for th~ licensed Pre-
existing meeUectual Property. 

20. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity 

In no event shall thi~ Master Agreement, any Participating Addendum or any contract or uny 
Purchase Order i..1sue<l theteundet, or any o:a of a Lead State, a Participating Enlity, or a 
Purcha<Jir11 Entity be a waiver of any fonn of defense or immunity, whether sover~ign immunjty. 
~ovcmm ntal immunity, immunity based on tlte Eleventh Amendment to the Constiunkm of tbe 
United States or otherwise. from any claim or lrom the jurisdiction of any c urt. 

Thiti section applies to a daim brought again$t the Participating State only tc1 the extent ongress 
has approi,riatc!y abrogated the Participating State"s sovereign inunuoity and is not consent by 

the Participating State to be uerl in fodcrnI court. This set-tion is idso not a w · ver by the 
Parti<;ipatirtg State of any fonn of irnm nity, including but J'\Ot limited to sovereign immunity and 
immunity based on the Eleven1h Amendment to the Constitution of the United States. 

2t Ordering 

a. Master Agr :ement number and purchase ord~ numbers shaH be clearly shQwn on all 
acknowli::dgrnents, .shipping labels, packing slips, itwokes. !ind on all correspondence. 

Page' 10 of ,!t'i 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 191 of 487



) 

b. Tht: re,u!ting Master Agreements permit l'urch$ing Entities to detlne project-spccit)c 
reqµin.ments and informally compet¢ the requirement among companie<i having a MaSter 
Agreem.<..-nt on an '"as needed"' basis. This proccdur- may also be ~ed when requirements 
are ngtrregt1ted or r;ther firm cmnmi(men~ may be made to achieve reductions i11 prictng. 
This proeedw-e may he modified in Participating Addenda and adapted to Purchasing 
Entity rules and poli1.'-iei1c The Purchasing Entity may fo its sole discretkm detennine 
whkh Master Agn.·cmcnt Contractors ii,houtd be solicited for a qu te. The Purchasing 
A ency rnay select the quote that it considers most advan ag us, cost and other factors 
considered. 

c. Each Ptrrchasfrtg £niity will identify and utilize its own appropriate purchasing procedure 
and documentation. C:ontrnctor is e:,"(peered to become familiar wirh the Purchas1ot 
Entities' ruf~. policies, and procedures regarding th(': onk.-ring of supplies and/or $t:rvices 
contemplated by this Master Agrecm~t. 

d. ontrac1or shal! not lx.."'gin work without a valid Purchuse Order or ot.het appropriate 
conunitm~t dQcttruet1t compliance with the law of the Purchasing Entiry. 

e. Orders may be placed coruistent with the terrn.-. of !hi.$ .\11.:iste:r A~nerit tfuriog the tenn 
0. f the Master Agreement. 

f. All Orders pursuant ro this Master Agreement. at a m1ni1t1urn, shali include: 

( t} Tbe !!er-vices or u_ppHes ~'it\g delivered; 

(.2) The place and requested time of delivery; 

(J) A biI1ing adqr ·; 

(4) The name, phone numbi.;r ttnd ad<lr s of the Purt":hasit1g Er\li1J're{l csentative; 

(.5) The price per hour or othc::r pricing elements consistent with this Master Agrern1ent 
and the contractor's prop sal: 

(6) A ceiling amounr <->f the ord for services being ordered; and 

(7) The laster J\greemeot 1dt.:ntifier. 

g. AH communicatiuns concerning admir1istr.1tion of rd~s placed sbaJl be furnished solely 
to the authori.lcd purcb ing agc11t within the Purchasing Entity's J?urc.has.ing otlkc, or to 
such other individual klcnti fied in w'riling in the Order. 

h: Orders mtJst be placed pursuant to this Master Agreement prior to the tcnnination date 
lhcreot. tmi rnay have a delivery date ot perli 1marn:e plrriod up tP l 20 d~}'S p~st the then-· 
curreoi tetmtumion date of thll> Master gr ement. ContrattQr is reminded tliat arumdal 
(Jbli~tions of Purchasing Ent-ities payable aft« the current ap:pHcabie fiscal year uc 
conlingcnr upon agency fund~ for that purpose being appropriated, budg~led, .and 
etherwisc made a:vailahk. 

WSCA-NASPO Master Agreem!!nt 1 s al'\d Cs 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 192 of 487



) 

Notwit~.tanding the expiration or termination of tius Master Agrt:eml!nt, Contrnctor 

agrees to p\!ffonn in accordance with the terms of any Orders then ,,urstamiing at the tune 
of such expiration or termination_ Contractor shaH not h~1n◊r rmy Orders pla~'d alter the 
expir&tion or termination of this Master Agreement, or otherwise inconsistent with it>:: 

terms. Qrdcrs from any separate imkfinite quantity. task orders, or other form of 
increfirute delivery order arrangement priced ngnin.1t this tvlaster Agreement may no! be: 
placed aft-er the expiration or tennin:ation of this l\ita.sh .• -r Agrem.J1e.1t. notwidi.<;1and.ing !he 
term of Rny such indefinite delivery order agreement Pia.cements made using the 
autl1ority provided by tlds Conlra<.1 win survive the Ccmtnlcl itself, per terms slated in 
S ri® J.3. IO Survivability of the Rft:t #3091 _ 

11.... Participants 

C.ontractor may not deliver Prt>ducts under this ~laster Agreement u.ma a Part i,;-:ipating 
Addendum accttprnbie to the Participating Entity and Contractor is executed. The 

W CA•NASPO Master Agr(,-ement T cn:o,s and CooditioPS are appHcable to any Onkr by 
a Participating Entity (and olher Purchasing Entities covered by their Pnrtic.ipltling 
Addt.-ndum), ex:c pt l-0 tJ1e extent ahert.'li, modified, suppl ente,-J or amt111ded by a 
Participating Ad<le1Jt[um. By w.1y (if ltlustratioo arni not limitation, this authority may 
apply to unique ddivery artd invoicing requirementS, confidentiality requirenu:nts, 
defaults on Order , gov~ming law and venue relating lo Orders by a Participating Eniity, 
indemnification, and i!1$ut1uice reqmrements. Stamlory or constttutionaJ n.--quircmems 
relating lo availability of fu.t1d~ ma. require specific lan!,'Wl&;e in 1mmc Participating 
Addenda ih order to comply with a-ppl.k:tble law. The e peclatkm is that the!$e 

a.!roratfons. modifications, supplements, or amendments wilt be addressc.--d in tbe 
Participating: Adde.ndum or, with the L.:)nscnt of the Purchasing iintity and Conrra.etor. 
may be included in 1he ordering document (e.g. purchase ordt..-r <.v co111ract) used by ihe 
T!u:rcbasj.11g t-:ntity U.1 place the Order. 

b. Use of sp cific WSCA-NASPO c p~radve Mast~ Agrei ment$ by siate ag nci -, 

political su.bdivii,ions and other Participating Entiti s ("including cooperatives) iu1thod~d 
by individual sta1ets statut ru use state (,'Otttrll ts are subject to ~e uppto l of the 

respeetive Stine Chief Proctrrcrne.nt Offida.1, Jssu of lnt~rctnti n and eUgi..oilJty for 
pan.icip 1frm ar s-olcly within the authority of the respective State Chief Pro rcment 
OffidaL 

<:, Obligations under this Master Agrcemt!m are limited to 1hos l.>artioiparing EI1tWes who 
have signed a Participating Addendum and Purchasing E:.ntrtfos within the scop of tl1ose 
Participating Adde1ida.. Fimmcia1 obligntions of Participating $1$WS t~ limited to the 
orders placed by th~ depnrttnents or other ~tatc ag41:rtcies and institutfons having a:va.itahie 
funds. Participating State.s incur n· firuuidaJ obllg,tions on behaif tlf political 
subdivision:.:;. 

tl. W iCA- :ASPO Cooperalivo Purchasing rg nizatfon LLC i:.. not a pa.rt to the Master 
Agreement. It is a m:mprofi. cnopttar,ve purchasing organization assisting states in 
administering the: W CA!NASPO coop tive 1mrd1asing program for lit ~ g vemmcm 
deportments, it'.i;Hituhons, ag,-encies and ix11itk~l subdivismns (e.g., coUeges, school 

Page 12 of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 193 of 487



( ) 

districts, counties,, cities, etc.j for all 50 states, the District of CQlumbia and the tenitoties 

or the Vnite-d States. 

e. State Participming Addenda or other Participatiug Addenda shall not be construed to 

amend the terms of this Master Agreement between the Lead State and Contractor. 

f. Participating Entities wtw are no1 stat.es may under some cin:umstatK-CS sigJt their ()Wtl 
Participating Addendum, subject to Ure approval of panicip Hon by tire Chid 
Procurerrrent Official of the .i;tatc wh !he: Punicipating Entity is 1<x:ated 

23, Payment 

Payment for cmnpletion of a contract QT'der is normally made within 30 days following the date 
the entire order is delivered or the date a i:ortect invoice is cei ed. whichever is later. After 45 
Wlys the Contractor tr111y as~ overdue a(!cOlltlt chat up to !l maximum ro e of one p rccnt per 
month 011 the outstanxfing balance. Payments will be remitted by m,aiL Pa:itments may be made 
via a Stare or political subdivision "'Purchasing Card'' with no addi;ional charge, 

24, Public Information 

This Master greemeot and all related documents are subjc · t to disclosure pun.u.ant to the 
Pur hn ·i1g Entity's public information taws-

25. Records Administration 1nid Audit 

The CQntractor shall tn.tiniain ho ks, records, documents. and othc-r evidence pertaining 
to this Muster Agreem mt and orders placed by Purchasing Entities under it to the e.-\tent 
and in !iU.Ch dct 11 as shaU adequately rufk-ct perfor.uance and administrarion of paymerus 
and fees . Contr.ictor shall permit the lead Slate, a Participating Entity, a Pureh htg 
[ntify, the federal government (im:fading its granr awarding entities and the U.S. 
Comptroller Ger1.eral), and any nth duty iWthorized agent of a govemm mal agency, ro 
audit, irtspcct, ex.amine, copy and/or transcribe tooLroctor's books, documents, papers 
and records din.--.:tly pectint:nt lo !his Master Agree1nc11J or orders placed by a Purcha mg 
Entity under it for the purp-ose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and 
1TUnsi'Tlpl1'1l'.S0 This right shall survive for a period of five (5) years following 
tennlnation of lhi5 Agreemtnt or final paymeni for any order placed by a Purchnsing 
Entity again.•,t this Agreement, whichever is later, to assurt! compHartcct with the tenns 
hereof or to evaluate petfonnance hereuclder. 

b. Without limiting any other remedy available lo any goverru:nental en:tiry, the Con_tractot 
shaU reimburse the apphi:able Lead State, Participututg Entity; (rr Purchasing Entity fer 
any overpayments inconsistent wi'th the terms of the Mast~r Agrecmeni or orders or 
undi!tp y.mcnt of fi found as a resuh offhe ttlaminnHm:i of the Contractor's record.,;. 

c. lhe rights aurl obligations het~in tight exi~i in 1.1d.ditfot1 to any quality lSSuronce 

obligation in the Ma ter Agreement requiring the tontr1tetor to self-audit cotitract 
obfigiuions attd that permits the Le,td State to review c01np!iu11ce \\-ith those obli~tions. 

WSCA·NASPO Master Agreement Ts and Cs Page Bof JO 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 194 of 487



) 

26. Administrative Fees 

a. The: Contractor shall pay in the WSCA-NASPO Cooperative Purchasing Organization, or 
its assignee, n WSCA-NASPO Administrative Fee of omNjuarltt of one percent (0.25% 
or 0.0025) no tater than 60 days following the end of each caicndar quarter. The WSCA~ 
NASPO Administrative Fee shaH be subt:nitted quararty and is h11S1Td on alt sales of 
products and servkes und;;-r rhe Master Agttement {kss any chnrges. for taxi:s or 
ship-ping}. The WSCA-NASPO Admiuis!nltfve Fee is not negotiable. Ttiis tee is to be 

included as pan of the prl i11g ubmiu d with pruposaL 

b. Ad~itiollalty, sorne states may require an additional fee be paid directly to the stat~ tmly 
on purchases made by Purcha.1ing Entities w'ifmn that state. For an iruch re,qucsl:s, the foe 
level, payment method and schedule for su h reports rutd payments wilt be incorporated 
into ilic Participating Addendum that is made a part of the fvfuster Agrc:einent The 
Co:ntraclOr may adjust the Master Agr e:me:nt pricing accordingly for purdiases made by 
Purchm;ing Entities within the Jurisdiction of the rote. All sueh agi'eeffiQlts shall not 
afteet the \VSC.A.-NASPO Administrative- Fee or the price.'! paid by the i>urchasing 
Entities outside the Jurisdiction of the state requesting the additional fee, 

17. \VSCA~NASPO Summary and Detailed Usage Reports 

In addition to other reports that may be required by this soHcitation, the Contractor 3hall provide 
the follcwing WSC A•N.ASPO rep rts. 

a. ummary Saks Dau. 'fbe Contmctor shall submit quarterly safos reports directly to 
WSCA~NASPO using tlie WSCA-NASPO Quart-rrly Sales/Administrative Fee Reporting 
Tool found at htttl:l/www .. naspo.or \\ CPOiCakufator.aspx. Any1al1 sales made LUldcr 
the contract shall he -reported as cumulative totals by ~'talc. Ewa if Ctmtractor 
experiences ;rero sales during a calendar quarter, a report is stiU requin:d. Reports shall be 
due no later than 30 day fol!owjng the end of the calendar quarter (as specified in the 
reporting cool), 

Detailed Safos Dnta. Contractor shall also r.:port de.taHed sale.; <lata by: ( 1 ) tate; (2} 
entity/custcrtner type, e.g, locnl gover,cmtcrlf, hither edu ation, Kl 2, non-profit; (3} 
Putd1asing Emity n~e~ {4) Purchasing £::ntity bin-to and ship,-m locations; (4) 
flurcha11ing Entity and Contractor Purchase Order identifter!uurubet(s}; (5) Purchase 
Order Type {e,g. sales otder. credit. rerunt, upgrade, d.eiermined by indu~try practices); 
(6) Purchase Order duk; (1) Ship Dare~ (8) and line :item dc..'ttripti,on, including producl 
mn:ttbcr ii -usetL The report shall be submitted in any form required by the solicitation. 
Reports arc due on a quartcriy i)4si~ and must be received by the L~ad State nnd WSCA
NASPO Coopermivc fJcvelopnient Tcarn no laltr th.art thirty (30) days aft~ lhe end of 
the reporting p riod. Rettciiiii shall be delivered to die Let1d State nd lo the WSCA
NASPO ooperative Dcvelop1'11Cnt Team electronically through a de!lignated portal. 
email, CD~ Rom, tlash drive or other method as rleteqrtined oy the Lead State. fJctailcd 
sales data reports shall include sale";{ ioformetion for u!l ~es under Parti~"lpatfrtg Add ~ a 
c1'tcu1e-0 under tbfo Mast r Agree01c!'lt. The format for the detailed sales datn report i:i in 
shown 111 Attachme,u P. 

?age 14oLiO 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 195 of 487



) 

) 

28. 

29. 

c. Reportable. saies for the summar; sales data report and dt.-tailed sales data report includes 
sale,,i to miptoyces for personal use where authorized by the soliciratiOfl and the 
Purtidpating Addendum. Repon dam for employees should be lim:fted to ONLY the state 
and emit)' th y are panicipaling under the authoi;ity of {state nd agency, city, counry, 
i;chool district, ctt:.J and the amount of saJes, No pmonal identification numbers, e .g. 
names, addrcss1:s, sociali security numbers or any other uumeric~ idenril'itt, may be 
submitted with :inyrep()rt. · 

d. Timely submis!'lion of these rcp~ms is a material requir ment of the Ma IL>r Agreement. 
The recipient of the reports shalt have exclusive O\ ,netship of th media containing the 
reports. The Lejj{j State and WSCA-NASPO shall have a perpetual, irre ocable, 11on
exch.1-:;;ive, royalty fre-, rrartsforabte righ! to cfo;play. modify. ceyy, nnd mhen,ise use 
reports, data nd informnrion provided under th.is section. 

Standard o( Performance and Acceptance. 

t\.'!y stan.dnrd o.f perfonnance unck"r tbis Master Ag:reemenr appli to a11 Produ ~ purchased 
under. th.is Master gtt\.-m..mt, iftcluding any additional, replacemt."tlt, or sub tirutc Prod.'u.cl(s) :md 
an Product(!!) which are modified by or with the written approval of ContmcU>r aft.er' Acceptance 
by tlk Purchasin~ Entity. TI1e- Ac15eptlince T •ting period l'laH be lf1irty (30) calendar days or 
other lime period identified in tbc solicitation or the Participating Addendum. starting from the 
<4iy itfkr !he Prodw;f is delivered or, if inslalh::d, the day af\t."r the Pr du\:t ~ in:;talled and 
Contractor certifies that U1e Product is ready for Acc~ptance Testing. ff the llro.duct dots not 
meet ~ standard of perfonnance during the initial period of A!.,-ceptance T ~g, Pw,;basing 
Entity ,nay, at its discretion, Conlin~ Acceptance testing on 11 day-10-day basis until the standatd 
of performance ~ wet tJgon rejection. the Contractor will have ti ft. en ( 15) calendar days to cure 

the standard of ~"'tfo,:mnm::e issue(s). lf after the cure period, the Product srill bas TJQt m,et the 
standard of performart..::e.. the eun:h;ising Entity may., at it.'- option; (a) declilte Ccmrrttctm- to be in 
breach and ternuaalc the Order, (b} demand replacement Pr duct from Contractor at no additional 

to Pucch ing f~ntity; or, (c} continue 1h1;: cure period for an iidditfonal time period agreed 

upon by the :Purcha:1irig Entity and the Contr.tctor. Coiltrattor sh;dJ pay all costs related to the 
prepararion and .shipping of l>r du.cl returned pursu nl to th section. No Product shall be 
atcepred and llt) ch gcs shall be paid until tbe standard of perfom1ance is met. The warra,nty 
period will begin Upon Acceptance. 

Warranty 

'Thi: CorttractQt warrant11 tor a period of a tnrni.mu:m of 90 days from the dat(! of A"-ceptance ihat: 
(a) the PrptJuct performs according to aH specific claims that tbe Contractor made in its rcsp◊n$e 
to the soli;.::imtfon, (b} the Product is suitable for the ¢tdinary purposes for wl1ich suclt Product i$ 

used, (c) the Product i$ $uitable for any special purposes identified in the soliciuition or for which 
1h .Purchasing Entity has retied on the Contract r•s skill or judgment, (d) 1he Product hi designed 
and m.anuf'acrure<l fo a commercially reasonable manner, and {e) th~ l"rodui::t is free of defects.. 
Upo11 breach oi d1e wnl'Tilllty, the Contractor wm repair or repla:cc (at no charge to the PIJfcba.sing 
6ntity) the Product whose non~onfonrutnce is discovered and m de kriown to th(: Contr ctor. [f 

the repaired a~ or replaced Prodl\ct proves to be ina.ie,1uaLc, or fails of 'i~ essertlfal purpqse, the 

Contractor wiU refund the fuU amount of nny payments that have been made. Th ri&llt and 

WSCA;./llASPO Master Agreement Ts and Cs Pagl! lSof 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 196 of 487



remedies of the parties under this wmamy are in addition lo any other rights and remedies ofche 
parties provided by tu:w or equity, including, without limitarion. actual damages, ond, as 
applicabte and awarded nnder the law, 10 li prevailing party, rcal;ooabic ottorneys' fcer and cost.s. 

30. System Failure or Damage 

[n the event of system faHure or dama~ caused by the Contractor ur its Pro<lu<.-r, ihe Contractor 
agrees to use iM best efforts to restore or ussb1 in restoring the :tyslcm to Ol)crrrtional capacity. 

31. Titleof:P'rodud 

32. 

33. 

Upon Acceptance by the Pureha.~ing Entity, Contractor shall convey to Purchasing Entity title to 

the Product free and clear uf an hens. ei1cumbranc-es1 or or.her SCCUfity interests. Transfer of tide 
10 the Produci .,hall include an fTTCV()Cllble and perpetual license to u.~ any Embedded Software 
in the Prod\1\!t If Purchasing E.nrity sub cquently transfers title of tl1e l>roduct to another entity, 
Purchasing Entity shall have the right to transfer the license tc use the Embedded Software with 
the transfer of Product title. A suru equeJn transfer of rhis software license shalt be nl n:o 
nddit.ional cost or chargt: to either Purchasing Entity or rurch.1..~ing Entity's transferee. 

\-Vaiver of Breach 

failure of the Ct.-ad State, Part.icip:ufog Entity, or Pun::h.1sing Entity to declare a default or enforce 
any rights and remedies shall not operate as a waiver under this Master Agreement or 
Purtidpa.ting Addendum. Any waiver by the Lead Sr.ate, Participating Entity. or Purchasing 
Entity mmn be in writing. Waiver by the Lead State or Participating Elllit}' of any default, right 
or remedy under this Master Agreement or Participa1ing Addendum, or by Purchasit,tg Emily with 
respe t to any PUJ'Chase Order, or breach of liny terms or requirerru,nt~ of this Master Agreem nt, 
a Participating Addendum, o:r PuFChlll!e Order shiill JtOt be cons.wed or operate a..c; a waiver of any 
subsequent default or breach of such term or require.men or of any other tem1 or requirement 
under tl1is 'Nf-astet Agreemeni, Purticlpatirtg_ Addendum or Purchas Order. 

Assignment of Antitrust Rights 

Conlratlor irre o ably assigns to a Participating Eotity any claim for rdief or cause of acti.10 
which th~ Contractor now has or whkh may accrue to the Contractor in the future by reast:,:n of 
any violation ofsrnt er tede:rol antitnmt lf.lws (15 U.S .C § 1.15 or a Participating Entity's state 
a11titrust {ITT)visions}, as: now in effect and tts may he amcnd~d from time to time, in connection 
with any geods or scrvic provided to the Contractor for ihe purpose of currying out the 
Contractor's obligations under this Master Agreement or Partici_patit1g Addendum, including, at a 
}iarticipating Entity's option, the right to CQntml ~n such litigation on $11th daim i r rel icf or 
cau e of action. 

34. Debarment 

lhe CtmJ.ra tor certifies that neither it nor its principals arc presently debarred, suspended, 
pr p std for debnnneot, declared inehgible, or vohmlurily CJ!.duded from participation in this 
rrnnsaction (contract) by any govemtnental department or agency. 11,lis certification rcpretients a 
recurring certification made at the time any Order is placed under this Master Agreement. lf the 
Co11tr.i.9tor canoot certify this statement, attauh a written expfa.r ::itiou for review by the Lead State. 

WSCA-NASPO Master Agreemeni Ts and C~ Pagt'? 16 of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 197 of 487



35. Governing Law and Venue 

a. The procurernem, evaluation, and award of the Masccr Agret."ment shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the law. of the- Lead State sporumring and 

arlminisu!ring the procurement Tbe construction and effect 9f the Master Agreement 
after award shall be gQvemed by the law of th~ state serving as Lead State {in nlOSt cases 

also the Leud State).. The constructfon and ffe t of any Pnrticiparing A.ddend11nt or 

Order against the Mas er Agreement shall be governed by and i:onsrrucd in &.:t'urdance 
Wlth !he laws t)f the Participating E.ntity·.s or i>tm:haslng Entity's St 

b. Unless oth rwise specified in the RFP, the venue for any protest, claim, dispute or aL'tion 

relating to the procur ment, eva!uaffon, and award is in the Lead State. Venue ror any 

dain, di~puie or ai:Hon concerning the terms of lhe Mast r Agreement shall be in th~ 

,tare $erving as Lead State. Venue for nny claim, dispute, or action conccmiog any Order 
placed against the Master Agreement or the ~ffect of a t>artidpating Addendum shall be 
iu the Purchasing Entity's State. 

c, If a claim i~ brought jn a f~erat forum. thtm it mu:s1 be brought and adjudic,1ted sQtely 
and. exclusively within the Uuik---d States District Court for in decreasing order of 
priority): the Lca.d State for clal.hts relating lu tlle procurea:i at. ev IW:1,ti~n. award, Qr 

comract performance ot administration if the Lead Stat.e is a par1y; the Participating Smte 
if a n hlt:d party; the Partidpatiog E.ritity state if an m party; or tbe Purchasing Entity 

state if a na1r1ed party., 

36. WSCA-NASPO eMarket Center 

it. fo July 201 I, WSCA-NASf>O entered into a multi-year agreement wlth SciQuc t. lnc. 
whereby SdQuest will provide certain electronic catalog hosting and JWiuagement 
services to enable efigible WSCA~NAS(>O entit)•·s cu tom to access n c<.1itral online 

website to vie\ and/or shop the goods tnid crvkes available fturn cxi~ting WSCA
NASPQ Cooperative ContrJ.Cts, Tbc central t)nlfoe wcb·•ite is referred to as the WSCA
NASPO eMarket Center Contractor shall either upload a hosted catalog into the eMatkc! 
Center or it}t grate a punchm.n site \Vith the eMarket Center. 

b. Supplier•~ ltJterface with the eMarket Cente,:. There is 110 cost charged by SdQues~ t() 

the Contractor for loading a hosted catruog or integrating a punchour site. 

c. At a minim\1m, the Cont111ctor agr«s to the following: 

( l } !mpleme~tation Ti:meline; WSC1 ~NASPO eMarktt Ccnl.t.'t Site Admin shall ptovidc 

a written request h:. the Contractdr to b •gin eoablernent proces, . The C ntrnctor shal1 
have fifteen (15) days from receipt of wriuen request to w9rk with WS A-NASPO 
and SdQuest to set up an enaplcinenl $Chedule, at which fime SciQuei!t' s technical 
documct1tation shall be provided to the Contractor. The 11chedule wm include fmutc 
calls and mil~to~c dates related to test and go live. d4ltes. "the cootrnctor shall ha\'e ;1 

total of Ninety (90J dny~ to deliver either a (I.) 11os<ed euta!og or (2) punch'"°ut 
tatai<1g~ from date -0f recd pt of written .request, 

Pag~ 17 of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 198 of 487



) 

) 

d. 

(2) WSC/\-NASPO and SciQtiest will work with the: Ccmltactor, to dedde which of the 
~atalog structur~ (either hosted or punch-cul as further described below) shall be 

provid~d by the Contractor. Whether hotted or punclH)Ut, lb~ catalog must be 
lirictly limited to the Contractor's awarded cuntracr ()(fering (e,g, pto<hacts 
1u1d/or service not autbomed through the resulting cnopuativt eontnct should 
not be viewable by WSCA-NASPO PartitilJating Entity usen), 

(a) Hooted Catalog_ By providing a hosted catalog. the Cortlrnctor is providing a fost 
t:,f its awarded produc1 ·entit:es and pridng iu an electronic data file in a format 
accept.able to SdQuest, sutb as Tab Delimited 1 ext fil~, ln this s-ccnario, the 
Contractor must submit updaLed electronic data within five: da}'ii of approval from 
the Lead State of produ t updates to the eMarktt Center for the Lead State's 
approval w maintain tf1e rmist up-le-date versi<1n of irs product'servke offering 
under the cooperative contr.tct in the eMarket Cente,_ 

(bl Punch-Out Cara!og. By providing a pundi-oul' catalog. the ontra1:tot 1& 
providittg ils own ol'l1 inc catalog,. which must be c11pahfe of being integrated with 
the cM11rke1 Cearer as a, Standard punch-in via Commerce eXfotsibk M::.\rkup 
Language (cXML). bl this s\!enario, the Conrra~tor shall vu!idate that it~ on line 

catalog is up-to-date by providing a written update as needed, lo the Lead State 
staring they have audited the offered prodiu;:t..~servi - and pricing listeli on its 

online catalog. The site mU-sl also return detailed lJNSPSC codes (as outlined in 
line 3) for each. line item. Contractor also agrees to provide e--Qunie functionality 
to fuci!itate volume- disc<.>un!s. 

Revising Pricing: and Product Offerings: Any revisions (whether an increase 1..,'if decrease} 
to priciu or ptt'lduct/se ice offi rings (uew prod\,Jcts, itrered SKtJs, etc.) must be ,Pte
approved by the Lead Staie and shall be subject to ariy other applicable restrictions with 

respect t'> the frequency er amount of s~ch tevisi9ns. lfowever, no cooperative con!:c-Jct 
enablc:d in the Market Center ttlay include price chan~s on a more frequent basis lha:n 

once per morttll. The foll.o\\'ing condi rioos apply wiih respect to hosted catalogs: 

{1) Updated pridng files ;uc required by tbe 1st of the month and shall go into effoct in 
the eMarket C mer on the ls1 day of the folk,wing mofith (Le. file ri:ccivt:4 Q.n 

l!Ol/13 would be effective in the eMarket Center on 2/01113). Files received after 
tb~ 1st of the mooth may be delayed up to a month {i .e:. file received on I l/06i-09 
wou,ld be effect io the eMorkct Cent et on 1,-0 ll t O}. 

(2} Lead State-approved price chrtrtges are' not effi tive until itnpkrnet,(ed witi1it1 the 

eM rket Center_ Errors in the Contractor's suhtrJtted pricing files wilt delay che 
implemi?-nlation of the prii.:..-: chrmge.l in eMar ct Center, 

e_ Supplier Net.work Requirements: Contractor shall join U1e Sci u •sl Supplier ctwork 
(SQSN) and shall use the SciQue.st'i; Supplier Poruil to import the C'..ontructor's catalog 
and pricing, it!to the SciQue!i1 system, and view tt..'J}orts on catalog spend and 

product/pricing fre ·bness. The Contractor can receive ordi:rs through elt!Ctronii.: delivery 
(cXfvfL) or through low-tc h options such as fa..~. More information about che SQ 'N can 

WSCA-NASPO Matter Agreement Ts and Cs Page Utof20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 199 of 487



) 

f. 

g. 

L 

be tound at: www.S(;iqoc:st.com or call the SciQucst Supplier Networ~ Servk<."5 team at 
800-211-1121. 

Minimum Requirements: Whether the Contractor is providing a hosted catalog or a 
punch--out catalog, ihe Comractor agrees m meet the follo"'iflS requirements: 

(l) Co.ta.log must contain the most current pricing, including all applicable administrative 
fees aod/or discounts. as wd l as the most u~to-date prdduct/service offering the 
Contrae1or is authorized to provide in accordance with the cooperative contra.ct; and 

(2) The a ~1cy of the catalog mus! be maintained by Contractor· throughout the 
dutiltion of the cooperative contta t between rhc Contractor and the Contract 

A!irninistratur; and 

(', j The Cara log must include a Lead Srnte contract identification number; and 

( 4) The Catalog miJSt include detailed product line item descriptions; and 

{5) The Carol g must include pictures when possible: and 

{(,) The Catalog mttst include any additional W CA~ ASPO and Particlparing 
Addendum requirements. Althuugb suppliers in the SQSN nom1ally submit one (l) 
catalog, it is possible to have mutHple contracts applicabk to different SCA
NASPO Partkipati11g Entities. for example, a supplier may have different pricing 
for stat goV!!mmen.t agencies and Board of Regenl:i institutions. Suppllers hav the 
ability and responsibility to submit parate contract pridng for the -sam catalog if 
applicable. The syst~m will deliver the appropriate c(lntract p~king to the u.1er 
viewing the catalog. 

Order Aceeptance Requiremcnt'i: Contr~r niust be-able to accept Purcha.~ Orders vfa 
fax or cXML The ontractor shat! provide positive confirmation via phone or email 
within 24 hours of the Con1rnctor's receipt of the Purchase On.for, If the Purchasing 
Order is rec'eh·ed after 3pm EST <m me day befo-re a \,-cekend or holiday, the ContrJclor 
must provide positive confirmation via phone or email on the nex't busin ss day. 

UNSPSC Requirements: Contractor shall suppon use of the United Nations Standard 
P«lduct and Services Code (lJNSPSC). UN PSC versions that rnust be adhered to are 
driven by SdQtiest (or the· suppHcrs and are upgraded every year. WSCA~NASPO 
re.o;crves the tight to migrate to ruturc vetsiMs of the UNSPSC and the Contmctor :'!lian 
be requited tn Sltppon the migration effort AH line iteftts. goods or S<rvi es provided 
unde.r the t~ulring statewide confrJ must b-: associated t-0 a UNSPSC code, AU line 
herrt$ must be identified ai the moS1 detailed UNSPSC level wJic~ted by segment. 
family, clas.s and rommOdlty. More information abO\lt chi: lJNSPSC is available at: 
bttp;//www.unspsc.com and httpJ/wW y.unsp.sc.com/ AOs.a pith " do un.-..p ,cwork.. 

Applicability: Corttract0r sgtce$ that WSCA:-NASP() controls which c-ontracts appear in 
the eMarket Center and that WSCA~NASPO rnay ~lect at ar.y tf me to remove any 
$i..lpplicr' s offorfog from the eMarket Center, 

WSCA-NASl"O Master Agreement t :. and C'. Page 19of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 200 of 487



J· The Lead State reserves the right to approve the pricing on the eMa.rtet Center. This 
catalog review right is solely for the benefit of the Lead State and Participating Entities. 
and the review and approval shall not waive the requirement that products and services be 
offered at prices (and approved fees) rcquin:d by the Master Agreement 

k. Sevl!ral WSCA-NASPO Participating Ent1ties currently maintain separnfe SciQuesi 
eMarketplaces. these Participating Entities do en,riblc certain W CA·NASPO 
Cooperative Contracts.. (n the event one of these entities dws to use this WSCA~ 
NASPO Cooperaiive Contract (available through the eMarket Center) but publi:sh to their 
own eMarketplace~ the Contractor agrees to work in good faith with the entity and 
WSCA-NASPO to implement the catalog. WS -NASPO does not anticipak that this 
wit! require substanlial additional efforts by the Contractor; ho, ,ever, the supplier agrees 
to take commercially tl'ttSonable efforts to enable such separate SdQuest eatal6gs. 

{N WI .SS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contraet to be signed and intend to be fegally 
bound rhereby. 

Independent Contrador Approval: 

Senior Vlce Proskle l & Generaf Ma:nag~r 

Independent Date lnckpendcnt's Contrncb:1r's Title 

State of Nevada (Lead rate) Approval: 

~ ~ /a2•rf/f 
GregSmith'J Dntc 

State Purclmsigg dminjstrator 

Approved .as to form by~ 

WSCA-NASPO Master Agreement r., and Cs Page 20of 20 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 201 of 487



Attachment BB 

Negotiated Jtems 

L Additional Cos for hard ddve removal nnd surrender must be disclosed to the Customer 
prior to the negotiation and signing of a lease or rerttal agreement. 

2. Models added to a eg 1ent within~ a rded Group mu..~ mat h or ex ~ the minimum 
di -count proposed in tile awartl d Group. 

l, Contractor is to negotiate SLA. with each Partkipatmg Entity at time of inrriating the 
Participating Addendum. Al1achment O of RFP 3091 (Attachment AA) is meant to be a 
mode) Service Level Agre ment only. 

4. Attachment CC~ ontractors Response: 

a. Exceptions El through E5 noted on Attachment B were not acceptable by rhe State 
and WSCA-NASPO. 

lN WrrNESS WHEREOf\ ~ rtics hercro lrave caused this CMLrnct to be signed and iotend to be legally 
bound thereby. 

Independent Contractor Appro. at: 

Da lndepl:mdC1ifs Ccnt.racmN Title 

tat-e of Ne d~ {Le:ld Stllte) Approv I: 

~~~ CPO, NY Smte Purcha. ing Adminls1rat r 
Out 

Attachment SB - Nego1iated ltC!IIS Canon 'USA 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 202 of 487



..---. 

) 

PROCUREMENT DIVISION 
707 Third Street, 2nd Floor 

West Sacramento, CA 95605-2811 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
USER INSTRUCTIONS 

SUPPLEMENT #3 

Important Note: Supplement #3 replaces and supersedes the previous User Instructions dated 6/22/2016 

·.~- ' . .... ..... " ~ -~ ..... , -,~:101 ·•'-' JSSU~ ANDEFFECTIVE t)~Ts_: ( 0£t1l2016 -~-

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Copiers, Printers and Related Devices (NASPO ValuePoint) 

CONTRACT NUMBER(S): 7-15-70-23 Canon U.S.A., Inc. 
7-15-70-24 Konica Minolta Business Solutions USA, Inc. 
7-15-70-25 Ricoh USA, Inc. 
7-15-70-26 Sharp Electronics Corporation 
7-15-70-27 Xerox Corporation 
7-15-70-29 Toshiba America Business Solutions, inc. 

CONTRACT TERM: Various through 12/31/2019 

CONTRACT CATEGORY: IT Goods and Services 

MAXIMUM ORDER LIMIT: Unlimited 

FOR USE BY: State and Local Governmental Agencies (See Section B) 

DGS-PD CONTRACT htto://www.dgs.ca.gov/Qd/Programs/Leveraged/NASP 

INFORMATION WEBSITE: O/CoQiers2.asQx 

Cynthia Okoroike 
STATE CONTRACT (916) 375-4389 
ADMINISTRATOR: cynthia.okoroike(@dgs.ca.gov 

Ordering Agencies are instructed to carefully review these User Instructions in its entirety. For questions, please 
contact the State Contract Administrator and reference the "Title/Description" and/or Contract Number(s). Changes 
to this document will be issued through a User Instructions Supplement. 

Notice to State Departments: 
Products and/or services on these cooperative agreements may be available on Mandatory Statewide Contracts. 
If this is the case, the use of these cooperative agreements is restricted unless the State department has an 
approved exemption pursuant to MM 05-11, and as further explained in the Statewide Contract User Instructions. 
Statewide Contracts are listed at htto://www.documents.dqs.ca.gov/od/contracts/contractindexlistinq.htm. This 
restriction does not apply to local governmental agencies. 

ORIGINAL SIGNED 10/11/2016 

Cynthia Okoroike, State Contract Administrator Date 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 203 of 487



( 

) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

A. SCOPE AND OVERVIEW 

B. CONTRACT AVAILABILITY 

C. CONTRACT TERM 

D. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 

E. CONTRACT INFORMATION 

F. CONTRACT USAGE/RULES 

G. ORDERING PROCEDURES 

H. INVOICING AND PAYMENT 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

PAGE 

4 

4 

4 

5 

5-6 

6-7 

7-8 

8-9 

I. PROBLEM RESOLUTION/CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE 9 

J. ATTACHMENT A 10 -15 

Page2of15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 204 of 487



( 

) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

_________ SUMMAR'LO~CHANGEs_______ _____ _ 
upplement 

No. 

3 

Revision Oescf"iption 

User Instructions Supplement #3 replaces and supersedes the 
previous User Instructions version (dated 6/22/16). 

Supplement #3 incorporates the following changes: 

• Updated the user instructions throughout to include new 
and revised information 

• Added new Contractor contract Manager for Ricoh USA, 
Inc. 

Effective 
Date 

10/11/2016 

For copies of previous User Instructions versions, please contact the State Contract Administrator 
listed in section 2 D. 

Page3of15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 205 of 487



State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

A. SCOPE AND OVERVIEW 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

The Department of General Services, Procurement Division (DGS-PD) has established California 
Participating Addendum contracts with individual Contractors (as noted on page 1) for use of the 
NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices Master Agreements executed by the 
State of Nevada. 

These California Participating Addendums provide State departments and local governmental 
agencies the opportunity to acquire products and services in accordance with the instructions 
provided herein and the terms and conditions outlined in the individual California Participating 
Addendums. Attachment A identifies specific California Participating Addendum information and 
awarded product/service categories by Contractor. 

Note: Throughout this document, "California Participating Addendum" may be used interchangeably 
with "agreement" or "contract." Unless otherwise specified within this document, the term "Ordering 
Agencies" will refer to all State departments and/or local governmental agencies eligible to utilize this 
contract. Ordering and usage instructions exclusive to State departments or local governmental 
agencies shall be identified within each section. 

) B. CONTRACT AVAILABILITY 

1. State Departments 

a. Use of these agreements is non-mandatory for State of California departments. 

b. State departments are restricted from using these agreements for products and services 
available on Mandatory California Statewide Contracts. See Section E.3.a. 
(Restricted/Disallowed Products and Services) for more information. 

2. Local Governmental Agencies 

a. Use of these agreements is optional for local governmental agencies. 

b. Local governmental agencies are defined as any city, county, city and county, district, or 
other local governmental body or corporation, including the California State Universities 
(CSU) and University of California (UC) systems, K-12 schools and community colleges, 
empowered to expend public funds. 

c. Each local governmental agency shall determine whether use of these agreements is 
consistent with its procurement policies and regulations. 

C. CONTRACT TERM 

The term for these California Participating Addendums is from the date of the State's approval 
through December 31, 2019, or upon termination by the State, whichever occurs first. 

J Note: Orders placed under these contracts shall be executed on or before the expiration date of the 
California Participating Addendum. 

Page 4 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 206 of 487



( 

) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

D. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 

The State and the Contractor(s) have assigned contract administrators as single points of contact for 
problem resolution and related contract issues. 

The State Contract Administrator contact for these agreements is: 

Name: 
Phone: 
Fax: 
E-Mail: 

Cynthia Okoroike 
(916) 375-4389 
(916) 375-4663 
cynthia. okoroike@dqs.ca. gov 

Contractor contact information is outlined in Attachment A. 

E. CONTRACT INFORMATION 

1. Lead State Agreement (NASPO ValuePoint Base Contract) 

The California Participating Addendums are based on some or all of the products, services and 
prices from the NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices issued by the State of 
Nevada. Copies of the Nevada NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreements are available at: 
http://www.naspovaluepoint.org/#/contract-details/35/overview/general 

2. California Participating Addendum (Contract Document) 

California Participating Addendum contracts and related documents are posted on the Cal 
eProcure website. To obtain copies: 

• Go to Cal eProcure - State Contract Search 
(https://www.caleprocure.ca.gov/pages/LPASearch/lpa-search.aspx) 

• Enter the Participating Addendum number in the Contract ID field and click Search I BW@i) 
• Click View {!<W>view I) to access Participating Addendum webpage. 

• Click View ( 1 vi•~ ) to download Participating Addendum attachments. 

3. Available Products and Services 

Product Groups include: 

• Group A - Convenience Copiers 
• Group B - Production Copiers 
• Group C - Wide Format Devices 
• Group D - Printers 

Attachment A identifies specific California Participating Addendum information and awarded 
groups by Contractor. 

Page 5 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 207 of 487



( 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

4. Restricted/Disallowed Products and Services (State Departments Only) 

The following restrictions apply to all State departments. These restrictions do not apply to local 
governmental agencies unless the restriction is identified within the Nevada NASPO ValuePoint 
Master Agreement. 

a. Products/Services available on Mandatory Statewide Contracts 

Products and services available on Mandatory California Statewide Contracts cannot be 
purchased by State departments without an exemption. State departments shall obtain an 
exemption in accordance with the Statewide Contract User Instructions prior to issuing a 
purchase order under these agreements. For current printer and copier Statewide Contracts 
see the State Contracts Index Listing located at 
http://www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/pd/contracts/contractindexlisting.htm. 

5. Contractor Pricing 

A Product and Service Schedule (PSS) containing contract product and pricing information is 
posted on each Contractors' dedicated website. Pricing is based on a discount off list price. 
Contractors may offer greater discounts and/or lower prices than those published in their PSS. 
Links to each Contractor's dedicated website and PSS are identified in Attachment A. 

F. CONTRACT USAGE/RULES 

) 1. Goods and Services 

This Participating Addendum is for equipment and associated maintenance services. 

2. Adherence to Applicable Laws (State Departments Only) 

State departments must adhere to all applicable State laws, regulations, policies, best practices, 
and purchase authority requirements (e.g. California Codes, Code of Regulations, State 
Administrative Manual, Management Memos, and State Contracting Manual Volumes 1, 2 and 3). 

3. Purchase Authority (State Departments Only) 

Prior to placing orders under these agreements, State departments must have been granted 
purchasing authority by DGS-PD for the use of cooperative agreements. The State department's 
current purchasing authority number must be entered in the appropriate location on each 
purchase document. State departments that have not been granted purchasing authority by 
DGS-PD may access the Purchasing Authority Application by contacting DGS-PD's Purchasing 
Authority Management Section by email at pams@dgs.ca.gov. 

4. California Seller's Permit (State Departments Only) 

California Seller's Permit information for each Contractor is identified in Attachment A. Prior to 
placing orders under these agreements, State departments should verify that permits are 
currently valid at www.boe.ca.gov. State departments must adhere to the file documentation 
required identified in the State Contracting Manual Volume 2 and Volume 3, as applicable. 

Page 6 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 208 of 487



( ' ) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO Va/uePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

5. DGS Administrative Fee 

Ordering agencies will not be charged the DGS Administrative fee nor will they be invoiced by 
the Contractor(s) for use of these agreements. 

G. ORDERING PROCEDURES 

1. Contractor Selection Process 

a. State Departments 

State departments electing to use these agreements must select a Contractor using the Best 
Value Request for Offer (RFO) process outlined below: 

• Develop RFO - Ordering Agency will develop a RFO which includes the following 
information, at a minimum: 

• All relevant Ordering Agency contact information necessary for the 
Contractor to respond to the RFO; and 

• A detailed specification or scope of work (SOW) for the products and 
services is required. 

• Solicit Offers - Ordering Agency shall solicit offers from a minimum of three Contractors 
. within the awarded producUservice category. 

• If multiple Contractors are solicited and less than three offers are received, the 
Ordering Agency must document their file with the reasons why the other 
Contractors solicited did not respond with an offer. 

• Agencies may use State-approved Servicing Subcontractors (Authorized Dealers) 
for soliciting offers. See Section G(2) (Authorized Dealers) for agency 
requirements. 

• Orders valued less than $5,000 may be executed without obtaining multiple offers 
if fair and reasonable pricing has been established and documented within the 
procurement file. 

• Determine Best Value - Ordering Agency will review all responsive offers and select a 
Contractor based on best value, with cost as one of the criteria. 

• Document Results - Ordering Agency must document the results of the best value 
RFO process within the procurement file including, but not limited to, Contractors that 
were contacted, recap of their offers, how the selection was made and criteria for 
determining "best value". Ordering Agencies have the option to use the Best Value 
Determination Worksheet or the agency's own form to document the results. 

• Issue Purchase Order- Ordering Agency will issue purchase order document to the 
selected Contractor in accordance with Section G (3) (Purchase Order Form and 
Execution). 

b. Local Governmental Agencies 

Local governmental agencies may use the contractor selection process described in Section 
G (1.a) above or other process in accordance with their procurement policies and regulations. 

Page 7 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 209 of 487



) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

2. Authorized Dealers 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplem·ent #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

a. State-approved Authorized Dealers may provide offers, accept purchase orders, fulfill 
purchase orders, perform maintenance/warranty services and accept payment from Ordering 
Agencies for products and associated services offered under the specific Contractor's 
California Participating Addendum. 

b. Ordering Agencies may only use State-approved Authorized Dealers for soliciting offers and 
order execution when: 

• Attachment A indicates if Authorized Dealers are available for use under the specific 
California Participating Addendum; and 

• The firm is identified on the Approved Authorized Dealer listing posted on the State's 
eProcurement website. 

c. If soliciting offers from Authorized Dealers, State departments must retain a copy of the 
State's Approved ,ll.,uthor!zed Deafer listing, for the individual California Participating 
Addendum, in the procurement file. 

d. All purchase order documents to Authorized Dealers must contain the California Participating 
Addendum Number and the prime Contractor's name as instructed in Attachment A. 

3. Purchase Order Form and Execution 

All Ordering Agency purchase order documents executed under these agreements must contain 
the applicable California Participating Addendum Number as shown in Attachment A. See 
Section G (2) for additional requirements when executing orders through Authorized Dealers. 

a. State departments 

State departments must use the Purchasing Authority Purchase Order (Std. 65) for purchase 
execution. An electronic version of the Std. 65 is available on the DGS-PD website at 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/pd/Forms.aspx (select Standard STD Forms). 

b. Local Governmental Agencies 

Local governmental agencies may use their own purchase order document in lieu of the 
State's purchase order form. 

H. INVOICING AND PAYMENT 

1. Payment Terms 

Payment terms for these agreements are net forty-five (45) days. Payment will be made in 
accordance with the provisions of the California Prompt Payment Act, Government Code Section 
927, et seq. Unless expressly exempted by statute, the Act requires State departments to pay 
properly submitted, undisputed invoices not more than forty- five (45) days after the date of 
acceptance of goods, performance of services, or receipt of an undisputed invoice, whichever is 
later. 

Page 8 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 210 of 487



( ) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

2. Payee Data Record 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

Each State accounting office must have a copy of the Payee Data Record (Std. 204) in order to 
process payments. State departments should forward a copy of the Std. 204 to their accounting 
office(s). Without the Std. 204, payment may be unnecessarily delayed. State departments 
should contact the Contractor for copies of the Payee Data Record. 

3. CAL-Card 

State departments may use the CAL-Card for the payment of invoices. Use of the CAL-Card 
requires the execution of Purchasing Authority Purchase Order (Std. 65) as referenced in 
Section G.3 (Purchase Order Form and Execution) and must include all required documentation 
applicable to the purchase. 

CAL-Card is a payment mechanism, not a procurement approach and, therefore, does not 
relieve departments from adhering to all procurement laws, regulations, policies, procedures, and 
best practices, including those discussed in the State Contracting Manual Volumes 1, 2 and 3. 
This includes but is not limited to the application of all sales and use tax laws, rules and policies 
as applicable to the purchase. 

I. PROBLEM RESOLUTION/CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE 

Ordering agencies should first attempt to resolve complaints, issues or disputes informally with the 
Contractor. If the issue or dispute cannot be resolved by the Ordering Agency, the issue may be 
elevated to the DGS-PD State Contract Administrator. 

J. ATTACHMENT A 

Page 9 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 211 of 487



) 

) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO Va/uePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

Attachment A - Contract Information 

·California Participating 
Addend~m (Con~ ctj No. 

7-15-70-23 

Canon U.S.A., Inc. 
,, 9/25/2015 through 12/31/2019 

Nevada NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement No. 3091 

Cal eProcure (See Section E.2 for Cal eProcure contract search instructions) 

Group A - Convenience Copiers 
Group B - Production Copiers 
Group C-Wide Format 
Group D - Printers 

-Contracfor Website http://ebb.cusa.canon.com/portal/page/portal/sites/home?state site=11 
(Prqptl, . ti'fid Priding inf<iffnatian) Q 

payment Term,s . · Net 45 days 

~Al,.•Carct A~~epted Yes (See Section H, 3 for CAL-Card use requirements) 

SBlP,V!JF Certific~~~n(s} None 

·s elter"s Permif No. 30625725 

·c--oritr,ac\ Ma'1.ager Mike Hurley 

Canon U.S.A., Inc. 
One Canon Park 
Melville NY, 11747 
(631) 330-3613 

isgbidamin@cusa.canon.com 

,· 
State•~ppro~ ed' 
A.utporjze,d De~lers 

Yes; Refer to the Participating Addendum State-Approved Authorized 
Reseller Listing posted on Cal eProcure. 

Page 10 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 212 of 487



) 

) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

2. Authorized Dealers 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO Va/uePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

a. State-approved Authorized Dealers may provide offers, accept purchase orders, fulfill 
purchase orders, perform maintenance/warranty services and accept payment from Ordering 
Agencies for products and associated services offered under the specific Contractor's 
California Participating Addendum. 

b. Ordering Agencies may only use State-approved Authorized Dealers for soliciting offers and 
order execution when: 

• Attachment A indicates if Authorized Dealers are available for use under the specific 
California Participating Addendum; and 

• The firm is identified on the Approved Authorized Dealer listing posted on the State's 
eProcurement website. 

c. If soliciting offers from Authorized Dealers, State departments must retain a copy of the 
State's Approved Authorized Dealer listing, for the individual California Participating 
Addendum, in the procurement file. 

d. All purchase order documents to Authorized Dealers must contain the California Participating 
Addendum Number and the prime Contractor's name as instructed in Attachment A. 

3. Purchase Order Form and Execution 

All Ordering Agency purchase order documents executed under these agreements must contain 
the applicable California Participating Addendum Number as shown in Attachment A See 
Section G (2) for additional requirements when executing orders through Authorized Dealers. 

a. State departments 

State departments must use the Purchasing Authority Purchase Order (Std. 65) for purchase 
execution. An electronic version of the Std. 65 is available on the DGS-PD website at 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/pd/Forms.aspx (select Standard STD Forms). 

b. Local Governmental Agencies 

Local governmental agencies may use their own purchase order document in lieu of the 
State's purchase order form. 

H. INVOICING AND PAYMENT 

1. Payment Terms 

Payment terms for these agreements are net forty-five (45) days. Payment will be made in 
accordance with the provisions of the California Prompt Payment Act, Government Code Section 
927, et seq. Unless expressly exempted by statute, the Act requires State departments to pay 
properly submitted, undisputed invoices not more than forty- five (45) days after the date of 
acceptance of goods, performance of services, or receipt of an undisputed invoice, whichever is 
later. 

Page 8 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 213 of 487



) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

2. Payee Data Record 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

Each State accounting office must have a copy of the Payee Data Record (Std. 204) in order to 
process payments. State departments should forward a copy of the Std. 204 to their accounting 
office(s). Without the Std. 204, payment may be unnecessarily delayed. State departments 
should contact the Contractor for copies of the Payee Data Record. 

3. CAL-Card 

State departments may use the CAL-Card for the payment of invoices. Use of the CAL-Card 
requires the execution of Purchasing Authority Purchase Order (Std. 65) as referenced in 
Section G.3 (Purchase Order Form and Execution) and must include all required documentation 
applicable to the purchase. 

CAL-Card is a payment mechanism, not a procurement approach and, therefore, does not 
relieve departments from adhering to all procurement laws, regulations, policies, procedures, and 
best practices, including those discussed in the State Contracting Manual Volumes 1, 2 and 3. 
This includes but is not limited to the application of all sales and use tax laws, rules and policies 
as applicable to the purchase. 

I. PROBLEM RESOLUTION/CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE 

Ordering agencies should first attempt to resolve complaints, issues or disputes informally with the 
Contractor. If the issue o, dispute cannot be resolved by the Ordering Agency, the issue may be 
elevated to the DGS-PD State Contract Administrator. 

·J. ATTACHMENT A 

Page 9 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 214 of 487



,. ., 

( 

) 

) 

State of California 
Department of General Services 
Procurement Division 

Cooperative Agreement 
USER INSTRUCTIONS Supplement #2 

NASPO ValuePoint Copiers, Printers and Related Devices 

Attachment A - Contract Information 

7-15-70-23 

Nevada NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement No. 3091 

Cal eProcure (See Section E.2 for Cal eProcure contract search instructions) 

Group A - Convenience Copiers 
Group B - Production Copiers 
Group C-Wide Format 
Group D - Printers 

iC . http:1/ebb.cusa.canon.com/portal/page/portal/sites/home?state site=11 
1 • · • utJt ~fl. ' 'Rtic, g, orma on §. 

OVE!'d· 
d D,afers 

Net 45 days 

Yes (See Section H, 3 for CAL-Card use requirements) 

None 

Canon U.S.A., Inc. 
One Canon Park 
Melville NY, 11747 
(631) 330-3613 

isqbidamin@cusa.canon.com 

Yes; Refer to the Participating Addendum State-Approved Authorized 
Reseller Listing posted on Cal eProcure. 

Page 10 of 15 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 215 of 487



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

The City Clerk Department is requesting proposals for: 

CITYWIDE COPIER UPGRADE PROJECT 

RELEASE DATE: April 28, 2022 

RESPONSE DUE: May 24, 2022 

ATTACHMENT "D"October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 216 of 487



 

2 

GENERAL INFORMATION  
 

The City of San Fernando is requesting proposals from qualified and experienced vendors for 
the Citywide Copier Upgrade Project for a three-year term with two optional one-year 
extensions.  The required equipment and services are described in the Scope of Work.  
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City of San Fernando incorporated in 1911, and is currently organized according to the 
City Council/City Manager form of government with six departments, including a Police 
Department, Public Works Department, and Recreation and Community Services Department. 
The City employs full-time and part-time employees from a total Adopted Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2021-2022 of $62.7 million, which includes a General Fund budget of $22.5 million. The 
City is a cost conscious provider of outstanding public services to its citizens and local 
businesses.  
 
The City believes that the open competition for services and products provides the City with 
the best results for its public dollars. The City is interested in receiving responsive and 
competitive proposals from experienced and qualified vendors to provide the lease/rental of 
multi-function printers and maintenance services for the Citywide Copier Upgrade Project. 
What follows is a description of the technical environment, contractor staffing, qualifications, 
and performance expectations. 
 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING FIRMS 
 

A. Examination of Proposal Documents 
 

By submitting a proposal, the prospective vendor represents that it has thoroughly 
examined and become familiar with the services required under this RFP, and that it is 
capable of delivering quality services to the City in a creative, cost-effective and  
service-oriented manner. 

 
B. Questions/Clarifications 

 
Please direct any questions regarding this RFP to Julia Fritz, City Clerk, via e-mail at 
cityclerk@sfcity.org. Questions must be received by 5:30 p.m. on Wednesday,  
May 11, 2022. All questions received prior to the deadline will be collected and responses 
will be emailed by Tuesday, May 17, 2022.    

 
C. Submission of Bid Proposals 

 
All bid proposals shall be submitted via email to Julia Fritz at cityclerk@sfcity.org and the 
subject line of the email shall read, “City of San Fernando RFP – Citywide Copier Upgrade 
Project”. Proposals must be received no later than Tuesday, May 24, 2022, before  
5:30 p.m.  All proposals received after that time will not be accepted.  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 217 of 487

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


 

3 

D. Withdrawal of Proposals 
 
A vendor may withdraw its proposal at any time before the due date for submission of 
proposals as provided in the RFP by delivering a written request for withdrawal signed by, 
or on behalf of the prospective vendor. 

 
E. Rights of City of San Fernando 

 
This RFP does not commit the City to enter into a Contract, nor does it obligate the City 
to pay for any costs incurred in preparation and submission of proposals or in anticipation 
of a contract. 
 
The City reserves the right to:  
 
1) Make the selection based on its sole discretion; 
2) Reject any and all proposals without prejudice; 
3) Issue subsequent Requests for Proposal; 
4) Postpone opening for its own convenience; 
5) Remedy technical errors in the Request of Proposal process; 
6) Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub-contractors; 
7) Negotiate with any, all, or none of the prospective firms; 
8) Solicit best and final offers from all or some of the prospective firms; 
9) Accept other than the lowest offer; and/or 
10) Waive informalities and irregularities in the proposal process. 
 

F. Contract Type 
 
It is anticipated that a standard form professional services agreement contract will be 
signed subsequent to City Council review and approval of the recommended vendor. 
 

G. Collusion 
 
By submitting a proposal, each prospective vendor represents and warrants that; its 
proposal is genuine and not a sham or collusive or made in the interest of or on behalf of 
any person not named therein; that the prospective vendor has not directly, induced or 
solicited any other person to submit a sham proposal or any other person to refrain from 
submitting a proposal; and, that the prospective firm has not in any manner sought 
collusion to secure any improper advantage over any other person submitting a proposal. 
 
 

CURRENT INVENTORY 
 
The City currently leases six (6) multi-function printers from Image 2000 and the Police 
Department leases seven (7) multi-function printers from Canon. The photocopiers are located 
throughout the City at City Hall, Public Works City Yard, Las Palmas Park, San Fernando Recreation 
Park, and the Police Department. Please see table below outlining the City’s current inventory of 
leased multi-function printers that require upgrade/replacement and their respective 
department. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 218 of 487



 

4 

Building/Dept. Location *Size / Make / 
Model # B/W or Color 

City Hall/  
City Manager/  
City Clerk Area 

Reproduction 
Room 108 
117 Macneil St. 

Large  
Sharp / MX-4111N Color 

City Hall/ Personnel Area 

Reproduction 
Room 128 
Admin  
117 Macneil St. 

Large  
Sharp /  
MX-M753N 

B/W 

Public Works City Yard Copy Room 
120 Macneil St. 

Medium 
SHARP /  
MX-M283N 

B/W 

Las Palmas Park 505 S.  
Huntington St. 

Large  
Sharp / MX-4111N Color 

Las Palmas Park 505 S.  
Huntington St. 

Large  
Sharp / MX-4111N Color 

Recreation Park 208 Park Ave. Large  
Sharp / MX-4111N Color 

Police Department - 
Detectives 910 First St.  Medium 

Canon Color 

Police Department - 
Property Control 910 First St.  

(2) Printers Currently Not Working 
REPLACE WITH (1) PRINTER SIMILAR TO 

DETECTIVES 

Police Department - Records 
(Used Often) 910 First St.  Medium 

Canon Color 

Police Department  - 
Records  
(Dispatch Back-Up) 

910 First St.  Small 
Canon B/W 

Police Department - 
Dispatch (Used Often) 910 First St.  Medium 

Canon B/W 

Police Department – 
Reproduction Room 910 First St.  Large  

Canon Color 

Police Department - Watch 
Commander (Same as 
Records Color Printer) 

910 First St.  Medium 
Canon Color 

Police Department - Report 
Writing Room (Same as 
Records B/W Printer) 

910 First St.  Small 
Canon B/W 

*Size: Small, Medium, and Large refers to the production capacity of the printer 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 219 of 487



5 

SCOPE OF SERVICE 

The following sections describe the specific services being requested by this Request for Proposal. 
If the vendor feels that additional tasks are warranted, they must be clearly identified in the 
vendor’s proposal.  

A. Required Equipment

1. Unit Quantities

a. It is anticipated the City will lease/rent a total fourteen (14) machines during the term 
of the contract. However, the City reserves the right to increase or decrease the 
number of units depending on the City’s needs/requirements.

b. Multi-Function Printers, if possible, should be of the same brand in order to maintain 
a uniform fleet.

2. Toner

a. Vendor shall provide at least two extra toner cartridge for each machine for staff to 
keep on hand.

3. Return of Equipment

a. At the end of the lease/rental term, the successful vendor shall be required to clean 
or scrub the hard drive from each device and pick-up and remove all equipment 
furnished under this proposal from each City location and return it to the 
owner/lessor at no additional cost to the City.

4. Network

a. All multi-function printers should have a 1000 MB Ethernet, RJ-45 connection to the 
City’s network, and an analog phone line.

5. Capabilities

Each multi-function printer shall provide the following capabilities from the City's 
networked devices such as:

a) Print
b) Scan to network directories (multiple at a time)
c) Scan to Print
d) Collating and Stapling
e) Fax
f) Duplex and color-scanning
g) Copy quality on 20 lb. bond paper without feed problems

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 220 of 487



6 

h) 8.5” x 11", 8.5” x 14", and 11" x 17" paper sizes for reproduction; produce copy onto
8.5” x 11", 8.5” x 14", and 11" x 17" paper sizes, and, if necessary, accept 11" x 17"
paper sizes for reduction.

i) Equipped with Optical Character Recognition (OCR) software, which allows users to
convert scanned documents into editable file formats including Microsoft Word and
Excel

j) Automatic document feeder that automatically handles duplexed originals
k) Stop automatically when the paper supply is empty or when copies do not exit the

normal paper path; feature “empty paper supply” and “paper jam” indicators
l) Auto stapling in multiple configurations
m) Page-numbering capability
n) 2-hole and 3-hole punch capability
o) Energy saving features (sleep mode and/or other energy efficiencies)

6. Minimum Equipment Requirements and Features

LARGE VOLUME EQUIPMENT (QTY 6 COLOR COPIER) 
Locations: City Hall (Reproduction Room 108), Las Palmas Park (2), Recreation Park, 
Police Department (Reproduction Room) 
Copy Speed 70-90 Copies per Minute
Scanner Speed 60 Copies per Minute 
Document Feeder Reversing/Duplexing Auto Document Feeder 

(RADF)/(DADF) 
Duplex Automatic 
Maximum Size Original 11" x 17" 
Multiple Copies 0-99 Minimum
Paper Supply Capacity 4,000 Sheets (8½” x 11") 
Number of Paper Drawers 4 (Various Paper Sizes) 
Other Required Features Finisher, Collating, Stapling, Auto Contrast, 2 and 3 Hole 

Punch, Page numbering 
Copy Volume per Month 5,000-15,000 

MEDIUM VOLUME EQUIPMENT (QTY 6, 2 B&W, 4 COLOR COPIER) 
Locations: Public Works Yard, Police Department (Detectives, Property Control, Records, 
Dispatch, Watch Commander) 
Copy Speed 50-65 Copies per Minute
Scanner Speed 50 Copies per Minute 
Document Feeder Reversing/Duplexing Auto Document Feeder 

(RADF)/(DADF) 
Duplex Automatic 
Maximum Size Original 11" x 17" 
Multiple Copies 0-99 Minimum
Paper Supply Capacity 4,000 Sheets (8½” x 11") 
Number of Paper Drawers 4 (Various Paper Sizes) 
Other Required Features Finisher, Collating, Stapling, Auto Contrast, 2 and 3 Hole 

Punch, Page numbering 
Copy Volume per Month 7,000-20,000 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 221 of 487



 

7 

SMALL VOLUME EQUIPMENT (QTY 2, B&W) 
Locations: Police Department (Records / Dispatch Back Up & Report Writing Room) 
Copy Speed 20-45 Copies per Minute 
Scanner Speed 30 Copies per Minute 
Document Feeder Reversing/Duplexing Auto Document Feeder 

(RADF)/(DADF) 
Duplex Automatic 
Maximum Size Original 11" x 17" 
Multiple Copies 0-99 minimum 
Paper Supply Capacity 500 Sheets (8½” x 11") 
Number of Paper Drawers 3 (Various Paper Sizes) 
Other Required Features Finisher, Collating, Stapling, Auto Contrast, 2 and 3 Hole 

Punch, Page numbering 
Copy Volume per Month 5,000-10,000 Copies 

 
 

B. Required Services 
 

1. Term Requested 
 
a. A proposal for a three-year equipment lease and maintenance services is requested 

with two optional one-year extensions. 
 

2. Government Contract Pricing/Cooperative Agreement 
 

a. If most cost effective, the City’s preference is for all equipment provided under this 
proposal to reflect government contract pricing. Vendors shall include in their 
proposal the name of the governmental entity or the organization that negotiated the 
contract and the contract number. Prices as proposed shall remain firm during the 
term of the contract. 

 
3. Installation 
 

a. Prior to the installation at any site, the installing vendor shall survey and review the 
proposed installation location to ensure that it meets the manufacturer’s established 
installation criteria. Should the proposed installation location not meet established 
installation criteria, the installing vendor and the City shall attempt to locate an 
alternate, mutually agreeable location for the machine at the appropriate site. Should 
a mutually agreeable location meeting the manufacturer’s established installation 
criteria not be available, the installing vendor shall not install the machine and shall 
notify City Project Manager immediately, in writing, of all particulars prohibiting the 
installation. 
 

b. City Project Manager may, after review, terminate the order for that particular 
installation site without incurring any obligation or cost to the City or assessing any 
additional costs to the vendor. 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 222 of 487



 

8 

c. Successful Vendor shall provide technical assistance as required for installation. 
 

4. Maintenance 
 

a. Vendors shall provide guaranteed maintenance service, including all parts and labor, 
at the rates proposed herein for the duration of the lease/rental period.  In the event 
any machine cannot be repaired to the extent that it demonstrates adequate 
performance and reliability, vendor shall guarantee its replacement with the same or 
like model at no additional cost.  Vendors shall include the cost of a full maintenance 
agreement in their proposal. 
 

b. Vendors shall guarantee repair services Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to  
5:00 p.m. Maximum service response time at each City location shall not exceed  
nine (9) work-hours. Vendors shall also include in their proposals the number of 
technicians who will be responding to service calls from the City and the qualifications 
of those technicians. 

 
5. Training 
 

a. Training shall be provided by the successful Vendor to City staff upon equipment 
installation, and as required thereafter by the City. Instruction shall encompass basic 
operation, basic system feature utilization, and utilization of network features 

 
 
PROPOSED TERM OF CONTRACT 
 
The proposed term of the contract is three years, with options for two one-year extensions at 
the City’s discretion. 

 
 

SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION  
 

RFP Available:       April 28, 2022 
Deadline for submittal of Questions:    May 11, 2022 
Response to Questions:      May 17, 2022 
Deadline for submittal of Proposal:     May 24, 2022 
Interviews and demonstrations     May 31, 2022 to  

June 10, 2022  
Agreement Presented to Council for Review & Approval: June 20, 2022 

 
 
METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk will evaluate the information provided in the submitted proposals using the 
following criteria as a guideline: 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 223 of 487



 

9 

• Completeness and Comprehensiveness. 
• Responsiveness to City’s issues. 
• Potential to benefit the City. 
• Experience of the firm providing similar services to other municipalities. 
• Cost effectiveness. 
• Quality of proposed staff. 

 
 
INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED 
 
The Proposals must include the following information: 

 
1. Prospective Vendors must submit one digital copy of their proposal via email. 

 
2. Include a Transmittal Letter 

 
a. This section should include the Vendor name and representative contact information 

(email and phone number).  
 

b. A statement to the effect that the proposal will remain valid for 90 days from the 
proposal due date. 
 

c. Acknowledgment of receipt of addenda, if any. 
 

d. Signature of the person authorized to bind the terms of the proposal. 
 

3. Include a Proposal Summary Section 
 

This section shall discuss the highlights, key features, and distinguishing points of the 
Proposal. A separate sheet shall include all the contact people on the Proposal and how 
to communicate with them.  

 
4. Include a Profile of the Proposing Vendor(s) Section 

 
This section shall include a brief description of the vendor, including size, location of 
office(s), number of years providing service, organizational structure of the responsible 
division, etc. 
 
Additionally, this section shall include a listing of any lawsuit and the result of that action 
resulting from (a) any public project undertaken by the Vendor where litigation is still 
pending or has occurred within the last five years or (b) any type of project where claims 
or settlements were paid by the Vendor or its insurers within the last five years. 

 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 224 of 487



 

10 

5. Include a Qualifications of the Vendor Section 
 
This section shall include a brief description of the Vendor’s qualifications and previous 
experience on similar or related projects. Provide a description of pertinent project 
experience with other public municipalities (maximum of four) that includes a summary 
of the work performed, the total project cost, the period over which the work was 
completed, and the name, title, and phone number of clients to be contacted for 
references. Give a brief statement of the Firm’s adherence to the schedule and budget 
for each project. 

 
6. Include a Work Plan Section   

 
In this section, present a well-conceived service plan. This section of the proposal shall 
establish the Vendor’s understanding of the City’s objectives and work requirements and 
the Vendor’s ability to satisfy those objectives and requirements. Describe the proposed 
approach for addressing the scope of service, outlining the approach that would be 
undertaken in providing the requested services. Include a timetable for providing the 
service. Describe related service experience by the Vendor in similar work. Please 
describe the role, extent of services (number of people used, engagement duration, and 
contract value).  
 

7. Include a Project Staffing Section 
 
In this section, discuss how the Vendor would propose to staff this project. Designate an 
administrator who would serve as a day-to-day contact for the City. Vendor’s key project 
team members shall be identified by name, specific responsibilities on the project and 
their qualifications. An organizational chart for the project team and resumes for key Firm 
personnel shall be included. Key Vendor personnel will be an important factor considered 
by the City Clerk. There can be no change of key personnel once the proposal is 
submitted, without prior approval of City. 

 
8. Include Proposal Costs Sheet and Rates Section 

 
In this section, include the proposed costs to provide the services desired. Include any 
other cost and price information that would be contained in a potential agreement with 
the City. Government contract pricing should be used if most effective. Exhibits “A-C” 
should be included in proposal. 
 
The Vendor shall state any costs associated with de-installation and pick up of equipment 
at the end of the lease. The City will not be liable for any costs not specifically detailed in 
proposal. 
 
In addition, include the costs for any other services that are considered optional additions. 

 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 225 of 487



 

11 

9. Include a Delivery Section 
 

The vendor shall state in its proposal the number of business days necessary for 
delivering and installing equipment. 
 
The vendor is expected to start immediately after the Contract Services Agreement has 
been signed by all parties and executed by the City, business license has been obtained, 
and required insurance has been provided.  
 
The vendor must detail all anticipated expenses that will be incurred by the City for the 
delivery and installation of equipment. 
 
The City will not be liable for expenses not detailed in RFP response. 
 
The vendor shall invoice the City for delivery and installation upon written acceptance 
of the equipment by the City. 
 
Delivery and installation cost shall include on-site training by a fully qualified 
representative of the vendor. The date of the equipment training shall be chosen by the 
City after delivery and installation.  It may be necessary for vendor to conduct multiple 
training sessions at City Hall as well as at off site City locations.  All user manuals and 
operating guides shall also be provided with the equipment. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 226 of 487



EXHIBIT “A” 

12 

EXHIBIT “A” 
EQUIPMENT PRICING 

 
 

Model Number: ________________________ 
 
Description:____________________________ 

VENDOR RESPONSE 

Base Monthly Payment: 3 year lease or rental  

Network Printing  

Network Scanning  

Network Faxing  

OCR Software  

Additional Feature    

Additional Feature    

Copy and Scan allowance included in Base 
Monthly Payment (B&W & Color) 

 

Additional Copy Charge (B&W & Color)  

Additional Scan Charge (B&W & Color)  

Monthly Maintenance Charge  

Destination, Delivery and/or Installation Charge  

Training Charge  

Average Monthly cost for Supplies, including 
staples (based on estimated range) 

 

Monthly Subtotal  

Tax (10.25%)  

Other Costs  

Total Monthly Costs  

Responses are to reflect Government Contract 
Pricing.  Please identify the jurisdiction and 
contract number 

 

*Vendors are requested to submit one copy of this page for each proposed Model.  Please make 
additional copies of this page as required 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 227 of 487



EXHIBIT “B” 

13 

EXHIBIT “B” 
EQUIPMENT FEATURES 

 
 

Model Number: ________________________ 
 
Description:____________________________ 

VENDOR RESPONSE 

Number of Units Proposed  

Dimensions & Weight  

Document Feeder (Type)  

Electrical Requirements  

Network Requirements  

Network Printer Speed (copies per minute)  

Network Scan Speed (scans per minute)  

Network Fax Speed (scans per minute)   

Color Scanning (Yes or No)   

Optical Character Recognition (OCR) Software  

Duplexing Capability (Yes or No; Speed)  

Reduction/Enlargement (Yes or No; %)  

Job Interrupt/Job Recovery Display  

Maximum Output Size (Dimensions)  

Maximum Size Original (Dimensions)  

Print Resolution  

Scan Resolution  

Page Numbering (Yes or No)  

Margin Shift (Yes or No)  

Stapling  

Paper Drawers (Number of)  

Paper Supply Capacity  

Single-Sheet Bypass Capability (Yes or No)  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 228 of 487



EXHIBIT “B” 

14 

2 and 3 Hole Punch Capability (Yes or No)  

Memory Capacity  

Energy Star Certified (Yes or No)  

Energy Saving Features  

Estimated Energy Usage  

Estimated Energy Savings  

*Vendors are requested to submit one copy of this page for each proposed Model.  Please make 
additional copies of this page as required. 

 
 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 229 of 487



EXHIBIT “C” 

15 

EXHIBIT “C” 
EQUIPMENT PERFORMANCE AND SERVICE 

 
 

 
Model Number: ________________________ 
 
Description:____________________________ 

VENDOR RESPONSE 

Recommended Volume Capacity per Month  
 

Frequency of Scheduled Preventative Maintenance  
 

Anticipated Performance Capability – Historical 
Pattern of Service 

 
 

Average Service Response Time  
 

Number of Technicians Capable of Providing Service 
to the City of San Fernando 

 
 

Length of Time Equipment Has Been Marketed  
 

Extensiveness of Product Testing - Scope of Quality 
Assurance 

 
 

Manufacturer or Distributor  
 

Number of Years Engaged in Providing Equipment 
within Scope of Specification Under Present Business 
Name 

 
 

*Vendors are requested to submit one copy of this page for each proposed Model.  Please make 
additional copies of this page as required. 

 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 230 of 487



CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR 
MARY MENDOZA 

VICE MAYOR 
HECTOR A. PACHECO 

COUNCILMEMBER 
SYLVIA BALLIN 

COUNCILMEMBER 
CINDY MONTAÑEZ 

COUNCILMEMBER 
CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ 

CITY CLERK 
DEPARTMENT 

117 MACNEIL STREET 
SAN FERNANDO 
CALIFORNIA 
91340 

(818) 898-1204

WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

May 18, 2022 

RFP FOR CITYWIDE COPIER UPGRADE PROJECT 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Question No. 1:  I was wondering if we can have a walkthrough to see where the 
existing copiers are located and the space around them? 

Response No. 1:  If the vendor desires, all photocopiers are located 
throughout the City at City Hall, Public Works City Yard, Las Palmas Park, 
San Fernando Recreation Park, and the Police Department.  

Question No. 2:  I noticed that all the copiers even the small ones require "Finisher, 
Collating, Stapling, Auto Contrast, 2 and 3 Hole Punch, Page numbering", Can you 
verify? 

Response No. 2:  The minimum equipment requirements and features for the 
Small Volume printer has been slightly revised, please see below: 

SMALL VOLUME EQUIPMENT (QTY 2, B&W) 
Locations: Police Department (Records / Dispatch Back Up & Report Writing 
Room) 
Copy Speed 20-45 Copies per Minute
Scanner Speed 30 Copies per Minute 
Document Feeder Reversing/Duplexing Auto Document Feeder 

(RADF)/(DADF) 
Duplex Automatic 
Maximum Size Original 8 ½" x 11" 
Multiple Copies 0-99 minimum
Paper Supply Capacity 500 Sheets (8½” x 11") 
Number of Paper Drawers 3 (Various Paper Sizes) 
Other Required Features Collating 
Copy Volume per Month 5,000-10,000 Copies 

Question No. 3:  "Vendor shall provide at least two extra toner cartridge for each 
machine for staff to keep on hand." - Our MFPs come with full supplies not starter 
supplies.  On color MFPs we have 4 toners.  Are you asking for 8 for each and if we 
provide all color models then 8x14 = 112 toners. 

SAN F ERNANill 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 231 of 487

http://www.sfcity.org/


RFP FOR CITYWIDE COPIER UPGRADE PROJECT 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS 
ADDENDUM NO. 1  
Page 2 of 3 

Response No. 3:  The City is requesting ten (10) color printers and four (4) 
black/white only printers. At a minimum, each printer should have one extra toner 
on hand (black and color). 
 
Question No. 4:  Can you provide the current Canon models? 
 
Response No. 4:  The current Canon models can be found below: 
 

• IRADV400IF • IRADV4245 
• IRADVC250 • IRADVC5535I 
• IRADVC7570I • IRADVC250 
• IRADV400IF  

 
Question No. 5:  Can you provide a Copy of the Current contract and costs? 
 
Response No. 5:  Please see Exhibit “A” for the current costs 
 
Question No. 6:  Can we provide an alternate model for your low volume units? 
 
Response No. 6:  Yes, if necessary, please provide an alternate model. 
 
Question No. 7:  Will it be our responsibility to remove and ship back the old 
equipment, or is this the responsibility of the current supplier? 
 
Response No. 7:  The City will confirm with the current supplier. Please propose a 
line item with the cost.  
 
Question No. 8:  For the medium and/or small volume units, will you accept inner 
staple finishers or do you prefer console finishers at the side of the devices? 
 
Response No. 8: Inner staple finisher is acceptable for medium volume unit. Please 
refer to Response No. 2 for small volume units. 
 
Question No. 9:  Page 5 under A.1. Unit Quantities.  This section states that “the 
City reserves the right to increase or decrease the number of units depending on 
the City’s needs/requirements.”  Can you expand on this? Can you provide 
anticipated (or historical) number of units over the term that would increase or 
decrease? 
 
Response No. 9:  The City is requesting upgrades to fourteen (14) printers 
throughout the City. The City cannot determine an increase or decrease in the 
future at this time. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 232 of 487



RFP FOR CITYWIDE COPIER UPGRADE PROJECT 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS 
ADDENDUM NO. 1  
Page 3 of 3 

Question No. 10:  Page 8-9, Method of Selection and Notices.  Are the bulleted 
selection criteria equally weighted? If not, can you provide the weighting? 
 
Response No. 10:  Bullet points are listed by highest to lowest priority: 
 

1. Cost Effectiveness 
2. Potential to benefit the City 
3. Responsiveness to City’s issues 
4. Completeness and Comprehensiveness 
5. Experience of the firm providing similar services to other municipalities 
6. Quality of proposed staff 

 
Question No. 11:  Can I request a copy of the existing lease agreements and 
monthly B&W and Color service volumes for the Sharp equipment currently 
installed at the City of San Fernando. 
 
Response No. 11:  Please refer to Exhibit “A”. 
 
Question No. 12:  Is the City of San Fernando willing to accept a 5 year (60 Mo.) 
lease as an exception to the RFP in order to reduce the payment amount per 
month? 
 
Response No. 12:  Yes. 
 
Question No. 13:  On Page 6 of the RFP - A. Required Equipment, 5. Capabilities, i) 
Equipped with Optical Character Recognition (OCR) software, which allows users 
to convert scanned documents into editable file formats including Microsoft Word 
and Excel. Does the City of San Fernando require the ability to scan to Excel?  Or 
will scan to Office Open XML (PowerPoint, Word) be sufficient? 
 
Response No. 13:  Office Open XML will suffice. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 233 of 487



Config 
Qty

Line 
Qty Description Product Description

3 1  IMAGERUNNER ADVANCE DX C5870I Dimensions (W x D x H)
1  PAPER DECK UNIT-F1 • Print/Copy Speed: up to 70 ppm (BW/Color, Letter) 59.49" x 28.43" x 46.77" 
1  2/3 HOLE PUNCHER UNIT-A1 • Scan Speed: up to 270 ipm (300 dpi) (BW/Color, Duplex)
1  CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1 • Print up to 12" x 18"
1  STAPLE FINISHER-AB1 • Includes two 550-sheet paper cassettes
1  BUFFER PASS UNIT-P1 • Standard security feature set, including McAfee Embedded Control
1  ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER (120V/15A)

2 1 IMAGERUNNER ADVANCE DX C5850I Dimensions (W x D x H)
1 CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1 • Print/Copy Speed: up to 50 ppm (BW/Color, Letter) 45.75" x 28.43" x 46.77" 
1 BUFFER PASS UNIT-P2 • Scan Speed: up to 270 ipm (300 dpi) (BW/Color, Duplex)
1 STAPLE FINISHER-AB2 • Print up to 12" x 18"
1 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP • Includes two 550-sheet paper cassettes

• Standard security feature set, including McAfee Embedded Control

1 1 IMAGERUNNER ADVANCE DX C5850I Dimensions (W x D x H)
1 CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AQ1 27.95" x 29.17" x 46.77" 
1 INNER FINISHER-L1
1 INNER 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER-D1
1 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP

3 1 IMAGERUNNER ADVANCE DX 4845I Dimensions (W x D x H)
1 INNER 2/3 HOLE PUNCHER-D1 • Print/Copy Speed: up to 45 ppm (BW, Letter) 26.97" x 27.24" x 45.08" 
1 CASSETTE FEEDING UNIT-AW1 • Scan Speed: up to 270 ipm (300 dpi) (BW/Color, Duplex)
1 INNER FINISHER-L1 • Print up to 12" x 18"
1 ESP NEXT GEN PCS POWER FILTER 120VOLTS 15 AMP • Includes two 550-sheet paper cassettes

• Standard security feature set, including McAfee Embedded Control

Using E NIPA FI-R-0251-18 (2018)

• Includes uniFLOW Online Express for cloud-based accounting and cost control per 
user/department

• Includes uniFLOW Online Express for cloud-based accounting and cost control per 
user/department

• Includes uniFLOW Online Express for cloud-based accounting and cost control per 
user/department

ATTACHMENT "E"
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 234 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 235 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 236 of 487



 
 
  
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

POLICE DEPARTMENT                 910 FIRST STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1250                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Fabian Valdez, Police Chief 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt Resolutions to Accept Grant Funds from the California 

Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, Alcohol Policing Partnership Program 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC), Alcohol Policing 

Partnership Program  22-APP24 (Attachment “A”) in the amount of $69,820; 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8186 (Attachment “B”) authorizing the Police Chief to execute Standard 
Agreement No. 22-APP24 (Exhibit “A” of Attachment “B”) with ABC; and 
  

c. Adopt Resolution No. 8187 (Attachment “C”) amending the budget of Fiscal Year (FY)  
2022-2023 to appropriate the grant revenues and expenses. 

 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. On March 31, 2022, the Police Department submitted an application to ABC requesting funds 
for the Alcohol Policing Partnership program (APP), which includes public awareness of selling 
alcohol to minors, Minor Decoy operations, Shoulder Tap operations and Inform Merchants 
Preventing Alcohol-Related Crime Tendencies (IMPACT) educational presentations. 
 

2. On May 27, 2022, the Police Department received notification that it had been selected to 
receive funding for FY 2022-2023 from APP. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 

The Police Department provides public safety services to a population of approximately 25,000 
persons residing within the 2.42 square miles of San Fernando.  Over the past three fiscal years 
(2019-2022) the Police Department averaged approximately 86 DUI arrests per year with minor 
DUI arrests composing approximately 6.15% of that total. With this APP grant, the Police 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 237 of 487



Consideration to Adopt Resolutions to Accept Grant Funds from the California Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control, Alcohol Policing Partnership Program 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Department will strive to educate its Police Officers, Detectives, community members, and 
licensees and their employees regarding the rules of ABC and the impact of alcohol sales to 
minors.  The Police Department will accomplish this education through a variety of trainings 
including roll call, License Education of Alcohol and Drugs (LEAD) classes, Neighborhood and 
Business Watch events, community meetings and IMPACT classes.   
 
With this current grant, the Police Department will focus on the following: 
 

• Sales of alcohol to minors by both on-sale and off-sale establishments. 
• Curbing persistent criminal offenses that may result from problematic on-sale premises 

including alcohol sales to minors, loitering, civil disturbance, narcotics usage and sales and 
DUI. 

• Training of licensees and their employees to prevent non-compliance with ABC rules and 
regulations. 

 
ABC requires that the City adopt a Resolution that includes specific elements that will satisfy the 
stipulations made by ABC in the grant documentation.  The goal of the program is to continue to 
reduce the availability of alcohol to local youth and to educate local merchants regarding the 
importance of adherence with ABC laws.  Grant funds will be used to reimburse the City for 
overtime costs incurred during enforcement operations for those goals.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

The ABC grant from the State of California is in the form of a reimbursement grant and requires 
the City to enter into an agreement with ABC to administer the grant.  The grant is in the amount 
of $69,820 and the proposed Budget Resolution will appropriate the full grant amount in  
FY 2022-2023. 

 
 

CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the acceptance of the ABC Grant 22-APP24 in 
the amount of $69,820, authorizing the Police Chief to execute the Standard Agreement contract 
with ABC, and adopt a resolution amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. ABC Award Letter 
B. Resolution No. 8186, including: 
 Exhibit A: Standard Agreement 
C.   Resolution No 8187 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 238 of 487



ATTACHMENT "A"
§I&If 9f CAI IEQBHI& ' RtJSINSSS filfi! !HEB SEBXIPES ANP HQlJSING AGENCY 
DEPARTMENT OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL 3927 Lennane Drive, Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
'916) 419-2500 

May 27, 2022 

Chief Fabian Valdez 
San Fernando Police Department 
910 First Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Dear Chief Fabian Valdez: 

'I 

Gavin N1»19CD Ggytmor 

Congratulations! Your agency has been selected by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) to receive funding for your 2022/2023 Alcohol Policing Partnership (APP) grant proposal. 

We will be hosting a two day training conference beginning at 8:30 am on July 12, 2022 and ending at approximately 5:00 pm on July 13, 2022. This conference offers valuable training in alcohol enforcement and serves as an excellent opportunity for the representatives from your agency to meet and share information with other law enforcement agencies from across the State. 

This year the conference will be held at the UC Davis Conference Center located at 550 Alumni Lane, Davis, CA 95616. The conference will accommodate up to two attendees fr.om each agency. It is recommended that your sworn Project Director and an officer/deputy assigned to the grant program attend. There is a $325.00 registration fee per person to attend the conference. This fee is reimbursable through the grant. 

•An email will be sent out In June to notify your Project Director once the registration site Is open. 

A grant agreement will be forthcoming in the next couple of weeks which requires a resolution, order, motion. ordinance or other similar document from your local governing body authorizing execution of the agreement. Due to the fact that these resolutions typically have to be put on your governing body's calendar, we ask that you do this as soon as possible. 

If you have any questions, please call Kristine Okino, Grant Coordinator at (916) 419-2572 or email at Kristlne.oklno@abc.ca,ggy. 

~~ 
Eric Hirata 
Director 

Cc: Lt. Irwin Rosenberg, Project Director 

,I 

.. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 239 of 487



ATTACHMENT “B”  

RESOLUTION NO. 8186 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE POLICE CHIEF TO PROPOSE AND ENTER 
INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL TO DEVELOP AN ALCOHOL POLICING 
PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of San Fernando desires to undertake a certain 
project designated as 2022-2023 Alcohol Policing Partnership Program to be funded in part from 
funds made available through the Grant Assistance Program administered by the Department of 
Alcoholic Beverage Control (hereafter ABC). 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Police Chief is authorized to execute, on behalf of the City Council and 
City Manager, the attached Contract/Agreement (Exhibit “A”), including any extensions or 
amendments thereof and any subsequent contract with the State in relation thereto. 

SECTION 2. It is agreed that any liability arising out of the performance of this contract 
including civil court actions for damages, shall be the responsibility of the grant recipient and 
authorizing agency.  The State of California and ABC disclaim responsibility for any such liability. 

SECTION 3. The grant funds received hereunder shall not be used to supplant 
expenditures controlled by this body. 

SECTION 4. This award is not subject to local hiring freezes. 

SECTION 5. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 
a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 17th day of October, 2022. 
 
 

              
Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 240 of 487



RES. NO. 8186 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8186 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
17th day of October, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of October, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 241 of 487



SCO ID: 2 IUU-22APH24

STATE OF CALIFORNIA - DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

STANDARD AGREEMENT
STD 213 (Rev. 04/2020)

AGREEMENT NUMBER

22-APP24
PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (If Applicable)

ABC-2100

1. This Agreement is entered into between the Contracting Agency and the Contractor named below;

CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME

Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control

CONTRACTOR NAME

City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department

2. The term of this Agreement is:

START DATE

July 1,2022

THROUGH END DATE

June 30, 2023

3. The maximum amount of this Agreement is:

$69,820.00 Sixty nine thousand eight hundred twenty dollars and no cents

4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits, which are by this reference made a part of the Agreement.

TitleExhibits Pages

Exhibit A Scope of Vl/ork 2

Exhibit B Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 3

General Terms and ConditionsExhibit C* 4

+
Special Terms and ConditionsExhibit D 1

+ Attachment
RFP Scope of Work 7

RFP

Items shown with an asterisk ('), are hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agreement as if attached hereto.
These documents can be viewed athttos://www.das.cc}.oov/OLS/Resources

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO.

CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc)

City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department

STATE ZIPCITYCONTRACTOR BUSINESS ADDRESS

910 First Street San Fernando CA 91340

TITLE

Chief of Police

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING

Fabian Valdez

DATE SIGNEDCONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

Page 1 of 2

RES. NO. 8186 
EXHIBIT "A"

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 242 of 487



SCO ID: 21UU-22AHP24

STATE OF CALIFORNIA - DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

STANDARD AGREEMENT
STD 213 (Rev. 04/2020)

PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (If Applicable)

ABC-2100
AGREEMENT NUMBER

22-APP24

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME

Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control

STATE ZIPCITYCONTRACTING AGENCY ADDRESS

3927 Lennane Drive, Suite 100 Sacramento CA 95834

TITLE

Chief, Business Management Branch

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING

Pattye Baker

DATE SIGNEDCONTRACTING AGENCY AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

EXEMPTION (If Applicable)CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES APPROVAL

Page 2 of 2

RES. NO. 8186 
EXHIBIT "A"October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 243 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 1 of 2

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

I. SCOPE OF WORK

• Contractor agrees to implement the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC), Alcohol Policing
Partnership program.  This program is intended to work with law enforcement agencies to develop an
effective, comprehensive and strategic approach to eliminate the crime and public nuisance problems
associated with problem alcoholic beverage outlets.

• Contractor agrees to implement ABC’s Minor Decoy, Shoulder Tap Programs and conduct Informed
Merchants Preventing Alcohol-Related Crime Tendencies (IMPACT) Inspections.  These Programs
target both ABC licensed premises and individuals who furnish alcoholic beverages to the underage
operators.  The project is targeted to reduce underage drinking and the resultant DUI driving injuries
and fatalities, and/or property damages, reduce youth access to alcoholic beverages through the
education of licensee(s), enforcement intervention and the impressions of omnipresence of law
enforcement.  In addition, Contractor agrees to the following goals:

1. The operation period of the grant is July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.

2. Contractor agrees to raise public awareness that selling, serving and/or furnishing alcoholic
beverages to individuals under twenty-one years old is a criminal violation that will be prosecuted by
local city and district attorneys.

3. Minor Decoy operations are designed to educate and deter licensed locations from
selling/furnishing alcohol to minors. Contractor agrees to conduct Minor Decoy Operations at both
“On-Sale” and “Off-Sale” licensed establishments within the operation period of the grant.

4. Shoulder Tap operations are used to detect and deter adult furnishers outside of a licensed
business.  Contractor agrees to conduct Shoulder Tap Operations at “Off-Sale” licensed locations to
apprehend adults that are unaffiliated with the licensed businesses and who are purchasing alcohol
for minors outside of the stores within the operation period of the grant.

5. Informed Merchants Preventing Alcohol-Related Crime Tendencies (IMPACT) primary goal is to
educate licensee’s on alcohol related laws to help reduce alcohol-related crime in and around
licensed premises.  Contractor agrees to conduct visits and inspections of licensed premises
identifying areas of non-compliance at “On-Sale” and “Off-Sale” licensed locations within the
operation period of the grant.

II. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

1. Conduct at least four (4) Minor Decoy operations.

2. Conduct at least five (5) Shoulder Tap operations, including one Statewide operation.

3. Conduct at least four (4) IMPACT operations.

4. Conduct at least six (6) Park enforcement operations.

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 244 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 2 of 2

5. Conduct an annual community presentation at a Neighborhood Watch meeting.

6. Conduct an annual Business Watch presentation focusing on inviting on-site, off-site and non-retail
to attend.

7. Provide at least three (3) press releases on grant enforcement activities.

A. To announce the start of the program;
B. At the conclusion of each Minor Decoy Operation has been held (to announce the

number of licensed premises who sold to the minor decoy)
C. At the conclusion of each Shoulder Tap Operation has been held (to announce the

number of adults arrested for purchasing alcoholic beverages for the decoy).

8. Contractor will fax (916) 419-2599 or email each press release to the Department’s Public
Information Officer (pio@abc.ca.gov) as soon as it is released.

9. Contractor agrees in all press releases, in addition to any credits the agency wishes to give, will
include the following statement: “This project is part of the Department of Alcoholic Beverage
Control’s Alcohol Policing Partnership.”

Contractor agrees to complete and submit monthly reports, on a format designed and provided by the 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control due no later than 15th of the following month.  

III. PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES

The project representatives during the term of this agreement will be:

San Fernando Police Department 
Irwin Rosenberg, Lieutenant 
910 First Street 
San Fernando, CA  91340 
(818) 898-1255
irosenberg@sfcity.org

Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Brandon Shotwell, Supervising Agent in Charge 
3927 Lennane Drive, Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA  95834 
(916) 419-2329
Brandon.shotwell@abc.ca.gov

Direct all fiscal inquiries to: 

San Fernando Police Department 
Sonia Garcia, Interim Director of Finance 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA  91340 
(818) 898-1215
sgarcia@sfcity.org

Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Kristine Okino, Grant Coordinator 
3927 Lennane Drive, Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA  95834 
(916) 419-2572
Kristine.okino@abc.ca.gov

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 245 of 487

mailto:pio@abc.ca.gov
mailto:irosenberg@sfcity.org
mailto:Brandon.shotwell@abc.ca.gov
mailto:sgarcia@sfcity.org
mailto:Kristine.okino@abc.ca.gov


Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 1 of 3

EXHIBIT B 
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

I. INVOICING AND PAYMENT

• For services satisfactorily rendered and upon receipt and approval of the invoice, the Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control agrees to pay a monthly payment of approved reimbursable costs per the
Budget Detail of personnel overtime and benefits (actual cost) and/or allowable costs.

• Invoices shall clearly reference this contract number (22-APP24) and must not exceed the contract total
authorized amount of $72,780.00.  Invoices are to be submitted by the 15th of every month, on the
prescribed form designed by the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control.

Submit to:  Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Attn: Kristine Okino, Grant Coordinator 

 3927 Lennane Drive, Suite 100 
 Sacramento, California 95834 

• Payment shall be made in arrears within 30 days from the receipt of an undisputed invoice.  Nothing
contained herein shall prohibit advance payments as authorized by Item 2100-101-3036, Budget Act,
Statues of 2022.

• Contractor understands in order to be eligible for reimbursement; cost must be incurred on or after the
effective date of the project, July 1, 2022 and on or before the project termination date, June 30, 2023.

• Revisions to the “Scope of Work” and the “Budget Detail” may be requested by a change request letter
submitted by the Contractor.  If approved, the revised Grant Scope of Work and/or Budget Detail
supersedes and replaces the previous grant and will initiate an amendment.  No revisions can exceed
allotted amount as shown on the Budget Detail.  The total amount of the grant must remain unchanged.

• Contractor agrees to refund to the State any amounts claimed for reimbursement and paid to
Contractor which are later disallowed by the State after audit or inspection of records maintained by the
Contractor.

• Only the costs displayed in the Budget Detail are authorized for reimbursement by the State to
Contractor under this agreement.  Any other costs incurred by Contractor in the performance of this
agreement are the sole responsibility of Contractor.

• Title shall be reserved to the State for any State-furnished or State-financed property authorized by the
State which is not fully consumed in the performance of this agreement.  Contractor is responsible for
the care, maintenance, repair, and protection of any such property.  Inventory records shall be
maintained by Contractor and submitted to the State upon request.  All such property shall be returned
to the State upon the expiration of this grant unless the State otherwise directs.

• Prior approval by the State in writing is required for the location, costs, dates, agenda, instructors,
instructional materials, and attendees at any reimbursable training seminar, workshop or conference,
and over any reimbursable publicity or educational materials to be made available for distribution.
Contractor is required to acknowledge the support of the State whenever publicizing the work under this
grant in any media.

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 246 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 2 of 3

II. BUDGET DETAIL

COST CATEGORY TOTAL COST 

A. Personnel Services

Overtime

Lieutenant (94 hours @ $138.42/hour) $13,012.00 

Officers/Detectives (392 hours @ $89.49/hour) $35,080.00 

Desk Officer (78 hours @ $68.63/hour) $5,353.00 

Sergeant (2.5 hours @ $107.04/hour) $268.00 

Benefits (estimated @ .2145) $11,173.00 

TOTAL Personnel $64,886.00 

B. Operating Expenses (receipts required)

n/a $0.00 

TOTAL Operating $0.00 

C. Equipment (receipts required, must be purchased by 12/31)

Camera – Nikon Z50 $1,330.00 

ID Reader – ID Vision Smart Plus ID Scanner (pre-approval req) $1,104.00 

TOTAL Equipment $2,434.00 

D. Travel Costs

Registration, per diem, lodging and travel costs $2,500.00 

TOTAL Travel $2,500.00 

GRANT TOTAL $69,820.00 

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 247 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 3 of 3

III.  BUDGET CONTINGENCY CLAUSE

• It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any subsequent years covered
under this Agreement does not appropriate sufficient funds for the program, this Agreement shall be of
no further force and effect.  In this event, the State shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to
Contractor or to furnish any other considerations under this Agreement and Contractor shall not be
obligated to perform any provisions of this Agreement.

• If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of this program, the
State shall have the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability occurring to the State, or
offer an agreement amendment to Contractor to reflect the reduced amount.

IV. PROMPT PAYMENT CLAUSE

• Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, Government Code Chapter
4.5, commencing with Section 927.

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 248 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 1 of 4

EXHIBIT C 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. APPROVAL: This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and
approved by the Department of General Services, if required. Contractor may not
commence performance until such approval has been obtained.

2. AMENDMENT: No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid
unless made in writing, signed by the parties and approved as required. No oral
understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is binding on any of the
parties.

3. ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor, either in whole
or in part, without the consent of the State in the form of a formal written amendment.

4. AUDIT: Contractor agrees that the awarding department, the Department of General
Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right
to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the
performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible
audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of records
retention is stipulated. Contractor agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records
during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees who might
reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a
similar right of the State to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to
performance of this Agreement. (Gov. Code §8546.7, Pub. Contract Code §10115 et seq., CCR
Title 2, Section 1896).

5. INDEMNIFICATION: Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless the State,
its officers, agents and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting
to any and all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person, firm or
corporation furnishing or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection with
the performance of this Agreement, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or
resulting to any person, firm or corporation who may be injured or damaged by Contractor in
the performance of this Agreement.

6. DISPUTES: Contractor shall continue with the responsibilities under this
Agreement during any dispute.

7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: The State may terminate this Agreement and be relieved
of any payments should the Contractor fail to perform the requirements of this Agreement
at the time and in the manner herein provided. In the event of such termination the State
may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the State. All costs to the
State shall be deducted from any sum due the Contractor under this Agreement and the
balance, if any, shall be paid to the Contractor upon demand.

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Contractor, and the agents and employees of
Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity
and not as officers or employees or agents of the State.

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 249 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 2 of 4

9. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION: The Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of
perjury, the minimum, if not exact, percentage of post-consumer material as defined in the
Public Contract Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or
sold to the State regardless of whether the product meets the requirements of Public
Contract Code Section 12209. With respect to printer or duplication cartridges that comply
with the requirements of Section 12156(e), the certification required by this subdivision shall
specify that the cartridges so comply (Pub. Contract Code §12205).

10. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE: During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor
and its subcontractors shall not deny the contract’s benefits to any person on the basis of
race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability,
medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender
expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and veteran status, nor shall they discriminate
unlawfully against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religious
creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition,
genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age,
sexual orientation, or military and veteran status. Contractor shall insure that the evaluation
and treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination.
Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and
Housing Act (Gov. Code §12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 2, §11000 et seq.), the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division
3, Title 2 of the Government Code (Gov. Code §§11135-11139.5), and the regulations or
standards adopted by the awarding state agency to implement such article. Contractor shall
permit access by representatives of the Department of Fair Employment and Housing and
the awarding state agency upon reasonable notice at any time during the normal business
hours, but in no case less than 24 hours’ notice, to such of its books, records, accounts, and
all other sources of information and its facilities as said Department or Agency shall require
to ascertain compliance with this clause. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written
notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a
collective bargaining or other agreement. (See Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2,§11105.)

Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause
in all subcontracts to perform work under the Agreement.

11. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES: The CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES
contained in the document CCC 04/2017 are hereby incorporated by reference and
made a part of this Agreement by this reference as if attached hereto.

12. TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

13. COMPENSATION: The consideration to be paid Contractor, as provided herein, shall be
in compensation for all of Contractor's expenses incurred in the performance hereof,
including travel, per diem, and taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.

14. GOVERNING LAW: This contract is governed by and shall be interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of California.

15. ANTITRUST CLAIMS: The Contractor by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if
these services or goods are obtained by means of a competitive bid, the Contractor shall
comply with the requirements of the Government Codes Sections set out below.

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 250 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 3 of 4

a. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following definitions:

1) "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of goods,
services, or materials by the State or any of its political subdivisions or public
agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General may bring an action pursuant to
subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and Professions Code.

2) "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency
making a public purchase. Government Code Section 4550.

b. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if
the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest
in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15
U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section
16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from
purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing
body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at
the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder. Government Code
Section 4552.

c. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or
settlement, a monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter,
the assignor shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred
and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion of the recovery,
including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor
but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses
incurred in obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government Code Section 4553.

d. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such
demand, reassign the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has
been or may have been injured by the violation of law for which the cause of action
arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee declines
to file a court action for the cause of action. See Government Code Section 4554.

16. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT: For any Agreement in excess of $100,000, the
contractor acknowledges in accordance with Public Contract Code 7110, that:

a. The contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations
and shall fully comply with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child and
family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, disclosure of information
and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8
(commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family Code; and

b. The contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings
assignment orders of all employees and is providing the names of all new
employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the California Employment
Development Department.

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 251 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 4 of 4

17. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION: In the event that any provision of this Agreement is
unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree that all other provisions
of this Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby.

18. PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS: If this Contract includes services in excess of
$200,000, the Contractor shall give priority consideration in filling vacancies in positions
funded by the Contract to qualified recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code
Section 11200 in accordance with Pub. Contract Code §10353.

19. SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION AND DVBE PARTICIPATION
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:

a. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve small business
participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of receiving final payment under
this Contract (or within such other time period as may be specified elsewhere in this
Contract) report to the awarding department the actual percentage of small business
participation that was achieved. (Govt. Code § 14841.)

b. If for this Contract Contractor made a commitment to achieve disabled veteran
business enterprise (DVBE) participation, then Contractor must within 60 days of
receiving final payment under this Contract (or within such other time period as may
be specified elsewhere in this Contract) certify in a report to the awarding
department: (1) the total amount the prime Contractor received under the Contract;
(2) the name and address of the DVBE(s) that participated in the performance of the
Contract; (3) the amount each DVBE received from the prime Contractor; (4) that all
payments under the Contract have been made to the DVBE; and (5) the actual
percentage of DVBE participation that was achieved. A person or entity that
knowingly provides false information shall be subject to a civil penalty for each
violation. (Mil. & Vets. Code § 999.5(d); Govt. Code § 14841.)

20. LOSS LEADER: If this contract involves the furnishing of equipment, materials, or supplies
then the following statement is incorporated: It is unlawful for any person engaged in business
within this state to sell or use any article or product as a “loss leader” as defined in Section
17030 of the Business and Professions Code. (PCC 10344(e).)

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 252 of 487



Agreement Number: 22-APP24 
City of San Fernando through the San Fernando Police Department 

Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT D 
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Disputes:  Any disputes concerning a question of fact arising under this contract which is not
disposed of by agreement shall be decided by the Director, Department of Alcoholic Beverage
Control, or designee, who shall reduce his decision in writing and mail or otherwise furnish a
copy thereof to the Contractor.  The decision of the Department shall be final and conclusive
unless, within 30 days from the date of receipt of such copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise
furnishes to the State a written appeal addressed to the Director of the Department of Alcoholic
Beverage Control.  The decision of the Director of Alcoholic Beverage Control or his duly
authorized representative for the determination of such appeals shall be final and conclusive
unless determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been fraudulent, capricious,
arbitrary, or so grossly erroneous as necessarily to imply bad faith, or not supported by
substantial evidence.  In connection with any appeal proceeding under this clause, the
contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its
appeal.  Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, Contractor shall proceed diligently with
the performance of the contract and in accordance with the decision of the State.

2. Cancellation/Termination:  This agreement may be cancelled or terminated without cause by
either party by giving thirty (30) calendar days advance written notice to the other party.  Such
notification shall state the effective date of termination or cancellation and include any final
performance and/or payment/invoicing instructions/requirements.  No penalty shall accrue to
either party because of contract termination.

3. Contract Validity:  This contract is valid and enforceable only if adequate funds are appropriated
in Item 2100-101-3036, Budget Act of 2022, for the purposes of this program.

4. Contractor Certifications:  By signing this agreement, Contractor certifies compliance with the
provisions of CCC 04/2017, Standard Contractor Certification Clauses.  This document may be
viewed at: https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Legal-Services-
Resources-List-Folder/Standard-Contract-Language

5. If the State determines that the grant project is not achieving its goals and objectives on
schedule, funding may be reduced by the State to reflect this lower level of project activity
and/or cancel the agreement.

RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 253 of 487

https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Legal-Services-Resources-List-Folder/Standard-Contract-Language
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Legal-Services-Resources-List-Folder/Standard-Contract-Language


RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 254 of 487



RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 255 of 487



RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 256 of 487



RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 257 of 487



RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 258 of 487



RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 259 of 487



RES. NO. 8186
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 260 of 487



ATTACHMENT “C”  

RESOLUTION NO. 8187 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
ADOPTED ON JUNE 21, 2022 REGARDING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 
CONTROL TO DEVELOP AN ALCOHOL POLICING PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to the 
budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2031, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the revenues 

and expenditures of the current City budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for Fiscal Year beginning  

July 1, 2022 and ending July 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk’s Office, was 
adopted on June 21, 2022. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 

RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The following adjustments are made to the City Budget: 
 
DEPARTMENT OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL (ABC) ALCOHOL POLICING 
PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 22-APP24 
 
Increase in Revenues    $69,820 
Account No. 110-3696-3713  
 
Increase in Expenditures   $69,820 
Account No. 110-225-3696-4105  64,886 
Account No. 110-225-3696-4300    2,434 
Account No. 110-225-3696-4360    2,500 

   
SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 

a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 17th day of October, 2022. 
 

 
              
  Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San 
  Fernando, California 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 261 of 487



RES. NO. 8187 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8187 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
17th day of October, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of October, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 262 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 263 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 264 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

POLICE DEPARTMENT                 910 FIRST STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1250                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Fabian Valdez, Police Chief  
  CJ Chiasson, Police Sergeant 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Accept the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services High 

Frequency Communications Equipment Grant 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) High Frequency 

Communications Equipment Grant FH21 01 1410 (Attachment “A”), in the amount of 
$59,968, to reimburse equipment and overtime associated with the grant; 

 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 8185 (Attachment “B”) amending the budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

to appropriate the grant revenues and expenses; and 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute all related document; and 
 

d. Authorize the Police Chief to expend the funds as detailed in the CalOES High Frequency 
Communications Grant. 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 

1. The CalOES’s mission is to protect lives and property, build capabilities, and support our 
communities for a resilient California. 
 

2. CalOES supports local jurisdictions and communities through planning and preparedness 
activities, training, and facilitating the immediate response to an emergency through the 
longer-term recovery phase. During this process, CalOES serves as the State’s overall 
coordinator and agent to secure federal government resources through the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 265 of 487



Consideration to Accept the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services High Frequency Communications 
Equipment Grant 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
3. The purpose of the High Frequency Communications Equipment Program is to provide 

funding to Alerting Authorities, Emergency Operation Centers (EOC) or County Sheriff’s 
Offices, for equipment that will allow local governments to be included in an integrated high 
frequency radio network service that utilizes frequencies authorized by the Federal 
Communications Commission and intended to be capable of communications with state, 
local, and federal agencies. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 

The Police Department’s main objective during emergencies and natural disasters is to protect 
life and property.  One way that this is accomplished is by coordinating resources, equipment, 
and services to our community from the County, State, and Federal Governments.  During these 
critical incidents, timely, accurate, and mission-necessary communications are vital to this 
objective. 
 
The City faces many unique challenges from a disaster preparedness standpoint.  Many of these 
have been laid out in the City’s 2020 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan.  These include the fact that 
San Fernando is near an earthquake fault, is in a flood plain, has a company that handles 
radiological materials, has frequent high winds and power outages, and is susceptible to wildfires.  
All of these vulnerabilities mean that the City’s ability to communicate in a disaster is critical to 
the safety of the community and City employees. 
 
With this grant, the Police Department would have the capability of communicating with partners 
across the County, State, and Federal Governments even if the City’s infrastructure was disabled.  
High frequency communications does not rely on modern terrestrial means of communications 
and can reach far distances through radio waves to its intended recipient.  This particular system 
is also capable of encrypted digital communications to ensure that the voice messages 
transmitted are secure when relaying mission-critical information. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

The CalOES High Frequency Communications Equipment Grant from the State of California is in 
the form of a reimbursable grant and required the Police Department to enter into an agreement 
with CalOES to administer the grant.  The grant is in the amount of $59,968 and the proposed 
Budget Resolution will appropriate the full grant amount in Fiscal Year 2022-2023. 
 
 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 266 of 487



Consideration to Accept the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services High Frequency Communications 
Equipment Grant 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the acceptance of the CalOES High Frequency 
Communications Equipment Grant FH21 01 1410 in the amount of $59,968.00 and approve a 
resolution amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. High Frequency Communications Equipment Grant FH21 01 1410  
B. Budget Resolution No. 8185 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 267 of 487



Notification of Grant Subaward Application Approval
High Frequency Communications Equipment Program
Grant Subaward #:  FH21 01 1410

Dear Lt. Irwin Rosenberg:

Irwin Rosenberg, Lieutenant 
San Fernando, City of
910 First Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340-2992 

Subject:

May 27, 2022 

 3650 SCHRIEVER AVENUE  l  MATHER, CALIFORNIA 95655
www.CalOES.ca.gov

GAVIN NEWSOM
GOVERNOR

MARK S. GHILARDUCCI
DIRECTOR 

Congratulations! The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) has
approved your Grant Subaward application in the amount of $59,968, subject to Budget
approval. A copy of your approved Grant Subaward is enclosed for your records.

Cal OES will make every effort to process payment requests within 45 days of receipt of
your Report of Expenditures & Request for Funds (Cal OES Form 2-201).

This Grant Subaward is subject to the Cal OES Subrecipient Handbook. You are
encouraged to read and familiarize yourself with the Cal OES Subrecipient Handbook,
which can be viewed on the Cal OES website at www.caloes.ca.gov.

Any funds received in excess of current needs, approved amounts, or those funds  owed
as a result of a close-out or audit, must be refunded to Cal OES  within 30 days upon
receipt of an invoice.

Please contact your Program Specialist, Nicolas Martin, at (916) 539-3501 with questions
about this notice.

VS Grants Processing Unit

cc:  Subrecipient's file
        Program Specialist

ATTACHMENT "A"

CalOES 
OOVERNOR' S OFFICE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVI CES 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 268 of 487



2021
NM

4/1/2022 10/31/2023
NM

$59,968

$59,968

$59,968

$59,968 $59,968NM

ENY: 2021-22              Chapter: 21             SL: 01765
Item: 0690-001-0001                                   Pgm: 0395
Fund: General Fund
Program: High Frequency Communications 
Equipment Program
Match Req.: None
Project ID: OES21PSC1000000       Amount: $59,968.00 
SC: 2021-01765

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FD00A2-91E9-4995-A470-DE1E6833CF66

5/23/20225/23/2022

5/23/2022 5/23/2022

(Cal OES Use Only) 

Cal OES # 1037-66140-04 FIPS# 1 □ 37-66140 I VS# Subaward# IFH21 011410 

CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 
GRANT SUBAWARD FACE SHEET 

The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) hereby makes a Grant Subaward of funds to the following: 

1. Subrecipient: City of San Fernando 1 a. DUNS#: .§0!!:!!0 !!1?~1~8(l~£L___::J~ / _ _ ___ _ _ 

2. Implementing Agency: San Fernando Police Department 2a. DUNS#: -=-8=:!0"""l?'-'1-=-(l=iiJ!i'---J_ / _ ____ _ 

3. Implementing Agency Address: 910 First Street 
(Slreel) 

4. Location of Project: 910 First Street 
(City) 

5. Disaster /Program Title: FH - High Frequency Communications Equipment Program 

San Fernando 
(Cily) 

Los Angeles 
(County) 

6. Performance/ ~ l 
Budget Period: -----:c15~10-rl~.=0=0~10- 1,---

to 

91340-2992 
(Zip+4) 

9 1340-2992 
(Zip+4I 

~ 
(End Daiei 

7. Indirect Cost Rate: N/A Federally Approved ICR (if applicable): ______ % 

Item Grant Fund A. State B. Federal C. Total D. Cash Match E. In-Kind Match F. Total Match G. Total Cost 
Number Year Source 

8. ~ PSC l ~ ~ 

9. Select Select 

10. Select Select 

11. Select Select 

12. Select Select 

Total Project Cost ~ ~ ~ 

I 3. Certification - This Grant Subaward consists o f this title page, the app lic ation for the grant, whic h is attached and made a part hereof, and the 

Assurances/Certifications. I hereby certify I am vested with the authority to enter into this Grant Subaward, and have the approval of the City /County Financial 

Officer, City Manager, County Administrator, Governing Board Chair, or other Approving Body. The Subrecipient c ertifies that a ll funds received p ursuant to this 

agreement will be spent exclusively on the purposes specified in the Grant Subaward. The Subrecipient acc epts this Grant Subaward and agrees to administer the 

grant projec t in accordance with the Grant Subaward as w ell as a ll app lic able state and federal laws, audit requirements, federal program guidelines, and Cal 

OES policy and program guidance. The Subrecipient further agrees that the allocation of funds may be contingent on the enactment of the State Budget. 

14. CA Public Records Act - Grant applications are subject to the California Public Records Act, Government Code section 6250 et seq. Do no t put any personally 

identifiable information or priva te information on this application. If you be lieve that any of the information you are putting on this application is exempt from the 

Public Records Act, p lease attach a statement that indicates w hat portions of the application and the basis for the exemption. Your statement tha t the information 

is not subject to the Public Records Act will not guarantee tha t the information will not be disclosed. 

15. Official Authorized to Sign for Subrecipient: 

Name: Fabian Valdez 

Payment Mailing Address: 117 Macneil Street 

Signa ture : ? tS:: 
16.Federal Employer ID Number: 

Tille: Chief of Police 

City: San Fernando Zip Code+4: 9 l 340-2992 

Date: 2 · 2- l · 2 t1 z. ..__ 

956000779 

(FOR Cal OES USE ONLY) 

I hereby c ertify upon my personal knowledge that budgeted funds are a vailable for the period and purposes of this expenditure stated above. ~::g~ ~-hbWsb~ 
(Cal ob:::fu~AJJ~~~J8485 (Date) -(C- a-1l~t-::-'~~=-~f;lil~§=~-!':~6l!' ... ~~~lf;I~ ... ~ne~e~)~----- ----(--D-at,....e.,..) --

RECEIVED 
By Al Hardoy at 9:07 am, Mar 30, 2022 

mail log: 753520 

Grant Subaward Face Sheet Cal OES 2-101 (Revised 1 /2022) ~ 

✓ 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 269 of 487



CalOES 
GOVERNOR 'S OFFICE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Grant Subaward # : 

Grant Subaward Contact Information 

FH21 011410 

Subrecipient: City of San Fernando 

1 . Grant Subaward Director: 
Name: Irwin Rosenberg Title: _L_ie_u_t_en_a_n_t ________ _ _ 

Telephone# : 818-898-1255 Email Address: irosenberg@sfcity.org 

Address/City/ Zip Code (9-digit) : 910 First St. , San Fernando, CA 91340-2992 

2. Financial Officer: 
Name: Sonia Garcia Title: Finance Director --------------
Te I e phone#: 818-898-1215 Email Address: _s__,.g'-a_rc_i_a_@_sf_c_it.,_y._o_,,rg"----- ----

Address/City / Zip Code (9-digit) : 117 Macneil St., San Fernando, CA 91340-2992 

3. Programmatic Point of Contact: 
Name: CJ Chiasson Title: Sergeant ----=--------------
Telephone# : 818-282-8216 Email Address: cjchiasson@sfcity.org 

Address/City/ Zip Code (9-digit) : 910 First St., San Fernando, CA 91340-2992 

4. Financial Point of Contact: 
Name: Sonia Garcia Title: Finance Director ---------------
Telephone#: 818-898-1215 Email Address: _s_,_g,__a_rc_i_a_@_sf_c_ity.,_._o_,,rg"---------

Address/City/ Zip Code (9-digit): 117 Macneil St., San Fernando, CA 91340-2992 

5. Executive Director of a Non-Governmental Organization or the Chief Executive 
Officer (i.e., chief of police, superintendent of schools) of the implementing agency: 
Name: Fabian Valdez Title: Chief of Police ----- ----------
Telephone#: 818-898-1250 Email Address: _f_v_a_ld_e_z_@_s_fc_it....;..y_.o_r-=g _ ______ _ 

Address/City/ Zip Code (9-digit) : 910 First St., San Fernando, CA 91340-2992 

6. Official Designee, as stated in Section 15 of the Grant Subaward Face Sheet: 
Name: Fabian Valdez Title: Chief of Police - -------------
Te I e phone# : 818-898-1250 Email Address: _f_v_a_ld_e_z_@_s_fc_it~y_.o_r-g _______ _ 

Address/City/ Zip Code (9-digit) : 910 First St., San Fernando, CA 91340-2992 

7. Chair of the Governing Body of the Subrecipient: 
Name: Nick Kimball Title: City Manager ----"-------=-----------
Te I e phone#: 818-898-1202 Email Address: nkimball@sfcity.org 

Address/City/ Zip Code (9-digit): 117 Macneil St., San Fernando, CA 91340-2992 

Grant Subaward Contact Information - Cal OES 2-102 (Revised 10/2020) 

✓ 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 270 of 487



CalOES 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 
OFEMERGENCYSER~CES 

Grant Subaward Signature Authorization 

Grant Subaward #: FH21 01 1410 --------------------------
Subrecipient: City of San Fernando 

Implementing Agency: San Fernando Police Department 

The Grant Subaward Director and Financial Officer are REQUIRED to sign this form. 

Grant Subaward Director: 

Date: l -Z1v\ 1--i.,.,---- -----~-------

The following persons are authorized to 
sign for the Grant Subaward Director: 

:i:n~::~ ......... ------
Signature: ___________ _ 

Printed Name: ----------

Signature: ___________ _ 

Printed Name: - - --------

Signature: ___________ _ 

Printed Name: 

Signature: ___________ _ 

Printed Name: --- -------

Financial Officer: 

Printed Name: Sonia Garcia ----------
Signature: 

Date: _ ___ :t-1-} Z_~_1 ·i_v ___ _ 

The following persons are authorized to 
sign for the Financial Officer: 

Signature: 

Printed Name: Sylvia Ortega ----------

Signature: __________ _ _ 

Printed Name: ----------

Signature: ____ _ _ _____ _ 

Printed Name: ----------

Signature: ___________ _ 

Printed Name: _________ _ 

Signature: 

Printed Name: _________ _ 

Grant Subaward Signature Authorization - Cal OES 2-103 (Revised l 0/2020) 

✓ 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 271 of 487



CalOES 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Grant Subaward Certification of Assurance of Compliance 
Information and Instructions 

The Certification of Assurance of Compliance is a binding affirmation that the 
Subrecipient will comply with the requirements and restrictions outlined in the 
Subrecipient Handbook, including but not limited to: 

• Proof of Authority, 

• State and federal civil rights laws, 

• Equal Employment Opportunity, 

• Drug-Free Workplace, 

• California Environmental Quality Act, and 

• Lobbying. 

The Official Designee (see SRH Section 3.030) and the individual granting that authority 
(i.e., City/County Financial Officer, City/County Manager, or Governing Board Chair) 
must sign this form. For State agencies, only the Official Designee must sign this form. 

Complete all sections of this form and then submit: 

• As part of the Grant Subaward Application, 

• With a Grant Subaward Amendment (Cal OES Form 2-213) if a new fund source is 
being added to the Grant Subaward, (applicable Certification of Assurance of 
Compliance would be needed), or 

• With a Grant Subaward Modification (Cal OES Form 2-223) if the Official Designee 
or Board Chair changes and the Resolution identifies them by name 

Grant Subaward Certification of Assurance of Compliance - Cal OES 2-104 (Revised 12/2021) 

✓ 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 272 of 487



Equipment ProgramNM

CalOES 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Grant Subaward Certification of Assurance of Compliance 

Subrecipient: City of San Fernando 

Cal OES Program Name Grant Grant Subaward 
Subaward # : Performance Period 

l High Frequency Communications 04/01/22- 10/31/23 

2 FH21 011410 

3 
4 
5 
6 

I, Fabian Valdez (Official Designee; same person as 

Section 15 of the Grant Subaward Face Sheet) hereby certify that the above 

Subrecipient is responsible for reviewing the Subrecipient Handbook (SRH) and 

adhering to all of the Grant Subaward requirements as directed by Cal OES including, 

but not limited to, the following areas: 

I. Proof of Authority- SRH 1.055 
The Subrecipient certifies they have written authority by the governing board (e.g., 

County Board of Supervisors, City Council, or Governing Board) granting authority 

for the Subrecipient/Official Designee (see Section 3.030) to enter into a specific 

Grant Subaward (indicated by the Cal OES Program name and initial Grant 

Subaward performance period) and applicable Grant Subaward Amendments 

with Cal OES. The authorization includes naming of an Official Designee (e.g., 

Executive Director, District Attorney, Police Chief) for the agency/organization who 

is granted permission to sign Grant Subaward documents on behalf of the 

Subrecipient. Written proof of authority includes one of the following: signed Board 

Resolution or approved Board Meeting minutes. 

II. Civil Rights Compliance - SRH Section 2.020 
The Subrecipient acknowledges awareness of, and the responsibility to comply with 

all state and federal civil rights laws. The Subrecipient certifies it will not discriminate 

in the delivery of services or benefits based on any protected class and will comply 

with all requirements of this section of the SRH. 

Ill. Equal Employment Opportunity - SRH Section 2.025 
The Subrecipient certifies it will promote Equal Employment Opportunity by 

prohibiting discrimination or harassment in employment because of any status 

protected by state or federal law and will comply with all requirements of this 

section of the SRH. 

Grant Subaward Certification of Assurance of Compliance - Cal OES 2-104 (Revised 12/2021) 

✓ 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 273 of 487



CalOES 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

IV. Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 - SRH Section 2.030 
The Subrecipient certifies it will comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 
and all other requirements of this section of the SRH. 

V. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) - SRH Section 2.035 
The Subrecipient certifies that, if the activities of the Grant Subaward meet the 
definition of a "project" pursuant to the CEQA, Section 20165, it will comply with 
all requirements ofCEQA and this section of the SRH. 

VI. Lobbying - SRH Sections 2.040 and 4.105 
The Subrecipient certifies it will not use Grant Subaward funds, property, or funded 
positions for any lobbying activities and will comply with all requirements of this 
section of the SRH. 

All appropriate documentation must be maintained on file by the Subrecipient and 
available for Cal OES upon request. Failure to comply with these requirements may 
result in suspension of payments under the Grant Subaward(s), termination of the 
Grant Subaward(s), and/or ineligibility for future Grant Subawards if Cal OES 
determines that any of the following has occurred: (1) the Subrecipient has made 
false certification, or (2) the Subrecipient violated the certification by failing to carry 
out the requirements as noted above. 

CERTIFICATION 
I, the official named below, am the same individual authorized to sign the Grant 
Subaward [Section 15 on Grant Subaward Face Sheet], and hereby affirm that I 
am duly authorized legally to bind the Subrecipient to the above-described 
certification. I am fully aware that this certification, executed on the date, is made 
under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California. 

Official Designee's Signature: ~ -
Official Designee's Typed Name: Fob! n Valdez 

Official Designee's Title: Chief of Polic e 

Date Executed: Z. 2 2,. ?oZ-'t. 

AUTHORIZED BY: 
I grant authority for the Subrecipient/Official Designee to enter into the specific 
Grant Subaward(s) (indicated by the Cal OES Program name and initial Grant 
Subaward performance period identified above) and applicable Grant Subaward 
Amendments with Cal OES. 

□ City Financial Officer □ County Financial Officer 

[Z] City Manager □ County Manager 

. D Governing Bx;'.~hair,e t 
Signature: A 
Typed Name: Ni& Kimball , V' ' 

Title: City Manager 1 I 

Date Executed: ~;J./ Xl~JJ , 
Grant Subaward Certification of Assurance of Compliance - Cal OES 2-l 04 (Revised 12/2021) 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 274 of 487



CalOES 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Grant Subaward Budget Pages 
Single Fund Source 

Subrecipient: City of San Fernando IGrant Subaward #: FH21 011410 

A. Personnel Costs - Line-item description and calculation 

Sergeant Chiasson x 40 hours of training and installation x $124.99 per 

PERSONNEL COSTS CATEGOTY TOTAL 

Total Amount 
Allocated 

$5,000 

$5,000 ✓ 

Grant Subaward Budget Pages Single Fund Source - Cal OES 2-106b (Revised l 0/2020) 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 275 of 487



$1,700NM

NM Type text here

CalOES 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Grant Subaward Budget Pages 
Single Fund Source 

Subrecipient: City of San Fernando !Grant Subaward #: FH21 01 1410 

B. Operating Costs - Line-item description and calculation Total Amount Allocated 

Sile I: ,,13cctie1, a, ,d li, ei, :i, :~ e, ► P:'16 Gonillifiluniss*ii'inc, 1.1.C 

Installation costs and modification to the building for new radio system 

OPERATING COSTS CATEGORY TOTAL 

Grant Subaward Budget Pages Single Fund Source - Cal OES 2-106b (Revised 10/2020) 

$i s,?e9 

$1,700 

..... ,. I -- L / 
T --,--- iv 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 276 of 487



($650)

($25,125) NM

NM
NMTraining HF Installation Site Visit and Training for Voice/Data and Remote ($13,950)

$39,725

$53,268NM

CalOES 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 
OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

Grant Subaward Budget Pages 
Single Fund Source 

Subrecipient: City of San Fernando Grant Subaward #: FH21 01 1410 

C. Equipment Costs - Line-item description and calculation Total Amount Allocated 

NASPO 3G Envoy HF Base Station package 

NASPO 3G Envoy FL YK-125-SMART Transportable package 

Shipping Cost for Equipment 

EQUIPMENT COSTS CATEGORY TOTAL 

Total Project Cost (Must match the Grant Subaward Face Sheet) 

Grant Subaward Budget Pages Single Fund Source - Cal OES 2-106b (Revised l 0/2020) 

$13,543 

$25,125 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 277 of 487



VSPS Budget Summary Report

05/27/22
   F/S/L (Funding Types):  F=Federal, S=State, L=Local Match
   Paid/Expended=posted in ledger w/Claim Schedule, Pending=Processed, but not yet in Claim Schedule

Total Local Match:  0

F/S/L

F/S/L

F/S/L

Funding Source

Funding Source

Funding Source

 0

Budget Amount

Budget Amount

Budget Amount

Paid/Expended

Paid/Expended

Paid/Expended

A.  Personal Services - Salaries/Employee Benefits

B. Operating Expenses

C. Equipment

Balance

Balance

Balance

 0

21PSC1

21PSC1

21PSC1

S

S

S

 0

 0

 0

 5,000

 1,700

 53,268

 5,000

 1,700

 53,268

High Frequency Communications Equipment Program
San Fernando, City of
FH21   High Frequency Communications Equipment Program

Total Funded:

Total Project Cost:

 0 59,968  59,968

 0 59,968  59,968

Budget Amount Paid/Expended Balance

 0

 0

 0

 5,000

 1,700

 53,268

 5,000

 1,700

 53,268

Total A.  Personal Services - Salaries/Employee Benefits:

Total B. Operating Expenses:

Total C. Equipment:

Pending

Pending

Pending

Pending Balance

Pending Balance

Pending Balance

 0

 0

 0

 5,000

 1,700

 53,268

 0

 0

 0

 5,000

 1,700

 53,268

 0  0

 0  59,968

 0  59,968

Pending Pending Balance

Performance Period: 04/01/22 - 10/31/23

blank filler

blank filler

blank filler

Subaward #: FH21 01 1410

Latest Request: , Not Final 201

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 278 of 487



ATTACHMENT “B”  

RESOLUTION NO. 8185 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
ADOPTED ON JUNE 21, 2022 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to the 
budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the revenues 
and expenditures of the current City budget; and 

WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for Fiscal Year beginning  
July 1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk’s Office, was 
adopted on June 21, 2021. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The following adjustments are made to the City Budget: 

ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FOR GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES (CalOES) 
HIGH FREQUENCY COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT GRANT FH 21 01 1410 

Increase in Revenues    $59,968 
Account No. 110-3696-3663  
 
Increase in Expenditures   $59,968 
Account No. 110-220-3663-4100       5,000 
Account No. 110-220-3663-4300       1,700 
Account No. 110-220-3663-4500     53,268 

 
SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 

a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 17th day of October, 2022. 
 
 

              
Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San 
Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 279 of 487



RES. NO. 8185 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, Julia Fritz, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
is a full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8185 which was regularly introduced and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof 
held on the 17th day of October, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of October, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 280 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 281 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 282 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Award a Construction Contract for the Pedestrian Fencing 

Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project, Project No. 7618, Plan No. P-740 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Accept the lowest responsible bid in the amount of $134,120 from CT&T Concrete Paving, 

Inc., for construction of these improvements; 
 

b. Approve a construction contract with CT&T Concrete Paving, Inc. (Attachment “A” – Contract 
No. 2120) for an amount not-to-exceed $134,120; and 

 
c. Authorize the City Manager to execute change orders for an amount not-to-exceed 10% of 

the contract amount, or $13,412, to cover costs of unforeseen conditions and execute all 
related documents. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. In December 2018, the City of San Fernando submitted a City Service Request to Los Angeles 

County Public Works (LACPW) to evaluate the feasibility of enhancing the existing barriers on 
the Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge to improve pedestrian safety. 
 

2. On March 4, 2019, the City Council received and filed Project Feasibility Study for Pedestrian 
Fencing at Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge over Pacoima Creek Final Report. 

 
3. On July 3, 2019, the City of San Fernando submitted a City Service Request to LACPW for the 

design of safety improvements identified in the feasibility study, which they provided to the 
City in 2020. 

 
4. On March 22, 2022, a Notice to Proceed was issued to Willdan Engineering to provide 

construction administrative services and professional engineering services to assist the City 
with the completion of plans and preparation of specifications and estimate (PS&E), 
construction administration, inspection, and labor compliance.   

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 283 of 487



Consideration to Award Construction Contract for the Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge 
Project, Project No. 7618, Plan No. P-740  
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
5. On August 15, 2022, the City Council authorized the formal solicitation of bids for the 

Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project to be advertised and publicly noticed. 
 

6. On September 14, 2022, two bids were received and opened by the City Clerk. 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Following a tragic accident in the Pacoima Wash, the City determined that improvements should 
be made to increase the level of safety for pedestrians walking along the Glenoaks Boulevard 
Bridge. 
 
The Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project will consist of construction of a  
six-foot high pedestrian chain link fence on the north and south side of the Glenoaks Boulevard 
Bridge over the Pacoima Wash Channel, including removal of three palm trees, construction of 
additional chain link fence, preparation and painting of existing bridge railing, and traffic control. 
 
Bid Analysis. 
Staff analyzed the two bids received and determined that CT&T Concrete Paving, Inc., met all the 
requirements for the bid submittal. The table below summarizes the bids received: 
 

RANK BIDDER BID AMOUNT 

1 CT&T Concrete Paving, Inc. $134,120.00 

2 United Construction & Landscape, Inc. $224,110.00 
 
Project Schedule. 
The project is expected to begin in November 2022 and completion is anticipated by December 
2022. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The total funds available for the project, which would need to cover the engineering design, 
preparation of bid package, project management, inspection services, and construction, is 
$219,345 ($171,497 SB 1 and $47,848 Measure R).  The original engineer’s estimate for 
construction provided by the Los Angeles County Department of Public Works was $90,000.  The 
City’s contract engineer revised the engineer’s estimate for construction to $145,000. Though 
the actual cost for construction of $134,120 came in lower than the engineer’s estimate.     
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 284 of 487



Consideration to Award Construction Contract for the Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge 
Project, Project No. 7618, Plan No. P-740  
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

SOURCES 
Fund  Account Number Allocation 
SB 1 025-3623-0000 $ 171,497 
Measure R 012-3210-0000 $ 47,848 
Total Sources:  $ 219,345 

 
USES 
Activity Account Number Cost 
Design/Construction Management/Inspection 012/025-311-0565-4600 $ 71,813 
Construction  012/025-311-0565/0000-

4600 
$ 134,120 

Contingency  025-311-0565-4600 $ 13,412 
Total Uses:  $ 219,345 

 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve Contract No. 2120 and authorize the City 
Manager to execute the agreement and all recommended actions necessary to successfully 
execute the project. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Contract No. 2120 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 285 of 487



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2120 

 
 

 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT/AGREEMENT 

 
CT&T CONCRETE PAVING, INC. 

Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project 
Project No. 7618, Plan No. P-740 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 17th day of October, 2022, by and between CITY 
OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as 
“CITY” and CT&T CONCRETE PAVING, INC., hereinafter, “CONTRACTOR.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

That the CITY and the CONTRACTOR, for the consideration hereinafter named, mutually agree 
as follows: 
 
 
 1. The complete contract consists of the Contract Documents which includes all of the 
following documents incorporated herein by this reference: Approved Pedestrian Fencing 
Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project, Plans (Plan No. P-740) and Specifications (Project No. 7618), 
Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Contractor’s Proposal, Contract/Agreement, Special 
Provisions, Technical Provisions, and all modifications and amendments thereto. 
 
 2. CONTRACTOR shall perform everything required to be performed, shall provide and 
furnish all the labor, materials, necessary tools, expendable equipment, and all utility and 
transportation services required for the following work of improvement: Pedestrian Fencing 
Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project, Plans (Plan No. P-740) and Specifications (Project No. 7618) 
(the “Work of Improvement”) all in accordance with the Contract Documents and Contractor’s 
Proposal dated September 13, 2022. 
 

CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all the work and furnish all the materials at his own cost 
and expense necessary to construct and complete in a good and workman-like manner and to 
the satisfaction of the City Engineer of the CITY, the Work of Improvement in accordance with 
the plans, specifications, and Contract Documents (the “Specifications”) therefore prepared by 
City’s Engineering Department and adopted by the City Council. 
 

 3. CITY agrees to pay and CONTRACTOR agrees to accept in full payment for this Work of 
Improvement the stipulated sum of One Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand, One Hundred and 
Twenty Dollars ($134,120). 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 286 of 487



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT/AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2120 
Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project 
Project No. 7618 and Plan No. P-740 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

CITY agrees to make monthly payments and final payment in accordance with the method 
set forth in the Specifications. 

 

 4. CONTRACTOR agrees to commence construction within fifteen (15) days after 
issuance of a Notice To Proceed, and to continue in a diligent and workman-like manner 
without interruption, and to complete the construction thereof within Twenty (20) working days 
from the date the Notice to Proceed is issued. 
 

 5. Time is of essence of this Contract, and it is agreed that it would be impracticable or 
extremely difficult to ascertain the extent of actual loss or damage which the CITY will sustain by 
reason of any delay in the performance of this Agreement. It is, therefore, agreed that 
CONTRACTOR will pay as liquidated damages to the CITY the following sum: Five Hundred Dollars 
($500.00) for each day’s delay beyond the time herein prescribed for finishing work. If liquidated 
damages are not paid, as designated by the CITY, the CITY may deduct the amount thereof from 
any money due or that may become due the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement in addition to 
any other remedy available to CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall not be assessed liquidated damages 
for any delay caused by the failure of a public utility to relocate or remove an existing utility 
required for the performance of this Contract. 
 
 6. The CONTRACTOR will pay, and will require all subcontractors to pay, all employees on 
the work of improvement a salary or wage at least equal to the prevailing salary or wage 
established for such work as set forth in the wage determinations for this work. Travel and 
subsistence pay shall be paid in accordance with Labor Code Section 1773.8. The  CONTRACTOR 
shall forfeit to the CITY, as penalty, Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof 
for each worker paid (either by him or any subcontractors under him) less than the prevailing rate 
described above on the work provided for in this Agreement, all in accordance with Section 1775 
of the Labor Code of the State of California. CONTRACTOR, by executing this Agreement, hereby 
certifies that it shall adopt the current general prevailing Federal and/or State rates of wages 
applicable to the Work of Improvement. 
 
 7. The CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. Failure by the contractor to carry 
out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination 
of this contract, or such other remedy as City deems appropriate. 
 
 8. Attention is directed to Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code, 
which requires a prime CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR to pay any SUBCONTRACTOR not later 
than 10 days of receipt of each progress payment, unless otherwise agreed to in writing. Section 
7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code also contains enforcement actions and 
penalties. These requirements apply to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 287 of 487



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT/AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2120 
Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project 
Project No. 7618 and Plan No. P-740 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
 9. In the performance of this Contract, not more than eight (8) hours shall constitute a 
day's work, and the CONTRACTOR shall not require more than eight (8) hours in a day from any 
person employed by him hereunder, except as provided in the Labor Code of the State of 
California. The CONTRACTOR shall adhere to Article 3, Chapter 1, Part 7 (Sections 1810, et seq.) 
of the Labor Code of the State of California, and it is agreed that the CONTRACTOR shall forfeit 
to the CITY as a penalty the sum of Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each worker employed in the 
execution of this Contract by the CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor for each calendar day 
during which any worker is required or permitted to labor more than eight (8) hours in violation 
of that article. 
 
 10. CONTRACTOR, by executing this Agreement hereby certifies: 
 

“I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which requires every 
employer to be insured against liability for Worker’s Compensation or to undertake 
self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with 
such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Contract.” 

 
 11. CONTRACTOR shall, prior to the execution of this Contract, furnish two bonds 
approved by the CITY, one in the amount of One Hundred Percent (100%) of the Contract price, 
to guarantee the faithful performance of the work, and one in the amount of One Hundred 
Percent (100%) of the Contract price to guarantee payment of all claims for labor and materials 
furnished. This Contract shall not become effective until such bonds are supplied to and approved 
by the CITY. CONTRACTOR shall, prior to the release of the performance and payment bonds or 
the retention payment, furnish a warranty performance and payment bond equal to at least ten 
percent of the final contract price or $1,000, whichever is greater. 
 
 
 

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 288 of 487



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT/AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2120 
Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project 
Project No. 7618 and Plan No. P-740 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said CONTRACTOR and the CITY ADMINISTRATOR and CITY 
CLERK of the CITY have caused the names of said parties to be affixed hereto, each in triplicate, 
the day and year first above written. 
 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 

Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 

Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
      Richard Padilla, City Attorney 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 

 CT&T CONCRETE PAVING, INC. 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
Title: ____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
Title: ____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________________________ 
 
 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 289 of 487



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 290 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 291 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 292 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve an Exchange Agreement and Assignment of Federal 

Surface Transportation Program-Local (STP-L) and Highway Infrastructure 
Program (HIP) Funds for Use on the City’s Sidewalk Repair Program 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council:  
 
a. Approve an Exchange Agreement with Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation 

Authority (LACMTA) (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2119) for an exchange of $256,008 in 
eligible STP-L and HIP funds previously allocated to the City for like total amount of LACMTA 
Local Transportation Funds;  
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8188 (Attachment “B”) amending the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 
adopted budget appropriating the revenues and expenditures for Street Maintenance – 
Capital Projects; and 
 

c. Authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement and all related documents and make 
non-substantive changes, if necessary.  
 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
1. In September 2021, representatives from LACMTA reached out to the City to see if there was 

interest in exchanging Federal STP-L and HIP program funds for LACMTA local funds. The 
benefit to the City for making the exchange is that for a small administrative fee of two 
percent, the City would be able to use the exchanged funds for a variety of street 
improvement projects, including sidewalk repair. 
 

2. On September 6, 2022, the City Council approved the appropriation of $500,000 in American 
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for use in the City’s Sidewalk Repair Program.   
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 293 of 487



Consideration to Approve an Exchange Agreement and Assignment of Federal Surface Transportation 
Program-Local (STP-L) and Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP) Funds for Use on the City’s Sidewalk 
Repair Program 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
3. On October 4, 2022, LACMTA’s legal counsel finalized the Exchange Agreement and staff 

representatives sent the agreement over to City for staff to review and consideration for 
approval by the City Council. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The City periodically receives allocations in certain Federal funding programs to be used for 
eligible federal aid projects. In April 2021, LACMTA’s Board of Directors approved a program for 
cities in Los Angeles County to exchange these federal funds, which includes STP-L and HIP funds, 
for LACMTA local funds. Since the City did not have any eligible federal aid projects for use of the 
funds, staff recognized an opportunity to convert these funds into LACMTA local funds for use on 
street improvements – specifically as a way to start funding a sidewalk repair program. 
 
City Sidewalk Repair Program. 
These LACMTA local funds will be combined with previously appropriated Capital Outlay and 
ARPA funds to begin a sidewalk repair program. Staff is currently assembling a bid package, 
including plans and specifications to begin sidewalk repairs across the City. Focus is being put on 
areas with sidewalks that have significant stress and damage as identified through service 
requests from residents and businesses, as well as inspections of sidewalks by City staff. It is 
anticipated that at the November 7, 2022 City Council meeting, staff will be requesting 
authorization to release a request for bids to all interested contractors. Staff will then return at 
the first meeting in January 2023 with a contract to begin the sidewalk repair work in the City. 
 
Agreement Details. 
LACMTA will charge a two percent administration fee of $5,121 for facilitating the exchange of 
the federal funds. After the administration fee has been deducted, the City will receive a total of 
$250,887 in LACMTA local funds for use on the sidewalk repair program.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
City Council had previously approved $100,000 in Capital Outlay funds for use on Sidewalk 
Repairs as part of the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget. These funds when added to 
the ARPA allocation from September 2022 and this exchange agreement bring the total available 
for the City’s Sidewalk Repair Program to $850,887, which staff will use to fund a contract for 
sidewalk repairs to begin in January 2023.  
 
 
   
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 294 of 487



Consideration to Approve an Exchange Agreement and Assignment of Federal Surface Transportation 
Program-Local (STP-L) and Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP) Funds for Use on the City’s Sidewalk 
Repair Program 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
SOURCES 
Fund  Account Number Allocation 
LACMTA Local Fund Exchange (STP-L) 022-3664-0000 $ 140,133 
LACMTA Local Fund Exchange (HIP) 022-3932-0000 $ 115,875 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 121-3668-3689 $ 500,000 
Capital Outlay Fund  032-3970-0000 $    100,000 
Total Sources:  $ 850,887 

 
USES 
Activity Account Number Cost 
Design 032-311-0000-4600 $ 25,000 
Construction Management/Reporting 032-311-0000-4600 $ 25,000 

Construction 
032-311-0000-4600 
022-311-0866-4600 
121-311-3689-4600 

$ 800,887 

Total Uses:  $ 850,887 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve Contract No. 2119, authorize the City Manager 
to execute the contract, and adopt Resolution No. 8188 amending the FY 2022-2023 adopted 
budget appropriating the revenues and expenditures for Street Maintenance – Capital Projects.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Contract No. 2119, including: 

Exhibit A: Automated Clearing House (ACH) Payment Authorization 
Exhibit B: Statement of Work 

B. Resolution No. 8188 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 295 of 487



Agreement Number 9200000000HIP2126 

1 

EXCHANGE AGREEMENT AND ASSIGNMENT OF FEDERAL SURFACE 

TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM-LOCAL AND HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE 

PROGRAMS FUNDS 

This Exchange Agreement and Assignment of Federal Surface Transportation Program-Local and 

Highway Infrastructure Programs Funds ("AGREEMENT"), is made and entered into as of   

July 1, 2022, by and between the City of San Fernando ("CITY") and the Los Angeles County 

Metropolitan Transportation Authority ("LACMTA").  

RECITALS: 

CITY is eligible for and has available Federal Surface Transportation Program-Local ("STP-L 

Funds") and Highway Infrastructure Programs funds ("HIP Funds"). 

A. CITY desires to exchange $140,133 of CITY's STP-L Funds ("STP-L Funds Balance") and

its total allocation of $115,875 of CITY's HIP Funds ("HIP Funds Balance") that LACMTA

approved on April 22, 2021 for a like total amount of $256,008 of LACMTA Local

Transportation Funds ("LACMTA Funds").

B. LACMTA is willing to exchange $256,008 in LACMTA Funds for a like total amount of

CITY's STP-L Funds and CITY's HIP Funds subject to the terms and conditions contained

herein.

C. An exchange of CITY's STP-L Funds and CITY's HIP Funds with LACMTA Funds is

beneficial to and in the general interest of CITY and LACMTA.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived by CITY and 

LACMTA, and of the promises contained herein, it is hereby agreed as follows: 

AGREEMENT: 

1. CITY hereby assigns to LACMTA $140,133 of CITY's STP-L Funds and

$115,875 of CITY's HIP Funds. LACMTA shall be authorized to deduct such amounts from

CITY's STP-L Funds Balance and CITY's HIP Funds Balance, respectively. This assignment

shall be automatically effective upon full execution of this AGREEMENT without the

necessity of the execution, delivery or recording of any further instrument whatsoever.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, at LACMTA's request, CITY shall execute and deliver such

documents and instruments as may be required to evidence such assignment of STP-L Funds

and HIP Funds.

2. LACMTA hereby accepts CITY's assignment of CITY's STP-L Funds and CITY's HIP

Funds for use on federal-aid eligible project(s), to be determined by LACMTA in its sole and

absolute discretion.

ATTACHMENT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 2119

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 296 of 487



Agreement Number 9200000000HIP2126 

 

2 

 

3. Upon receipt of (i) a fully executed AGREEMENT, (ii) CITY's written certification of 

the amounts of CITY's STP-L Funds Balance and CITY's HIP Funds Balance, as defined 

herein, which CITY's STP-L Funds Balance and CITY’s HIP Funds Balance show that 

CITY has sufficient STP-L Funds and HIP Funds to meet its obligations hereunder, and (iii) 

LACMTA's deduction of CITY's STP-L Funds and CITY's HIP Funds as provided in 

paragraph 1 above, LACMTA shall pay CITY $250,887 of LACMTA Funds which includes 

the deduction for the processing fee described in paragraph 5 below. For purposes of this 

AGREEMENT, CITY's "STP-L Funds Balance" and CITY's "HIP Funds Balance" shall 

mean the amounts of funds contained in CITY's STP-L Funds and CITY's HIP Funds 

accounts as of the date that this AGREEMENT is fully executed, which include CITY's 

apportionment share of FY22 STP-L Funds and share of HIP Funds from the federal 

Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) that was 

enacted on December 27, 2020. If the STP-L Funds Balance and HIP Funds Balance become 

insufficient to satisfy CITY's exchange obligations hereunder, CITY hereby authorizes 

LACMTA to deduct from CITY's future balance of STP-L funds until LACMTA has in the 

aggregate received the amount of CITY's STP-L Funds and CITY's HIP Funds specified in 

paragraph 1 above. 

4. CITY must complete and submit an Automated Clearing House (ACH) form (Exhibit 

A) through LACMTA's website to allow LACMTA to make disbursements electronically. 

Disbursements via ACH will be made at no cost to CITY. If electronic disbursements are 

not the preferred method of disbursement, CITY may request an exception in writing.  

5. CITY shall pay LACMTA a two-percent (2%) processing and administrative fee (the 

"Processing Fee") in connection with the exchange contemplated by this AGREEMENT. 

The Processing Fee shall be assessed against the total amount of LACMTA Funds payable 

to CITY. CITY hereby authorizes LACMTA to deduct the Processing Fee from the amount 

LACMTA is to pay CITY hereunder. 

6. CITY shall expend the LACMTA Funds on an STP-L and HIP Eligible Project and by 

the Lapsing Date, consistent with the Statement of Work, Schedule and Budget provided in 

Exhibit B. For the purposes of this AGREEMENT, the "Lapsing Date" shall mean the date 

that is three (3) years from the date that this AGREEMENT is fully executed. Any 

LACMTA Funds not expended by the Lapsing Date shall lapse and be returned to LACMTA 

within thirty (30) days of the Lapsing Date for further programming to third parties as 

LACMTA determines in its sole discretion. 

 

A. For the purposes of this AGREEMENT, the term "Eligible Project" shall mean 

the transportation activities described in Exhibit B that: i) would normally qualify 

under Section 133(b) of Title 23, U.S.C: or ii) are for costs related to preventive 

maintenance, routine maintenance, debt service payments, availability payments, 

operations, personnel (including salaries of employees and those employees who 

have been placed on administrative leave, or contractors), and coverage for other 

revenue losses due to the coronavirus pandemic. Any other applicable federal 

regulations and standards related to procurement and project delivery issues may 

be substituted with applicable state and local regulations, standards, and policies. 

CONTRACT NO. 2119
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 297 of 487



Agreement Number 9200000000HIP2126 

 

3 

 

B. The term "expend" as used in Section 6 shall mean "encumbered by an awarded 

contract or paid for an eligible transportation activity". 

 

C. If the LACMTA Funds have lapsed and CITY has not returned all or a portion of 

the lapsed LACMTA Funds to LACMTA, then CITY shall be considered to be in 

default and agrees that such outstanding payments shall be paid from CITY funds 

in the following priority: first, from any of CITY's unobligated HIP Funds 

Balance, then from CITY's STP-L Funds Balance, then from CITY's Proposition 

A local return funds, then from CITY's Proposition C local return funds, then 

from CITY's Measure R local return funds, and then from CITY's Measure M 

local return funds. If CITY is in default hereunder, in addition to all rights and 

remedies available to LACMTA at law or in equity and without further notice or 

ability to cure by CITY, CITY hereby authorizes LACMTA to withhold the 

applicable HIP, STP-L or local return funds in the amount needed to satisfy the 

outstanding amount of lapsed LACMTA Funds due and owing to LACMTA prior 

to LACMTA transferring the balance of such funds to the CITY in accordance 

with the applicable state laws or ordinances. 

7. CITY must use the LACMTA Funds in the most cost-effective manner. If CITY 

intends to use a consultant or contractor to implement all or part of the STP-L and HIP 

Eligible Project, LACMTA requires that such activities be procured in accordance with 

CITY's contracting procedures and be consistent with State law as appropriate. CITY will 

also use the LACMTA Funds in the most cost-effective manner when the LACMTA Funds 

are used to pay "in-house" staff time. CITY staff or consultants with project oversight roles 

may not award work to companies in which they have a financial or personal interest.  This 

effective use of funds provision will be verified by LACMTA through on-going project 

monitoring and through any LACMTA interim and final audits.  

8.  LACMTA, and/or its designee, shall have the right to conduct audits of CITY's use of 

the LACMTA Funds, as deemed appropriate, such as financial and compliance audits; 

interim audits; pre-award audits, performance audits, and final audits. CITY agrees to 

establish and maintain proper accounting procedures and cash management records and 

documents in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). CITY's 

records shall include, without limitation, any supporting evidence deemed necessary by 

LACMTA to substantiate CITY's use of LACMTA Funds. These records must be retained 

by CITY for five years following CITY's last use of the LACMTA Funds. CITY shall 

reimburse LACMTA for any expenditure not in compliance with the Scope of Work and/or 

not in compliance with other terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. The eligibility of 

costs for CITY's own expenditures submitted to LACMTA for the Eligible Project shall be 

in compliance with Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87 (relocated to 

Title 2 in the Code of Federal Regulations, Subtitle A, Chapter II, part 225). The eligibility 

of costs for CITY's contractors, consultants, and suppliers expenditures submitted to 

LACMTA through CITY's Monthly Progress Reports and Quarterly Expenditures shall be in 

compliance with OMB Circular A-87 (as relocated) or Federal Acquisition Regulation 

(FAR) Subpart 31 (whichever is applicable). Findings of the LACMTA audit are final. 

When LACMTA audit findings require CITY to return monies to LACMTA, CITY agrees to 

CONTRACT NO. 2119
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 298 of 487



Agreement Number 9200000000HIP2126 

 

4 

 

return the monies within thirty (30) days after the final audit is sent to CITY.  

9. The terms of this AGREEMENT shall commence on the date that this AGREEMENT 

is fully executed and shall terminate once CITY has expended all the LACMTA Funds and 

all LACMTA audit and reporting requirements have been satisfied.  

10. CITY shall fully indemnify, defend and hold LACMTA and its officers, agents, and 

employees harmless from and against any liability and expenses, including, without 

limitation, defend costs, any costs or liability on account of bodily injury, death or personal 

injury of any person, or for damages of any nature whatsoever arising out of (i) a breach of 

CITY's obligations under this AGREEMENT; or (ii) any act or omission of CITY or its 

officers, agents, employees, contractors, or subcontractors in the use of the LACMTA 

Funds. 

11. LACMTA shall fully indemnify, defend and hold CITY and its officers, agents, and 

employees harmless from and against any liability and expenses, including, without limitation, 

defend costs, any costs or liability on account of bodily injury, death or personal injury of 

any person, or for damages to or loss of risk of property, any environmental obligations, any 

legal fees and any claims for damages of any nature whatsoever arising out of (i) a breach of 

LACMTA's obligations under this AGREEMENT; or (ii) any act or omission of LACMTA 

or its officers, agents, employees, contractors, or subcontractors in the use of CITY's STP-L 

Funds and CITY's HIP Funds. 

12. This AGREEMENT may be amended or modified only by mutual written consent of 

LACMTA and CITY. 

13. Any correspondence, communication, or contact concerning this AGREEMENT shall be 

directed to the following: 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

Matt Baumgardner 

Director of Public Works 

117 North Macneil St. 

San Fernando, CA 91340 

LACMTA 

Michael Richmai 

Senior Manager, Countywide Planning and Development 

One Gateway Plaza (Mail Stop: 99-23-3) 

Los Angeles, California 90012-2952 

Email: RichmaiM@metro.net 

14. This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted and governed by the laws of the State of California. 

15. This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with respect to 

the subject matter herein. 

CONTRACT NO. 2119
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 299 of 487



Agreement Number 9200000000HIP2126 

 

5 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed by 

their respective officers as of the date stated below. 

 

 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY                      CITY OF SAN FERNANDO  

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION   

AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

By:        By:   

 Stephanie N. Wiggins     Nick Kimball  

 Chief Executive Officer     City Manager 

 

    

   

 

      

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:   

  

 

Dawyn R. Harrison       By:   

Acting County Counsel     Richard Padilla 

      City Attorney 

  

          

By:    

 Deputy  

             

 

   
 

 

CONTRACT NO. 2119
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 300 of 487



Agreement Number 9200000000HIP2126  
Exhibit A 

AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION 

CONTRACT NO. 2119
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 301 of 487



Agreement Number 9200000000HIP2126  
Exhibit A 

AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION 

CONTRACT NO. 2119
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 302 of 487



Agreement Number 9200000000HIP2126  
Exhibit A 

AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION 

CONTRACT NO. 2119
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 303 of 487



Agreement No. 9200000000CRRSAAHIP2126 
Exhibit B 

 
 
 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
    
 
 
Project Description: 
 
The Project includes the repair of sidewalks, sections of curb and gutter, and drive approaches in 
the City of San Fernando due to lifting, cracking, and misalignment resulting from poor drainage 
and overgrown tree roots.  The Project will also address missing curb ramps and sidewalks. 
 
 
Project Schedule: 
 
Advertise Contract: February 2022 
Award Contract: May 2022 
Start Construction: June 2022 
Complete Construction: March 2023 
 
 
Project Funding: 
 
City General Fund $33,088 
LACMTA Funds* 250,887 
Total Project Funding $283,975 
 
*Net of 2% processing and administrative fee. 

CONTRACT NO. 2119
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 304 of 487



ATTACHMENT “B”  

RESOLUTION NO. 8188 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 
ADOPTED ON JUNE 21, 2022 REGARDING EXCHANGE AGREEMENT WITH 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSIT AUTHORITY FOR 
FUNDING RELATED TO CITY SIDEWALK REPAIR PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to the 
budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the revenues 

and expenditures of the current City budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for Fiscal Year beginning  

July 1, 2022 and ending July 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk’s Office, was 
adopted on June 21, 2022. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 

RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The following adjustments are made to the City Budget: 
 
LACMTA LOCAL FUNDS EXCHANGE: CITY SIDEWALK REPAIR PROGRAM 
 
Increase in Revenues    $250,887 
Account No. XXX-XXXX-XXXX 
 
Increase in Expenditures   $250,887 
Account No. 001-311-0000-4600 
   
SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 

a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 17th day of October, 2022. 

 
 
        

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 305 of 487



RES. NO. 8188 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8188 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
17th day of October, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of October, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 306 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 307 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 308 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1202                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers  
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Carlos Hernandez, Assistant to the City Manager  
      
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 

San Fernando and the County of Los Angeles to Support Broadband Connectivity 
and Address the Digital Divide 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2115) 

between the City and the County of Los Angeles to support broadband connectivity and 
address the digital divide; and 
 

a. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related 
documents. 

 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. The digital divide, or, the gap between those that have opportunities to access and benefit 
from the internet and those that do not, has been brought to the forefront during the  
COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

2. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, both the public and private sectors have prioritized 
digitizing and providing their services online, which requires residents to have basic internet 
connectivity to access these services. 
 

3. The Federal Government and the State of California have demonstrated their commitment 
to bridge the digital divide by providing competitive grants to fund broadband internet 
access, affordability, and adoption. The term broadband commonly refers to high-speed 
internet access that is always on and faster than the traditional dial-up access. Broadband 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 309 of 487



Consideration to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of San Fernando and the 
County of Los Angeles to Support Broadband Connectivity and Address the Digital Divide  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

includes several high-speed transmission technologies such as Digital Subscriber Line (DSL), 
Cable Modem, Fiber Optic, Wireless, Satellite, and Broadband Over Powerline (BPL).1 
 

4. On September 6, 2022, the City Council approved Resolution No. 8175 to appropriate 
$300,000 in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to install  
high-speed wi-fi and computer rooms at Las Palmas Park and Recreation Park that will work 
in tandem with forthcoming broadband connectivity efforts. 
 

5. On September 13, 2022, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors approved several key 
items to advance digital equity within Los Angeles County, including establishing an 
intergovernmental Broadband Committee, allocating $56 million of ARPA funding for 
Community Broadband Network Demonstration Projects, and establishing MOU’s with 
broadband service providers through a competitive procurement process.   
 

6. The Los Angeles County Internal Services Department (County ISD) identified the City of San 
Fernando to be within one of the digital divide areas by examining low to moderate-income 
households without internet connectivity and in response has invited San Fernando to be a 
partner agency.      
 
 

ANALYSIS: 

The COVID-19 pandemic has changed daily routines for many and especially affected the way in 
which students learn through online education. Despite the flexibility in online learning and 
telecommuting, it is estimated that approximately 365,000 households in Los Angeles County 
lack broadband internet service. This disproportionately impacts lower income communities as 
well as populations that are predominantly Black and Latino/a from accessing high-speed 
internet service and connecting to critical information. Several government initiatives are 
underway to address this crisis, yet digital inequities persist in both rural and urban areas.  
 
The County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors have directed the County ISD to assess viable 
options to facilitate residential access to reliable broadband service in low-income communities 
where more than 20% of the households lack internet service, based on data from the United 
States Census Bureau’s American Community Survey. As part of the County ISD’s assessment of 
the digital divide, the City of San Fernando has been identified within the Supervisorial District 3 
Target Area as a prime candidate for increasing broadband connectivity. Compared to other areas 
of the County, San Fernando has a high number of low and middle-income residents, and a high 
percentage of households who lack internet connectivity. These criteria make San Fernando ideal 
for a partnership with Los Angeles County to improve internet connectivity.   

                                                 
1 (2014). Types of Broadband Connections. Federal Communications Commission. 
https://www.fcc.gov/general/types-broadband-connections#bpl  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 310 of 487

https://www.fcc.gov/general/types-broadband-connections#bpl


Consideration to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of San Fernando and the 
County of Los Angeles to Support Broadband Connectivity and Address the Digital Divide  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
Under this proposed MOU, collaboration with the Los Angeles County on expanding broadband 
connectivity will include the following joint efforts: 
 

• Build a shared organizational framework that can be used to develop a comprehensive 
regional strategy. 

• Share non-personally-identifiable data that can help inform this effort and related 
strategies. 

• Identify, assess, and share information on each party’s assets and operations that may be 
considered for hosting or otherwise supporting new infrastructure. 

• Identify and share projected costs and funding sources for planned investments and for 
projects under consideration. 

• Share timelines and locations for potential and planned investments. 
• Explore grant opportunities to jointly pursue. 

 
Based on the findings of potential assets in San Fernando, the City may support broadband 
technologies through the use of existing infrastructure, such as buildings, utility poles, or existing 
subterranean lines to expand fiber optics, wireless broadband, or other technologies as 
appropriate. The County ISD plans to make use of Internet Service Providers who have been 
selected through a competitive Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process in March 2022, in each 
partner community. As a requirement, respondents to the RFQ must be able to deliver  
high-speed, high-quality broadband internet service to each residence using wireless technology, 
fiber or a combination of both. The required capacity includes download speeds of up to 100 
Megabits per second (Mbps), and upload speeds of up to 20 Mbps. For example, the typical 
minimum download speed per student or telecommuter is 5-25 Mbps, allowing for multiple users 
per household without interruption.2 County ISD will also hire local, digital navigators to support 
residents sign up for broadband service. The digital navigators who will work with residents, at 
call centers, and promote the program through tabling at local events.   
 
Next Steps. 
Once the MOU is executed, the County ISD will work to include San Fernando as a partner to help 
close the digital divide and work with City staff to assess the next steps in expanding broadband 
technology throughout San Fernando.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no budget impact associated with adopting the proposed Memorandum of 
Understanding. 
 

                                                 
2 (2022). Broadband Speed Guide. Federal Communications Commission. 
https://www.fcc.gov/consumers/guides/broadband-speed-guide  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 311 of 487

https://www.fcc.gov/consumers/guides/broadband-speed-guide


Consideration to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of San Fernando and the 
County of Los Angeles to Support Broadband Connectivity and Address the Digital Divide  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the MOU (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2115) 
with the County of Los Angeles to increase broadband connectivity in San Fernando and help 
address the digital divide, and authorize the City Manager to execute the MOU. Doing so will help 
achieve the 2022-2027 Citywide Strategic Goal 1, Focus on Community First, section 1.6: 
“Improve the City’s use of technology to enhance customer service, work more efficiently, 
improve transparency for residents, businesses and other stakeholders, and increase community 
access to broadband.” 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Contract No. 2115 
 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 312 of 487



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2115 

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF SAN 

FERNANDO AND THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES FOR COORDINATION 
OF DIGITAL CONNECTIVITY INVESTMENTS 

 
 THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ("MOU"), is made and entered into this 
17th day of October , 2022, by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, a municipal 
corporation and general law city (“City”), and the COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, acting by and 
through its Internal Services Department  ("COUNTY" or “ISD”), (individually as "Party", or 
collectively as "Parties"). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, ISD is authorized pursuant to Section 23005 of the Government Code and 
by the November 16, 2021 motion of the County Board of Supervisors' (Agenda Item #19, 
Investments to Accelerate Digital Equity) to enter into an MOU to partner with agencies to 
coordinate efforts for digital equity and connectivity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the digital divide – the gap between those that have opportunities to access 
and benefit from the internet and those that do not – has been brought to the forefront by the 
disparities in the underserved communities negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, both the public and private sectors 
have prioritized digitizing and providing their services online, which requires residents to have 
basic internet connectivity to access these services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Federal Government and the State of California have demonstrated their 
commitment to bridge the digital divide by providing competitive grants to fund broadband internet 
access, affordability and adoption; and  
 
 WHEREAS, eligibility for grant funding requires local agencies to coordinate and 
collaborate to leverage the competitive advantages of each agency, including existing capital 
assets, authorities, and services, to build toward a coherent and interoperable regional strategy; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to collaborate and commit resources towards digital equity 
to ensure residents and businesses have access to high-speed internet; and  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits contained herein, and for 
good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1.  PURPOSE  
The purpose of this MOU is to reduce duplication of efforts by establishing a partnership to plan 
for coordinated investments that would deploy each Parties' competitive advantages (including 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 313 of 487



CONTRACT NO. 2115 

 

assets and operations) to effectively, efficiently, and equitably bring new wide range public 
connectivity infrastructure to communities and build a comprehensive regional strategy. 
 
The partnership is intended to encourage coordination and collaboration in regard to both 
community-based connectivity projects (such as wireless and/or fiber-optic technology that 
provides last-mile access within a particular geographic area) as well as the buildout of regionally-
supportive backbone infrastructure such as open-access public fiber-optic networks. 
 
2. TERM  
This MOU will be effective from the date of authorized signature by the Parties through (DATE), 
unless terminated earlier by any Party as set forth in this MOU. 
 
3. AMENDMENT 
Any amendments to this MOU must be made by mutual written consent of the Parties. No oral 
understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the Parties. 
 
4. TERMINATION 
This MOU may be terminated by either Party with twelve (12) days written notice. 
 
5. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  
Parties agree to work collaboratively to coordinate each party’s digital connectivity investments to 
maximize public impact and to secure additional funding in this vital area. 
 
Furthermore, Parties agree to:  

● Build a shared organizational framework that can be used to develop a comprehensive 
regional strategy. 

● Advocate for a coordinated digital connectivity strategy. 

● Share non-personally-identifiable data that can help inform this effort and related 
strategies. 

● Identify, assess, and share information on each party’s assets and operations that may be 
considered for hosting or otherwise supporting new infrastructure. 

● Identify and share projected costs and funding sources for planned investments and for 
projects under consideration. 

● Share timelines and locations for potential and planned investments. 

● Explore grant opportunities to jointly pursue. 
 
While the intent of the Parties is to collaborate to the greatest extent possible, the Parties are free 
and able to use any shared information as each Party sees fit for their respective purposes around 
digital connectivity. Information being shared, or withheld, imposes no other duty on the Parties, 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 314 of 487



CONTRACT NO. 2115 

 

outside of information sharing, and no duty to work collaboratively on future projects without 
entering into a separate agreement or an amendment to this MOU.  Likewise, nothing in this MOU 
shall constitute a binding obligation of City to commit City funds or any other City resources, 
unless by separate written agreement between the Parties.  
 
6. REPORTING  
Each Party is responsible for the collection, collation, and submission of required reporting under 
its own jurisdiction. When mutually agreed, the Parties will share information on areas of mutual 
interest or in relation to jointly pursued grants.  
 
7. CONFIDENTIALITY 
Parties shall maintain the confidentiality of all records and information in accordance with all 
applicable federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, guidelines, 
and policies and procedures relating to confidentiality. 
 
8.  PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 
Section 7 of this MOU notwithstanding, the Parties understand and agree that any documents 
shared with the other Party for purposes of this MOU, become a matter of public record and will 
be regarded as public records. Exceptions will be those elements in the California Government 
Code Section 6250 et seq., (Public Records Act or PRA) and which are marked “trade secret”, 
“confidential”, or “proprietary”. Parties will not in any way be liable or responsible to the other Party 
for the disclosure of any such records including, without limitation, those so marked, if disclosure 
is required by law, or by an order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
9.  INDEMNIFICATION 
Pursuant to the provisions of sections 895.4 et seq. of the California Government Code, each 
Party agrees to indemnify and hold the other harmless from all loss or liability for injury or damage, 
actual or alleged, to person or property arising out of or resulting from the indemnifying Party's 
acts or omissions in the performance of this MOU. In the event of third-party loss caused by the 
negligence, wrongful act or omission of more than one Party, each Party hereto shall bear 
financial responsibility in proportion to its percentage of fault as may be mutually agreed between 
them or judicially determined. The provisions of California Civil Code section 2778 regarding 
interpretation of indemnity agreements are hereby incorporated into this agreement. 
 
10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Each Party shall comply with all federal, State, and local conflict of interest laws and policies 
applicable to the particular Party now in effect or hereafter to be enacted during the term of this 
MOU. Each Party warrants that it is not now aware of any facts that create a conflict of interest. If 
the Party hereafter becomes aware of any facts that might reasonably be expected to create a 
conflict of interest, it shall immediately make full written disclosure of such facts to the other 
Parties. Full written disclosure shall include, but is not limited to, identification of all persons 
implicated and a complete description of all relevant circumstances. Failure to comply with the 
provisions of this paragraph shall be a material breach of this MOU. 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 315 of 487



CONTRACT NO. 2115 

 

11. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW 
In the performance of this MOU, Parties must comply with all applicable federal, State, and local 
laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, guidelines, policies and procedures, and all 
provisions required thereby to be included in this MOU are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
12. NON-EXCLUSIVITY 
Nothing herein is intended nor shall be construed as creating any exclusive arrangement between 
the Parties. This MOU shall not restrict the Parties from entering into similar or equal MOUs with 
other entities or agencies. 
 
13.  GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
This MOU will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of 
California. Parties agree and consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of 
California for all purposes regarding this MOU and further agrees and consents that venue of any 
action brought hereunder shall be exclusively in Los Angeles County. 
 
14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This MOU constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties. Neither verbal 
agreement nor conversation with any officer or employee of either Party shall affect or modify any 
of the terms and conditions of this MOU. 
 
15. NOTICES 
All notices and approvals must be in writing and directed to the following representative of the 
Parties: 
 
City of San Fernando:     
 

City of San Fernando 
Attn: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
117 Macneil St.  
San Fernando, CA 91340    
Email: nkimball@sfcity.org  

 
 

County:   
 
 County of Los Angeles, Internal Services Department (ISD) 
 Attn: Selwyn Hollins 

1100 N. Eastern Ave. 
Los Angeles, CA 90063 
Email:  shollins@isd.lacounty.gov 

 
 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 316 of 487

mailto:nkimball@sfcity.org
mailto:shollins@isd.lacounty.gov


CONTRACT NO. 2115 

 

16.  COUNTERPART AND ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE 
The MOU may be executed by the Parties in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same MOU. Parties agree to 
consider facsimile and electronic/digital versions of the original signature of authorized personnel 
of each party to have the same force and effect as original signatures, email or electronic 
signature of the Parties shall be deemed to constitute original legally binding signatures, and 
facsimile or electronic copies hereof shall be deemed to constitute duplicate originals. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Memorandum of Understanding is executed by the Parties hereto, 
by their duly authorized respective officers as follows: 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
NAME 
Title 
Date: _____________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
DAWYN R. HARRISON 
ACTING COUNTY COUNSEL 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
NAME 
Title 
Date: _____________________________ 

 
 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 

Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 
Date: _____________________________ 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
Attorney of Party 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 

Richard Padilla, City Attorney 
 

Date: _____________________________ 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 317 of 487



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 318 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 319 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 320 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1227           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Rincon 

Consultants, Inc. to Prepare Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan   

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Agreement) (Attachment “A” – Contract  

No. 2116) with Rincon Consultants, Inc. in an amount not-to-exceed $50,000 for preparation 
of Phase 1 of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan; and 
 

b. Adopt Resolution No. 8184 (Attachment “B”) amending Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 Adopted 
Budget to appropriate expenditures for Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan; and  

 
c. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the Agreement 

and all related documents. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. In November 2021, the City submitted a grant application to Southern California Gas 
Company (SoCalGas) to obtain funds through the SoCalGas Climate Adaptation and Resiliency 
Planning grant program. 
 

2. On December 1, 2021, the City was awarded a $50,000 grant from SoCalGas for preparation 
of the City’s Climate Adaptation and Resilience Plan.  
 

3. On January 18, 2022, SoCalGas presented a $50,000 check to the City for preparation of the 
Climate Adaptation and Resilience Plan.  

 
4. On March 21, 2022, the City issued a Request for Proposals (RFPs) from qualified consultants 

to prepare the City’s Climate Action and Resilience Plan (CARP) and proposals were received 
by the due date of April 11, 2022.   

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 321 of 487



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc. to Prepare Phase 1 of 
the Climate Action and Resilience Plan  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
5. On April 12, 2022, the City issued an extension for the due date of the RFPs to April 25, 2022 

and two additional proposals were received.  
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
In 2021, the City successfully applied for a $50,000 grant from SoCalGas to prepare a Climate 
Adaptation and Resilience Plan.  The award was presented to City Council on January 18, 2022.  
 
In March 2022, the City issued a RFPs to prepare the City‘s Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
(CARP) that will provide a roadmap that outline specific activities that the City will undertake to 
reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and to adapt to climate change.  The CARP will 
incorporate both a “Climate Action Plan” and a “Climate Adaptation and Resilience Plan.”  A 
Climate Action Plan focuses on identifying GHG emissions reduction targets and actions to 
mitigate climate change.  A Climate Adaptation and Resilience Plan focuses on strategies for 
adapting and being resilience to climate change.   
 
The CARP will be completed in two phases.  Phase 1 involves data collection and analysis of GHG 
Emissions Inventory and a Vulnerability Assessment.  Phase 2 will be completion of the CARP that 
will build upon the information gathered in Phase I.  Phase 2 will focus on identifying strategies 
and actions to mitigate climate change through GHG emission reductions in the most cost 
effective manner, and include strategies for climate adaptation and resilience.   
 
Selection of Consultant. 
In April 2022, four proposals were received from Dynamhex, MapCollective, Rincon Consultants 
(Rincon), and PlaceWorks.  Staff reviewed all four proposals based on their project team 
experience and expertise, technical competency as demonstrated by the project approach and 
understanding, reasonableness of fees requested, and quality assurance.  
 
Rincon and PlaceWorks were identified as the top two qualified firms and an interview with these 
two firms was conducted in late August 2022.  After the interview, each firm was requested to 
provide an addendum to their proposal to clarify the following information:  
 

1. Community outreach and engagement for San Fernando residents and be flexible to host 
in-person workshops/events as appropriated.    

2. Level of City staff support needed for community outreach and engagement.   
3. Support for preparation of staff report and presentation at Commission and City Council 

meetings, and in-person attendance.  
4. Include flexibility to have stakeholder meetings for vulnerability assessment  
5. Provide a CARP consistency checklist for streamlining development projects.  

 
PlaceWorks did not submit revised proposal.  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 322 of 487



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc. to Prepare Phase 1 of 
the Climate Action and Resilience Plan  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
Rincon submitted a revised proposal that included a budget of $50,000 to complete Phase I and 
$215,000 to complete Phase 2.  Rincon will partner with Climate Resolve to lead the community 
engagement and outreach efforts in Phase 2.  The community engagement and outreach efforts 
will include a $10,000 grant given to a local community-based organization, such as the 
Fernandeño Tataviam Band of Mission Indians, to effectively engage with hard to reach 
population groups.   

Scope of Work.  
Phase I is anticipated to be completed in six months.  A summary of the project scope to be 
provided in Phase 1 under this Professional Services Agreement (Agreement) is provided below 
and a detailed scope of work is included in the proposal from Rincon, included as Exhibit “B” of 
the Agreement.   

Task 1: Project Meetings 
• Project kick-off meeting 
• Participation in regular team meetings throughout the project 

 
Task 2: GHG Emissions Inventory  

• 2015 Los Angeles County Inventory Review and Reconciliation  
• Data collection and current GHG emissions inventory, include both municipal operation 

and citywide activities   
 

Task 3: Vulnerability Assessment  
• Vulnerability Assessment Report 
• City Staff and Asset Manager Interviews 

 
Task 4: Phase I Report Presentation to City Council 

• Presentation to City Council of GHG emissions inventory and vulnerability assessment 
results 

Phase 2 will be provided under a separate professional service agreement after funding is 
obtained from Southern California Association of Government (SCAG) through a Sustainable 
Communities Program grant.  

BUDGET IMPACT: 

The total budget to prepare a CARP is $265,063. Of this amount, $50,000 is needed to complete 
Phase I and this funding is available through the $50,000 grant received from SoCalGas set aside 
in Revenue Account No. 3686-7527 in the FY 2022-2023 adopted budget.  Through this agenda, 
staff is requesting to amend the FY 2022-2023 Adopted Budget to appropriate the $50,000 grant 
for Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan (110-310-7527-4270).   
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 323 of 487



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc. to Prepare Phase 1 of 
the Climate Action and Resilience Plan  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
Phase 2 is anticipated to be funded through the Sustainable Communities Program grant from 
SCAG or other grant opportunities in 2023. The cost estimate of $215,063 for Phase 2 will help 
demonstrate to SCAG the grant amount needed to complete the CARP.    
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement with Rincon 
Consultants in an amount not-to-exceed $50,000, amend FY 2022-2023 adopted budget to 
appropriate funding for Phase I, and authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and 
all related documents. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Contract No. 2116, including: 
Exhibit A: Request for Proposals 
Exhibit B: Rincon Consultants, Inc. Proposal 

B. Resolution No. 8184 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 324 of 487



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2116 

 
2022 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Climate Action and Resilience Plan – Phase I 

(Rincon Consultants, Inc. and City of San Fernando) 
     
 
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter, “Agreement”) is made and entered into 
this 17th day of October, 2022 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (hereinafter, “CITY”) and RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC., 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement, CITY and CONSULTANT may 
be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may 
refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably, as appropriate.  
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY requires professional consulting services to prepare Phase I of the Climate 
Action and Resilience Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CITY staff has determined that CONSULTANT possesses the experience, skills 
and training necessary to competently provide such services to CITY; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the execution of this Agreement was approved by the San Fernando City 
Council at its Regular Meeting of October 17, 2022 under Agenda Item No. 10. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
herein contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  
 

I. 
ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 
1.1 TERM: This Agreement shall have a term commencing from the Effective Date through 

December 31, 2023 (hereinafter, the “Term”).  Nothing in this Section shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at any time 
for convenience or for cause as provided under Article V (Termination), below. 

 
1.2 SCOPE OF WORK: 
 

A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to 
provide the services and tasks described in that certain Request for Proposals of 
CITY entitled “Climate Action and Resilience Plan”, (hereinafter, “CITY RFP”) and 
the written proposal of CONSULTANT entitled “Proposal for the City of San 
Fernando Climate Action and Resilience Plan” (hereinafter, the “CONSULTANT 
Proposal”) dated October 10, 2022.  The CITY RFP and the CONSULTANT Proposal 
are attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit “A” and “B” respectively.  The 
term “Scope of Work” shall be a collective reference to the CITY RFP and the 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 325 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 2 of 20  
 
 

 

CONSULTANT Proposal.  The capitalized term “Work” shall be a collective 
reference to all the various services and tasks referenced in the Scope of Work.  In 
the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of the document 
entitled CITY RFP and the provisions of the document entitled CONSULTANT 
Proposal, the requirements of the document entitled CITY RFP shall govern and 
control but only to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency and no further.  In 
the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of the Scope of 
Work and the provisions of this Agreement to which the Scope of Work is 
attached, the provisions of this Agreement shall govern and control.  

 
1.3 PROSECUTION OF WORK:  
 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the Work continuously and with due diligence so as 
to complete the Work by the completion date indicated in each Work Order.  
CONSULTANT shall cooperate with CITY and in no manner interfere with the work 
of CITY, its employees or other consultants, contractors or agents;   
 

B. CONSULTANT shall not claim or be entitled to receive any compensation or 
damage because of the failure of CONSULTANT, or its subconsultants, to have 
related services or tasks completed in a timely manner; 
 

C. CONSULTANT shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among 
CONSULTANT’s employees; and 
 

D. CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall pay all sales, consumer, use or other 
similar taxes required by law.  

 
1.4 COMPENSATION:  CONSULTANT shall perform the Work in accordance with “Proposed 

Cost by Task” (hereinafter, the “COMPENSATION RATE”).  The foregoing notwithstanding, 
CONSULTANT’s total compensation for the performance of all Work contemplated under 
this Agreement, will not exceed the annual budgeted sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($50,000) (hereinafter, the “Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum”) during the Term of this 
Agreement, unless such added expenditure is first approved by the City Council.  In the 
event CONSULTANT’s charges are projected to exceed the Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum 
prior to the expiration of this Agreement, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-Exceed 
Sum or any other CITY approved amendment to the compensation terms of this 
Agreement.  

 
1.5 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: The Annual Not-to-Exceed Sum will be paid to 

CONSULTANT in monthly increments as the Work is completed.  Following the conclusion 
of each calendar month, CONSULTANT will submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating 
the services performed and tasks completed during the recently concluded calendar 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 326 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 3 of 20  
 
 

 

month, including services and tasks performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred.  If the amount of CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function 
of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s personnel, the invoice should indicate the number of 
hours worked in the recently concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for 
performing the Work, the rate of compensation at which such services and tasks were 
performed, the subtotal for each task and service performed and a grand total for all 
services performed.  Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY will 
notify CONSULTANT in writing of any disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within 
forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY will pay all undisputed 
amounts included on the invoice.  CITY will not withhold applicable taxes or other 
authorized deductions from payments made to CONSULTANT.  

 
1.6 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT will maintain complete and accurate records with 

respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years after 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY will have the right to access and 
examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY will further 
have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all 
program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

 
1.7 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 

Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Work, CONSULTANT will deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT will only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other Work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction 
for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

 
II. 

PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 
 
2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVE:  The CITY hereby designates Kanika Kith, Director of Community 

Development (hereinafter, the “CITY Representative”) to act as its representative for the 
performance of this Agreement.  The CITY Representative or their designee will act on 
behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT will not accept 
directions or orders from any person other than the CITY Representative or their 
designee. 

 
2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Erik Feldman, Principal, 

to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, 
“Consultant Representative”).  Consultant Representative will have full authority to 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 327 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 4 of 20  
 
 

 

represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement.  
Consultant Representative or their designee will supervise and direct the performance of 
the Work, using their best skill and attention, and will be responsible for all means, 
methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of 
all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the Consultant Representative 
will constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

 
2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT 

agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement 
and will be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representative at all reasonable times.  All 
work prepared by CONSULTANT will be subject to inspection and approval by CITY 
Representative or their designees. 

 
2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, 

acknowledges and agrees to the following: 
 

A. CONSULTANT will perform all Work skillfully, competently in accordance with 
generally accepted professional practices and principles, and in a manner 
consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised under similar 
conditions by a member of CONSULTANT’s profession.  
 

B. CONSULTANT shall at all times employ such force, plant, materials, and tools as 
will be sufficient in the opinion of the CITY to perform the Services within the time 
limits established, and as provided herein. It is understood and agreed that said 
tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and material shall be furnished and 
said Services performed and completed as required by the Agreement, and 
subject to the approval of the CITY’s authorized representative. 

 
C. CONSULTANT will perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the 

CITY; 
 

D. CONSULTANT will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code 
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq.) CONSULTANT shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations in 
connection with Services.  If CONSULTANT performs any work knowing it to be 
contrary to such laws, rules and regulations, CONSULTANT shall be solely 
responsible for all costs arising therefrom; 

 
E. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed 

under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance; 
 

  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 328 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 5 of 20  
 
 

 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

 
G. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including, but not limited to, 

subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such 
licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals will be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying 
and inspection. 

 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT will perform, at CONSULTANT’s 
own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary 
to correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the 
standard of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.  
Such effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions will be commenced 
immediately upon their discovery by either Party and will be completed within seven (7) 
calendar days from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time 
authorized by the CITY Representative in writing and in her sole and absolute discretion. 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by 
CONSULTANT or on CONSULTANT’s behalf will not constitute a release of any deficiency 
or delay in performance.  The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that 
CITY has relied upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not 
limited to the representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge 
and experience necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently in accordance with 
generally accepted professional practices and principles, and in a manner consistent with 
the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised under similar conditions by a member of 
CONSULTANT’s profession.  

 
2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 

material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that 
it will not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer will be ineffective, null and void 
and will constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 329 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 6 of 20  
 
 

 

2.6 SUBSTITUTION OF KEY PERSONNEL: CONSULTANT has represented to CITY that certain 
key personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should 
one or more of such personnel become unavailable, CONSULTANT may substitute other 
personnel of at least equal competence upon written approval of CITY.  In the event that 
CITY and CONSULTANT cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, CITY shall be 
entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel who 
fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the CITY, or who are 
determined by the CITY to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or 
timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be 
promptly removed from the Project by the CONSULTANT at the request of the CITY.  The 
key personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: Erik Feldman (Principal-
in-Charge), Reema Shakra (Project Manager), and Hannah Mize (Assistant Project 
Manager).  

 
2.7 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 

will be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  
CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 
independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and 
provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure 
of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of CITY and 
will at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control.  CONSULTANT 
will pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due to such personnel and will assume 
responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and 
the like.  CONSULTANT will be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance and the like. 

 
2.8 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 

agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representative to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or if 
any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant will be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and will not be reassigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 330 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 7 of 20  
 
 

 

2.9 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT will keep itself informed of and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise 
govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s compliance with applicable laws 
will include, without limitation, compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements 
and applicable regulations of the Federal Department of Housing and Urbanization.  

 
2.10 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  CONSULTANT represents that it is an equal opportunity 

employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or applicant 
for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestry, sex 
or age.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related 
to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or  termination.  

 
2.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 

that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and will at 
all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT will be solely responsible 
for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors and subconsultants.  CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT will have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

 
III. 

INSURANCE 
 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE:  Prior to the beginning of and throughout 
the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies of insurance 
that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. CONSULTANT 
will procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own expense: 

 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT will procure and maintain 

Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001) 
or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and 
contractual liability. 

 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 331 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 8 of 20  
 
 

 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT will procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number 
CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such Automobile 
Liability Insurance will have minimum limits of no less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  
 

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:  A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which will indemnify, insure and provide legal 
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage arising 
from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by 
or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work 
contemplated in this Agreement.     

 
D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a period 

of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain Errors and 
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such 
coverage will have minimum limits of no less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) per claim.   

   
3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 

Insurance will contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

 
3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement will 

be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue 
policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere under 
this Article, all required insurance will be procured from insurers who, according to the 
latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than 
A:VII.  CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & 
Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability 
Insurance, the CITY Representative is authorized to authorize lower ratings than those set 
forth in this Section.   

 
3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 

CONSULTANT will be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers will be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and will not contribute 
with it.  

 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 332 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 9 of 20  
 
 

 

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement 
will not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss.  
CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers.  

 
3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, that 

CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required under 
this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that it will furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and 
endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory 
to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy will be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and will be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements will be received and approved 
by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any Work.  Upon 
CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT will also provide CITY with certified copies of all 
required insurance policies and endorsements.  

  
3.7 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN COVERAGE: In the event any policy of insurance required under 

this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not replaced 
immediately so as to avoid a lapse in the required coverage, CITY has the right but not the 
duty to obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by CITY will be 
promptly reimbursed by CONSULTANT or CITY will withhold amounts sufficient to pay 
premium from CONSULTANT payments. In the alternative, CITY may cancel this 
Agreement effective upon notice. 
 

3.8 SPECIAL RISKS OR CIRCUMSTANCES.  CITY reserves the right to modify these 
requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, 
coverage, or other special circumstances. 
 

IV. 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 
4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 

employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, claim, 
lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising out of or 
in any way related to the performance of this Agreement.  Accordingly, the provisions of 
this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to 
provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under the law. 
CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 333 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 10 of 20  
 
 

 

of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent CONSULTANT’s services are subject to Civil 
Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent required by Civil 
Code Section 2782.8, to Claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT’s obligation to 
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the CITY, its 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers. 
 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs, 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONSULTANT’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 
contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY.  

 
4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due to 

CONSULTANT under this Agreement, any amount due to CITY from CONSULTANT as a 
result of CONSULTANT’s failure to either pay CITY promptly for any costs associated with 
CONSULTANT’s obligations to indemnify the CITY Indemnitees under this Article or 
related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received pursuant to 
this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  
 

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers’ compensation act or similar act.  CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.  
 

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth herein this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from and against any and all claims and 
losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury 
to any property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement.  Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by 
counsel of CITY’s choice.  
 

  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 334 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 11 of 20  
 
 

 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement.  This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost, or expense. 
 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend, and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   
 

4.8 Except as otherwise provided under Section 4.2 of this Article, above, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the CITY 
Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including without 
limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) 
of every nature to the extent caused by CONSULTANT’s negligent performance under this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the negligent acts, errors or omissions of 
CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, servants, contractors, 
subcontractors or subconsultants or the failure of the same to comply with any of the 
duties, obligations or standards of care set forth herein. The duty to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless under this subsection shall not encompass a duty to indemnity, defend 
or hold harmless for liability, loss, suit, damage, expense, or cost caused by the negligence 
or willful misconduct of any or all of the CITY Indemnitees.  The duty to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless as set forth under this subsection is intended to encompass liabilities, 
losses, damages, expense and costs not otherwise subject to subsection 4.2, above. 
 

4.9 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, CITY shall 
have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due CONSULTANT under 
this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result of CONSULTANT’s 
failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this Article and related to 
CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received pursuant to this 
Agreement, or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. 

 
4.10 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, the 

obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of any 
workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents and authorized volunteers.  

 
4.11 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, 

CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 335 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 12 of 20  
 
 

 

of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and authorized volunteers from and against any and all claims 
and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and 
injury to any property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or 
otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any 
other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable 
attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of CITY’s choice. 
 

4.12 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, CITY does 
not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT because of 
the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or certificate 
required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification provision 
shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined to be 
applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense.  

 
4.13 As to the duties to indemnify under Sections 4.1 and 4.2 of this Article, above, the duties 

to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as set forth under this Section, shall survive the 
early termination or normal expiration of this Agreement and shall be in addition to any 
other rights or remedies which the CITY may have at law or in equity. 

 
V. 

TERMINATION 
 
5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at any 

time for convenience and without cause by giving prior written notice of CITY’s intent to 
terminate this Agreement which notice shall specify the effective date of such 
termination.  Upon such termination for convenience, CONSULTANT will be compensated 
only for those services and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the 
effective date of the termination.  CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement 
except for cause as provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated 
as provided herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished 
Documents and Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind 
prepared by CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  
CONSULTANT will be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement 
on the part of CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, will operate to prohibit or otherwise 
restrict CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this 
Section. 
 

  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 336 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 13 of 20  
 
 

 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  
 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of 
default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) will occur.  For all Events of Default, the 
Party alleging an Event of Default will give written notice to the defaulting Party 
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which will specify: (i)  the nature of 
the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a 
date by which the Event of Default will be cured, which will not be less than the 
applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2B and 5.2C below or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and 
diligently prosecute such cure to completion.  The Event of Default will constitute 
a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default 
within the applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

 
B. CONSULTANT will cure the Event of Default within the following time periods: 

 
i. Within ten (10) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 

failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work product 
which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY or CITY’s employees or 
agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 10-day cure 
period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to cure 
the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced 
efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be 
reasonably cured within the 10-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CITY will be under no obligation to grant additional time for 
the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.i. that exceeds seven 
(7) calendar days from the end of the initial 10-day cure period; or 

 
ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 

any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT 
has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY will be under no obligation to grant additional 
time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii that exceeds 
thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure period.  

 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 337 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 14 of 20  
 
 

 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely perform 
or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of Default on the 
part of CONSULTANT will include, but will not be limited to the following:  (i) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Work; (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under 
this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a reasonable 
time; (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, 
state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation; (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to 
CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement; 
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

 
C. CITY will cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five (45) 

calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the Event of 
Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   Prior to the 
expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY has 
commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any 
undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.5, above, will be 
cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

 
D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 

CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure 
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default.  Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT will be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.  No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY will operate to prohibit or 
otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

 
E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement will constitute 

a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, 
benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party will give the 
other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 338 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 15 of 20  
 
 

 

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder will be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In 
addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement 
in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

 
i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 

this Agreement in whole or in part; 
 
ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 

performance; 
 
iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 

Agreement to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the Agreement 
or to terminate the Agreement; or 

 
iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

 
CONSULTANT will be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that 
CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its 
remedies under this Agreement.  

 
G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy will 

be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any 
unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for completed 
services and tasks.   

 
5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement will 

constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party will give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

 
5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this Agreement 

pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto will not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it will survive the termination or normal expiration 
of this Agreement. 

 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 339 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 16 of 20  
 
 

 

VI. 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All Documents and Data 

will be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon their use or 
dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Documents and Data” 
means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, designs, notes, 
summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data 
compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or assembled by or on behalf 
of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium 
of expression, including but not limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, 
magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a 
perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all 
copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  
CONSULTANT will require all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of 
CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY will be 
granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data 
prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to Documents 
and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  
 

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and will not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY.  CITY will grant such consent of disclosure as legally required.  Upon request, all CITY 
data will be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT will not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

 
6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT nor 

any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership interest 
in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to 
have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the California False 
Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

 
6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement will be given to the 

respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 340 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 17 of 20  
 
 

 

CONSULTANT:  CITY:  
Rincon Consultants, Inc.  
250 East 1st Street, Suite 1400 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
Attn: Erik Feldman, LEED AP, Principal 
Phone: 805-644-4455 
Email:  efeldman@rinconconsultants.com 
 

 City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn: Community Development Dept. 
Phone: (818) 898-1227 

 
Such notices will be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed,  
forty-eight (48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class 
postage prepaid and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   
 

6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties will fully cooperate with one another, and 
will take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as are reasonably 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

 
6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT will not subcontract any portion of the Work required 

by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written approval 
of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with subconsultants), if 
any, will contain a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this 
Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

 
6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to employ other 

contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by CONSULTANT. 
 
6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has not 

employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT 
warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this 
warranty, CITY will have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term 
of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his or her 
service with CITY, will have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or 
anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

 
6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 

Agreement. 
 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 341 of 487

mailto:efeldman@rinconconsultants.com


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 18 of 20  
 
 

 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement will be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, will be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of the 
State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, will be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

 
6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, legal, 

administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the 
prevailing Party in such litigation will be entitled to have and recover from the losing Party 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

 
6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement will be binding on the successors and assigns 

of the Parties. 
 
6.13 NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third-party beneficiaries of any right or 

obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

 
6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement will not be construed in favor of, or 

against, either Party but will be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

 
6.15 SEVERABILITY:  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions will 
continue in full force and effect.  

 
6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 

Agreement will be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, 
subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or 
supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver will be void and invalid. 

 
6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 

convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

 
6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 

the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement will control.   

 
  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 342 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 19 of 20  
 
 

 

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, including all attached exhibits, constitutes the 
entire, complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, which may have been entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to 
the execution of this Agreement.  Any statements, representations, or other agreements, 
whether oral or written, made by either Party that is not embodied herein will not be 
valid or binding on the Parties.  No amendment, modification or supplement to this 
Agreement will be valid and binding unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties 
pursuant to Section 6.16, above. 
 

6.20 FORCE MAJEURE:   The Completion Date shall be extended in the event of any delays due 
to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT and without the fault or 
negligence of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to severe weather, fires, 
earthquakes, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, riots, strikes, freight embargoes, 
wars, litigation, and/or acts of any governmental agency, including the CITY, if the 
CONSULTANT shall within three (3) calendar days of the commencement of such delay 
notify the City Representative in writing of the causes of the delay. The City 
Representative shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and extend the time for 
performing the services for the period of the enforced delay when and if in the judgment 
of the City Representative such delay is justified. The City Representative’s determination 
shall be final and conclusive upon the parties to this Agreement. In no event shall 
CONSULTANT be entitled to recover damages against the CITY for any delay in the 
performance of this Agreement, however caused, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy being 
extension of the Agreement pursuant to this Section. 

 
6.21 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement will be executed in three (3) original counterparts each 

of which will be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten amendment, 
modification or supplement to any one counterpart will be valid or binding unless made 
to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  One fully executed 
original counterpart will be delivered to CONSULTANT and the remaining two original 
counterparts will be retained by CITY.  

 
 
 

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 343 of 487



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  CONTRACT NO. 2116 
Phase I of the Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
Page 20 of 20  
 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 

Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 
Date:____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
      Richard Padilla, City Attorney 
 
Date:____________________________ 
 

 RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC.: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
 
Name:____________________________ 
 
Title:_____________________________ 
 
Date:____________________________ 
 
 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 344 of 487



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

The Community Development Department is requesting proposals for: 

Climate Action and Resilience Plan 

RELEASE DATE: Monday, March 21, 2022  

RESPONSE DUE: Monday, April 11, 2022  

Response Due Date Extended to Monday, April 25, 2022 

EXHIBIT "A" 
CONTRACT NO. 2116

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 345 of 487



GENERAL INFORMATION / BACKGROUND 

The City of San Fernando is requesting proposals from qualified consultants to prepare the City ‘s 
Climate Action and Resilience Plan (CARP) and associated environmental document pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The CARP will provide a roadmap that outline specific 
activities that the City will undertake to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and to adapt to climate 
change.  The CARP must provide an inventory of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and a vulnerability 
assessment, outline actions to mitigate climate change through GHG reductions, and identify 
strategies to adapt to the effects of climate change.  The CARP will be used for CEQA project 
streamlining.   

The CARP will be completed in two phases.  The Phase 1 involves data collection and analysis of 
Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory and a Vulnerability Assessment.  Phase 2 will be completion of 
the CARP that will build upon the information gathered in Phase I.  Phase 2 will focus on identifying 
specific activities that the City can achieve with the greatest emission reductions in the most cost 
effective manner, and include strategies for climate adaptation and resilience.   

SCOPE OF WORK 

The primary goal of the CARP is to provide tools for the City of San Fernando and the community to 
build community resilience to climate challenges.  Consultant will be asked to recommend GHG 
emission reduction targets through 2030 that align with Senate Bill 32 and through 2050 to align 
with Executive Order B-30-15. The CARP must also address climate adaptation strategies in 
accordance with Senate Bill 379, resilience measures, as well as risks and vulnerabilities. 

The Consultant will produce a CARP that aligns with the City’s other sustainability efforts and 
outlines clear strategies that serve as the City’s roadmap for achieving the newly established 
reduction goals and adapting to a changing climate.  At the minimum, the CARP must:  

1. Develop inventory of GHG emissions and a vulnerability assessment.

2. Develop clear GHG emission reduction targets.

3. Develop goals, strategies, and actions to enable the City to achieve or exceed GHG reduction
goals.

4. Develop climate adaptation and resilience strategies.

5. Identify funding and implementation measures.

6. Develop methods for reporting and monitoring the effectiveness of the plan.

The final document should be reader friendly, contain graphic summaries. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 346 of 487



Phase 1. Analyze GHG Emissions & Vulnerability Assessment 

The Consultant will develop inventory of GHG emissions and a vulnerability assessment. 

GHG Emission Inventory 

The Consultant will prepare a GHG inventory based on tools and guidance provided by the 
International Conference for Local Environmental Initiatives (ICLEI).  Information should be collected 
and used to create a methodology worksheet using tools and guidance provided by ICLEI-Local 
Governments for Sustainability. The methodology worksheet should include the City operations 
inventory (data gathered from City departments will be presented in a worksheet for a community 
wide inventory), and a worksheet that calculates the equivalent CO2 emission from those energy 
uses. Resources used on the City operation inventory should include the Local Government 
Operations Protocol (LGOP), developed by ICLEI, the California Air Resources Board (CARB), the 
California Climate Action Registry (CCAR), and The Climate Registry (TCR). The LGOP provides 
internationally recognized GHG accounting and reporting principles for cities wanting to quantify 
and report emissions in a transparent way. 

Vulnerability Assessment 

The Consultant will provide a vulnerability assessment of the risks that San Fernando is likely to face 
as the impacts of climate change become more severe. The risks evaluated must include, but are 
not limited, to drought, extreme heat, precipitation, air quality, winds, wildfires, and any indirect 
effects of sea level rise in nearby coastal communities (e.g. population migration). The analysis will 
also address any disproportional impacts that climate change may have on vulnerable populations 
across the City (e.g., seniors, children, low-income residents, persons with disabilities, etc.). 
Considerable experience in analyzing data, writing, preparing figures, and in communicating with 
the public, Commissions, and Councils is desirable. 

Deliverable 

• GHG Emissions Inventory and Vulnerability Assessment.

• Written report for City Council of GHG inventory and vulnerability assessment that details
the methodology and provides an analysis of the information.

• Presentation of the GHG Inventory and Vulnerability Assessment to the City Council.

Phase 2: Completion of CARP and CEQA Document 

The Consultant must provide a draft CARP utilizing a fully transparent and collaborative process. 
Recommendation for GHG emission reduction targets that align with Senate Bill 32 and with 
Executive Order B-30-15 must be provided in the CARP. The Consultant must also provide climate 
adaptation strategies in accordance with Senate Bill 379, resilience measures, as well as risks and 
vulnerabilities.   

CONTRACT NO. 2116
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 347 of 487



The Consultant must develop and prioritize adaptation measures for each identified risk based on 
level of severity (low-risk, medium-risk, and high risk).  This effort should include both community 
adaptation measures as well as those for City operations and calculate the costs and benefits for 
each measure. The consultant may use the City’s Hazard Mitigation Plan in order to coordinate 
adaptation measures and current City hazard mitigation efforts related to natural events and 
infrastructure improvements.   

The final CARP must include GHG emission analysis, goals, strategies, and actions to enable the City 
to achieve or exceed GHG reduction goals, climate adaptation and resilience strategies, and means 
of reporting and monitoring the effectiveness of the plan.  Specific strategies and priority actions 
selected to meet recommended target reductions should be summarized into a strategic framework 
with specific near-term, mid-term, and long-term implementation plans.  Measures should identify 
agencies and departments responsible for implementation, indicators for success, potential 
partnerships, recommended funding sources, and appropriate methods to measure progress. 

The Consultant will provide staff reports throughout the CARP development process, as needed, in 
addition to drafting the staff report for the final CARP adoption. The consultant will also support 
staff in preparing for and presenting to the Planning and Preservation Commission and City Council. 
Four (4) public hearings are anticipated. 

Outreach and Engagement Methods 
The Consultant will collaborate with the City and community partners to plan, manage and 
implement community engagement. This effort should include leading and facilitating meetings 
with the overall community in addition to targeted outreach to the City’s diverse population.   

The consultant is expected to prepare and provide any materials required to implement the 
proposed outreach plan including but not limited to flyers, posters, presentation material, 
engagement tools (e.g. surveys), and reports. The consultant should be prepared to attend meetings 
and engage with City Council throughout the CARP development process. Consideration will need 
to be given to the education level and English-proficiency of prospective attendees, with an 
emphasis on Spanish bi-lingual translation. 

If permissible, the meetings will be hosted in person at a City Facility, at a pre-existing event, or in 
the form of a pop-up location. 

Outreach and Notification: The Consultant shall reach out to all City residents to get a broad range 
of opinions for the project. The task of inviting participants can include direct mailers, newspaper 
advertisements, email blasts, social media, etc.  

Community Meetings and Workshops: The Consultant shall facilitate three community meetings 
to gather feedback from the community. A pop-up meeting format at an existing event may also 
be planned as a community meeting.  Meetings will be documented, and the findings are to be 
reported to the City.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 348 of 487



Presentations to City Commissions and City Council: The Consultant shall summarize and present 
community engagement findings, as well as a summary of the CARP, to a City Commission or the 
City Council as directed by staff.  

Social Media: The Consultant, under the guidance of the City, shall develop social and digital media 
content that corresponds with the project or plan. Social media content shall be developed for the 
City’s Instagram, Facebook, and Twitter, and Next Door accounts. 

Advisory Group Meetings: The consultant shall convene an Advisory Group to identify key issues 
and opportunities for the project, review findings, and confirm plan recommendations. The Advisory 
Group shall meet a minimum of three (3) times during the project. 

Survey: The Consultant shall develop an online survey to receive input on project goals/objectives, 
barriers, attitudes and preferences, and demographic information. The online survey will be 
completed early in the planning process, and will be used to inform project recommendations. QR 
codes shall be used on promotional materials for additional distribution of the survey. City staff may 
require supplementing the online survey with in-person, intercept surveys along the project area to 
ensure ease of access.  

Language Needs:  All engagement materials and methods shall be conducted in English and Spanish, 
unless explicitly instructed by City staff.  

Printing:  Consultant shall anticipate the need for printing across the project. Consultant and City 
Project Manager will review printing-related expenses on a rolling basis to ensure the budgeted 
amount is sufficient and equitably applied across the project. The Consultant shall procure all print 
requests. 

Material Procurement:  Consultant shall anticipate the need for educational tools and presentation 
materials to support engagement tasks. The City will approve the proposed list of educational tools 
and material (oversized maps, pop-up banners, virtual reality equipment, interactive live polling 
equipment, etc.) in part or in whole within seven (7) days of receipt of a proposed list. The 
Consultant shall procure all items on the final list within a timely manner. 

CEQA Document 
The Consultant must prepare the appropriate environmental document pursuant to CEQA for 
adoption of the CARP and for future streamlining.  

Deliverable 

• CARP document for adoption by City Council

• CEQA document for adoption by City Council

CONTRACT NO. 2116
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 349 of 487



• Written reports and presentations to Planning and Preservation Commission, and City
Council for adoption of the CARP. Four (4) public hearings are anticipated.

INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING FIRMS 

A. Examination of Proposal Documents

By submitting a proposal, the prospective firm represents that it has thoroughly examined
and become familiar with the services required under this Request for Proposal (RFP), and
that it is capable of delivering quality services to the City in an efficient and cost-effective &
manner.

B. Questions/Clarifications

Please direct any questions regarding this RFP to Kanika Kith, Director of Community
Development, via e-mail at kkith@sfcity.org. Questions must be received by 5:00 p.m. on
Friday, March, 25, 2022. All questions received prior to the deadline will be collected and
responses will be emailed by Thursday, March 30, 2022.

C. Submission of Proposals

Provide cost estimates for Phase 1 and Phase 2.

All proposals shall be submitted via email to Kanika Kith at kkith@sfcity.org and the subject
line of the email shall read, “City of San Fernando RFP – Climate Action and Resilience Plan.”
Proposals must be received no later than Monday, April 11, 2022 at 5:00 p.m.  All proposals
received after that time will not be accepted.

Proposal Due Date Extended to Monday, April 25, 2022 at 5:00 p.m.

D. Withdrawal of Proposals

A firm may withdraw its proposal at any time before the due date for submission of proposals
as provided in the RFP by delivering a written request for withdrawal signed by, or on behalf
of the prospective firm.

E. Rights of City of San Fernando

This RFP does not commit the City to enter into a Contract, nor does it obligate the City to
pay for any costs incurred in preparation and submission of proposals or in anticipation of a
contract.

CONTRACT NO. 2116
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 350 of 487

mailto:kkith@sfcity.org


The City reserves the right to: 
1. Make the selection based on its sole discretion;
2. Reject any and all proposals without prejudice;
3. Issue subsequent Requests for Proposal;
4. Postpone opening for its own convenience;
5. Remedy technical errors in the Request of Proposal process;
6. Approve or disapprove the use of particular sub-contractors;
7. Negotiate with any, all, or none of the prospective firms;
8. Solicit best and final offers from all or some of the prospective firms;
9. Accept other than the lowest offer; and/or;
10. Waive informalities and irregularities in the proposal process.

F. Contract Type

It is anticipated that a standard form professional services agreement contract will be signed
subsequent to the City Council’s review and approval of the selected firm.

G. Collusion

By submitting a proposal, each prospective firm represents and warrants that; its proposal
is genuine and not a sham or collusive or made in the interest of or on behalf of any person
not named therein; that the prospective firm has not directly, induced or solicited any other
person to submit a sham proposal or any other person to refrain from submitting a proposal;
and, that the prospective firm has not in any manner sought collusion to secure any improper
advantage over any other person submitting a proposal.

SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION 

RFP Available: March 21, 2022 
Deadline for submittal of Questions: March 25, 2022 
Response to Questions:  March 31, 2022 
Deadline for submittal of Proposal:  April 11, 2022  
Execute Agreement (at City Council Meeting): May 2, 2022 

SELECTION CRITERIA 

The City of San Fernando will select the consultant on the basis of qualifications and experience. The 
following general selection criteria will be used to evaluate each consultant firm: 

1. Qualifications and knowledge of Project Manager and key personnel’s experience most
closely related to the stated scope of work.

CONTRACT NO. 2116
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 351 of 487



2. Relevant experience within the past ten years.

3. Responsiveness and clarity of the proposal.

4. References.

5. Time commitment and availability.

CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL 

The following information shall be submitted in response to this RFP: 

1. Name, Address and Phone Number of the firm.

2. Related experience during the last ten years.

3. Name and detailed resume of key personnel including Project Manager, whom proposer
intends to use to work on the City’s projects, showing educational background and
assignment experience for at least the past ten (10) years.

4. References from previous clients with direct knowledge of each key personnel’s,
including Project Manager’s, past performance.

5. Estimated Project Schedule broken down by (1) Phase 1 – GHG Emission Inventory &
Vulnerability Assessment; and (2) Phase 2 – CARP and associated CEQA.

6. Cost proposal broken down by Phase 1 and Phase 2, the services being provided during
each phase, and hourly wage rates for all personnel providing the service. The cost
proposal should follow the estimated project schedule. The City will not be selecting the
firm based on price, but will evaluate the thought that went into developing the
estimated schedule and the staffing to accomplish each phase.

7. The estimated project schedule and cost proposal should be organized such that Phase
1 is completed first then Phase 2.

CONTRACT NO. 2116
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 352 of 487



Submitted to:

City of San Fernando 
Attn: Kanika Kith
Director of Community Development 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street
San Fernando, California 91340

Submitted by:

Rincon Consultants, Inc.
250 East 1st Street, Suite 1400
Los Angeles, California 90012
213-788-4842
rinconconsultants.com 

Proposal for the City of San Fernando

Climate Action and
Resilience Plan
October 10, 2022

EXHIBIT "B"
CONTRACT NO. 2116

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 353 of 487



250 East 1st Street, Suite 1400 
Los Angeles, California 90012 

213-788-4842 

w w w . r i n c o n c o n s u l t a n t s . c o m  

April 11, 2022  
Revised October 10, 2022 

Kanika Kith 
Director of Community Development  
City of San Fernando  
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, California 91340 

Subject: Proposal to Prepare the City of San Fernando Climate Action and Resilience Plan (CARP) 

Dear Ms. Kith: 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) is excited to submit this proposal to assist the City of San Fernando with 
development of a Climate Action and Resilience Plan (CARP) in support of the City’s goal to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) and adapt to climate change. Rincon’s submittal represents our team’s 
commitment to serve as an extension of City staff with the necessary technical, managerial, and strategic 
thinking skills to successfully complete the project. Rincon is currently assisting the City with an update to 
the city’s Safety Element which provides an excellent foundation in understanding climate risks and 
vulnerable populations and provides time and cost efficiencies. Rincon is one of the leading climate action 
and resilience planning firms in California and has extensive experience with cities across the state on plans 
that address both GHG emissions and climate resilience. Rincon has worked on more than 45 climate action 
plans and more than 20 climate vulnerability assessments, including for the cities of Pasadena, South 
Pasadena, Walnut, Burbank, La Canada, Monterey Park, Ojai, Ventura, Oxnard, and Port Hueneme. 

We believe the combination of our statewide experience with climate action and resilience planning, our 
existing and ongoing work with the City of San Fernando, and regional experience inform our unique 
understanding of and sensitivity to the broad range of issues that will be important to this project. Leading 
the Rincon team, Erik Feldman, LEED-AP, will serve as the Principal-in-Charge. Mr. Feldman oversees 
Rincon’s statewide climate action, climate adaptation, and climate investment grant program and is 
responsible for the leadership and development of Rincon’s climate action and sustainability services. 
Reema Shakra, AICP, will serve as the Project Manager and Point-of-Contact and will directly technical 
oversite of the vulnerability assessment and resilience measures. Ms. Shakra co-authored the Southern 
California Association of Governments (SCAG) Adaptation Planning Guide which established a climate 
adaptation planning process, along with tools and resources, for all 198 member cities, counites and tribes in 
the SCAG region. She is currently managing the City of San Fernando Safety Element update, which 
identifies key climate risks and resilience and environmental justice policies and programs. Our team will be 
supported by Hannah Mize, as Assistant Project Manager and will be responsible for the technical oversite of 
the greenhouse gas inventory and mitigation measures. Ms. Mize has extensive regional sustainability and 
climate experience, including the recent management and development of climate action plans for the cities 
of South Pasadena, Burbank, and Walnut. This structure will provide an efficient parallel track approach to 
completion of the climate action and resilience phases of the project. 

To maximize the benefits of Rincon’s proven CARP expertise, we have developed a team of strategic 
partners including Climate Resolve a renowned LA County community-based organization focused on 
building collaborations to champion equitable climate solutions to lead community engagement and 
outreach and advise on community-based resilience strategies. Climate Resolve has extensive climate 
related community engagement in the greater LA region, including recent work on the Canoga Park Urban 
Cooling project, Boyle Heights Resilience Hub, and Los Angeles County Climate Change Vulnerability 
Assessment. To better help the community visualize the strategies being promoted in the CARP, we have 
partnered with Virtual Planet Technologies to create virtual reality 3-D models to be deployed as an 
interactive and fun engagement tool. Virtual Planet Technologies excel at contextualizing abstract concepts 
into day-to-day lived experiences. To round out the engagement approach, we have set aside a mini-grant in 
our proposed cost estimate to be directed towards community-based organizations of the City’s choosing to 
effectively engage with hard-to-reach population groups. We have identified the Fernandeño Tataviam Band 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 354 of 487



City of San Fernando 
City of San Fernando Climate Action and Resilience Plan (CARP) 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. Page 2 

of Mission Indians as an excellent recipient for the mini-grant due to their past partnerships with the City of 
San Fernando, including tree-plantings at the San Fernando Recreation Park and creation of the Youth 
Diversion Program for Native Teens, and their proven ability to effectively engage with communities that are 
traditionally excluded from typical planning processes. Our team is also supplemented by HIP Investors who 
will identify equitable funding and financing mechanisms to support the City with implementation of GHG-
reduction and adaptation measures. Iteris will support the transportation emissions calculations for the GHG 
emission inventory as part of Phase 1. This multi-disciplinary team is specifically designed to provide CARP 
exertise, leverage stakeholder and community relationships, and identify funding for CARP 
implementation,all of which is critical to the success of the CARP program.  

Located less than 22 miles from San Fernando, Rincon is a California “S” Corporation with an office in 
downtown Los Angeles at 250 East 1st Street. Rincon has a long and successful track record working with 
municipal clients, and we have played a prominent role in California’s sustainability and climate action 
environment, providing strategic consulting on decarbonization and adaptation plans to public and private 
clients for more than a decade. We believe that Rincon’s clear understanding of San Fernando’s operations 
and community and our proven track record on other complex sustainability and climate action related 
programs across the state make us uniquely qualified to assist San Fernando with the development of a 
CARP.  

We are confident that you will find the Rincon Team to be uniquely suited and highly qualified in all of the 
technical and management areas that are required for successful execution of this program. The work 
program outlined herein is fully negotiable to meet San Fernando’s needs for this exciting assignment. We 
welcome the opportunity to meet with you to discuss this submittal. Please do not hesitate to contact us if 
you have questions or need additional information. 

Sincerely, 
Rincon Consultants, Inc. 

Reema Shakra, CARP Project Manager 
Phone: 213-973-4209 
Email: rshakra@rinconconsultants.com  

Contact for Clarification 

Erik Feldman, LEED AP, Principal 
Phone: 805-644-4455 
Email: efeldman@rinconconsultants.com  

Authorized to contractually obligate and negotiate 
on behalf of Rincon 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 355 of 487

mailto:rshakra@rinconconsultants.com
mailto:efeldman@rinconconsultants.com


Table of Contents 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. i 

Table of Contents 
1. Firm Profile ............................................................................................................................................. 1 

About Rincon .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Subconsultants ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Experience .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Climate Action and Adaptation Planning ................................................................................................. 7 

Project Experience ............................................................................................................................... 10 

3. Key Personnel .........................................................................................................................................13 

Team Organization ............................................................................................................................... 14 

Biographies for Key Personnel ..............................................................................................................16 

4. References ............................................................................................................................................ 21 

5. Project Schedule ................................................................................................................................... 23 

6. Project Scope and Cost ......................................................................................................................... 26 

Approach ............................................................................................................................................. 27 

Workload Coordination ......................................................................................................................... 29 

Scope of Work ...................................................................................................................................... 29 

Appendices 
Appendix A Staff Resumes  

Appendix B Standard Fee Schedules 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 356 of 487

file://Rincon.net/Library/EPS/LA%20Co/22-12412%20San%20Fernando%20CAP%20Grant%20Support/Proposal/San%20Fernando%20Proposal_Revised_10102022.docx#_Toc116053976
file://Rincon.net/Library/EPS/LA%20Co/22-12412%20San%20Fernando%20CAP%20Grant%20Support/Proposal/San%20Fernando%20Proposal_Revised_10102022.docx#_Toc116053979
file://Rincon.net/Library/EPS/LA%20Co/22-12412%20San%20Fernando%20CAP%20Grant%20Support/Proposal/San%20Fernando%20Proposal_Revised_10102022.docx#_Toc116053982
file://Rincon.net/Library/EPS/LA%20Co/22-12412%20San%20Fernando%20CAP%20Grant%20Support/Proposal/San%20Fernando%20Proposal_Revised_10102022.docx#_Toc116053985
file://Rincon.net/Library/EPS/LA%20Co/22-12412%20San%20Fernando%20CAP%20Grant%20Support/Proposal/San%20Fernando%20Proposal_Revised_10102022.docx#_Toc116053986
file://Rincon.net/Library/EPS/LA%20Co/22-12412%20San%20Fernando%20CAP%20Grant%20Support/Proposal/San%20Fernando%20Proposal_Revised_10102022.docx#_Toc116053987


Firm Profile 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 1 

1. Firm Profile

“The Rincon Team made the development of our updated Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan 
simple and designed the Plan to provide a set of implementable measures that reflect the 
diverse voices in our community in order to reduce emissions, mitigate and adapt to climate 
change risks, establish resilient neighborhoods, and lead the way toward a more sustainable 
future. They were very responsive collaborator in the development of the plan with City staff 
and were mindful of budget and timelines.“ 

– Karen Pan, Administrative Officer, City of Burbank  

1 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 357 of 487



Firm Profile 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 2 

1 Firm Profile 

About Rincon 
Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) is a multi-
disciplinary environmental science, planning, and 
engineering consulting firm that provides 
professional services to both government and 
industry. Our skilled professionals have many years 
of experience in climate action, adaptation, and 
resilience planning, greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions inventorying and analysis, vulnerability 
assessment, California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) compliance and streamlining, energy 
conservation and electrification, green building, 
and public engagement related to these services. 
Our approach focuses on well-designed solutions 
that respond to our clients’ specific needs in a 
cost-effective manner. 

Rincon has extensive experience in climate action 
and resilience planning as well as implementation 
and monitoring. We have assisted numerous 
counties and cities throughout the state with 
climate action, adaptation, and implementation 
and have built cutting-edge tools to help 
jurisdictions track their implementation progress 
over time. We have also prepared GHG inventories 
and developed CEQA Guidelines section 15183.5 
qualified CAPs and associated CAP/CARP 
compliance checklists and CEQA GHG thresholds 
for purposes of CEQA tiering. We have worked on 
the ground with developers and contractors to 
design highly efficient all electric buildings utilizing 
the newest technology including solar 
photovoltaic, solar thermal, air and water source 
heat pumps, and battery storage. 

Through our extensive CARP experience, we have 
gained an understanding of the variety of goals that 
drive the development of a CARP, such as GHG 
reduction, local vulnerabilities, CEQA streamlining 
for future development, grant funding and co-
benefits such as improved economy, cleaner air, 
more resilient communities, and improved health. 
We work with communities to help guide CARP 
development to meet the needs of the community 
and establish measures that are implementable 
within the local political context. We look forward 
to working with San Fernando and the local community to identify a CARP strategy that fits the local 
perspective and derives equitable benefits for the entire community. 

Rincon 
at a Glance 
ESTABLISHED 1994 
Rincon Consultants, Inc. was founded 
in 1994 in Ventura, California. Our 
guiding principles and core values 
hold strong to this day. 

LOCAL 
With an office in Los Angeles and 12 
additional offices throughout the 
state, Rincon is always close enough 
to provide responsive professional 
services. 

28 PROJECT AWARDS 
Rincon has received numerous project 
awards including awards from APWA, 
APA and AEP. 

400+ STAFF 
Our employees are leaders in their 
professional fields and continually 
work together to produce high-quality 
products. 

WEBSITE 
Find out more about Rincon Consultants 
at www.rinconconsultants.com  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 358 of 487

http://www.rinconconsultants.com/


Firm Profile 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 3 

Rincon’s corporate culture focuses on providing environmental consulting services in a manner that is 
beneficial to both the environment and our client’s needs. We perceive ourselves as an extension of our 
client’s team and function with their best interests in mind. By managing each project with a focus on three 
primary objectives – economic efficiency, technical excellence, and sustainable approach – we provide 
superior service that efficiently and effectively meets the needs of our clients. 

The Rincon Team knows that fostering a workplace where diversity of thought and opinion, and people who 
are celebrated will lead to a smarter, more creative, aligned, and socially aware team. These values are built 
into our project approach by incorporating use of equity guardrails in our planning practice. These values are 
also carried through our corporate approach where our Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee is working 
to recruit diverse talent, partner with more diverse business enterprises, and provide high-quality 
environmental education in the communities in which we live and work. We operate in this capacity because 
we truly love what we do and want to build the most sustainable future by regularly applying our knowledge 
and experiences in achieving the highest levels of sustainability in our business operations, as well as our 
daily lives. 

Subconsultants
Climate Resolve | Community Engagement 

Climate Resolve focuses on local solutions to global climate change and 
works to achieve outcomes bestowing multiple benefits. Climate 
Resolve strives to make California more equitable, just, livable, 
prosperous, and sustainable today and for future generations by 
inspiring people to reduce climate pollution and prepare for climate 
impacts. Climate Resolve fundamentally believes that solutions must 

benefit all, especially low-income communities who are most affected by climate change and least able to 
defend against its impacts. Climate Resolve works with policymakers, planners, and project teams to 
develop cutting-edge strategies that maximize greenhouse gas reductions, climate adaptation, and other 
community co-benefits, such as increased access to opportunity and improved public health outcomes. To 
do this, Climate Resolve works with diverse stakeholders to shape and build consensus around integrated 
solutions. The state has turned to Climate Resolve as a key partner in developing climate resilience 
strategies for communities throughout California; for example, through its partnership in updating the 
Safeguarding California Plan. Climate Resolve also serves as a mentor and facilitator of knowledge 
exchanges around community climate resilience efforts through its role as chair of the Alliance of Regional 
Climate Collaboratives for Climate Adaptation (ARCCA). The organization’s areas of expertise include: 
climate resiliency, climate mitigation and adaptation, climate financing, land use planning, environmental 
equity, government processes, stakeholder engagement, transit-oriented strategies, urban 
greening/cooling, and community co-benefits.  

Equity is at the center of everything Climate Resolve does, and our outreach work has centered on 
communicating climate change and its impacts as a means of inspiring local action. We take climate 
research concerning the fate of Los Angeles and make those findings data-accessible and relevant in the 
day-to-day lives of Angelenos, especially those in vulnerable, low-income communities. Over the last several 
years, Climate Resolve has organized community presentations in underrepresented communities across 
the entirety of Los Angeles and has focused on local climate actions by presenting low-cost, achievable 
solutions. Climate Resolve staff concentrate our outreach on local centers of communities, places like 
public libraries, community college classes, neighborhood councils, senior centers, and community events. 
We find that introducing solutions that are both cost-saving and sustainable appeals to a vast majority of 
audience members. Climate Resolve also addresses the environmental and health co-benefits of climate 
action, ensuring better air quality, less extreme heat, and more accessible public transportation in residents’ 
communities. Climate Resolve aims to make climate change extremely local, especially in disadvantaged 
communities that are being most affected by it. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 359 of 487



Firm Profile 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 4 

Climate Resolve assisted the City of Long Beach in developing a comprehensive CAAP that set aspirational 
yet achievable measures to reduce community-wide and municipal greenhouse gas emissions and feasible 
implementation strategies for adaptation to climate change impacts. Climate Resolve also helped develop 
and implement a Community Outreach Plan for the CAAP. Facilitating many collaborative discussions with 
stakeholders, Climate Resolve solicited feedback to shape strategies while also building support and 
momentum for the implementation of those strategies. Through this project, Climate Resolve interacted 
directly with disadvantaged communities; many of the census tracts in Long Beach are in the top 25% 
designated by CalEnviroScreen. A link to the final CAAP is available here: 
www.longbeach.gov/lbds/planning/caap/  

Iteris, Inc. | Transportation Emissions 
Iteris, Inc. (Iteris), a Delaware corporation founded in 1987, is the market 
leader in providing Traffic Information Management Solutions to the 
Intelligent Traffic Management Industry. Decades of expertise in traffic 
management, along with superior services and patented products help 
detect, measure, and manage traffic and vehicular performance; minimize 

traffic congestion; and empower Iteris’ clients with solutions to better manage their transportation 
networks. The firm is headquartered in Santa Ana, California with offices nationwide. Iteris’ 425+ staff are 
experts in transportation planning, traffic engineering, and Intelligent Transportation Systems. Knowledge 
of these practice areas enables the firm to provide comprehensive services ranging from initial traffic 
impact studies, transportation modeling, planning, systems engineering, and detailed design, through 
implementation and performance monitoring. Iteris combines the knowledge of transportation engineers, 
systems engineers, system integrators, software engineers, and transportation planners to offer an 
unmatched combination of talent and experience. The innovative solutions Iteris develops and deploys help 
public agencies reduce traffic congestion, enhance transit use, monitor, and manage transportation 
networks, and provide greater access to reliable traveler information. 

HIP Investors | Funding and Financing 
HIP Investor Inc. (HIP) is a globally recognized, multi-sector firm 
serving sustainable, responsible, and impact investors and 
investees. Founded in 2006, HIP produces and licenses 125,000 

sustainability ratings of investments of all types – including more than 100,000+ municipal bond issuers. 
HIP’s clients include institutional investors and fund managers, as well as family offices, foundations, and 
endowments, along with hedge funds and retirement plans. HIP’s investment methodologies are used by 
investees to quantify and communicate the level of sustainability and impact, including climate action and 
energy efficiency. HIP Investor’s team of professionals are based in San Francisco, Oakland, Los Angeles, 
New York City, Copenhagen, and Berlin. 

HIP has worked with more than 21 cities and counties, and their sustainability leaders, via the Urban 
Sustainability Directors Network (USDN), to identify climate-action initiatives that reduce GHG emissions 
and have a positive return on investment (ROI). These GHG-ROI projects and programs can be financed by 
sustainability-focused impact investors and fund managers. HIP created, with the City of Palo Alto and 
USDN, a Scan and Toolkit for Financing Sustainable Cities. HIP’s three centers of expertise include: (1) rating 
investments on sustainability, (2) advising investors seeking impact and profit, and (3) recommending to 
investees on how to pursue higher impact that can be financed by investors, including climate action plans. 
HIP authors how-to guides and books, including The HIP Investor: Make Bigger Profits by Building a Better 
World (John Wiley & Sons, 2010), which is included in the curricula of 27 universities, colleges, and graduate 
degree programs for MBAs and MPAs, as well as Executive Education. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 360 of 487

http://www.longbeach.gov/lbds/planning/caap/


Firm Profile 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 5 

Virtual Planet Technologies LLC | Virtual Reality 
Virtual Planet Technologies LLC produces immersive 
experiences that support community engagement, outreach, 
and science and policy communication to diverse audiences. 
Our goal is to educate, start dialog, drive action, and inspire 
hope for the future of our planet. 

As communities worldwide face climate impacts including more frequent flooding, heatwaves, and wildfires, 
a critical piece of the puzzle has become educating stakeholders in highly creative, insightful, and practical 
ways. Virtual Planet’s immersive stories allow anyone to actually experience climate impacts through hyper 
realistic 3D models and 360° views of their communities. These experiences convey complex concepts in 
simple ways, including climate impacts and possible solutions to reduce future and current risks. Our team 
has a range of expertise including climate scientists, filmmakers, script, communications experts, 3D 
artists, software developers, and drone pilots. Our applications support planning, management and 
monitoring activities related to flooding, coastal erosion, heatwaves, wildfire, mental health, and more.  

Virtual Planet aims to create accessible, experiential VR products that allow its users—everyone from 
elementary school students to policy makers—to better grasp the implications of climate change, the long-
term timelines around coastal impacts, and experience educational story materials while immersed in VR. In 
our tools, users interact with 3D models and can raise sea levels to observe potential flooding in real-time 
and understand the tradeoffs between nature-based vs hard engineering solutions; they can watch a 
firestorm consume serval acres per second in California and visualize the benefits of safety buffers and 
vegetation management to reduce risks; experience an urban heat island being transformed to include more 
trees and bike lanes. Finally, equity and inclusion are in the forefront of our minds and is reflected in our core 
team and collaborators. 

Virtual Planet Technologies completed a virtual reality application and complimentary video for the City of 
Cleveland, Ohio that reimagines how the City could look by implementing measures to reduce or sequester 
GHG emissions and improve adaptive capacity, such as planting trees. The virtual reality application was 
interactive and allowed the viewer to physically explore the communities that they are familiar with. The 
story is narrated by a resident and tells the story of how they grew up in the City and have experienced the 
impacts of climate change firsthand. The narrator is a young student, waiting for the bus in an unsheltered 
bus stop as he listens to an announcer on the radio talk about an impending heat wave, defining integral 
climate change terms, such as urban heat island, throughout the explanation. Cars continue to pass, and the 
color of the video begins to change, demonstrating the change in temperature. In the community outreach 
events, heaters are used to blow warm air simultaneously and provide an immersive experience for the 
viewer. Views from the past are shown with lush trees that line the areas where the current streets are 
located, providing insight into what a greener, and cooler, Cleveland may look and feel like. As the virtual 
reality experience and video transition into the future, the screen becomes bright, trees begin to grow, 
providing shade for residents who ride by on bikes and scooters demonstrating that there is hope and 
providing visual insight into real solutions. A link to the video if available here: 
https://vimeo.com/637224183/1ce3f01d06  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 361 of 487

https://vimeo.com/637224183/1ce3f01d06


Experience 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 6 

2 

 
2. Experience

“We developed a great partnership with Rincon during the climate action planning process. 
Rincon ensured that, at its core, the City’s Climate Action Plan reduced greenhouse gas 
emissions through equitable, achievable, and implementable actions that equally benefit all 
South Pasadenans. We consider them trusted advisors and look forward to working together 
again in the future!” 

– Arpy Kasparian, Water Conservation and Sustainability Analyst, City of South Pasadena 

2 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 362 of 487



Experience 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 7 

2 Experience 

Climate Action and Adaptation Planning 
Rincon has a team of more than 400 staff, making us large enough to provide the expertise needed to 
successfully support our clients plan for and execute meaningful, innovative, and complex projects, yet 
flexible enough to quickly respond to changes in direction or special challenges that may emerge. Our broad 
experience in climate action and resilience planning, as well as implementation of the related measures and 
the advanced experience of key staff in past projects establishes us as particularly well-suited for this 
project. We have developed policies and ordinances for sustainability measures relating to buildings, energy, 
water, waste, and transportation as part of our work developing CARPs and CARP implementation for clients 
across California. Our Rincon Team not only develops plans but also works with our clients to implement 
those plans to create real change. We work with developers to create all-electric buildings, internally with 
municipalities like our work with the San Mateo Regional Climate Action Planning Suite program 
implementing measures and actions, and recently with the City of Berkeley on a first-of-its-kind analysis and 
plan for citywide electrification. Our unique combination of policy and implementation experience allows us 
to craft real world solutions to some of California’s most difficult climate-related challenges. The image 
below demonstrates the breadth of the climate action, adaptation, and resilience work that the Rincon has 
completed for various jurisdictions throughout the state. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 363 of 487



Experience 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 8 

Rincon recognizes the role that climate action planning plays in achieving California’s GHG reduction targets 
and resilience strategies and has made it a priority in our practice. As such, this program will be among the 
firm’s highest priorities. Our references will attest to Rincon’s demonstrated ability to respond on short 
notice to our clients’ needs and our proven track record of innovative and completion of highly complex 
assignments on time and within budget. To do so, we have developed web-based tools to analyze key 
emission sectors, develop emission reduction and resilience measures, determine implementation 
feasibility, and track of implementation over time, as detailed to the right. Rincon also has extensive 
experience in CEQA for plan adoption and as well as in implementation and monitoring of CARPs after 
adoption. We have conducted CEQA analysis in nearly every city in California for nearly 30 years, including 
the City of San Fernando. We have also developed qualified CARPs and associated project-level CARP 
compliance checklists, as well as GHG thresholds for CEQA tiering.  

Climate Action Plans and Greenhouse Gas Inventories 
Rincon has prepared CAPs, GHG Reduction Strategies, Sustainability Plans, and GHG Reduction Scorecards, 
as well as the associated GHG inventories, for municipalities, special districts, universities, and private 
clients throughout California. Specifically, our team has prepared over 50 CAPs and GHG Reduction 
Strategies throughout the state. None of the CAPs prepared by Rincon have been legally challenged. Our 
team is comprised of California Air Resources Board (CARB) -Accredited Lead Verifiers who specialize in 
understanding the intersection of emissions across the state. Cumulatively, we have audited approximately 
40 percent of the state’s Cap-and-Trade covered GHG emissions annually, giving us unparalleled experience 
with a wide variety industries and inventory methodologies and a comprehensive understanding of best 
practices. The table below includes Rincon’s recent climate action planning and GHG inventory experience. 
Rincon has also prepared the associated CEQA assessments for the majority of our climate action planning 
efforts and recognizes the benefits of establishing a qualified CARP framework, which provides the City with 
the ability to streamline future CEQA GHG analyses by being able to tier off the CARP. This unique 
combination of expertise allows us to develop accurate and defensible CEQA documents in a cost-effective 
manner. 

Agencies that Rincon has Assisted with GHG Inventories and/or CAPs 

Berkeley College 
Calaveras County 
City of Albany 
City of Arroyo Grande 
City of Atascadero 
City of Beverly Hills 
City of Burbank 
City of Chico 
City of Cupertino 
City of Dublin 
City of Grover Beach 

City of La Canada  
City of Lake Elsinore  
City of Livermore  
City of Madera 
City of Montclair 
City of Morro Bay 
City of Pasadena 
City of Paso Robles 
City of Vista 
City of Walnut  
City of West Hollywood 

City of Pinole 
City of Pismo Beach  
City of Pittsburg 
City of Pleasanton 
City of Port Hueneme 
City of Sacramento 
City of San Luis Obispo 
City of San Marcos 
City of Santa Barbara 
City of Santa Cruz  
City of South Pasadena  

County of Santa Barbara  
CSU, Channel Islands  
Imperial County 
Kings County  
Merced County  
Oxnard College 
Peralta Community College 
District 
San Mateo County 
Santa Clara County 

Select project experience, which include the website where each document is available, are featured further 
in this section under “Project Experience.” 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 364 of 487



Experience 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 9 

Climate Adaptation Plans, Vulnerability Assessments and Safety 
Elements 
Rincon prepares cutting edge climate vulnerability assessments and develops effective adaptation and 
resilience plans across local and regional scales. At the local level, Rincon prepares climate vulnerability 
assessments and adaptation plans as a component of CARPs, Local Coastal Programs, General Plan updates, 
and Local Hazard Mitigation Plans. The following list shows Rincon’s climate adaptation planning experience. 

Agencies that Rincon has Assisted on Climate Adaptation and Resilience Planning 

• Calaveras County & Angels Camp City Wildfire-related
GHG Inventory and Adaptation Strategies 

• City of Calabasas General Plan Update + Wildfire and
Evacuation Assessments 

• City of Carmel Adaptation Strategy 
• City of Cupertino Adaptation Strategy 
• City of Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency Local

Hazard Mitigation Plan 

• Greater Placerville Wildfire Evacuation
preparedness, Community Safety, and Resiliency 
Plan 

• Nevada County Extreme Climate Event
Mobility/Adaptation Plan 

• San Bernardino Water Valley Authority Climate
Adaptation and Resilience Plan (CARP)

Agencies that Rincon has Assisted on Climate Change Vulnerability Assessments 

• City of Avalon General Plan Update + Local Coastal Plan 
• City of Beverly Hills Climate Vulnerability Assessment
• City of Burbank Climate Vulnerability Assessment 
• City of Carlsbad Vulnerability Assessment
• City of Hayward Climate Vulnerability Assessment 
• City of La Cañada Flintridge Climate Vulnerability 

Assessment
• City of Livermore Climate Vulnerability Assessment
• City of Monterey Park Climate Vulnerability 

Assessment 
• City of Nevada City Climate Vulnerability Assessment
• City of Ojai Climate Vulnerability Assessment
• City of Oxnard Local Coastal Plan Update, Climate 

Vulnerability Assessment, + Sea Level Rise Adaptation
Strategy Report

• City of Pasadena Climate Vulnerability Assessment  

• City of Port Hueneme General Plan Update + Local
Coastal Plan1

• City of Rolling Hills Climate Vulnerability Assessment 
• City of San Leandro Climate Vulnerability 

Assessment 
• City of Santa Barbara (Yanonali St.) Sea Level Rise

Assessment
• City of Simi Valley Climate Vulnerability Assessment 
• City of South Pasadena Climate Vulnerability 

Assessment 
• City of Ventura Climate Vulnerability Assessment 
• City of Walnut Climate Vulnerability Assessment 
• Fresno County Vulnerability Assessment
• San Mateo County Climate Vulnerability Assessment
• Stanislaus County Climate Vulnerability Assessment
• Trinity County Vulnerability Assessment 

Agencies that Rincon has Developed Resilience Policies as part of Safety Element Updates 

• City of American Canyon Safety Element 
• City of Bakersfield Safety Element 
• City of Beaumont Safety Element 
• City of Brea Safety Element 
• City of Burbank Safety Element 
• City of Carlsbad Safety Element
• City of Claremont Safety Element 
• City of Duarte Safety Element 
• City of Hayward Safety Element
• City of Monterey Park Safety Element 
• City of Nevada City Safety Element 
• City of Ojai Safety Element 
• City of Palmdale Safety Element 
• City of Rolling Hills Safety Element 
• City of San Fernando Safety Element 

• City of Sierra Madre Safety Element 
• City of Simi Valley Safety Element 
• City of Thousand Oaks Safety Element 
• City of Ventura Safety Element 
• City of Palo Alto Safety Element
• City of Petaluma Safety Element 
• City of Piedmont Safety Element 
• City of Port Hueneme Safety Element 
• City of San Leandro Safety Element 
• City of San Ramon Safety Element 
• City of Santa Maria Safety Element 
• City of Solvang Safety Element 
• City of Ukiah Safety Element 
• Trinity County Safety Element 

1 Received Award of Excellence from the APACA Central Coast & Award of Merit from AEP 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 365 of 487



Experience 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 10 

Project Experience 
The following section includes detailed experience for projects involving similar scopes of service. 

City of Burbank  
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan and Environmental Review 
Burbank, California 

Rincon is currently overseeing the preparation of a Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan (GGRP) Update for the 
City of Burbank that will serve as a “qualified GGRP” under CEQA. The work scope includes development of an 
updated GHG inventory, forecast, reduction measures, and CEQA analysis with streamlining documentation. 
The Burbank GGRP Update builds upon the efforts of the City’s 2035 GGRP, adopted in 2013, with an updated 
GHG inventory and GHG-reduction targets to meet the state’s stringent 2030 reduction targets of reducing 
GHG emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels. The Rincon team is working closely with Burbank to engage 
all City departments, including the utility provider Burbank Water and Power, in development of GHG-
reduction measures that are supported by substantial evidence. Rincon is also using the unique opportunity 
of virtual community and stakeholder outreach to implement tools to further the reach of engagement 
efforts to enable a diverse and equitable community voice in plan development. Prior to adoption of the 
GGRP Update, Rincon will develop the documentation needed to unlock the potential to use the GGRP Update 
as a tool for streamlining development review, including the CEQA analysis and GGRP consistency checklist. 
To ensure future legal defensibility of the GGRP Update, Rincon is establishing a streamlined implementation 
tracking program centered around the use of the Rincon’s proprietary CAPDash tool, which will allow regular 
and transparent reporting of the status of the GGRP Update implementation. The Public Review Draft is 
currently available and the Final GGRP Update is anticipated to be adopted in May 2022.  

Dates: February 2020 to Present  
Staff:  Erik Feldman (Principal-in-Charge), Hannah Mize (Project Manager), Andrew Beecher (Technical 

Lead) 
Website: www.burbankca.gov/web/community-development/climate-action-plan 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 366 of 487

http://www.burbankca.gov/web/community-development/climate-action-plan


Experience 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 11 

City of Beverly Hills 
Climate Action and Adaptation Plan 
Beverly Hills, California 

The City of Beverly Hills has been engaged in climate change mitigation and resilience for a long time, with a 
keen focus on maintaining economic vitality. Beverly Hills was an early member of the Clean Power Alliance, 
which allowed businesses and residents to purchase low carbon electricity without increasing electricity 
rates. Beverly Hills has also converted a portion of the City-owned vehicle fleet to renewable fuels through 
the assistance of the State’s Low Carbon Fuel Standards Program. 

Rincon is currently preparing a Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) to assist Beverly Hills in furthering 
their previous efforts in greenhouse gas mitigation, and to prepare the city’s residents and business for the 
current and future impacts of climate change. The CAAP will layout tiered greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction pathways for Beverly Hills to eventually become a carbon neutral city, with each pathway 
evaluating the economic impact to businesses and residents while considering priorities of their unique 
demographics. The CAAP includes a robust climate change vulnerability assessment which guided the 
development of resilience strategies. The CAAP is intended to demonstrate compliance with key state 
greenhouse gas reduction legislation, including Senate Bill 32 and Executive Order B-55-18, and will be 
supplemented with analysis under CEQA for greenhouse gas emissions streamlining purposes. To track 
CAAP implementation and greenhouse gas emissions reductions tracking over time, Rincon is providing 
Beverly Hills with the proprietary CAPDash tool, which will allow for streamlined reporting of implementation 
status to stakeholders. 

Dates: February 2021 to December 2023 
Staff:  Erik Feldman (Principal-in-Charge), Reema Shakra (Adaptation Advisor and Project Manager), 

Andrew Beecher (Greenhouse Gas Technical Lead and Assistant Project Manager), Camila 
Bobroff (Climate Vulnerability Assessment Technical Lead) 

Website: 9021zeroemissions.rinconconsultants.com 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 367 of 487

https://9021zeroemissions.rinconconsultants.com/


Experience 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 12 

City of Port Hueneme 
Climate Action and Adaptation Plan 
Port Hueneme, California 

The City of Port Hueneme has approximately 21,954 residents and is a similar size as San Fernando. 
Additionally, similar to the City of San Fernando, Port Hueneme has a large population of residents that 
speak a language other than English at home, over ten percent of residents lack health insurance, fewer than 
25 percent of residents have a bachelor’s degree or higher, and the median household income is less than 
$65,000, which is over $10,000 less than the median household income statewide ($78,672).1  

Rincon prepared a Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) as part of the comprehensive update of the 
Port Hueneme General Plan and EIR program. The CAAP including a climate vulnerability assessment, GHG 
inventory, and adaptation and GHG mitigation measures and incorporated work completed to date and 
address contemporary planning issues like climate change, safety, housing, and economic resilience. The 
CAAP also addressed all new statutory State requirements such as: climate change, greenhouse gas 
emissions, and sustainability (Executive Orders, AB 32, SB 375, SB 197, SB 32), climate adaptation and 
resiliency strategies (SB 379, AB 2140), vehicle miles travelled (VMT) analysis under CEQA (SB 743), and 
environmental justice (SB 1000). The Rincon team accomplished this during the State’s shelter-in-place 
mandate and conducted all engagement virtually. This program was accomplished in a way that worked 
within the context of Port Hueneme’s needs and environment while creating a modern, legally defensible 
document. The project won Award of Excellence for the 2022 American Planning Association's California 
Chapter (APACA) Central Coast Planning Award and the Award of Merit for the 2022 Associates of 
Environmental Planning (AEP), Planning Document Award.  

Dates: November 2019 to October 2021 
Staff:  Reema Shakra (Adaptation Advisor), Camila Bobroff (Climate Action and Adaptation Plan Assistant 

Project Manager)  

Website: https://www.ci.port-hueneme.ca.us/1272/2045-General-Plan  

1 https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/CA

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 368 of 487

https://www.ci.port-hueneme.ca.us/1272/2045-General-Plan
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/CA


Key Personnel 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 13 

4 

 
3. Key Personnel

“We had an extremely positive experience with Rincon on Berkeley’s Existing Buildings 
Electrification Strategy. The team was thoughtful, collaborative, and professional, 
providing high quality deliverables on time and within budget. They consistently went above 
and beyond what was expected, bringing technical expertise, skillful project management 
and excellent graphic design resulting in a great product. They fostered a positive and 
supportive team culture and were a pleasure to work with.” 

Katie Van Dyke, Chief Resilience Officer Office of Energy & Sustainable Development, City 
of Berkeley 

3 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 369 of 487



Key Personnel 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 14 

3 Key Personnel 
Rincon has operated its climate service line with the simple idea that we want our work to result in tangible, 
positive change in the community. Plans and roadmaps that sit on the shelf serve no purpose. Therefore, we 
set out to tackle the hurdles to successful climate action and resilience planning by working with our clients 
and their communities, opening communication across City and County departments, and not shying away 
from complex problems. For the City of San Fernando CARP, Rincon has assembled a team of highly skilled 
environmental science and planning professionals who combine extensive technical qualifications and 
knowledge of climate action and resilience planning with several years of experience working in the region. 
Additionally, we have partnered with a team of experts from Climate Resolve, Iteris, and HIP Investors. 
Virtual Planet Technologies are available to join the team should the City select the virtual reality optional 
task. We also recommend offering the mini-grant set aside in our proposed budget to organizations such as 
the Fernandeño Tataviam Band of Mission Indians to serve as a partner in engaging harder-to-reach 
community members. Brief biographies for key team members are included on the following pages. Detailed 
resumes with project references are provided in Appendix A. 

Team Organization 
The following page illustrates the composition of our team.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 370 of 487



Key Personnel 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 15 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 371 of 487



Key Personnel 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 16 

Biographies for Key Personnel 
Rincon has assembled a team of highly skilled environmental science and planning professionals who 
combine extensive technical qualifications and knowledge of CEQA with several years of experience 
working in the region. Brief biographies for key team members are included on the following pages, 
with full resumes attached.  

Rincon Team 

Erik Feldman | Principal-in-Charge 
Erik Feldman’s experience includes greenhouse gas modeling and auditing, 
climate action and adaptation planning and sustainability design and program 
development. Additionally, he is involved in a wide range of urban planning and 
land use studies, sustainable development review, and CEQA environmental 
documentation and permitting activities. He has assisted numerous local 
agencies and development projects with the development of greenhouse gas 
thresholds, analytical methods, and resilience and reduction strategies in 
California. Mr. Feldman also has extensive experience preparing Qualified 
greenhouse gas Reduction Plans as defined by CEQA Guidelines 15183.5 and 
utilizing these plans to streamline greenhouse gas CEQA analysis for 

development projects. Mr. Feldman applies this experience in the successful management of environmental 
and sustainability projects for variety of clients in the public and private sectors. He has led and participated 
in numerous greenhouse gas- and sustainability-related presentations including for the California American 
Planning Association and at universities such as California State University (CSU), Channel Islands, California 
State University, CSU Long Beach, Cal Poly San Luis Obispo, University of San Diego, and University of 
California, Santa Barbara. He has also served as a member of the Board of Directors for the U.S. Green 
Building Council  

California Central Coast Chapter and is a member of the Steering Committee for the Gridley Water Group in 
Ojai. 

Reema Shakra | Project Manager 
Ms. Shakra is a Climate Adaptation Program Manager with 17 years of consulting 
and public agency experience in climate action and adaptation planning and 
community outreach and engagement. Ms. Shakra has a wide-ranging policy 
background, having prepared or managed general plan updates, climate action 
plans, local coastal program updates, corridor plans, and climate adaptation 
plans. She co-authored a step-by-step guidebook for the Southern California 
Association of Governments region which provides local governments with a 
compendium of tools, resources, and best practices to efficiently advance their 
climate adaptation planning process. Ms. Shakra is preparing climate 
vulnerability assessments and adaptation policies and measures for several 

cities in the Los Angeles region, including for the cities of San Fernando, Calabasas, Beverly Hills, Monterey 
Park, and Claremont. She is an active member of the statewide Alliance of Regional Collaboratives for 
Climate Adaptation, Los Angeles Regional Collaborative for Climate Action and Sustainability, and the 
American Society of Adaptation Professionals. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 372 of 487



Key Personnel 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 17 

Hannah Mize | Assistant Project Manager 
Hannah Mize has a strong foundation in and experience with a wide range of 
climate action planning as well as greenhouse gas emissions assessments. She 
has experience assisting with and managing climate action plans, which includes 
overseeing data collection; completing inventory and forecast calculations; 
setting targets; developing emission reduction and adaptation/resilience 
measures; participating in community outreach; and completing draft and final 
plans. She is currently managing the City of Burbank’s Greenhouse Gas Reduction 
Plan Update as well as the City of Pittsburg’s Climate Action Plan and recently 
oversaw the completion of the City of South Pasadena’s inaugural Climate Action 
Plan, all of which are CEQA streamlined greenhouse gas emissions reductions 

plans. Ms. Mize also oversees the verification of greenhouse gas emissions and low carbon fuel through the 
California Air Resource Board Cap-and-Trade Program following the requirements of the Mandatory 
Reporting Regulation and the Low Carbon Fuel Standard, respectively. Ms. Mize manages the team’s robust 
auditing program, which has collectively verified approximately 40 percent of the State of California’s 
industrial greenhouse gas emissions annually, over the past four years. She has conducted greenhouse gas 
verification services throughout the State for electricity generators, electricity and natural gas providers, oil 
and gas production facilities, refineries, mines, and fuel suppliers in conformance with the Assembly Bill 32 
Mandatory Reporting Regulation. She has also worked with transportation agencies to verify low carbon fuel. 

Andrew Beecher | Mitigation Technical Lead 
Andrew Beecher is a Sustainability Planner for Rincon Consultants, Inc., where he 
works as GHG technical specialist and project manager for the Environmental 
Planning Services Group. His experience includes greenhouse gas inventory 
development, GHG reduction strategy development and quantification, Climate 
Action Plan implementation and state GHG reporting audits. He has worked as 
technical lead on municipal, city and county-wide GHG inventories and GHG 
reduction measure development, for which he has developed tools to streamline 
calculation of GHG emissions inventories, forecasts, and GHG reduction 
measures simultaneously for multiple jurisdictions and years. He has experience 
conducting GHG verification services for oil and gas production facilities and fuel 

suppliers in conformance with AB-32 Mandatory Reporting Regulation, as well as verification for the 
California Low Carbon Fuel Standards Program. He has also worked as outreach coordinator for Rincon’s 
award-winning Climate Action Plan Implementation project, the Del Mar Home Energy Savings Program, 
taking on a unique approach to socially equitable policy implementation.  

Camila Bobroff | Adaptation Technical Lead 
Camila Bobroff is a Sustainability Planner with Rincon’s Environmental Planning 
and Sustainability Group. Ms. Bobroff has substantial experience with data 
analysis, greenhouse gas emissions inventories, and developing climate action 
measures and adaptation strategies. She is currently responsible for assisting in 
the preparation of Climate Action Plans, Climate Adaptation Plans, Climate 
Change Vulnerability Assessments, Carbon Inventories, and Safety Elements for 
jurisdictions across California. Ms. Bobroff authored the climate vulnerability 
discussion in the Safety Element update for San Fernando. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 373 of 487



Key Personnel 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 18 

Lilly Rudolph | Expert Grant and Ordinance Writer 
Ms. Rudolph is responsible for managing current planning assignments and long-
range planning documents for municipal planning agencies. Over her career in 
planning, community development, and economic development, Ms. Rudolph has 
developed a broad background of experience ranging from preparing long range 
planning documents to overseeing civic engagement and outreach strategies. 
She has processed a range of development applications for cities and counties 
and has prepared land use-specific ordinances and is experienced in the 
preparation of nonprofit-funded grant applications and grant management. 

Subconsultant Team 

Jonathan Parfrey | Climate Resolve | Project Manager for Climate 
Resolve 

Before founding Climate Resolve, Jonathan Parfrey served as a commissioner at 
the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (2008-2013). Jonathan is a 
founder and board member of CicLAvia, the popular street event, as well as a 
founder of the statewide Alliance of Regional Collaboratives for Climate 
Adaptation. He served as director of the GREEN LA Coalition (2007-2011), and as 
the Los Angeles director of Nobel Peace Prize-winning organization Physicians 
for Social Responsibility (1994 to 2007). Prior to that, Jonathan founded and 
directed the Orange County Catholic Worker (1987-1993). He was appointed to 
Governor Schwarzenegger’s Environmental Policy Team in 2003.Jonathan 
received the Paul S. Delp Award for Outstanding Service, Peace and Social 

Justice (1992), and was awarded a Durfee Foundation Fellowship (2002), a Stanton Fellowship (2010), and was 
appointed a Senior Fellow at the USC Marshall School of Business (2011).  

Gabriel Varela | Climate Resolve | Engagement Lead 
Gabriel Varela is an experienced outreach and community liaison having spent 
years working closely with his local communities. He started by providing 
grassroots educational opportunities on a myriad of local issues in Boyle Heights 
and has continued to advocate for access to local resources on behalf of the 
communities he grew up in. He focuses on relationship building by sharing his 
lived experience as a native Angeleno and learning from the stories of those 
communities he works with. Before joining Climate Resolve, Gabriel worked with 
GRID Alternatives, a local non-profit organization dedicated to democratizing 
access to solar energy and solar jobs in communities that have historically lacked 
access to those resources. As an outreach coordinator and manager, he guided 

countless families and individuals through the process of obtaining photovoltaic systems on their homes 
potentially saving families up to 100% of their energy consumption. Before GRID Alternatives, Gabriel worked 
with the Los Angeles Center for Affordable Tenant Housing where he engaged multiple local stakeholders in 
the local affordable housing community around housing rights education. He collaborated with multifamily 
housing owners, managers, and tenants to spearhead an educational effort to disseminate knowledge about 
section-8 housing rights, responsibilities, and habitability standards. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 374 of 487



Key Personnel 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 19 

Chris Devlin | Iteris | Senior Transportation Lead 
Mr. Devlin has served as a Senior Engineer Planner of Iteris’ Consulting Solutions 
since 2013. He has 31 years of experience in transportation planning and has 
managed and participated in a wide variety of transportation studies. These 
include travel demand forecasting studies, travel surveys, traffic impact studies, 
parking studies, and corridor studies. Mr. Devlin is an experienced travel demand 
forecaster, having developed and worked on over twenty different traffic models 
throughout the world. He is proficient in several modeling packages including 
TransCAD and Cube. He has developed model outputs to support the economic, 
financial, and environmental analysis of major highway, transit, and aviation 
projects and well as vehicle miles traveled (VMT) statistics for Senate Bill 743. Mr. 

Devlin is also proficient in the use of Geographic Information Systems (GIS) for problem-solving, analysis, 
and presentation of results. He has designed and run GIS training courses specifically for Transportation 
Planners, including the design and coding of GIS utilities and scripts. Mr. Devlin has also performed several 
large-scale transportation surveys from the survey design stage, through implementation, data cleaning, 
database population, and reporting. 

Sean Daly | Iteris | Transportation Analyst 
Mr. Daly is a Senior Planner for Iteris’ Consulting Solutions. He has 22 years of 
public sector and professional consulting experience in transportation planning 
and has been with Iteris since 2006. Sean’s approach to planning puts people first 
to ensure access and connectivity rather than barriers and isolation. He is 
supported by Iteris’ focus on to bring professional planning services to his clients 
through a broad array of knowledge, expertise, and experience. Before Iteris, 
Sean was the Transportation Improvement Program Manager at the Boston 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO). He is the Membership Officer for the 
American Planning Association (APA) Louisiana Chapter, and previously served 
on the National Planning Conference Committee as the Mobile Workshop Chair 

for the 2018 National Planning Conference in New Orleans. He is the past Chair of the ASCE Louisiana 
Transportation and Development Institute, and currently serves on the St. Tammany Parish Board of Zoning 
Adjustment.  

R. Paul Herman | HIP Investor | Funding and Financing Lead
R. Paul Herman is CEO of HIP Investor, is a globally recognized leader in investing 
to pursue positive impact and profit. HIP (Human Impact + Profit) Investor 
produces and licenses 125,000 impact investment ratings of stocks, bonds, and 
funds to investors, family offices, family foundations, fiduciaries, wealth
advisors, fund managers, hedge funds, and retirement plans, including 401(k)s. 
HIP's Ratings also help drive the Newsweek Green Rankings and the Peter
Drucker Index. HIP's Portfolios focus on sustainable equities and REITs, and
thematically invest in "great places to work" and fossil-fuel-free strategies. He 
founded HIP Investor 13 years ago to show that investments across all asset
classes can solve human, social and environmental problems - and can be more 

profitable and less risky than being extractive of people, natural resources and trust. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 375 of 487



Key Personnel 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 20 

Nicholas Gower | HIP Investor | Funding and Financing Analyst 
Nicholas Gower is the Vice President of HIP Investor. His work has focused on 
managing much of the daily operations, as well as, marketing and outreach 
efforts. Additionally, Mr. Gower contribute to the databases of sustainability and 
human impact data for potential investments. His experience includes co-
creating the Financing Sustainable Cities Scan and Toolkit, which is an action-
oriented “how-to toolkit” for cities to catalog implementable and emerging 
funding mechanisms that can support cities striving towards bold climate action 
and sustainability goals. Additionally, he has developed quantitative scorecards 
to measure human impact, for proprietary investment analysis for the Global 
Alliance for Banking on Values (GABV) membership, based on the performance of 

current member customer loans and business operations. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 376 of 487



References 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 21 

6 

 
4. References

“It took a unique team to navigate Chico through a controversial update of its Climate Action 
Plan, especially during COVID-19. The global pandemic posed numerous challenges, including 
ensuring a sincere and robust public engagement program and working with the City’s newly 
created Climate Action Commission in a virtual space. Rincon not only met, but exceeded, the 
City’s expectations. The Rincon Team met all deadlines and always with quality deliverables. I’ve 
worked with myriad consultants over the past 20 years, and Rincon stands out due to their 
responsiveness, clear communication, quality writing, focus on problem-solving, and overall 
professionalism. Bottom line – we’ll be using them again!” 

Brendan Vieg, Community Development Director, City of Chico  

4 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 377 of 487



References 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 22 

4 References 
We invite you to contact any of the individuals listed below regarding our qualifications, skills, and project 
management. 

City of Burbank, Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan and Environmental Review 

Contact: Fred Ramirez, Assistant Community Development Director-Planning 

Address: 275 East Olive Avenue, Burbank, California 91502 

Phone: 818-238-5273 

Email Address: FRamirez@burbankca.gov 

Project Description: See Project Experience above.  

City of South Pasadena Climate Action Plan and Environmental Review 

Contact: Arpy Kasparian, Sustainability Analyst 

Address: 1414 Mission Street., South Pasadena, California 91030 

Phone: 626-403-7253 

Email Address: akasparian@southpasadenaca.gov

Project Description: Rincon prepared the South Pasadena Climate Action Plan which serves as a roadmap to 
meet state GHG reduction targets by 2030 and demonstrate substantial progress toward 
achieving carbon neutrality by 2040. Rincon assisted the City with a grant application for 
$120,000 from the Southern California Association of Governments to prepare and develop 
the CAP. 

City of Beverly Hills, Climate Action and Adaptation Plan  

Contact: Josette Descalzo, Environmental Compliance and Sustainability Programs Manager 

Address: 345 Foothill Road, Beverly Hills, California 90210 

Phone: 310-285-2554

Email Address: jdescalzo@beverlyhills.org 

Project Description See Project Experience above. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 378 of 487

mailto:FRamirez@burbankca.gov
mailto:akasparian@southpasadenaca.gov
mailto:jdescalzo@beverlyhills.org


Project Schedule 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 23 

8 

 
5. Project Schedule

“On behalf of the City of Pasadena I want to thank the Rincon Team for your excellent 
performance on the City’s GHG inventory, Climate Action Plan, CEQA review, and CAP 
consistency checklist. Rincon’s overall approach to climate action planning has been very 
responsive and effective at dealing with the ever-evolving nature of climate change 
legislation and policy. Throughout the climate action planning process Rincon provided 
creative solutions that are successful in helping Pasadena reach its GHG reduction goals. 
Rincon’s staff demonstrate a deep understanding of climate planning issues and a willingness 
to collaborate with City staff to deliver documents consistent with our expectations.”  

 - Anita Cerna, Senior Planner, City of Pasadena 

5 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 379 of 487



Project Schedule 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 24 

9 Project Schedule 

The Rincon Team is prepared to begin the work program described in this proposal immediately upon 
authorization to proceed. As depicted on the following graphic, Rincon proposes to adhere to an 
approximately 22-month schedule that allows the Draft CARP to be circulated by April 2024 and adopted by 
July 2024, with an official kickoff date in November 2022. As part of the schedule design, we have included 
at least 10 working days for City review of each task or phase. For the more robust deliverables, including 
Task 2, Vulnerability Assessment, Task 7, Develop Policies and Strategies, Task 8.1, Draft CARP, and Task 9. 
CARP CEQA Assessment, an approximately 20-working-day City-review period is proposed to provide 
additional time for the City. We have also built-in a 1-month public review for the Draft CARP and CEQA 
document after the City’s review to allow the community to provide feedback which will be discussed with 
the City and integrated into the Final CARP and CEQA document, as appropriate.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 380 of 487



Project Schedule 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 25 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 381 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 26 

10 

 
6. Project Scope and Cost

“The development of the Climate Action Plan (CAP) has been a very collaborative effort. This is the 
first ever of its kind for an agency as large and as specialized as ours and, as such, has presented a 
number of challenging tasks to keep the project moving forward. Rincon’s CAP Project Manager has 
gone above and beyond to ensure our needs have been met, that potential issues are brought to our 
attention and worked through with thoughtful, well-reasoned solutions. Our goal has been to provide 
a quality, meaningful product that will be used to guide decision making in the future and as such, has 
high level of technical detail and well-reasoned solutions. Rincon’s team have met or exceeded our 
expectations in every way. We have pushed this team to meet schedules that would have broken 
other consultants and they have worked diligently and tirelessly to ensure that not only are deadlines 
met, but met with a quality product. Their CEQA team is the best - knowledgeable, savvy, and as good 
in every way as the Climate Action team. I highly recommend the Rincon Team." 

Malinda Stalvey, Metropolitan Water District Sr. Environmental Specialist 

6 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 382 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 27 

6 Project Scope and Cost 

Approach 
Rincon has over 400 professional staff and is of a sufficient size that it has the resources to manage and 
successfully assist San Fernando with the CARP, as well as execute a number of projects concurrently, 
including the City’s Safety Element update and environmental documentation for zoning updates associated 
with the draft Housing Element. In any given year, Rincon manages more than 400 assignments for more 
than 150 clients statewide. We are experts in managing sustainability and adaptation programs involving 
multiple concurrent assignments and are successfully executing several similar service agreements. If 
selected, the City’s interconnected planning efforts will be one of the Rincon Team’s top priorities. We 
achieve cost, schedule, and resource control utilizing the following three-step process – (1) cost and 
schedule baselines are established; (2) cost and schedule data are collected and reported on a monthly basis 
to the project managers; and (3), deviations in cost or schedule performance are discussed internally, and if 
necessary, with City staff, and corrective actions are taken. We recognize our obligation to anticipate, 
identify, and resolve all problems – technical, managerial, and financial – as early as possible. We identify and 
avoid problems by thoroughly planning the project; realistically budgeting time, labor, and costs; clearly 
communicating with the City, and closely monitoring the performance of staff and any associated 
subcontractors. Our goal is to develop meaningful products that will aid the City in effectively implementing 
sustainability and adaptation measures and achieving the goals established in the CARP.  

The flow chart depicted on the next page presents the approach we anticipate using to prepare the CARP, 
including grant-funded Phase 1 tasks and completion of the CARP for Phase 2. We propose to undertake 
community engagement early and throughout Phase 2 to generate input that can meaningfully influence the 
planning process and generate community-supported adaptation and mitigation measures. The CARP 
process begins with data gathering and technical assessments (GHG emissions inventory, climate 
vulnerability assessment, GHG forecasting) followed by engagement to define equity guardrails (or 
principles) and gather input to round out our understanding of climate impacts and the ability for 
communities to adapt and prepare. These steps are followed by initial measure development with City 
departments, followed by input from the community. The measures are incorporated into a draft CARP, 
presented to the Planning Commission and City Council for discussion. The environmental review process is 
initiated on the draft CARP. After a public comment period, a final CARP and final environmental document is 
presented for recommendation by the Planning Commission and adoption by the City Council. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 383 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 28 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 384 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 29 

Workload Coordination 
The Rincon Principal-in-Charge and Project Manager involved in this contract are technical experts in the 
environmental industry. As a member of the Board of Directors and Principal in the firm and leader of the 
statewide sustainability and climate adaptation planning service line, Mr. Feldman has the ability and 
company authority to direct and commit staffing resources towards the CARP, allowing for the timely 
delivery of critical work products throughout the full length of the planning process. As an additional level of 
internal coordination, the Rincon Team meets bi-weekly to discuss and allocate work, as necessary. Our 
quality control procedures are also well established and are integrated into all aspects of our professional 
practice. These techniques include careful management of workload commitments (See Task 11 for more 
information on our quality assurance/quality control [QA/QC] process).  

Our reputation is founded on providing high-quality products, on time and within budget. Most of our 
projects are performed by small teams of specialists within short time frames characterized by intensive 
activity. That includes working intimately with subconsultants, including Climate Resolve, Iteris, HIP 
Investors, and Virtual Planet Technologies, such that they act as an extension of Rincon’s overall team with 
seamless integration.  

Scope of Work 
This scope of work is designed to be completed in two phases, as requested in the RFP.  

Phase 1 
Rincon understands that Phase 1 of the CARP is funded through a grant provided by the Southern California 
Gas Company (SoCalGas) and the work must be 85 percent complete by December 31, 2023.2 Based on the 
scope of work, we anticipate that the tasks in Phase 1 could be completed in six months.  

Task 1 Kick-off Meeting 

Rincon will work with City staff to organize a virtual kick-off meeting with the City’s Project Team to discuss 
project goals and objectives. The kick-off meeting will provide an opportunity to refine the scope of work 
and proposed schedule. This meeting will also serve to establish project management procedures, including 
invoicing terms and communication protocols. Following the kick-off meeting, the Rincon Team will provide 
an adjusted schedule, if necessary. 

Assumptions 
• Rincon will host a (one-hour) virtual kick-off meeting. 
• Rincon’s Project Manager and Assistant Project Manager will attend the meeting. 

Deliverables 
• Kick-off Meeting Agenda and Meeting Summary 

2 https://www.socalgas.com/sustainability/sustainability-at-socalgas/climate-grant 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 385 of 487

https://www.socalgas.com/sustainability/sustainability-at-socalgas/climate-grant


Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 30 

Task 2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory 

This task includes collecting data and calculating a current community and municipal emission inventory. 

Task 2.1 2015 Los Angeles County Inventory Protocols Review Memorandum 
As part of the process to develop this proposed scope of work, Rincon completed a preliminary peer review 
on the inventory completed for the City of San Fernando as part of the Los Angeles County GHG Emissions 
inventory.3 Based on the Rincon Team’s preliminary, it appears that the previous inventory may include 
sources that do not align with the protocols recommended by agencies such as Local Governments for 
Sustainability (ICLEI), including stationary source emissions from facilities that are regulated by California 
Air Resources Board (CARB) per the Mandatory Reporting Regulation (MRR). Likewise, the emissions 
inventory does not include emissions from transmission and distribution (T&D) losses associated with 
electricity. Therefore, Rincon proposes to complete a more robust review of the current inventory and 
prepare a brief memorandum comparing the existing methodology used in the 2015 emissions inventory with 
the ICLEI protocols. Rincon will then update the emissions inventory by removing stationary source 
emissions and calculating the emissions from T&D losses and include a table in the memorandum 
summarizing an updated baseline emissions inventory. Updating the emissions inventory would provide an 
opportunity for the City to compare emissions trends between years.  

Assumptions 
• Based on our preliminary review of the previous emissions inventory, stationary emissions should be 

removed, and T&D calculations need to be included to ensure a consistent inventory between the 
baseline emissions and the current/future emissions levels.

• All applicable data from previous inventories is available in the LA County GHG Emissions Inventory 
Methodology and Summary document or will be provided to Rincon by the City, if necessary.

Deliverables 
• 2015 LA County Inventory Protocols Review Memo (Word and PDF) 

Task 2.2 Data Collection and GHG Current Emissions Inventory 

Task 2.2.1 Data Collection 
In our experience, the data collection process can take the greatest amount of time because data comes 
from multiple sources. Therefore, to streamline the data collection process and reduce any delays, Rincon 
has established specific data request documents and tracking mechanisms. For the community and 
municipal inventory, it is anticipated that the primary data sources would include Southern California Edison 
(electricity) and SoCalGas (natural gas) for energy usage and the City of San Fernando Water Division for 
water data. Community waste data would be retrieved by Rincon from CalRecycle. Iteris will provide 
community traffic data, specifically on-road transportation-related community vehicle miles traveled (VMT) 
based on the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) model. Iteris will 
interpolate/extrapolate VMT using the SCAG model, which will be used in combination with the appropriate 
emissions factors to calculate GHG emissions from on road transportation. Iteris will use GIS analysis of the 
model’s traffic analysis zones that contain any portion of the City to estimate the trips within the 
jurisdictional boundary of the City of San Fernando. Outputs will include daily VMT by vehicle type (as defined 
in the model). Iteris will disaggregate the VMT data to distinguish between trips located entirely within the 
City of San Fernando, trips with either an origin or destination outside the City, and pass-through trips. Trips 

3 ttps://data.lacounty.gov/Sustainability/LA-County-GHG-Inventory-2015-Total-and-by-City-/7vtc-z7h3

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 386 of 487

https://data.lacounty.gov/Sustainability/LA-County-GHG-Inventory-2015-Total-and-by-City-/7vtc-z7h3


Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 31 

with both an origin and a destination entirely within the City will be considered 100% attributable to the City’s 
emissions. Trips with either an origin or a destination within the City (but not both) will be considered 50% 
attributable to the City’s emissions. For the purposes of the municipal inventory, it is anticipated that waste, 
vehicle fleet, and employee commute data would be provided by Public Works. 

Task 2.2.2 Current GHG Emissions Inventory 

Emissions inventories provide important information about the municipal and community's existing 
emissions sources and can help the City identify which actions will be most effective at reducing local 
emissions. During this task, the Rincon team will calculate the current inventories of: (1) emissions 
associated with municipal operations, and (2) emissions associated with all activities taking place citywide. 
The GHG emissions inventories will establish a preferred year (anticipated to be 2021),4 depending on 
availability of necessary data, and utilize accounting protocols recommended by agencies such as ICLEI. 
Consistent with the ICLEI Local Government Operations Protocol (LGO Protocol), we assume that the 
municipal inventory will account for GHG emissions associated with the following: 

• Electricity, natural gas, and other fuel usage for City buildings and facilities 
• Fuel used in City fleet vehicles and equipment
• Municipal solid waste 
• Water delivery and wastewater management
• Employee commute

Consistent with the Community Protocol for Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions (U.S. 
Community Protocol), the community wide GHG emissions inventory will account for GHG emissions 
resulting from 

• Residential and non-residential energy usage (electricity and natural gas 
• VMT 
• Off-road equipment 
• Water usage
• Wastewater 
• Solid waste 

Rincon will attend a up to two, one-hour meetings with City staff to review and discuss the data collection 
process. As an optional task, Rincon will calculate emissions using Rincon’s award-winning Climate Action 
Planning Dashboard, CAPDash, a proprietary tool that is compliant with the ICLEI U.S. Community Protocol 
for calculating GHG inventories and tracking implementation of GHG and climate-related policies. See 
Optional Task B for more information on CAPDash.  

Assumptions 
• Rincon will calculate a current (e.g., 2021) emissions inventory. 
• The baseline emissions inventory year will be determined through consultation with the City based on 

available and reliable data.
• Rincon has budgeted for receipt of one set of consolidated comments on each deliverable. Any 

additional revisions will be completed on a time and materials basis in accordance with our standard fee 
schedule (attached).

4 The data year will be dependent on the availability of both community and municipal data and will be identified with the City during the 
kick-off meeting (Task 1). 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 387 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 32 

Deliverables 
• Data request (PDF) 
• Draft and Final GHG Emissions Inventory (Community and Municipal in Word and PDF format) 
• Inventory Calculation Spreadsheet (Excel)

Task 3 Vulnerability Assessment 

Task 3.1 Vulnerability Assessment Report 
Rincon will complete a climate 
vulnerability assessment which 
will detail the anticipated climate 
impacts in San Fernando, 
including increases in 
temperature, more intense and 
frequent heat waves, more 
intense and frequent drought, 
worsening air quality, and more 
severe and frequent wildfires in 
the region. The climate 
vulnerability assessment will be 
prepared in accordance with 
California Government Code 
65302(g) and SB 379, the latest 
(2020) California Adaptation 
Planning Guide, and the Southern 
California Adaptation 
Framework. Rincon will 
incorporate information already 
completed as part of the Rincon-
led Safety Element update, and 
discuss in greater detail the 
potential for climate change to 
disproportionally impact 
vulnerable population groups (e.g., older adults, children, individuals with asthma, low-income communities, 
groups exposed to higher rates of pollution), critical facilities and services, and natural and built features. 
The report will evaluate cascading impacts associated with potential power loss or disruption of other 
essential services during an extreme climate event. It will also evaluate the capacity for the community and 
City operations and services to adapt and effectively prepare for changing conditions associated with 
climate change. The report will focus on the impacts associated with extreme heat and worsening air quality 
as those are the climate conditions the San Fernando community is anticipated to be most at-risk for.  

To ensure the information in the climate vulnerability assessment is accessible to a wider audience, Rincon 
will prepare a report that relies on infographics, maps, and illustrations to present future conditions in an 
easy-to-understand format that distills information in a relatable fashion.  

Assumptions 
• Rincon will respond to and address one set of consolidated comments on the Climate Vulnerability 

Assessment. 
• Rincon will rely on publicly available data. 

Work Already Completed as Part of the Safety Element 
Update 

Rincon has already prepared a preliminary climate change 
vulnerability assessment as part of the ongoing Safety 
Element update. Section 7 of the Safety Element technical 
report identifies the projected climate conditions based on 
Cal-Adapt data. It also identifies vulnerable populations 
present in San Fernando. In addition, Rincon has already 
completed a review of environmental justice issues, including 
history of redlining, disproportionate exposure to pollution, 
substandard housing conditions, and inadequate tree cover. 
Because Rincon has completed the foundational work 
necessary for the climate change vulnerability assessment, 
we can dedicate the grant funds towards crafting a report 
that relies on visually engaging graphics which distill technical 
information into relatable concepts that can be understood by 
people of various educational backgrounds. This allows for a 
better use of the climate change vulnerability assessment 
during Phase 2 as an educational tool to solicit informed 
public input. Grant funds will also be used towards conducting 
asset manager interviews to identify specific challenges to 
prepare for climate change that are unique to San Fernando. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 388 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 33 

• Rincon has budgeted for receipt of one set of consolidated comments on each deliverable. Any 
additional revisions will be completed on a time and materials basis in accordance with our standard fee
schedule (attached).

Deliverables 
• Draft and Final Climate Vulnerability Assessment (electronic in PDF and Microsoft Word format) 

Task 3.2 City Staff and Asset Manager Interviews 
Assessing vulnerability involves determining the sensitivity of assets, facilities, and populations to climate 
hazards and the ability to adapt and prepare for climate change. To understand past climate impacts and the 
ability for assets and populations to plan for and recover from climate-related events, Rincon will conduct 
interviews with asset and service managers and community stakeholders. Interviews with asset managers 
from local departments and agencies (e.g., San Fernando Public Works and Planning Department, San 
Fernando Water Production Division) will solicit information on existing and planned efforts to manage 
climate impacts for inclusion in the climate vulnerability assessment (Task 3.1). Interviews with community 
stakeholders will solicit information on the community’s capacity to adapt and effectively prepare for 
climate change, also for inclusion in the climate vulnerability assessment (Task 3.1). The interviews will also 
help inform climate adaptation policies and programs to be developed for the CARP as part of Phase 2. 
Rincon will conduct up to three virtual meetings with staff, asset managers, and community stakeholders. 
These meetings will include a presentation from Rincon about the expected climate change hazards in San 
Fernando followed by questions related to historical impacts, existing and planned programs and policies to 
address climate change, and barriers that may prevent community members from adequately preparing for 
climate change.  

Assumptions 
• City will help to identify and convene the asset managers and community stakeholders for interviews. 

Deliverables 
• Up to three (3) virtual meetings with asset managers and community stakeholders 
• Memorandum including a list of sensitive community assets and populations in San Fernando, 

departments and agencies and stakeholders to be interviewed, and interview questions 
• Appendix to the Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment summarizing the findings of the asset

manager and community stakeholder interviews

Task 4 City Council Meeting 

One staff member from the Rincon Team will participate in one City Council meeting to review the results of 
the GHG emissions inventory and climate vulnerability assessment. Rincon will provide a draft and final 
PowerPoint presentation. Rincon will provide support to City staff to prepare a City Council resolution and 
staff report that synthesizes the key findings of Tasks 2 and 3.   

Assumptions 
• One Rincon staff member will attend and present at up to one City Council meeting. 
• Attendance will be in-person. 
• Consultant attendance at the City Council meeting will be up 2-hours in length

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 389 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 34 

Deliverables 
• Draft and Final PowerPoint City Council Presentations 
• Attendance at one City Council meeting 

Optional Task A Grant Research and Application 
As an optional task, Rincon can identify grant opportunities to provide funding to complete the CARP. 
Specifically, the Rincon team will prepare a Funding Strategy Memorandum which identifies eligible projects 
and programs, funding amounts, and notice of funding availability schedules for a variety of state, regional 
and local funding sources. This task also includes preparation of one grant application with support from City 
Staff. In total, Rincon has budgeted 52 hours for this task, assuming 18 hours would be spent on research and 
34 hours would be spent on any grant application support. Any additional time would be billed on a time and 
materials basis, in accordance with our standard fee schedule (see Appendix B).  

Assumptions 
• Rincon has budgeted a total of 52 hours of staff time to research available grants to complete Phase 2 of 

this scope of work and support the City complete the grant writing services in support of the grant
application

• If additional grant research or writing services are necessary, that time would be billed on a time and 
materials basis, in accordance with our standard fee schedule (attached).

Deliverables 
• Funding Strategy Memorandum 
• Grant writing support for one CARP grant application 

Phase 2 
Phase 2 will build from the work completed as part of Phase 1 and includes development of an emissions 
forecast and GHG emissions reduction targets, community outreach and engagement, development of GHG 
emissions reductions and climate adaptation and resilience measures, development of a draft and final 
CARP, and preparation of a California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) document.  

Task 5 Forecasting and Target Setting 

Task 5.1 Forecasting 
To understand how GHG emissions in the City will likely change over time and identify the GHG reduction gap 
the city will be responsible for, Rincon will develop two GHG forecasts, a business as usual (BAU) forecast 
and adjusted legislative reduction forecast. The business-as-usual forecast will be based on existing 
conditions plus projected growth consistent with the General Plan Update’s population and employment 
forecasts, and not account for future regulatory changes affecting GHG emissions. Following calculation of 
the BAU forecasts, the Rincon Team will also calculate an adjusted forecast, which will take into account 
foreseeable regulatory changes (e.g., Low Carbon Fuel Standard, Pavley Clean Car Standards, SB 100 
renewables portfolio standard, Title 24). This will provide a more accurate picture of future emissions 
growth and the quantity of GHG emissions that the City would be responsible for reducing to meet GHG 
reduction targets. The adjusted and BAU forecast model will be used to conduct a gap analysis after targets 
are set. The forecasts will allow Rincon to determine the GHG reductions required for the City to meet their 
goals for 2030, 2035, 2040, and 2045.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 390 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 35 

The Rincon team will also provide a forecast of future emissions showing the reductions achieved through 
full implementation of the CARP measures identified in Task 7 by 2030, 2035, 2040, and 2045. State 
guidance indicates that cities should develop CARP measures to achieve 2030 targets consistent with the 
state’s Senate Bill (SB) 32 target. The CARP will also demonstrate incremental progress towards reaching the 
state’s Executive Order (EO) B-55-18 long-term goal of carbon neutrality by 2045 by presenting evidence-
based actions the City can take towards eventually attaining this target. However, it will also illustrate that 
reaching carbon neutrality will require significant additional effort and support from the state and federal 
governments and may require technologies that are not yet available, which is consistent with the 
recommendations from the Association of Environmental in the Final White Paper Beyond 2020 and 
Newhall: A Field Guide to New CEQA Greenhouse Gas Thresholds and Climate Action Plan Targets for 
California, October 18, 2016. 

Task 5.2 Provisional Target Setting 
For purposes of using the CARP as a CEQA streamlining tool, 
we recommend that the year 2030 target is, at a minimum, 
consistent with SB 32 GHG emission targets. Providing 
context for the City to meet the targets beyond 2030 is also 
important and will be informed by the outcome of the 
“adjusted forecast” and quantification of feasible GHG-
reduction measures (Task 5.1). Rincon proposes to include 
targets associated with EO B-55-18 (carbon neutral by 2045) 
during the preliminary target analysis as the state is 
currently developing the 2022 Climate Change Scoping Plan 
to establish a pathway for the state to reach carbon 
neutrality by 2045. Figure 1 shows the gap that the City could 
close if the CAP relies on the reduction goals EO B-55-18, 
instead of EO B-30-15. As part of this task, Rincon will host a virtual team meeting with key members of the 
City staff to review and discuss the preliminary emission reduction targets. The targets identified should 
remain provisional until the quantification and analysis of potential GHG reduction measures has been 
completed. The targets may need to be adjusted based on the reductions that can realistically be achieved 
from feasible GHG reduction measures that will be identified during the measure development process. 
Rincon will provide the City with a combined draft forecast and target memorandum for review and will make 
revisions upon receipt of one consolidated set of comments. 

The Rincon Team recognizes that the 
Request for Proposals (RFP) references 
a target in line with EO B-30-15 as well 
as the target that aligns with SB 32. 
However, we believe that is important 
to future-proof the CARP by considering 
the implications of EO B-55-18, which 
was signed by the Governor in 2018, and 
expanded upon with EO B-30-15 by 
creating a statewide GHG goal of carbon 
neutrality by 2045.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 391 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 36 

Figure 1  GHG Emissions Scenarios for Typical California City 

Assumptions 
• Population based growth factors will be in alignment with the General Plan Housing Element update that

is scheduled for adoption in 2022.
• Employment based growth factors will be based on the most recently adopted SCAG Demographics and 

Growth Forecast.
• Rincon anticipates that the City’s Project Manager will be responsible for working with City departments 

to retrieve the data requested in order to complete the inventory. 
• Rincon has budgeted for receipt of one set of consolidated comments on each deliverable. Any 

additional revisions will be completed on a time and materials basis in accordance with our standard fee 
schedule (attached).

• Rincon anticipates that the targets will be consistent with current State recommendations, including SB
32 and Executive Order B-55-18. 

• Rincon has budgeted for receipt of one set of consolidated comments on the Targets Memo. Any 
additional revisions will be completed on a time and materials basis in accordance with our standard fee 
schedule (attached). 

Deliverables 
• Draft and final forecast and reduction targets memorandum (Word and PDF). 

Task 6 Community Outreach and Engagement 

Task 6.1 Community Outreach and Engagement Plan 
Climate Resolve will create an equity-focused Community Outreach and Engagement Plan. In addition to 
engaging community leaders and organizations who are specifically interested in climate change, resilience, 
and similar issues, Climate Resolve will also seek to engage a broad swath of stakeholders; these may 
include seniors, students, religious organizations, and others who may be traditionally left out of climate 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 392 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 37 

change discussions. Climate Resolve has existing community connections in the San Fernando Valley and 
will leverage these to deeply engage the community and produce recommendations for the CARP that truly 
reflect community priorities. The Community Outreach and Engagement Plan will be informed by the input 
received during the first meeting with the Advisory Group described in Task 6.4 below.  

The Community Outreach and Engagement Plan will include a set of equity principles to ensure 
representation across a wide range of stakeholders, especially those who are most marginalized in the 
community. Several engagement methods will be included in the Community Engagement Plan, as presented 
in more detail below in Tasks 6.2 – 6.5. These will include community workshops and pop-up events, online 
community surveys, convening an advisory group, and City Council and Planning Commission hearings. The 
Community Outreach and Engagement Plan will clearly identify consultant and City roles for all related 
engagement and notification activities and the project timeline.  

In addition to this targeted outreach plan, Climate Resolve will share social media posts and include outreach 
and survey requests in its newsletter. This will reach more than 25,000 people, in addition to the City’s social 
media reach. These communications and the engagement plan will also drive community members to the 
three meetings described in Task 6.3 and the online survey described in Task 6.2, with the goal of 
encouraging deep community engagement.  

The budget for this task assumes a mini-grant of $10,000 to be directed towards a community-based 
organization of the City’s choosing to assist with engaging hard-to-reach population groups.  

Assumptions 
• A mini-grant of $10,000 will be provided by Rincon to a community group to support with outreach and 

engagement.
• Climate Resolve has budgeted for receipt of one set of consolidated comments on the Outreach and 

Engagement Plan. 

Deliverables 
• Draft Outreach and Engagement (Word) 
• Final Outreach and Engagement Plan (Word and PDF) 

Task 6.2 Survey 
In addition to the deep, targeted engagement of community meetings, Rincon will develop a survey (using 
SurveyMonkey or similar application) to further determine community priorities on climate action and 
resilience. Both Spanish and English versions will be provided. The survey will also examine barriers to 
participation and access, as well as demographic information from the respondents. Climate Resolve will 
send out this survey via social media and Climate Resolve’s newsletter described above, as well as provide 
electronic tablets at in-person events to facilitate participation in the survey. Up to 15 questions are 
anticipated to be developed for the survey, and, following its closing, an accompanying summary report will 
be created with numerical breakdown of responses, charts and graphs, and narrative descriptions of the 
qualitative results. Survey takers will be entered to win a raffle and will receive a free pre-loaded metro TAP 
card to promote the use of public transport and reduce pollution locally.  

Assumptions 
• City will host the survey link on their website 
• Climate Resolve will translate the survey into Spanish 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 393 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 38 

Deliverables 
• Draft Survey Questionnaire in English and Spanish 
• Hosting Survey as on Online Tool 
• Survey summary report
• Pre-loaded Metro TAP card 

Task 6.3 Community Meetings 
Climate Resolve will host and facilitate up to three community meetings in-person. The community events 
can be a combination of pop-up events at existing community events and community workshops All 
workshops will follow proper COVID-19 safety protocols including wearing masks in indoor areas and 
maintaining proper distancing whenever possible. Climate Resolve staff will provide masks and hand 
sanitizer at each workshop. Additionally, Climate Resolve will provide food and drinks for any stakeholders 
participating in the workshop. Climate Resolve will also raffle some gift cards as a thank you for the work and 
participation of local residents and stakeholders. All meetings will have Spanish-English translation 
available, and all distributed materials will be bilingual as well. The format of community engagement will be 
further informed by community feedback and recommendations from the Advisory Group.  

All community engagement, and specifically the meetings, will be documented by Climate Resolve. The 
findings will be included in the final CAAP, as well as reported to the City as the project progresses. Climate 
Resolve will prepare a flyer and social media content for each community event for the City to distribute via 
their communication channels.  

Assumptions 
• Up to three meetings will be hosted by Climate Resolve in person, as pop-up events at existing 

community meetings or as community workshops.
• The City will secure the pop-up booths, coordinating directly with the venue and community organizers, 

and paying applicable fees. The City will promote and raise awareness of the community meetings in 
coordination with Climate Resolve and the community outreach partner.

• Up to 1 Rincon staff member and 3 Climate Resolve staff members will be in attendance at each event. 
• Climate Resolve will translate community event materials into Spanish
• Rincon will print up to 6 large posters for the community events 
• City staff will be in attendance to answer questions from the community 

Deliverables 
• Draft and final flyer for each community event (total of three) 
• Social media content for City to post on their social media platforms 
• Rincon and Climate Resolve attendance at up to three in-person community meetings 
• Pop-up booth materials for up to three community events, in English and Spanish 
• Food and drinks for community workshops 
• Gift cards for raffles at each community event 
• Summary of community engagement events 

Task 6.4 Advisory Group Meetings 
Climate Resolve will work with the City to identify 5-8 community members to serve on an Advisory Group. 
These individuals will have deep community connections and will help the project team design its 
engagement strategies. The Advisory Group will also ground truth the CARP measures letting the team know 
whether ideas are feasible and actionable, and inform the development of the equity guardrails which will be 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 394 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 39 

used to evaluate and refine the measures (see Task 7.1 and 7.2 for more information). The project team will 
rely on the Advisory Group to ensure the process and final CARP reflect the priorities of the communities 
living in the City of San Fernando. Climate Resolve will host and lead the facilitation of up to three virtual 
meetings with the Advisory Group.  

Assumptions 
• Advisory group meetings will be held virtually
• Up to 3 Climate Resolve staff will be in attendance to host and facilitate the meetings 
• The City will manage the membership solicitation process for convening the Advisory Group 
• The City will handle meeting scheduling logistics 
• The City will be in attendance to answer questions from the Advisory Group 

Deliverables 
• Climate Resolve attendance at up to three advisory group meetings 
• Draft and final agendas for each advisory meeting 
• Meeting summaries 

Task 6.5 Public Hearings 
Two staff members from Rincon will participate in two Planning Commission meetings and two City Council 
meetings to present the GHG reduction measures, adaptation and resilience measures, and the CARP for 
adoption. Rincon will provide a draft and final PowerPoint presentation for each meeting. Rincon will provide 
support to City staff to prepare a staff report for each meeting that presents the key aspects of the CAAP.  
Rincon will also support City staff in preparing a City Council resolution to adopt the CAAP.  

Assumptions 
• Attendance will be in-person
• Consultant attendance at each Planning Commission and City Council meeting will be up 2-hours in 

length

Deliverables 
• Draft and final PowerPoint presentations for up to four meetings. 
• Two Rincon staff members will attend and present at up to four meetings. 

Task 7 Develop Policies and Strategies to Achieve the Reduction Targets 
and Increase Adaptive Capacity 

The Rincon Team recognizes that there is a clear intersection between mitigating the impacts of climate 
change while simultaneously making our communities healthier, more resilient, and economically secure. 
Therefore, we have established a subset of tasks for this portion of the scope that will include establishing 
GHG emissions reduction strategies (Task 7.1) that actively aim to reduce emissions within the City as well as 
climate adaptation strategies (Task 7.2) that aim to increase resilience to the anticipated impacts of climate 
change hazards. By applying the equity guardrails derived during the community engagement process 
(Task 6.3), environmental justice and social equity considerations are integrated into the design and 
implementation approaches for the emission reduction and adaptation measures to begin to address 
underlying historic and current inequities, avoid impacting under resourced communities with the 
implementation of CARP measures, and equitably distributing the benefits of mitigation and adaptation 
measures .Additionally, Task 7 includes a review and analysis of funding opportunities for the identified 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 395 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 40 

strategies (Task 7.3), which will provide a pathway for the City to implement the strategies and achieve the 
City’s established targets without burdening low-income households.  

Task 7.1 GHG Emissions Strategies 
Rincon has a broad range of expertise in GHG program, policy, and project development in the fields of 
carbon free electricity, building electrification, transportation decarbonization, zero waste, sequestration 
(including current knowledge of research and applied potentials of working lands management and urban 
forestry), and carbon neutral organizations. For this task, Rincon will develop specific actions that will allow 
the City to reach the established targets under Task 6. To support this process, Rincon has developed a suite 
of tools designed to increase efficiency and transparency in the climate action planning process while 
reducing costs to the client. These tools are customizable, allowing for communities to develop and 
implement GHG reduction measures that best fit their needs.  

The Rincon Team recognizes the importance of understanding the work that has already been done and 
proposes to use existing plans and initiatives as a foundation for future actions. Therefore, as a first step of 
this task, Rincon will leverage our proprietary Measure Analysis and Success Tracking (MAST) Tool to 
complete an analysis of GHG reduction measures/actions which are included in plans, policies, and 
programs. MAST allows Rincon to evaluate the quality and progress of measures or actions included in 
sustainability-related planning documents in an intuitive interface. From this refined foundation of action 
items, we will assess any policy or program gaps and identify additional opportunities for emission 
reductions. Rincon will then provide a newly established core suite of draft measures that are tied to the 
City’s GHG emissions inventory and forecast and past progress. Examples of additional measures include: 

• Electrify 10% of vehicles by 2030 and 20% by 2045 
• Divert 15% of organic waste by from the landfill by 2030 and 30% by 2045
• Electrify 15% of existing buildings by 2030 and 100% by 2045 

After reviewing and editing the measures based on coordination with internal city departments, and other 
stakeholder and community feedback, we will refine the draft emission reduction measures list to include 
the new suite of measures as well as previous strategies that are currently in progress. To further assess 
emissions reduction measures and different approaches to reach carbon neutrality (aggressive, moderate, 
and conservative), Rincon will employ its Scenario Planning and Reductions Quantification (SPARQ) Tool, 
which makes the measure quantification process more transparent. Rincon has developed and uses the 
SPARQ tool for all of our climate planning documents to help clients visualize their emission forecasts and 
quantify reduction actions and associated costs. The dashboard feature allows the City to change target 
metrics for each measure to see how these changes will affect community emissions based on various 
target trajectories over time. This tool provides a unique measure evaluation by graphically detailing 
information from the GHG inventory, emission reduction potential, and emissions targets to illustrate the 
long-term reductions associated with various measures. Using this tool has allowed Rincon and our current 
climate action plan clients to iteratively model various measures and reduction scenarios to confirm that 
reduction scenarios meet GHG targets in the most effective manner (see Figure 2). As part of this task and 
Task 7.2, Rincon will host two virtual (one-hour) meetings with City staff departments to discuss the draft 
measures. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 396 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 41 

Figure 2  SPARQ Tool – Reduction Scenarios 

Rincon will calculate the emission reduction potential for applicable proposed measures and will identify 
potential funding sources for a subset of measures (see Task 6.3 for more information). The Rincon Team 
will develop an implementation strategy that identifies priority measures. This will include assigning specific 
time periods for implementation of each action, with a focus on the near-term actions that can be taken by 
2030 to put the CARP on the trajectory to meet California’s goals. Additionally, Rincon will identify the 
responsible parties for implementing each action, which provides a sense of direction and ownership over 
the various CARP components. As part of this task, the Rincon Team will also highlight which actions will be 
implemented by development projects. We assume that City feedback on the provisional draft measures will 
be provided in a consolidated set of comments. The Rincon Team will integrate the comments and edits as 
appropriate based on discussions with City staff and summarize final draft measures in a list that will be 
incorporated into the Draft CARP in a visually compelling manner (Task 8).  

The CARP will need to be based on substantial evidence to withstand any scrutiny by stakeholders. The key 
to defensibility is our robust and user-friendly technical appendix that includes assumptions, references, 
and substantial evidence supporting the GHG reduction identified for each measure and will serve as the 
legal foundation for the document. Additionally, the technical appendix can be used as a methodology 
guidance document for future planning and tracking so that City staff can maintain consistency across 
documents, including future iterations of the CARP. The technical appendix will include revisions in 
response to one round of consolidated City Department edits.  

Rincon recognizes that high-quality climate action planning is built on six essential pillars that result in 
implementable and effective GHG emission reduction strategies and establish the cornerstone of high-
quality GHG emission reduction plans. These six essential components include: 

1. Produces measurable GHG emissions reductions 
2. Supports information gathering for improved measure implementation (e.g., feasibility studies, pilot

programs, etc.)
3. Protects against equity impacts (as defined by the equity guardrails) 
4. Provides community education, outreach, and leadership to ensure the community has the information 

it needs for participation in CARP implementation 
5. Identifies partnership opportunities for cost and resource sharing with local businesses, community 

groups, and institutions 
6. Incorporate accountability through tracking and resource allocation commitments

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 397 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 42 

Specifically, for the equity analysis, Rincon has developed a mechanism to integrate equity considerations 
more fully into the CARP and the actions themselves. Working with the Advisory Group and feedback from 
community stakeholders, Rincon will collaborate with the City to develop a suite of Equity Guardrails that 
must be passed by each measure and its associated actions. These guardrails help ensure that the measures 
and actions avoid undue burdens on San Fernando’s most vulnerable populations. While we recommend 
creating a unique set of guardrails specific to the City through feedback from stakeholders, guardrails used 
in other jurisdictions include: 

• Equitable access to economic benefits 
• Equitable access to health and safety benefits 
• Maximum ease of implementation 
• Promotion of housing affordability and anti-displacement 

Each measure should pass the equity guardrail analysis. When a measure does not pass, new actions will be 
developed to mitigate potential impacts (such as a low-income financing program) or the measure is 
considered for removal. These measures then can lay the foundation for transformational change and are 
essential to creating measures and actions that will engage the community and fulfill the emissions 
reductions goals laid out in the CARP. The Rincon Team will structure the CARP in a way that builds on this 
foundation and the overall benefits will be equitably distributed so the CARP is responsive to the needs of 
community members.  

Task 7.2 Climate Adaptation and Resilience Strategies 
The Rincon team will develop adaptation measures that contribute to increasing resilience to climate 
change in San Fernando. The measures will build from the goals, policies, and programs included in the 
updated Safety Element to ensure consistency and alignment with the General Plan. Adaptation measures 
will address both community-based adaptation and adaptation strategies that are focused on municipal 
government implementation and operations. The intent of the measures will be to address the key 
vulnerabilities identified in the climate vulnerability assessment prepared during Phase 1, including 
populations, essential services, and natural and built assets at risk from near-term or mid-term climate 
change impacts and that lack existing adopted policies or established programs. Climate Resolve will 
support the development of the adaptation strategies. Climate Resolve has extensive experience in 
resilience strategies, from advising on the Long Beach CAAP to managing processes for the LA County 
Climate Vulnerability Assessment to creating a first-of-its-kind resilience hub in Boyle Heights. We will 
combine this experience with community feedback gathered from the outreach efforts under Task 6 to 
provide recommendations that are both community- and equity-driven as well as effective against climate 
threats. Climate Resolve works heavily with disadvantaged communities. We will provide low- and no-cost 
methods for community members to adapt to climate change impacts, ensuring the City of San Fernando’s 
CARP will be actionable and practical at every level. 

For each adaptation measure, the following information will be included: tracking metric, timeframe, 
implementation lead, relative costs, asset, or population as identified in the climate vulnerability 
assessment, and climate hazard. Similar to the six essential pillars for GHG emission reduction strategies, 
resilience strategies are most effective when applying the following criteria in shaping and prioritizing 
measures: 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 398 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 43 

1. Measurable increase in resilience 
2. Adaptive management 
3. Structural change 
4. Availability to funding and financing 
5. Meaningful and continuous engagement 
6. Collaborative partnerships 
7. Equitable outcomes 

The equity guardrails will be applied to the adaptation measures like the process described above under 
Task 7.2 to avoid any unintended impacts to communities in San Fernando.  

The adaptation measures along with the GHG reduction measures prepared under Task 7.1 will be provided to 
the City for review. A final measures list will be prepared for inclusion in the Draft CARP (Task 8).  

Task 7.3 Identify Funding for Implementation Measures 
Rincon’s clients have repeatedly identified a lack of funding as a key hurdle to implementing emissions 
reduction and adaptation measures. To help solve this problem, Rincon has teamed with HIP Investor who 
will leverage their experience with cutting edge funding and financing vehicles including public private 
partnerships, energy savings contracts, private investments, public loan programs, non-predatory on bill 
financing, incentive programs targeting disadvantaged communities, and more. Rincon will quantify the 
anticipated costs for each measure and HIP Investor will provide potential funding sources for the 
recommended measures. The results of this funding analysis will be summarized in a matrix provided by HIP 
and incorporated into the draft and final CARP by Rincon. The resulting funding and financing matrix is 
valuable as both an external communication tool, as well as an internal road map to implementation. 

Assumptions 
• Rincon will establish approximate implementation costs and HIP will identify potential funding sources 

for the proposed measures.
• Rincon has budgeted for receipt of one set of consolidated comments on each deliverable. Any 

additional revisions, including updates to the measures throughout the draft and final CARP
development process, will be completed on a time and materials basis in accordance with our standard 
fee schedule (attached). 

• As part of this task, Rincon will host two virtual (one-hour) meetings with City staff departments to 
discuss the draft measures.

Deliverables 
• Draft and Final Recommended Emission Reduction and Adaptation Measures Memorandum (Word and 

PDF)
• Substantial Evidence Technical Appendix to the CARP (Word and PDF) 
• SPARQ and MAST Tools (Excel)
• Rincon will host two virtual (one-hour) meetings with City staff departments to discuss the draft 

mitigation and adaptation measures 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 399 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 44 

Task 8 Draft and Final Climate Action and Resilience Plan 
This task includes the completion of a draft and final CARP including the incorporation of community and 
stakeholder feedback gleaned as part of Task 6.  

Task 8.1 Draft CARP 
The CARP will be informed by the GHG emissions inventory, vulnerability assessment, emissions forecast, 
and reduction targets completed as part of Tasks 2, 3 and 5. The CARP will provide a creative and innovative 
roadmap for the City to achieve emission reductions and will include both near-term and long-term GHG 
emissions reduction and adaptation/resilience measures (Task 7) as well as the departments and community 
partners who will generally be responsible for implementing them. The CARP will set key performance 
indicators (KPI) that will help define a successful implementation of the CARP strategy as well as measure 
progress over time. Upon completion of the first draft, the document will be provided to City staff for review. 
The City will provide feedback and edits in one consolidated set of comments and the Rincon Team will draft 
a Public Review Draft that reflects edits in response to City comments. Additionally, Rincon will draft a staff 
report to be submitted with the Public Review Draft. The Public Review Draft will be presented at the 
Planning Commission and City Council and released to the community for a proposed thirty-day comment 
period. The CARP will be prepared using Microsoft Word, following the same format used in recent General 
Plan Element updates, such as the City’s Safety and Housing Elements.  

Task 8.2 Final CARP 
Following the public review and comment period, as well as the public hearing, the Rincon Team will 
coordinate with City staff to incorporate relevant input into the Final Draft CARP that will be presented to the 
Planning Commission and City Council for final adoption. We anticipate and have budgeted for receipt of up 
to ten substantive public comment letters and emails. Any additional comments will be addressed on a time 
and materials basis in accordance with our standard fee schedule (attached). Rincon will provide an 
electronic copy of the document; hardcopy documents has not been included as part of this scope. 

Assumptions 
• Response to comment of up to ten substantive public comment letters and emails. 
• All comments on the Draft CARP will be provided to Rincon in one consolidated set. 
• No hard copies will be provided. 

Deliverables 
• Draft and Final CARP in Word and PDF formats 
• Draft staff report 

Task 9 CARP CEQA Assessment 

Task 9.1  Prepare CEQA Documentation 
An Initial Study-Negative Declaration (IS-ND) is typically a sufficient programmatic CEQA documentation for 
a CARP due to the generally beneficial environmental impacts associated with the plan. In our experience, it 
is rare that a more in depth CEQA document is required for a CARP. However, if it is determined that the 
CARP implementation measures or actions may result in potentially significant environmental impacts, a 
programmatic Environmental Impact Report (EIR) may be required and can be prepared as part of this 
optional task in lieu of the CARP IS-ND for a different cost. 

• CEQA AB 52 Letters. Rincon will request the latest relevant Native American tribes list from the 
California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC). Upon receipt of the tribes list from NAHC and 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 400 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 45 

internal approval of the CARP measures and actions list by the City, Rincon will prepare the AB 52 
correspondence letters for the City to print on its letterhead and mail to the tribes.  

• Administrative Draft IS-ND. Rincon will prepare a CEQA project description for City review and edit. Upon 
receipt of the City’s review edits on the CEQA project description, Rincon will prepare the CAP 
Administrative Draft IS-ND analysis related to all CEQA Guidelines Appendix G topics.

• Draft IS-ND + NOI-NOC. Upon receipt of one set of consolidated vetted comments on the Administrative 
Draft IS-ND from the City, Rincon will address comments and prepare and submit tracked and clean 
versions of the public Draft IS-ND to the City. In addition, Rincon will prepare the Notice of Completion 
(NOC) and Notice of Intent (NOI) to adopt an IS-ND. It is assumed that the City will e-file the NOI and NOC 
forms with the State Clearinghouse and file the NOI form with the County Clerk. If desired, the City will
also coordinate and pay for local newspaper notification of the Draft IS-ND.

• Final IS-ND. Rincon will prepare the final ND form and finalize the IS-ND document, including preparation 
of responses to public comments received on the Draft IS-ND.

Task 9.2 CEQA GHG Checklist 
To assist with CEQA tiering for future plans and projects, Rincon can work with the City to prepare a 
methodology to streamline CEQA GHG emissions analysis for future City projects. In early 2018, Rincon 
generated a CARP Consistency Checklist for the City of Pasadena, one of the first Climate Action Plans in the 
state to include a SB 32 consistency checklist for development projects. By having a CEQA GHG Checklist for 
use by City planning staff and applicants, future City plans and projects can tier from the CARP 
programmatic CEQA document for purposes of streamlining future CEQA GHG analyses and demonstrating 
consistency with state GHG reduction goals per the 2017 CARB Climate Change Scoping Plan. Without such a 
checklist for a tool, it can be difficult for future plans and projects to navigate the CEQA process under 
SB 32. 

Assumptions 
• Rincon will prepare the AB 52 letters and the City will send them. 
• If it is determined that the CARP implementation measures or actions may result in potentially 

significant environmental impacts, a programmatic EIR may be required and can be prepared as part of 
in lieu of the CAP IS-ND for a different cost.

• Rincon will prepare the NOI and NOC forms to adopt an IS-ND form. 
• The City will e-file the NOI and NOC forms with the State Clearinghouse and file the NOI form with the 

County Clerk. 
• If desired, the City will also coordinate and pay for local newspaper notification of the Draft IS-ND. 

Deliverables 
• AB 52 Letters (electronic) 
• Administrative Draft IS-ND (electronic) 
• Draft IS-ND (electronic) 
• NOI-NOC forms (electronic) 
• Final IS-ND (electronic) 
• NOD form (electronic) 
• Draft City CEQA GHG Checklist for future projects’ use (electronic) 
• Final City CEQA GHG Checklist for future projects’ use (electronic) 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 401 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 46 

Task 10 Project Management 
In every project Rincon initiates, we endeavor to provide our client with a high-quality product that exceeds 
expectations, meets identified schedules, and aligns with all applicable professional standards. This task 
includes completion of kick-off meetings and regular project check-in meetings, as well as Rincon’s 
proposed approach to quality control, communication, and project status reports.  

Task 10.1 Project Check-in Meetings 
We believe that effective communication and project management is an integral part of a project’s success. 
Rincon’s Project Manager, Reema Shakra, will be responsible for coordinating communication with the City’s 
Project Manager, which would include hosting monthly project check-in meetings throughout Phase 2 of the 
project. We will work closely with the City for the duration of the project to ensure that progress is carefully 
tracked, attention is drawn to any difficulties encountered, and the project is conducted in a highly 
professional manner. Rincon may utilize an online collaborative tool (such as Mural) to help guide the team 
through brainstorming sessions and to collect each team member’s ideas for the project. We have found 
these tools to be effective for discussions around timelines, scopes, gathering multiple ideas, and framing 
discussions because it allows for real-time input in a setting that is more comfortable for everyone to voice 
their opinion, especially in a virtual setting. So far, we have used the mural tool for kick-off meetings, check-
in meetings, stakeholder workshops, and education sessions.  

Task 10.2 Project Management 
Rincon takes pride in producing quality work and achieving an exceptional level of client satisfaction. To 
achieve this, Rincon employs standard project management and quality control methods that include: 
written project assignments, monthly project progress meetings, project control using Microsoft® Excel and 
Microsoft® Project software, peer review of all technical sections, technical editing of all documents, and 
principal review of all major deliverables. The Project Manager is responsible for the overall quality of the 
work effort and maintaining the schedule. Once the work product has been completed by a team member it 
undergoes peer review by the Project Manager. After corrections, the Principal-in-Charge reviews the final 
product for quality control before it is provided to our technical editing team for editorial review, and then 
our administrative staff for publication. As part of the review, documents are checked against the prior 
established expectations and requirements of the work scope. Documents are also checked for specific 
formatting and other requirements using a formal Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) checklist by the 
Publishing staff to ensure that the final delivered product meets San Fernando’s expectations. All 
documents would be safely stored on Rincon’s secure servers within a coordinated project folder. 
Additionally, as part of this task, Rincon will provide monthly status updates with invoices, following the 
requirements outlined in the contract, to the City summarizing the work completed over the previous month. 
This summary will include a brief explanation of the specific tasks that were executed as well as a summary 
of the hours spent on the project.  

Assumptions 
• 16-month project timeline for Phase 2 
• Regular attendance is limited to the Rincon Assistant Project Manager

Deliverables 
• Monthly (1-hour) virtual meetings throughout Phase 2 of the project
• Monthly status updates and invoices 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 402 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 47 

Optional Task B Implementation and Monitoring 
A key to CARP defensibility over time is to prove implementation of the 
CARP measures and show progress with GHG reduction and resilience to 
climate change. Therefore, as an optional task, to facilitate 
implementation and monitoring of the CARP and to minimize future City 
staff resources needed for monitoring and reporting, Rincon has 
developed a user-friendly cloud based GHG Inventory and Monitoring and 
Reporting Tool. Rincon’s fully automated web application, CAPDash, 
serves three purposes. 

1. The first is to generate a transparent GHG inventory (Task 2) which 
can be updated on an annual basis simply by uploading activity data. 
This will allow the City to actively track its progress towards its GHG 
reduction targets.

2. The second major function of CAPDash is to track the implementation of CARP measures over time. We 
can upload final CARP measures into the tool and allow the City to track activity data (kW of solar
installed, etc.) for each measure and monitor progress over time.

3. Finally, the tool acts as an automatically updating dashboard which can display data both internally by
easily generating reports for staff, but also to the public through a web-based dashboard.

CAPDash will allow the City to evaluate progress towards its CARP goals in real time and provides the 
implementation transparency to optimize CEQA streamlining under CEQA guidelines Section 15183.5. 
Designing a comprehensive, yet succinct Implementation Plan will provide the City with a tracking 
mechanism that can be used overtime as progress is made on individual measures and be updated in future 
iterations of the CARP, as necessary, to ensure that the City reaches its long-term goals. 

The CAPDash tool (Figure 3) minimizes the burden of monitoring and reporting and enables City staff to more 
effectively utilize limited resources to implement CARP policies. The Rincon Team will hold one virtual staff 
training on how to use the CAPDash to effectively monitor CARP implementation and progress over time. 
This training will focus on reviewing the implementation and monitoring tables of the CARP, confirming 
department leads, and clarifying roles and responsibilities for measures and actions that overlap multiple 
departments. The training will also include a tutorial on CAPDash, which will be used to track and report 
emission data. 

Figure 3  CAPDash Dashboard 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 403 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 48 

Please Note: We recommend using the CAPDash Tool, however, we recognize that City staff might prefer a 
different publicly available monitoring or reporting system. We are committed to working with the City staff 
to identify the best option, if this option is selected. 

Example CAPDash Link: https://cap.rinconconsultants.com/SouthPasadena  

Assumptions 
• Rincon will populate CAPDash with all activity data from the baseline inventory completed as part of 

Task 2.
• Rincon will provide one virtual CAPDash training (up to two hours). 

Deliverables 
• Attendance by up to two Rincon Team Members at the virtual CAPDash training 
• CAPDash User Guide
• CAPDash tool 

Optional Task C Virtual Reality Community Engagement Tool 
Emerging research is showing that virtual reality experiences can promote prosocial behavior change, and 
increase knowledge and preparation for natural disasters.5,6 A recent study showed that subjects who 
experienced flooding in 3D declared a higher intent to purchase flood insurance and to evacuate from at-risk 
areas when compared with videos or slides [2]. The idea behind this is that people who have lived 
experiences are more aware and are more likely to understand the interactions of the planet holistically and 
take action. Another recent study proposed that the use of compelling images such as animated maps in 
conjunction with effective textual frames can weaken science politicization, restoring the impact of textual 
frameworks.7 Therefore, as an optional task, Rincon has partnered with Virtual Planet Technologies LLC 
(Virtual Planet Technologies) to provide an urban heat virtual reality experience for the City of San Fernando, 
which, if selected, would be incorporated into Task 6, Community Outreach and Engagement. Through our 
work with the City of San Fernando on the Safety Element Update, it’s clear that, while the community is 
interested and engaged, it has been difficult to provide a venue, time, and tools that the community can 
utilize to participate in the community engagement process and provide feedback in a meaningful way. 
Therefore, we have included this optional task to include state-of-the-art virtual reality tools that might 
attract and invite residents, who may otherwise not be reached, to participate in the planning process.  

The scope of work for this task includes two options. The first option would be to produce a 360-degree film 
that is fully immersive, showing the City of San Fernando through the eyes of a resident that represents a 
locally relevant demographic group to tell the story of extreme heat through their own lived experiences. The 
video would include an aerial view of the City, followed by a 3D modeled ground view with cars, buses, and 
people walking by. This image would highlight the key issues that the City is facing that could be further 
impacted by climate change, such as housing, roadway access and usability, and extreme heat projections. 
The video could then include historical images of the area, which allows viewers to experience the past as a 
way to see what the future could look like. As we shift back to the current time, Virtual Planet Technologies 
would utilize colors and special effects to demonstrate the warming that would occur in the City, before 

5 Calil, J.; Fauville, G.; Queiroz, A.C.M.; Leo, K.L.; Mann, A.G.N.; Wise-West, T.; Salvatore, P.; Bailenson, J.N. Using Virtual Reality in Sea 
Level Rise Planning and Community Engagement—An Overview. Water 2021, 13, 1142. https://doi.org/10.3390/w13091142 
6 Shriram, K.; Oh, S.Y.; Bailenson, J. Virtual reality and prosocial behavior. Soc. Signal Process. 2017, 304–316, 
doi:10.1017/9781316676202.022. 
7 Zaalberg, R.; Midden, C.J.H. Living behind dikes: Mimicking flooding experiences. Risk Anal. 2013, 33, 866–876, doi:10.1111/j.1539-
6924.2012.01868.x. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 404 of 487

https://cap.rinconconsultants.com/SouthPasadena


Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 49 

transforming the model to show a greener future with adaptation and mitigation strategies (e.g., cool 
streets, increased tree canopy, EV charging stations, bicycle lanes) and end with a call to action.  

As second option would be to also include custom 3D models and virtual reality headsets that provide an 
opportunity for the viewers to interact with the VR tool. A mobile application would also be created, in 
addition to the video. Both options would include English and Spanish narrations and closed captioning in 
both languages. The hours required, and associated cost, to complete the work outlined for these two 
options would vary depending on the level of detail that the City would like to include and would generally 
range from approximately $28,750 - $36,800 to produce a 3D film and up to $46,000 to produce a 3D film, 
develop a mobile app, and provide three virtual reality headsets. Both pathways would also include 
attendance of up to three events by Virtual Planet Technologies leadership.  

Optional Task D CEQA Thresholds 
To further strengthen the defensibility of future CEQA GHG analyses that will tier from the CAP CEQA 
assessment document to be prepared under Task 9, we recommend the development of a City quantitative 
CEQA thresholds of significance for GHG emissions along with a guidance document for City staff for 
purposes of evaluating quantitative CEQA GHG analyses submitted by applicants. Such City quantitative 
CEQA GHG thresholds will be utilized when applicants are not able to meet all of the requirements in the CAP 
Consistency Checklist (i.e., CEQA GHG Checklist) to be prepared under Optional Task D.1.  

The GHG efficiency threshold for project- or plan-based CEQA analysis will be based on a methodology that 
considers emissions against an efficiency-based service population threshold. The threshold assesses the 
GHG efficiency of a project or plan on a per capita basis or service person basis. This approach will rely on 
the City GHG reduction goals in the CARP to attain a future horizon year target, compare it with the economic 
projections and planned land use development in the region up to specific horizon years, and allocate GHG 
reductions to population, service population, and land uses. This threshold is consistent with the CARB 2017 
Climate Change Scoping Plan, which details the intention to accommodate population and economic growth 
in California but do so in a way that achieves a lower rate of GHG emissions. In addition, if the City proceeds 
with development of CEQA GHG thresholds, Rincon will also include CEQA assessment of the thresholds as 
part of the programmatic IS-ND in order to confirm that appropriate CEQA review of the thresholds occurs as 
part of a public review process and via one CEQA document in an efficient and cost-effective manner. This 
will be done as part of preparation of the CEQA assessment document under Task 9 if Optional Task D.2 is 
selected.  

Rincon will also prepare a concise guidance document for use by City staff in evaluating submitted CEQA 
GHG emissions analyses and by applicants in preparing CEQA GHG emissions analyses. The guidance 
document will detail a defensible approach for evaluating GHG emissions impacts in analyses prepared 
pursuant to CEQA. The document will also provide substantial evidence of the methodology’s consideration 
of Statewide GHG direction provided by CAPCOA, CARB, and OPR as well as relevant case law. 

Deliverables 
• Draft City CEQA GHG Thresholds and Guidance Report (electronic) 
• Final City CEQA GHG Thresholds and Guidance Report (electronic) 
• Adding assessment of CEQA GHG Thresholds to the programmatic CEQA Assessment for the CAP 

Optional Task E Remediate CARP and IS/ND to be Section 508 
Compliant 

There are new requirements that apply to public entities requiring that documents posted to the public must 
be compliant with Section 508The laws apply to public entities that post anything to the public (websites, 
emails, flyers, etc.). Therefore, as an optional task, Rincon will provide a draft and final digital PDF CARP and 
IS/ND to meet Web Content Accessibility Standards (WCAG) required under Section 508 of the Rehabilitation 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 405 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 50 

Act of 1973. ADA title II and California Government Code 7405 and 11546.7 require government public entities 
to make digital content accessible prior to posting content online for public review. PDF remediation can 
range from 10-30 minutes per page depending on the number of complex elements on the page. CARPs could 
range from 300-500 pages, with appendices, which could range from 100-165 hours (20 minutes a page) at a 
billing rate of $245 per hour (Professional 8). Generally, if edits to the final documents are minimal, PDF 
remediation and compilation may take up to 10% of the remediation time used in the Draft EIR estimating up 
to 10-16 hours at the same billing rate ($245 per hour). 

The cost for the proposed scope of work summarized by Phase 1 and 2, including the optional tasks is shown 
in Table 1, with a more detailed breakdown shown further below, including the hourly wage rates for all 
personnel anticipated to provide the services. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 406 of 487



Project Scope and Cost 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 51 

Table 1  Proposed Cost by Task 
Task Cost 

Phase 1 $50,000 
Task 1 Virtual Kick-off Meeting $669 
Task 2 GHG Emissions Inventory $27,117 
Task 2.1  2015 Emissions Inventory Reconciliation $1,846 
Task 2.2  Data Collection and Current GHG Emissions Inventory $25,271 
Task 3  Vulnerability Assessment $19,723 
Task 3.1  Vulnerability Assessment Report $14,944 
Task 3.2  Asset Manager Interviews $4,779 
Task 4 City Council Meeting $2,490 
Rincon Subtotal $41,216 
Iteris, Inc. Subtotal $11,086 
Phase 2 $215,063 
Task 5 Forecasting and Target Setting $6,762 
Task 6 Community Outreach and Engagement $86,731 
Task 6.1 Community Outreach and Engagement Plan $16,978 
Task 6.2 Survey $6,528 
Task 6.3 Community Meetings $30,456 
Task 6.4 Advisory Group Meetings $17,181 
Task 6.5 Public Hearings $15,588 
Task 7 Develop Policies and Strategies $52,159 
Task 7.1 GHG Emissions Strategies $20,040 
Task 7.2 Climate Adaptation and Resilience Strategies $18,159 
Task 7.3 Identify Funding for Implementation Measures $13,960 
Task 8 Climate Action and Resilience Plan $24,977 
Task 8.1 Draft CARP $15,542 
Task 8.2 Final CARP $9,435 
Task 9 CARP CEQA Assessment $22,498 
Task 9.1        CEQA Documentation $14,994 
Task 9.2       CEQA GHG Checklist $7,504 
Task 10 Project Meetings and Management $26,936 
Task 10.1 Project Check-in Meetings $9,952 
Task 10.2 Project Management $16,984 
Rincon Consultants Subtotal $141,520 
Climate Resolve Subtotal $54,342 
HIP Investor Subtotal $9,200 
Mini-Grant and Advisory Group Stipends $10,000 
Optional Tasks  
Optional Task A Grant Research and Application $10,071 
Optional Task B Implementation and Monitoring $12,500 
Optional Task C Virtual Reality Community Engagement Tool $31,750–$49,000 
Optional Task D CEQA Thresholds $10,500 
Optional Task E Remediate CARP and IS/ND to be Section 508 Compliant $26,950–$44,345 
Note: this table includes a 15% markup for subconsultants 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 407 of 487



Appendix A 
Staff Resumes 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 408 of 487



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists . Planners . Engineers 

EDUCATION 

MS, Environmental Science and 
Management, University of 
Sydney; Sydney, Australia 

BS, Business and 
Administration, University of 
Colorado 

CERTIFICATIONS 

Accredited Lead Greenhouse 
Gas Verifier, California Air 
Resource Board (EO# H-10-043)  

Accredited Low Carbon Fuel 
Standard (LCSF) Verifier, 
California Air Resource Board 
(EO# H3-20-054) 

LEED Accredited Professional 

Licensed General Engineering 
Contractor (#921378) 

Erik D. Feldman, MS, LEED AP 
Principal 

Erik Feldman’s experience includes greenhouse gas modeling and auditing, 
climate action planning and sustainability design and program development. 
Additionally, he is involved in a wide range of urban planning and land use 
studies, sustainable development review, and CEQA environmental 
documentation and permitting activities. He has assisted numerous local 
agencies and development projects with the development of greenhouse gas 
thresholds, analytical methods, and reduction strategies in California. Mr. 
Feldman also has extensive experience preparing Qualified greenhouse gas 
Reduction Plans as defined by CEQA Guidelines 15183.5 and utilizing these plans 
to streamline greenhouse gas CEQA analysis for development projects. Mr. 
Feldman applies this experience in the successful management of environmental 
and sustainability projects for variety of clients in the public and private sectors. 
He has led and participated in numerous greenhouse gas- and sustainability-
related presentations including for the California American Planning Association 
and at universities such as California State University, Channel Islands, California 
State University, Long Beach, and University of California, Santa Barbara. He has 
also served as a member of the Board of Directors for the U.S. Green Building 
Council California Central Coast Chapter and is a member of the Steering 
Committee for the Gridley Water Group in Ojai.  

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Principal-in-Charge, City of Berkeley – Pathway to Clean Energy, Berkeley 
In June 2018, Berkeley City Council established a goal of becoming a Fossil Fuel 
Free City, with a focus on electrification of Berkeley’s buildings. Mr. Feldman is 
overseeing a team comprised of the City of Berkeley, Rocky Mountain Institute, 
and the Ecology Center developing an implementation plan to electrify 100% of 
Berkeley’s existing buildings before 2045. Rincon completed a two-phase policy 
analysis and implementation plan to identify the technological, equity, and cost 
considerations around electrifying the current building stock based on age, 
class, and building type. Phase 1 of the analysis quantifies the costs and benefits 
of electrification for a wide range of stakeholders. The approach has been 
tailored to address impacts on historically marginalized and low-income people 
and integrates procedural, distributional, and structural equity considerations. 
The final report will identify the highest value and most equitable set of 
measures aimed at the elimination of fossil fuels in existing buildings in the 
near, mid, and long terms. Phase 2 includes a detailed cost-benefit analysis and 
a comprehensive implementation plan, including funding strategies, for each of 
the recommended policies.  

Principal-in-Charge, County of Santa Clara – Community Climate Action Plan, 
Santa Clara County 
Mr. Feldman is overseeing preparation of the Santa Clara County Climate Action 
Plan which includes a countywide greenhouse gas inventory that covers 
unincorporated areas and each city within the County as well. The scope of 
work also includes the preparation of a greenhouse gas forecast through 2045 
and greenhouse gas reduction targets. In addition to the development of 
greenhouse gas reduction measures Rincon is also working directly with the 
County and Green Info Network to build an interactive Network Relationship 
Map that will map all of the sustainability and climate action related entities  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 409 of 487



Erik D. Feldman, MS, LEED AP, Page 2

within the County. The Network Relationship Map includes all of the measures undertaken by each city as well as 
non-profit and for-profit partners. The final deliverable will be a strategic plan that highlights the key role the 
County can play in connecting this vast network of climate action into a cohesive strategy working toward carbon 
neutrality. 

Principal-in-Charge, City of San Luis Obispo Climate Action Plan Peer Review and Defensibility Analysis, CEQA 
Documentation and Greenhouse Gas CEQA Analysis Threshold Document, City of San Luis Obispo 
In support of the City of San Luis Obispo Climate Action Plan preparation, Rincon was contracted to peer review 
the Climate Action Plan document and analyze the measures and technical analysis for defensibility under 
established case law and the CEQA Guidelines. Rincon also prepared CEQA documentation for the Climate Action 
Plan and a Greenhouse Gas Threshold and guidance document to be used by City planning staff and applicants in 
preparing greenhouse gas analyses for environmental documents prepared pursuant to CEQA. This project 
involved developing greenhouse gas efficiency threshold(s) for project based CEQA analysis founded on a 
methodology that considers emissions against an efficiency-based service population threshold. This efficiency 
threshold is consistent with the 2017 Scoping Plan which details the intention to accommodate population and 
economic growth in California but do so in a way that achieves a lower rate of greenhouse gas emissions. Rincon 
created a locally appropriate efficiency threshold that complies with the CEQA Guidelines and interpretative 
greenhouse gas case law. Moreover, Rincon developed a concise guidance document detailing a defensible 
approach for evaluating greenhouse gas impacts in analyses prepared pursuant to CEQA for use by City staff and 
local developers. This guidance document clearly details how the greenhouse gas efficiency threshold was 
developed and substantiates the linkage between a specific project and the state’s greenhouse gas reduction 
targets. Rincon completed the Initial Study Negative Declaration (IS-ND) for the City that included environmental 
analysis focused on the estimated change in conditions that would result from the implementation of the Climate 
Action Plan’s actions and policies. In 2020 the Climate Action Plan and CEQA documentation were adopted by the 
City Council and the Climate Action Plan and CEQA thresholds are being implemented by the City. 

Principal-in-Charge, County of Santa Barbara – 2030 Climate Action Plan and Environmental Impact Report, 
Santa Barbara County 
The Santa Barbara County Climate Action Plan and Environmental Impact Report is the first project of the Santa 
Barbara County Climate Collaborative and will bring in together various projects under the One Climate initiative. 
The Climate Action Plan is currently in the early stages of community activation, which includes the engagement of 
an Equity Advisory Committee. The Plan will activate the diverse community to develop a plan and suite of climate 
action planning tools that are customized to the County. Each jurisdiction in the County will be able to tier-off of 
the County Climate Action Plan and will be able to adopt greenhouse gas tracking tools developed specifically for 
the County. This Climate Action Plan will also include emissions from the agricultural industry and agriculture land 
use types (also known as Natural and Working Lands). Rincon is working with the Bren School of Environmental 
Science and Management, University of California, Santa Barbara (UCSB) to complete extensive research and 
reached out to experts in the respective fields to ensure the incorporation of the information found is appropriate 
and the methodology to calculate greenhouse gas emissions is accurate. The Climate Action Plan is intended to 
facilitate the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions in a way that helps improve the public health and economy of 
the County through partnerships with the community providing resources for a more sustainable and equitable 
community.    

Project Manager, City of Pasadena – Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Climate Action Plan and greenhouse gas 
Analysis Threshold, Pasadena  
Mr. Feldman led the project team that prepared a comprehensive inventory of greenhouse gas emissions resulting 
from local government and community-wide activities. As part of the inventory project, Rincon inventoried 
greenhouse gas emissions for the 2009 baseline year and conducted emissions forecasts for the years 2020, 2030, 
2035, and 2050 (consistent with the AB 32, Executive Order (EO) S-3-05 and SB 32 target years and the City of 
Pasadena’s General Plan horizon year). Rincon worked with the City to develop a Climate Action Plan that 
identified and evaluated reduction measures that would achieve the greatest reduction in the most cost-effective 
manner and created and implemented a comprehensive public outreach program. Rincon also developed a 
detailed implementation, monitoring, and maintenance plan. To facilitate implementation of the plan and 
streamline CEQA analysis for new development projects, Rincon developed one of the first SB 32 Greenhouse Gas 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 410 of 487



Erik D. Feldman, MS, LEED AP, Page 3

Threshold and Climate Action Plan compliance checklist to streamline future development projects under CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15183.5. In addition, Rincon prepared the CEQA documentation that demonstrated the Climate 
Action Plan would not result in any significant impacts and in fact may result in beneficial impacts as it relates to air 
quality and greenhouse gases/climate change. 

Principal-in-Charge, Climate Action Plan Update, City of Dublin 
Mr. Feldman was the Principal-in-Charge for the City of Dublin Climate Action Plan 2.0 Climate Action Plan update 
project and oversaw the development of the greenhouse gas inventory and forecast as well as measure 
development, community outreach, and internal outreach work scopes. The Climate Action Plan includes a tailored 
suite of greenhouse gas reduction measures to meet Dublin’s long-term goal of Carbon Neutrality by 2045. 
Strategies include electrification of buildings, zero emission vehicles, and waste reduction. The work scope 
included an extensive public outreach plan that leverages online tools to engage with the community even during 
Covid-19. The Climate Action Plan was adopted in 2020 and the next step is implementing the policies to achieve 
the long-term goal of carbon neutrality by 2045.  

Principal-in-Charge, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Climate Action Plan and CEQA Document 

Rincon is currently developing an integrated, comprehensive, and transformative Climate Action Plan (Climate 
Action Plan) and CEQA document. The plan is intended to be applied across all of Metropolitan’s land, facilities and 
infrastructure and takes into account the greenhouse gas (greenhouse gas) emissions from future capital 
investment projects such as the Regional Recycled Water Plant. The Climate Action Plan will build on 
Metropolitan’s sustainability achievements to date and identify additional actions that would reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions and prepare Metropolitan’s facilities and operations for the impacts of climate change. Rincon 
recently developing a baseline greenhouse gas inventory, forecast, and carbon budget that is being utilized to 
identify and evaluate feasible, cost-effective, and measurable greenhouse gas emissions reduction measures 
necessary to meet Metropolitan’s reduction targets. Rincon is currently working with Metropolitan teams 
associated with planning, engineering, facility operations, and other internal stakeholders to establish greenhouse 
gas emissions and reduction measures and infrastructure improvements that will be implemented through the 
plan. The plan is intended to serve as a Qualified greenhouse gas Reduction Plan for Metropolitan facilities, 
operations, and investment decisions and meet the provisions for CEQA streamlining (per CEQA Section 15183.5) 

Principal-in-Charge, Livermore Climate Action Plan, Livermore 
The Livermore Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) is an update to the City’s existing plan and will serve as a 
pathway for the City to achieve its long term goal of carbon neutrality while preparing to adapt to a changing 
climate including impacts related to heat, water availability, wildfire, and smoke. The CAAP team is also 
coordinating heavily with the City of Livermore Climate Action Commission which is helping to guide the 
development of the plan. To allow the commissioners to dig deeper into the key topics around the CAAP, Rincon 
and the Commission has developed Ad Hoc committees who will review and provide additional feedback on an 
array of climate action and adaptation topics including specifics on how to implement the key strategies within 
their community. As part of this program, Mr. Feldman is overseeing the technical work related to the inventory 
and forecast and development of greenhouse gas reduction and adaptation measures and is working with the City 
Council, Planning Commission, City Staff, and Climate Action Commission groups.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 411 of 487



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

EDUCATION 

B.S., Urban and Regional
Planning, California State 
Polytechnic University,
Pomona, 2003 

CERTIFICATIONS/ 

REGISTRATIONS 

Certified Planner, American 
Institute of Certified Planners 
(no. 023226) 

PROFESSIONAL 

AFFILIATIONS 

American Planning Association 
(APA) 

Reema Shakra, AICP 
Climate Action and Resilience Project Manager 

Ms. Shakra is a Climate Adaptation Program Manager with Rincon’s Environmental 
Planning and Sustainability Department and has 17 years of consulting and public 
agency experience in sea-level rise vulnerability and adaptation assessments, climate 
action and adaptation planning, and community outreach and engagement. Ms. 
Shakra has a wide-ranging policy background, having prepared or managed general 
plan updates, climate action plans, local coastal program updates, corridor plans, and 
climate adaptation plans. She co-authored a step-by-step guidebook for the Southern 
California Association of Governments region which provides local governments with 
a compendium of tools, resources, and best practices to efficiently advance their 
climate adaptation planning process. Ms. Shakra is currently managing the safety 
element updates for several cities located within or in close proximity to very high fire 
hazard severity zones, including the cities of Calabasas, Beaumont, and San Fernando. 
She is also serving as senior advisor for climate vulnerability assessments for cities 
that will be impacted by more frequent and extreme wildfires, including Ojai, Beverly 
Hills, and Cupertino. 

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Project Manager, City of Beverly Hills – Climate Action and Adaptation Plan, Beverly 
Hills, California.  
The City of Beverly Hills seeks to reduce its contribution to greenhouse gas emissions 
and prepare for localized climate change hazards. A climate change vulnerability 
assessment is being prepared which identifies wildfire risk and its impact on 
vulnerable populations and community assets, along with other climate change 
related hazards. Asset manager interviews were conducted with City Departments, 
Southern California Edison, and Southern California Gas to identify impacts associated 
with historic extreme events, adaptive capacity of managed assets, and opportunities 
for adaptation strategies. The project also involves preparing a greenhouse gas 
emissions inventory and a climate action and adaptation plan that identifies 
measures and actions to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and adapt to climate 
change hazards. Ms. Shakra serves as the project manager and senior technical 
oversight of the climate vulnerability assessment and adaptation strategies. 

Deputy Project Manager, Southern California Association of Governments – 
Southern California Regional Climate Adaptation Framework, Counties and Cities of 
Ventura, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, and Imperial. Ms. Shakra 
assisted SCAG in preparing a comprehensive framework to support regional climate 
adaptation planning. Ms. Shakra co-authored a regional climate adaptation 
guidebook which provides SCAG member agencies with a compendium of tools, 
resources, and best practices to efficiently advance their climate adaptation planning 
process.  She prepared a matrix that identified over 275 adaptation strategies for a 
variety of climate hazards, including wildfire. Ms. Shakra conducted a gap analysis of 
all member agencies to identify local governments that have adopted or are in the 
process of adopting climate adaptation policies in their safety elements. Ms. Shakra 
led the preparation of climate adaptation model policies for safety elements and local 
coastal programs.  She identified metrics and indicators that local governments and 
regional metropolitan planning agencies can use to help track progress in adapting to  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 412 of 487



Reema Shakra, AICP, Page 2 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

climate change. National American Planning Association award winner for Excellence in Sustainability in 2021. 

Project Manager, City of Calabasas – Safety, Circulation and Housing Element Update, Calabasas, California. 
Calabasas is preparing a comprehensive update to their Housing Element and related updates to the Land Use, Safety 
and Circulation Elements in compliance with new State rules. Ms. Shakra is serving as project manager and authoring 
the updates to the safety, land use and circulation elements. The safety element is being updated in compliance with 
recent state legislation, including SB 99, SB 379, AB 2140, and AB 3065, and OPR’s Fire Hazard Planning Technical 
Advisory Update (Draft). Calabasas is located entirely within a very high fire hazard severity zone, has over 15 
residential neighborhoods with less than two emergency evacuation routes, and numerous residential communities 
with gated secondary access. Policies and implementation programs are being developed in consultation with Los 
Angeles County Fire Department, Los Angeles County Sherriff Department, Los Angeles County Emergency Operations 
Department, and CAL FIRE.  

Project Manager, City of Beaumont – Safety and Housing Element Update, Beaumont, California.  
The City of Beaumont is preparing an update to their Housing Element as part of the 6th Regional Housing Needs 
Assessment Cycle and related updates to the Safety Element. Ms. Shakra is serving as project manager and authoring 
the updates to the safety element in keeping with new statutory State requirements on wildfire risk and evacuation 
routes for residential neighborhoods. Ms. Shakra is working closely with CALFIRE to review and revise the Safety 
Element in response to CALFIRE assessments. The Safety Element is scheduled for Board of Forestry and Fire 
Protection review and recommendation in November 2021.   

Project Manager, City of Monterey Park – Safety, Environmental Justice, and Housing Element Update, Monterey 
Park, California. 
The City of Monterey Park is preparing an update to their Housing Element as part of the 6th Regional Housing Needs 
Assessment Cycle. The City is also preparing an update to their Safety Element to include a climate change 
vulnerability assessment and climate adaptation strategies. The City is also preparing a new Environmental Justice 
Element to address inequitable distribution of pollution and its associated health risks. Ms. Shakra serves as the 
project manager, managing the preparation of technical reports and policies and programs associated with the 
housing, safety and environmental justice elements. The project also includes a robust public engagement and 
outreach effort, including development of a project logo with associated project branding and public engagement 
plan, convening community workshops with translation services in Chinese and Spanish, facilitating focus group 
stakeholder meetings, hosting a project website, and presenting to the City Council.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 413 of 487



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

EDUCATION 

BS, Environmental Science and 
Resource Management, 
California State University 
Channel Islands 

CERTIFICATIONS/ 

REGISTRATIONS 

Accredited Lead Greenhouse 
Gas Verifier, California Air 
Resource Board for Mandatory 
Reporting Regulation (EO# H-
21-090)

Lead Low Carbon Fuel Standard 
Verifier, California Air Resource 
Board (EO# H3-20-096), and 
Washington Department of 
Ecology 

Hannah Mize 
ASSISTANT PROJECT MANAGER 

Hannah Mize is a Ventura County native who has a strong foundation in and 
experience with a wide range of climate action planning as well as greenhouse gas 
emissions assessments. She has experience assisting with and managing climate 
action plans, which includes overseeing data collection; completing inventory and 
forecast calculations; setting targets; developing emission reduction and 
adaptation/resilience measures; participating in community outreach; and 
completing draft and final plans. She is currently managing the City of Burbank’s 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan Update as well as the City of Pittsburg’s Climate 
Action Plan and recently oversaw the completion of the City of South Pasadena’s 
inaugural Climate Action Plan, all of which are CEQA streamlined greenhouse gas 
emissions reductions plans. Ms. Mize also oversees the verification of greenhouse gas 
emissions and low carbon fuel through the California Air Resource Board Cap-and-
Trade Program following the requirements of the Mandatory Reporting Regulation 
and the Low Carbon Fuel Standard, respectively. Ms. Mize manages the team’s robust 
auditing program, which has collectively verified approximately 40 percent of the 
State of California’s industrial greenhouse gas emissions annually, over the past four 
years. She has conducted greenhouse gas verification services throughout the State 
for electricity generators, electricity and natural gas providers, oil and gas production 
facilities, refineries, mines, and fuel suppliers in conformance with the Assembly Bill 
32 Mandatory Reporting Regulation. She has also worked with transportation 
agencies to verify low carbon fuel.  

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

City of Burbank Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan Update, Burbank, California  
Client Contact: Karen Pan, Administrative Officer, Phone: (818) 238-5187, Email: 
kpan@burbankca.gov   

Ms. Mize is currently overseeing the preparation of a Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan 
Update for the City of Burbank that will serve as a “qualified Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Plan” under CEQA. The work scope includes development of an updated 
greenhouse gas inventory, greenhouse gas forecast, greenhouse gas reduction 
measures, and CEQA analysis with streamlining documentation. The Burbank 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan Update builds upon the efforts of the City’s 2035 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan, adopted in 2013, with an updated greenhouse gas 
inventory and greenhouse gas reduction targets to meet the state’s stringent 2030 
reduction targets of reducing greenhouse gas emissions to 40% below 1990 levels. 
The Rincon Team is working closely with the Burbank to engage all City departments, 
including the utility provider Burbank Water and Power, in development of 
greenhouse gas reduction measure that are supported by substantial evidence. 
Rincon is also using the unique opportunity of virtual community and stakeholder 
outreach to implement tools to further the reach of engagement efforts to enable a 
diverse and equitable community voice in plan development. Prior to adoption of the 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan Update, Rincon will develop the documentation 
needed to unlock the potential to use the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan Update as 
a tool for streamlining development review, including the CEQA analysis and 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan consistency checklist. To ensure future legal 
defensibility of the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan Update, Rincon is establishing a 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 414 of 487

mailto:kpan@burbankca.gov


Hannah Mize, Page 2

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

streamlined implementation tracking program centered around the use of the Rincon’s proprietary CAPDash tool, which 
will allow regular and transparent reporting of the status of the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan Update 
implementation. 

City of Pittsburg Climate Action Plan, Pittsburg, California  
Client Contact: Laura Wright, Environmental Affairs Manager, Phone: 925.252.4114, Email: lwright@ci.pittsburg.ca.us  

Ms. Mize is currently working with the City of Pittsburg to develop a Climate 
Action/Sustainability Plan that establishes a vision for a City that is both economically and environmentally healthy with 
an engaged community that continues to collectively strive for a more just and equitable world. The Pittsburg Climate 
Action Plan/Sustainability Plan will be the City’s first and is being designed as a living document that aims to engage, 
excite, and empower the community to take incremental steps towards a healthier, more sustainable future. This plan 
will also serve as a roadmap for reducing greenhouse gas emissions in the City and establishes practices that 
community members can implement that are practical and result in real, positive change. The Plan builds off of the 
greenhouse gas emissions inventory completed by Rincon for the City in 2018 and establishes a path forward to reduce 
long-term emissions and reach the State’s climate goals. 

City of South Pasadena Climate Action Plan and Grant Application, South Pasadena, California  
Client Contact: Arpy Kasparian, Water Conservation and Sustainability Analyst, Phone: (626) 403-7253, Email: 
akasparian@southpasadenaca.gov 

Ms. Mize led an effort to draft a grant application for the City of South Pasadena to complete a Climate Action Plan 
(Climate Action Plan) through the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG). The grant was funded and 
Ms. Mize took the lead on the second part of the effort – completing a qualified Climate Action Plan for South 
Pasadena. The Climate Action Plan is intended to facilitate the reduction of greenhouse gas (greenhouse gas) emissions 
throughout South Pasadena through implementation of SCAG’s 2016-2040 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable 
Communities Strategy: Towards a Sustainable Future (RTP/SCS) in a way that is practical, efficient, and beneficial to the 
community and enhances the City’s desirable characteristics and qualities. Technical analyses completed include a 
baseline greenhouse gas emission inventory, emissions forecast, and setting targets approved by the City that are the 
foundation of the Climate Action Plan. The Climate Action Plan builds on the sustainability-related awards and 
distinctions that South Pasadena has received and provides additional innovative strategies that will incrementally help 
the City reduce greenhouse gas emissions while retaining the City’s desirable characteristics and qualities consistent 
with the community’s vision and existing efforts. In addition, Climate Action Plan programmatic CEQA review 
documentation in the form of an Initial Study/Negative Declaration (IS/ND) was prepared. The Climate Action Plan is 
CEQA-qualified and was adopted in December 2020. 

City of Walnut Climate Strategy Initiative, Walnut, California  
Client Contact: Joelle Guerra, Senior Management Analyst, Phone: (909) 595-7543 x 405, Email: 
jguerra@cityofwalnut.org 

Ms. Mize managed the completion of the City of Walnut’s Climate Strategy Initiative, which serves as an introductory 
guide to help the City understand and reduce greenhouse gas emissions as well as begin to mitigate the associated 
impacts related to climate change. The Climate Strategy Initiative included completing a baseline emission inventory 
and forecast; setting targets; establishing emission reduction strategies; and compiling a visually pleasing, informative 
Plan for the community. The intent of this Climate Strategy Initiative is to introduce climate reduction strategies and 
build community buy in so that in future years the City can develop a Climate Action Plan that will spur substantive 
greenhouse gas reduction. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 415 of 487

mailto:lwright@ci.pittsburg.ca.us
mailto:akasparian@southpasadenaca.gov
mailto:jguerra@cityofwalnut.org


Hannah Mize, Page 3

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

Solano Transportation Authority Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program Greenhouse Gas Study, Solano, California 
Client Contact: Anthony Adams, Senior Project Manager, Phone: 707-399-3215, Email: aadams@sta.ca.gov  

Ms. Mize oversaw completion of preparation of Greenhouse Gas (greenhouse gas) emission studies in 2018 and 2020 
in support of two successful grant applications. The greenhouse gas studies quantified the net greenhouse gas 
emission benefits anticipated upon implementation of STA projects funded by the California State Transportation 
Agency’s (CalSTA) Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP). STA was awarded $10.7 and $10.4 million during 
the 2018 and 2020 TIRCP funding cycles, respectively.  

The greenhouse gas studies that Rincon prepared quantified the greenhouse gas reduction potential of various transit 
projects that will enhance the frequency, reliability and connectivity of transit services for Solano County riders. 
Specific project components that Rincon quantified include electrification of SolanoExpress, FAST and SolTrans busses, 
installation of rapid wireless charging systems at regional transit centers, implementation of in-line bus stops adjacent 
to the Interstate 80 corridor and construction of pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure at the Vacaville Transit Center, 
Fairfield Transit Center and Fairfield-Vacaville Rail Station to improve station connectivity with adjacent 
neighborhoods. Quantifications were performed according to the Greenhouse Gas Quantification Methodology for the 
TIRCP using the California Air Resources Board TIRCP Calculator Tool. Project components with attributable greenhouse 
gas reduction potential not quantifiable using the TIRCP Calculator Tool were calculated using Rincon’s internal 
greenhouse gas emissions calculation tool. Funded projects were collectively estimated to result in lifetime greenhouse 
gas reductions of 138,000 MT of CO2e and 125,000 MT of CO2e in 2018 and 2020, respectively. Beyond the direct 
greenhouse gas reductions associated with these projects, the regional benefits are far-reaching and would include 
travel time savings, improved transportation system reliability, vehicle operating cost savings, improved mobility, and 
enhanced availability of travel options. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 416 of 487



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists  ·  Planners  ·  Engineers 

EDUCATION 

BA, Atmospheric Science 

(with Honors), UC Berkeley 

ACCREDITATIONS 

California Air Resources Board 
Mandatory GHG Reporting 
Regulation Accredited Verifier 

California Air Resources Board 
Low Carbon Fuel Standards 
Program Accredited Lead 
Verifier 

Andrew Beecher 
SUSTAINABILITY PLANNER 

Andrew Beecher is a Sustainability Planner for Rincon Consultants, Inc., where he 
works as GHG technical specialist and project manager for the Environmental 
Planning Services Group. His experience includes greenhouse gas inventory 
development, GHG reduction strategy development and quantification, Climate 
Action Plan implementation and state GHG reporting audits. He has worked as 
technical lead on municipal, city and county-wide GHG inventories and GHG 
reduction measure development, for which he has developed tools to streamline 
calculation of GHG emissions inventories, forecasts, and GHG reduction measures 
simultaneously for multiple jurisdictions and years. He has experience conducting 
GHG verification services for oil and gas production facilities and fuel suppliers in 
conformance with AB-32 Mandatory Reporting Regulation, as well as verification for 
the California Low Carbon Fuel Standards Program. He has also worked as outreach 
coordinator for Rincon’s award-winning Climate Action Plan Implementation project, 
the Del Mar Home Energy Savings Program, taking on a unique approach to socially 
equitable policy implementation.  

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Project Manager, City of Pasadena – GHG Emissions Inventory, Pasadena 
Mr. Beecher is serving as the project manager for the development of GHG emissions 
inventory update for the City of Pasadena. This analysis is intended to provide a 
comprehensive assessment of the GHG emissions reduction progress the City has 
achieved since adoption of their Climate Action Plan in 2018. This project presents 
unique challenges and opportunities in working with the City’s own utility provider, 
Pasadena Water and Power, to assess progress in reducing GHG emissions associated 
with the City’s electricity and water supply.  

Assistant Project Manager/GHG Technical Lead, City of Beverly Hills – Beverly Hills 
Climate Action and Adaptation Plan, Beverly Hills  
Mr. Beecher is serving as GHG technical lead and assistant project manager on 
preparation of a Climate Action and Adaptation Plan for the City of Beverly Hills. The 
project includes development of two GHG inventories for separate years, a GHG 
emissions forecast, development of GHG reduction policies, a vulnerability 
assessment, and extensive public engagement. The analysis of GHG reduction 
strategies includes a unique approach to measure development and quantification, 
where a tiered analysis was performed for various measure implementation scenarios 
for reaching carbon neutrality on various timelines. 

GHG Technical Lead, City of Burbank – Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan, Burbank 
Mr. Beecher is serving as GHG technical lead on preparation of the City of Burbank’s 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy. Responsibilities include the development of a 
GHG emissions inventory and forecast for community and municipal activities, 
development of GHG reduction strategies, and analysis of existing GHG policies. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 417 of 487



Andrew Beecher, Page 2

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists  ·  Planners  ·  Engineers 

Assistant Project Manager/GHG Technical Lead, San Mateo County – Regional Integrated Climate Action Planning 
Suite (RICAPS) Technical Consultant, San Mateo County 
Mr. Beecher is serving as assistant project manager and technical lead for Rincon’s role as San Mateo County’s RICAPS 
program’s technical consultant. The RICAPS program serves as a collaborative effort to drive carbon neutrality and 
provide climate planning technical assistance for 21 member jurisdictions. Roles and responsibilities include: leading 
the update of GHG emissions inventories for 21 jurisdictions for the most recent data years best practices, 
coordinating and facilitating monthly working group meetings, development of a building electrification best-practices 
guide, and providing additional technical assistance on an as-needed basis.  

GHG Technical Analyst, City of South Pasadena – Climate Action Plan, South Pasadena  
Mr. Beecher served as GHG technical analyst on preparation of a qualified GHG reduction plan for the City of South 
Pasadena. Responsibilities included development of a GHG emissions inventory and forecast for community and 
municipal activities, development of GHG reduction strategies, and development of outreach materials 
communicating the climate action planning process to the community. 

GHG Technical Lead, Imperial County Transportation Commission – Imperial Valley Regional Climate Action Plan, 
Imperial County  
Mr. Beecher served as GHG technical lead on preparation of a comprehensive GHG inventory and emissions forecast 
for Imperial County and its seven incorporated cities, included in the Imperial Valley Regional Climate Action Plan. The 
GHG inventory included comprehensive assessments of emissions from community and agricultural sources as well as 
from vehicles using the Calexico Port of Entry. Tasks include development of GHG inventories for eight different 
jurisdictions and Countywide agricultural activities for three separate inventory years as well as comprehensive policy 
review to determine the effectiveness of previous GHG reduction measures throughout the jurisdictions. 

Verification Staff, Various Clients – California Cap and Trade Program Mandatory GHG Reporting Requirements and 
Low Carbon Fuel Standards Verification, Various Locations  
Mr. Beecher has served as verification staff for greenhouse gas verification services for multiple clients throughout 
California that are required to report annual greenhouse gas emissions and low carbon fuel transactions to the 
California Air Resource Board under the California Cap and Trade Program. Responsibilities include conducting facility 
site visits, interviewing personnel, drafting verification plans and reports, and reviewing data for accuracy and 
conformance with regulations. Mr. Beecher’s primary focus has been working with petroleum refineries in throughout 
California. 

GHG Technical Analyst, City of Walnut – Climate Action Plan, Walnut  
Mr. Beecher served as GHG technical analyst on development of a Greenhouse Gas Inventory for the City of Walnut’s 
climate action planning process. Tasks included calculation of estimated greenhouse gas emissions from community 
and municipal activities, quantification of GHG reduction measures and development of outreach materials for 
community meetings. 

Assistant Project Manager. City of Del Mar and San Diego Gas & Electric – Energy Efficiency Program Support for 
Climate Action Plan Implementation, Del Mar 
Mr. Beecher served as assistant project manager and outreach coordinator on development and execution of a public 
outreach campaign to help senior and low-income residents find and apply for energy efficiency upgrade incentives 
and rebates, as part of implementation of the City of Del Mar’s Climate Action Plan. Tasks included developing 
outreach materials and organizing and promoting events. Challenges of the planning process involved the computer 
literacy and mobility of the target group, which in turn required generating awareness of the program through close 
coordination with community groups. This planning effort was awarded the Public Involvement/Education Program 
Merit Award by the Association of Environmental Professionals.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 418 of 487



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

EDUCATION 

MESM, Energy and Climate, 
Bren School of Environmental 
Science & Management, 
University of California, 
Santa Barbara 

BA, Environmental Studies, 
BS, Ecology and Evolutionary 
Biology, University of 
California, Santa Cruz 

Camila Bobroff, MESM 
Sustainability Planner 

Camila Bobroff is a Sustainability Planner with Rincon’s Environmental Planning and 
Sustainability Group. Ms. Bobroff has substantial experience with data analysis, 
greenhouse gas emissions inventories, and developing climate action measures and 
adaptation strategies. She is currently responsible for assisting in the preparation of 
Climate Action Plans, Climate Adaptation Plans, Climate Change Vulnerability 
Assessments, Carbon Inventories, and Safety Elements for jurisdictions across 
California.  

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Assistant Project Manager, City of Carmel-by-the-Sea – Climate Adaptation Plan, 
Carmel-by-the-Sea 
Rincon is providing planning services for the Carmel Climate Adaptation Plan. Ms. 
Bobroff led the development of the City’s climate adaptation policies, which are 
based on the results from the City’s Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment, and 
the Climate Adaptation Plan. Ms. Bobroff also supported various public and 
stakeholder meetings to gather feedback on the Climate Adaptation Plan. 

Sustainability Planner, City of Livermore – Climate Action Plan Update, Livermore 
This climate action plan was prepared for the City, as required by its new General 
Plan Climate Change Element and set a GHG emissions reduction goal of 15 percent 
below 2008 levels. The CAP provided actions related to transportation, building 
energy use, water consumption, wastewater treatment, and waste generation that 
the City can implement to meet the City’s goal and the State-mandated, 2020, GHG 
emissions reduction goal. Ms. Bobroff was responsible for developing the Climate 
Change Vulnerability Assessment for this project, which assessed localized climate 
impacts, sensitive populations and assets to those climate impacts, and the City’s 
adaptive capacity based on current policies and programs. 

Sustainability Planner, City of Port Hueneme – General Plan Update and Housing 
Element Update, Port Hueneme 
Rincon is creating a long-range planning program for the City Port Hueneme that is 
innovative, practical, and facilitates the City in achieving their goals. Specifically, 
Rincon is developing a General Plan update that is compliant with recent State 
legislation and guidance. Ms. Bobroff is responsible for the development of the 
Climate Action Plan Element of the General Plan Update. Ms. Bobroff conducted the 
Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment for this project, which assessed localized 
climate impacts (including sea level rise, extreme heat, and precipitation changes), 
sensitive populations and assets to those climate impacts, and the City’s adaptive 
capacity based on current policies and programs. Ms. Bobroff also led the 
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Inventory, GHG reduction measure quantification, 
and the development of locally specific climate mitigation and adaptation policies. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 419 of 487



Camila Bobroff, MESM, Page 2 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

Sustainability Planner, City of Cupertino – Climate Action Plan Update Community Outreach and Technical Support, 
Cupertino 
Ms. Bobroff prepared a Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment Peer Review for the City of Cupertino to identify 
opportunities to better align with state guidance on preparing vulnerability assessments. Additionally, Ms. Bobroff 
conducted an existing adaptation measures analysis of the City’s planning documents including the Housing Element 
and Safety Element. This analysis provided recommendations to better align with state guidance on climate 
adaptation and incorporate best practices and innovative and progressive adaptation policies. 

Sustainability Planner, County of San Mateo – Government Operations Client Action Plan and Community Climate 
Action Plan, San Mateo County 
Rincon and Cascadia are providing planning services for the San Mateo County Government Operations Climate Action 
Plan (GOCAP) and the Community Climate Action Plan (CCAP). Rincon is leading review of the County initial list of 
action ideas, recommending specific measures, and further defining each action item with specific targets and/or 
actions in order to identify potential metrics for each action item to a level that would allow for qualitative analysis. 
Ms. Bobroff conducted emissions forecasting analysis and recommended specific reduction measures to help the 
County reach carbon neutrality by 2035. 

Assistant Project Manager, Santa Barbara – 2030 County Climate Action Plan and EIR, Santa Barbara County 
Ms. Bobroff is assistant managing the natural and working lands inventory for the Climate Action Plan. This includes 
calculating emissions from the natural and agricultural lands (also known as Natural and Working Lands). Rincon 
worked with the Bren School of Environmental Science and Management, University of California Santa Barbara 
(UCSB) to complete extensive research and reached out to experts in the respective fields to ensure the incorporation 
of the information found is appropriate and the methodology to calculate GHG emissions is accurate. The Climate 
Action Plan is intended to facilitate the reduction of GHG emissions in a way that helps improve the public health and 
economy of the County through partnerships with the community providing resources for a more sustainable and 
equitable community. Ms. Bobroff also helped update the county-wide GHG emissions inventory. 

Sustainability Planner, City of South Pasadena – Climate Action Plan, South Pasadena 
Ms. Bobroff was the climate change planner responsible for preparing a public outreach plan for the City to use as 
they develop and implement their Climate Action Plan. The outreach plan discussed the types of outreach methods, 
number of public meetings, and the content of these meetings to gather public input regarding the draft City of South 
Pasadena Climate Action Plan. 

Sustainability Planner, County of Merced – Merced County Climate Action Plan, Merced 
Ms. Bobroff is serving as a climate change planner for the Merced County Climate Action Plan. She conducted the 
Merced County climate change vulnerability assessment. She was also responsible for the development of mitigation 
measures for reducing agriculture-related greenhouse gas emissions. Ms. Bobroff also contributed to the 
quantification of future greenhouse gas emissions reductions assuming implementation of the mitigation measures 
proposed for the Climate Action Plan.  

Assistant Project Manager, City of Ojai – Ojai General Plan Update and EIR, Ojai 

The City of Ojai is updating their General Plan in partnership with Raimi and Associates and Rincon. Rincon is preparing 
the Conservation/Open Space, Safety, and Noise Elements and an environmental existing condition report. Ms. 
Bobroff drafted and finalized the climate change vulnerability assessment report which addressed assets and 
vulnerable populations at risk to more frequent and extreme wildfire hazards and associated degraded air quality.  

Assistant Project Manager, City of Brea – Safety, Environmental Justice, and Housing Element Update, Brea 
The City of Brea is preparing an update to their Housing Element as part of the 6th Regional Housing Needs Assessment 
Cycle. Ms. Bobroff is preparing updates to the City’s Safety Element and preparing new Environmental Justice policies 
in keeping with new statutory State requirements. 

Assistant Project Manager, City of Duarte – Safety, Environmental Justice, and Housing Element Update, Duarte 
The City of Duarte is preparing an update to their Housing Element as part of the 6th Regional Housing Needs 
Assessment Cycle. Ms. Bobroff is preparing updates to the City’s Safety Element and preparing new Environmental 
Justice policies in keeping with new statutory State requirements. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 420 of 487



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

EDUCATION 

Master of Environmental 
Management, Yale School of 
the Environment 

BA, Mandarin Chinese and 
Environmental Studies, 

Bennington College 

CERTIFICATIONS/ 

REGISTRATIONS 

Organizational Greenhouse 
Gas Accounting Workshop, 
Greenhouse Gas Management 
Institute  

Forest Abbott-Lum, MEM 
Planner II 

Ms. Abbott-Lum is a Master of Environmental Management whose work focuses on 
climate action and sustainability planning. As a Planner II within Rincon’s 
Sustainability Team, she draws on her expertise in climate change mitigation and 
adaptation to forecast GHG emissions, update GHG inventories, and implement 
climate action plans. Ms. Abbott-Lum also draws on her previous experience 
incorporating culturally appropriate outreach and equitable implementation in 
organic waste diversion to her climate change adaptation and mitigation work. She is 
well versed in data analysis, technical report writing, and public-facing 
communication. She has worked for public and private sector clients to bring forward 
sustainability projects ranging from a refrigerated warehouse decarbonization project 
for a grocery delivery startup, to a USDA-funded strategy to expand municipal mid-
sized composting for the City of New Haven.  

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Planner, City of Pittsburg – GHG Forecast, Pittsburg 

This project involves GHG emissions analysis and forecasting for the City of Pittsburgh 
in support of the City’s Climate Action Plan. Ms. Abbott-Lum used baseline inventory 
data to forecast business-as-usual and legislative adjusted scenarios for the City. 
These quantitative components lay the foundation for the targets and measures that 
will be included in the Climate Action Plan. 

Planner, County of San Mateo –  RICAPS Program Greenhouse Gas Inventory 
Updates and Building Electrification Strategic Support, San Mateo County 
This project involves providing strategic guidance and support for the County of San 
Mateo’s RICAPS program, which runs a regional effort to reduce GHG emissions in the 
county through administration of monthly and quarterly working group meetings, 
individualized technical support to all local jurisdictions, and annual inventory 
updates. Ms. Abbott-Lum is currently serving as a planner updating greenhouse gas 
inventories for Jurisdictions under the County of San Mateo. Services include 
technical review of past GHG inventories and incorporation of new methodologies, as 
well as policy support for CAP implementation, with a focus on equitable building 
electrification. This position requires detailed understanding of GHG reporting 
methodology, California State climate policy, and sectoral climate data 
(transportation, waste, water, electricity, natural gas) analysis and manipulation. 

Planner, City of Pasadena – Greenhouse Gas Inventory Update, Pasadena 
Ms. Abbott-Lum is serving as a planner updating GHG inventories for the City of 
Pasadena. Responsibilities include updating community and municipal inventories 
using updated methodologies for methane leakage and transit emissions, data 
collection, assessment, and analysis.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 421 of 487



Forest Abbott-Lum, MEM, Page 2 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

OTHER WORK EXPERIENCE

Compost Project Coordinator, City of New Haven – Analyzing Organics Management Strategy and Administering 
Municipal Grants, New Haven, Connecticut 
Ms. Abbott-Lum coordinated a $90k USDA grant to expand urban compost infrastructure, diverting 87+ tons of 
organics per year from New Haven’s waste stream. She developed internal and USDA-facing project update 
presentations, grant drawdowns, and impact metrics, working closely with the City of New Haven Food System Policy 
Division Director. She built a framework to assess equity in organics diversion implementation, using historic redlining 
data and ArcGIS to identify disinvested communities for prioritization. In addition, she built partnerships within the 
municipal government through targeted outreach to high-level leadership. 

Organics Recovery Coordinator, NYC Compost Project – Organics Diversion Policy Outreach and Industrial 
Composting, New York, New York  

Ms. Abbott-Lum co-led and operated an industrial compost site, network of organics diversion drop-off sites, and 
Mandarin-language culturally appropriate outreach programs for NYC’s Zero Waste by 2030 campaign. The compost 
site she managed served as a model urban compost site for the diversion of post-consumer food waste. She also 
liaised between community-based-organizations to expand the reach of the City’s grassroots food scrap diversion 
efforts, and establish a network of community-led compost sites, supporting the City’s climate goals through the 
diversion of food scraps from landfills.   

Graduate Sustainability Consultant, Imperfect Foods – Refrigerated Warehouse Decarbonization, Remote 
Ms. Abbott-Lum wrote renewable energy procurement recommendations for refrigerated warehouses, which were 
delivered to Sustainability Team leadership as part of Imperfect’s net zero carbon by 2030 commitment. She also 
delivered a short-list of renewable energy and renewable energy credit vendors, conducting supplier interviews and 
synthesizing recommendations based on local renewable market conditions. 

Graduate Sustainability Consultant, Tapestry Inc. – Sustainable Materials Procurement Using Textile LCA Data, 
Remote 
Ms. Abbott-Lum synthesized Higg Index LCA scores to create a sustainable materials procurement scorecard for 
Tapestry’s Design and Procurement teams. Analysis was informed by interviews with Materials Management teams in 
Asia, and application of LCA scores to an existing Coach leather handbag product. As part of a team, she presented 
findings to C-Suite leadership working closely with the Senior Director of ESG strategy. 

Business Innovation Intern, Symbrosia – Carbon Offset Strategy, Kailua-Kona, Hawaii 
Ms. Abbott-Lum created a go-to-market strategy for Symbrosia’s carbon offset program (offsets are generated by 
feeding Symbrosia’s cultivated red algae to ruminants like dairy cows, reducing enteric methane emissions). She 
produced a financial analysis of revenue generated from carbon offsets based on organic & conventional dairy 
industry scenarios. She also engaged and solicited input from Hawaiian community advocates for a community 
engagement strategy. Additional responsibilities included drafting Generally Recognized as Safe (GRAS) compliance 
documentation for the Food and Drug Administration and conducting policy research on regulations for animal feed 
additives. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 422 of 487



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

EDUCATION 

BA, Environmental Science, 
Sustainability, Willamette 
University 

Lauren Collar 
Adaptation Analyst 

Lauren Collar is a Sustainability Planner within Rincon’s Environmental Planning and 
Sustainability Group.  Ms. Collar has experience with GHG inventories, data analysis, 
climate adaptation and mitigation policy development, and technical writing. She is 
currently responsible for assisting in the preparation of Climate Action Plans, GHG 
Inventories, GHG Reduction Plans, Safety Elements, Climate Vulnerability 
Assessments, Climate Adaptation Plans, and Local Hazard Mitigation Plans. She is 
currently serving as an adaptation analyst for County of Fresno Safety Element 
update and Climate Vulnerability Assessment, St Helena Safety Element update and 
Climate Vulnerability Assessment, and City of Calabasas Safety Element update. 

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Sustainability Planner, County of Fresno - General Plan Update, Fresno County, 
California (2/2022 – present) 

Ms. Collar is serving as a sustainability planner for the Fresno County Safety Element 
Update and Climate Vulnerability Assessment. Ms. Collar is assessing localized climate 
impacts, sensitive assets and populations to those climate impacts, and the County’s 
adaptive capacity based on current policies and programs. She is leading the 
development of locally specific climate adaptation strategies.  

Sustainability Planner, City of St Helena – Safety Element and Climate Vulnerability 
Assessment, St. Helena California (1/2022 – present) 

Ms. Collar is the sustainability planner responsible for the development of the St 
Helena Climate Vulnerability Assessment and the Safety Element Update. She is 
preparing sections on localized climate impacts, sensitive populations and assets to 
those climate impacts, and the City’s adaptive capacity based on current policies and 
programs. She is also preparing the City’s Safety Element update.  

Sustainability Planner, City of Calabasas – Safety Element Update, Calabasas, 
California (1/2022 – present) 

Ms. Collar is serving as a sustainability planner for the City of Calabasas’s Safety 
Element Update. She is assisting with the development of policies and technical 
content specifically on wildfire and evacuation.  

Environmental Planner, Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District – Local 
Hazard Mitigation Plan, Monterey, County California (12/2021 – present) 

Ms. Collar is the environmental planner responsible for the development of the 
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District’s Local Hazard Mitigation Plan.  She 
is preparing sections on hazard identification, vulnerabilities, and mitigation 
strategies. She is also assisting with community engagement and public outreach for 
the project. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 423 of 487



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Environmental Scientists · Planners · Engineers 

EDUCATION 

MPA, Baruch College, City 
University of New York 

BA, International Relations, 
University of California, Davis 

CERTIFICATIONS/ 

REGISTRATIONS 

American Planning 
Association, American Institute 
of Certified Planners (no. 
023166) 

AFFILIATIONS 

Central Coast Section of the 
California Chapter of the 
American Planning Association 
Board member (2011 – 2018, 
2020 – present) 

2019 American Planning 
Association California Chapter 
Conference Mobile Workshop 
Chair 

Leadership Ventura 
(2013-2014) 

Lilly Rudolph, MPA, AICP 
Senior Program Manager 

Ms. Rudolph is responsible for managing current planning assignments and long-
range planning documents for municipal planning agencies. Over her career in 
planning, community development, and economic development, Ms. Rudolph has 
developed a broad background of experience ranging from preparing long range 
planning documents to overseeing civic engagement and outreach strategies. She has 
processed a range of development applications for cities and counties and has 
prepared land use-specific ordinances and is experienced in the preparation of 
nonprofit-funded grant applications and grant management. 

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

 City of Ventura Victoria Corridor Development Code Ordinance Amendment 

Ms. Rudolph was the project manager for the Victoria Avenue Corridor Plan and 
Development Code. She wrote smart growth policy language and prepared a form-
based development code to implement the City’s vision to transform the corridor into 
a pedestrian-friendly, mixed-use thoroughfare. Ms. Rudolph managed the 
preparation of a Mitigated negative declaration and presented the project to the 
Design Review Committee, Planning Commission, and City Council. 

City of Ventura Abandoned Shopping Cart Ordinance 

Ms. Rudolph, as part of the City of Ventura’s Safe and Clean Public Places Initiative, 
prepared an abandoned shopping cart ordinance to curb the theft, unauthorized use 
and abandonment of shopping carts that results in blighted neighborhoods and public 
places. The project involved the preparation of a negative declaration and 
presentations to the Planning Commission and City Council.  

City of Ventura Noise Ordinance Amendment 

Ms. Rudolph was the project manager to facilitate entitlements for a summer concert 
series at Ventura City Hall in an area abutting a hillside residential neighborhood. The 
effort involved an amendment to the City’s noise ordinance to exceed noise 
thresholds during concert events. The project involved the preparation of a mitigated 
negative declaration. 

City of Ventura Grants Program Coordinator 

Ms. Rudolph developed and managed a citywide grants program for the City of 
Ventura. This effort involved coordinating with all City departments to track grant 
opportunities, deadlines, and application requirements to maximize potential funding 
that could be allocated to various City needs.  

Planning and Conservation League Foundation Research and Fundraising Assistant 

Ms. Rudolph prepared dozens of grant applications for a wide range of environmental 
initiatives. She tracked grant funding opportunities and application deadlines and 
requirements and prepared and submitted grant applications, including project 
scopes, budgets, and deliverables to grantor organizations.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 424 of 487



Jonathan Parfrey 
Executive Director 

Leading Climate Resolve with strategic direction and intimate familiarity with California, climate, 
and social change. 

SELECTED WORK EXPERIENCE 

Climate Resolve; Los Angeles, CA 
Executive Director; 2011 – present 

Los Angeles Water & Power (LADWP) Board of Commissioners; Los Angeles, CA 
Commissioner; 2008-2013 

GREEN LA Coalition and Institute; Los Angeles, CA 
Executive Director; 2007-2011 

Physicians for Social Responsibility; Los Angeles, CA 
Executive Director; 1994-2007 

FOUNDING MEMBERSHIPS 

Alliance of Regional Collaboratives for Climate Action (ARCCA); Co-founder; 2010 – present 

Los Angeles Regional Collaborative for Climate Action & Sustainability (LARC); Co-founder; 2008 – 
present 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS 

State of California Climate Adaptation Technical Advisory Group to implement executive order B-
30-15; Member; 2016

US Climate and Health Alliance steering committee; Member; Los Angeles, CA; 2016 

CicLAvia Board of Directors; Member; Los Angeles, CA; 2008 – present   

Los Angeles League of Conservation Voters; President 2010 – 2013; Los Angeles, CA; Member 2005 
– present

City of Los Angeles Advisory Committee on the LAX North Runway; Member; Los Angeles, CA; 2007 
– 2011

Vision Los Angeles Advisory Committee; Member; Los Angeles, CA; 2009 – 2011 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 425 of 487



Santa Susana Field Laboratory, US EPA Interagency Workgroup; Member; Los Angeles, CA; 1999 – 
2008 

Los Angeles Environmental Executives Roundtable; Co-Chair; Los Angeles, CA; 1996 – 2006 

Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger, Environmental Policy Transition Team; Member; Los Angeles, 
CA; 2003 

Governor Gray Davis, Advisory Committee on Radioactive Waste Disposal; Member; Los Angeles, 
CA; 2000 – 2001 

ACADEMIC POSITIONS 

Los Angeles Institute for the Humanities; Fellow; Los Angeles, CA; 2014 – present 

USC Marshall School of Business; Senior Fellow; Los Angeles, CA; 2011 – present 

UCLA Institute of the Environment and Sustainability; Visiting Lecturer; Los Angeles, CA; 2012 –
2013 

AWARDS 

Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors Chair’s Green Leadership Award; 2016 

United Nations Association, Southern California, Global Citizen Award; 2016 

Durfee Foundation Stanton Fellowship; 2009 – 2011 

Durfee Foundation Sabbatical Fellowship; 2002 

Paul S. Delp Award; 1992 

EDUCATION 

BA, History; University of California, Berkeley; 1980 

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

State of California Climate Adaptation Technical Advisory Group to Implement Executive Order B-
30-15. Developed guidelines for implementation of a greenhouse gas reduction target of 40 percent
below 1990 levels by 2030.

LA in Sync. Project lead on developing cap and trade-funded mitigation and adaptation projects for 
Los Angeles and Southern California, in partnership with the Annenberg Foundation.  

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 426 of 487



EnviroMetro. Climate Resolve leads a coalition of over 60 organizations advocating for sustainable 
transit priorities in Los Angeles through communications and outreach to the public and to the 
Metro board of directors as well as legislative advocacy and review of emissions guidelines and 
projections. Work funded by the Resources Legacy Fund, the David Bohnett Foundation, 
and WildSpaces.   

Southern California Association of Governments – Affordable Housing, Sustainable 
Communities. Conduct outreach to city governments, affordable housing developers, and 
communities on the availability of state funds for transit-proximal and sustainable affordable 
housing development. Provide technical assistance to developers in order to maximize sustainable & 
affordable development funding in Southern California.  

California’s Fourth Climate Assessment. Conducted an overview of the efficacy of California’s past 
climate adaptation policies, and developed guidelines on future adaptation action for the State.  

Climate Change in Los Angeles Communications Partnership with KCET. A partnership between 
Climate Resolve and local PBS affiliate KCET to disseminate climate information in Southern 
California. Focus on using the platform of KCET’s broad audience to make scientific information and 
actionable items accessible and relevant. Worked directly with researchers and universities to 
coordinate public release of climate studies on the site. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 427 of 487



Gabriel Varela 

Associate Director, Outreach Programs 

Experienced outreach and community liaison working closely with local communities. Providing grassroots 

educational opportunities on local issues and continuing to advocate for access to local resources on behalf of 

the communities he grew up in. Focusing on relationship building by sharing his lived experience as a native 

Angeleno and learning from the stories of those communities he works with.  

EDUCATION 

BA, History and Chicano Studies; Cal State Long Beach; Long Beach, CA 

MA, History and Chicano Studies; Cal State Long Beach; Long Beach, CA 

SELECTED WORK EXPERIENCE 

Climate Resolve; Los Angeles, CA 

Associate Director, Outreach Programs; October 2018 – present 

● Conduct education and outreach to local neighborhood councils, faith groups, and student groups on

behalf of a variety of project funders

● Educate communities on the changing temperatures of Los Angeles, specifically extreme heat day

increases and the repercussions on health, water supply, energy demand, air quality, and more

● Present available solutions in the Los Angeles region by honing in on cool roofs, cool streets, and energy

efficiency/ water conservation options offered by LADWP and other

Grid Alternatives; Los Angeles, CA 

Outreach Coordinator & Manager 

● Led implementation efforts to engage with low-income communities to promote jobs in the renewable

energy industry and the adoption of solar energy systems through through the Single-family Affordable

Housing Program and the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund

● Conducted outreach and education efforts to assist, educate, inform, and engage local section-8 eligible

tenants regarding their rights, responsibilities, and options.

● Focused on educating tenants living in properties that were at risk of losing affordability protections.

Community Education for Social Action; Los Angeles, CA 

Outreach Educator 

● Working out of the International Institute of Los Angeles, led grassroots efforts to educate the local

community on a variety of issues directly affecting local neighborhoods including transportation, health

disparities, pollution, green spaces, etc.

● Helped initiate a local garden project providing community members with an opportunity to practice

gardening as a solution to local food desert issues.

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 428 of 487



CHRIS DEVLIN 
Senior Engineer Planner 

Mr. Devlin has served as a Senior Engineer Planner of Iteris’ Consulting 
Solutions since 2013. He has 31 years of experience in transportation 
planning and has managed and participated in a wide variety of 
transportation studies. These include travel demand forecasting studies, 
travel surveys, traffic impact studies, parking studies, and corridor studies. 
Mr. Devlin is an experienced travel demand forecaster having developed 
and worked on over twenty different traffic models throughout the world. 
He is proficient in several modeling packages including TransCAD, Cube and 
emme2in . He has developed model outputs to support the economic, 
financial and environmental analysis of major highway, transit and aviation 
projects and well as VMT statistics for SB 743. Mr. Devlin is also proficient in 
the use of Geographic Information Systems (GIS) for problem-solving, 
analysis, and presentation of results. He has designed and run GIS training 
courses specifically for Transportation Planners, including the design and 
coding of GIS utilities and scripts. Mr. Devlin has also performed several 
large-scale transportation surveys from the survey design stage, through 
implementation, data cleaning, database population, and reporting. 

Project Experience 

City of Irvine, North Irvine Transportation Mitigation – Five-Year Update. 
Project Manager.  Mr. Devlin is currently performing the five-year update to 
the North Irvine Transportation Mitigation (NITM) Traffic Study.  The project 
involves assessment of previously identified improvements at intersections, 
arterials and freeway mainlines and ramps in North Irvine, to ascertain if 
they will still be needed.  The cost estimates for the each NITM 
improvement is being updated along with the impact fees that are required 
to be paid by new development.  The project began n February 2021 and 
will conclude in late 2022. 

City of Irvine, Irvine Business Complex Traffic Study Update. Project 
Manager.  
Mr. Devlin led the traffic analysis and mitigation development for the Irvine 
Business Complex (IBC) Traffic Study Update. The study looked at over 200 
intersections and arterial segments in the City of Irvine and adjacent 
jurisdictions as well as 60 freeway segments and over 100 freeway ramps. 
Updates to land uses, traffic counts and highway network improvements 
were included as part of the study. Traffic impacts associated with the Vision 
Plan were identified and a series of potential mitigation measures were 
identified. The project began in February 2018 and concluded in January 
2020.  

Senate Bill 73 (SB 743) Implementations – Cities of Irvine, Glendora, 
Laguna Niguel, and Seal Beach, CA 
Mr. Devlin assisted several jurisdictions with the implementation of SB 743, 
a law that involves transitioning away from Level of Service (LOS) to the use 
of Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) for assessing transportation impacts. In this 
role, Mr. Devlin supported City staff from both a technical and policy 
standpoint including presenting at public meetings and stakeholder 
outreach events. The projects started in June 2019 and were completed in 
2020. 

EDUCATION 
MSc, Transportation Planning 
and Engineering, University of 
Leeds, UK, 1991 

BA, Economics, Durham 
University, UK, 1987 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 
With Iteris: 11     Total: 33 

CORE DISCIPLINES 
Transportation Planning & 
Analysis 

Travel Demand Forecasting 

Geographic Information Systems 

Transportation Surveys 

Traffic Asset Management 
Systems 

AFFILIATIONS 
Institute of Transportation 
Engineers (ITE) 

Orange County Traffic 
Engineering Counsel (OCTEC) 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 429 of 487



CHRIS DEVLIN 
Senior Engineer Planner 

Carson Neighborhood Mobility Plan, Southern 
California Association of Governments (SCAG) – 
Carson, CA 
Mr. Devlin was part of a multidisciplinary team 
under contract with SCAG, assisting the 
development of the City of Carson’s Neighborhood 
Mobility Plan. Using performance measures derived 
from the 2016 Regional Transportation 
Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy, scenarios of 
neighborhood mobility improvements such as bike 
share, bicycle paths, NEV lanes, and pedestrian 
improvements and land use changes were modeled 
to demonstrate their changes to forecasted travel 
patterns. The project team coordinated with the 
City’s General Plan Update effort to ensure 
consistency with the scenario and citywide planning. 
The project started in July 2018 and completed in 
June 2019. 

Climate Action Plan Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) 
Analysis – Various Cities 
Mr. Devlin served as a Task Lead for VMT analysis for 
the Climate Action Plans of the City of Irvine, and the 
Cities of Los Angeles, La Canada Flintridge, Industry, 
and South Pasadena. As part of the Greenhouse Gas 
(GHG) inventory for on-road transportation, the VMT 
of trips originating or destined for the jurisdictions 
was calculated using the regional travel demand 
model, with additional off-model, local street 
estimates. To estimate the ability to reduce VMT, 
city policies related to transportation were reviewed 
and Mr. Devlin worked with the Cities to develop 
strategies to further reduce GHG emissions from 
transportation sources by assessing and quantifying 
the GHG reduction potential of various policies, 
projects, and programs.  

South Orange County MPAH Amendments/Los 
Patrones Parkway Extension – County of Orange 
Mr. Devlin used the OCTAM traffic model to develop 
traffic forecasts to analyze five MPAH amendments 
in South Orange County including the proposed Los 
Patrones Parkway extension from Cow Camp Road 
to Avenida La Pata.  Mr.  Devlin revised OCTAM’s 
TAZ structure, land use and networks to account for 
proposed new development in Rancho Mission 
Viejo.  The study also analyzed the potential removal 
of four other Masterplan of Arterial Highway (MPAH) 
improvements in the area with and without the 
potential widening of Ortega Highway.  Level of 
service analysis was performed using both 
Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU) methodology 
and Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) for Caltrans 

locations.  Synchro analysis of potential roundabout 
locations was performed and VMT calculated for 
CEQA requirements.  As part of this project the team 
developed a spreadsheet-based ICU worksheet for 
the County to replace an obsolete computer 
program.  The project started in June 2020 and was 
completed in December 2020.  

On-Call Transportation Engineering Services – City 
of Buena Park, CA 
Mr. Devlin served as part of the Iteris team acting as 
On-Call Transportation Engineer for the City of 
Buena Park. He supported City Staff with completion 
of transportation engineering functions within the 
City’s Public Works Department. Mr. Devlin 
periodically worked on-site at City Hall, providing as-
needed services to support City services in the Public 
Works, Planning, and Police Departments. He 
supported the review of new development plans, 
the completion of new traffic signal installations or 
signal upgrades, and the response to citizen inquiries 
regarding traffic flow and safety conditions. Mr. 
Devlin’s involvement was from January 2018 through 
January 2019. 

I-405 Design-Build Improvement Project, Orange
County Transportation Authority (OCTA) – Orange
County, CA
Mr. Devlin serves as a Transportation Planner as part
of a multidisciplinary design and construction team
on this $1.2 billion dollar design build project in
Orange County California.  The project will improve
16 miles of the I-405 between the SR-73 freeway in
Costa Mesa and the I-605 near the Los Angeles
County line. The project includes adding one regular
lane in each direction from Euclid Street to I-605,
making improvements to freeway entrances, exits
and bridges, and will also implement Express Lanes
that expands the existing HOV lane from one lane to
two lanes in each direction from SR-73 to I-605. Mr.
Devlin is providing review of the TMP and MOT
components. The TMP includes detour routes and
supporting traffic analysis for partial or complete
closures for 17 arterial overcrossings and over 35
freeway ramps. The project began in February 2017
and is ongoing.

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 430 of 487



SEAN T. DALY, AICP, PTP 
Senior Planner 

Mr. Daly is a Senior Planner for Iteris’ Consulting Solutions. He has 22 years 
of public sector and professional consulting experience in transportation 
planning and has been with Iteris since 2006. Sean’s approach to planning 
puts people first to ensure access and connectivity rather than barriers and 
isolation. He is supported by Iteris’ focus on to bring professional planning 
services to his clients through a broad array of knowledge, expertise and 
experience.  

Previous to Iteris, Sean was the Transportation Improvement Program 
Manager at the Boston Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO).  He is the 
Membership Officer for the American Planning Association (APA) Louisiana 
Chapter, and previously served on the National Planning Conference 
Committee as the Mobile Workshop Chair for the 2018 National Planning 
Conference in New Orleans.  He is the past Chair of the ASCE Louisiana 
Transportation and Development Institute, and currently serves on the St. 
Tammany Parish Board of Zoning Adjustment.  

Project Experience 

Freight Corridors Study, Ventura County Transportation Commission – 
Ventura County, CA 
Sean was the Project Manager for the Ventura County Freight Corridors 
Study, a partnership between the Ventura County Transportation 
Commission, the Port of Hueneme, Caltrans and the Southern California 
Association of Governments to identify and prioritize the most significant 
freight corridors for safer, more efficient, and sustainable freight 
connections.  The team worked with community and industry groups and the 
general public to refine the objectives, focus analysis efforts, and develop 
solutions with the greatest benefit to both the County’s economic 
competitiveness and environmental health to establish a more thorough 
understanding of the highway and rail freight corridors in Ventura County, 
along with key related local roads, and use the knowledge to inform future 
planning and investment decisions.  The project began in 2019 and 
completed in fall 2021. 

Valley Boulevard Multimodal Transportation Improvement Project – Los 
Angeles, CA 
Mr. Daly is the Iteris project manager and traffic analysis lead for the Valley 
Boulevard Multi-Modal Transportation Improvement Project which envisions 
transformative corridor improvements for all modes of transportation, 
including auto, bus, bicycle and pedestrian activities along the corridor. With 
this project, City of Los Angeles Bureau of Engineering, in partnership with 
City Council District 14, aims to improve transit service, connectivity and 
ridership as well as increase safe access for travelers to employment centers, 
educational facilities, healthcare facilities, parks and recreational centers in 
the area.  The development of existing conditions, conceptual alternatives, 
and alternatives analysis are part of this phase of the project.  The project 
started in Fall 2020 and is ongoing. 

EDUCATION 
MCP, City Planning, University of 
Pennsylvania, 2002 

BA, Geography, University of 
California, Los Angeles, Minor in 
Public Policy, 1998 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 
With Iteris: 18     Total: 24 

REGISTRATIONS & 
CERTIFICATIONS 

American Institute of Certified 
Planners (AICP) 
AICP #021297 

Professional Transportation 
Planner (PTP) 
PTP #23 

Transportation Worker 
Identification Credential 
(TWIC®) 
TWIC #1107253 

CORE DISCIPLINES 
Transportation Planning 

Traffic Engineering & Operations 

Goods Movement 

AFFILIATIONS 
American Planning Association 
(APA) 

American Society of Civil 
Engineers (ASCE) 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 431 of 487



SEAN T. DALY, AICP, PTP 
Senior Planner 

Neighborhood Mobility Plan – City of Carson, CA 
Mr. Daly was the transportation task lead for the 
Carson Neighborhood Mobility Plan to increase 
density at key neighborhood nodes along with 
coordinated active transportation improvements to 
improve non-auto access to everyday needs. Mr. 
Daly developed a process to analyze the isolated 
VMT reduction of NMA transportation 
improvements. Overall, there were eight separate 
calculations of the VMT reduction analysis of NMA 
improvements. Five calculated the change in 
infrastructure supporting walking and biking and 
three calculated localized neighborhood trip-making 
due to changes in neighborhood land use. Overall, 
the analysis forecasted an approximately two 
percent reduction in daily VMT through shifts to 
active and other non-automobile modes of 
transportation, particularly for short trips. The 
project began in July 2018 and completed in July 
2019.  

Last-Mile Freight Delivery Study – City of Los 
Angeles, CA 
Mr. Daly was the project manager for a 
multidisciplinary team studying issues of last-mile 
freight. In an era of Complete Streets planning, 
accommodation of delivery is often left out of the 
discussion and process—despite the fact that every 
active land use receives deliveries on a daily basis. 
The study provided delivery strategies in areas of 
limited street space based on the issues 
encountered in street typologies across the City of 
Los Angeles. The process was guided by a Project 
Advisory Committee composed of government and 
industry stakeholders who reviewed the technical 
analysis of GIS data, case study location information, 
field data collection and surveys of local 
stakeholders. The product of the effort was a 
strategy toolbox to address issues of last mile freight 
delivery to enhance both goods movement and 
broader community goals. The study was completed 
in 2019. 

Compton Boulevard Complete Streets Planning 
and KBK Site Traffic Impact Analysis – City of 
Compton, CA 
Mr. Daly served as the CEQA transportation analyst 
and QA/QC for the Compton Boulevard Complete 
Streets Planning and KBK Site Traffic Impact Analysis. 
Transportation analysis of the projects located near 
the Compton A (Blue) Line station in Compton 
included multimodal assessment of the proposed 
projects. The project included a reimagination of 

Compton Boulevard, with conceptual design of 
protected bike lanes, curb extensions, and mid-block 
crossings. The project began in June 2020 and 
completed in February 2021. 

Street Closure and Lane Reduction Feasibility 
Study  – South Pasadena, CA 
Mr. Daly is the Project Manager for a study of the 
feasibility analyzing the potential impacts associated 
with the closure of Meridian Avenue between 
Mission Street and El Centro Avenue, and the 
removal of one travel lane in each direction on 
Mission Street between Orange Grove Avenue and 
Fair Oaks Avenue. The results of the traffic study will 
be used to guide policy decisions on options to 
support economic activity such as outdoor dining 
and vending and support the implementation of the 
Downtown Specific Plan.  The project began and was 
completed in fall 2021.   

Local Roadway Safety Plan – San Ramon, CA 
Sean is the safety analysis and countermeasure 
development lead for the Local Roadway Safety Plan 
for the City of San Ramon.  The LRSP provides 
analysis to proactively address safety needs and 
challenges in a systemic approach to identify a 
prioritized list of improvements and actions based 
on cost-effective safety countermeasures.  The LRSP 
will positions the City to apply for state funding 
through the Caltrans Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) calls-for-projects cycles.   

South Bay Measure R Highway Program, South Bay 
Cities Council of Governments (SBCCOG) – Los 
Angeles County, CA 
Mr. Daly was instrumental in developing the South 
Bay Measure R Highway Program Implementation 
Plan which outlines the ongoing process of allocating 
$900 million in Measure R sales tax revenue to 
improve highway operations over a 30-year period in 
the South Bay area of Los Angeles County. This 
included a process to identify and evaluate eligible 
projects, estimate cost and schedule, and enable a 
consensus-driven decision making process to 
allocate funding. In the second phase of this project, 
Iteris performed a program management role, 
conducting updates to the Implementation Plan, 
assessing system performance, establishing a nexus 
of non-highway projects to the highway system 
operations, and annual budget requests for project 
funding, monitoring individual project progress and 
making recommendations for project corrections if 
one is delayed. The project completed in 2017. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 432 of 487



Funding and Financing Strategies for Climate Action 

EDUCATION 

B.Sci., Finance and 
Entrepreneurship, The Wharton 
School at the University of
Pennsylvania (Philadelphia PA)

CERTIFICATIONS/ 

ACCREDITATIONS 

Series 65 Investment Advisor 

Fundamentals of Sustainability 
Accounting (FSA) Credential I 

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE 

31 

AFFILIATIONS 

Sustainability Accounting 
Standards Board (SASB.org), 
Advisor 

Financial Technical Advisory 
Committee, Mayor’s Council on 
Climate Change, joint group 
among Cities of Sacramento CA 
and West Sacramento CA 

PUBLICATIONS 

The HIP Investor: Make Bigger 
Profits by Building a Bigger 
World (Wiley, 2010), author 

The Global Handbook of Impact 
Investing (Wiley, 2020), co-editor 

R. Paul Herman
CEO, Founder, Chief Investment Officer 

Mr. Herman is experienced in designing strategies to fund and finance municipalities 
and climate action projects for investors and issuers. Climate action funding can both 
reduce green-house gas emissions (GHGs) and can generate a positive return on 
investment (ROI). 

Herman founded HIP (Human Impact + Profit) Investor in 2006 to serve investors 
seeking to build a better world via their portfolios and capital allocations.   HIP rates 
more than 130,000 investments, including 120,000 Muni Bond Issuers and Impact 
Entities (Cities, Counties, States, Energy + Water Utilities, Transportation Districts, 
Housing Agencies, Hospitals, Universities + Community Colleges, School Districts, and 
Sovereigns).  The HIP Ratings quantify the health, wealth, earth, equality, and trust of 
issuers based on actual performance metrics.  HIP’s clients include several of the top 10 
investment managers in muni bonds, as well as in climate action. 

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Project Manager, CDP – Social Equity and Project Finance, Matchmaker Sustainable 
Infrastructure Project.  Herman, HIP team and social equity leaders developed project 
profiles, financing menus, webinars, and contributed to the Making Climate 
Infrastructure Equitable Toolkit and Workbook. Resources were informed by work with 
a cohort of 30 CDP Matchmaker cities funding the next wave of equitable climate action 
and can be used by local governments pursuing social equity in infrastructure, funding 
and financing sustainability projects. 

Project Consultant, and co-Author, Climate Risks and Opportunities in the Great Lakes 
Region: Leveraging Green Infrastructure as a Resilience Measure for Stormwater 
Infrastructure. Herman and Resilient Infrastructure Sustainable Communities (RISC) 
team co-authored this regional review analyzing four pillars county by county - climate 
risks, social vulnerability, workforce agility, and fiscal affordability. This research 
identifies which communities can become more resilient, and more ready for investors, 
sooner rather than later, and how to prioritize high impact climate action. 

Project Director, and co-Author, Urban Sustainability Directors Network (USDN) – 
Financing Sustainable Cities Scan and Toolkit.  Herman and the HIP team co-authored 
this action-oriented “how-to toolkit” for cities to source implementable and emerging 
funding mechanisms that can support cities striving towards bold climate action and 
sustainability. Participating cities included Palo Alto CA, Oakland CA, Berkeley CA, 
Vancouver BC, Phoenix AZ, Ithaca NY, Ann Arbor MI, and Milwaukee WI. 

Project Director, and co-Author, Urban Sustainability Directors Network (USDN) – 
Funding and Financing Climate Action. Herman and the HIP team identified key 
pathways cities to investments and partnerships for resourcing Climate Action Plans to 
mitigate climate change consequences and enhance community resilience. 

Project Director, and co-Author, Cities of Oakland CA, Fremont CA, San Luis Obispo CA, 
Bend OR, Columbia MO, and Anchorage AK – Funding and Financing Climate Action 
Maps.  Each map is a customized, detailed approach, like a road map, to decide where 
to prioritize and allocate to climate action based on available resources, whether 
financial or partnerships or both. Cities can (1) select a climate action, (2) weigh the 
array of options for funding and financing, synthesizing into that equation their unique 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 433 of 487



R. Paul Herman, Page 2

political environment and financial resources, and (3) validate those high-potential options with case studies and 
partner possibilities.  Herman and the HIP team have worked directly with the cities listed above to incorporate 
funding and financing pathways from Climate Action Maps into each of their specific Climate Action Plans. 

Climate Finance Strategist. Cities of Livermore CA, Chico CA, and County of Santa Clara CA.  Herman and the HIP 
team are building actionable climate action funding approaches into each of the cities’ climate action plans. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 434 of 487



Funding and Financing Strategies for Climate Action 

EDUCATION 

BA, Economics and Psychology, 
University of North Carolina, 
Chapel Hill 

CERTIFICATIONS/ 

ACCREDITATIONS 

Fundamentals of Sustainability 
Accounting (FSA) Credential I 

IDEO Human Centered Design 
for Social Innovation 

Acumen’s Lean Principles for 
Social Impact 

YEARS OF 

EXPERIENCE 

11 

Nick Gower 
Senior Vice President - Municipal Analytics, Client Services 

Mr. Gower has experience designing strategies to fund and finance municipalities 
and climate action plans (CAPs) from both the investor and the project-
development perspectives. These strategies can both finance equitable progress 
and results towards climate action goals, as well as opportunities for innovative 
investment and partnerships to achieve greenhouse gas (GHG) reductions and 
potential financial return on investment. 

In 2012, Mr. Gower launched HIP Investor (HIP)’s data-driven municipal 
sustainability and impact ratings and has continued to grow and evolve them over 
the past eight years. HIP now rates over 120,000 Issuers and Impact Entities (cities, 
counties, states, energy + water utilities, transportation districts, housing agencies, 
hospitals, universities + community colleges, school districts, and sovereigns) and 
has led teams in reviewing more than 40,000 issuances, including “green bonds.” 

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Project Manager, CDP – Social Equity and Project Finance, Matchmaker 
Sustainable Infrastructure Project.  Gower, HIP team and social equity leaders 
developed project profiles, financing menus, webinars, and contributed to the 
Making Climate Infrastructure Equitable Toolkit and Workbook. Resources were 
informed by work with a cohort of 30 CDP Matchmaker cities funding the next 
wave of equitable climate action and can be used by local governments pursuing 
social equity in infrastructure, funding and financing sustainability projects. 

Project Consultant, and co-Author, Climate Risks and Opportunities in the Great 
Lakes Region: Leveraging Green Infrastructure as a Resilience Measure for 
Stormwater Infrastructure. Gower and Resilient Infrastructure Sustainable 
Communities (RISC) team co-authored this regional review analyzing four pillars 
county by county - climate risks, social vulnerability, workforce agility, and fiscal 
affordability. This research identifies which communities can become more 
resilient, and more ready for investors, sooner rather than later, and how to 
prioritize high impact climate action. 

Project Manager, and co-Author, Urban Sustainability Directors Network (USDN) 
– Financing Sustainable Cities Scan and Toolkit.  Gower and the HIP team co-
authored this action-oriented “how-to toolkit” for cities to source implementable
and emerging funding mechanisms that can support cities striving towards bold
climate action and sustainability. Participating cities included Palo Alto CA, Oakland
CA, Berkeley CA, Vancouver BC, Phoenix AZ, Ithaca NY, Ann Arbor MI, and
Milwaukee WI.

Project Manager, and co-Author, Urban Sustainability Directors Network (USDN) 
– Funding and Financing Climate Action. Gower and the HIP team identified key
pathways cities to investments and partnerships for resourcing Climate Action
Plans to mitigate climate change consequences and enhance community resilience.

Project Manager, and co-Author, Cities of Oakland CA, Fremont CA, San Luis 
Obispo CA, Bend OR, Columbia MO, and Anchorage AK – Funding and Financing 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 435 of 487



Nick Gower, Page 2 

Climate Action Maps.  Each map is a customized, detailed approach, like a road map, to decide where to prioritize and 
allocate to climate action based on available resources, whether financial or partnerships or both. Cities can (1) select a 
climate action, (2) weigh the array of options for funding and financing, synthesizing into that equation their unique 
political environment and financial resources, and (3) validate those high-potential options with case studies and 
partner possibilities.  Gower and the HIP team have worked directly with the cities listed above to incorporate funding 
and financing pathways from Climate Action Maps into each of their specific Climate Action Plans. 

Climate Finance Strategist. Cities of Livermore CA, Chico CA, and County of Santa Clara CA.  Gower and the HIP team 
are building actionable climate action funding approaches into each of the cities’ climate action plans. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 436 of 487



Continued 

JULIANO CALIL Ph.D. 
Santa Cruz, CA, 95060 

juliano.calil@gmail.com | +1 (310) 302-7968 

WORK AND LEADERSHIP EXPERIENCE 

Co-Founder and Senior Scientist at Virtual Planet Technologies, Santa Cruz, CA, August 2018 – Present. 
- Developing and Deploying immersive solutions to support climate outreach. Supporting multiple projects at

various coastal and inland locations including: Turner Station, MD, Santa Cruz, Monterey, Long Beach,
Huntington Beach, Santa Barbara, and Paradise in CA. More at VirtualPlanet.tech

Adjunct Professor, Middlebury Institute of International Studies at Monterey, CA, August 2017 – Present. 
Courses include: Sustainable Coastal Management, and Research Strategies for Environmental Policy 

- Adjunct Professor in the International Environmental Policy (IEP) master’s degree program, in the Oceans
and Coastal Resources Management (OCRM) concentration.

Senior Research Fellow, Center for the Blue Economy, Monterey, CA, August 2017 – Present. 
- Climate Change Vulnerabilities in the Coastal Mid-Atlantic Region 

Senior Scientist & Subject Matter Expert Advisor in California, February 2015 – Present.  

- City of Santa Cruz, Climate Adaptation Plan Update. Santa Cruz, CA, April 2017 – 2018.
- City of Imperial Beach, Sea Level Rise Assessment.  Santa Cruz, CA, February 2015 – September 2016.

Independent researcher supporting various projects for The Nature Conservancy, June 2011 – June 2015. 
Focused on Coastal Adaptation, Hazard Mitigation and Climate Change Impacts 

- ‘Economic Impacts of Climate Adaptation Strategies for Southern Monterey Bay’ report.

- Developed a Beach Ecology Index covering the biotic and physical environment, and human impacts (2015).

- Supported a cost/benefit analysis of ‘engineered’ versus ‘nature-based’ defenses to mitigate coastal
flooding related to climate change at the Gulf Coast of the U.S. (2012 to 2013).

- Developed a multi-criteria spatial analysis model to identify and prioritize areas where coastal floods
intersect with natural habitats in California. Reviewed hazard mitigation grants and policies; Presented
results at the California Emergency Management Agency (Cal EMA) (2011 to 2012).

- Graduate Student Fellow (Summer of 2011).

VIP Consulting (formerly MyITgroup), Los Angeles, CA, September 2003 – January 2011 
Program Manager / Data Warehouse (DW) and Business Intelligence (BI) Solutions Architect 

PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLC, Boston, MA, December 2000 – September 2003 
Principal Consultant – Data Warehouse Practice 

Panex Consulting, Houston, TX, May 2000 – December 2000 
Lead Data Warehousing Consultant at Compaq Computer Corporation (now HP). 

SAP Brasil, São Paulo, Brazil, September 1998 – May 2000 
Senior data warehousing consultant responsible for all aspects of the first SAP-BW project in South America. 

EDUCATION 

Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) in Ocean Sciences / Coastal Adaptation |March 2017 

University of California, Santa Cruz (UCSC), Ocean Sciences Department 
Dissertation: Multidisciplinary approaches to Coastal Adaptation. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 437 of 487

mailto:Juliano.Calil@gmail.com
file:///C:/Users/Juliano%20Calil/Documents/Work/Resume/virtualplanet.tech


juliano.calil@gmail.com     Page 2 

EDUCATION ctd. 

Master of Environmental Science and Management (MESM), Climate and Energy focus |March 2012 

University of California at Santa Barbara, Bren School of Environmental Science & Management 
Thesis: The Effects of Climate Change on the Production Costs of the Dairy Industry in the U.S. 

Bachelor of Business Administration (BBA) | December 1997 
Fundação Armando Álvares Penteado – São Paulo, Brazil  

Final Thesis: Business Plan for an internet cafe in São Paulo, Brazil (completed with Honors). 

SELECTED PUBLICATIONS 

- Calil, J., Gutiérrez-Graudiņš, M., Munguia, S., Chin, C. UN Environment (2021) “Neglected: Environmental
justice impacts of plastic pollution” United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP), Nairobi. (in press).

- Calil, J.; Fauville, G.; Queiroz, A.C.M.; Leo, K.L.; Mann, A.N.; Wise-West, T.; Salvatore, P.; Bailenson, J.N. (2021) “Using
Virtual Reality in Sea Level Rise Planning and Com-munity Engagement” Water 2021 (in review).

- Colgan, C.S., Calil J., Kite-Powel, H., Jin, D., Hoagland, P. (2018) “Climate Change Vulnerabilities in the
Coastal Mid-Atlantic Region”. Mid-Atlantic Regional Council on the Ocean (MARCO).
http://midatlanticocean.org/report-assesses-mid-atlantic-coasts-economic-vulnerability-to-climate-change/

- Reguero B.G., Beck M.W., Bresch D.N., Calil J., Meliane I. (2018) “Comparing the cost effectiveness of
nature-based and coastal adaptation: A case study from the Gulf Coast of the United States” PLOS ONE
13(4): e0192132. https:// doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0192132

- Calil, J., Rueda, A., Reguero, B., Losada, I. J., Mendez, F. J. (2017) "Comparative Coastal Risk Index (CCRI): A
multidisciplinary risk index for Latin America and the Caribbean", PLOS ONE (In press).

- Calil, J., Newkirk S. (2017) "Aligning Natural Resource Conservation, Flood Hazard Mitigation, and Social
Vulnerability Remediation in Florida," Journal of Ocean and Coastal Economics: Vol. 4: Iss. 1, Article 4. DOI:
https://doi.org/10.15351/2373-8456.1074

- Calil. J., Beck M.W., Gleason M., Merrifield M., Klausmeyer K., Newkirk S. (2015) "Aligning Natural Resource
Conservation and Flood Hazard Mitigation in California" PLOS ONE 10(7):
doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0132651.

- Calil, J., Silvester, A., Stelzl, K., & Wissel-Tyson, C. (2012). "The Effects of Climate Change on the Production
Costs of the Dairy Industry in the United States". Master’s thesis available at:  https://goo.gl/4KiIKJ

AWARDS, FELLOWSHIPS, and HONORS 

- UCSC’s Chancellor’s Graduate Teaching Fellows program, 2016. “Multidisciplinary Approaches to Coastal
Climate Adaptation” course offered to graduate and undergraduate students; winter 2016.

- Alumni Association Award for best talk at UCSC’s Graduate Research Symposium; 2016.

- Ocean Sciences Outstanding Student Award; UCSC, 2015; Qualifying Exam with Honors; UCSC, 2014.

- Cota Robles Fellowship; for potential to become excellent faculty or researcher in institutions of higher
education and foster diversity in graduate education (2012 – 2017); $72,000.

- Student Research and Education Award; Friends of the Long Marine Lab; (2014 – 2015); $1,000.

- Fundação Armando Álvares Penteado, undergraduate scholarship (1996– 1997); $2,000; Completed
undergraduate end of course paper with honors; FAAP, 1997.

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 438 of 487

mailto:juliano.calil@gmail.com
http://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0132651
https://goo.gl/4KiIKJ


Appendix B 
Standard Fee Schedules 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 439 of 487



Standard Fee Schedules 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. B-1

Rincon – Standard Fee Schedule for Environmental Sciences and Planning 
Services 

Professional, Technical and Support Personnel* Hourly Rate 

Principal II $295 
Director II $295 
Principal I $280 
Director I $280 
Senior Supervisor II $245 
Supervisor I $228 
Senior Professional II $212 
Senior Professional I $197 
Professional IV $174 
Professional III $161 
Professional II $145 
Professional I $128 
Associate III $117 
Associate II $102 
Associate I $95 
Senior GIS Specialist $160 
GIS/CADD Specialist II $140 
GIS/CADD Specialist I $125 
Technical Editor $130 
Project Accountant  $110 
Billing Specialist $95 
Publishing Specialist $110 
Clerical $95 
* Professional classifications include environmental scientists, urban planners, biologists, geologists, marine scientists, GHG
verifiers, sustainability experts, cultural resources experts, and other professionals. Expert witness services consisting of 
depositions or in-court testimony are charged at the hourly rate of $375. 

Rincon – Reimbursable Expenses 
Direct Cost  Rates  

Photocopies – Black and White $0.20 (single-sided) & $0.36 (double-sided) 
Photocopies – Color $1.50 (single-sided) & $3.20 (double-sided) 
Photocopies – 11 x 17 $0.50 (B&W) & $3.20 (color) 
Oversized Maps $8.00/square foot 
Digital Production $15/disc and $20/flash drive 
Light-Duty and Passenger Vehicles* $88/day 
4WD and Off-Road Vehicles* $140/day 
* $0.65/mile for mileage over 50 and for all miles incurred in employee-owned vehicles. 

Other direct costs associated with the execution of a project, that are not included in the hourly rates above, are billed at cost plus 15%. 
These may include, but are not limited to, laboratory and drilling services, subcontractor services, authorized travel expenses, permit 
charges and filing fees, mailings and postage, performance bonds, sample handling and shipment, rental equipment, and vehicles other 
than covered by the above charges. 
Annual Escalation. Standard rates subject to annual escalation. 
Payment Terms. All fees will be billed to Client monthly and shall be due and payable upon receipt or as indicated in the contract 
provisions for the assignment. Invoices are delinquent if not paid within ten (10) days from receipt or per the contractually required 
payment terms. 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 440 of 487



Standard Fee Schedules 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. B-2

Subconsultants – Standard Fee Schedule 
Personnel Hourly Rate 

Climate Resolve 
Project Manager $176.81 
Engagement Lead $111.10 
Engagement Planner II $83.06 
Engagement Planner I $89.92 
Project Assistant $71.21 
Iteris, Inc. 
Senior Transportation Lead $230 
Transportation Analyst $150 
HIP Investors 
Funding and Financing Lead $200 
Funding and Financing Analyst $200 
Virtual Planet Technologies, LLC 
Virtual Reality Project Lead $140 
3D Modeler/Environmental Artist $75 

CONTRACT NO. 2116October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 441 of 487



ATTACHMENT “B”  

RESOLUTION NO. 8184 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 ADOPTED BUDGET 
TO APPROPRIATE FUNDING FOR PHASE I OF THE CLIMATE ACTION AND 
RESILIENCE PLAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received and considered the proposed adjustment to the 
budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, commencing July 1, 2022, and ending June 30, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is necessary to amend the expenditures 

of the current City budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, an annual budget for the City of San Fernando for Fiscal Year beginning  

July 1, 2022 and ending July 30, 2023, a copy of which is on file in the City Clerk’s Office, was 
adopted on June 21, 2022. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 

RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. The following adjustment is made to the City Budget: 
 
CARP Funding: SoCalGas Climate Adaptation & Resiliency 
  
Increase in Expenditures:  $50,000 
Account No. 110-310-7527-4270 
   
SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution and shall cause 

a certified resolution to be filed in the Office of the City Clerk. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 17th day of October, 2022. 

 
  
        

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  
San Fernando, California 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 442 of 487



RES. NO. 8184 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8184 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
17th day of October, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of October, 2022.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 443 of 487



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 444 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 445 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 446 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Discussion and Informational Update on Maintenance Efforts on the Mission City 

Bike Trail 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Receive and file this informational report on maintenance efforts on the Mission City Bike 

Trail;  
 

b. Discuss the options of adding new solar lights and security cameras on the bike trail; and 
 

c. Provide direction to staff, as appropriate. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. The Mission City Bike Trail is a bike and pedestrian path, approximately 1.1 miles in length, 
which extends within the shared Metrolink corridor from Jessie Street on the eastern City 
limit to Hubbard Street on the western City limit (Attachment “A”). 
 

2. Public Works staff is required to maintain the trail, which includes an eight-foot wide concrete 
paved path, as well as an additional 16 feet of vegetated buffer between the path and the 
fenced-off Metrolink track. 

 
3. Along the bike trail, there are 62 light poles, which staff also maintains. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The following is a summary of recent maintenance efforts along the Mission City Bike Trail, as 
well as research efforts into new lighting and security equipment that could enhance the safety 
of the trail for the community.  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 447 of 487



Discussion and Informational Update on Maintenance Efforts on the Mission City Bike Trail  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
The Mission City Bike Trail is broken into four sections where street access is available, as shown 
in Table 1 below: 

Table 1. – Mission City Bike Trail Segments 

Segment ID# Entry Point Terminal Point Segment Length 
1 Jessie St. Brand Blvd. 0.2 miles 
2 Brand Blvd. Maclay Ave. 0.1 miles 
3 Maclay Ave. Orange Grove Ave. 0.6 miles 
4 Orange Grove Ave. Hubbard St. 0.2 miles 

 
Lighting on the Mission City Bike Trail. 
There are a total of 62 light poles along the Mission City Bike Trail. However, only half of the poles 
have lights, which are of an older solar technology. Staff has researched placing new solar lights 
on each of the 62 poles. These lights produce up to 76,000 lumens, which is approximately three 
times brighter than street lights that are located within the downtown mall area. An example of 
these lights are found in Attachment “B”. These solar lights could be motion-sensor activated and 
can run continuously for over 24 hours from the charge built up on the solar panel over the course 
of a normal sunny to cloudy day. The approximate cost is $500 per solar light. 

Removing Dense Vegetation/Placing Mulch. 
Over the summer, staff removed very dense vegetation that had developed within the buffer 
areas between the path and the Metrolink tracks. In particular, heavy brush had developed on 
Segments 3 and 4 (Maclay Avenue to Hubbard Street). Before and after pictures of this work is 
found in Attachment “C”. Insufficient lighting and dense vegetation contributed to security 
concerns for those using the trail.  
 
Following removal of the dense vegetation, staff is looking to simplify maintenance by placing 
clean mulch with the buffer zones to keep weeds under control and provide a clean look adjacent 
the concrete path. This will be an ongoing project over the next several months. 
 
Adding a Security Camera. 
Staff from Public Works and the Police departments have worked together to explore options for 
adding security cameras on some of the light poles. Strategically-placed cameras coupled with 
maintenance and patrols by Public Works and Police has the potential to enhance the safety of 
this part of the Mission City Bike Trail. As a ball-park cost, it is estimated that the cost of each 
camera unit would be approximately $5,000. There would be an approximate cost of $10,000 on 
an annual basis to provide off-site monitoring of the video footage collected from these units. 
 
Maintenance Effort on the Mission City Bike Trail. 
Due to the length of the Mission City Bike Trail, staff has been able to provide basic level service 
each day for approximately one hour to change out trash cans and address graffiti abatement 
needs. However, staff has been augmented in recent months through the use of Community 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 448 of 487



Discussion and Informational Update on Maintenance Efforts on the Mission City Bike Trail  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
Service workers who are able to increase the total number of work hours on the Mission City Bike 
Trail each day to four hours. This has helped to control litter in more heavily trafficked regions of 
the Mission City Bike Trail and assist with controlling the vegetation in the buffer areas. 
 
Staff is looking to increase service to the area, by adding bi-weekly pressure washing of the 
concrete path near its entrances and restriping of the center line to promote its shared use for 
pedestrians and cyclists. Staff also seeks to increase the number of Community Service workers 
to help provide more regular litter control. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The addition of lighting and security cameras has the potential to enhance safety along the 
Mission City Bike trail. Staff determined that funds accumulated through the Street Lighting Fund 
(Fund 027) can be used to pay for the solar lighting enhancement with the common area of the 
Mission City Bike Trail. The purchase of security cameras would require an appropriation from 
potential sources, such as the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds. For the purpose of the 
table below, funding is listed as “to be determined”. 
 

SOURCES 
Fund  Account Number Allocation 
Street Lighting Fund  027-3110-0000 $ 31,000 
To be determined TBD $ 60,000 
              
Total Sources:  $ 91,000 

 

USES 
Activity Account Number Cost 
Purchase of new solar lights (62 total) 027-344-0000-4500 $ 31,000 
Purchase of 4 new cameras and monitoring TBD $ 60,000 
Total Uses:  $ 91,000 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file a report from staff on the Mission City 
Bike Trail and provide direction to staff on the following options:  
 

1. Consideration of use of the Street Lighting Fund to purchase 62 new solar lights. 
 

  

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 449 of 487



Discussion and Informational Update on Maintenance Efforts on the Mission City Bike Trail  
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

2. Consideration to purchase up to four security cameras with monitoring services. Request 
staff to research potential funding sources for the camera equipment and ongoing 
monitoring services and return to City Council with an update on the potential locations 
to add cameras and the potential benefits of installing them on the bike path. 

 
3. Any other direction the City Council deems appropriate. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Map of the Mission City Bike Trail 
B. Example specifications for new solar lights 
C. Photos of recent maintenance efforts along the trail (before and after) 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 450 of 487



10/11/22, 5:48 PM Google Maps 

Go gle Maps Mission City Bike Trail - Jessie Street to Brand (Segment 1) 

Imagery C2022 Ma~ar Technologies, U.S Geological survey, Map data C>2022 50 ft 

https://www.google.com/maps/@34.2814271,-118.4375137,21Om/data=!3m111e3 I 1/1 

ATTACHMENT "A"
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 451 of 487



10/11/22. 5:49 PM Google Maps 

Go gle Maps Mission City Bike Trail - Brand to Maclay (Segment 2) 

Imagery ©2022 Maxar Technologies, U.S. Geological Survey, USDA/FPAC/GEO, Map data ©2022 50 ft 

hllps:Jlwww.google.com/maps/@34.2831829,· 118.4393528,21 Om/d ata=!3m1 I 1e3 1/1 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 452 of 487



10/11/22, 5:51 PM Google Maps 

Go gle Maps Mission City Bike Trail - Maclay to Orange Grove (Segment 3) 

Map data ©2022, Map data @2022 200 ft 

https://www.google.com/maps/@34.2871043, -118.4436807 ,839m/data= I3m 111 e3 1 /1 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 453 of 487



10/11/22, 5:52 PM Google Maps 

Go gle Maps Mission City Bike Trail - Orange Grove to Hubbard (Segment 4) 

Imagery ©2022 Maxar Technologies, U.S. Geological Survey, USDA/FPAC/GEO, Map data ©2022 100 ft 

https://www.google.com/maps/@34.2905389,-118.4474217,419m/data=!3m111e3 I 1 1/1 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 454 of 487



<, 
() \.. ,;;, '-

Roll over image to zoom in 

• 0 0. 
~G Go 

/ 

Product details 

Brand 

Material 

Style 

Light fixture form 

Indoor/Out door Usage 

Power Source 

AXLTFDH 

Aluminum 

Garden 

Floodlight 

Outdoo r 

Solar Powered 

• This outdoor solar st reet light can be charged and light ing even if on sunny or 
cloudy days. After fully charged in 4-6 hours, it can be illuminated at least 18 -
36 hours in motion sensor mode or 12-20 hours in constant light mode. 

• The solar street lamp is a high power LED chip,low power consumpt ion, high 
brightness, low light decay, energy-saving, and environmental protection. Use 

a large capacity lit hium batt ery wit h a long lifet ime up to five years, 
eliminat ing the need to frequently rep lace your fixt ure, save installation and 
ma intenance, and electricity bills costs. 

• This led st reet light ing can also be controlled by remote cont rol as you need. 
The t hree different modes appeal to a wider range of users t han some of t he 
ot her products- dusk to dawn, mot ion sensing and t iming mode. 

• Compared with solar st reet light with sepa rate panels and lamp, int egrated 
solar street light are easy to install and are t he first choice for places where 
sunshine is full.lP67 waterproof grade make it works well even in bad weather 
all year round. The housing is sealed t ight ly, so you won't have to worry abourt 

dead bugs, pooled water, or anything else piling up inside. 

• This outdoor solar powered lights comes wit h assembly accessories set.t he 
pole lights comes with adjustable met al bracket,Mount on t he wall, pole, 
t ree, ba lcony, anywhere outdoor. No wiring required, no maintenance. Ideal 
for st reet and roads, courtyard, parks, squares, private gardens, court yard, et c. 

A See less product details 

ATTACHMENT "B"

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 455 of 487



ATTACHMENT “C” 
 

 

Dense vegetation in the buffer zone next to bike path. Prior to clearing by maintenance staff. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 456 of 487



 

Dense vegetation in the buffer zone next to bike path. Prior to clearing by maintenance staff. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 457 of 487



 

 

Dense vegetation in the buffer zone next to bike path. Prior to clearing by maintenance staff. 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 458 of 487



 

Vegetation cleared in buffer zone next to path. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 459 of 487



 

Vegetation cleared in buffer zone next to path. 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 460 of 487



 

Vegetation cleared in buffer zone next to path. 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 461 of 487



 

Vegetation cleared in buffer zone next to path. Vegetation needs to be cleared on the Metrolink side of 
the fence. 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 462 of 487



 

Vegetation cleared in buffer zone next to path. Vegetation needs to be cleared on the Metrolink side of 
the fence. 

 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 463 of 487



 

Vegetation has been cleared on south side of Metrolink tracks. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 464 of 487



 

Vegetation still needs to be cleared on north side of Metrolink tracks. 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 465 of 487



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 466 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 467 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 468 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1201                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Councilmember Celeste Rodriguez 
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Discussion and Consideration Regarding City Membership to Join California 

Contract Cities Association 

RECOMMENDATION: 

I have placed this item on the agenda for the City Council to:  
 
a. Discuss City membership to join California Contract Cities Association (“CCCA”) to enhance 

the City’s legislative capacity and professional development opportunities; and 
 
b. Provide direction to staff, as applicable. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
This agenda item will provide an opportunity for City Councilmembers to learn about California 
Contract Cities and the potential benefits of San Fernando becoming a member city, specifically 
regarding legislative advocacy and professional development. 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
California Contract Cities Association represents 79 cities and more than 7.5 million residents, 
CCCA’s strength the ability to navigate the legislative and policy making processes. CCCA has 
fiercely advocated for the rights of cities to practice the contracting model and to strengthen 
local control since 1957. CCCA is the premier advocacy association in Los Angeles County and 
beyond and have advocated successfully for member cities for more than 63 years.   
 
CCCA’s network of service providers is to serve cities and constituencies to promote collaborative 
governance across sectors. These collaborations provide unprecedented opportunities for 
efficiencies in better serving the public significant cost savings. 
 
 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 469 of 487

https://contractcities.org/


Discussion and Consideration Regarding City Membership to Join California Contract Cities 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The membership cost for San Fernando for the Calendar Year 2022-2023 is $3,800.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. PowerPoint Presentation Membership Benefits 
B. Request to Agendize an Item for City Council Discussion/Consideration 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 470 of 487



ATTACHMENT "A"
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 471 of 487



California Contract
Cities Association

#StrengthenLocalControl

City Membership Benefits Presentation

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 472 of 487



Our Mission

#StrengthenLocalControl

Advance the benefits of the Contracting
Model and strengthen Local Control.

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 473 of 487



Our Purpose

#StrengthenLocalControl

• Educate members on current and emerging legislation/policy so 
they can better serve their communities.

• Advocate on behalf of our member cities when local control is 
threatened.

• Network with elected officials, county and state agencies, non-
profits, and private-sector companies to foster long-lasting 
relationships.

• Collaborate with local governments to share best-practices and 
thereby promoting the best of what local government has to offer.

• Serve as a liaison between local, county, and state
governments.

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 474 of 487



Contract Cities Fast Facts

#StrengthenLocalControl

• Established in 1957 to address issues relating to
city contracts.

• Second largest local government advocacy
association in California.
– Focused on issues affecting local control.

• Full-time executive director and staff.

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 475 of 487



Benefits of Membership with CCCA

#StrengthenLocalControl

• Stability
– Three executive directors in 65+ years
– Solid member base 
– Strong support from Associate Members (corporate partners)

• Strength in numbers
– 79 cities strong (Los Angeles, Riverside, San Bernardino, Ventura Counties)
– More than 60 associate members

• Continued growth
– Added 9 new cities in the last five years

• Aggressive Advocacy
– Lobbying efforts were key in removing cities from AB1250 language
– Successfully amended AB1912 which would have increased city pension liabilities

• Affordable membership dues

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 476 of 487



Most Recent Accomplishments

#StrengthenLocalControl

• Legislative Advocacy
– Successfully negotiated cities out of AB 1250
– Successfully defeated SB54
– Ongoing efforts to combat unintended consequences of SB9
– Successfully defeated AB 1886

• County-Wide Policy Advocacy
– Earned a seat on L.A. County’s Blue-Ribbon Commission on

Homelessness (Marcel Rodarte)
– Well-positioned CCCA as the go-to Association with

L.A. County Board of Supervisors

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 477 of 487



Current CCCA Focus Areas

#StrengthenLocalControl

• Continued enhancement of member city benefits
– Additional training (elected officials, city managers, other city staff)
– Increased engagement for new and current member city elected officials and staff
– Strengthening local control

• Expand associate membership and benefits
– Create more value for associate member partners

• Increased Advocacy
– Housing
– Funding
– Public safety
– Water
– Homelessness

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 478 of 487



CCCA Events and Meetings

#StrengthenLocalControl

• January: Sacramento Legislative Tour
• March: L.A. County Local Advocacy Day
• May: Annual Municipal Seminar
• September/October: Fall Educational Summit
• November: City Managers Summit
• December: All-Cities Holiday mixer
• 1st Wednesday of each month: Executive Board Meeting
• 3rd Wednesday of each month: Board of Directors Meeting

– Dark in January, July, and December
• 4th Wednesday each month: City Managers Luncheon

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 479 of 487



#StrengthenLocalControl

Thank you for your time!

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 480 of 487



From: Nick Kimball
To: Julia Fritz
Subject: Fw: Agenda Item
Date: Wednesday, October 12, 2022 2:37:18 PM
Attachments: CCCA City Membership Benefits Presentation.pptx

FYI. Please use as attachment for Councilmember Rodriguez item.

Nick Kimball 
City Manager
City of San Fernando 
O.818.898.1202

Sent from my mobile device.

From: Celeste Rodriguez 
Sent: Wednesday, October 12, 2022 12:40 PM
To: Nick Kimball <NKimball@sfcity.org>
Subject: Re: Agenda Item

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Please see attached a presentation that Contract Cities will be able to provide at the meeting. 

Thank you,

On Wed, Oct 12, 2022 at 11:45 AM Celeste Rodriguez wrote:

Hello Nick,

I would like to add to the agenda "Consideration of joining Contract Cities to enhance the
City's legislative strength."

This agenda item will provide an opportunity for Council to learn about Contract Cities and
the potential benefits of San Fernando becoming a member, specifically regarding the City's
legislative agenda. I would also appreciate if staff provided their recommendation, including
a cost-benefit analysis.

Thank you,
Celeste

ATTACHMENT "B"
October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 481 of 487














California Contract
Cities Association

#StrengthenLocalControl

City Membership Benefits Presentation







Our Mission

#StrengthenLocalControl

Advance the benefits of the Contracting

Model and strengthen Local Control.







Our Purpose

#StrengthenLocalControl

Educate members on current and emerging legislation/policy so they can better serve their communities.

Advocate on behalf of our member cities when local control is threatened.

Network with elected officials, county and state agencies, non-profits, and private-sector companies to foster long-lasting relationships.

Collaborate with local governments to share best-practices and thereby promoting the best of what local government has to offer.

Serve as a liaison between local, county, and state

governments.







4





Contract Cities Fast Facts

#StrengthenLocalControl

Established in 1957 to address issues relating to city contracts.



Second largest local government advocacy association in California.

Focused on issues affecting local control.



Full-time executive director and staff.









5





Benefits of Membership with CCCA

#StrengthenLocalControl

Stability

Three executive directors in 65+ years

Solid member base 

Strong support from Associate Members (corporate partners)

Strength in numbers

79 cities strong (Los Angeles, Riverside, San Bernardino, Ventura Counties)

More than 60 associate members

Continued growth

Added 9 new cities in the last five years

Aggressive Advocacy

Lobbying efforts were key in removing cities from AB1250 language

Successfully amended AB1912 which would have increased city pension liabilities

Affordable membership dues







6





Most Recent Accomplishments

#StrengthenLocalControl

Legislative Advocacy

Successfully negotiated cities out of AB 1250

Successfully defeated SB54

Ongoing efforts to combat unintended consequences of SB9

Successfully defeated AB 1886



County-Wide Policy Advocacy

Earned a seat on L.A. County’s Blue-Ribbon Commission on Homelessness (Marcel Rodarte)

Well-positioned CCCA as the go-to Association with

L.A. County Board of Supervisors











7





Current CCCA Focus Areas

#StrengthenLocalControl

Continued enhancement of member city benefits

Additional training (elected officials, city managers, other city staff)

Increased engagement for new and current member city elected officials and staff

Strengthening local control



Expand associate membership and benefits

Create more value for associate member partners



Increased Advocacy

Housing

Funding

Public safety

Water

Homelessness







8





CCCA Events and Meetings

#StrengthenLocalControl

January: Sacramento Legislative Tour

March: L.A. County Local Advocacy Day

May: Annual Municipal Seminar

September/October: Fall Educational Summit

November: City Managers Summit

December: All-Cities Holiday mixer

1st Wednesday of each month: Executive Board Meeting

3rd Wednesday of each month: Board of Directors Meeting

Dark in January, July, and December

4th Wednesday each month: City Managers Luncheon







9





#StrengthenLocalControl

Thank you for your time!





image1.jpg



image2.jpg



image3.jpg







City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-003.1 (07/2017) |  Page 1 of 1 

REQUEST TO AGENDIZE AN ITEM FOR CITY COUNCIL 
DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION

CITY COUNCILMEMBER INFORMATION
NAME TITLE

ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT Title of the item you are requesting to be agendized.

PRIORITIES 
Is this included in the current FY priorities?

  Yes
  

No

BUDGET 
Is this a budgeted item?

  Yes    No

FISCAL IMPACT 
Is there a fiscal impact? If yes, indicate amount.

  Yes    No     $
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS Provide the reason you are requesting this item be agendized.

ATTACHMENTS Do you have any attachments to include?

  Yes    No
RECOMMENDATION Indicate the direction you are recommending.

CELESTE RODRIGUEZ COUNCILMEMBER

Discussion and Consideration Regarding City Membership with California Contract Cities to
Enhance the City's Legislative Strength

✔ ✔ ✔

To provide an opportunity for Council to learn about Contract Cities and the potential benefits of San
Fernando becoming a member, specifically regarding the City's legislative agenda. I would also
appreciate if staff provided their recommendation, including a cost-benefit analysis.

Consider city membership

✔

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 482 of 487



October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 483 of 487



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 484 of 487



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1201                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☐ City Manager 
 

To: Vice Mayor Pacheco and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Mayor Mary Mendoza  
   
Date:  October 17, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion to Address Certain Comments Made by City of Los 

Angeles Councilmembers Gil Cedillo and Kevin de León  

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
I have placed this on the agenda for City Council discussion to submit a letter to the City of Los 
Angeles calling for the immediate resignation of Los Angeles Councilmembers Gil Cedillo and 
Kevin de León for their racial disparaging comments. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no impact to the budget by discussing this item.  Additional future costs to be determined 
based on City Council direction. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Request to Agendize an Item for City Council Discussion/Consideration 
 

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 485 of 487



From: Mary Mendoza
To: Nick Kimball
Cc: Julia Fritz; Crystal Solis
Subject: Agenda Item for 10/17/22
Date: Wednesday, October 12, 2022 11:22:00 AM

Hi Nick,

I would like to place an agenda item for Monday’s meeting to discuss comments made by L.A. City Council
Members Nury Martinez, Kevin De Leon, and Gil Cedillo and give staff direction.

Mary Mendoza
Mayor

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 486 of 487



City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-003.1 (07/2017) |  Page 1 of 1 

REQUEST TO AGENDIZE AN ITEM FOR CITY COUNCIL 
DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION

CITY COUNCILMEMBER INFORMATION
NAME TITLE

ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT Title of the item you are requesting to be agendized.

PRIORITIES 
Is this included in the current FY priorities?

  Yes    No

BUDGET 
Is this a budgeted item?

  Yes    No

FISCAL IMPACT 
Is there a fiscal impact? If yes, indicate amount.

  Yes    No     $
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS Provide the reason you are requesting this item be agendized.

ATTACHMENTS Do you have any attachments to include?

  Yes    No
RECOMMENDATION Indicate the direction you are recommending.

MARY MENDOZA MAYOR

DISCUSSION REGARDING COMMENTS MADE BY LA COUNCILMEMBERS NURY MARTINEZ,
GIL CEDILLO AND KEVIN DE LEON

✔ ✔ ✔

Request to submit a letter to the City of LA calling for the immediate resignations of Los Angeles
Councilmembers Nury Martinez, Gil Cedillo and Kevin de León

October 17, 2022 Regular CC Meeting

Page 487 of 487


	10-17-22 CC&SA Agenda
	1 - MINUTES
	1 - Cover Sheet & 1
	1a-1x
	10-19-2020 CC Minutes
	1a-1x
	01-04-2021 CC&SA Minutes
	1a-1x
	04-05-2021 CC&SA Minutes
	1a-1x
	09-19-22 CC&SA Minutes
	1a-1x
	10-03-2022 CC-S Minutes

	2
	2 - FIN_City Warrant (10-17-2022)
	FIN_City Warrant (10-17-22) AR & ATT A
	FIN_City Warrant (10-17-22) ATT A_EXH A

	3
	3 - FIN_Consideration to Approve Service Agreement with SpectrumVoIP  (10-17-2022)
	FIN_Consideration to Approve Service Agreement with SpectrumVoIP  (10-17-22) AR
	FIN_Consideration to Approve Service Agreement with SpectrumVoIP  (10-17-22) ATT A & Exh A

	4
	4 - CLK_Approve Lease Agrmt with Canon for Citywide MFC Machine (10-17-2022)
	CLK_Approve Lease Agrmt with Canon for Citywide MFC Machine_(10-17-2022) AR
	CLK_Approve Lease Agrmt with Canon for Citywide MFC Machine_(10-17-2022) ATT A
	General-Terms-Ver-2-0-5-16-22.pdf
	Rider-E-Ver-2-0-3-1-22.pdf
	2. COMMENCEMENT/RENEWAL. You shall execute an MPS Schedule(s) issued by CSA which shall include an estimate of your Printer models and quantity of same, and the pricing based thereon.   Upon your execution of an MPS Schedule, the Parties shall work in...
	3. CHARGES. Base charges shall be billed in advance and per image charges shall be billed in arrears on a quarterly basis. Invoices shall be due and payable within thirty days of the invoice date. Applicable taxes and non-standard shipping fees shall ...
	h. Return of Unused Consumables and Restocking Fee. At the expiration or cancellation of the Term, or a significant reduction or change in the number and types of Covered Printers, you shall return all Unused Consumables as instructed by CSA at your e...
	i. Shipping Fees. All Consumables will be shipped via UPS Ground or similar service from other carriers (standard shipping method).  Charges for each shipment shall be your responsibility and will be billed accordingly. “Shipment” is defined as each d...
	j. Consumables Availability. CSA shall use commercially reasonable efforts to procure Consumables for the Covered Printers.  Covered Printers are provided replenishment of Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) or 3rd party manufactured Toner Cartrid...
	a.  MPS pricing and included Toner Cartridges is based upon 5% toner coverage for black & white and 20% for color letter size pages. You agree that CSA may invoice you for excess usage in the event your actual toner usage exceeds these assumptions by ...
	b.  You shall bear all risk of loss, theft or damage to Toner Cartridges, which shall remain CSA’s property and any Unused Toner Cartridges shall be returned promptly as set forth in Section 5.h. above.

	Rider-F-Ver-2-0-5-16-22.pdf
	Consumable Item    Item Number
	44” Basic Calibration Sheet   1060021389



	CLK_Approve Lease Agrmt with Canon for Citywide MFC Machine_(10-17-2022) ATT B
	CLK_Approve Lease Agrmt with Canon for Citywide MFC Machine_(10-17-2022) ATT C
	CLK_Approve Lease Agrmt with Canon for Citywide MFC Machine_(10-17-2022) ATT D
	GENERAL INFORMATION
	The City of San Fernando is requesting proposals from qualified and experienced vendors for the Citywide Copier Upgrade Project for a three-year term with two optional one-year extensions.  The required equipment and services are described in the Scop...
	BACKGROUND
	INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING FIRMS
	CURRENT INVENTORY
	SCOPE OF SERVICE
	PROPOSED TERM OF CONTRACT
	SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION
	METHOD OF SELECTION AND NOTICES
	INFORMATION TO BE SUBMITTED
	3. Include a Proposal Summary Section
	In this section, present a well-conceived service plan. This section of the proposal shall establish the Vendor’s understanding of the City’s objectives and work requirements and the Vendor’s ability to satisfy those objectives and requirements. Descr...

	Addendum No 1 - RFP for Citywide Copier Upgrade Project (5-18-2022).pdf
	Response to Questions for Citywide Copier Upgrade Project (5-17-2022)


	CLK_Approve Lease Agrmt with Canon for Citywide MFC Machine_(10-17-2022) ATT E

	5
	5 - PD_ABC 22-APP24 Grant Acceptance AR (10-17-2022)
	PD_ABC 22-APP24 Grant Acceptance AR (10-17-22) AR
	PD_ABC 22-APP24 Grant Acceptance AR (10-17-22) ATT A
	PD_ABC 22-APP24 Grant Acceptance AR (10-17-22) ATT B
	PD_ABC 22-APP24 Grant Acceptance AR (10-17-22) ATT B EX A1
	PD_ABC 22-APP24 Grant Acceptance AR (10-17-22) ATT B EX A2
	San Fernando PD.pdf
	Exhibits.pdf

	PD_ABC 22-APP24 Grant Acceptance AR (10-17-22) ATT C

	6
	6 - PD_Consideration to Accept CalOES HF Grant (10-17-2022)
	PD_Consideration to Accept CalOES HF Grant (10-17-22) AR
	PD_Consideration to Accept CalOES HF Grant (10-17-22) ATT A
	PD_Consideration to Accept CalOES HF Grant (10-17-22) ATT B

	7
	7 - PW_Award of Contract Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project (10-17-2022)
	PW_Award of Contract Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project (10-17-22) AR
	PW_Award of Contract Pedestrian Fencing Glenoaks Boulevard Bridge Project (10-17-22) ATT A

	8
	8 - PW_Approve LACMTA Agreement for Sidewalk Repair Funds (10-17-2022)
	PW_Approve LACMTA Agreement for Sidewalk Repair Funds (10-17-22) AR
	PW_Approve LACMTA Agreement for Sidewalk Repair Funds (10-17-22) ATT A
	PW_Approve LACMTA Agreement for Sidewalk Repair Funds (10-17-22) ATT B

	9
	9 - ADM_LA County MOU for Broadband Support (10-17-2022)
	ADM_LA County MOU for Broadband Support (10-17-22) AR
	Next Steps.

	ADM_LA County MOU for Broadband Support (10-17-22) ATT A

	10
	10 - CD_Approve Rincon Agreement for CARP (10-17-2022)
	CD_Approve Rincon Agreement for CARP (10-17-22) AR
	CD_Approve Rincon Agreement for CARP (10-17-22) ATT A
	I.
	ENGAGEMENT TERMS
	1.1 TERM: This Agreement shall have a term commencing from the Effective Date through December 31, 2023 (hereinafter, the “Term”).  Nothing in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement ...
	1.2 SCOPE OF WORK:
	A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to provide the services and tasks described in that certain Request for Proposals of CITY entitled “Climate Action and Resilience Plan”, (hereinafter, “CITY RFP”) and the writ...
	1.3 PROSECUTION OF WORK:
	2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVE:  The CITY hereby designates Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development (hereinafter, the “CITY Representative”) to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement.  The CITY Representative or their design...
	2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Erik Feldman, Principal, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “Consultant Representative”).  Consultant Representative will have full authority to ...
	2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement and will be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representative at all reasonable times.  ...
	2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following:
	2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform t...
	2.7 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work will be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work subject to the require...
	2.8 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY Representative to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely perfor...
	2.9 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT will keep itself informed of and in compliance with all applicable federal, state or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT’s compliance with applic...
	2.10 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  CONSULTANT represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any subconsultant, employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, handicap, ancestr...
	2.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and will at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, em...
	IV.


	CD_Approve Rincon Agreement for CARP (10-17-22) ATT A Exh A
	GENERAL INFORMATION / BACKGROUND
	SCOPE OF WORK
	Outreach and Engagement Methods
	Language Needs:  All engagement materials and methods shall be conducted in English and Spanish, unless explicitly instructed by City staff.
	Printing:  Consultant shall anticipate the need for printing across the project. Consultant and City Project Manager will review printing-related expenses on a rolling basis to ensure the budgeted amount is sufficient and equitably applied across the ...
	Material Procurement:  Consultant shall anticipate the need for educational tools and presentation materials to support engagement tasks. The City will approve the proposed list of educational tools and material (oversized maps, pop-up banners, virtua...
	INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING FIRMS
	SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION
	SELECTION CRITERIA

	CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL
	2. Related experience during the last ten years.

	CD_Approve Rincon Agreement for CARP (10-17-22) ATT A Exh B
	Cover Letter
	Table of Contents
	1 Firm Profile
	About Rincon
	Subconsultants

	2 Experience
	Climate Action and Adaptation Planning
	Project Experience

	3 Key Personnel
	Team Organization
	Biographies for Key Personnel

	4 References
	5 Project Schedule
	6 Project Scope and Cost
	Approach
	Workload Coordination
	Scope of Work

	Appendices
	Appendix A Staff Resumes
	Appendix B Standard Fee Schedules


	CD_Approve Rincon Agreement for CARP (10-17-22) ATT B

	11
	11 - PW_Update on Mission City Bike Trail Maintenance (10-17-2022)
	PW_Update on Mission City Bike Trail Maintenance (10-17-22) AR
	PW_Update on Mission City Bike Trail Maintenance (10-17-22) ATT A
	PW_Update on Mission City Bike Trail Maintenance (10-17-22) ATT B
	PW_Update on Mission City Bike Trail Maintenance (10-17-22) ATT C

	12
	12 - RODRIGUEZ_CCC Membership Legislative Advocacy (10-17-2022)
	RODRIGUEZ_CCC Membership Legislative Advocacy (10-17-22) AR
	RODRIGUEZ_CCC Membership Legislative Advocacy (10-17-22) ATT A & B

	13
	13 - MENDOZA_Discussion LA Councilmembers (10-17-2022)
	MENDOZA_Discussion LA Councilmembers (10-17-22) AR
	MENDOZA_Discussion LA Councilmembers (10-17-22) ATT A




